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In the District Court of the United States in and
for the District of Montana.

Great Falls Division.

No. 69.

ETHEL M. DOHENY, as Administratrix of the

Estate of Roberta Doheny, Deceased,

Plaintiff,

vs.

UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND GUAR-
ANTY COMPANY, a corporation.

Defendant,

and

No. 70.

ETHEL M. DOHENY, as Administratrix of the

Estate of Marguerite Doheny, Deceased,

Plaintiff,

vs.

UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND GUAR-
ANTY COMPANY, a corporation.

Defendant.

Be it remembered that on July 20, 1939, a Tran-

script on Removal from the District Court of the

Eighth Judicial District of the State of Montana,

in and for the County of Cascade, was duly filed

in each of the above entitled causes, said transcripts

on removal each consisting of the following papers,

towit

:

Complaint,

Petition for Removal,
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Notice of Petition and Bond for Removal,

Bond on Removal,

Order for removal,

Clerk's Certifiate to Transcript on Removal,

and being in the words and figures following, towit

:

[2]

In the District Court of the Eighth Judicial District

of the State of Montana, in and for the County

of Cascade

ETHEL M. DOHENY, as Administratrix of the

Estate of Roberta Doheny, Deceased,

Plaintiff,

V.

UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND GUAR-
ANTY COMPANY, a Corporation,

Defendant.

COMPLAINT

The plaintiff for her cause of action against the

defendant complains and alleges:

I.

The plaintiff is informed and believes and there-

fore alleges that at all times hereinafter mentioned

the defendant. United States Fidelity and Guar-

anty Company, was and still is a corporation cre-

ated, organized and existing under and by virtue of

the laws of the State of Maryland and authorized

to do and doing business within the State of Mon-

tana.
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II.

That on or about the 8th day of April, 1935,

plaintiff was, by an order of the District Court of

the First Judicial District of the State of Montana,

in and for the County of Lewis and Clerk, ap-

pointed Administratrix of the Estate of Roberta

Doheny, Deceased, by an order of said court, duly

given, made and entered on said date in the mat-

ter of the Estate of Roberta Doheny, Deceased, and

thereafter letters of administration in the Estate

of Roberta Doheny, Deceased, were duly issued to

plaintiff under the seal of said court and the hand

of the Clerk of said court and that at all times

since plaintiff has been and still is the duly ap-

pointed, qualified and acting administratrix of the

Estate of Roberta Doheny, Deceased. [3]

III.

That on or about the 20th day of September,

1934, John M. Coverdale and E. O. Johnson, as

co-partners, doing business under the firm name

of Coverdale & Johnson, made and entered into a

certain written agreement with the State of Mon-

tana for the performance by said co-partners of

certain work and furnishing certain materials con-

stituting improvements on a public highway known

as the "Augusta-Sun River Road" in Lewis and

Clark County, Montana, wherein and whereby the

said co-partners promised and agreed to perform

the work and furnish the materials in accordance

with the terms of said contract in consideration of

the payment to said co-partners by the State of
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Montana of the suni of approximately Fifteen

Thousand, Six Hundred Fifteen and Sixty-six

Hundredths Dollars ($15,615.66) in accordance with

the terms of said agreement. That under the terms

of said agreement the said co-partners promised

and agreed to furnish a good and sufficient surety

bond in the amount of $15,615.66 to be conditioned

for the faithful performance of the covenants and

agreements set forth in said agreement and to be

by said co-partners performed and thereafter pur-

suant thereto the said co-partners, as Principal, and

said United States Fidelity and Guaranty Com-

pany, as Surety, made, entered into and delivered

to the State of Montana a certain agreement desig-

nated '^Contract Bond" which said agreement w^as

conditioned for the faithful performance in all re-

spects of the provisions of said contract by the

said co-partners and recited the sum of $15,615.66

as the penalty thereof.

IV.

That under the terms and provisions of Para-

graph 7.11 of section 7 of said written agreement

betw^een the aforesaid co-partners and the State

of Montana for the performance of work and fur-

nishing of materials .described therein, the said co-

partners promised and agreed to carry public lia-

bility insurance to indemnify the public for in-

juries or damages sustained by reason of the carry-

ing on the work in the amount of at least $10,-

000.00 for one person and a [4] total of $20,000.00
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for one accident and promised to submit adequate

evidence to the State Highway Commission of the

State of Montana of taking out such public liability

insurance and thereafter as evidence of taking out

of said public liability insurance the defendant

United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company no-

tified the Montana Highway Commission in writing

on or about October 1st, 1934, that said defendant

corporation had issued contractors' public liability

insurance policy for said co-partners under said

contract with a liability of $10,000.00' for one per-

son and $20,000.00 for one accident. That plaintiff

has heretofore demanded the original or a copy of

said public liability insurance policy from the said

co-partners and from the defendant. United States

Fidelity and Guaranty Company, and said co-part-

ners and said defendant have failed and refused to

furnish either thereof and that plaintiff is informed

and believes and therefore alleges that under the

provisions of said insurance policy and in accord-

ance with the provisions of the agreement between

the said co-partners and the State of Montana the

defendant corporation promised and agreed to pay

all claims from liability imposed u])on the afore-

said co-partners by law for damages on account of

bodily injuries including death at any time result-

ing therefrom sustained by any of the public by

reason of the carrying on of the work mentioned

and described in the contract between said co-part-

ners and the State of Montana in connection with

the public Highway mentioned in said contract, and
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expressly provided in said policy that any person

of the public sustaining injuries and damages as

aforesaid or his or her personal representative was

authorized to institue and maintain an action

against the defendant corporation for the amount

of any judgment obtained in an action theretofore

brought against the said co-partners for such dam-

ages and injuries in case execution on said judg-

ment against the said co-partners be returned un-

satisfied.

V.

That thereafter and on or about the 12th day of

December, 1934, and while carrying on the work

mentioned and described in the [5] written agree-

ment between the co-partners and the State of Mon-

tana the aforesaid co-partners operated a certain

automobile in such a grossly negligent and reckless

manner as to injure and kill one Roberta Doheny

and that at the time the said Roberta Doheny was

a member of the public and said automobile was

then and there being used in carrying on the w^ork

under aforesaid agreement and that thereafter in

an action instituted in the District Court of the

Eighth Judicial District in the State of Montana

in and for the County of Cascade by the above

named plaintiff and against the aforesaid co-part-

ners to recover for the injuries and damages sus-

tained by said Roberta Doheny and her resulting

death as the proximate result of the reckless and

grossly negligent operation of said automobile as

aforesaid, a judgment in the sum of $5,116.89 was
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duly given, made and entered by said Court in favor

of the said plaintiff and against the said co-partners

on the 4th day of May, 1936, and that neither

said judgment nor any part thereof has been paid

by said co-partners or by the defendant, United

States Fidelity and Guaranty Company, although

demand of payment thereof has heretofore been

made by plaintiff.

yi.

That thereafter the said co-partners appealed to

the Supreme Court of the State of Montana from

said judgment and thereafter on the 20th day of

May, 1937, the judgment of the aforesaid District

Court was affirmed and sustained by the Supreme

Court of the State of Montana and remittitur on

said judgment was issued by the Supreme Court to

the aforesaid District Court and thereafter filed in

said District Court on the 5th day of June, 1937.

That neither said judgment nor any part thereof

nor the interest thereon has been paid and that

plaintiff still is the owner and holder of said judg-

ment.

VII.

That thereafter on or about the 17th day of Au-

gust, 1937, an execution was issued and placed in

the hands of the Sheriff of Deer Lodge County,

State of Montana, the place of residence and prin-

cipal place of business of the aforesaid co-partners,

requiring [6] the Sheriff to satisfy aforesaid judg-

ment out of the property of said co-partners and

that said execution was returned to the District
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Court of Cascade County, on or about the 10th

day of September, 1937, unsatisfied and bearing the

certificate of the Sheriff that he returned said exe-

cution wholly unsatisfied because no personal or

real property of said co-partners could be found.

VIII.

That the said co-partners had fully complied with

all the requirements and conditions precedent enu-

merated in the aforesaid policy and that plaintiff

has complied with all the requirements and condi-

tions precedent and is entitled- to maintain this ac-

tion against the defendant, United States Fidelity

and Guaranty Company, to recover the sum of

$5,116.89 and accrued and accruing interest thereon

from May 4, 1936, and became so entitled to main-

tain said action on or about the 10th day of Sep-

tember, 1937, upon the return of the execution not

satisfied and by virtue of the judgment rendered

and against the said co-partners and finally deter-

mined by the aforesaid Supreme Court on appeal

on or about the 5th day of June, 1937.

IX.

That plaintiff is informed and believes and there-

fore alleges that the defendant. United States Fi-

delity and Guaranty- Company retained attorneys

and paid the said attorneys for their services in

conducting the defense by the co-partners of the

action instituted in the District Court aforesaid and

that said defendant retained the attorneys and paid

for their services rendered and paid the expenses
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connected with the appeal of the aforesaid action

to the Supreme Court of the State of Montana from

the judgment given, made and entered by the afore-

said District Court in said action.

X.

That heretofore on or about May 13th, 1938, the

said plaintiff demanded payment of the aforesaid

judgment from the defendant, a true and correct

copy of which written demand so made upon the

said defendant is hereto annexed marked "Exhibit

A" and by this reference [7] made a part hereof.

That said defendant has failed to make payment

of said judgment either in whole or in part.

Wherefore, Plaintiff prays judgment against the

defendant for the sum of $5,116.89 and interest

thereon at the rate of Six Per Cent (6%) per an-

num from May 4, 1936, and costs of this action and

for such other and further relief as may be equi-

table, just and proper.

E. J. McCABE,
Attorney for Plaintiff

State of Montana

County of Cascade—ss.

E. J. McCabe being first duly sworn deposes and

says:

That he is the attorney for plaintiff named in

the foregoing complaint, and makes this verifica-

tion for the reason that plaintiff is absent from

Cascade County, Montana, wherein affiant resides

and maintains his office and where this verifica-

tion is made;
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That affiant has read the foregoing complaint,

knows the contents thereof and that same is true

to the best knowledge, information and belief of

this affiant.

E. J. McCABE

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 24th day

of April, 1939.

(Notarial Seal) KATHLEEN SMESTAD
Notary Public for the State of Montana. Residing

at Great Falls, Montana

My commission expires Mar. 31, 1942. [8]

''EXHIBIT A"

Great Falls, Montana

May 13, 1938

United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company
Baltimore, Maryland

Gentlemen

:

On or about the 20th day of September, 1934,

John M. Coverdale and E. O. Johnson, co-partners

doing business under the name of Coverdale and

Johnson, entered into a written contract with the

State Highway Commission of the State of Mon-

tana for the performance of certain work and the

furnishing of certain materials constituting im-

provements on a public highway known as the "Au-

gusta-Sun River Road" in Lewis and Clark County,

Montana. At the time of the making of said con-

tract the said John M. Coverdale and E. O. John-

son, co-partners as aforesaid, as Principal and

your Company as Surety executed and delivered a
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certain contract bond in writing in the principal

sum of $15,615.66, the condition of which bond was

that the aforesaid co-partners would in all respects

faithfully perform all of the provisions of the afore-

said contract between said co-partners and the State

of Montana acting by and through the State High-

way Commission.

The aforesaid Highway Contract contained the

following provision

:

"The Contractor shall carry public liability

insurance to indemnify the public for injuries

or damages sustained by reason of the carrying

on the work. This insurance shall be in the

amount of at least $10,000.00 for one person

and a total of $20,000.00 for one accident. The

Contractor shall submit adequate evidence to

the Commission that he has taken out this in-

surance. '

'

Thereafter your Company notified the State

Highway Commission of Montana by written com-

munication that you had written a public liability

policy of insurance in accordance with the terms

and provisions of aforesaid contract to and w^ith

the aforesaid co-partners in the amount of $10,-

000.00 for one person and a total of $20,000.00 for

one accident. Thereafter, one Eoberta Doheny was

killed as a result of the grossly negligent and reck-

less operation of an instrumentality being used by

said co-partners at the time in carrying on the prose-

cution of the work under aforesaid Highway con-
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tract. An action was thereafter instituted in the

District Court of the 8th Judicial District of the

State of Montana in and for the County of Cas-

cade by the undersigned, Ethel M. Doheny, as Ad-

ministratrix of the estate of Roberta Doheny, de-

ceased, to recover from said co-partners damages

by reason of the injuries and death of aforesaid

Roberta Doheny by reason of the alleged grossly

negligent and reckless operation of aforesaid in-

strumentality while carrying on the prosecution of

work under the aforesaid Highway contract, in

which action a judgment was duly given, made and

entered by said Court on the verdict on the 4th day

of May, 1936, of the jury empanelled to try said

action against the said co-partners, as defendants,

for the sum of $5000.00 together with the additional

sum of $116.89 costs together with interest thereon

at the rate of 6% per annum, and which action was

defended at your direction by Attorneys employed

by your Company and to whom you paid an Attor-

ney's fee for their services rendered in said action.

[9]

An appeal was taken to the Supreme Court of

Montana from the judgment in said action by afore-

said Attorneys at your suggestion and the services

of said Attorneys rendered on said appeal were paid

by your Company. Thereafter, the judgment of the

lower Court was duly affirmed by the Supreme

Court. Said judgment has not been paid nor any

part thereof and the undersigned as Administratrix
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aforesaid still is the owner and holder of said judg-

ment.

At the direction of the undersigned, E. J. Mc-

Cabe, her Attorney, made oral demand for payment

of the aforesaid Judgment upon Don Jacobus, your

agent at Helena, Montana, and was informed by

said agent that your Company claimed non-liability

for payment of said judgment and refused payment

thereof.

An execution on aforesaid judgment has been

heretofore duly issued and delivered to the Sheriff

for levy and enforcement of said judgment against

property of aforesaid co-partners and the said exe-

cution has been returned unsatisfied either in part

or in whole by reason of inability to locate any

property of aforesaid co-partners.

At the direction of the undersigned, her afore-

said Attorney has conducted an investigation for

the purpose of finding any property of aforesaid co-

partners available for execution and no property of

any kind has been located.

Demand is hereby made that you pay the under-

signed, as Administratrix, aforesaid, the aforesaid

judgment in the sum of $5,116.89 with interest from

May 4th, 1936 at the rate of 6% per annum, and in

the event of your failure to comply with this de-

mand, notice is hereby given that the undersigned

will institute suit to enforce payment of said judg-

ment.
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A copy of the within demand is being delivered

to your agent at Helena, Montana.

Very truly yours,

ETHEL M. DOHENY,
414 Strain Building

Great Falls, Montana

[Endorsed]: Filed July 20, 1939. C. E. Garlow,

Clerk. [10]

In the District Court of the Eighth Judicial District

of the State of Montana, in and for the County

of Cascade.

ETHEL M. DOHENY, as Administratrix of the

Estate of Roberta Doheny, Deceased,

Plaintiff,

vs.

UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND GUAR-
ANTY COMPANY, a corporation.

Defendant.

PETITION FOR REMOVAL
Comes now United States Fidelity and Guaranty

Company, a corporation, the defendant named in

the above entitled action and makes and presents

this its petition for removal of the above entitled

action to the District Court of the United States

for the District of Montana, and respectfully shows

and alleges:
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I.

That the above entitled action is an action in

which there is a controversy which is wholly be-

tween citizens of diiferent states. That the plain-

tiff in said action v/as, at the occurrences relied

upon in the complaint, and at the time of the com-

mencement of this action, and still is a resident and

citizen of the State of Montana.

II.

That the defendant, United States Fidelity and

Guaranty Company is now, and at all of the times

mentioned in plaintiff's complaint has been, and

was at the time of the commencement of the above

entitled action, a corporation duly [11] organized

and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the

State of Maryland, licensed to do business in Mon-

tana, and a citizen and resident of the State of

Maryland, and a non-resident of the State of Mon-

tana.

III.

That on or about the 2nd day of June, 1939, the

plaintiff herein filed the above entitled action

against the above named defendant in the District

Court of the Eighth Judicial District of the State

of Montana, in and for the County of Cascade, said

action being Cause No. 28770 in said court and dis-

trict. That in the above entitled action the plain-

tiff seeks to recover from the defendant United

States Fidelity and Guaranty Company, a corpora-

tion, the sum of Five Thousand One Hundred six-
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teen and 89/100 Dollars ($5116.89) which amount

allegedly represents the amount of a certain judg-

ment given, made and entered by the District Court

of the Eighth Judicial District of the State of

Montana, in and for the County of Cascade, in

favor of the above named plaintiff in an action by

the above named plaintiff against John M. Cover-

dale and E. O. Johnson, as co-partners, doing busi-

ness under the firm name of Coverdale & Johnson.

That in the above entitled action the plaintiff

seeks to recover the amount of said judgment, to-

wit, the sum of Five Thousand One Hundred six-

teen and 89/100 Dollars ($5116.89), together with

interest, from the defendant United States Fidelity

and Guaranty Company on the ground that said

defendant had issued to the said John M. Cover-

dale and E. O. Johiison as said co-partners, doing

business under the firm name of Coverdale & John-

son, a contractors' public liability insurance policy

with a liability of $10,000.00 for one [12] person

and a total of $20,000.00 for one accident and plain-

tiff further alleges that by reason of the issuance

of said policy of insurance the said defendant

United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company is

legally bound and obligated to pay the said judg-

ment in the amount of Five Thousand One Hun-

dred sixteen and 89/100 Dollars ($5116.89), to-

gether with interest from and after May 4, 1936.

That the matter and amount in dispute and con-

troversy in said suit exceeds, exclusive of interest

and costs, a sum or value of Three Thousand and
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no/100 Dollars ($3000.00), all of which will more

fully appear from the complaint in said action,

which is hereby referred to and made a part hereof.

IV.

That the defendant makes and files herewith a

bond in the sum of Three Hundred and no/100 Dol-

lars ($300.00), with good and sufficient surety for

their entering in the District Court of the United

States for the District of Montana, within thirty

days from the date of filing this petition a ceri-

fied copy of the record in this suit and for paying

all costs that may be awarded by said District Court

of the United States, if it shall hold that this suit

was wrongfully and improperly removed thereto.

Wherefore, this petitioner prays this court to

proceed no further herein except to accept this pe-

tition and said bond and to make an order requiring

said defendant to enter and file a certified copy of

the record herein in the said District Court of the-

United States for the District of [13] Montana,

within thirty days from the filing of this petition,

as provided by law.

HOWARD TOOLE
W. T. BOONE

Attorneys for Defendant. [14]

State of Montana

County of Lewis and Clark—^ss.

Don W. Jacobus, being first duly sworn upon his

oath, deposes and says : That he is the Manager for

the defendant. United States Fidelity and Guaranty
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Company, a corporation, and that he makes this

verification as such manager for and on behalf of

said defendant and that he is duly authorized to

make the same; that he has read the foregoing pe-

tition and knows the contents thereof and that the

matters and things therein stated are true.

DON W. JACOBUS

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 19th day

of Jime, 1939.

(Seal) W. T. BOONE
Notary Public for the State of Montana. Residing

at Missoula, Montana.

My commission expires Aug. 2, 1941.

[Endorsed]: Piled July 20, 1939. C. R. Garlow,

Clerk. [15]
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In the District Court of the Eighth Judicial Dis-

trict of the State of Montana, in and for the

County of Cascade.

ETHEL M. DOHENY, as Administratrix of the

Estate of Roberta Doheny, Deceased,

Plaintiff,

vs.

UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND GUAR-
ANTY COMPANY, a corporation.

Defendant.

NOTICE OF PETITION AND BOND
FOR REMOVAL

To Ethel M. Doheny, as Administratrix of the

Estate of Roberta Doheny, Deceased, the above

named plaintiff:

To E. J. McCabe, plaintiff's attorney:

You and each of you are hereby notified that

United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company, a

corporation, the defendant in the above entitled ac-

tion, will on the 27th day of June, 1939, file in said

action in said Court, the petition and bond of said

defendant, copies of which are hereto attached and

served upon you, for removal of said cause to the

District Court of the United for the District of

Montana, Great Falls Division, and will on said

date at the hour of 10 o'clock A. M., or as soon

thereafter as counsel can be heard, present said pe-

tition and bond so filed in the above entitled Court,

and move said Court for an order removing said
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cause to the District Court of the United States,

for the District of Montana, in accordance with said

Petition and Bond.

Dated this 19th day of June, 1939.

HOWARD TOOLE
W. T. BOONE

Attorneys for Defendant.

[Endorsed]: Filed July 20, 1939. C. R. Garlow,

Clerk. [16]

In the District Court of the Ei^^^hth Judicial Dis-

trict of the State of Montana, in and for the

County of Cascade.

ETHEL M. DOHENY, as Administratrix of the

Estate of Roberta Doheny, Deceased,

Plaintiff,

vs.

UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND GUAR-
ANTY COMPANY, a corporation.

Defendant.

BOND ON REMOVAL
Know All Men By These Presents, That we,

United States Fidelity -and Guaranty Company, a

corporation, as principal, and Fidelity and Deposit

Company of Maryland, a corporation, authorized

and licensed to do business within the State of Mon-

tana, as surety, are held and firmly bound unto tlie

plaintiff above named, in the penal sum of Tliree
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Hundred and no/100 Dollars ($300.00), lawful

money of the United States, to be paid to the said

plaintiff, her heirs, executors, administrators, suc-

cessors and assigns, for which payment, well and

truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our successors

and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these

j)resents.

Whereas, the above entitled suit was brought by

the above named plaintiff in the District Court of

the Eighth Judicial District of the State of Mon-
tana, in and for the County of Cascade, against the

above named defendant, and is now pending in said

state court and is removable into the District Court

of the United States for the District of Montana,

and the said defendant. United States Fidelity and

Guaranty [17] Company, a corporation, has peti-

tioned said State Court for such removal.

Now, Therefore, if the said defendant shall enter

in the said District Court of the United States

within thirty days from the date of filing said pe-

tition as provided by law, a certified copy of the

records of said suit, and shall well and truly pay all

costs that may be awarded by said District Court

of the United States, if it shall hold that said suit

was wrongfully or improperly removed thereto, then

this obligation to be void, otherwise it shall remain

ill full force and virtue.
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Sealed with our seals and dated the 19th day of

June, 1939.

UNITED STATES FIDELITY
AND GUARANTY COM-
PANY, a corporation,

(Corporate Seal) By DON W. JACOBUS
Manager and Attorney-in-fact

Principal.

FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT
COMPANY OF MARYLAND,
a corporation,

(Corporate Seal) By A. B. KALIN
Its Attorney-in-Fact

Surety.

I hereby approve the above bond this 20th day of

June, 1939.

H. H. EWING
Judge.

[Endorsed]: Filed July 20, 1940. C. R. Garlow,

Clerk. [18]
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In the District Court of the Eighth Judicial Dis-

trict of the State of Montana, in and for the

County of Cascade.

ETHEL M. DOHENY, as Administratrix of the

Estate of Roberta Doheny, Deceased,

Plaintiff,

vs.

UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND GUAR-
ANTY COMPANY, a corporation,

Defendant.

ORDER
The defendant herein, LTnited States Fidelity and

Guaranty Company, a corporation, having within

the time provided by law, filed its petition for re-

moval in this cause to the District Court of the

United States for the District of Montana, and hav-

ing at the same time offered its bond in the sum of

Three Hundred Dollars ($300.00), with good and

sufficient surety, pursuant to statute, and condi-

tioned to law;

It Is Ordered by the Court that said Petition be

accepted ; that said Bond be approved and accepted

;

that this cause be removed for trial to the District

Court of the United States for the District of Mon-

tana, pursuant to the statute of the United States;

and that all other proceedings in this Court be

stayed.

Dated this 27th day of June, 1939.

H. H. EWING
Judge.
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[Endorsed]: Filed July 20, 1940. C. R. Garlow,

Clerk. [19]

In the District Court of the Eighth Judicial Dis-

trict of the State of Montana, in and for the

County of Cascade.

ETHEL M. DOHENY, as Administratrix of the

Estate of ROBERTA DOHENY, deceased,

Plaintiff,

vs.

UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND GUAR-
ANTY COMPANY, a Corporation,

Defendant.

CLERK'S CERTIFICATE
I, George Harper, Clerk of the District Court of

the Eighth Judicial District of the State of Mon-

tana, in and for the County of Cascade, do hereby

certify that the above and foregoing transcript con-

tains full, true and correct copies of the original

papers filed in this Court in the case of Ethel M.

Doheny, as Administratrix of the Estate of Roberta

Doheny, deceased, vs. United States Fidelity and

Guaranty Company, a corporation. No. 28770, said

record consisting of the Complaint, filed in said suit

on the 2nd day of June, 1939, the Petition for Re-

moval of said suit to the United States District

Court for the District of Montana, filed in said suit

on the 20th day of June, 1939, the Bond for Re-
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moval, the Notice of Petition and Bond, and the

Order of Removal of suit to said United States Dis-

trict Court for the District of Montana, entered on

record in said suit on the 27th day of June, 1939.

[20]

And I further certify that said transcript is by

me transmitted to the District Court of the United

States in and for the District of Montana, Great

Falls Division, pursuant to such order of removal.

Witness my hand and the seal of said Court at

Great Falls, Montana, this 20th day of July, 1939.

(Seal) GEORGE HARPER
Clerk of Court.

By THOMAS T. DAVIES
Deputy

[Endorsed] : Filed July 20, 1939. C. R. Garlow,

Clerk. [21]

In the District Court of the Eighth Judicial Dis-

trict of the State of Montana, in and for the

County of Cascade.

ETHEL M. DOHENY, as Administratrix of the

Estate of Marguerite Doheny, Deceased,

Plaintiff,

V.

UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND GUAR-
ANTY COMPANY, a Corporation,

Defendant.
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COMPLAINT
The plaintiff for her cause of action against the

defendant complains and alleges:

I.

The plaintiff is informed and believes and there-

fore alleges that at all times hereinafter mentioned

the defendant, United States Fidelity and Guaranty

Company, was and still is a corporation created, or-

ganized and existing under and by virtue of the

laws of the State of Maryland and authorized to do

and doing business within the State of Montana.

II.

That on or about the 8th day of April, 1935,

plaintiff was, by an order of the District Court of

the First Judicial District of the State of Montana,

in and for the County of Lewis and Clark, ap-

pointed Administratrix of the Estate of Marguerite

Doheny, Deceased, by an order of said court, duly

given, made and entered on said date in the matter

of the Estate of Marguerite Doheny, Deceased, and

thereafter letters of administration in the Estate of

Marguerite Doheny, Deceased, were duly issued to

plaintiff under the seal of said court and the hand

of the Clerk of said court and that at all times since

plaintiff has been and still is the duly appointed,

qualified and acting administratrix of the Estate of

Marguerite Doheny, Deceased. [22]

III.

That on or about the 20th day of September, 1934,
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John M. Coverdale and E. 0. Johnson, as co-part-

ners, doing business under the firm name of Cover-

dale & Johnson, made and entered into a certain

written agreement with the State of Montana for

the performance by said co-partners of certain

work and furnishing certain materials constituting

improvements on a public highway known as the

''Augusta-Sun River Road" in Lewis and Clark

County, Montana, wherein and whereby the said co-

partners promised and agreed to perform the work

and furnish the materials in accordance with the

terms of said contract in consideration of the pay-

ment of said co-partners by the State of Montana

of the sum of approximately Fifteen Thousand, Six

Hundred Fifteen and Sixty-six Hundredths Dollars

($15,615.66) in accordance with the terms of said

agreement. That under the terms of said agreement

the said co-partners promised and agreed to furnish

a good and sufficient surety bond in the amount of

$15,615.66 to be conditioned for the faithful per-

formance of the covenants and agreements set forth

in said agreement and to be by said co-partners per-

formed and thereafter pursuant thereto the said

co-partners, as Principal, and said United States

Fidelity and Guaranty Company, as Surety, made,

entered into and delivered to the State of Montana

a certain agreement designated "Contract Bond"

which said agreement was conditioned for the faith-

ful performance in all respects of the provisions of

said contract by the said co-partners and recited the

sum of $15,615.66 as the penalty thereof.
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TV.

That under the terms and provisions of Para-

graph 7.11 of section 7 of said written agreement

between the aforesaid co-partners and the State of

Montana for the performance of w^ork and furnish-

ing of materials described therein, the said co-part-

ners promised and agreed to carry public liability

insurance to indemnify the public for injuries or

damages sustained by reason of the carrying on the

work in the amount of at least $10,000.00 for one

person and a [23]' total of $20,000.00 for one acci-

dent and promised to submit adequate evidence to

the State Highway Commission of the State of

Montana of taking out such public liability insur-

ance and thereafter as evidence of taking out of

said public liability insurance the defendant United

States Fidelity and Guaranty Company notified the

Montana Highway Commission in writing on or

about October 1st, 1934, that said defendant corpo-

ration had issued contractors' public liability in-

surance policy for said co-partners under said

contract with a liability of $10,000.00 for one per-

son and $20,000.00 for one accident. That plaintiff

has heretofore demanded the original or a copy of

said public liability insurance policy from the said

co-partners and from -the defendant, United States

Fidelity and Guaranty Company, and said co-part-

ners and said defendant have failed and refused to

furnish either thereof and that plaintiff is informed

and believes and therefore alleges that under the

provisions of said insurance policy and in accord-
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ance with the provisions of the agreement between

the said co-partners and the State of Montana the

defendant corporation promised and agreed to pay

all claims from liability imposed upon the aforesaid

co-partners by law for damages on account of bodily

injuries including death at any time resulting there-

from sustained by any of the public by reason of

the carrying on of the work mentioned and de-

scribed in the contract between said co-partners and

the State of Montana in connection with the public

Highway mentioned in said contract, and exi)ressly

provided in said policy that any person of the

public sustaining injuries and damages as aforesaid

or his or her personal representative was authorized

to institute and maintain an action against the de-

fendant corporation for the amount of any judg-

ment obtained in an action theretofore brought

against the said co-partners for such damages and

injuries in case execution on said judgment against

the said co-partners be returned unsatisfied.

V.

That thereafter and on or about the 12th day of

December, 1934, and while carrying on the work

mentioned and described in the [24] written agree-

ment between the co-partners and the State of Mon-

tana the aforesaid co-partners operated a certain

automobile in such a grossly negligent and reckless

manner as to injure and kill one Marguerite Doheny

and that at the time the said Marguerite Doheny

was a member of the public and said automobile was
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then and there being used in carrying on the work

under aforesaid agreement and that thereafter in

an action instituted in the District Court of the

Eighth Judicial District in the State of Monana in

and for the County of Cascade by the above named

plaintiff and against the aforesaid co-partners to

recover for the injuries and damages sustained by

said Marguerite Doheny and her resulting death as

the proximate result of the reckless and grossly neg-

ligent operation of said automobile as aforesaid, a

judgment in the sum of $5,116.89 was duly given,

made and entered by said Court in favor of the said

plaintiff and against the said co-partners on the 4th

day of May, 1936, and that neither said judgment

nor any part thereof has been paid by said co-part-

ners or by the defendant. United States Fidelity

and Guaranty Company, although demand of pay-

ment thereof has heretofore been made by plaintiff.

VI.

That thereafter the said co-partners appealed to

the Supreme Court of the State of Montana from

said judgment and thereafter on the 20th day of

May, 1937, the judgment of the aforesaid District

Court was affirmed and sustained by the Supreme

Court of the State af Montana and remittitur on

said judgment was issued by the Supreme Court to

the aforesaid District Court and thereafter filed in

said District Court on the 5th day of June, 1937.

That neither said judgment nor any part thereof

nor the interest thereon has been paid and that
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plaintiff still is the owner and holder of said judg-

ment.

VII.

That thereafter on or about the 17th day of Au-

gust, 1937, an execution was issued and placed in

the hands of the Sheriff of Deer Lodge County,

State of Montana, the place of residence and prin-

cipal place of business of the aforesaid co-partners,

requiring [25] the Sheriff to satisfy aforesaid judg-

ment out of the property of said co-partners and

that said execution was returned to the District

Court of Cascade County, on or about the 10th day

of September, 1937, unsatisfied and bearing the cer-

tificate of the Sheriff that he returned said execu-

tion wholly unsatisfied because no personal or real

property of said co-partners could be found.

VIII.

That the said co-partners had fully complied with

all the requirements and conditions precedent

enumerated in the aforesaid policy and that plain-

tiff has complied with all the requirements and con-

ditions precedent and is entitled to maintain this

action against the defendant, United States Fidelity

and Guaranty Company, to recover the sum of $5,-

116.89 and accrued and accruing interest thereon

from May 4, 1936, and became so entitled to main-

tain said action on or about the 10th day of

September, 1937, upon the return of the execution

not satisfied and by virtue of the judgment rendered

and against the said co-partners and finally deter-
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mined by the aforesaid Supreme Court on appeal on

or about the 5th day of June, 1937.

IX.

That plaintiff is informed and believes and there-

fore alleges that the defendant, United States Fi-

delity and Guaranty Company retained attorneys

and paid the said attorneys for their services in

conducting the defense by the co-partners of the

action instituted in the District Court aforesaid and

that said defendant retained the attorneys and paid

for their services rendered and paid the expenses

connected with the appeal of the aforesaid action to

the Supreme Court of the State of Montana from the

judgment given, made and entered by the aforesaid

District Court in said action.

' X.

That heretofore on or about May 13th, 1938, the

said plaintiff demanded payment of the aforesaid

judgment from the defendant, a true and correct

copy of which written demand so made upon the

said defendant is hereto annexed marked "Exhibit

A" and by this reference [26] made a part hereof.

That said defendant has failed to make payment of

said judgment either in whole or in part.

Wherefore, Plaintiff prays judgment against the

defendant for the sum of $5,116.89 and interest

thereon at the rate of Six Per Cent (6%) per an-

num from May 4, 1936, and costs of this action and

for such other and further relief as may be equita-

ble, just and proper.

E. J. McCABE
Attorney for Plaintiff.
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^tate of Montana

County of Cascade—ss.

E. J. McCabe being first duly sworn deposes and

says:

That he is the attorney for plaintiff named in the

foregoing complaint, and makes this verification for

the reason that plaintiff is absent from Cascade

County, Montana, wherein affiant resides and main-

tains his office and where this verification is made:

That affiant has read the foregoing complaint,

knows the contents thereof and that same is true to

the best knowledge, information and belief of this

affiant.

E. J. McCABE

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 24th day

of April, 1939.

(Notarial Seal) KATHLEEN SMESTAD
Notary Public for the State of Montana, Residing

at Great Falls, Montana.

My commission expires Mar. 31, 1942. [27]

''EXHIBIT A"

Great Falls, Montana

May 13, 1938

United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company

Baltimore, Maryland

Gentlemen

:

On or about the 20th day of September, 1934,

John M. Coverdale and E. O. Johnson, co-partners
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doing business under the name of Coverdale and

Johnson, entered into a written contract with the

State Highway Commission of the State of Mon-

tana for the performance of certain work and the

furnishing of certain materials constituting im-

provements on a public highw^ay known as the

'*Augusta-Sun River Road" in Lewis and Clark

County, Montana. At the time of the making of said

contract the said John M. Coverdale and E. O.

Johnson, co-partners as aforesaid, as Principal and

your Company as surety, executed and delivered a

certain contract bond in writing in the principal

sum of $15,615.66, the condition of which bond w^as

that the aforesaid co-partners would in all respects

faithfully perform all of the provisions of the

aforesaid contract between said co-partners and the

State of Montana acting by and through the State

Highway Commission.

The aforesaid Highway Contract contained the

following provision:

''The Contractor shall carry public liability

insurance to indemnify the public for injuries

or damages sustained by reason of the carrying

on the work. This insurance shall be in the

amount of at least $10,000.00 for one person

and a total of $20,000.00 for one accident. The

Contractor shall submit adequate evidence to

the Commission that he has taken out this in-

surance.
'

'

Thereafter your Company notified the State

Highway Commission of Montana by written com-
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munication that you had written a public liability

policy of insurance in accordance with the terms

and provisions of aforesaid contract to and with the

aforesaid co-partners in the amount of $10,000.00

for one person and a total of $20,000.00 for one acci-

dent. Thereafter, one Marguerite Doheny was killed

as a result of the grossly negligent and reckless

operation of an instrumentality being used by said

co-partners at the time in carrying on the prosecu-

tion of the work under aforesaid Highway contract.

An action was thereafter instituted in the District

Court of the 8th Judicial District of the State of

Montana in and for the County of Cascade by the

undersigned, Ethel M. Doheny, as Administratrix

of the estate of Marguerite Doheny, deceased, to

recover from said co-partners damages by reason of

the injuries and death of aforesaid Marguerite

Doheny by reason of the alleged grossly negligent

and reckless operation of aforesaid instrumentality

while carrying on the prosecution of work under

the aforesaid Highway contract, in which action a

judgment was duly given, made and entered by

said Court on the verdict on the 4th day of May,

1936, of the jury empanelled to try said action

against the said co-partners, as defendants, for the

sum of $5000.00 together with the additional sum of

$116.89 costs together with interest thereon at the

rate of 6% per annum, and which action was de-

fended at your direction by Attorneys employed by

your Company and to whom you paid and Attor-

ney's fee for their services rendered in said action.

[28]
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An appeal was taken to the Supreme Court of

Montana from the judgment in said action by afore-

said Attorneys at your suggestion and the services

of said Attorneys rendered on said appeal were paid

by your Company. Thereafter, the judgment of the

lower Court was duly affirmed by the Supreme

Court. Said judgment has not been paid nor any

part thereof and the undersigned as Administratrix

aforesaid still is the owner and holder of said Judg-

ment.

At the direction of the undersigned, E. J. Mc-

Cabe, her attorney, made oral demand for payment

of the aforesaid judgment upon Don Jacobus, your

agent at Helena, Montana, and was informed by

said agent that your Company claimed non-liability

for payment of said judgment and refused payment

thereof.

An execution on aforesaid judgment has been

heretofore duly issued and delivered to the Sheriff

for levy and enforcement of said judgment against

property of aforesaid co-partners and the said exe-

cution has been returned unsatisfied either in ]:>art

or in whole by reason of inability to locate any

property of aforesaid co-partners.

At the direction of the imdersigned, her aforesaid

Attorney has conducted an investigation for the

purpose of finding any property of aforesaid co-

partners available for execution and no property of

any kind has been located.

Demand is hereby made that you pay the under-

signed, as Administratrix, aforesaid, the aforesaid
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judgment in the sum of $5,116.89 with interest from

May 4th, 1936, at the rate of 6% per anum, and in

the event of your failure to comply with this de-

mand, notice is hereby given that the undersigned

will institute suit to enforce payment of said judg-

ment.

A copy of the within demand is being delivered

to your agent at Helena, Montana.

Very truly yours,

ETHEL M. DOHENY
414 Strain Building

Great Falls, Montana

[Endorsed]: Filed July 20, 1939. C. R. Garlow,

Clerk. [29]

In the District Court of the Eighth Judicial District

of the State of Montana, in and for the County

of Cascade

ETHEL M. DOHENY, as Administratrix of the^

Estate of Marguerite Doheny, Deceased,

Plaintiff,

vs.

UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND GUAR-
ANTY COMPANY, a corporation.

Defendant.

PETITION FOR REMOVAL

Comes now United States Fidelity and Guaranty

Company, a corporation, the defendant named in



vs. Ethel M. Doheny 39

the above entitled action and makes and presents

this its petition for removal of the above entitled

action to the District Court of the United States

for the District of Montana, and respectfully shows

and alleges as follows

:

I.

That the above entitled action is an action in

which there is a controversy which is wholly be-

tween citizens of different states. That the plaintiff

in said action was, at the occurrences relied upon

in the complaint, and at the time of the commence-

ment of this action, and still is, a resident and citi-

zen of the State of Montana.

II.

That the defendant. United States Fidelity and

Guaranty Company is now, and at all of the times

mentioned in plaintiff' 's complaint has been, and

was at the time of the commencement of the above

entitled action, a corporation duly [30] organized

and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the

State of Maryland, licensed to do business in Mon-

tana, and a citizen and resident of the State of

Maryland, and a non-resident of the State of Mon-

tana.

III.

That on or about the 2nd day of June, 1939, the

plaintiff herein filed the above entitled action

against the above named defendant in the District

Court of the Eighth Judicial District of the State
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of Montana, in and for the Comity of Cascade, said

action being Cause No. 28769 in said court and dis-

trict. That in the above entitled action the plaintii¥

seeks to recover from the defendant United States

Fidelity and Guaranty Company, a corporation^ the

sum of Five Thousand One Hundred Sixteen and

89/100 Dollars ($5116.89) which amount allegedly

represents the amount of a certain judgment given,

made and entered by the District Court of the

Eighth Judicial District of the State of Montana,

in and for the County of Cascade, in favor of the

above named plaintiff in an action by the above

named plaintiff against John M. Coverdale and

E. O. Johnson, as co-partners, doing business under

the firm name of Coverdale & Johnson.

That in the above entitled action the pliantiff

seeks to recover the amount of said judgment,

to-wit, the sum of Five Thousand One Hundred

Sixteen and 89/100 Dollars ($5116.89), together

with interest, from the defendant United States

Fidelity and Guaranty Company on the ground

that said defendant had issued to the said John M.

Coverdale and E. O. Johnson as said co-partners,

doing business under the firm name of Coverdale

& Johnson, a contractors' public liability insurance

policy with a liability of $10,000.00 for one [31]

person and a total of $20,000.00 for one accident and

plaintiff further alleges that by reason of the issu-

ance of said policy of insurance the said defendant

United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company is

legally bound and obligated to pay the said judg-
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ment in the amount of Five Thousand One Hundred

Sixteen and 89/100 Dollars ($5116.89), together

with interest from and after May 4, 1936.

That the matter and amount in dispute and con-

troversy in said suit exceeds, exclusive of interest

and costs, a sum or value of Three Thousand and

no/100 Dollars ($3000.00), all of which more fully

appear from the complaint in said action, which is

hereby referred to and made a part hereof.

IV.

That the defendant makes and files herewitli a

bond in the sum of Three Hmidred and no/100 Dol-

lars ($300.00), with good and sufficient surety for

their entering in the District Court of the United

States for the District of Montana, within thirty

days from the date of- filing this petition a certified

copy of the record in this suit and for paying all

costs that may be awarded by said District Court

of the United States, if it shall hold that this suit

was wrongfully and improperly removed thereto.

Wherefore, this petitioner prays this court to

proceed no further herein except to accept this peti-

tion and said bond and to make an order requiring

said defendant to enter and file a certified copy of

the record herein in the said District Court of the

United States for the District of [32] Montana,

within thirty days from the filing of this petition,

as provided by law.

HOWARD TOOLE
W. T. BOONE

Attorneys for Defendant [33]
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State of Montana,

County of Lewis and Clark—ss.

Don W. Jacobus, being first duly sworn upon his

oath, dej^oses and says: That he is the Manager for

the defendant, United States Fidelity and Guar-

anty Company, a corporation, and that he makes

this verification as such manager for and on behalf

of said defendant and that he is duly authorized to

make the same ; that he has read the foregoing peti-

tion and knows the contents thereof and that the

matters and things therein stated are true.

DON W. JACOBUS

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 19th day

of June, 1939.

[Seal] W. T. BOONE
Notary Public for the State of Montana.

Residing at Missoula, Montana.

My commission expires Aug. 2, 1941.

[Endorsed] : Filed July 20, 1939. C. R. Garlow,

Clerk. [34]
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In the District Court of the Eighth Judicial District

of the State of Montana, in and for the County

of Cascade

ETHEL M. DOHENY, as Administratrix of the

Estate of Marguerite Doheny, Deceased,

Plaintiff,

vs.

UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND GUAR-
ANTY COMPANY, a corporation,

Defendant.

NOTICE OF PETITION AND BOND
FOR REMOVAL

To Ethel M. Doheny, as Administratrix of the Es-

tate of Marguerite Doheny, Deceased, the above

named plaintiff: •

To E. J. McCabe, plaintiff's attorney:

You and each of you are hereby notified that

United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company, a

corporation, the defendant in the above entitled

action, will on the 27th day of June, 1939, file in

said action in said Court, the petition and bond of

said defendant, copies of which are hereto attached

and served upon you, for removal of said cause to

the District Court of the United States for the Dis-

trict of Montana, Great Falls Division, and will on

said date at the hour of 10 o'clock A. M., or as soon

thereafter as counsel can be heard, present said

petition and bond so filed in the above entitled
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Court, and move said Court for an order removing

said cause to the District Court of the United

States, for the District of Montana, in accordance

with said Petition and Bond.

Dated this 19th day of June, 1939.

HOWARD TOOLE
W. T. BOONE

Attorneys for Defendant

[Endorsed] : Filed July 20, 1939. C. R. Garlow,

Clerk. [35]

In the District Court of the Eighth Judicial District

of the State of Montana, in and for the County

of Cascade

ETHEL M. DOHENY, as Administratrix of the

Estate of Marguerite Doheny, Deceased,

Plaintiff,

vs.

UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND GUAR-
ANTY COMPANY, a corporation.

Defendant.

BOND ON REMOVAL
Know all men by these presents, That we, United

States Fidelity and Guaranty Company, a corpo-

ration, as principal, and Fidelity and Deposit Com-

pany of Maryland, a corporation, authorized and
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licensed to do business within the State of Montana,

as surety, are held and firmly bound unto the plain-

tiff above named, in the penal sum of Three Hun-

dred and no/100 Dollars ($300.00), lawful money of

the United States, to be paid to the said plaintiff,

her heirs, executors, administrators, successors and

assigns, for which payment, well and truly to be

made, we bind ourselves, our successors and assigns,

jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

Whereas, the above entitled suit was brought by

the above named plaintiff in the District Court of

the Eighth Judicial District of the State of Mon-

tana, in and for the County of Cascade, against the

above named defendant, and is now" pending in said

state court and is removable into the District Court

of the United States for the District of Montana,

and the said defendant. United States Fidelity and

Guaranty [36] Company, a corporation, has peti-

tioned said State Court for such removal,

Now, therefore, if the said defendant shall enter

in the said District Court of the United States with-

in thirty days from the date of filing said petition

as provided by law, a certified copy of the records

of said suit, and shall w^ell and truly pay all costs

that may be awarded by said District Court of the

United States, if it shall hold that said suit was

wrongfully or improperly removed thereto, then

this obligation to be void, otherwise it shall remain

in full force and virtue.



46 TJ. S. Fidelity etc. Co.

Sealed with our seals and dated the 19th day of

June, 1939.

[Corporate UNITED STATES FIDELITY
Seal] AND GUARANTY COMPANY

a corporation,

By DON W. JACOBUS
Manager and Attorney-in-fact

Principal

[Corporate FIDELITY AND DEPOSIT
Seal] COMPANY OF MARYLAND,

a corporation.

By A. B. KALIN
Its Attorney-in-Fact

Surety

I hereby approve the above bond this 20th day of

June, 1939.

C. F. HOLT
Judge

[Endorsed] : Filed July 20, 1939. C. R. Garlow,

Clerk. [37]
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In the District Court of the Enghth Judicial Dis-

trict of the State of Montana, in and for the

County of Cascade.

ETHEL M. DOHENY, as Administratrix of the

Estate of Marguerite Doheny, Deceased,

Plaintiff,

vs.

UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND GUAR-
ANTY COMPANY, a corporation.

Defendant,

ORDER

The defendant herein. United States Fidelity and

Guaranty Company, a corporation, having within

the time provided by law, filed its petition for re-

moval in this cause to the District Court of the

United States for the District of Montana, and

having at the same time offered its bond in the sum

of Three Hundred Dollars ($300.00), with good and

sufficient surety, pursuant to statute, and condi-

tioned to law

;

It is ordered by the Court tliat said Petition be

accepted ; that said Bond be approved and accepted

;

that this cause be removed for trial to the District

Court of the United States for the District of Mon-

tana, pursuant to the statute of the United States;

and that all other proceedings in this Court be

stayed.
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Dated this 27th day of June, 1939.

C. F. HOLT
Judge.

[Endorsed] : Filed July 20, 1939, C. R. Garlow,

Clerk. [38]

In the District Court of the Eighth Judicial Dis-

trict of the State of Montana, in and for the

County of Cascade.

ETHEL M. DOHENY, as Administratrix of the

Estate of MARGUERITE DOHENY, De-

ceased,

Plaintiff,

vs.

UNITED STATES FIDELITY and GUARANTY
COMPANY, a corporation.

Defendant.

CLERK'S CERTIFICATE

I, George Harper, Clerk of the District Court of

the Eighth Judicial District of the State of Mon-

tana, in and for the County of Cascade, do hereby

certify that the above and foregoing transcript con-

tains full, true and correct copies of the original

))apers filed in this Court in the case of Ethel M.

Doheny, as Administratrix of the Estate of Mar-

guerite Doheny, deceased, vs. United States Fidelity

and Guaranty Company, a corporation. No. 28769

said record consisting of the Complaint, filed in said
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suit on the 2nd day of June, 1939, the Petition for

Removal of said suit to the United States District

Court for the District of Montana, filed in said suit

on the 20th day of Jiuie, 1939, the Bond for Re-

moval, the Notice of Petition and Bond, Affidavit,

and the Order of Removal of suit to said United

States District Court for the District of Montana,

entered on record in said suit on the 27th day of

June, 1939. [39]

And I further certify that said transcript is by

me transmitted to the District Court of the United

States in and for the District of Montana, Great

Palls Division, pursuant to such order of removal.

Witness my hand and seal of said Court at Great

Falls, Montana, this 20th day of July, 1939.

[Seal] GEORGE HARPER
Clerk of Court.

By THOMAS T. DAVIES
Deputy

[Endorsed] : Filed July 20, 1939, C. R. Garlow,

Clerk. [40]



50 TJ. S. Fidelity etc. Co.

Thereafter, on July 24, 1939, a Motion to Dismiss

was filed in each cause herein, said Motions to Dis-

miss being in the words and figures following, towit

:

[41]

In the District Court of the United States

District of Montana

Great Falls Division

No. 69

ETHEL M. DOHENY, as Administratrix of the

Estate of Roberta Doheny, Deceased,

Plaintiff,

vs.

UNITED STATES FIDELITY and GUARANTY
COMPANY, a corporation,

Defendant,

MOTION TO DISMISS

Now comes the defendant, the United States

Fidelity and Guaranty Company, a corporation,

and files this, its Motion to Dismiss, and moves the

'court for an order dismissing plaintiff's complaint

upon the following gromids and for the following

reasons

:

I.

That said complaint fails to state a claim upon

which relief can be granted.

HOWARD TOOLE
W. T. BOONE

Attorneys for Defendant

[Endorsed] : Filed July 24, 1989, C. R. Garlow,

Clerk. [42]
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In the District Court of the United States

District of Montana

Great Falls Division

No. 70

ETHEL M. DOHENY, as Administratrix of the

Estate of Marguerite Doheny, Deceased,

Plaintiff,

vs.

UNITED STATES FIDELITY and GUARANTY
COMPANY, a corporation,

Defendant.

MOTION TO DISMISS

Now comes the defendant, the United States

Fidelity and Guaranty Company, a corporation, and

files this, its Motion to Dismiss, and moves the court

for an order dismissing plaintiff's complaint upon

the following grounds and for the following reasons

:

I.

That said complaint fails to state a claim upon

which relief can be granted.

HOWARD TOOLE
W. T. BOONE

Attorneys for Defendant

[Endorsed] : Filed July 24, 1939, C. R. Garlow,

Clerk. [43]
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Thereafter, on July 24, 1939, a Motion to Strike

was filed in each cause herein, said Motions to

Strike being in the words and figures following,

to-wit: [44]

[Title of District Court and Cause—No. 69.]

MOTION TO STRIKE

Now comes the defendant, the United States

Fidelity and Guaranty Company, a corporation, and

files this, its Motion to Strike, and moves the court

for an order striking the following portions of

plaintiff's complaint on file herein, for the follow-

ing reasons:

I.

That part of Paragraph III of plaintiff's com-

plaint from and including the word ''that" on Line

14 to and including the word "thereof" on Line 25,

all on Page 2, for the reason and upon the ground

that said portion of Paragraph III is redimdant,

immaterial, impertinent and surplusage.

HOWARD TOOLE
W. T. BOONE

Attorneys for Defendant

[Endorsed] : Filed July 24, 1939. [45]

[Title of District (^ourt and Cause—No. 70.]

MOTION TO STRIKE

Now comes the defendant, the United States

Fidelity and Guaranty Company, a corporation,



vs. Ethel M. Doheny 53

and files this, its Motion to Strike, and moves the

court for an order striking the following portions

of plaintiff's complaint on file herein, for the fol-

lowing reasons:

I.

That part of Paragraph III of plaintiffs' com-

plaint from and including the word "that" on Line

14 to and including the word ''thereof" on Line 25,

all on Page 2, for the reason and upon the ground

that said portion of Paragi^aph III is redimdant,

immaterial, impertinent and surplusage.

HOWARD TOOLE
W. T. BOONE

Attorneys for Defendant

[Endorsed] : Filed July 24, 1939, [46]

Thereafter, on September 8, 1939, the Motions to

Strike, and Motions to Dismiss, were overruled and

denied, the record of hearing thereon, and order

thereon, being in the words and figures following,

towit: [47]

[Title of District Court and Cause—No. 69]

This cause was duly called for hearing this day

on defendant's motion to strike from the complaint

and on defendant's motion to dismiss, Mr. E. J.

McCabe appearing for the plaintiff and there being

no appearance by counsel for the defendant.
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And thereupon, after hearing the argument of

counsel for plaintiff court ordered that both of said

motions be overruled and denied, and that defen-

dant be granted ten days from receipt of notice of

this ruling within which to answer.

Entered in open court on September 8, 1939, at

Great Falls, Montana.

C. R. GARLOW,
Clerk [48]

[Title of District Court and Cause—No. 70]

This cause was duly called for hearing this day

on defendant's motion to strike from the complaint

and on defendant's motion to dismiss, Mr. E. J.

McCabe appearing for the plaintiff and there being

no appearance by counsel for the defendant.

And thereupon, after hearing the argument of

counsel for plaintiff, court ordered that both of said-

motions be overruled and denied, and that defen-

dant be granted ten days from receipt of notice of

this ruling within which to answer.

Entered in open court this 8th day of September,

1939, at Great Falls, Montana.

C. R. GARLOW,
Clerk [49]
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Thereafter, on September 23, 1939, an Answer

was filed in each of the causes herein, being in the

words and figures following, towit: [50]

[Title of District Court and Cause—No. 69]

ANSWER
Comes now the above named defendant. United

States Fidelity and Guaranty Company, a corpora-

tion, and for its answer to plaintiff's complaint on

file herein admits, denies and alleges:

I.

The defendant admits the allegations contained in

paragraphs I, II and III of plaintiff's complaint.

11.

Answering paragraph IV of plaintiff's complaint

the defendant admits that under the provisions of

pargaraph 7.11 of Section 7 of the written agree-

ment between the co-partners, Coverdale & Johnson

and the State of Montana, the co-partners promised

and agreed to carry public liability insurance on the

work and that the defendant issued to said co-

partners, Coverdale & Johnson, a contractor's pub-

lic liability insurance policy and notified the

Montana Highway [51] Commission in writing that

said contractor's public liability insurance policy

had been issued to said co-partners, Coverdale &
Johnson. In this comiection the defendant alleges

that said contractor's public liability insurance

policy so issued by it to said co-partners, Coverdale

& Johnson, contained an exclusion imder which the
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driving or using of any vehicle or automobile was

excepted from the coverage provided in said policy.

The defendant denies each, every and all of the

other allegations contained in said paragraph IV of

plaintiff's complaint.

III.

Answering paragraphs V, VI and VII of plain-

tiff's complaint the defendant alleges that it has

not sufficient knowledge or information upon which

to base a belief with respect to the allegations

therein contained and therefore denies said para-

graphs and each and all of the allegations therein

contained.

IV.

The defendant denies each, every and all of the

allegations contained in paragraph VIII of plain-

tiff's complaint.

V.

The defendant denies each, every and all of the

allegations contained in paragraph IX of plaintiff's

complaint and in this connection alleges that such

legal services and investigation as were furnished

by the defendant were furnished under the provi-

sions of said contractor's public liability insurance

policy notwithstanding the provision therein ex-

cepting liability in the using or driving of [52]

vehicles or automobiles.

VI.

Answering paragraph X of plaintiff's complaint

the defendant admits that on or about May 13th,
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1938, plaintiff served defendant with a letter, copy

of which is attached to plaintiff's complaint as Ex-

hibit "A", and admits that the defendant has not

paid said alleged judgment either in whole or in

part.

VII.

Further ansvrering plaintiff's complaint the de-

fendant denies each, every and all of the allegations

therein contained and not hereinbefore specifically

admitted, qualified or denied.

Wherefore, having fully answered plaintiff's com-

plaint, the defendant prays that plaintiff take noth-

ing by her said complaint and that the defendant

recover its costs herein disbursed and expended.

HOWARD TOOLE
W. T. BOONE

' Attorneys for Defendant.

[53]

State of Montana

County of Missoula—ss.

W. T. Boone, being first duly sworn, upon his

oath, deposes and says: That he is one of the at-

torneys for the defendant in the above entitled

action; that he makes this verification for and on

behalf of said defendant for the reason that the

defendant. United States Fidelity and Guaranty

Company is a corporation and has no officer or

agent within the county where affiant resides and

has his office; that he has read the foregoing Answer
and knows the contents thereof and that the matters
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and things therein stated are true to the best of his

knowledge, information and belief.

W. T. BOONE
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 22nd day

of September, 1939.

[Seal] MAEY O. CLASBEY
Notary Public for the State of Montana; residing

at Missoula, Montana.

My commission expires Oct. 4, 1940.

[Endorsed]: Filed Sept. 23, 1939. [54]

[Title of District Court and Cause—No. 70.]

ANSWER
Comes now the above named defendant. United

States Fidelity and Guaranty Company, a corpora-

tion, and for its answer to plaintiff's complaint on

file herein admits, denies and alleges:

I.

The defendant admits the allegations contained

in paragraphs I, II and III of plaintiff's complaint.

II.

Answering paragraph IV of plaintiff's complaint

the defendant admits that under the provisions of

paragraph 7.11 of Section 7 of the written agree-

ment between the co-partners, Coverdale & Johnson

and the State of Montana, the co-partners promised
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and agreed to carry public liability insurance on

the work and that the defendant issued to said co-

partners, Coverdale & Johnson, a contractor's pub-

lic liability insurance policy and notified the Mon-

tana Highway [55] Commission in writing that

said contractor's public liability insurance policy

had been issued to said co-partners, Coverdale &
Johnson. In this connection the defendant alleges

that said contractor's public liability insurance

policy so issued by it to said co-partners, Coverdale

& Johnson, contained an exclusion under which

the driving or using of any vehicle or automobile

was excepted from the coverage provided in said

policy.

The defendant denies each, every and all of the

other allegations contained in said paragraph IV
of plaintiff's complaint.

III.

Answering paragraphs V, VI and VII of plain-

tiff's complaint the defendant alleges that it has

not sufficient knowledge or information upon which

to base a belief with respect to the allegations

therein contained and therefore denies said para-

graphs and each and all of the allegations therein

contained.

IV.

The defendant denies each, every and all of the

allegations contained in paragraph VIII of plain-

tiff's complaint.
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V.

The defendant denies each, every and all of the

allegations contained in paragraph IX of plaintiff's

complaint and in this connection alleges that such

legal services and investigation as were furnished

by the defendant were furnished under the provi-

sions of said contractor's public liability insurance

policy notwithstanding the provision therein ex-

cepting liability in the using or driving of [56]

vehicles or automobiles.

VI.

Answering paragraph X of plaintiff's complaint

the defendant admits that on or about May 13th,

1938, plaintiff served defendant with a letter, copy

of which is attached to plaintiff's complaint as

Exhibit "A", and admits that the defendant has not

paid said alleged judgment either in whole or in

part.

VII.

Further answering plaintiff's complaint the de-

fendant denies each, every and all of the allega-

tions therein contained and not hereinbefore spe-

cifically admitted, qualified or denied.

Wherefore, having fully answered plaintiff's com-

plaint, the defendant prays that plaintiff take noth-

ing by her said complaint and that the defendant

recover its costs herein disbursed and expended.

HOWARD TOOLE
W. T. BOONE

Attorneys for Defendant. [57]
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State of Montana,

County of Missoula—ss.

W. T. Boone, being first duly sworn, upon his

oath, deposes and says: That he is one of the at-

torneys for the defendant in the above entitled

action; that he makes this verification for and on

behalf of said defendant for the reason that the

defendant. United States Fidelity and Guaranty

Company is a corporation and has no officer or

agent within the county where affiant resides and

has his office; that he has read the foregoing An-

swer and knows the contents thereof and that the

matters and things therein stated are true to the

best of his knowledge, information and belief.

W. T. BOONE
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 22nd day

of September, 1939.

[Seal] MARY O. CLASBEY
Notary Public for the State of Montana; residing

at Missoula, Montana.

My commission expires Oct. 4, 1940.

[Endorsed] : Filed Sept. 23, 1939. [58]
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Thereafter, on October 10, 1940, a Transcript of

Proceedings was filed herein, in the words and fig-

ures following, towit: [59]

In the District Court of the United States, District

of Montana, Great Falls Division.

No. 69

ETHEL M. DOHENY, as Administratrix of the

Estate of Roberta Doheny, Deceased,

Plaintiff,

vs.

UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND GUAR-
ANTY COMPANY, a corporation,

Defendant,

and

No. 70

ETHEL M. DOHENY, as Administratrix of the

Estate of Marguerite Doheny, Deceased,

Plaintiff,

vs.

UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND GUAR-
ANTY COMPANY, a corporation.

Defendant.
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DEFENDANT'S PROPOSED TRANSCRIPT
OE PROCEEDINGS

Appearances

:

For Plaintiff:

E. J. McCabe,

Attorney at Law,

Great Falls, Montana.

For Defendant:

Toole & Boone,

Attorneys at Law,

Missoula, Montana. [60]

[Title of District Court and Causes.]

Be it remembered : That the above entitled causes

came on regularly for trial at Great Falls, Montana,

on Tuesday, the 26th day of December, 1939, at

2:00 o'clock P. M., before the Honorable Charles

N. Pray, Judge Presiding, sitting without a jury.

The plaintiff, in each of said causes, was personally

present in Court and represented by her Attorney,

E. J. McCable of Great Falls, Montana. The defend-

ant, in each of said causes, was represented by

Messrs. Toole & Boone of Missoula, Montana.

Thereupon the following proceedings were had

and taken and the following evidence was intro-

duced :

The Court: We have two cases on the calendar

for this afternoon. Are you ready for the plaintiff?
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Mr. McCabe: Plaintiff is ready.

The Court: Is the defendant ready?

Mr. Toole: Defendant is ready.

The Court: Very well. These cases, as T under-

stand it, are to be consolidated?

Mr. McCabe: Yes, your Honor.

The Court: Any objection?

Mr. Toole: No objection.

The Court : Very well. Call your first witness.

Plaintiff's Case

Whereupon,

JULIUS G. HILGARD,

a witness called and sworn on behalf of the plain-

tiff, testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. McCabe:

Q. What is your name?

A. Julius G. Hilgard.

Mr. Toole: The defendant, in both of these

cases, objects to the introduction of any evidence

on the ground and for the [61] reason that the

complaints in these actions do not state facts suffi-

cient upon which to base a claim against the de-

fendant.

The Court: I will overrule the objection. Pro-

ceed.

The Witness: I hold the official position of

Deputy (Jlerk of Court of the County of Cascade,

State of Montana, and as such have the custody
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(Testimony of Julius G. Hilgard.)

of the records and files of all actions instituted,

pending and disposed of in the District Court of

Cascade County, Montana. Being shown proposed

exhibits numbered 1 to 25 inclusive, and having

examined the same I will state they are official

District Court records of Cascade County in the

case appearing on each exhibit.

Mr. Toole: They can all be offered together.

The same objection will go to all of them.

Mr. McCabe: Let the record show that the of-

fering of these individual exhibits separately is

dispensed with, and they may be offered in a group.

We offer plaintiff's exhibits 1 to 25 inclusive. Coun-

sel, I believe, stated that he would stipulate that

both of these cases were tried as consolidated in

the District Court of Cascade County and in the

Supreme Court of Montana and both judgments

were affirmed. That is stipulated to, is it not?

Mr. Toole: I don't think I could stipulate ex-

actly in that language. I am prepared to stipulate

that the offered exhibits are the originals and au-

thenticated documents filed in the office of the

Clerk of Court of Cascade County; that the remit-

titur is the authenticated document from the Su-

preme Court; that th'e Bill of Exceptions is the

actual Bill of Exceptions that was settled in the

consolidated cases; that no objection is made to

the authentication of the documents offered. [62]

The Court: What is your objection to the offer?

Mr. Toole: Now, if your Honor please, the de-
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(Testimony of Julius G. Hilgard.)

fendant objects to all the documents offered first,

because they are immaterial in this action, sec-

ondly, because they serve only to encumber the

record, and in the third place the documents do not

offer any proof of any of the facts pleaded in

plaintiff's complaint, with the exception of the two

judgments and the remittitur, and for that reason

they are immaterial, and do not tend to prove or

disprove any issue in this case.

The Court: Do you deny them in your answer?

Mr. Toole: I think some of them are denied.

The Court: I think you have denied everything

in the answer.

Mr. Toole: Practically.

The Court: What is your further objection'?

Mr. Toole : I want to say for the Court, and for

the record, that the pleadings in these cases plead

certain facts. The defendant objects to all of the

exhibits, because all of the facts there pleaded were

denied in the lower court, and most of those facts

are here denied. If the same exhibits were offered

separately, they could be objected to on that basis

here.

The Court: All the pleadings are offered here,

are they not ?

Mr. McCabe: Yes.

Mr. Toole: And there is no substantive proof

of those exhibits of any kind whatever.

The Court: I will overrule the objection. They

are admitted in evidence. Proceed with your ex-

amination.
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Whereupon, plaintiff's exhibits 1 to 25, both in-

clusive, were received in evidence and filed with

the Clerk of the [63] Court and said exhibits bear

the following titles:

Plaintiff's Exhibit 1, Original Complaint in

the District Court of Cascade County, Mon-

tana, in the case of Ethel M. Doheny, as Ad-

ministratrix of the Estate of Roberta Doheny,

Deceased, Plaintiff, vs. John M. Coverdale and

E. O. Johnson co-partners doing business un-

der the firm name and style of Coverdale &

Johnson, Defendants.

Plaintiff's Exhibit 2, Original Separate An-

swer of Defendant John M. Coverdale in said

case of Ethel M. Doheny, as Administratrix of

the Estate of' Roberta Doheny, Deceased,

Plaintiff, vs. John M. Coverdale and E. O.

Johnson co-partners doing business under the

firm name and style of Coverdale & Johnson,

Defendants.

Plaintiff's Exhibit 3, Original Separate An-

swer of Defendant Coverdale & Johnson, a co-

partnership in said case of Ethel M. Doheny,

as Administratrix of the Estate of Roberta

Doheny, Deceased,' plaintiff, vs. John M. Cover-

dale and E. O. Johnson co-partners doing busi-

ness under the firm name and style of Cover-

dale & Johnson, Defendants.

Plaintiff's Exhibit 4, Original Reply to Sep-

arate Answer of Defendants Coverdale & John-
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son, a co-partnershi]), in said case of Ethel M.

Doheny, as Administratrix of the Estate of

Roberta Doheny, Deceased, Plaintiff vs. John

M. Coverdale and E. O. Johnson co-])artners

doing business under the firm name and style

of Coverdale & Johnson, Defendants.

Plaintiff's Exhibit 5, Original Reply to Sep-

arate Answer of Defendant John M. Coverdale

in said case of Ethel M. Doheny, as Adminis-

tratrix of the Estate of Roberta Doheny, De-

ceased, Plaintiff, vs. John M. Coverdale and

E. O. Johnson co-partners doing business under

the firm name and style of Coverdale & John-

son, Defendants.

Plaintiff's Exhibit 6, Original Affidavit of

Service in said case of Ethel M. Doheny, as Ad-

ministratrix of the Estate of Roberta Doheny,

Deceased, plaintiff, vs. John M. Coverdale and

E. O. Johnson co-partners doing business under

the firm name and style of Coverdale & John-

son, Defendants.

Plaintiff's Exhibit 7, Original Order Taxing

Costs and Disbursements in said case of Ethel

M. Doheny, as Administratrix of the [64] Es-

tate of Roberta Doheny, Deceased, Plaintiff,

vs. John M. Coverdale and E. O. Johnson co-

partners doing business mider the firm name
and style of Coverdale & Johnson, Defendants.

Plaintiff's Exhibit 8, Original Verdict in

said case of Ethel M. Doheny, as Administra-
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trix of the Estate of Eoberta Doheny, Deceased,

Plaintiff, vs. John M. Coverdale and E. O.

Johnson co-partners doing business under the

firm name and style of Coverdale & Johnson,

Defendants.

Plaintiff's Exhibit 9, Original Judgment on

Verdict in said case of Ethel M. Doheny, as

Administratrix of the Estate of Roberta Do-

heny, Deceased, Plaintiff, vs. John M. Cover-

dale and E. O. Johnson co-partners doing busi-

ness under the firm name and style of Cover-

dale & Johnson, Defendants.

Plaintiff's Exhibit 10, Original Notice of

Appeal in said case of Ethel M. Doheny, as

Administratrix of the Estate of Roberta Do-

heny, Deceased, ' Plaintiff, vs. John M. Cover-

dale and E. O. Johnson co-partners doing busi-

ness under the firm name and style of Cover-

dale & Johnson, Defendants.

Plaintiff's Exhibit 11, Original Remittitur

from the Supreme Court of the State of Mon-

tana affirming the judgment in said case of

Ethel M. Doheny, as Administratrix of the

Estate of Roberta Doheny, Deceased, Plaintiff,

vs. John M. Coverdale and E. 0. Johnson, co-

partners doing business under the firm name

and style of Coverdale & Johnson, Defendants.

Plaintiff's Exhibit 12, Original Notice of

Filing Remittitur in said case of Ethel M. Do-

heny, as Administratrix of the Estate of Ro-
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berta Doheny, Deceased, Plaintiff, vs. John M.

Coverdale and E. O. Johnson co-partners doing

business under the firm name and style of

Coverdale & Johnson, Defendants.

Plaintiff's Exhibit 13, Original Writ of Exe-

cution in said case of Ethel M. Doheny, as

Administratrix of the Estate of Roberta Do-

heny, Deceased, Plaintiff, vs. John M. Cover-

dale and E. O. Johnson co-partners doing busi-

ness under the firm name and style of Cover-

dale & Johnson, Defendants.

Plaintiff's Exhibit 14, Original Complaint in

the District Court of Cascade County, Montana,

in the case of Ethel M. Doheny, as Adminis-

tratrix of the Estate of Marguerite [65] Do-

heny, Deceased, Plaintiff, vs. John M. Cover-

dale and E. O. Johnson co-partners doing busi-

ness under the firm name and style of Cover-

dale & Johnson, Defendants.

Plaintiff's Exhibit 15, Original Separate An-

swer of Defendant Coverdale & Johnson, a co-

partnership in said case of Ethel M. Doheny,

as Administratrix of the Estate of Marguerite

Doheny, Deceased, Plaintiff, vs. John M. Cover-

dale and E. O. Johnson co-partners doing busi-

ness under the firm name and style of Cover-

dale & Johnson, Defendants.

Plaintiff's Exhibit 16, Original Separate An-

swer of Defendant John M. Coverdale in said

case of Ethel M. Doheny, as Administratrix of
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the Estate of Marguerite Doheny, deceased,

Plaintiff, vs. John M. Coverdale and E. 0.

Johnson co-partners doing business under the

firm name and style of Coverdale & Johnson,

Defendants.

Plaintiff's Exhibit 17, Original Reply to Sep-

arate Answer of Defendant John M. Coverdale

in said case of Ethel M. Doheny, as Adminis-

tratrix of the Estate of Marguerite Doheny,

Deceased, Plaintiff, vs. John M. Coverdale and

E. O. Johnson co-partners doing business under

the firm name and style of Coverdale & John-

son, Defendants.

Plaintiff's Exhibit 18, Original Reply to Sep-

arate Answer of Defendants Coverdale & John-

son, a co-partnership, in said case of Ethel M.

Doheny, as Administratrix of the Estate of

Marguerite Doheny, Deceased, Plaintiff, vs.

John M. Coverdale and E. O. Johnson co-part-

ners doing business under the firm name and

style of Coverdale & Johnson, Defendants.

Plaintiff's Exhibit 19, Original Affidavit of

Service in said case of Ethel M. Doheny, as

Administratrix of the Estate of Marguerite

Doheny, Deceased, -Plaintiff, vs. John M. Cover-

dale and E. O. Johnson co-partners doing busi-

ness under the firm name and style of Cover-

dale & Johnson, Defendants.

Plaintiff's Exhibit 20, Original Verdict in

said case of Ethel M. Doheny, as Administra-
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trix of the Estate of Marguerite Doheny, De-

ceased, Plaintiff, vs. John ^I. Coverdale and

E. O. Johnson co-partners doing business un-

der the firm name and style of Coverdale &

Johnson, Defendants. [_^6']

Plaintiff's Exhibit 21, Original Judgment on

Verdict in said case of Ethel M. Doheny, as

Administratrix of the Estate of Marguerite

Doheny, Deceased, Plaintiff, vs. John M. Cover-

dale and E. O. Johnson co-partners doing busi-

ness under the firm name and style of Cover-

dale & Johnson, Defendants.

Plaintiff's Exhibit 22, Original Notice of

Appeal in said case of Ethel M. Doheny, as

Administratrix of the Estate of Marguerite

Doheny, Deceased, Plaintiff, vs. John M. Cover-

dale and E. O. Johnson co-partners doing busi-

ness under the firm name and style of Cover-

dale & Johnson, Defendants.

Plaintiff's Exhibit 23, Original Notice of

Filing Remittitur in said case of Ethel M. Do-

heny, as Administratrix of the Estate of Mar-

guerite Doheny, Deceased, Plaintiff, vs. John

M. Coverdale and E. O. Johnson co-partners

doing business under the firm name and style

of Coverdale & Johnson, Defendants.

Plaintiff's Exhibit 24, Original Writ of Exe-

cution in said case of Ethel M. Doheny, as Ad-

ministratrix of the Estate of Marguerite Do-

heny, Deceased, Plaintiff, vs. John M. Cover-
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dale and E. O. Johnson co-partners doing busi-

ness under the firm name and style of Cover-

dale & Johnson, Defendants.

Plaintiff's Exhibit 25, Original Bill of Ex-

ceptions in the cases of Ethel M. Doheny, as

Administratrix of the Estate of Roberta Do-

heny, Deceased, Plaintiff, vs. John M. Cover-

dale and E. O. Johnson co-partners doing busi-

ness under the firm name and style of Cover-

dale & Johnson, Defendants, and Ethel M.

Doheny, as Administratrix of the Estate of

Marguerite Doheny, Deceased, Plaintiff, vs.

John M. Coverdale and E. O. Johnson co-part-

ners doing business under the firm name and

style of Coverdale & Johnson, Defendants.

[67]

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT 9

[Title of District Court.]

ETHEL M. DOHENY, as Administratrix of the

Estate of Roberta Doheny, Deceased,

Plaintiff,

vs.

JOHN M. COVERDALE and E. O. JOHNSON
co-partners doing business imder the firm name
and style of COVERDALE & JOHNSON,

Defendants.

JUDGMENT ON VERDICT

This action came on regularly for trial upon

the 29th day of April, 1936, the said parties ap-
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peared by their Attorneys Messrs. Hall & McCabe

and Edw. C. Alexander Counsel for Plaintiff, and

Messrs. Howard Toole and W. T. Boone for De-

fendants. A jury of twelve persons was regularly

empaneled and sworn to try said cause. Witnesses

on the part of Plaintiff and Defendants were sworn

and examined. After hearing the evidence, the ar-

guments of Counsel and instructions of the Court,

the jury retired to consider of their verdict, and

subsequently returned into Court their verdict as

follows

:

''We, the jury in the above entitled action,

find in favor of the plaintiff, Ethel M. Doheny,

as administratrix of the Estate of Roberta

Doheny, deceased, and against the defendants,

John M. Coverdale and E. O. Johnson, co-

partners doing business under the firm name

and style of Coverdale & Johnson, in the sum

of $5,000.00.

Dated this 2nd day of May, 1936.

CLARENCE W. WILSON
Foreman." [68]

Wherefore, by virtue of the law and by reason

of the premises aforesaid, it is ordered, adjudged

and decreed that the plaintiff, Ethel M. Doheny,

as administratrix of the Estate of Roberta Doheny,

deceased, have judgment against the defendants,

John M. Coverdale and E. O. Johnson co-partners

doing business under the firm name and style of

Coverdale & Johnson in the sum of $5,000.00 and
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that said plaintiff have judgment against said de-

fendants for her costs herein in the sum of $243.26.

Judgment entered this 4th day of May A. D.

1936.

(Court Seal) GEORGE HARPER
Clerk.

By J. G. HILGARD
Deputy Clerk.

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT 21

[Title of District Court.]

ETHEL M. DOHENY, as administratrix of the

Estate of Marguerite Doheny, deceased,

Plaintiff,

vs.

JOHN M. COVERDALE and E. O. JOHNSON
co-partners doing business under the firm name

and style of COVERDALE & JOHNSON,
Defendants.

JUDGMENT ON VERDICT

This action came on regularly for trial upon the

29th day of April, 1936, the said parties appeared

by their Attorneys Messrs. Hall & McCabe and

Edw. C. Alexander Counsel for Plaintiff, and

Messrs. Howard Toole and W. T. Boone for De-

fendants. A jury of twelve persons was regularly
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empaneled and sworn to try said cause. Witnesses

on the part of Plaintiff and [69] Defendants were

sworn and examined. After hearing the evidence,

the arguments of Counsel and instructions of the

Court, the jury retired to consider of their verdict,

and subsequently returned into Court their verdict

as follows:

"We, the jury in the above entitled action,

find in favor of the plaintiff, Ethel M. Doheny,

as administratrix of the Estate of Marguerite

Doheny, Deceased, and against the defendants,

John M. Coverdale and E. O. Johnson, co-part-

ners doing business under the firm name and

style of Coverdale & Johnson, in the sum of

$5,000.00.

Dated this 2nd day of May, 1936.

CLARENCE W. WILSON
Foreman. '

'

Wherefore, by virtue of the law and by reason

of the premises aforesaid, it is ordered, adjudged

and decreed that the plaintiff, Ethel M. Doheny,

as administratrix of the Estate of Marguerite Do-

heny, deceased, have judgment against the defend-

ants, John M. Coverdale and E. O. Johnson co-

partners, doing business under the firm name and

style of Coverdale & Johnson in the sum of $5,-

000.00 and that said plaintiff have judgment against

said defendants for her costs herein in the sum of

$243.26.
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Judgment entered this 4th day of May A. D.

1936.

(Court Seal) GEORGE HARPER
Clerk.

By J. G. HILGARD
Deputy Clerk.

Mr. McCabe: As part of exhibit No. 24, and

exhibit No. 13, we offer as part of the exhibits,

the return of the Sheriff showing no property was

found or located with which to satisfy the execu-

tion. [70]

Mr. Toole : Same objection to that.

The Court: Overruled. The executions with the

returns are offered in evidence. They are there.

Mr. McCabe: They are annexed to the execu-

tion. I want the whole exhibits with the return of

the Sheriff received in evidence.

Mr. Toole: The same objection to the return.

The Court: Overruled.

Mr. McCabe: If your Honor please, there were

depositions that were taken in this cause.

The Court: Any cross examination?

Mr. Toole: No cross examination.

Witness Excused

Mr. McCabe: If your Honor please, may the

record show that the original exhibits named be

withdrawn and certified copies substituted, in view
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of the fact that they are records of the District

Court here?

Mr. Toole: No objection that that.

The Court: It may be done.

Mr. McCabe: If your Honor please, it is stip-

ulated and agreed between the parties hereto that

notice of the filing of the deposition of W. O.

Whipps was in each case served upon the Attor-

neys for the defendant after the filing of the depo-

sitions in this Court.

The Court: Perhaps you better read it. They

are both the same, those depositions. These cases

are consolidated. We are only going to read one of

the depositions.

Mr. McCabe: Is there any objection made to

the notice of taking of the deposition, or as to the

affidavit of mailing, or as to the formality in con-

nection with the taking or the execu- [71] tion of

the certificate, or that the officer was not duly sworn

as stated in the certificate?

Mr. Toole: No objection.

Whereupon the deposition of W. 0. Whipps in

the case of Ethel M. Doheny, as Administratrix

of the Estate of Marguerite Doheny, Deceased, vs.

United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company was

read in evidence, as follows:
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DEPOSITION OF W. O. WHIPPS
Examination by Mr. McCabe:

The Witness: My name is W. O. Whipps, resi-

dence Helena, Montana. I am employed by the

State Highway Commission of the State of Mon-

tana in the official capacity of Secretary and Ad-

ministrative Engineer and was so employed during

the months of September to December, inclusive,

of 1934. During such months, and in that capacity

I had custody of the original files and records of

the State Highway Commission of the State of

Montana. I have searched, and found and brought

with me from the official records a contract entered

into between the State Highway Commission of

the State of Montana and John M. Coverdale and

E. O. Johnson.

Being asked to examine this contract, marked

plaintiff's exhibit 1, I am able to identify the sig-

nature of O. S. Warden thereon. He was the Chair-

man of the State Highway Commission on Sep-

tember 21, 1934. I am not able to identify the sig-

natures of John M. Coverdale and E. O. Johnson

thereon. I am able to identify the signature of

Raymond E. Nagle and being shown that signature

designated "By C. J. Dousman, Assistant" I can

say that is the handwriting of Mr. Dousman. My
attention being directed to the signature thereon

"W. O. Whipps," that signature is mine. [72]

I am acquainted with the signature of Don W.
Jacobus and the signature on the instrument "Don
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W. Jacobus" is the signature of Don W. Jacobus.

My attention being directed to writing designated

"Contract Bond" attached to this document, the

signature thereon "Don W. Jacobus" is the signa-

ture of Don W. Jacobus.

This document, marked plaintiff's exhibit 1, is the

contract held in the custody of the State Highway
Commission as the original contract and the bond

attached it is the bond being held as the bond exe-

cuted to the State of Montana as the bond written

pursuant to the provisions of the contract.

Mr. McCabe: Oifer in evidence plaintiff's ex-

hibit 1 as a part of the testimony of this witness.

Mr. Boone: To which the defendant objects on

the ground that the instrument has not been prop-

erly identified; further as incompetent, irrelevant

and immaterial, having no bearing upon the issues

in this case. And the further objection that the

offer of the exhibit is an attempt on the part of the

plaintiff to vary the terms of a certain policy of in-

surance, which is the subject of this action.

The Court: Are these standard specifications,

and do they relate particularly to this contract ?

Mr. McCabe: Yes.

The Court: Overrule the objection.

The Witness: The Contract Bond, marked as

plaintiff's exhibit 2, is the bond I have heretofore

testified to as being annexed to the document

marked plaintiff' 's exhibit 1.

Mr. McCabe: We offer plaintiff's exhibits 1 and
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2 as a part of the testimony of the deposition of

this witness. [73]

Mr. Boone: To which the defendant objects in

that the plaintiff's exhibit has not been properly

authenticated and on the further ground that the

exhibit is incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial,

and has no bearing on the issues in this case; on

the further ground it is an attempt on the i3art of

the plaintiff to vary the terms of a certain insurance

policy executed to John M. Coverdale and E. O.

Johnson, which insurance policy is the subject of

this action.

The Court: Overrule the objection.

Whereupon plaintiff* 's exhibits Nos. 1 and 2, on

deposition, were received in evidence and filed with

the Clerk of the Court and the material iDortions

of said exhibits are as follows

:

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT 1 ON DEPOSITION

STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS

Section 1

Definitions and Terms

1.8 ^'Surety" The corporate body which is

bound with and for the Contractor, who is primary

liable, and which engages to be responsible for his

payment of all debts pertaining to and for his ac-

ceptable performance of the work for which he has

contracted.

1.12 "Specifications" The directions, provisions,

and requirements contained herein, together with
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(Plaintiff's Exhibit 1 on Deposition—continued)

all written agreements made or to be made, pertain-

ing to the method and manner of performing the

work, or to the quantities and qualities of materials

to be furnished under the contract.

1.13 "Contract" The agreement covering the

performance of the work, and the furnishing of ma-

terials in the construction of same. The contract

shall include the accepted "Proposal," [74]

"Plans," "Specifications" and "Contract Bond,"

also any and all supplemental agreements which

reasonably could be required to complete the con-

struction of the work in a substantial and acceptable

maimer.

1.14 "Contract Bond" The approved form of

security furnished by the Contractor and his Surety

as a guaranty of good faith on the part of the Con-

tractor to execute the work in accordance with the

terms of the Contract.

1.15 "Highway" The whole right-of-way which

is reserved for use in constructing the roadway and

its appurtenances.

1.18 It should be understood thoroughly by all

concerned that all things contained herein, together

with the "Advertisement for Proposals" or "Notice

to Contractors," and the "Contract Bond," as well

as any papers attached to or bound with any of the

above, also any and all supplemental agreements

made or to be made, are hereby made a part of these

Specifications and Contract, and are to be consid-

ered one instrument. No papers attached to or
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bound with any of the above shall be detached there-

from as all are a necessary part thereof.

Section 3

Award and Execution of Contract

3.4 Contract Bond Required.

The successful bidder, at the time of the execu-

tion of the Contract, must deposit, with the Com-

mission, a surety bond for the full amount of the

contract. The form of bond shall be that provided

by the Commission and the surety shall be accept-

able to the Commission. The surety bond must be

executed by a surety company authorized by law to

transact such business in the State of Montana and

attached thereto must be a certificate under the seal

of said surety company that [75] a full local agent 's

commission will be paid by said surety company to

a licensed Montana agent of said surety company

and that full credit for said bond and bond pre-

miums has been entered upon the books of the Mon-

tana Branch office or Montana General Agency of

said Surety company, providing said surety com-

pany maintains such Branch Office or General

Agency.

Section 4

Scope of Work
4.1 Intent of Plans and Specifications.

The Contractor shall do all clearing and grub-

bing, make all excavations and embankments, do all
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shaping and surfacing, construct all ditches, drain-

age structures, bridges, and other appertain struc-

tures, as indicated in the proposal and on the plans

;

remove obstructions from within the lines of the

highway and shall do such additional, extra and in-

cidental work as may be considered necessary to

complete the roadway to the proper lines, grades

and cross-sections, in a substantial and workman-

like manner. He shall furnish, unless otherwise pro-

vided, all implements, machinery, equipment, tools,

material and labor necessary to the prosecution of

the work. In short, the Contractor shall construct

the improvement in strict accordance with the

plans, specifications, special provisions, and con-

tract, and when completed, shall leave it in a neat

and finished condition.

4.3 Increased or Decreased Quantities.

The engineer reserves the right to make such

alterations in the plans or in the quantities of work

as may be considered necessary. Such alterations

shall be in writing and shall not be considered as a

waiver of any conditions of the contract nor to in-

validate any of the provisions thereof, provided that

no alteration shall [76] involve an extension or

shortening of the length of the project of more than

25 per cent, and provided that a supplemental

agreement with the contractor will be necessary

when alterations involve (1) an increase or decrease

of more than 25 per cent of the total cost of the
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work calculated from the original proposal quan-

tities and the contract unit prices, or (2) an in-

crease of more than 25 per cent in the quantity of

any one major contract item, including earth or

common roadway excavation but not including ex-

cavation of any other class nor items of foimdation

piling. Alterations involving an increase of more

than 25 per cent in the quantity of any one minor

contract item will not require a supplemental agree-

ment. Before work shall be started on any altera-

tion requiring such supplemental agreement, the

agreement setting forth an equitable adjustment of

compensation satisfactory to the contractor shall be

executed by the engineer and the contractor. The

contractor shall perform the work as increased or

decreased.

Section 7

Legal Relations and Responsibility to the Public

7.1 Laws to be Observed.

The Contractor shall at all times observe and

comply with all Federal and State laws, and local

by-laws, ordinances and regulations in any manner

affecting the conduct of the work, and shall indem-

nify and save harmless the State and all of its offi-

cers, agents, and servants against any claim or lia-

bility arising from or based on the violation of any

such law, by-law, ordinance, regulations, order or

decree, whether by himself or his employees.
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7.11 Responsibility for Damage Claims.

The Contractor shall save and keep harmless the

State of Montana and any county, [77] city or town

thereof against and from all losses to it from ariy

cause whatever growing out of the prosecution of

the work. The Engineer may retain from moneys

due, or to become due, the Contractor, a sufficient

amount to insure the enforcement of the provision.

The Contractor shall carry public liability insur-

ance to indemnify the public for injuries or dam-

ages sustained by reason of the carrying on the

work. This insurance shall be in the amount of at

least $10,000.00 for one person and a total of

$20,000.00 for one accident. The Contractor shall

submit adequate evidence to the Commission that he

has taken out this insurance.

7.13 Contractor's Responsibility for Work.

(a) Until its acceptance by the Engineer, the

improvement shall be under the care and charge of

the Contractor, and he shall be responsible for and

shall repair and make good any injury or damage

to the improvement or to any part thereof from

any cause whatsoever; except that the Contractor

will not be held responsible for injury or damage

to the improvement or any part thereof when, in

the opinion of the Engineer, such damage is not the

result of careless, negligent or dilatory work on the

part of the Contractor, but is the result of unfore-

seen natural causes beyond the control of the Con-



vs. Ethel M. DoJieny 87

(Deposition of W. O. Whipps.)

(Plaintiff's Exhibit 1 on Deposition—continued)

tractor, such as violent storms, cloudbursts and

floods. The judgment of the Engineer in this matter

shall be final, and binding upon both parties to the

contract. When a Contractor has, through dilatory

methods and other causes within his control, ex-

ceeded his contract time unjustifiably, and has

therefore been denied an extension of his contract

time, the saving clause in the next preceding sen-

tence shall not apply, but he shall be responsible

for all damages of every nature. [78]

(b) The above saving clause shall not apply to

bridge contracts. The Contractor in submitting pro-

posals for such work must be governed by his own

judgment as to probable weather and stream con-

ditions and the actual resulting conditions will

never be considered as unforeseen, but any loss or

damage of any nature prior to acceptance of the

improvement by the Engineer shall be the respon-

sibility of the Contractor.

Section 9

Measurement and Payment

9.4 Extra and Force Account Work.

Extra work as hereinbefore described mider the

sub-heading "Scope of Work," shall be paid for

either at agreed unit j^rices under the provisions of

a "Supplemental Agreement," or on a "Force Ac-

count" basis, as shall have been agreed by the

Engineer and Contractor before starting said work.



88 U. S. Fidelity etc. Co.

(Deposition of W. O. Whipps.)

(Plaintiff's Exhibit 1 on Deposition—contiimed)

Supplemental Agreement.

When it has been agreed to perform certain extra

work not contemplated in the original Proposal and

Contract on the basis of agreed prices, a "Supple-

mental Agreement" will be prepared fully de-

scribing said extra work, including the approximate

quantity as nearly as may be arrived at in advance

of the performance of the work, and the agreed unit

prices. This "Supplemental Agreement" shall be

executed by both parties to the original contract,

shall thereupon be considered a part of the contract,

and payment for the w^ork included therein shall be

for the actual quantity performed at the agreed unit

prices set forth therein. Extra work provided for

by a "Supplemental Agreement" shall not be

started until after the execution of the said agree-

ment. [79]

NOTICE TO CONTRACTORS

U. S. Pul)lic Works Highway Project

No. NRH-176"E", Unit-2 (1935)

Notice is hereby given that sealed bids for the

construction of the improvement hereinafter de-

scribed will be received by the State Highway Com-

mission of Montana at the offices of the said Com-

mission in the Capitol Building at Helena until

9 :30 A.M. on Sep. 21, 1934, at which time and place

they will be publicly opened and read.

The improvement contemplated consists of the

construction of the following described structures
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on Section "E" of the Augiista-Sun River Road in

Lewis & Clark Coimty:

1. A 2-span 79' concrete bridge across the South

Fork Sun River.

2. A single panel 19' treated timber pile trestle.

3. Two standard treated timber stock passes.

4. A 5-panel 95' treated timber pile trestle bridge

across Spring Coulee.

5. A 4-panel 76' treated timber pile trestle bridge

across Dry Creek.

Contract

This Agreement, made in duplicate this 21st day

of September A. D. 1934, between the State of Mon-
tana, by the State Highway Commission, herein-

after called the party of the first part, and John M.

Coverdale and E. O. Johnson, a copartnership, do-

ing business imder the firm name of Coverdale &
Johnson their heirs, executors, administrators and

assigns, party of the second part, hereinafter called

the Contractor.

Witnesseth, That the Contractor, for and in con-

sideration of the payment or payments herein speci-

fied and agreed to by [80] the party of the first part,

hereby covenants and agrees to furnish, and deliver

and pay for all the materials, and to furnish all

tools, machinery and implements, and to do and per-

form all the work and labor in the construction or

improvement of certain bridges in Lewis &: Clark

County, State of Montana, U. S. Public Works
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Highway Project No. NRH-176 ''E," Unit 2

(1935), according to the dimensions and grades

thereof this day agreed upon between the said

parties and shown and stated in the plans and

specifications hereto annexed, at the unit prices bid

by the said Contractor for the respective estimated

quantities, aggregating approximately the sum of

Fifteen thousand six hundred fifteen and 66/100

Dollars ($15,615.66) and such other items as are

mentioned in their original proposal, which pro-

posal and prices named, together with the annexed

specifications are made a part of this contract and

accepted as such, and also the plans of the improve-

ment prepared by the State Highway Commission,

are also agreed by each party as being a part

hereof; the said improvement being situated as fol-

lows: 1 concrete bridge and 5 treated timber pile

trestle bridges and stock ])asses on the Augusta-Sun

River Road in Lewis & (^lark County.

It is understood by and between the parties hereto

that the work included in this contract is to be done

under the direction of the Engineer of the State

Highway Commission and that his decision as to the

construction and meaning of the drawings and

specifications shall be final. It is also understood

and agreed by and between the j)arties hereto that

such additional drawings and explanations as may
be necessary to detail and illustrate the work to be

done are to be furnished by said Engineer, and the
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parties hereto agree to conform to and abide by the

same so far as they may be consistent with the [81]

purpose and intent of the original drawings and

specifications referred to herein. It is further

understood that the work shall be subject to in-

spection at all times and approval by the United

States Secretary of Agriculture, or his agents, and

shall be performed in accordance with the laws of

the State of Montana and the rules and regulations

of the said Secretary of Agriculture made pursuant

to that certain act of Congress approved July 11,

1916, (39 U. S. Statutes at Large, 335) entitled "An
Act to provide that the United States shall aid the

states in the construction of rural post roads, and

for other purposes, "-and all Acts of Congress sup-

plementary and amendatory thereto.

The contractor further covenants and agrees that

all of said work and labor shall be done and per-

formed in the best and most workmanlike manner

and that all and every of said materials and labor

shall be in strict and entire conformity, in every

respect, with the said specifications and plans and

shall be subject to the inspection and approval of

the Engineer of the State Highway Commission, or

his duly authorized assistant, and, in case any of

said materials or labor shall be rejected by the said

Engineer, or his assistant, as defective or unsuit-

able, then the said materials shall be removed and

replaced with other approved materials and the said
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labor shall be done anew, to the satisfaction and ap-

proval of the said Engineer, or his assistant, at the

cost and expense of the contractor.

The contractor further covenants and agrees that

he will well and truly pay all laborers, mechanics,

subcontractors and material men who perform work

or furnish material under this contract, and all per-

sons who shall supjoly him and or the subcontractors

wdth provisions, provender and supplies for the

carrjdng on of the work. [82]

The contractor further covenants and agrees that

he will begin the actual performance of the work

required and contemplated under this agreement

withm ten days after the date of the execution of

this contract and that all and every of the said

materials shall be furnished and delivered and all

and every of the said labor shall be done and per-

formed in every respect to the satisfaction and ap-

proval of the engineer aforesaid on or before

APRIL 30, 1935. It is expressly understood and

agreed that in case of the failure on the part of the

contractor, for any reason, except with the written

consent of the State Highway Commission, to com-

plete the furnishing and delivery of the said mate-

rial and the doing and performance of said work

on or before APRIL 30, 1935, the party of the first

part shall have the right to deduct from any moneys

due the contractor, or if no moneys shall be due,

the party of the first part shall have the right to
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rceover the amount of Twenty-five and no|/100

Dollars ($25.00) per day, as fixed, agreed and

liquidated damages, for each and every calendar

day elapsing between the date above stipulated for

completion and the actual date of completion and

final acceptance; this in accordance with the para-

graph of the Standard Specifications hereto an-

nexed which refers to "Failure to Complete the

Work on Time." Provided, however, that upon re-

ceipt of written notice from the contractor of the

existence of causes over which said contractor has

no control and which must delay the completion of

the said work, the State Highway Commission may,

at its discretion, extend the period hereinbefore

specified for the completion of the said work, and

in such case the contractor shall become liable for

said liquidated damages for delays commencing

from the date on which said extended period shall

expire. [83]

The contractor further covenants and agrees that

he will without further expense to the party of the

first part, remove all surplus soil and rubbish from

off the said land and leave the said road and parts

of the land or field adjoining it affected by such

work, in the proper state, order and condition.

It is expressly understood and agreed that if the

contractor fails to comply with any of the require-

ments of the plans or specifications, or shall dis-

continue the prosecution of the work, or if the con-
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tractor shall become insolvent or bankrupt, or com-

mit any act of bankruptcy or insolvency, or allow

any final judgment to stand against him unsatisfied

for a period of forty-eight (48) hours, or shall make

an assignment for the benefit of creditors, or from

any other cause whatsoever shall not carry on the

work in an accej)table manner, the Engineer shall

give notice in writing to the contractor and his

surety of such delay, neglect or default, specifying

the same, and if the contractor within a period of

three (3) days after such notice shall not proceed

in accordance therewith, then the (Commission shall,

upon written certificate from the Engineer of the

fact of such delay, neglect or default and the con-

tractor's failure to comply with such notice, have

full power and authority, without violating the con-

tract, to take the prosecution of the work out of the

hands of said contractor, to appropriate or use any

or all materials and equipment on the ground as may
be suitable and acceptable and may enter into an

agreement with any other person or persons for the

completion of said contract according to the terms

and provisions thereof, or use such other methods

as it may deem expedient for the completion of said

contract in the specified manner. All costs and

charges incurred by the Commission, together with

the costs of completing the [84] woi'k under con-

tract, shall be deducted from any moneys due or

which may become due said contractor. In case the
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expense so incurred by the Commission shall be less

than the sum which would have been payable under

the contract, if it had been completed by said con-

tractor, then the said contractor shall be entitled

to receive the difference; and in case such expense

shall exceed the sum which would have been payable

under the contract, then the contractor and the

surety shall be liable and shall pay to the state the

amount of said excess.

It is expressly understood and agreed that no

claim for extra work or materials, not specifically

herein provided, done or furnished by the con-

tractor, wdll be allowed by the State Highway Com-

mission, nor shall the contractor do any work or

furnish any materials not covered by these specifi-

cations and contract unless such work is ordered in

writing by the Engineer. In no event shall the con-

tractor incur any liability by reason of any verbal

directions or instructions that he may be given by

the said engineer, or his authorized assistant; nor

will the said party of the first part be liable for any

extra materials furnished or used, or for any extra

work or labor done, unless said materials, work

or labor are required by said contractor on written

order furnished by the said engineer. Any such

extra work or materials which may be done or

furnished by the contractor without such written

order first being given shall be at said contractor's

owTi risk, cost and expense, and he hereby covenants
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and agrees that v/ithout such written order he shall

make no claim for compensation for work or mate-

rials so done or furnished.

The contractor further covenants and agrees that

during the progress of the work to be performed

under the provisions [85] of this contract, he will in

every respect comply vrith the provisions of the

Workmen's Compensation Act, being Chapter 96

of the Session Laws of the 14th Legislative Assem-

bly of the State of Montana, and with all statutory

provisions supplementary or amendatory thereto.

In case any question or dispute arises between

the parties hereto respecting any matter pertaining

to this contract, or any part thereof, said questions

or disputes shall be referred to the State Highway

Commission and Attorney General of the State of

Montana, whose decisions shall be final, l:>inding and

conclusive upon all parties without exception or

appeal ; and all right or rights, of any action at law,

or in equity, under and by virtue of this contract,

and all matters connected with it and relative

thereto are hereby expressly waived by the con-

tractor.

It is expressly understood and agreed that the

contractor will notify the State Highway Commis-

sion in writing of the date upon which his work

will be completed and ready for final inspection;

that upon receipt of such notice from the contractor

the engineer will arrange for a final inspection of
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the work, such inspection to be had within fifteen

days of the date specified in such notice from the

contractor; that final payment for the work will be

made within ninety days of the date of the final

acceptance of the project by the engineer.

The contractor further agrees that he will save

and keep harmless the said State of Montana

against and from all losses to it from any cause

whatever, including patent trade mark and copy-

right infringements in the manner of constructing

such section of roadway. [86]

The contractor hereby further agrees to receive

the following prices as full compensation for fur-

nishing all the materials and labor which may be

required in the prosecution and completion of the

whole of the work to be done under this contract or

agreement, and in all respects to complete said con-

tract to the satisfaction of the State Highway Com-

mission; it being imderstood and agreed by and

between the parties hereto that ninety per cent

(90%) of the amount due for the completion of

w^ork during any working month, exclusive of

"extra work" and "extra materials," when and

only when such amount is in excess of five hundred

dollars ($500.00) shall be paid to the contractor by

the party of the first part within thirty days after

the expiration of that working month, and all im-

paid balances due on the final estimate shall be

paid similarly to the contractor within ninety days
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after the final acceptance of the contract, as pro-

vided in the second paragraph supra; the estimate

in all cases of the work completed during any work-

ing month as well as the final estimate, to be pre-

pared by the engineer of the State Highway Com-

mission or his authorized assistant.

(Here refer to schedule of bid prices submitted

by contractor with his Proposal Form, which sched-

ule and Proposal Form are inserted and, by agree-

ment of both parties, are made a part of the Con-

tract.)

It is expressly understood and agreed by and

between the parties hereto that as a condition prece-

dent to the complete execution of this contract, the

contractor will furnish a good and sufficient surety

bond in the amount of Fifteen thousand six hmidred

fifteen and 66/100 Dollars ($15,615.66) to be con-

ditioned upon the faithful performance of the cove-

nants and agreements as herein set forth by him to

be performed, subject [87] to the approval by the

Chairman of the State Highway C^ommission and

the Attorney General of the State of Montana.

In witness whereof, the Chairman of the State

Highway Commission, by authority in him vested,

has herevmto subscribed his name on behalf of the

State of Montana and affixed the seal of the State

Highway Commission, hereto, and the said—Cover-
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dale & Johnson—hereunto set their hands and seal,

the day and year first above written:

STATE OF MONTANA,
By O. S. WARDEN

Chairman of the State High-

way Commission.

[Seal of State Highway Commission]

Attest

:

W. O. WHIPPS
Secretary.

[Seal] COVERDALE & JOHNSON
[Seal] By JOHN M. COVERDALE
[Seal] By E. O. JOHNSON
Witnesses: KATHERINE L. COVERDALE

DON W. JACOBUS

Approved as to form and legality:

RAYMOND T. NAGLE
Attorney General.

By C. J. DOUSMAN
Assistant

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT 2 ON DEPOSITION

CONTRACT BOND
(Revised February, 1931)

Know all men by these presents, That we, John

M. Coverdale and E. O. Johnson, a co-partnership,

doing business under the firm name of—Coverdale
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& Johnson—hereinafter called the "Principal" and

United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company, a

corporation licensed under the laws of the State of

Montana, hereinafter called the "Surety" are held

and firmly bomid umto the State of Montana in the

full and just sum of Fifteen thousand [88] six hun-

dred fifteen and 66/100 Dollars ($15,615.66) lawful

money of the United States of America, to be paid

to the State of Montana, or its assigns, to which

payment well and truly to be made and done, we

bind ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators

and successors, jointly and severally, firmly by these

presents.

Sealed with our respective seals and dated this

Twenty-first day of September, 1934.

Whereas, the above boimden "Principal" has

entered into a contract with the State of Montana,

by the State Highway Commission, through its

Chairman, bearing even date herewith, for the

improvement construction of certain section of

bridges in Lewis & Clark County, State of Mon-

tana, U. S. Public Works Highway Project No.

NRH-176 E, U 2 (1935) for approximately the

sum of Fifteen thousand six hundred fifteen and

66/100 Dollars ($15,615.66) the said bridges being

situated as follows : 1 concrete and 5 treated timber

pile trestle bridges and stock passes on the Augusta-

Sun Eiver Road in Lewis & Clark County, and

Whereas, It was one of the conditions of the

award of the State Highway Commission, acting for
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and. on behalf of the State of Montana, pursuant to

which said contract was entered into, that these

presents should be executed:

Now, Therefore, The condition of this obligation

is such that if the above bonded ^'Principal" as

Contractor shall in all respects faithfully perform

all of the provisions of said contract, and his, their

or its obligations thereunder including the specifi-

cations therein referred to and made part thereof

and such alterations as may be made in said speci-

fications as therein provided for, and shall well

and truly, and in a manner [89] satisfactory to the

State Highway Commission, complete the work con-

tracted for, and shall save harmless the State of

Montana, from any expense incurred through the

failure of said Contractor to complete the work as

specified, or from any damages growing out of the

carelessness of said Contractor or his, their, or its

servants, or from any liability for payment of wages

due or material furnished said Contractor, and shall

well and truly pay all laborers, mechanics, subcon-

tractors and material men who perform work or

furnish material under such contract, and all per-

sons who shall supply him or the subcontractor with

provisions, provender - and supplies for the carry-

ing on of the work, and also shall save and keep

harmless the said State of Montana against and

from all losses to it from any cause whatever in-

cluding patent, trade-mark and copyright infringe-

ments, in the manner of constructing said section
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of work, then this obligation to be void or other-

wise to be and remain in full force and virtue.

[Seal] COVERDALE & JOHNSON
[Seal] By JOHN M. COVERDALE
[Seal] By E. O. JOHNSON

Witnesses

:

KATHERINE L. COVERDALE
DON W. JACOBUS

UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND
GUARANTY COMPANY

Surety Company

By DON W. JACOBUS
Its Attorney in Fact.

Approved as to form and legality

:

RAYMOND T. NAGLE
Attorney General,

by C. J. DOUSMAN [90]
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Office of the State Auditor

Insurance Department

U. S. Fidelity & Guaranty Co. is duly licensed

to do business in the State of Montana.

Don W. Jacobus is a duly licensed Agent for the

above named company.

Don W. Jacobus is the duly authorized Attorney-

in-Fact with powers to execute bonds for aforesaid

Company in unlimited amounts.

JOHN J. HOLMES
State Auditor and

Commissioner of Ins.

By J. D. KELLEY
F. THOMAS

Date 10/1/34

State of Montana,

County of Lewis and Clark—ss.

Don W. Jacobus, being first duly sworn, deposes

and says that he is the Manager of the Montana

Branch Office of the United States Fidelity and

Guaranty Company of Baltimore, residing in

Helena, that he as Attorney-in-fact of said surety

company has executed the attached bond on behalf

of John M. Coverdale and E. O. Johnson, a copart-

nership, doing business under the firm name of Cov-

erdale & Johnson of Anaconda and Helena, Mon-

tana, running to the State of Montana and covermg

the construction of U. S. Public Works Highway
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Project NRH-176 "E" Unit 2 (1935) ; that the full

agent's commission on the said bond will be paid

by the United States Fidelity and Guaranty Com-
pany to a licensed agent of the said United States

Fidelity and Guaranty Company and that the bond

and premium therefor has been entered upon the

books of the Montana Branch Office of the [91]* said

United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company.

DON W. JACOBUS
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 1st day

of October, 1934.

L. ALBRECHT
Notary Public for the State of Montana.

Residing at Helena, Montana.

My commission expires December 15th, 1934.

The Witness: The documents, plaintiff's exhib-

its 1 and 2, are not the only documents of that

character in connection with any contract between

Coverdale and Johnson and the State Highway

Commission which I have in the official files and

records of the commission as I think they had an-

other contract, but not on this project. This con-

tract is a contract connected with a U. S. Public

Works Highway Project in the State of Montana

known as Project NRH-176 "E", Unit 2 (1935).

After plaintiff's exhibit 1 was signed in dupli-

cate, one original was delivered to the contractor
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and the other kept by the State Highway Commis-

sion.

Q. Upon delivering of the contract to the con-

tractor does, or did the Commission at the time the

present contract bears date, require any evidence of

the issuance of a public liability policy applicable

to the work embraced in that contract ?

Mr. Boone: Objected to as leading; on the fur-

ther grounds as incompetent, irrelevant and im-

material, and calls for a conclusion of the witness,

and on the further ground that the contract docu-

ment speaks for itself and is the best evidence.

The Court: I will overrule the objection.

A. Yes.

Q. What did the Commission require at that

time in the way of a written communication show-

ing the issuance of such a [92] policy *?

Mr. Boone: Objected to as immaterial, no

proper foundation having been laid; there being no

showing there was any transaction between the

State Highway Commission and the defendant in

this action, and in this the requirements of the State

Highway Commission will not be binding upon the

defendant.

The Court : I will overrule the question.

Q. What?
Mr. Boone: Same objection as to question as

amended.

The Court: I will overrule objection.
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A. The standard specifications attached to a

form, a part of the contract, inchide RO 7.11, re-

quire the contractor to carry public liability insur-

ance in the amount of at least Ten Thousand Dollars

for one person, and a total of Twenty Thousand for

one action. At the time that the contract was sent

to Coverdale and Johnson for execution a letter

was written transmitting said contract and remind-

ing the contractor of Article 7.11 requesting that

the Highway Commission be informed of the fact

that the required public liability insurance policy

will be obtained.

Mr. Boone: Defendant moves to strike out the

answer of the witness on the ground that it is not

responsive, and on the further ground that the con-

tract document introduced as plaintiff's exhibit 1

speaks for itself, and on the further ground that

any communications between the State Highw^ay

Commission and Coverdale and Johnson, the con-

tracting party, are not binding upon the defendant

in this action.

Mr. McCabe : The purpose of this line of exami-

nation is to show what particular kind of evidence

they request, and to show that it was furnished at

the request of the defendant [93] company.

Mr. Toole: I do think that in view of counsel's

statement the defense should make a statement. As

to these documents in these depositions, there have

been two references made. One to the bond, and

another to an insurance policy, without discrimina-
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tion or distinction. The bond referred to is the com-

pletion bond of the contractor. I don't think your

Honor, when you read the pleadings, will be able

to determine perhaps whether counsel relies upon

his right to recover under the completion bond, and

completion of the job, or the public liability insur-

ance policy. I want to state to the Court that it is

true that the contract contains the clause referred

to by the plaintiff in this action. It contains the

clause which requires in the specifications that the

contractor shall furnish a public liability insurance

policy. It is quite different and distinct from the

completion bond. It does not say, however, as to

what the terms of that policy shall be. Plaintiff in

this action has alleged that the public liability

policy w^as furnished, and the pleadings in this case

go upon the theory that the contract betw^een the

State Highway Commission and Coverdale and

Johnson must be construed together with the public

liability policy, and the defense in this action is that

is not the law. That is why this objection was made.

The provisions of the statute must be construed

together with the contract, so that your Honor will

understand, there is no law as we view it which

requires the Court to -construe the contract between

Coverdale and Johnson and the State Highway

Commission jointly, and together with the public

liability policy, but that the policy will stand upon

its own terms, and that any evidence of any kind

offered for the purpose of altering the contract
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is a [94] proposal to vary the terms of a written

contract by parole evidence, without having shown
that it was ambiguous or without having laid a

foundation for the receipt of it.

The Court: Well, you may develop your theory.

Go ahead. What was that objection now?
Mr. McCabe: "At the time that the contract

was sent to Coverdale & Johnson for execution a

letter was written transmitting said contract and

reminding the contractor of Article 7.11 requesting

that the Highway Commission be informed of the

fact that the required public liability insurance

policy will be obtained."

Mr. Boone: Defendant moves to strike out the

answer of the witness on the ground that it is not

responsive, and on the further ground that the con-

tract document introduced as plaintilf's exhibit 1

speaks for itself, and on the further ground that

any communications betw^een the State Highway

Commission and Coverdale & Johnson, the contract-

ing party, are not binding upon the defendant in

this action.

The Court: It may not be binding upon the de-

fendant in this action, but it is illustrative, and it

may have a bearing on the issues in the case. I will

overrule the objection.

The Witness: One of my official duties during

the months of September to December, inclusive,

1934, was the handling of correspondence and

writing letters on behalf of the Commission and
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when plaintiff's exhibit 1 was sent to Coverdale &
Johnson by mail, a letter from me as Secretary or

Administrative Engineer of the Commission accom-

panied it. The original letter was never returned to

the Commission by Coverdale & Johnson. Being

shown a document marked plaintiff's exhibit 3, I

am able to identify it as a carbon copy of the letter

sent to Coverdale & Johnson [95] accompanying the

contract and it is one of the official records of the

State Highway Commission.

Mr. McCabe: Plaintiff's exhibit No. 3 is offered

in evidence.

Mr. Boone: To which the defendant objects on

the ground that it is incompetent, irrelevant and

immaterial; that the exhibit constitutes a self-serv-

ing declaration and on the further ground that no

communications, such as plaintiff's exhibit 3, be-

tween State Highway Commission and Coverdale &

Johnson are binding upon the defendant, and upon

the further ground no proper fomidation has been

laid for the introduction of the exhibit.

The Court: Overrule the objection.

Thereupon plaintiff's exhibit 3, on deposition,

was received in evidence over the objection of the

defendant and was filed with the Clerk of the Court

and said exhibit is as follows

:
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT 3 ON DEPOSITION

September 26, 1934

USPWH Projects NRH-176 E, H 2 (1935)

and NRH-275 A, Unit 2 (1935)

Coverdale & Johnson,

c/o John M, Coverdale,

416 West Park Avenue,

Anaconda, Montana.

Gentlemen

:

There are enclosed herewith two original num-

bers and two copies of your contracts for U. S.

Public Works Highway Projects NRH-176 E, Unit

2 (1935) and NRH-275-A, Unit 2 (1935). In con-

nection with each contract, please have the two

originals of the contract and contract bond executed

by both members of your firm, signing on the lines

checked and having your signature witnessed by

two persons. In each case, have the tw^o originals

of the [96] contract bond executed by your surety

company. Then return the two originals for each

project to this office for execution by the Chairman

of the Highway Commission. Your original num-

bers will be returned to you after final execution

and approval.

In furnishing your surety bonds, the requirement

set forth in Paragraph 3.4, page 4, of the Standard

Specifications included in these contracts must be

fully complied with, and the certificate referred to
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must be attached to the Highway Commission's

original copy of the bond, which bond is bound in

at the back of the contracts.

The copy of the contract marked for the con-

tractor in each case is being furnished in accordance

with Article 5.5 of the Standard Specifications. In

conformity with this Article, it is expected that the

contractor shall keep this copy continuously on the

job. The second copy of the contract for each

project is intended for the files of your bonding

company.

You are reminded of the clause, which is inchided

in Article 7.11, Page 11, Section 7 of the Standard

Specifications, providing that you shall carry public

liability insurance. The Commission has ruled that

no payment on account of these contracts will be

made until this office has been furnished with satis-

factory information to the effect that this insurance

has been taken out by you. Preferably, this infor-

mation should be conveyed in the form of a letter

to this department from the insurance agent who

furnishes you the policy. Until this provision is

complied with no payment can be made under the

contracts.

Very truly yours,

STATE HIGHWAY COMMISSION
By W. O. WHIPPS

Administrative Engineer

W-mo
Ends. [97]
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The Witness : Being asked to examine the docu-

ment, marked plaintiii's exhibit 4, I am able to

identify it as one of the official records of the Mon-
tana Highway Commission which was delivered to

the Commission by an agent of the comj^any. I am
also able to identify the signature of L. K. Albrecht

thereon. L. K. Albrecht is the Assistant Manager

under Don W. Jacobus, Manager of the United

States Fidelity and Guaranty Company in the

Helena Branch office. The red pencil marks in

writing and figures thereon were not on the docu-

ment when it was received by the Commission but

were put on at the time of its receipt. These red

pencil marks show that the document was received

October 1, 1934, and was checked as having been

noted by me through the placing of my initials

thereon and that said document was marked filed

by me, all in accordance with the practice in the

office of the State Highway Commission.

As Secretary of the State Highway Commission

I have had dealings and communications back and

forth with the United States Fidelity and Guaranty

Company through Don W. Jacobus, Manager, and

L. K. Albrecht, Assistant Manager.

Mr. McCabe: Plaintiif's exhibit 4 is offered in

evidence.

Mr. Boone: This is objected to on the ground

the instrument has not been properly authenticated

;

on the further ground no proper foundation has

been laid for the admission of the exhibit in evi-
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dence and on the further ground it is incompetent,

irrelevant and immaterial, not serving or having

any bearing on the issues in this case.

The Court: Objection overruled.

Thereupon plaintiff's exhibit No. 4, on deposi-

tion, was received in evidence over the objection of

the defendant and was tiled with the Clerk of the

Court and said exhibit is as [98] follows

:

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT 4 ON DEPOSITION

United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company
Helena Branch Office

In Replying to this Letter Telephone 243

Please Refer to File No.

Don W. Jacobus, Manager

Suite 27, iTnion Bank Building

Helena, Mont.

Received 10/1/34

WOW-10/1
Oct. 1, 1934

Attention: Mr. Whipps

Montana State Highway Commission

Helena, Montana

Dear Sir:

Re:Coverdale & Johnson—NRH-275 "A"
Unit 2—$5,270.32

Coverdale & Johnson—NRH-176 "E"
Unit 2—$15,115.66

I have executed and herewith enclose bonds cover-

ing the above captioned contracts.
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For your information, wish to advise that we
have issued Contractor's Public Liability Policy

PC-19715 for this assured, with Public Liability

limits Ten Thousand and Twenty Thousand and

Property Damage One Thousand. This policy is

written for one year from October 1st, 1934.

Yours very truly,

DON W. JACOBUS
Manager

By (s) L. K. ALBRECHT
Assistant Manager

LA:C

Q. Mr. Whipps, do you know w^hether the Con-

tractor's Public Liability Policy referred to in the

writing plaintiff's exhibit 4 was ever delivered to

the State Highway Commission? [99]

A. Yes.

Q. Was such policy ever delivered to the State

Highway Commission?

Mr. Boone: Objected to as incompetent, irrele-

vant and immaterial and leading.

The Court: Objection overruled.

A. No.

Q. Are you able to say whether or not a copy

of the Contractor's Public Liability Policy men-

tioned in plaintiff's exhibit 4 was ever delivered to

the State Highway Commission? A. Yes.

Q. Was a copy of such policy ever delivered to

the State Highway Commission?
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Mr. Boone: Same objection.

The Court: Same ruling.

A. No.

Cross Examination

By Mr. Boone:

The Witness: As a matter of fact the State

Highway Commission has never required of any

contractor on any project to deliver to the Commis-

sion either the original policy or a copy and that

was true in the case of the contract between the

State Highway Commission and Coverdale & John-

son. It has never been the requirement of the State

Highw^ay Commission that any contractor, including

Coverdale & Johnson, deliver to the Commission the

original policy taken out or a copy of the policy

of insurance.

I have been Secretary and Administrative En-

gineer of the State Highway Commission since 1925

and in that capacity I am familiar with the various

contracts entered into between the [100] State

Highway Commission and various contractors for

construction projects in the State of Montana. My
attention being called to paragraph 7.11 of the

Standard Specifications of the contract between the

State Highway Commission and Coverdale & John-

son, and particularly to the second part of that

paragraph, I will say that that provision has been

a standard provision in all contracts between tlie

State Highway Commission and various contractors

since 1929. The State Highway Commission, since
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1929, has never prepared or had prepared a form of

Public Liability Insurance Policy for use by con-

tractors under such contracts and the Commission

has never prescribed the terms of the form of such

policies to be executed under such standard pro-

vision as paragraph 7.11 of the Standard Specifica-

tions. The Commission has never prescribed the

terms and conditions of such policies except in so

far as the Standard Specifications referred to says

''Public Liability Insurance."

I have never examined the Contractor's Public

Liability Insurance Policy which was executed by

the United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company

under the terms of this particular contract and I

have no knowledge or information as to whether or

not such policy is a standard contractor's public

liability insurance policy.

Mr. McCabe: That is all of that deposition.

Now, the other deposition is the same. I presume

it may be stipulated that the objections appearing

therein may be considered by the Court on reading

the said deposition.

Mr. Toole: It is agreeable to the defendant that

it may be so considered, that the rulings may be

the same in the second deposition.

The Court : Very well. [101]'
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Whereupon

HARRY DOHENY,

'a witness called and sworn on behalf of the plain-

tiff, testified as follows

:

Direct Examination

By Mr. McCabe

:

The Witness: My name is Harry W. Doheny,

residence Augusta, Montana. I resided there in De-

cember, 1934. I am familiar with the location of the

public highway known as the Augusta-Sun River

Highway in Lewis and Clark County, Montana, and

I am also familiar, and was in December, 1934, with

the public highway known as Augusta-Great Falls

Public Highway. The Augusta-Sun River Highway

is a part of the Great Falls-Sun River Highway,

constituting together the Augusta-Great Falls Pub-

lic Highway.

In December, 1934, I was the father of Marguerite

Doheny and Roberta Doheny. Neither was employed

in that month by the State of Montana and neither

was then employed by the copartnership of Cover-

dale & Johnson, consisting of John M. Coverdale

and E. O. Johnson. At that time Marguerite Doheny

was employed at the Randall Hotel in Augusta.

Roberta was not employed at that time; she was

living at home.

Cross Examination

By Mr. Toole

:

The Witness : The highway I have referred to is

the highway that runs from Great Falls out to the
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west towards Augusta. It runs pretty much directly

from Great Falls to Augusta—i)retty nearly west

with winding roads here and there—slight winding

roads. It is the main highway between Great Falls

and Augusta and is a continuous highway. It is fifty-

two miles from Great Falls to Augusta. The town

of Simms is located about 25 miles, I think, 24 or

25 miles this side of Augusta, between [102] Au-

gusta and Great Falls. Simms is about 25 miles

from Augusta and about the same distance from

Great Falls.

I am familiar with the location of the place where

Coverdale and Johnson w^ere building their bridges

in 1934. They were at various points on that high-

way. The nearest one, I think, to Augusta was about

two miles east from Augusta, toward Great Falls.

Q. That is the bridges were in the vicinity of

Augusta, were they?

A. They varied along the road. I don't know

just how many bridges they built. I know it ex-

tended for some miles down that road.

The Witness : The nearest one was about two

miles from Augusta. There is a cross road running

up through there that comes from Wolf Creek

through Augusta and continues on to Choteau. I

tlo not know whether Coverdale and Johnson were

building some bridges on that road too at that time.
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Redirect Examination

By Mr. McCabe

:

The Witness: The Great Falls-Augusta road

runs just on the side of the town of Simms.

Witness Excused.

Whereupon

MRS. ETHEL M. DOHENY,

a witness called and sworn on behalf of the i)lain-

tiff, testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. McCabe

:

The Witness: My name is Ethel M. Doheny. I

am the plaintiff in th^se two actions now being tried

in this Court. I am the same Ethel M. Doheny who

was the plaintiff in the two actions instituted by me

in the District Court of Cascade County, Montana,

[103] against Coverdale and Johnson, as Adminis-

tratrix of the Estate of Marguerite Doheny and as

Administratrix of the Estate of Roberta M. Doheny.

I reside in Augusta, Montana, and resided there in

the month of December, 1934. In that month I was

acquainted with Roberta Doheny and Marguerite

Doheny as I was their mother. I retained you to

act as my attorney in the trial of those cases in the

District Court of Cascade County, Montana, and

after those cases went to judgment I authorized you

to take steps to collect those judgments. I further

authorized you to investigate to determine whether
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there was any public liability insurance written

covering the work of Coverdale and Johnson on the

jjublic highway between Sun River and Augusta.

I also instructed you to obtain payment of the judg-

ment from the United States Fidelity and Guaranty

Company. Neither of these judgments nor any part

of them which I obtained in the District Court of

Cascade County, Montana, the record of which I

have introduced in evidence, has ever been paid. I

have never assigned these judgments, or either of

them, or any part of them, nor have I in any man-

ner transferred or disposed of those judgments.

In December, 1934, Marguerite and Roberta

Doheny w^ere living at home. Marguerite was work-

ing at that time at the Randall Hotel. Roberta w^as

not employed. At no time during the month of De-

cember were Marguerite or Roberta Doheny em-

ployed by Coverdale & Johnson, a co-partnership

consisting of John M. Coverdale and E. O. Johnson,^

or by the State of Montana.

Mr. Toole: I have no cross examination of this

witness, but while the witness is on the stand, coun-

sel for plaintiff in this action requested us to pro-

duce the public liability policy herein issued. At

the time the request was made we were unable [104]

to do so because it was in the possession of Cover-

dale. We now have it and we now hand it to counsel.

The original public liability policy written by the

defendant United States Fidelity and Guaranty

Company, which is in issue in this action.

Witness Excused



vs. Ethel M. Dohemj 121

Whereupon

E. J. McCABE

was sworn as a witness on behalf of the plaintiff

and testified as follows:

The Witness: My name is E. J. McCabe. I am

the Attorney for the plaintiff Ethel M. Doheny,

Administratrix of the Estates of Marguerite Do-

heny, Deceased, and Roberta Doheny, Deceased,

in the present actions being tried. I also represented

the same plaintiff in two cases filed and tried, and

entered in judgments in the District Court of Cas-

cade County, Montana. In the spring of 1936, I

believe it was May, I think May of 1936, as such

Attorney, and before instituting these actions, I

wrote the United States Fidelity and Guaranty

Company a letter requesting that I be furnished

with a copy of the public liability insurance written

on Coverdale & Johnson in connection with the

projects and in connection with the state contract

which has been offered and received in evidence.

I have attempted to locate that letter in my file,

but I don't find it, but it was merely a request

for that policy. I have lost the letter. In response

to that I received a letter which is marked defend-

ant's exhibit No. 26. This was received by me from

the postoffice in the United States mail at G-reat

Falls, Montana, and refers to that letter which I

had written to them, and in which letter they en-

closed a copy of the daily reports.

Mr. Toole: Do you offer it I
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Mr. McCabe: I now offer it in evidence. [105]

Mr. Toole: Objected to in the first place be-

cause counsel has not pleaded that he received, or

that he requested the report, the daily report, it is

not an issue in this case; it is not material. Upon
the face of it it shows that it is secondary evidence,

in that it is a photostatic copy. It is a photostatic

copy of the policy which is now in counsel's pos-

session, and to introduce this at this time would

be to encumber the record, and would not be within

the issues or the pleadings. I don't think it is par-

ticularly material, your Honor, excepting that it is

merely a daily report, and is not the policy which

is pleaded in this case. Counsel now has the policy.

The Court: I will let it go in evidence. The

objection is overruled.

Thereupon

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT No. 26

was received in evidence over the objection of the

defendant, said exhibit being a photostatic copy of

the daily report of United States Fidelity and

Guaranty Company as to the issuance by said com-

pany of Contractors' Public Liability Policy No.

PC-19715 and letter attached thereto from Thomas

A. Hays, Superintendent Casualty Division United

States Fidelity and Guaranty Company, to Mr.

E. J. McCabe, Attorney, which letter is as follows:
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United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company

Baltimore, Maryland

Claim Department

Hugh D. Combs

Vice President

August 4, 1937

Casualty Division

Thomas A. Hays

Superintendent [106]

Mr. E. J. McCabe, Atty.

Strain Building

Great Falls, Montana

Re: Coverdale and Johnson

Dear Sir:

In reply to your letter of July 31, you are ad-

vised that it is not possible for us to give you an

exact copy of the policy which was issued in this

case. The original should be in the possession of

Coverdale and Johnson to whom it was issued.

We have, however, the daily report and copies

of the nine endorsements which are attached to

said daily report. In order to comply with your

request as far as possible, we are attaching photo-

static copies of both sides of said daily report and

endorsements. The daily report should contain all

the information set forth on the policy.

We assume you have been unsuccessful in your

request to Coverdale and Johnson for a copy of the

policy itself. We are always loath, for the reasons

stated in our communication of July 29, to furnish

copies to third parties. Because we do not see how
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we would prejudice the interest of our insured in

this case, we are complying with your request.

Yours very truly,

THOS. A. HAYS
Superintendent

TAH :LWK

Witness (Continuing) : After the trial of the

action in the District Court in Cascade County,

Montana, the two actions to which I have referred,

and when the jury went out to consider of their

verdict, I spoke to Mr. Coverdale, John M. Cover-

dale, who is present in Court, and in connection

with the cases, and he said, [107]

Mr. Toole: We object to any statement made by

Mr. Coverdale as not a part of this action. He can-

not make any statements which could be binding

upon the defendant.

The Court: He may answer.

Witness (Continuing) : Mr. Coverdale stated,

if you obtain any judgment in these cases I have

not any money to pay. They won't be any good.

I have no money to pay them with.

Mr. Toole: That is all objected to as incompe-

tent, irrelevant and immaterial.

The Court: Objection overruled.

Witness (Continuing) : After he made certain

statements, I said to him, well, cannot I examine

the public liability policy that was issued under
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your contract with the Highway Commission. He
said, I don't have it, it is lost, but I will go back

to Anaconda, and when I get there, if I can find it,

I will sen^ it to you, or a copy. After that I never

heard anything from Mr. Coverdale. So after the

judgments obtained in the state court were affirmed

by the Supreme Court I talked with Don W. Ja-

cobus, the Manager of the United States Fidelity

and Guaranty Company at Helena, in his office. I

believe it was in the Union Bank & Trust Company
Building in Helena. At that time I stated that I

represented Mrs. Doheny and requested that his

company pay the judgments obtained in the state

court and which had been affirmed by the Supreme

Court of the State of Montana. He thereupon said,

in reply, we will not pay a cent on the judgments.

Mr. Toole : Now^, we move that that be stricken as

it not having been shown that Don W. Jacobus has

any right of any kind or character to bind the

United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company,

because he could not refuse under any circumstances

to pay claims that the company was properly ob-

ligated to pay. [108]

The Court: Was he the Manager of the Com-
pany in Montana?

Mr. Toole: I further object on the ground that

it has not been shown that he was qualified; that

he was qualified to make any statement to vary the

terms of a written contract.
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The Court: I will let the witness answer as to

what the Manager said.

A. I went to the office, and on the door of the

office was United States Fidelity and Guaranty

Company, and printed on it Don W. Jacobus, Man-

ager. That was on the office, on the glass. I went

into that office. I asked for the Manager, and Mr.

Jacobus, whom I have known for a number of

years, appeared and said, what do you want? I

requested that he pay the judgments. He thereupon

stated, we will not pay another cent on those. Our

Attorneys conducted the defense in the state court;

we had to pay them, and we had to pay the expenses

of the defense of the case in the state court, and

also on appeal.

Mr. Toole: I move that all that be stricken as

immaterial; not binding upon the United States

Fidelity and Guaranty Company.

The Court: I think it is material. I intend to

let you state what he said with reference to show-

ing his attitude as far as he represented the com-

pany, the attitude of the company, so far as he

went in respect to paying these claims. Whether

he paid the other expenses or not.

Mr. Toole: Note an exception.

Witness (Continuing) : I, as Attorney for the

plaintiff, obtained the issuance of the executions

that were issued in the two cases which have been

introduced as exhibits in this hearing, and person-

ally presented them to the Sheriff of Deer Lodge
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County, at Anaconda, requesting him to execute

the judgments against the property of Coverdale

& Johnson, co-partnership, [109] and John M.

Coverdale.

Cross Examination

By Mr. Toole:

The Witness: I have not looked at the policy

that you just gave me. What I would not like to

have done here is to have the policy introduced.

I don't think it is any use to introduce it. You
have admitted the issuance of the policy. We have

introduced the policy that was given to us. It is

up to you to introduce the policy. We are not re-

lying upon the policy. We are relying upon the

obligation of the company, that the company as-

sumed both under its bond and mider the contract,

or under any policy that has been written. In other

vrords, they have refused to give us access to the

policy. I know as a matter of fact that it is the

practice when a public liability policy is issued,

that it is delivered by the company to the assured.

And I know that in this case, by being informed

by Coverdale, a public liability policy issued by the

United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company was
delivered to Coverdale '& Johnson. I think I learned

that while the Coverdale cases were being tried.

I don't recall whether I had written you a letter

discussing this policy prior to the time of the trial

of those cases. I did find at the time of the trial

that there w^as a policy and I knew that that policy
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was delivered to Coverdale. I addressed Coverdale

upon the subject and he said he lost it and that

he would look for it when he got home, if he could

find it. Afterwards I never asked him about it but

I had asked 3^ou as I knew you were Coverdale 's

Attorney. As a matter of fact I know that you

and Mr. Boone appeared on behalf of Mr. Cover-

dale, this partnership, in the lower court. [110]

When I first wrote to the United States Fidelity

and Guaranty Company they did not reply that

they didn't have a policy—on the contrary the first

reply was that they would not furnish that. I then

wrote back and told them we would compel them

to produce it under the laws of the State of Mon-

tana under an order of court. It was then that they

said they didn't have the policy, or didn't know

where it was, and they sent me the daily report.

I do not know whether the policy which you have

in your hand had been in Coverdale 's possession

all this time. I was told by the United States Fi-

delity and Guaranty Company that it did not have

the policy. When I received the photostatic copies

which were offered in evidence, they said in their

letter that those were copies from their files of

their daily report, or their information upon this

policy.

Q. I am just handing you the policy itself. Just

look at it will you? Are you able to tell me from an

examination of that policy whether or not it is the

public liability policy furnished by the United
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States Fidelity and Guaranty Company to Cover-

dale & Johnson? A. No, I can't.

Q. Take the daily report

The Court: I think you ought to give him an

opportunity to examine the policy—not spring it

on him and expect him to analyze it, and digest it,

and tell us what it is.

The Witness: I can take the photostatic copies

and make the comparison at recess. I wrote that

letter that I have on July 21, 1937, and got an an-

swer on August 4, 1937, and it was at that time

that I received from the United States Fidelity

and Guaranty Company what information it had

in respect to the policy. [Ill]

It was the day of the trial in the district court,

after the jury had. gone out, that I talked with

Coverdale in my attempt to get a copy of the policy

from him. I did not later commmiicate with Mr.

Coverdale and ask him for the policy but I com-

municated with you and talked wath you about it.

You didn't tell me that you did not have it but

you said you would try to get it from him, if he

had it, that you would write me. I remember you
told me that Coverdale had the policy, if anyone

had it.

Whereupon a recess was had.
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After recess.

Cross Examination

Mr. McCabe

Continued

:

The Witness: I have had time to examine the

policy and the daily report. I find they are sub-

stantially the same. I find a difference in the form

in that in the daily report there is no signature

of the man by the name of Bowman that appears

on the policy. I do not know whether Bowman
would likely be the local agent who wrote the policy.

Witness Excused.

Plaintiff Rests

Defendant's Case

Whereupon

JOHN M. COVERDALE,

a witness called and sworn on behalf of the de-

fendant, testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Toole

:

The Witness: My name is John M. Coverdale.

I was a member of the partnership of Coverdale

& Johnson. We had a contract, which has been tes-

tified to here, for the construction of some bridges

near Augusta in 1934. We had two contracts, both



vs. Ethel M. Doheny 131

(Testimony of John M. Coverdale.)

with [112] the Montana State Highway Commis-

sion. As to the contract for the construction of

bridges on the Augusta-Sun River road, and as to

the location of the bridges with respect to the

town of Augusta, there was one bridge twelve miles

on the other side of Simms, where the accident

happened, and the furthest bridge is twenty-two

miles from Simms.

The closest of the bridges to the town of Simms

was twelve miles from Simms and the other bridges

were scattered from that twelve mile point to twen-

ty-two miles distant. There were five structures in

that one contract and the closest bridge to the town

of Simms was located twelve miles from Simms. I

recall when the accident happened and at the time

this accident happened all of those bridges were

completed but the one over the Sun River—the con-

crete bridge—it was not completed at the time. That

bridge is twenty-two miles from Simms. Coverdale

& Johnson were not working or operating on that

bridge at the time of the accident. At the time of

the accident we were operating on the Augusta-

Choteau road on the canal—large government canal

—that was the bridge we were working on. That
was twenty-eight miles' from the town of Simms. At
the time that this accident happened the closest

operation that Coverdale & Johnson had was on the

canal—that would be twenty-eight miles from the

town of Simms. At that time we were not working



132 TJ. S. Fidelity etc, Co.

(Testimony of John M. Coverdale.)

at all at any point closer than twenty-eight miles

from Simms.

I am familiar with the location of the City of

Great Falls and the town of Simms and the town

of Augusta, from the place where our work was

being carried on. There is a highway leading from

Great Falls out to Simms, to Augusta and to the

vicinity of our work. Such highway was there at

the time of the accident ; it has been improved since

but I had nothing to do with the [113] improving

of that. The firm of Coverdale & Johnson was not

carrying on any work in the vicinity of Simms at

the time of the accident. The accident occurred on

the side of the main traveled highway.

We had a public liability policy covering our

operation at that time. Being handed a document,

marked defendant's exhibit 27, I think it is the

policy which I gave to Mr. Boone about a month

ago and I am sure that it is the policy we were

carrying at the time Coverdale & Johnson were

working on construction of those bridges under

those contracts.

Mr. Toole: Now, we offer defendant's exhibit

No. 27 in evidence.

Mr. McCabe: No objection.

The Court: It may be received in evidence.

Whereupon defendant's exhibit No. 27 was re-

ceived in evidence, without objection, and filed

with the Clerk of the Court and the material por-

tions of which are as follows:
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DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 27

United States

No. PC 19715

Fidelity and Guaranty Company

Baltimore, Maryland,

A Stock Company

(Hereinafter Called the Company)

In consideration of the premium and of the state-

ments which are set forth in the Schedule of State-

ments, does hereby agree with the Assured named

in the Schedule of Statements as follows:

Agreements

Insurance Provided

I. To settle and/o'r defend in the manner herein-

after set forth all claims resulting from liability

imposed upon the Assured by law for damages on

account of bodily [114] injuries, including death

at any time resulting therefrom, accidentally suf-

fered or alleged to have been suffered within the

policy period defined in Statement 2 by any person

or persons other than employees of the Assured,

by reason of and during the progress of the work

described in Statement 4 at the places named
therein and elsewhere, if caused by employees Ol

the Assured engaged as such in said operations at

said places; but who are required in the discharge

of their duties to be from time to time at other

places, except driving or using any vehicle or auto-
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(Defendant's Exhibit 27—continued)

mobile or any draught animal or loading or un-

loading any such vehicle.

Defense

II. To defend in the name and on behalf of

the Assured any suit brought against the Assured

to enforce a claim, whether groundless or not, for

damages on account of bodily injuries, including

death at any time resulting therefrom, accidentally

suffered or alleged to have been suffered by any

person or persons other than employees of the

Assured.

Expense

III. To pay, irrespective of the limit of lia-

bility provided for in Item 3 of the Statements

hereof, the expenses (including as a paii: thereof

the cost of such immediate surgical relief as is

imperative at the time of the accident, court costs,

all premiums on release-of-attachment and/or ap-

peal bonds required in any such proceedings, and

all interest accruing after entry of judgment for

any part of which the Company is liable hereunder

and up to the date of payment, tender or deposit

in court by the Company of its share of such judg-

ment) incurred by the Company in investigation,

negotiation for settlement or defense.

Service

IV. To serve the Assured (1) by inspection of

work places specified in the Schedule of Statements
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whenever deemed [115] necessary by the Company,

and thereupon to suggest to the Assured such

changes and improvements as may operate to re-

duce the number and severity of injuries (without

liability, however, upon the Company for failure

so to do) ; and (2) upon notice of such injuries, by

investigation thereof and by such negotiation and/or

settlement of resulting claims or suits as may

be deemed expedient by the Company.

Limitation of Liability

V. The Company's liability under this policy

is limited as expressed in Statement 3 of said

Schedule. If there be more than one named in the

Schedule of Statements as the Assured, the said

limits shall be available to them jointly, but not

to more than one of them severally.

The Foregoing Agreements Are

Subject to the Following Conditions:

Exclusions

Condition A.

This policy shall not cover loss from liability

for, or any suit based on, injuries or death;

(1) Caused by any person employed by the

Assured (a) contrary to law as to age of employ-

ment, or (b) under fourteen years of age in any

state in which there is no law restricting the age

of employment, or by any contract convict laborer.
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(2) Caused to or by any person while in or on

any elevator, hoisting device or appliance, or in

any elevator well or hoistwaj^, or while entering

upon or alighting from any elevator or hoisting

device.

(3) Caused by any draught or driving animal

or vehicle or automobile owned or used by the As-

sured or any person employed by the Assured while

engaged in the maintenance or use of same else-

where than upon the insured premises.

(4) Caused by accidents occurring after the

final completion of the work performed by the

Assured at the place of occur- [116] rence of such

accidents.

(5) Caused by any aircraft.

(6) Caused by reason of any work sublet by

the Assured.

(7) Nor shall this policy cover (a) liability of

others assumed by the Assured under any contract

or agreement—oral or w^ritten. (b) any obligation

assumed by the Assured or imposed upon the As-

sured under any Workmen's Compensation agree-

ment, plan, or law.

Condition AA.

If while this policy is in force there shall be

any change in or addition to the classifications of

work undertaken by the Assured as set forth in

Item 4 of the Schedule of Statements, this policy
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shall automatically extend to cover such work, and

the premium therefor shall be adjusted in accord-

ance with the Company's Manual rates applicable

thereto, unless specifically excluded by endorse-

ment. But nothing herein contained shall be con-

strued as extending the policy to cover any location

not specified herein; nor shall such automatic ex-

tension cover structural iron and steel erection,

bridge building, wrecking, caisson work, tunnelling,

railroad or subway construction, sewer building or

crib work.

Computation of Premium

Condition B.

(1) The Premium is based upon the total re-

muneration earned during the policy period by all

employees of the Assured engaged in connection

with the business or work described in and covered

by this policy except drivers and chauffeurs, pro-

vided such drivers and' chaffeurs are not specifi-

cally included in the classification of work described

in this policy.

(2) If the Assured is a corporation, the entire

remuneration of the president, any vice-president,

secretary or treasurer shall be subject to premium

charge at the rate applicable [117] to the hazard

to which such officer is exposed, subject, however,

to a maximum individual salary of $100 a week;

and, provided further, that if any such officer per-
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forms the duties of a superintendent, foreman or

workman, his entire remuneration, subject to the

foregoing limitation, shall be included in the cal-

culation of premium at the highest rate applicable

to any duty which he may undertake.

(3) If the Assured be an individual or a co-

partnership, the proprietor or partners performing

the duties of superintendent, foreman or workman

shall be included in the total remuneration earned

at the rate of $2,000 each per annum.

(4) The premium is subject to adjustment at

the termination of the policy period when the As-

sured shall furnish to the Company, for the pur-

pose of said adjustment, a written statement of the

exact amount of remuneration earned by the said

employees during the period of such adjustment.

(5) If the earned premium computed thereon

at the rate or rates specified in the policy exceeds

the premium paid, the Assured shall immediately

pay the additional amount to the Company; if less,

the Company shall return to the Assured the un-

earned premium; but the Company shall receive

or retain not less than the minimum premium pro-

vided in Item 4, Schedule of Statements, except

in the event of cancellation by the Company.

(6) The Assured shall keep complete and ac-

curate records corresponding with the classifica-

tions of risk enumerated in the policy showing the

remuneration earned by employees under each such
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classification, and failure to keep such records shall

entitle the Company to apply the highest premium

rate provided by the policy to the entire remunera-

tion earned. [118]

(7) The word "remuneration" used in this policy

shall include all salaries, wages and other sums paid

for regular time, overtime, piece-work, or for allow-

ances and also the cash equivalent of all board,

merchandise, store certificates, or any other substi-

tute for cash.

Cancellation of Insurance

Condition C.

This policy may be cancelled either by the Com-

pany or the Assured, at any time by not less than

five days' written notice to the other stating when

cancellation shall be effective. Notice of cancella-

tion sent by mail to the address of the Assured

herein given shall be sufficient notice and check of

the Company or the Company's authorized agent

similarly mailed a sufficient tender of any unearned

premium, but no unearned premium shall be payable

until the amount of remuneration expended during

the period the policy was in force shall have been

determined either by a written statement furnished

to the Company by the Assured or an examination

of the Assured's records as provided in (Condition

T>. If cancelled by the Assured the Company shall

be entitled to an earned premium according to the
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short-rate table printed hereon, and computed on

the entire earnings for the period of the policy as

indicated by the actual earnings of the Assured 's

employees during the time the policy shall have

been in force. If cancelled by the Company, or by

the Assured upon retiring from business, the Com-

pany shall be entitled to an earned premium pro

rata when determined; in any event when cancelled

at the request of the Assured the Company shall

retain not less than the minimum premium stated

in the policy.

Inspection and Audit

Condition D.

The Company shall be permitted at all reasonable

times (a) to inspect the plants, works, machinery,

appliances, and premises covered under [119] this

policy (b) to examine the Assured 's books and rec-

ords at any time during the policy period and

within one year after the end of the policy period

for the purpose of determining the actual premium

earned while this policy was in force; and the As-

sured shall, when requested by the Company, fur-

nish the Company with a written statement of the

amount of remuneration earned by any of the per-

sons referred to in Condition ''B".

Report of Accident

Condition E.

Upon the occurrence of an accident the Assured

shall give, as soon as reasonably possible, notice
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thereof, with the fullest information obtainable, to

the Company at its Home Office, or to a duly auth-

orized agent of the Company. If a claim is made on

account of such accident, the Assured shall give

like notice thereof with fullest particulars. If

thereafter a suit is brought against the Assured to

enforce such a claim, the Assured shall, as soon as

reasonably possible, forward to the Company at its

Home Office every summons or other process as

soon as same shall be served on him.

Co-Operation

Condition F.

The Assured shall not voluntarily assume any

liability, nor incur any expense, other than for such

immediate surgical relief as is imperative at the

time of an accident, nor settle any claim, except at

the Assured 's own cost. The Assured shall not in-

terfere in any negotiations for settlement, or in any

legal proceeding; but whenever requested by the

Company, and at the (Company's expense, the As-

sured shall aid in securing information and evidence

and the attendance of witnesses; and shall co-

operate with the Company (except in a pecuniary

way) in all matters which the Company deems

necessary in the defense of any suit or prosecution

of any appeal.
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Action Against the Company
Condition G.

No action shall lie against the Company to re-

cover for any loss under this policy [120] unless

brought within two years after the amount of such

loss is made certain either by judgment against the

Assured after the trial of the issue or by agreement

between the parties with the written consent of the

Company.

Insolvency of Assured

Condition H.

The insolvency or bankruptcy of the Assured

shall not release the Company from the payment

of damages for injuries sustained or loss suffered

by any person or persons as the result of an acci-

dent occurring while this policy is in full force and

effect; and in case execution against the Assured

is returned unsatisfied in an action brought by the

injured or his or her personal representatives in

case of death resulting from the accident, because

of such insolvency or bankruptcy, then an action

may be maintained by the injured person or his or

her personal representatives against the Company

under the terms of this policy for the amount of

the judgment in said action, not exceeding the limits

expressed in the policy.
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Special Statutes

Condition I.

If the method of serving notice of cancellation

or the limit of time for notice of accident or for any

legal proceedings herein contained is at variance

with such specific statutory provision in relation

thereto in force in the state in which the business

operations herein described are conducted, such

specific statutory provision shall supersede any con-

dition in this contract inconsistent therewith.

Subrogation

Condition J.

In case of payment of loss under this policy, the

Company shall be subrogated to all interests of the

Assured against any person, co-partnership or cor-

poration, and respects such loss, to the amount of

such payment, and the Assured shall execute all

papers required and shall co-operate [121] with

the Company to secure the Company such rights.

Other Insurance

Condition K.

If the Assured carries other valid insurance

against loss covered by' this policy, the Assured

shall not be entitled to recover from the Company a

larger proportion of the entire loss than the amount

hereby insured bears to the total amount of valid

and collectible insurance.
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Assignment

Condition L.

No assignment of interest imder this policy shall

bind the Company, unless the consent of the Com-

pany shall be endorsed hereon as provided in Con-

dition ''M". In case of the death, insolvency or

bankruptcy of the Assured during the policy period,

this policy shall cover for its unexpired term the

legal representative of the Assured, provided notice

shall be given to the Company at its Home Office

in writing within thirty days after the date of such

death, insolvency or bankruptcy.

Policy Changes

Condition M.

No changes in the agreements, conditions or state-

ments of this policy or of any subsequent agree-

ment, which may be made a part hereof, shall be

valid unless set forth in writing and signed by the

President, Vice-President or one of the Secretaries

of the Company ; nor shall notice to or knowledge of

any agent or other person in respect to these mat-

ters be notice to the Company, and no agent or other

person has any right or authority to waive this

provision.

Statements

Condition N.

The statements in items numbered 1 to 8 inclusive

in the Schedule of Statements are true, or, if esti-
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mates only, are believed to be true. This Policy is

issued upon such statements and in consideration of

the provisions of the Policy respecting its premium

together with the payment of the premium herein

expressed. [122]

Schedule of Statements:

Item 1. Name of Assured John M. Coverdale and

E. O. Johnson, copartnership, doing business under

the firm name of

Coverdale & Johnson

P. O. Address Aiiaconda, Montana

Records of the Assured 's books are kept at?

Anaconda, Montana

Individual, Co-Partnership, Corporation, or

Estate ? Co-partnership

If Individual or Co-Partnership, give full name

or names John M. Coverdale, E. O. Johnson

Item 2. The Policy Period (unless sooner termi-

nated by cancellation), shall be from October 1st,

1934, to October 1st, 1935, at twelve and one minute

o'clock A. M. standard time at the Assured 's

address.

Item 3. The Company's liability for an accident,

resulting in injuries to or in the death of one per-

son, is limited to Five Thousand Dollars ($5,000.00)

and, subject to the same limit for each person, the

Company's liability for an accident, resulting in

injuries to or in the death of two or more persons,

is limited to Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00).
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Item 4. A complete description of the work cov-

ered by this Policy, the locations of all places where

such work is to be done, the estimated remuneration

of all employees engaged in such work for the per-

iod of this Policy, the premium rate or rates and the

estimated premium are as follow^s:

See Endorsement Attached See Endorsement Attached

[123]

(b) Clerical Office Employees,

Draughtsmen No. 8810 Nil Nil

(c) Outside Salesmen, Collectors

and Messengers who do not

deliver merchandise No. 8742 Nil Nil

Deposit Premium

Minimum Premium for this Policy is $18.00.

Estimated Advance Premium $50.00

Item 5. No explosives are used, allowed or kept at

the place named in Statement 4, except those usual

to the work covered hereby No exceptions

Item 6. There is no operation of locomotives

and/or cars by means of locomotives, except as fol-

lows: No exceptions

Item 7. No similar insurance has been declined

or cancelled by any Company during the past three

years, except as herein stated No exceptions

Item 8. No part of the work is sub-contracted

directly or indirectly except as herein stated

No exceptions
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In Witness Whereof, The United States Fidelity

and Guaranty Company has caused this Policy to

be signed by its President and its Secretary, but

the same shall not be binding upon the Company
unless countersigned by a duly authorized repre-

sentative of the Company.

R. HOWARD BLAND
President

W. W. SYMINGTON
Secretary

Countersigned by

JOHN W. BOWMAN
Authorized Representative.

[124]
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Attached to and forming part of Policy No. PC-

19715 Issued by the United States Fidelity and

Guaranty Company, of Baltimore, Maryland,

To Coverdale & Johnson of Anaconda, Montana

Dated at Anaconda, Montana this 1st day of

October, 1934

Countersigned JOHN W. BOWMAN
Authorized Representative.

[125]

Property Damage Endorsement

No. 2

In consideration of the premium hereinafter pro-

vided, the policy to which this endorsement is at-

tached is hereby extended as follows:

1. To indemnify the Assured against loss by

reason of the liability imposed upon him by law

for damages as respects injury to or destruction of

property other than the property owned, leased,

occupied, or used by, or in the care, custody or con-

trol of the Assured or any of his employes, resulting

solely and directly from an accident due to the busi-

ness operations of the Assured described in Item 2

of this endorsement.

2. This endorsement shall be null and void unless

attached to tke Public Liability policy of the United

States Fidelity and Guaranty Company issued to

the Assured, and in force at the date of any accident

for which claim is made hereunder, the nmnber of
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which policy is given at the bottom of this endorse-

ment. This endorsement shall not apply to any of

the causes of accidents which are excluded in Con-

dition ''A" of the said policy in so far as such ex-

clusions are not inconsistent with the specific under-

takings of this endorsement. This endorsement

shall not apply to such injury or destruction if due

to (a) the ownership, care, maintenance, operation,

or use of any elevator or escalator or any aircraft,

or any automobile, draft animal, team or other ve-

hicle; (b) the explosion, collapse, or rupture of any

boiler or other receptacle under pressure, including

parts thereof; (c) the breaking, disrupting, or tear-

ing asunder of any engine, flywheel, or turbine
;
(d)

the breaking, burning out, or disrupting of any

electrical power imit; (e) due directly or indirectly

to fire; (f) the discharge, leakage or precipitation

of water or [126] steam from automatic sprinkler

systems, plumbing systems, tanks, steam or hot

water heating pipes or radiators, elevator tanks or

cylinders, stand pipes for fire hose; and rain or

snow admitted to the interior of buildings by de-

fective roofs, leaders or spouting, or through broken

or open windows or skylights, at or from premises

owned, leased or rented by the Assured; (g) the

collapse of or structural injury to any building or

structure adjacent to the insured premises due to

the removal of other buildings, structures or sup-

ports; or due to excavation below the natural sur-
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face of the ground, or to blasting therein or

thereon; (h) explosions of every character not here

before excluded.

3. Agreements 1, 2, 3, and 4 of said policy, in so

far as their provisions are not inconsistent with this

endorsement, are hereby made a part of the obliga-

tions of the Company as fully and completely as

though wholly written or printed herein, it being

understood that the injuries therein referred to

shall, for the purpose of this endorsement, be con-

strued as injury to or destruction of property as

hereinbefore described and defined.

4. All the terms, conditions, and requirements ex-

pressed in said policy of the United States Fidelity

and Guaranty Company, including those contained

in the Schedule of Statements forming part thereof,

so far as the same are not inconsistent with the ex-

pressed obligations of this endorsement, are hereby

made a part of this endorsement as fully and com-

pletely as though written or x)rinted herein; it

being further understood and agreed that this en-

dorsement covers only the operations at the loca-

tions specifically described in Item 2 of the Schedule

of Statements. [127] '

5. The estimated advance premium for this en-

dorsement is computed by applying such rates as

are stated in Item 2 of said schedule to the premium
basis stated in Item 4 of the Schedule of Statements

in said policy. Such premium basis and the result-
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ing premium are subject to adjustment as in said

policy provided.

6. This endorsement may be cancelled without

effect upon the policy to which it is attached in the

same manner in which said policy can be cancelled,

but cancellation of said policy shall operate as a

cancellation of this endorsement as of the same date

without notice. In the event of cancellation the re-

quirements of said policy respecting its Minimum
Premium shall apply to the Minimum Premium for

this endorsement.

7. The Company's limit of liability under this

endorsement on account of any one accident result-

ing in injury to or destruction of the property of

one or more persons, shall be the actual value of the

property injured or destroyed at the time of such

injury or destruction, together with the loss of use

thereof, but in no event in excess of the total sum of

One Thousand and 00/100—Dollars.

Schedule of Statements

Item 1. This endorsement is to become effective

October 1st, 1934, 12:01 Tclock A. M. Standard

Time. The period between the effective date of this

endorsement and the expiration of said policy is

herein called the endorsement period.

Item 2. The premium rates stated below are ap-

plied to the same premium basis as is used in said

policy for computing premium. Such premimn
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basis and the resulting premium for this endorse-

ment are subject to adjustment as in said policy

2)rovided. [128]

Classification Pretnium Preminm
of Operations Location Basis Rates

Concrete Con- See En-

struction etc 5213 dorsement If any .45

No. 1 for

Excavation etc...3460 Location If any .75

of Opera-

Iron or Steel tions

Erection

—

bridges 5067 If any .75

Pile Driving

—

N. O. C 6003 If any .20

Preminm

Deposit

Premium
$50.00

Quarterly

Premium
Adjust-

ment

Deposit Premium

Minimum Premium $15.00 Estimated Advance

Premium $50.00

Attached to and forming part of Policy No. PC-
19715 issued by the UNITED STATES FI-

DELITY AND GUARANTY COMPANY, of

Baltimore, Maryland,

To Coverdale & Johnson of Anaconda, Montana

Dated at Anaconda, Montana this 1st day of Octo-

ber, 1934.

E. ASBURY DAVIS
President

W. W. SYMINGTON
Secretary

Countersigned JOHN W. BOWMAN
An+li /~nr>i nr\A T> ri -KA T>/^ ct /^T-» 4-r>+iTT«
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United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company
Baltimore, Maryland

Contractors' Public Liability Endorsement

No. 3

In consideration of the premium for the Policy to

which this Endorsement is attached, it is hereby

understood and agreed as follows:

(A) This policy is extended to cover claims

against the Assured for accidental bodily injury

arising in connection with:

1. Self-propelled contractors' equipment and

appliances (except motorcycles, tractors, and

automobiles, whether with or without mounted

equipment or mach- [129] inery) with or with-

out towed equipment, while being moved imder

their own power between places covered by the

Policy where the Assured is carrying on his

operations

;

2. Road graders and road scrapers while

being drawn by draught animals between places

covered by the Policy where the Assured is

carrying on his operations.

(B) Exclusion (3) of Condition A of the Policy

is changed to read as follows:

"Caused directly or indirectly by any

draught or di'iving animal, any automobile.
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trailer, tractor, motorcycle or other vehicle (in-

cluding the loading and unloading thereof)

elsewhere than at the immediate places covered

by the Policy where the Assured is carrying on

his operations."

instead of as originally written.

(C) If the Assured is protected by other in-

surance against loss caused by the ownership, main-

tenance or use of any draught or driving animal,

any automobile, trailer, tractor, motorcycle or other

vehicle (including the loading and unloading there-

of), which is also covered under the Policy to

which this Endorsement is attached, then, with

respect to such loss,, this Policy shall operate only

as Excess Insurance over and above such other in-

surance, anything in Condition K of the Policy to

the contrary notwithstanding.

Subject otherwise to all the terms, limits and

conditions of the policy to which this endorsement

is attached.

This Endorsement is effective as of October 1st,

1934.

Attached to and forming part of Policy No. PC-
19715 issued by the United States Fidelity and

Guaranty Company, of Baltimore, [130] Maryland.
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To Coverdale & Johnson of Anaconda, Montana

Dated at Anaconda, Montana this 1st day of Octo-

ber, 1934

E. ASBURY DAVIS
President

W. W. SYMINGTON
Secretary

Countersigned JOHN W. BOWMAN
Authorized Representative

United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company

Baltimore, Maryland

Property Dauiage Limit Endorsement for

Contractors' and Manufacturers' Policies

No. 4

It is understood and agreed that Paragraph No.

7 of the Property Damage Endorsement is hereby

expunged and the following substituted in lieu

thereof

:

The Company's limit of liability under this

endorsement for injury to or destruction of the

property of one or more persons shall be the

actual value of the property injured or de-

stroyed at the time of such injury or destruc-

tion, together with the loss of use thereof, but

in no event in excess of the sum of $1,000.00 on

accoimt of any one accident and, subject to that

limit for each such accident, the Company's

total limit of liability for all accidents occur-
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ring during the policy term shall not exceed

$10,000.00, said total limit of liability shall be

successively reduced by the amount of each and

every claim paid by the Company.

Subject other^Yise to all the terms, limits and

conditions of the policy to vv^hich this endorsement

is attached.

This Endorsement is effective as of October 1st,

1934 [131]

Attached to and forming part of Policy No. PC-

19715 issued by the United States Fidelity and

Guaranty Company, of Baltimore, Maryland,

To Coverdale & Johnson of Anaconda, Montana

Dated at Anaconda, Montana this 1st day of Octo-

ber, 1934

E. ASBURY DAVIS
President

W. W. SYMINGTON
Secretary

Countersigned JOHN W. BOWMAN
Authorized Representative

No. 5

It is Understood and Agreed, That Item #3 of

the Schedule of Statements of the undermentioned

policy is amended to read as follows:

The Company's liability for an accident resulting

in injuries to or in the death of one person is
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limited to Ten Thousand Dollars ($10,000.00) and,

subject to the same limit for each person, the Com-

pany's liability for an accident resulting in injuries

to or in the death of two or more persons is limited

to Twenty Thousand Dollars ($20,000.00).

Subject otherwise to all the terms, limits and

conditions of the policy to which this endorsement

is attached.

This Endorsement is effective as of October 1st,

1934

Attached to and forming part of Policy No. PC-

19715 issued by the United States Fidelity and

Guaranty Company, of Baltimore, Maryland,

To Coverdale & Johnson of Anaconda, Montana

Dated at Anaconda, Montana this 1st day of Octo-

ber, 1934

E. ASBURY DAVIS
President

W. W. SYMINGTON
Secretary

Countersigned JOHN W. BOWMAN
Authorized Representative

[132]
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United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company

Baltimore, Md.

No. 6

Deposit Premium Endorsement

It Is Hereby Understood and Agreed, That sub-

ject in all other respects to the terms and condi-

tions of the imdermentioned policy, the Assured

shall pay a deposit premium of Fifty and 00/100

Dollars, ($50.00 P. L.) Fifty and 00/100 Dollars

($50.00 P. D.) in advance, and shall render, over

his signature, at the end of each Three months

period a statement of the wages actually expended

under said policy; and shall forthwith pay to the

Company the premium on such wages at the rates

named therein; the deposit premium to be applied

on the final premium adjustment under the policy.

Attached to and forming part of Policy No. PC-

19715 Issued by the United States Fidelity and

Guaranty Company, of Baltimore, Maryland,

To Coverdale & Johnson of Anaconda, Montana

Dated at Anaconda, Montana this 1st day of Oc-

tober, 1934

R. HOWLAND BLAND
President

W. W. SYMINGTON
Secretary

Countersigned JOHN W. BOWMAN
Authorized Representative
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United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company
Baltimore, Maryland

Endorsement No. 7

Upon ten days' advance notice by the Assured of

any operations as described under Code No. 5067

to be undertaken, giving the exact location and the

description of the work and estimate payroll and

duration of such work, this policy may be extended

to cover such specific work only by the issuance of

an endorse- [133] ment by the Company.

Nothing herein contained shall be held to vary,

alter, waive or change any of the terms and condi-

tions of this policy, other than as stated above.

Subject otherwise to all the terms, limits and

conditions of the policy to which this endorsement

is attached.

This Endorsement is effective as of October 1st,

1934.

Attached to and forming part of Policy No. PC-

19715 issued by the United States Fidelity and

Guaranty Company, of Baltimore, Maryland,

To Coverdale & Johnson of Anaconda, Montana

Dated at Anaconda, Montana this 1st day of Oc-

tober, 1934
E. ASBURY DAVIS

President

W. W. SYMINGTON
Secretary

Countersigned JOHN W. BOWMAN
Authorized Representative
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United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company
Baltimore, Maryland

Endorsement No. 8

In Consideration of the premium at which the

undermentioned policy is written, it is hereby un-

derstood and agreed that said policy is extended

to cover operations described under Code No. 5067

set forth in the schedule of operations attached to

the undermentioned policy as applicable to that

certain work designated as NRH-275 "A" Unit

#2, being two timber pile bridges on Augusta-

Choteau Road and NRH-176 "E" Unit #2, being

concrete and timber pile bridges on Augusts-Sun

River Road, Lewis and Clark County, Montana.

Subject otherwise to all the terms, limits and

conditions of the policy to which this endorsement

is attached. [134]

This Endorsement is effective as of October 1st,

1934.

Attached to and forming part of Policy No. PC-

19715 issued by the United States Fidelity and

Guaranty Company, of Baltimore, Maryland,

To Coverdale & Johnson of Anaconda, Montana

Dated at Anaconda, Montana this 1st day of Oc-

tober, 1934.

E. ASBURY DAVIS
President

W. W. SYMINGTON
Secretary

Countersigned JOHN W. BOWMAN
Authorized Representative
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Contractors Service Endorsement

Effective: 2-6-35

Expiration: 10-1-35 No. 9

It is Understood and Agreed that the policy to

which this endorsement is attached is issued to cover

specific work located at NRH-10'9 ^'A", Unit 5,

being construction concrete bridge on Witt Hill

section U. S. Highway No. 10, Stillwater County,

Montana.

For the benefit of the Assured and the Company,

it is further understood and agreed that when ad-

ditional work at other locations is undertaken the

Assured will advise the Company of the nature and

location of such work, as soon as reasonably pos-

sible, in order that the Company may make ar-

rangements for prompt inspection, claim and med-

ical attention necessary to serve the Assured in the

most advantageous and economical manner.

Nothing herein contained shall be held to vary,

alter, waive or change any of the terms, conditions

or limits of this policy other than as stated above.
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Attached to and forming part of Policy No.

PC-19715 issued by the United States Fidelity and

Guaranty Company, of Baltimore, [135] Maryland,

To Coverdale & Johnson of Anaconda, Montana

Dated at Helena, Montana this 6th day of Feb-

ruary, 1935.

E. ASBURY DAVIS
President

W. W. SYMINGTON
Secretary

Countersigned L. K. ALBRECHT
Authorized Representative

The Witness: After this accident I consulted

an attorney, you, Mr. Toole in Missoula. You were

my attorney at the time. You represented me at

the trial of those cases and during the period after

the accident and clear on through the Supreme

Court.

Cross Examination

By Mr. McCabe

:

The Witness: I stated that after the accident I

employed Toole & Boone to represent me as attor-

neys. The United States Fidelity and Guaranty

Company did not pay any part of the expense or

fees for defending the action. I have not paid my
'attorney's fees yet; I paid some but not all of them.
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They told me that they were absolutely out of it;

they would have nothing to do with it.

My attention being called to the policy introduced

here wherein it provides that the ''company w^ould

defend all actions and proceedings, defend in the

name and on behalf of the assured any suit brought

against the assured to enforce a claim, whether

groundless or not, for damages on account of bodily

injuries, including death, at any time resulting

therefrom accidentally suffered, or alleged to have

been suffered by any person or persons other than

employees of the assured," they absolutely said

that the policy did not cover that accident. [136]

Being asked if they refused to defend the action,

absolutely not, they said they were out of it. I did

pick that up—that item you read off there and they

said that the policy did not cover any accident from

the project to any point from the project, or from

any point to the project. Being asked if I notified

them of this accident and called their attention to

the policy, I said, "We are sued" and that was all

there was to it. They wouldn't take it over; they

refused to defend.

I do not know whether they paid part of the at-

torney's fees to Messrs. Toole & Boone in connec-

tion with that expense; not that I know of. Mr.

Toole gave me a good big bill for it. Mr. Toole

didn't tell me that the company had paid some part

of these expenses under the policy.

Witness Excused



vs. Ethel M. Doheny 165

Whereupon

HOWARD TOOLE
was called and sworn as a witness on behalf of the

defendant, and testified as follows

:

The Witness: My name is Howard Toole.

Mr. McCabe: I extend the same courtesy to you

that you so kindly extended to me. You may testify

in narrative form.

Witness (Continuing) : I am an attorney, ad-

mitted to the bar in Montana; residing in Mis-

soula, and a member of the firm of Toole & Boone.

John M. Coverdale prior to the accident had been

my client. Shortly after the filing of the complaints

which have been introduced in evidence, possibly

within three or four days thereafter, Mr. Cover-

dale came to Missoula and employed me to defend

him, or to defend the firm of Coverdale & Johnson

in those actions, which I agreed to do and under-

took to do. I did defend these actions. Some time

about the 16th of April in 1936, I had seen the

policy of insurance which has been introduced here,

and I knew that Mr. Coverdale had a contractor's

[137] public liability insurance policy. I read the

policy at about the time when the actions were

commenced, and then considerably later, I think it

must have been perhaps a year later, it was in

April, I think of 1936, I notified the United States

Fidelity and Guaranty Company of the pendency

of the actions. Called their attention to the de-

fense clause, and in conversation with Mr. Ros-
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siter, who is their attorney in charge of their claims

department in Montana, I discussed this matter of

the defense under that clause, which I think is the

first clause in the policy, and at Mr. Rossiter's

request I obtained from Mr. Coverdale an agree-

ment which is entitled ''Non-Waiver Agreement"

dated April 16, 1936, signed by Coverdale & John-

son, by John M. Coverdale, party of the first part,

and by W. A. Rossiter of the United States Fidelity

and Guaranty Company, as party of the second

part. I am able to identify Mr. Coverdale 's signa-

ture, and Mr. Rossiter's signature, and the agree-

ment has to do with the defense of these actions,

and I want first to offer that agreement in evi-'

dence.

Mr. McCabe: We have no objection to that.

Whereupon said agreement, defendant's exhibit

No. 28, was received in evidence, without objection,

and filed with the Clerk of the Court and said

exhibit is as follows:

DEFENDANT'S EXHIBIT 28

NON-WAIVER AGREEMENT
It is hereby mutually luiderstood and agreed by

and between Coverdale & Johnson, a partnership,

the party of the first part, and United States

Fidelity & Guaranty Company, the part of the sec-

ond part, that any action taken by the said party

of the second part in investigating an accident

which occurred on or about December 11th, 1934,

in or near the town of Sims, Montana, [138] result-
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ing in the death of Marguerite and Roberta Doheny,

in the defense and trial of the actions pending in

the District Court of Cascade County entitled

*' Ethel M. Doheny, as administratrix of the estate

of Marguerite Doheny, deceased, plaintiff, vs. John

M. Coverdale and E. O. Johnson, a co-partnership,

doing business mider the firm name and style of

Coverdale & Johnson, defendants," and "Ethel M.

Doheny, as administratrix of the estate of Roberta

Doheny, deceased, plaintiff, vs. John M. Coverdale

and E. O. Johnson, a co-partnership, doing busi-

ness under the firm name and style of Coverdale

& Johnson, defendants," arising out of said accident

shall not waive or invalidate any of the conditions

of the policy of the party of the second part held

by the party of the first part, and shall not waive

or invalidate any rights whatever of either of the

parties to this agreement.

The intent of this agreement is to preserve the

rights of the parties hereto and to provide for an

investigation of said accident and the trial and de-

fense of said actions above entitled, witliont regard

to the liability of the party of the second part.

Signed in duplicate this 16th day of April, 1936.

COVERDALE & JOHNSON,
By JOHN M. COVERDALE

Party of First Part

UNITED STATES FIDELITY
& GUARANTY COMPANY,

By W. A. ROSSITER
Party of Second Part. [139]
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Witness (Continuing) : Following- the execution

of the agreement, and the trial of the cases, I billed

Mr. Coverdale for expenses and services rendered,

and he didn't pay me all of them, Yt^A'i of it, lie paid,

I cannot remember how much, and I also billed the

United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company for

a part of the services rendered, which was paid.

They did not pay the full amoimt of the bill.

Cross Examination

By Mr. McCabe:

The Witness: Prior to December, 1934, I have

represented the United States Fidelity and Guar-

anty Company in specific cases. Wlien this action

came to my attention I did not immediately com-

municate the facts concerning the actions to the

United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company.

Sometime afterwards I did—at about in April, it

must have been considerably over a year after the

accident happened, before any communication with

the United States Fidelity and Guaranty occurred,

as far as I know. It was prior to the trial of the

actions in State Court.

I stated that after this bill to Mr. Coverdale for

services that the United States Fidelity and Guar-

anty did not pay the full amount of the bill; they

paid part only.

Witness Excused
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Whereupon

JOHN M. COVERDALE

was recalled as a witness on behalf of the defendant,

and testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Toole

:

The Witness: Being asked if Mr. McCabe ever

asked me for this policy—not that I know of. Mr.

McCabe did not ask me for a copy of this policy at

the time of the trial of these actions [140] as I

never talked to Mr. McCabe—the only words we

exchanged, that I know of, were on the witness

stand.

Cross Examination

By Mr. McCabe

:

The Witness: 1 do not remember that you went

over and spoke to me or that we had a conversation

at the side of the table on this side of the jury box

after the cases were closed and the jury had gone

out to consider of their verdict. I do not remember

that w^e had a conversation at that time—only the

questions that you asked me on the witness stand,

because I was pretty sore at you. Every time I

made a move you pointed your finger at me. I was

pretty sore at you. I don't believe I would carry

on a conversation with you at that time. I would

say we had no conversation at that time.

Witness Excused
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Whereupon

W. A. ROSSITER,

a witness called and sworn on behalf of the de-

fendant, testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Toole:

The Witness: I am Claims Attorney for the

United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company for

the State of Montana. I have been in the employ

of the company for twelve years and have been

engaged as Claims Attorney for that company for

twelve years. I am familiar with the practice of

that company since October, 1934, as to the method

of ^vriting a contractor's public liability insurance

and the records that are kept. The document, plain-

tiff's exhibit 26, referred to as a daily report and

as having been sent to McC^abe from Baltimore, is

a photostatic copy of regular form daily report.

[141]

When policies are made up, they have the original

policy and in it are duplications which are the com-

pany records of it and that is what is known as a

daily report; it is inside the original policy as the

policy is typed up, the duplications from the type-

writer go through to the daily report—one is for

our records, the branch office, and one is for record

in the home office, and the original policy goes to

the person to whom the insurance is furnished and

the company has nothing left in their records but a
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daily report. The company never has an exact

duplicate of the original policy.

Being handed the daily report, exhibit 26, and

the policy, exhibit 27, I will say that I have not

compared them closely but I have glanced through

them. Without checking each endorsement on there

specifically I would say positively that the daily re-

port is a duplicate copy of the policy provisions and

the endorsements are added separately to it and it

would have to be checked to see whether one would

be missing or be lost. The daily report is a dupli-

cate made right at the time of the original policy.

Mr. McCabe: No cross examination.

Witness Excused

Whereupon

W. T. BOONE,

a witness called and sworn on behalf of the de-

fendant, testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Toole

:

The Witness: My name is W. T. Boone. I am
an attorney, admitted to the bar in Montana, prac-

ticing in Missoula as a member of the firm of Toole

& Boone. I have, on two occasions, been over the

road from Great Falls to Augusta at the point

where these bridges were built under the Coverdale
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& Johnson contract. [142] The first occasion was

during the year 1935 while I was investigating the

accident which was the subject matter of the two

actions in the state court. On that particular trip

I drove from Great Palls to Simms on to Augusta,

but I did not drive on the road leading from Au-

gusta on tow^ards Choteau. I did not know on that

first trip v/here those bridges were located. I learned

this morning where the bridges were located. I was

with Mr. Coverdale.

The road from Great Falls to Augusta and the

site of the bridges in 1934, at the time of the acci-

dent, was an oiled highway from Great Falls to

Vaughn; from Vaughn on to Simms the

road was a gravelled highway which had

been surfaced. That condition of the road

continued for a ways past Simms, but a

part of the road between Simms and Augusta was

under construction, and was a gravelled road, and

had not yet been surfaced. The highway from Great

Falls to Augusta is a main traveled highway and

has a United States designation number and it was

such at the time of this accident.

I have checked to see how close the closest bridge

constructed by Coverdale & Johnson was and is to

the town of Simms where the accident occurred.

This morning when we drove to just this side of

Augusta, I checked my speedometer reading at the

point where the accident occurred and then I

checked it at the first bridge that was designated to

me by Mr. Coverdale. The distance was 12.3 miles.
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Mr. Coverdale designated this morning to me the

only bridge under that contract which had not been

completed at the time of the accident. That was a

concrete bridge, the only concrete bridge, in what

is known as the Augusta-Smi River contract which

has been introduced here in evidence. That bridge

was 21.4 [143] miles from the point where the acci-

dent occurred.

The two bridges on the Choteau road come under

a different contract which Coverdale & Johnson had

with the State of Montana. The first of those two

bridges is a small stock pass bridge which is located

26.6 miles from Simms—the point where the acci-

dent occurred. The second bridge was a large

bridge across a large canal which was located 1.8

miles farther than' the first of the two bridges, and

28.4 miles from the point where the accident oc-

curred.

Mr. McCabe: No cross examination.

Witness Excused

Whereupon

JOHN M. COVERDALE,

a witness recalled on behalf of the defendant, testi-

fied as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Toole

:

The Witness: At the time when the accident

occurred at Simms, Coverdale & Johnson was work-
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ing on the bridge over the canal on the Augusta-

Choteau road. The concrete bridge was unfinished

but we were not w^orking on it at that time.

Mr. McCabe: No cross examination.

Witness Excused

Mr. Toole: The defendant rests.

Rebuttal

Whereupon

ETHEL M. DOHENY,

a witness recalled in rebuttal, testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. McCabe

:

The Witness: I am the same Ethel M. Doheny

who has heretofore testified in this proceeding. I

was present at the trial [144] of the two cases in

the state court concerning which evidence has been

introduced in this case. After the jury went out in

those cases I saw you go up and speak with Mr.

Coverdale. The gentleman you refer to here in the

court room is the one I saw you talking to. I didn't

hear the conversation but I knew you were con-

versing together at the time.

Mr. Toole: No cross examination.

Witness Excused



vs. Ethel M. Boheny 175

Whereupon

HARRY DOHENY,

a witness recalled in rebuttal, testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. McCabe

:

The Witness : I am the same Harry Doheny who

has heretofore testified in this case. I was present

at the trial of the cases of Ethel M. Doheny, ad-

ministratrix, versus the co-partnership of Coverdale

& Johnson in the District Court of Cascade Coimty,

Montana, concerning which evidence has been intro-

duced in this case. I was in the court room at the

time the jury had retired to consider of their verdict

in that case. At that time I saw you approach Mr.

John M. Coverdale, the gentleman sitting here. I

knew you were speaking to him, but of what nature

I did not know. I could tell you were speaking to

him and he was speaking to you.

Mr. Toole: No cross examination.

Witness Excused

Mr. McCabe: Plaintiff rests.

Mr. Toole: No sur-rebuttal. [145]

Whereupon the Court annoimced that after the

testimony was written up, the plaintiff would have

30 days after receipt of copy of the testimony in

which to file a brief ; the defendant to have 30 days

thereafter in which to file a brief in answer thereto

;

and the plaintiff to have 15 days thereafter in which

to file a reply brief.

[Endorsed]: Filed Oct. 10, 1940. [146]
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Thereafter, on August 29, 1940,

OPINION OF THE COURT

was duly filed herein, being in the words and figures

following, towit: [147]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

The above entitled causes, numbered 69 and 70,

were heard together, as the facts are identical and

the law applicable thereto the same. The pleadings

are alike in both cases.

Judgments were obtained in both causes against

the contractors in question, Coverdale and John-

son, co-partners, in the state court, and after affir-

mation thereof on appeal, executions were issued

thereon and subsequently returned to the effect that

no property could be found in either case; there-

after this suit was commenced against the above

named defendant.

A surety bond was furnished the contractors by

defendant in support of a written contract of

Coverdale and Johnson with the State of Montana

for the performance of work and the furnishing of

materials in improving the Augusta-Sun River

highway for the sum of $15,615.66; the contract

required the co-partners to furnish a surety bond

in that amount on a form provided by the State

Highway Commission. In the bond furnished the

co-partners were named as principal and the de-

fendant corporation as surety, and it was provided

therein, among other things, that the principal

would "in all respects faithfully perform all of the
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provisions of said contract, and his, their, or its

obligations thereunder including the specifications

therein referred to and made a part thereof". There

was incorporated in the agreement the following

requirement: ''The contractor shall carry public

liability insurance to indemnify the public for in-

juries or damages [148] sustained by reason of the

carrying on the work. This insurance shall be in

the amount of at least $10,000.00 for one person

and a total of $20,000.00 for one accident. The con-

tractor shall submit adequate evidence to the Com-

mission that he has taken out this insurance."

Thereafter the defendant notified the Montana

Highway Commission by letter that it had executed

a bond covering the assured contractors and had

issued Public Liability policy of $10,000.00 and

$20,000.00. This letter seems to have been written

following a letter from the Highway Commission

to the co-partners calling attention to the public

liability insurance requirement of the agreement,

and requested a letter from the insurance agent

who furnished the policy as the preferable form

of evidence of compliance to be submitted to the

Highway Commission. The evidence shows that

neither the public liability insurance policy nor a

copy thereof was ever submitted to the Highway
Commission. The agreement in question contains

requirements providing that the "agreement" the

"Contract Bond" and "any and all supplemental

agreements made or to be made are hereby made
a part of these specifications and contract and are
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to be considered one instrument." The contractors,

Coverdale and Johnson, commenced work under

their agreement on or about September 25th, 1934

and continued until about February 1st, 1935. On

December 10th, 1934, E. O. Johnson, one of the co-

partners, and one George Bardon, an employee,

drove an automobile to Great Falls, accompanied

by the two girls. Marguerite and Roberta Doheny,

named in the title, whom they had invited to ride

with them. The purpose of the trip to Great Falls

was to deliver a two dnun hoist which they had

been using in performance of the contract and were

returning according to their agreement. After de-

livering the hoist the four persons above named

returned in the automobile towards Augusta, the

home of the girls and the site where the work under

the said contract was being performed. When they

arrived near Simms, Montana, Bardon, who was

driving for Johnson, turned off the highway and

crashed into a tree, in what was alleged to be, a

grossly negligent and reckless manner, and as a

direct result thereof the two girls received severe

injuries from which they later died.

Two actions were commenced in the District Court

of Cascade County against the co-partnership. Co-

partner Coverdale appeared and defended [149]

the actions, claiming in defense that the girls' in-

juries and death were not the result of negligence

in the performance or an act within the scope of

the business of the co-partnership. The two cases

were consolidated for trial and a verdict and judg-



vs. Ethel M. Bolieny 179

ment rendered in favor of the administratrix of the

estates of the deceased, in each case, for the sum

of $5116.89, and upon appeal both judgments were

affirmed; the same administratrix is the plaintiff

in the instant cases. Executions on the two judg-

ments were thereafter issued and returned by the

Sheriff unsatisfied, and no part of the judgments,

or either of them, has ever been paid. Thereafter

the administratrix herein made written demands

upon defendant, United States Fidelity and Guar-

anty Company, for payment of the judgments but

no payment has ever been made.

In its answer defendant alleged that it had writ-

ten a public liability insurance policy but that the

policy contained an exclusion under which the driv-

ing or using of any vehicle or automobile was ex-

cepted from the coverage provided in said policy.

As it appears to the court there can be no ques-

tion that the injuries and death of the two girls

occurred in the manner set forth in the complaints

and in the course of the carrying on of the work
by the co-partners, Coverdale and Johnson, under

their agreement with the State Highway Commis-
sion. The co-partnership was engaged in perform-

ing work under the agreement when the girls were

injured. Much has been said about the alleged at-

tempt on the part of defendant to conceal the facts

relating to the public liability insurance policy in

suit, and in fact the policy itself. Exactly what rea-

son might have actuated the insurer or its repre-

sentative in not making known the terms of the
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policy to the State Highway Commission or the

parties to the suit is not fully disclosed. Plaintiffs

complain that the original policy was not produced

until the trial of the present cases, and that until

then they were without definite knowledge of its

terms, and because of insurer's attitude in refusing

information concerning its terms, they charge the

insurer with the exercise of bad faith. In substance

the insurer contends that the liability of the de-

fendant company must be determined from the lan-

guage of the policy without consideration of the

agreement and bond pursuant to which the policy

[150] was w^ritten and premium paid therefor.

Plaintiffs contend that in signing the bond and is-

sumg the policy pursuant to the terms of the agree-

ment the defendant agreed to such terms and is

bomid thereby, and was acting with full knowledge

w^ith no waiver of requirements on the part of the

Highway Commission, as is apparent from the let-

ter written Coverdale and Johnson by the Highway

Commission requiring them to furnish a policy ac-

cording to the terms of the agreement, and there-

after the defendant by letter notified the Highway

Commission it had issued the public liability policy.

Although the policy, or a copy thereof, was never

submitted to the Highway Commission, the letter

from defendant to the Commission was evidently

accepted as a statement that the policy conformed

to the requirements of the agreement, as the co-

partners were thereafter allowed to proceed with
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their work under their agreement with the Com-

mission.

Plaintiffs rely, among other things, upon the

rule that where several instruments are made at the

same time in relation to the same subject matter

they may be read together as one instrument and

the recitals in the one may be limited by reference

to the other. This rule may obtain even when the

parties are not the same if the several instruments

were known to all parties and were delivered at

the same time to accomplish an agreed purpose.

Here the parties, the State Highway Commission,

the copartners and the defendant, were all inter-

ested in and familiar with the agreement and spe-

cifications and well knew the part to be performed

by each to fulfill the specific requirements; one

could not partially perform his part and expect to

escape responsibility for his failure. There was

nothing new or novel about this undertaking, the

obligations were known and understood by all the

parties and rested upon what appears to have been

adequate consideration.

Defendant's counsel have presented able and ex-

haustive briefs covering the various phases of the

case but none of the authorities examined by the

court rest upon the same state of facts as are found

here, and such differences seem to be material and

to distinguish this case from the others relied upon.

The exclusion provisions relied upon by defend-

ant to defeat recovery herein are so antagonistic to

the requirements of the agreement, [151] and the
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intent and purpose of its terms, as to render them

wholly inoperative in the present cases, in the

opinion of the court. The defendant as an insurer

assumed the burden of protecting members of the

public from injury and was paid its premium there-

for, and having accepted the benefit should also ac-

cept the burden. (Sec. 8750 R. C. M.)

As a precaution and additional security for the

protection of members of the public from injury in

such a situation as appears to have arisen by reason

of the failure of the defendant to do what the letter

to the Highway Commission would indicate that it

had done, this very comprehensive provision, here-

tofore referred to, was inserted in the agreement in

question: "All things contained herein together

w4th 'advertisement for proposals' or 'notice to

contractors' and the contract bond as well as any

papers attached to or bound with any of the above,

also any and all supplemental agreements made or

to be made, are hereby made a part of these specifi-

cations and contract and are to be considered one

instrument.
'

'

It seems highly probable that the language: "any

and all supplemental agreements made or to be

made" would include a contract of public liability

insurance such as is involved in this controversy,

and make it one with the agreement which con-

tained these comprehensive terms, and especially

when the defendant and insurer had full knowledge

and was in the business of writing such bonds and

contracts of insurance, and knew what was expected
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and required under the plain and specific language

of the agreement, and was paid its price for doing

so, and not for inserting exclusion provisions whicli

would render the policy inoperative as to injuries

most likely to occur.

It is also contended that the plaintiffs can not

recover because the accident occurred some ten or

twelve miles from a bridge under construction by

the copartners; it appeared in evidence in the state

court that the transactions under the contract were

extended, or scattered, as the witness Bernstein said,

over a distance of ten miles towards Great Falls and

five miles towards Augusta. As to this particular

question both the state District Court and the Su-

preme Court apparently found no objection.

Many authorities have been cited to sustain coun-

sel in their [152] respective contentions ; some of

the following cases appear to have been relied ui)on

by both sides: Peterson v. Miller Rubber Co., 24

F. (2) 59, 8th C. C. A. ; Union Bank & Trust Co. v.

Himmelbauer, 57 Mont. 438, 188 Pac. 940; Dodd v.

Vucovich, 38 Mont. 188, 99 Pac. 296 ; Gary Hay &
Grain Co., Inc. v. Carlson, 79 Mont. Ill, 255 Pac.

722; 36 C. J., P. 1062, Sec. 14; Park Saddle Horse

Co. V. Royal Indem. Co., 81 Mont. 99, 261 Pac. 880

;

Johnson v. Rocky Mountain Fire Insurance Co., 70

Mont. 411; National Surety Co. v. Ulmen, 68 Fed.

(2) 330—the contract here contained no provision

requiring the contractor to pay members of the

public for injuries, in the present case the opposite

is true; Whittaker v. U. S. Fidelity and Guaranty
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Co., 300 Fed. 129; Sees. 7529, 7531, 7533, 7538, 7545,

10521, R. C. M.

The principles of law found in the authorities and

statutory provisions cited seem to favor the plain-

tiffs. Under the construction given the policy, read-

ing it as one with the agreement and bond, together

with the evidence, reformation seems unnecessary,

since it would mean the same in either event.

Not all of the specific arguments advanced in the

voluminous briefs of counsel for the respective par-

ties have been discussed here since it w^ould result

in an unnecessary extension of this opinion and

apparently without a corresponding benefit either

way, but the court has endeavored carefully to con-

sider and weigh the many different angles of ap-

proach by counsel in their efforts to reach a favor-

able solution of the problems presented as affecting

their respective interests. Bearing in mind the facts

which appear to have been established, as plaintiffs

contend, by a preponderance of the evidence, and

the principles of law that ought to control, the

court feels justified in the conviction that the plain-

tiffs ought to prevail in both of these cases, and that

judgments should be entered accordingly, and it is

so ordered, with costs.

Findings of ultimate facts and conclusions of law

may be submitted in accordance with these views.

CHARLES N. PRAY
Judffe

[Endorsed] : Filed Aug. 29, 1940. [153]

^B'
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Thereafter, on September 6, 1940, Findings of

Fact and Conclusions of Law were filed in each of

said causes, and are in the words and figures follow-

ing, to-wit: [154]

[Title of District Court and Cause.—No. 69.]

FINDINGS OF FACT AND
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

The above entitled cause having duly come on for

trial on the 26th day of December, 1940, before the

Court, Honorable Charles N. Pray, Judge presiding

without a jury, the plaintiff appearing in person

and by her counsel E. J. McCabe, and the defendant

appearing by its counsel, Messrs. Toole and Boone,

and oral and documentary evidence having been

offered and admitted on behalf of the plaintiff and

defendant, and the cause having been submitted to

the Court for decision, and the Court having duly

considered of the law and the evidence, finds as

follows

:

FINDINGS OF FACT

I.

That at all times hereinafter mentioned the de-

fendant. United States Fidelity and Guaranty Com-

pany, was and still is a corporation created, organ-

ized and existing under and by virtue of the laws

of the State of Maryland and authorized to do and

doing business within the State of Montana.
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II.

On or about the 8th day of April, 1935, plaintiff

was, by an order of the District Court of the First

Judicial District of the State of Montana, in and

for the County of Lewis and Clark, appointed Ad-

ministratrix of the Estate of Roberta Doheny, De-

ceased, by an order of said court, duly given, made
and entered on said date in [155] the matter of the

Estate of Roberta Doheny, Deceased, and there-

after letters of administration on the Estate of

Roberta Doheny, deceased, were duly issued to

plaintiff under the seal of said court and the hand

of the Clerk of said court and that at all times since

plaintiff has been and still is the duly appointed,

qualified and acting administratrix of the Estate of

Roberta Doheny, Deceased.

III.

On or about the 20th day of September, 1934,

John M. Coverdale and E. O. Johnson, as co-part-

ners, doing business under the firm name of Cover-

dale & Johnson, made and entered into a certain

written agreement with the State of Montana for

the performance by said co-partners of certain work

and furnishing certain materials constituting im-

provements on a public highway known as the

''Augusta-Sun River Road" in Lewis and Clark

County, Montana, wherein and whereby the said co-

partners promised and agreed to perform the work

and furnish the materials in accordance with the

terms of said contract in consideration of the pay-
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ment to said co-partners by the State of Montana

of the sum of approximately Fifteen Thousand, Six

Hundred Fifteen and Sixty-six Hundredths Dollars

($15,615.66) in accordance with the terms of said

agreement. That under the terms of said agreement

the said co-partners promised and agreed to furnish

a good and sufficient surety bond in the amount of

$15,615.66 to be conditioned for the faithful per-

formance of the covenants and agreements set forth

in said agreement and to be by said co-partners per-

formed and thereafter pursuant thereto the said co-

partners, as Principal, and said United States Fi-

delity and Guaranty Company, as Surety, made,

entered into and delivered to the State of Montana

a certain written agreement designated "Contract

Bond" which said agreement was conditioned for

the faithful performance in all respects of the i)ro-

visions of said contract by the said co-partners and

recited the sum of $15,615.66 as the penalty thereof.

[156]

IV.

That under the terms and provisions of Para-

graph 7.11 of section 7 of said written agreement

between the aforesaid co-partners and the State of

Montana for the performance of w^ork and furnish-

ing of materials described therein, the said co-part-

ners promised and agreed to carry public liability

insurance to indemnify the public for injuries or

damages sustained by reason of the carrying on the

work in the amount of at least $10,000.00 for one

person and a total of $20,000.00 for one accident and
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promised to submit adequate evidence to the State

Highway Commission of the State of Montana of

taking out such public liability insurance and there-

after as evidence of taking out of said public lia-

bility insurance the defendant United States Fidel-

ity and Guaranty Company notified the Montana
Highway Commission in writing on or about Octo-

ber 1st, 1934, that said defendant corporation had

issued contractors' public liability insurance policy

for said co-partners under said contract with a lia-

bility of $10,000.00 for one person and $20,000.00

for one accident. That plaintiff, prior to the com-

mencement of the above entitled cause, demanded

the original or a copy of said public liability insur-

ance policy from the said co-partners and from the

defendant. United States Fidelity and Guaranty

Company, and said co-partners and said defendant

failed to furnish either the said policy or a true

copy thereof to plaintiff.

V.

That on the 12th day of December, 1934, and

while carrying on the work mentioned and described

in the aforesaid written agreement between the said

co-partners and the State of Montana the aforesaid

co-partners operated a certain automobile in such a

grossly negligent and reckless manner as to injure

and kill one Roberta Doheny and that at the time

the said Roberta Doheny was a member of the pub-

lic and said automobile was then and there being

used in carrying on the work under aforesaid
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agreement and that thereafter in [157] an action

instituted in the District Court of the Eighth Ju-

dicial District of the State of Montana in and for

the County of Cascade by the above named plaintiff

and against the aforesaid co-partners to recover for

the injuries and damages sustained by said Roberta

Doheny and her resulting death as the proximate

result of the reckless and grossly negligent opera-

tion of said automobile as aforesaid, a judgment in

the sum of $5,116.89 was duly given, made and

entered by said Court in favor of the said plaintiff

and against the said co-partners on the 4th day of

May, 1936, and that neither said judgment nor any

part thereof has been paid by said co-partners or

by the defendant, United States Fidelity and Guar-

anty Company, although demand of payment

thereof has heretofore and prior to commencement

of the above entitled action been made by plaintiff,

upon said co-partners and said defendant.

VI.

That subsequent to the entry of aforesaid judg-

ment the said co-partners appealed to the Supreme

Court of the State of Montana from said judgment

and thereafter on the 20th day of May, 1937, the

judgment of the afoi^esaid District Court was af-

firmed and sustained by the Supreme Court of the

State of Montana and remittitur on said judgment

was issued by the Supreme Court to the aforesaid

District Court and thereafter filed in said District

Court on the 5th day of June, 1937. That neither

said judgment nor any part thereof nor the interest
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thereon has been paid and that plaintiff still is the

owner and holder of said judgment.

VII.

That thereafter or on about the 17th day of Au-
gust, 1937, an execution on said judgment was issued

and placed in the hands of the Sheriff of Deer

Lodge County, State of Montana, the place of resi-

dence and principal place of business of the afore-

said co-partners, requiring the Sheriff to satisfy

aforesaid judgment out of the property of said co-

partners and that said execution was returned to

the District Court of Cascade County, on or about

the [158] 10th day of September, 1937, unsatisfied

and bearing the certificate of the Sheriff that he re-

turned said execution wholly unsatisfied because no

personal or real property of said co-partners could

be found.

VIII.

The defendant United States Fidelity and Guar-

anty Company executed and delivered to the said

co-partners a written public liability insurance

policy bearing date October 1, 1934, and which was

introduced in evidence by the defendant corporation

and received in evidence as defendant's Exhibit 27

and which policy was written and issued by defend-

ant as a purported compliance with the require-

ments of the written agreement with the State

Highway Commission of Montana. The policy of

insurance so written and delivered contains ex-

clusion provisions which are antagonistic and con-
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trary to the requirements of the aforesaid agree-

ment with the State Highway Commission of the

State of Montana, and such exckision provisions

were and are inoperative to defeat recovery in this

action.

IX.

The defendant, United States Fidelity and Guar-

anty Company retained attorneys and paid in part

the said attorneys for their services in conducting

the defense by the co-partners of the action insti-

tuted in the District Court aforesaid, under a "non-

waiver" agreement in writing and which is in evi-

\ience in this action.

X.

On or about May 13th, 1938, the said plaintiif de-

manded payment of the aforesaid judgment from

the defendant, a true and correct copy of which

written demand so made upon the said defendant is

annexed to plaintiff's complaint on file in this action

marked "Exhibit A".

XI.

That neither the insurance policy heretofore re-

ferred to nor a copy thereof was ever submitted or

exhibited to the State of [159] Montana or the

Highway Commission -of Montana, and no informa-

tion concerning its provisions was ever given to said

State of Montana or said Highway Commission of

said State except the notice referred to in above

finding of fact IV.
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Upon the foregoing findings of fact the Court

makes the following

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW:

I.

That the plaintiff Ethel M. Doheny, as adminis-

tratrix of the estate of Roberta Doheny, deceased,

is entitled to the judgment of the above entitled

Court in the above entitled action in her favor and

against the defendant United States Fidelity and

Guaranty Company in the sum of Five Thousand

One Hundred Sixteen Dollars and Eighty-nine

Cents ($5,116.89), together with interest on said

sum from May 4, 1936 until paid at the rate of six

per centum (6%) per annum, and plaintiff's costs

incurred in said action.

CHARLES N. PRAY
Judge.

[Endorsed] : Filed Sept. 6, 1940. [160]

[Title of District Court and Cause—No. 70.]

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF
LAW.

The above entitled cause having duly come on for

trial on the 26th day of December, 1940, before the

Court, Honorable Charles N. Pray, Judge presiding

without a jury, the plaintiff appearing in person

and by her counsel E. J. McCabe, and the defendant

appearing by its counsel, Messrs. Toole and Boone,
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and oral and documentary evidence having been

offered and admitted on behalf of the plaintiff and

defendant, and the cause having been submitted to

the Court for decision, and the Court having duly

considered of the law and the evidence, finds as

follows

:

FINDINGS OF FACT

:

I.

That at all times hereinafter mentioned the de-

fendant. United States Fidelity and Guaranty Com-

pany, was and still is a corporation created, or-

ganized and existing under and by virtue of the

laws of the State of Maryland and authorized to do

and doing business within the State of Montana.

II.

On or about the 8th day of April, 1935, plaintiff

was, by an order of the District Court of the First

Judicial District of the State of Montana, in and

for the County of Lewis and Clark, appointed Ad-

ministratrix of the Estate of Marguerite Doheny,

Deceased, by an order of said Court, duly given,

made and entered on said date in [161] the matter

of the Estate of Marguerite Doheny, Deceased, and

thereafter letters of administration on the Estate

of Marguerite Doheny, Deceased, were duly issued

to plaintiff under the seal of said Court and the

hand of the Clerk of said Court and that at all

times since plaintiff has been and still is the duly

appointed, qualified and acting administratrix of

the Estate of Marguerite Doheny, Deceased.
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III.

On or about the 20th day of September, 1934,

John M. Coverdale and E. O. Johnson, as co-part-

ners, doing business under the firm name of Cover-

dale & Johnson, made and entered into a certain

written agreement with the State of Montana for

the performance by said co-partners of certain

work and furnishing certain materials constituting

improvements on a public highway known as the

''Augusta-Sun River Road" in Lewis and Clark

County, Montana, wherein and whereby the said

co-partners promised and agreed to perform the

work and furnish the materials in accordance with

the terms of said contract in consideration of the

payment to said co-partners by the State of Mon-

tana of the sum of approximately Fifteen Thou-

sand, Six Hundred Fifteen and Sixty-six Hun-

dredths Dollars ($15,615.66) in accordance with the

terms of said agreement. That under the terms of

said agreement the said co-partners promised and

agreed to furnish a good and sufficient surety bond

in the amount of $15,615.66 to be conditioned for

the faithful performance of the covenants and

agreements set forth in said agreement and to be by

said co-partners performed and thereafter pursuant

thereto the said co-partners, as Principal, and said

United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company, as

Surety, made, entered into and delivered to the

State of Montana a certain written agreement des-

ignated "Contract Bond" which said agreement was

conditioned for the faithful performance in all re-
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spects of the provisions of said contract by the said

co-partners and recited the sum of $15,615.66 as the

penalty thereof. [162]

IV.

That under the terms and provisions of Para-

graph 7.11 of section 7 of said written agreement

between the aforesaid co-partners and the State of

Montana for the performance of work and furnish-

ing of materials described therein, the said co-part-

ners promised and agreed to carry public liability

insurance to indemnify the public for injuries or

damages sustained by reason of the carrying on the

work in the amount of at least $10,000.00 for one

person and a total of $20,000.00 for one accident and

promised to submit adequate evidence to the State

Highway Commission of the State of Montana of

taking out such public liability insurance and there-

after as evidence of taking out of said public lia-

bility insurance the defendant United States Fidel-

ity and Guaranty Company notified the Montana

Highway Commission in writing on or about Octo-

ber 1st, 1934, that said defendant corporation had

issued contractors' public liability insurance policy

for said co-partners under said contract with a lia-

bility of $10,000.00 for one person and $20,000.00

for one accident. That plaintiff, prior to the com-

mencement of the above entitled cause, demanded

the original or a copy of said public liability insur-

ance policy from the said co-partners and from the

defendant. United States Fidelity and Guaranty
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Company, and said co-partners and said defendant

failed to furnish either the said policy or a true

copy thereof to plaintiff.

V.

That on the 12th day of December, 1934, and

while carrying on the work mentioned and described

in the aforesaid written agreement between the said

co-partners and the State of Montana the aforesaid

co-partners operated a certain automobile in such a

grossly negligent and reckless manner as to injure

and kill one Marguerite Doheny and that at the

time the said Marguerite Doheny was a member of

the public and said automobile was then and there

being used in carrying on the work under aforesaid

agreement and that thereafter in [163] an action

instituted in the District Court of the Eighth Ju-

dicial District of the State of Montana in and for

the County of Cascade by the above named plaintiff

and against the aforesaid co-partners to recover for

the injuries and damages sustained by said Mar-

guerite Doheny and her resulting death as the

proximate result of the reckless and grossly negli-

gent operation of said automobile as aforesaid, a

judgment in the sum of $5,116.89 was duly given,

made and entered by said Court in favor of the said

plaintiff and against the said co-partners on the 4th

day of May, 1936, and that neither said judgment

nor any part thereof has been paid by said co-

partners or by the defendant. United States Fidel-

ity and Guaranty Company, although demand of
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payment thereof has heretofore and prior to com-

mencement of the above entitled action been made

by plaintiff, upon said co-partners and said de-

fendant.

VI.

That subsequent to the entry of aforesaid judg-

ment the said co-partners appealed to the Supreme

Court of the State of Montana from said judgment

and thereafter on the 20th day of May, 1937, the

judgment of the aforesaid District Court was af-

firmed and sustained by the Supreme Court of the

State of Montana and remittitur on said judgment

was issued by the Supreme Court to the aforesaid

District Court and thereafter filed in said District

Court on the 5th day of June, 1937. That neither

said judgment nor any part thereof nor the interest

thereon has been paid and that plaintiff still is the

owner and holder of said judgment.

VII.

That thereafter on or about the 17th day of Au-

gust, 1937, an execution on said judgment was is-

sued and placed in the hands of the Sheriff of Deer

Lodge County, State of Montana, the place of resi-

dence and principal place of business of the afore-

said co-partners, requiring the Sheriff to satisfy

aforesaid judgment out of the property of said

co-partners and that said execution was returned

to the District Court of Cascade County, on or

about the [164] 10th day of September, 1937, un-

satisfied and bearing the certificate of the Sheriff
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that he returned said execution wholly unsatisfied

because no personal or real property of said co-

partners could be found.

VIII.

The defendant United States Fidelity and Guar-

anty Company executed and delivered to the said

co-partners a written public liability insurance

policy bearing date October 1, 1934^ and which was

introduced in evidence by the defendant corpora-

tion and received in evidence as defendant's Ex-

hibit 27 and which policy was written and issued by

defendant as a purported compliance with the re-

quirements of the written agreement with the State

Highway Commission of Montana. The policy of

insurance so written and delivered contains ex-

clusion provisions which are antagonistic and con-

trary to the requirements of the aforesaid agree-

ment with the State Highway Commission of the

State of Montana, and such exclusion provisions

were and are inoperative to defeat recovery in this

action.

IX.

The defendant, United States Fidelity and Guar-

anty Company, retained attorneys and paid in part

the said attorneys for their services in conducting

the defense by the co-partners of the action insti-

tuted in the District Court aforesaid, under a ''non-

waiver" agreement in writing and which is in evi-

dence in this action.
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X.

On or about May 13th, 1938, the said plaintiff de-

manded payment of the aforesaid judgment from

the defendant, a true and correct copy of which

written demand so made upon the said defendant is

annexed to plaintiif 's complaint on file in this action

marked "Exhibit A".

XI.

That neither the insurance policy heretofore re-

ferred to nor a copy thereof was ever submitted or

exhibited to the State of [165] Montana or the

Highway Commission of Montana, and no informa-

tion concerning its provisions was ever given to said

State of Montana or said Highway Commission of

said State except the notice referred to in above

finding of fact IV.

Upon the foregoing findings of fact the Court

makes the following

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW:

I.

That the plaintiff Ethel M. Doheny, as Adminis-

tratrix of the Estate of Marguerite Doheny, De-

ceased, is entitled to the judgment of the above

entitled Court in the above entitled action in her

favor and against the defendant United States Fi-

delity and Guaranty Company in the sum of Five

Thousand One Hundred Sixteen Dollars and

Eighty-nine Cents ($5,116.89), together with inter-

est on said sum from May 4, 1936 until paid at the
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rate of six per centum (6%) per annum, and plain-

tiff's costs incurred in said action.

CHARLES N. PRAY
Judge.

[Endorsed]: Filed Sept. 6, 1940. [166]

Thereafter, on September 13, 1940, a Judgment

was filed and entered in each of the causes herein,

said Judgments being in the words and figures fol-

lowing, to wit: [167]

In the District Court of the United States for the

District of Montana

(Great Falls Division)

No. 69

ETHEL M. DOHENY, as Administratrix of the

Estate of Roberta Doheny, Deceased,

Plaintiff,

vs.

UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND GUAR-
ANTY COMPANY, a Corporation,

Defendant.

JUDGMENT
Be it remembered, that the above entitled cause

came on regularly for trial on the 26th day of De-

cember, 1939, before the Court sitting without a
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jury, the plaintiff appearing in person and by her

counsel of record, E. J. McCabe, and the defendant

appearing by its comisel of record, Messrs. Toole

and Boone, and evidence having been offered and

admitted on the part of the plaintiff and defendant

and the cause being duly submitted to the Court for

decision; and the Court having heretofore duly

made, adopted and filed Findings of Fact and Con-

clusions of Law herein, and the Court being now
fully advised and the law and the facts having been

considered

:

Wherefore, by reason of the law and the prem-

ises it is ordered, adjudged and decreed that the

plaintiff Ethel M. Doheny, as administratrix of the

estate of Roberta Doheny, deceased, do have and

recover from the defendant. United States Fidelity

and Guaranty Company, a corporation, the sum of

Six Thousand Four Hundred Fifty Dollars and

Five Cents ($6,450.05) and interest on said sum
from date hereof imtil paid at the rate of six per-

cent (6%) per annum, together with plaintiff's

costs herein taxed and allowed in the further sum
of $39.30.

Done this 13th day of September, 1940.

CHARLES N. PRAY,
Judge.

[Endorsed] : Filed and entered Sept. 13, 1940.

[168]
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In the District Court of the United States for the

District of Montana

(Great Falls Division)

No. 70

ETHEL M. DOHENY, as Administratrix of the

Estate of Marguerite Doheny, Deceased,

Plaintiff,

vs.

UNITED STATES FIDELITY and GUAR-
ANTY COMPANY, a Corporation,

Defendant.

JUDGMENT
Be it remembered, that the above entitled cause

came on regularly for trial on the 26th day of De-

cember, 1939, before the Court sitting without a

jury, the plaintiff appearing in person and by her

counsel of record, E. J. McCabe, and the defendant

appearing by its counsel of record, Messrs. Toole

and Boone, and evidence having been offered and

admitted on the part of the plaintiff and defendant

and the cause being duly submitted to the Court for

decision; and the Court having heretofore duly

made, adopted and filed Findings of Fact and Con-

clusions of Law herein, and the Court being now

fully advised and the law and the facts having been

considered

:

Wherefore, by reason of the law and the premises

it is ordered, adjudged and decreed that the plain-

tiff Ethel M. Doheny, as administratrix of the estate
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of Marguerite Doheny, deceased, do have and re-

cover from the defendant, United States Fidelity

and Guaranty Company, a corporation, the sum of

Six Thousand Four Hundred Fifty Dollars and

Five Cents ($6,450.05) and interest on said sum

from date hereof until paid at the rate of six per-

cent (6%) per annum, together with plaintiff's

costs herein taxed and allowed in the further sum

of $28.50.

Done this 13th day of September, 1940.

CHARLES N. PEAY,
Judge.

[Endorsed] : Filed and entered Sept. 13, 1940.

[169]

Thereafter, on September 14, 1940, a Notice of

Entry of Judgment was filed in each of the causes

herein, and are in the words and figures follow-

ing, to w^it: [170]

[Title of District Court and Cause—No. 69.]

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF JUDGMENT
To the above named Defendant and to Messrs.

Toole and Boone, its, attorneys of record.

You will please take notice that in the above en-

titled cause judgment was duly given, made and

entered on the 13th day of September, 1940, by the

above Court in favor of the plaintiff and against

the defendant wherein and whereby it was duly ad-
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judged that said plaintiff do have and recover

against the defendant the sum of $6,450.05, with

interest thereon at the rate of six percent (6%)
per annum until paid, and costs of plaintiff in said

action.

Dated September 13, 1940.

E. J. McCABE,
Attorney for Plaintiff.

Served by mail on Sept. 13, 1940.

[Endorsed]: Piled Sept. 14, 1940. [171]

[Title of District Court and Cause—No. 70.]

NOTICE OP ENTRY OP JUDGMENT
To the above named Defendant and to Messrs.

Toole and Boone, its attorneys of record:

You will please take notice that in the above en-

titled cause judgment was duly given, made and

entered on the 13th day of September, 1940, by the

above Court in favor of the plaintiff and against

the defendant wherein and whereby it was duly

adjudged that said plaintiff do have and recover

against the defendant the sum of $6,450.05, with

interest thereon at the rate of six percent (6%)
per annum until paid, and costs of plaintiff in said

action.

Dated September 13, 1940.

E. J. McCABE,
Attorney for Plaintiff.

Served by mail on Sept. 13, 1940.

[Endorsed] : Piled Sept. 14, 1940. [172]
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Thereafter, on September 17, 1940, a Notice of

Appeal was filed in each of the causes herein, and

are in the words and figures following, to wit: [173]

[Title of District Court and Cause—No. 69.]

NOTICE OF APPEAL

To Ethel M. Doheny, as Administratrix of the

Estate of Roberta Doheny, Deceased, plaintiff

herein, and to E. J. McCabe, Attorney for Plain-

tiff:

You and each of you will please hereby take no-

tice that the United States Fidelity and Guaranty

Company, a corporation, the defendant in the above

entitled action, does hereby appeal to the Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit from that

certain judgment made, entered and filed in the

above entitled action on the 13th day of September,

1940, wherein the plaintiff, Ethel M. Doheny, as

Administratrix of the Estate of Roberta Doheny,

Deceased, was given judgment against the defend-

ant. United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company,

a corporation, in the sum of Six Thousand Four

Hundred Fifty and 05/100 Dollars ($6450.05) with

interest thereon at the rate of six per cent (6%)

per annum from September 13, 1940, together with

plaintiff's costs of action taxed in the sum of

Thirty-nine and 30/100 Dollars ($39.30). [174]

You will further please take notice that this ap-

peal is taken from said judgment and from the

whole thereof. ^T^
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Dated this 17th day of September, 1940.

HOWARD TOOLE,
W. T. BOONE,

Attorneys for Appellant,

United States Fidelity and

Guaranty Company, a cor-

poration.

[Endorsed]: Filed Sept. 17, 1940. [175]

[Title of District Court and Cause—No. 70.]

NOTICE OF APPEAL
To Ethel M. Doheny, as Administratrix of the

Estate of Margrierite Doheny, Deceased, plaintiff

herein, and to E. J. McCabe, Attorney for Plain-

tiff:

You and each of you will please hereby take no-

tice that the United States Fidelity and Guaranty

Company, a corporation, the defendant in the above

entitled action, does hereby appeal to the Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit from that

certain judgment made, entered and filed in the

above entitled action on the 13th day of September,

1940, wherein the plaintiff, Ethel M. Doheny, as

Administratrix of the Estate of Marguerite Doheny,

Deceased, was given judgment against the defend-

ant. United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company,

a corporation, in the sum of Six Thousand Four

Hundred fifty and 05/100 Dollars ($6450.05) wdth
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interest thereon at the rate of six per cent (6%)
per annum from September 13, 1940, together with

plaintiff's costs of action taxed in the sum of

Twenty-eight and 5Q/100 Dollars ($28.50). [176]

You will further please take notice that this ap-

peal is taken from said judgment and from the

whole thereof.

Dated this 17th day of September, 1940.

HOWARD TOOLE,
W. T. BOONE,

Attorneys for Appellant,

United States Fidelity and

Guaranty Company, a cor-

poration.

[Endorsed]: Filed Sept. 17, 1940. [177]

Thereafter, on September 17, 1940, a copy of each

notice of appeal, filed in each cause herein, was

mailed to coimsel for Plaintiff in each case, the

docket record of the Clerk being as follows, to wit:

Sept. 17, 1940. Mailed copy notice of appeal to

counsel for Plaintiff. [178]

Thereafter, on September 17, 1940, a Bond,

(Supersedeas), was filed in each of the causes

herein, said bonds being in the words and figures

following, to wit: [179]
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[Title of District Court and Cause—No. 69.]

BOND
Know all men by these presents, that we, the un-

dersigned. United States Fidelity and Guaranty

Company, a corporation, as i)rincipal, and Mary-

land Casualty Company, a corporation, duly quali-

fied and authorized to execute bonds and undertak-

ings and to act as surety within the State and Dis-

trict of Montana, as surety, are held and firmly

boimd unto Ethel M. Doheny, as Administratrix of

the Estate of Roberta Doheny, Deceased, the plain-

tiff above named, in the full smn of Seven Thou-

sand Dollars ($7000.00), to be paid to the said plain-

tiff, her successors or assigns, to which payment,

well and truly to be made, we bind ourselves, our

successors and assigns, jointly and severally by

these presents. [180]

Sealed with our seals and dated this 16th day of

September, 1940.

The condition of this obligation is such that

whereas, in the District Court of the United States

in and for the District of Montana, in the above en-

titled action, pending in said Court, wherein Ethel

M. Doheny, as Administratrix of the Estate of Rob-

erta Doheny, Deceased, is plaintiff and United

States Fidelity and Guaranty Company, a corpora-

tion, is defendant, a judgment was rendered against

the defendant, United States Fidelity and Guaranty

Company, a corporation, in the amount of Six Thou-

sand Four Hundred fifty and 05/100 Dollars
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($6450.05) which judgment was made and entered

on the 13th day of September, 1940, and

Whereas, the defendant. United States Fidelity

and Guaranty Company, a corporation, has filed in

said action its notice of appeal from said judgment

to the Circuit Court of Appeals of the United States

for the Ninth Circuit, and said defendant proposes

to prosecute said appeal to reverse said judgment

and desires that execution thereon be stayed pend-

ing determination of said appeal;

Now, therefore, in consideration of said appeal

and the said supersedeas, if the above named United

States Fidelity and Guaranty Company, a corpora-

tion, as such defendant shall prosecute its appeal to

effect or [181] shall pay said judgment and answer

all damages, interest and costs, if it fail to make

good its plea, then ' this obligation shall be void

;

otherwise to remain in full force and effect.

UNITED STATES FIDELITY
AND GUARANTY COMPANY,

a corporation,

(Seal) By DON W. JACOBUS,
Attorney-in-Fact,

Principal.

MARYLAND CASUALTY
COMPANY, a corporation,

(Seal) By JOHN W. SCHROEDER,
Its Attorney-in-Fact, thereunto

duly authorized.

Surety.

JOHN W. SCHROIIDER,
Montana Resident Agent.
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The within ])ond is liereby approved this 17th day

of September, 1940.

CHARLES N. PRAY,
Judge.

[Endorsed]: Filed Sept. 17, 1940. [182]

[Title of District Court and Cause—No. 70.]

BOND
Know all men by these presents, that we, the un-

dersigned, United States Fidelity and Gruaranty

Company, a corporation, as principal, and Mary-

land Casualty Company, a corporation, duly quali-

fied and authorized to execute bonds and undertak-

ings and to act as surety within the State and Dis-

trict of Montana, as surety, are held and firmly

bound unto Ethel M. Doheny, as Administratrix of

the Estate of Marguerite Doheny, Deceased, the

plaintiff above named, in the full sum of Seven Thou-

sand Dollars ($7000.00), to be paid to the said plain-

tiff, her successors or assigns, to which payment,

well and truly to be made, w^e bind ourselves, our

successors and assigns, jointly and severally by

these presents. [183]

Sealed with our seals and dated this 16th day of

September, 1940.

The condition of this obligation is such that

whereas, in the District Court of the United States

in and for the District of Montana, in the above en-

titled action, pending in said (-ourt, wherein Ethel

M. Doheny, as Administratrix of the Estate of Mar-



vs. Ethel M. Doheny 211

guerite Doheny, Deceased, is plaintiff and United

States Fidelity and Guaranty Company, a corpora-

tion, is defendant, a judgment was rendered against

the defendant. United States Fidelity and Guaranty

Company, a corporation, in the amount of Six Thou-

sand Four Hundred fifty and 05/100 Dollars

($6450.05) which judgment was made and entered

on the 13th day of September, 1940, and

Whereas, the defendant. United States Fidelity

and Guaranty Company, a corporation, has filed in

said action its notice of apj^eal from said judgment

to the Circuit Court of Appeals of the United States

for the Ninth Circuit, and said defendant proposes

to prosecute said appeal to reverse said judgment

and desires that execution thereon be stayed pend-

ing determination of said appeal;

Now, therefore, in consideration of said appeal

and the said supersedeas, if the above named United

States Fidelity and Guaranty Company, a corpora-

tion, as such defendant shall prosecute its appeal to

effect or [184] shall pay said judgment and answer

all damages, interest and costs, if it fail to make

good its plea, then this obligation shall be void;

otherwise to remain in full force and effect.

UNITED STATES FIDELITY
AND GUARANTY COMPANY,

a corporation,

(Seal) By DON W. JACOBUS
Attorney-in-Fact,

Principal.
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MARYLAND CASUALTY
COMPANY, a corporation,

(Seal) By JOHN W. SCHROEDER
Its Attorney-in-Fact,

thereunto duly authorized

Surety.

JOHN W. SCHROEDER,
Montana Resident Agent.

The within bond is hereby approved this 17th day

of September, 1940.

CHARLES N. PRAY,
Judge.

[Endorsed] : Filed September 17, 1940. [185]

Thereafter, on September 17, 1940, a copy of

Bond on Appeal, (Supersedeas), in each case, was

mailed to counsel for plaintiff, in each case, the

Clerk's docket record of said mailing being as fol-

lows, to wit:

Sept. 17, 1940, mailed copy of Bond on Appeal

(Supersedeas), to counsel for plaintiff. [186]
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Thereafter, on October 10, 1940, a Designation of

Contents of Record on Appeal was duly filed herein,

being in the words and figures following, to wit:

[187]

[Title of District Court and Causes.]

DESIGNATION OF CONTENTS OF RECORD
ON APPEAL OF DEFENDANT UNITED
STATES FIDELITY AND GUARANTY
COMPANY

Whereas, the above entitled causes were consoli-

dated for trial and w^ere, on the 26th day of De-

cember, 1939, tried as consolidated cases, and

Whereas, United States Fidelity and Guaranty

Company, the defendant in each of the above en-

titled actions, has filed a Notice of Appeal, in each

of the above cases, to the Circuit [188] Court of

Appeals of tlie Ninth Circuit from a judgment, ren-

dered in each of the above entitled actions on the

13th day of September, 1940,

Now, therefore, the said appellant in each of the

above entitled causes, does hereby designate the

following portions of the record, proceedings and

evidence to be contained in the consolidated record

of the above entitled causes on appeal:

In Cause No. 69, Ethel M. Doheny, as Admin-

istratrix of the Estate of Roberta Doheny, De-

ceased, Plaintiff, vs. United States Fidelity and

Guaranty Company, a corporation. Defendant.

1. Plaintiff's complaint, including the verifica-

tion, and Exhibit **A" thereunto attached.
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2. Certified copy of the record in this action on

removal from the state court to the Federal Court

embracing

:

(a) The plaintiff's complaint (copy to be

here omitted as the same is heretofore set out

in full).

(b) Summons, together with the return

shomng service.

(c) Verified petition for removal.

(c) Notice of petition and bond for re-

moval.

(e) Bond for costs on removal.

(f) Order of removal.

(g) Clerk's certificate to transcript of rec-

ord on removal.

3. Defendant's motion to dismiss (omitting title

of court and cause). [189]

4. Defendant's motion to strike (omitting title

of court and cause).

5. Order of the Court denying defendant's mo-

tion to strike and defendant's motion to dismiss.

6. Defendant's answer (omitting title of court

and cause).

7. The transcript of the proceedings at the trial

of said cause including the following exhibits: The

material portions of exhibit 1 on deposition; all of

exhibits 2, 3 and 4 on deposition; all of exhibits 9,

21, 27 and 28; and the material portions of exhibit

26 ; all as contained in said transcript.

8. Written opinion of the court (omitting title

of court and cause).
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9. Court's findings of fact and conclusions of

law (omitting title of court and cause).

10. Judgment.

11. Notice of entry of judgment (omitting title

of court and cause).

12. Notice of appeal with date of filing (omit-

ting title of court and cause).

13. Supersedeas bond on appeal (omitting title

of court and cause but including Court's approval

of the bond).

14. Entry in civil docket as to names of parties

to whom Clerk mailed copies of notice of appeal

and supersedeas bond, with date of mailing.

15. Designation of contents of record on appeal.

16. Statement of points on which appellant in-

tends to rely on the appeal (omitting title of dis-

trict court and cause). [190]

In Cause No. 70, Ethel M. Doheny, as Admin-

istratrix of the Estate of Marguerite Doheny,

Deceased, Plaintiff, vs. United States Fidelity

and Guaranty Company, a corporation, Defend-

ant.

1. Plaintiff's complaint, including the verifica-

tion, and Exhibit ''A" thereunto attached.

2. Certified copy of. the record in this action on

removal from the state court to the Federal Court

embracing

:

(a) The plaintiff's comphxint (copy to be

here omitted as the same is lieretofore set out

in full).
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(b) Summons, together with the return

showing service.

(c) Verified petition for removal.

(d) Notice of petition and bond for re-

moval.

(e) Bond for costs on removal.

(f) Order of removal.

(g) Clerk's certificate to transcript of rec-

ord on removal.

3. Defendant's motion to dismiss (omitting title

of court and cause).

4. Defendant's motion to strike (omitting title

of court and cause).

5. Order of the Court denying defendant's mo-

tion to strike and defendant's motion to dismiss.

6. Defendant's answer (omitting title of court

and cause).

7. The transcript of the proceedings at the trial

of said cause inckiding the following exhibits: The

material portions of exhibit 1 on deposition; all of

exhibits 2, 3 and [191] 4 on deposition; all of ex-

hibits 9, 21, 27 and 28; and the material portions of

exhibit 26; all as contained in said transcript (copy

to be here omitted as the same is heretofore set out

in full).

8. Written opinion of the court (copy to be here

omitted as the same is heretofore set out in full.)

9. Court's findings of fact and conclusions of

law (omitting title of court and cause).

10. Judgment.

11. Notice of entry of judgment (omitting title

of court and cause).
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12. Notice of appeal with date of filing (omitting

title of court and cause).

13. Supersedeas bond on appeal (omitting title

of court and cause but including Court's approval of

the bond).

14. Entry in civil docket as to names of parties

to whom Clerk mailed copies of notice of appeal

and supersedeas bond, with date of mailing.

15. Designation of contents of record on appeal

(copy to be here omitted as the same is heretofore

set out in full).

16. Statement of points on which appellant in-

tends to rely on the appeal (copy to be here omitted

as the same is heretofore set out in full).

Dated this 10th day of October, 1940.

HOWARD TOOLE,
' W. T. BOONE,

Attorneys for defendant in

each of the above entitled

causes. [192]

Service acknowledged at Great Falls, Montana,

October 10th, 1940.

E. J. McCABE,
Attorney for plaintiff in

' each of the above entitled

causes.

[Endorsed] : Filed Oct. 10, 1940. [193]
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Thereafter, on October 10, 1940, a Statement of

Points was duly filed herein, being in the words and

figures following, to wit: [194]

[Title of District Court and Causes.]

STATEMENT OF POINTS

Now comes the United States Fidelity and Guar-

anty Company, appellant in the above entitled ac-

tions, heretofore consolidated for trial, and having

designated less than the complete record for inclu-

sion in the record on appeal, herewith designates

and states the points on which it intends to rely on

the appeal in the consolidated actions as follows:

[195]

I.

In the appeal in these actions the appellant,

United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company, will

rely upon the point that Contractors' Public Lia-

bility Policy issued by it as insurer to Coverdale &
Johnson as insured (defendant's exhibit 27, pages

54 to 79, inclusive, of the typewritten transcript)

was a clear and unambiguous contract of insurance

which should have been construed by the court with-

out recourse to extrinsic evidence and that the court

was in error:

(a) In denying defendant's motion to dis-

miss the complaint which motion was made

upon the ground that the said complaint fails

to state a claim upon which re<lief can be

granted.
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(b) In denying defendant's motion to strike

that part of paragraph III of plaintiff's com-

plaint from and including the word "that" on

line 14 to and including the word "thereof" on

line 25, all on page 2, said motion to strike be-

ing based upon the ground that the said por-

tion of paragraph III above referred to was

and is redundant, immaterial, impertinent and

surplusage.

(c) In admitting plaintiff's exhibit 1 on

deposition (the pertinent portions of said ex-

hibit 1 appearing in the typewritten transcript,

pages 14 to 28) said exhibit 1 being the con-

tract between the State of Montana and Cover-

dale & Johnson for the [196] construction of

certain highway bridges on Federal Aid Project

No. NRH-176 ''E", Unit 2, in Lewis and Clark

County, Montana.

(d) In admitting plaintiff's exhibit 2 on

deposition (typewritten transcript, pages 28 to

32) said exhibit 2 being the contract bond fur-

nished by United States Fidelity and Guaranty

Company to Coverdale & Johnson to guarantee

the faithful performance and completion of the

contract for the construction of said bridges.

(e) The court was in error in admitting

plaintiff's exhibit 3 on deposition (typew^ritien

transcript, pages 36 and 37) which exhibit 3 is

a letter from the State Highway Commission of

the State of Montana to Coverdale & Johnson

wherein reference is made to the bridge contract
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(plaintiff's exhibit 1 on deposition) and the

performance bond (plaintiff's exhibit 2 on depo-

sition) and also referring to the Contractors'

Public Liability Policy (defendant's exhibit

27).

(f) In admitting plaintiff's exhibit 4 on

deposition (typewi^itten transcript, page 39)

which exhibit 4 on deposition is a letter from

United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company

to the State Highway Commission of the State

of Montana referring [197] to said Con-

tractors' Public Liability Policy (defendant's

exhibit 27).

(g) The court was in error in its Findings

of Fact Nos. Ill, IV and VIII in each of said

causes in resorting to the contract (plaintiff's

exhibit 1 on deposition) and the bond (plain-

tiff's exhibit 2 on deposition) and the letter

from the Montana Highway Commission to

Coverdale & Johnson (plaintiff's exhibit 3 on

deposition) and the letter from the United

States Fidelity and Guaranty Company to the

State Highway Commission of the State of

Montana (plaintiff's exhibit 4 on deposition)

and in resorting to the evidence of the witness

W. O. Whipps (typewritten transcript, pages

12 to 41, inclusive) for the purpose of constru-

ing the Contractors' Public Liability Policy

(defendant's exhibit 27) in that there was no

ambiguity or uncertainty in respect to said

policy justifying a resort to extrinsic evidence.

(h) The court was in error in Finding of
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Fact No. VIII in each of said causes wherein

the court found as follows:

''The defendant United States Fidelity and

Guaranty Company executed and delivered

to the said co-partners a written public lia-

bility insurance policy bearing date October

1, 1934, and which was [198] introduced in

evidence by the defendant corporation and

received in evidence as defendant's Exhibit

27 and which policy was written and issued

by defendant as a purported compliance with

the requirements of the written agreement

with the State Highway Commission of Mon-

tana. The policy of insurance so written and

delivered contains exclusion provisions which

are antagonistic and contrary to the require-

ments of the aforesaid agreement with the

State Highway Commission of the State of

Montana, and such exclusion provisions were

and are inoperative to defeat recovery in this

action."

II.

The appellant will raise the point on appeal that

the Contractors' Public Liability Policy issued by

the defendant, United States Fidelity and Guar-

anty Company, to Coverdale & Johnson did not

cover any risk or risks excepting such as should

arise by reason of and during the progress of the

work described in said policy and covered thereby

and that therefore there was no sufficient or com-

petent evidence in the record to justify the court
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in making that portion of its Finding of Fact No.

V in each of said causes of action reading as fol-

lows:

"That on the 12th day of December, 1934,

and while carrying on the work mentioned and

described in the aforesaid w^ritten agreement

between the said co-partners and the State of

Montana the aforesaid co-partners operated a

certain automobile in such a grossly negligent

and reckless manner as to injure and kill one

Roberta Doheny (Marguerite Doheny) and that

at the time the said Roberta Doheny (Mar-

guerite Doheny) was a member of the public

and said automobile was then and there being

used in carrying on the work imder the afore-

said agreement * * *" [199]

III.

The appellant will raise the point on appeal that

the Contractors' Public Liability Policy issued by

the defendant, United States Fidelity and Guaranty

Company, to Coverdale & Johnson excluded risks

arising out of the operation of the automobile in

these cases and that there was no sufficient evidence

in the record to justify the court in making its

Finding of Fact No. V in each of said causes of

action reading as follows:

"That on the 12th day of December, 1934,

and while carrying on the work mentioned and

described in the aforesaid written agreement

between the said co-partners and the State of
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Montana the aforesaid co-partners operated a

certain automobile in such a grossly negligent

and reckless manner as to injure and kill one

Roberta Doheny (Marguerite Doheny) and that

at the time the said Roberta Doheny (Mar-

guerite Doheny) was a member of the public

and said automobile was then and there being

used in carrying on the work under aforesaid

agreement and that thereafter in an action in-

stituted in the District Court of the Eighth

Judicial District of the State of Montana in

and for the County of Cascade by the above

named plaintiff and against the aforesaid co-

partners to recover for the injuries and dam-

ages sustained by said Roberta Doheny (Mar-

guerite Doheny) and her resulting death as the

proximate result of the reckless and grossly

negligent operation of said automobile as afore-

said, a judgment in the sum of $5,116.89 was

duly given, made and entered by said Court in

favor of the said plaintiff and against the said

co-partners on the 4th day of May, 1936, and

that neither said judgment nor any part

thereof has been paid by said co-partners or by

the defendant. United States Fidelity and

Guaranty Company, although demand of pay-

ment thereof has heretofore and prior to ccm-

mencement of the above entitled action been

made by plaintiff, upon said co-partners and

said defendant." [200]
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IV.

The appellant will raise the point on appeal that

the Contractors' Public Liability Policy issued by

the United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company
to Coverdale & Johnson (defendant's exliibit No. 27)

was a clear and unambiguous contract of insurance

which should have been construed by the court with-

out recourse to extrinsic evidence and that by reason

of the failure of the plaintiif in the court below^ to

request or plead a reformation of said policy and

notwithstanding the fact that no issue of reforma-

tion thereof was made or raised at any time in the

pleadings or in the trial of said actions the court

was in error:

(a) In that in Finding of Fact No. VIII in

each of said causes of action the court disre-

garded the exclusions in the policy and in ef-

fect reformed the same as follows

:

''The policy of insurance so written and

delivered contains exclusion provisions which

are antagonistic and contrary to the require-

ments of the aforesaid agreement with the

State Highway Commission of the State of

Montana, and such exclusion provisions were

and are inoperative to defeat recovery in this

action."

(b) In that it apears from the written opin-

ion of the trial court that the provisions of the

Contractors' Public Liability Policy were con-

strued together with the contract (plaintiff's

exhibit 1 on deposition), the bond (plaintiff's
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exhibit 2 on deposition), the letter from the

[201] Montana Highway Commission to Cover-

dale & Johnson (plaintiff's exhibit 3 on deposi-

tion), the letter from the United States Fidel-

ity and Guaranty Company to the State High-

way Commission of the State of Montana

(plaintiff's exhibit 4 on deposition) and with

the evidence of W. O. Whipps, all of which is

summed up in the statement of the court on the

last page of the typewritten opinion in the fol-

lowing language:

''Under the construction given the policy,

reading it as one with the agreement and

bond, together with the evidence, reformation

seems unnecessary, since it would mean the

same in any event."

V.

By filing this statement of points the appellant in

each of said causes does not intend to waive the

right to urge error upon any of the rulings or find-

ings of the trial court resulting in a judgment in

each of said causes in favor of the plaintiff and

against the defendant.

Dated this 10th day of October, 1940.

HOWARD TOOLE
W. T. BOONE

Attorneys for defendant in

each of the above entitled

causes. [202]
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Service acknowledged at Great Falls, Montana,
October 10th, 1940.

E. J. McCABE
Attorney for plaintiff in each

of the above entitled causes.

[Endorsed] : Filed Oct. 10, 1940. [203]

CLERK'S CERTIFICATE TO TRANSCRIPT
OF RECORD.

United States of America,

District of Montana—ss:

I, C. R. Garlow, Clerk of the United States Dis-

trict Court for the District of Montana, do hereby

certify and return to The Honorable, The United

States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Cir-

cuit, that the foregoing volume consisting of 204

pages, numbered consecutively from 1 to 204 in-

clusive, constitute a full, true and correct transcript

of all portions of the record in Case No. 69, Ethel

M. Doheny, as Administratrix of the Estate of

Roberta Doheny, Deceased, vs. United States Fidel-

ity and Guaranty Company, a corporation, and in

case No. 70, Ethel M. Doheny, as Administratrix of

the Estate of Marguerite Doheny, Deceased, vs.

United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company, a

corporation, designated by the parties as the record

on appeal therein, except the Summons called for

in said designation, there being no Summons or

certified copy thereof on file in this court, as ap-
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pears from the original records and files of said

court in my custody as such Clerk.

I further certify that the costs of said transcript

amount to the sum of Forty-one and 10/lOOths

Dollars ($41.10) and have been paid by the ap-

pellants.

Witness my hand and the seal of said court at

Great Falls, Montana, this 23rd day of October,

A. D. 1940.

(Seal) C. R. GARLOW,
Clerk U. S. District Court,

District of Montana.

By C. G. KEGEL
Deputy Clerk. [204]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ORDER OF TRANSMISSION OF ORIGINAL
EXHIBITS.

Upon application of counsel for United States

Fidelity and Guaranty Company, a corporation, the

defendant in each of the above entitled actions,

It Is Hereby Ordered, That in connection with

the appeal of the said defendant. United States Fi-

delity and Guaranty Company, a corporation, in

each of the above entitled actions to the United

States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Cir-

cuit, the following original exhibits introduced in

evidence at the trial of said causes as consolidated
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by the court, may be transmitted to the Appellate

Court for its inspection

:

Plaintiff's Exhibits 1, 2, 3, and 4, all on depo-

sition,

Plaintiff's exhibit No. 26, and

Defendant's exhibits Nos. 27 and 28.

Dated, this 26th day of October, 1940.

CHARLES N. PRAY
Judge of the United States

District Court, District of

Montana.

[Endorsed] : Filed and entered October 26, 1940.

United States of America,

District of Montana—ss.

I, C. R. Garlow, Clerk of the United States Dis-

trict Court in and for the District of Mon-

tana, do hereby certify that the annexed and fore-

going is a true and full copy of the original Order

of Transmission of Original Exhibits, filed and

entered in Civil Actions Numbers 69 and 70, en-

titled: Ethel M. Doheny, as Administratrix of the

Estate of Roberta Doheny, deceased, vs. United

States Fidelity and Guaranty Company, a corpora-

tion; and Ethel M. Doheny, as Administratrix of

the Estate of Marguerite Doheny, Deceased, vs.

United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company, a

corporation, now remaining among the records of

the said Court in my office.
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In Testimony Whereof, I have hereunto sub-

scribed my name and affixed the seal of the afore-

said Court at Great Falls this 26th day of October,

A. D. 1940.

(Seal) C. R. GARLOW,
Clerk.

By C. C. KEGEL
Deputy Clerk.

[Endorsed]: No. 9668. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. United

States Fidelity and Guaranty Company, a corpo-

ration, Appellant, vs. Ethel M. Doheny, as Admini-

stratrix of the Estate of Roberta Doheny, Deceased,

Appellee, and United States Fidelity and Guaranty

Company, a Corporation, Appellant, vs. Ethel M.

Doheny, as Administratrix of the Estate of Mar-

guerite Doheny, Deceased, Appellee. Transcript of

Record. Upon Appeals from the District Court of

the United States for the District of Montana.

Filed October 26, 1940.

PAUL P. O'BRIEN,
Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit.
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In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit

No. 9668

UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND GUAR-
ANTY COMPANY, a corporation,

Appellant,

vs.

ETHEL M. DOHENY, as Administratrix of the

Estate of Roberta Doheny, Deceased,

Appellee,

and

UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND GUAR-
ANTY COMPANY, a corporation.

Appellant,

vs.

ETHEL M. DOHENY, as Administratrix of the

Estate of Marguerite Doheny, Deceased,

Appellee.

To the Clerk of the United States Circuit Court

of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit:

I.

DESIGNATION OF PARTS OF THE RECORD
TO BE PRINTED

You will please be advised that the appellant,

United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company, a

corporation, in each of the above causes, does hereby

designate for printing in the consolidated appeal of
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the above cases the entire transcript of the record

forwarded to you by the Clerk of the United States

Court for the District of Montana in the above en-

titled actions and that the said appellant, in the

consolidated appeal of the above entitled causes,

will rely upon the entire record in this appeal.

You will please further be advised that said ap-

pellant has taken a separate appeal in each of the

above causes but that the same record, being a con-

solidated record, will serve in each of said appeals.

II.

STATEMENT OF POINTS ON WHICH THE
APPELLANT INTENDS TO RELY ON
APPEAL.

Whereas, United States Fidelity and Guaranty

Company, a corporation, has filed separate notices

of appeal and is taking separate appeals to the

United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit from a judgment rendered in each of

the above entitled actions in the District Court of

the United States for the District of Montana, on

the 13th day of September, 1940, and

Whereas, a consolidated record on appeal, in the

above entitled causes, ^has been filed in said Circuit

Court of Appeals,

Now, Therefore, the said appellant does hereby

make and file this statement of the points on which

it intends to rely on appeal of the above entitled

actions, such statement being filed for both of the

above entitled causes by reason of the fact that the
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same points will be raised by the said appellant in

each of the above entitled causes.

1. In the appeal in these actions the appellant,

United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company, will

rely upon the ]:>oint that Contractors' Public Lia-

bility Policy issued by it as insurer to Coverdale &
Johnson as insured (defendant's exhibit 27, pages

54 to 79, inclusive, of the ty])ewritten transcript)

w^as a clear and unambiguous contract of insurance

which should have been construed by the court

without recourse to extrinsic evidence and that the

court was in error:

(a) In denying defendant's motion to dis-

miss the complaint which motion was made

upon the ground that the said complahit fails

to state a claim upon which relief can be

granted.

(b) In denying defendant's motion to strike

that part of paragraph III of plaintiff's com-

plaint from and including the word "that" on

line 14 to and including the word 'Hhereof " on

line 25, all on page 2, said motion to strike

being based upon the ground that the said por-

tion of paragraph III above referred to was

and is redundant, immaterial, impertinent and

surplusage.

(c) In admitting plaintiff's exhibit 1 on

dei)osition (the pertinent portions of said ex-

hibit appearing in the typewritten transcript,

pages 14 to 28) said exhibit 1 being the contract
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between the State of Montana and Coverdale &
Johnson for the construction of certain high-

way bridges on Federal Aid Project No.

NRH-176 "E", Unit 2, in Lewis and Clark

County, Montana.

(d) In admitting plaintiff's exhibit 2 on

deposition (typewritten transcript, pages 28 to

32) said exhibit 2 being the contract bond fur-

nished by United States Fidelity and Guaranty

Company to Coverdale & Johnson to guarantee

the faithful performance and completion of the

contract for the construction of said bridges.

(e) The court was in error in admitting

plaintiff's exhibit 3 on deposition (typewritten

transcript, pages 36 and 37) which exhibit 3 is

a letter from the State Highway Commission

of the State of "Montana to Coverdale &. John-

son wherein reference is made to the bridge

contract (plaintiff's exhibit 1 on deposition)

and the performance bond (plaintiff's exhibit 2

on deposition) and also referring to the Con-

tractors' Public Liability Policy (defendant's

exhibit 27).

(f) In admitting plaintiff's exhibit 4 on

deposition (typewritten transcript, page 39)

which exhibit 4 o'n deposition is a letter from

United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company

to the State Highway Commission of the State

of Montana referring to said Contractors' Pub-

lic Liability Policy (defendant's exhibit 27).

(g) The court was in error in its Findings



234 U. S. Fidelity etc. Co.

of Fact Nos. Ill, IV and VIII in each of said

causes in resorting to the contract (pkxintiif 's

exhibit 1 on deposition) and the bond (plain-

tiff's exhibit 2 on deposition) and the letter

from the Montana Highway Commission to

Coverdale cv Johnson (plaintiff's exhibit 3 on

deposition) and the letter from the United

States Fidelity and Guaranty Company to the

State Highway Commission of the State of

Montana (plaintiff's exhibit 4 on deposition)

and in resorting to the evidence of the witness

W. O. Whipps (typewritten transcript, pages

12 to 41, inclusive) for the purpose of constru-

ing the Contractors' Public Liability Policy

(defendant's exhibit 27) in that there was no

ambiguity or uncertainty in respect to said

policy justifying a resort to extrinsic evidence,

(h) The court was in error in Finding of

Fact No. VIII in each of said causes wherein

the court found as follows:

'^The defendant United States Fidelity

and Guaranty Company executed and de-

livered to the said co-partners a written pub-

lic liability insurance policy bearing date

October 1, 1934, and which was introduced in

evidence by the defendant corporation and

received in evidence as defendant's Exhibit

27 and which policy was written and issued

by defendant as a purported compliance with

the requirements of the written agreement

with the State Highway Commission of Mon-
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tana. The policy of insurance so written and

delivered contains exclusion provisions which

are antagonistic and contrary to the require-

ments of the aforesaid agreement with the

State Highway Commission of the State of

Montana, and such exclusion provisions were

and are inoperative to defeat recovery in this

action.
'

'

2. The appellant will raise the point on appeal

that the Contractors' Public Liability Policy issued

by the defendant, United States Fidelity and Guar-

anty Company, to Coverdale & Johnson did not

cover any risk or risks excepting such as should

arise by reason of and during the progress of the

work described in said policy and covered thereby

and that therefore there was no sufficient or comj)e-

tent evidence in the record to justify the court in

making that portion of its Finding of Fact No. V
in each of said causes of action reading as follows:

''That on the 12th day of December, 1934,

and while carrying on the work mentioned and

described in the aforesaid written agreement

between the said co-partners and the State of

Montana the aforesaid co-partners operated a

certain automobile- in such a grossly negligent

and reckless manner as to injure and kill one

Roberta Doheny (Marguerite Doheny) and

that at the time the said Roberta Doheny (Mar-

guerite Doheny) was a member of the j)ublic

and said automobile was then and there being
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used in carrying on the work under the afore-

said agreement . . .
."

3. Tlie appellant will raise the point on appeal

that the Contractors' Public Liability Policy issued

by the defendant, United States Fidelity and Guar-

anty Company, to Coverdale & Johnson excluded

risks arising out of the operation of the automobile

in these cases and that there was no sufficient evi-

dence in the record to justify the court in making

its Findings of Fact No. V in each of said causes

of action reading as follows

:

''That on the 12th day of December, 1934,

and while carrying on the work mentioned and

described in the aforesaid written agreement

between the said co-partners and the State of

Montana the aforesaid co-partners operated a

certain automobile in such a grossly negligent

and reckless manner as to injure and kill one

Roberta Doheny (Marguerite Doheny) and

that at the time the said Roberta Doheny (Mar-

guerite Doheny) was a member of the public

and said automobile was then and there being

used in carrying on the work under aforesaid

agreement and that thereafter in an action in-

stituted in the District Court of the Eighth Ju-

dicial District of the State of Montana in and

for the County of Cascade by the above named

plaintilf and against the aforesaid co-partners

to recover for the injuries and damages sus-

tained by said Roberta Doheny (Marguerite

Doheny) and her resulting death as the proxi-
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mate result of the reckless and grossly negli-

gent operation of said automobile as aforesaid,

a judgment in the sum of $5,116.89 was duly

given, made and entered by said Court in favor

of the said plaintiff and against the said co-

partners on the 4th day of May, 1936, and that

neither said judgment nor any part thereof has

been paid by said co-partners or by the defend-

ant, United States Fidelity and Guaranty Com-
pany, although demand of payment thereof has

heretofore and prior to commencement of the

above entitled action been made by plaintiff,

upon said co-partners and said defendant."

4. The appellant will raise the point on appeal

that the Contractors' Public Liability Policy issued

by the United States Fidelity and Guaranty Com-
pany to Coverdale & Johnson (defendant's exhibit

No. 27) was a clear and unambiguous contract of

insurance which should have been construed by the

court without recourse to extrinsic evidence and

I that by reason of the failure of the plaintiff in the

court below to request or plead a reformation of

said policy and notwithstanding the fact that no

issue of reformation thereof was made or raised at

any time in the pleadings or in the trial of said

actions the court was in error:

(a) In that in Finding of Fact No. VIII in

each of said causes of action the court disre-

garded the exclusions in the policy and in effect

reformed the same as follows

:
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''The policy of insurance so written and

delivered contains exclusion provisions which

are antagonistic and contrary to the require-

ments of the aforesaid agreement with the

State Highway Commission of the State of

Montana, and such exclusion provisions were

and are inoperative to defeat recovery in this

action."

(b) In that it appears from the written

opinion of the trial court that the provisions of

the Contractors' Public Liability Policy were

construed together with the contract (plain-

tiff's exhibit 1 on deposition), the bond (plain-

tiff's exhibit 2 on deposition), the letter from

the Montana Highway Commission to Cover-

dale & Johnson (plaintiff's exhibit 3 on deposi-

tion), the letter from the United States Fidel-

ity and Guaranty Company to the State High-

way Commission of the State of Montana

(plaintiff's exhibit 4 on deposition) and with

the evidence of W. O. Whipps, all of which is

summed up in the statement of the court on the

last page of the typewritten opinion in the fol-

lowing language:

"Under the construction given the policy,

reading it as one with the agreement and

bond, together with the evidence, reformation

seems unnecessary, since it would mean the

same in any event."

5. By filing this statement of points the appel-

lant in each of said causes does not intend to waive
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the right to urge error upon any of the rulings or

findings of the trial court resulting in a judgment

in each of said causes in favor of the plaintiff and

against the defendant.

Dated this 19th day of October, 1940.

HOWARD TOOLE
W. T. BOONE

Attorneys for the Appellant,

United States Fidelity and

Guaranty Company, a corpo-

ration, in each of the above

entitled causes.

[Endorsed] : Filed Oct. 26, 1940. Paul P. O'Brien,

Clerk.
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT 1.

In the District Court of the Eighth Judicial Dis-

trict of the State of Montana, in and for the

County of Cascade.

ETHEL M. DOHENY, as administratrix of the

estate of ROBERTA DOHENY, deceased.

Plaintiff,

vs.

JOHN M. OOVERDALE and E. O. JOHNSON,
co-partners doing business under the firm name

and style of COVERDALE & JOHNSON,
Defendants.

COMPLAINT

Comes Now the above named plaintiff and for

a cause of action against the defendants herein

complains and alleges:

I.

That on or about the 12th day of December, 1934,

one Roberta Doheny died intestate and, thereafter,

upon petition filed in the District Court of the

First Judicial District of the State of Montana

in and for the County of Lewis and Clark by

Ethel M. Doheny, the -said District Court of Lewis

and Clark County by an order in writing duly

given, made and entered on the 8th day of April,

1935, appointed said Ethel M. Doheny Administra-

trix of the estate of said Roberta Doheny, deceased,

and directed letters of administration on the estate

of said decedent to issue to said Ethel M. Doheny
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upon her taking oath and filing bond in said estate

conditioned for the faithful performance of her

duties as administratrix; and, thereafter, pursuant

to said order letters of administration upon the

estate of Roberta Doheny were duly issued by the

said court mider the seal of said court and the

hand of the clerk thereof mito Ethel M. Doheny

plaintiff herein. [1]

II.

That at all times hereinafter mentioned the de-

fendants John M. Coverdale and E. O. Johnson

were, at all time since have been, and now are co-

partners doing business mider the firm name and

style of Coverdale & Johnson.

III.

That at all times during the month of December,

1934, the defendant E. O. Johnson, was the owner

of a certain Ford Sedan automobile, Montana li-

cense number 13-1865 for the year 1934, and that

said automobile w^as used in connection with the

business of said John M. Coverdale and E. O.

Johnson as co-partners.

IV.

That on the 11th day of December, 1934, and

for a period of time immediately prior thereto, one

George S. Bardon was in the employ of the said

defendant and engaged in work directly connected

with the performance by the defendants of that

certain written contract theretofore entered into

between said defendants and the state of Montana
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through the Highway Commission of said state,

which contract is hereinafter more particularly

referred to.

V.

That on or about the 21st day of September

A. D. 1934, the defendants made and entered into

a certain written agreement with the state of Mon-

tana by and through the State Highway Commis-

sion of said state of Montana, whereby the said

defendants in consideration of the payment or pay-

ments of [2] money specified in said contract prom-

ised and agreed to pay for all the materials and to

furnish all tools, machinery and improvements and

to do and perform all the work and labor in the

construction or improvement of certain bridges in

Lewis and Clark CQunty, State of Montana, in con-

nection with and as a part of a certain public high-

way in said county known as the Augusta-Sun

River Road said bridges being particularly de-

scribed in said written contract as *'l concrete

bridge and 5 treated timber pile trestle bridges and

stock passes". That thereafter on or about the 25th

day of September, 1934, the said defendants com-

menced the construction and improvement work in

accordance with the t-erms and provisions of afore-

said contract; and, thereafter, up to and including

the 1st day of February, 1935 were engaged in the

performance of the construction and improvement

work specified in said contract.
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VI.

That on or about the 20th day of October, 1934,

the said defendants rented certain equipment from

E. H. Blakeslee consisting of an Ersted two dmm
hoist with tractor powder to be used in connection

with the performance of the construction and im-

provement work specified in the above mentioned

contract and that on or about said 20th day of Octo-

ber, 1934, the said defendants and E. H. Blakeslee

entered into a written agreement whereby the use

of said equipment w^as rented to the defendants at

an agreed rental rate of $84.00 per month and the

said defendants promised and agreed to return said

equipment and unload and deliver same to the said

Blakeslee in the event the rental [3] period of such

equipment should exceed thirty days. That there-

after on or about October 20, 1934, the defendants

took possession and used said equipment for a

period of approximately fifty-two days in the per-

formance of the construction and improvement

work specified in said agreement with the State of

Montana and, thereafter, to-wit, at a time known

to defendants but unknown to plaintiff and be-

tween December 1, 1934, and December 11, 1934,

the said defendants shipped said equipment to

Great Falls, Montana, for the purpose of redeliv-

ering the same to aforesaid E. H. Blakeslee.

VII.

That on or about the 10th day of December, 1934,

at approximately 10 o'clock P. M. the aforesaid

E. O. Johnson and George S. Bardon left Augusta,
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Montana, traveling in the above mentioned automo-

bile owned by E. O. Johnson with Great Falls,

Montana, as their destination for the purpose of

unloading and delivering to E. H. Blakeslee at

Great Falls, Montana, in accordance with the terms

of the aforesaid written agreement, the aforesaid

equipment theretofore rented by the defendants

from the said Blakeslee and at the request and

invitation of said E. O. Johnson and George S.

Bardon to accompany them to Great Falls, Mon-

tana, while they unloaded and delivered aforesaid

equipment and thereafter return to Augusta, Mon-

tana, the said Roberta Doheny and her sister Mar-

guerite Doheny accompanied said E. O. Johnson

and George S. Bardon to Great Falls, Montana, in

said automobile arriving at Great Falls, Montana,

at approximately 11 :55 P. M. on the day of Decem-

ber 10, 1934. That upon their arrival at Great

Falls Montana, the aforesaid equipment was un-

loaded and delivered by [4] said defendants to

E. H. Blakeslee by and through the assistance at

the time of the said E. O. Johnson and George S.

Bardon. That after said equipment was unloaded

and delivered to the said E. H. Blakeslee the said

E. O. Johnson and George S. Bardon Roberta Do-

heny and Marguerite Doheny left Great Falls,

Montana, in the above mentioned automobile

with Augusta, Montana, as their return des-

tination and by way of that public high-

way known as the Great Falls-Augusta road which

is the main highway for joublic travel between

Great Falls, Montana, and Augusta, Montana. That
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at all times from and after the said persons left

Great Falls, Montana, up to and including the time

the automobile in which they were riding* left the

public highway and collided with the tree as here-

inafter set forth the said George S. Bardon drove,

operated and controlled the movements of said

automobile under the direction of the said E. O.

Johnson.

VIII. .

That when said automobile with the occupants

aforesaid arrived at a point within Cascade

(^ounty, Montana, on said public highway where

same has and takes its direction and course through

the town of Simms, Montana, the said George S.

Bardon, while in the employ of the defendants as

aforesaid and while under the direction of E. O.

Johnson, drove and controlled said automobile in

such a grossly negligent and reckless manner that

said automobile while traveling at a speed of ap-

proximately between fifty and sixty miles an hour

was permitted by him to turn directly from and

move off and from said public highway and crash

into and collide with a large tree growing approxi-

mately twelve feet away from and to the side of

said public [5] highway in said Cascade County,

Montana. That at the time and place on said high-

way when and where said automobile was per-

mitted by the said George S. Bardon to leave said

highway and collide with the tree aforesaid the

said highway was approximately thirty feet wide

in good and safe condition for travel by automobile
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and other means of conveyance and extended in an

approximate straight line with a clear and imob-

structed view for a distance of approximately one-

half mile West and approximately one mile East

from the place on said highw^ay where the automo-

bile driven at the time by aforesaid George S.

Bardon was permitted by said George S. Bardon

to leave the public highway and crash into the tree

as aforesaid.

IX.

That by reason of said automobile being per-

mitted by the said George S. Bardon and the said

E. 0. Johnson to move off of and away from the

public highway and collide with and crash into the

tree as aforesaid the said Roberta Doheny was

throw^n and hurled against the front seat and in-

terior of the said automobile with great force and

violence and her body was battered, bruised and

cut and as a result thereof she suffered and sus-

tained severe and serious bodily injuries and suf-

fered great bodily pain and mental anguish and

thereafter on or about the 12th day of December,

1934, as a result of the injuries sustained by her

as aforesaid Roberta Doheny died all to her great

damage in the sum of $50,000.00. That as a result

of the injuries sustained at the time and place

aforesaid Roberta Doheny was compelled to employ

the services of a physician and obtain special hos-

pital care and attention and become obligated for

the payment of same [6] to her further damage

in the sum of $50.00.
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X.

That at the time of the grossly negligent and

reckless operation of the automobile as aforesaid

and the infliction of the injuries upon Roberta

Doheny, causing her death, the said Roberta Do-

heny was of the age of eighteen years, in good

health and although she had not been employed

in a gainful occupation for approximately three

weeks she was capable of earning approximately

$60.00 per month and at the time of her death had

arranged to resume employment the following

month at a rate of compensation of approximately

$60.00 per month.

Wherefore, plaintiff prays judgment against the

defendants in the sum of $50,050.00 together with

the cost and disbursements necessarily incurred in

and by reason of the within action and for such

other and further relief as may be proper.

HALL AND McCABE,
Attorneys for Plaintiff. [7]

State of Montana

County of Cascade—ss.

E. J. McCabe being first duly sworn upon his

oath deposes and says:

That he is a member of the law firm of Hall &
McCabe, attorneys for the jilaintiff' named in the

within and foregoing complaint and that, as one of

said attorneys for plaintiff, affiant makes this affi-

davit of verification for and on behalf of plaintiff
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for the reason that said plaintiff is absent from

Cascade County, Montana, wherein her attorneys

reside and maintain their office and where this affi-

davit of verification is made;

That affiant has read the foregoing complaint,

knows the contents thereof and that same is true

to the best knowledge, information and belief of

affiant.

E. J. McCABE.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 7th day

of Jmie, 1935.

[Notarial Seal] ANNE L. PEPOS,
Notary Public for the State of Montana, residing

at Grreat Falls, Montana.

My commission expires April 28, 1938.

[Endorsed] : Filed in state 'court June 7, 1935.

[8]

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT 2.

[Title of State Court and Cause.]

SEPARATE ANSWER OF DEFENDANT
JOHN M. COVERDALE.

Comes now the defendant John M. Coverdale and

in answer to plaintiff's complaint on file herein ad-

mits, denies and alleges as follows:

I.

Answering paragraph I of the complaint this an-

swering defendant admits the allegations therein

contained.
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II.

Answering paragraph II of the coniphunt this

answering defendant admits that the defendants

John M. Coverdale and E. 0. Johnson were, on the

11th day of December 1934, and for sometime prior

thereto, liad been co-partners doing business under

the tirm, name and style of Coverdale & Johnson.

This answering defendant denies each, every and

all of the other allegations contained in said para-

graph II.

III.

Answering paragraph III of the complaint this

answering defendant admits that the defendant

E. O. Johnson was on the 11th day of December

1934 the owner of a certain Ford V8 Sedan auto-

mobile and that the same bore Montana License

plates Number [9] 13-1865 for the year 1934. This

answering defendant denies each, every and all of

the other allegations contained in said paragraph

III.

IV.

Answering paragi-aph IV of the complaint this

answering defendant admits that for a period of

time prior to the 11th day of December 1934 one

George S. Bardon was in the employ of the defend-

ant partnership Coverdale & Johnson and directly

connected with the performance by the defendant

Coverdale & Johnson of that certain written con-

tract theretofore entered into between said defend-

ant and State of Montana through the Highway

Commission, which contract is more particularly
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referred to in said complaint; this answering de-

fendant denies that the said George S. Bardon was

in the employ of defendant Coverdale & Johnson

on the said 11th day of December 1934, or any time

thereafter. This answering defendant denies each,

every and all of the other allegations in said para-

graph IV.

V.

Answering paragraphs V and VI of the com-

plaint this answering defendant admits the allega-

tions therein contained.

VI.

Answering paragraph VII of the complaint this

answering defendant alleges that he has not suf-

ficient information upon which to base a belief with

respect thereto and therefore denies each, every

and all of the allegations therein contained.

In this connection this answering defendant al-

leges that if the said Roberta Doheny and her sister

Marguerite Doheny did [10] accompany the said

defendant E. O. Johnson and the said George S.

Bardon from Augusta to Great Falls, Montana and

return on the said 10th day of December 1934 in

said automobile owned by the said defendant E. O.

Johnson, the said defendant E. O. Johnson

and the said George S. Bardon had not

been instructed or directed, or granted permission

or authority by the defendant John M. Coverdale

or by the defendant partnership Coverdale & John-

son to invite, request, permit or allow any person

and/or particularly the said Roberta Doheny and
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Marguerite Doheny to ride in said Ford V8 Sedan

automobile belonging to the defendant E. O. John-

son on said trip from Augusta, Montana to Great

Falls, Montana and return. This answering defend-

ant further alleges that the defendant E, O. John-

son and/or George S. Bardon did not have any

right, authority, permission or allowance from the

defendant John M. Coverdale or the defendant

partnership, Coverdale & Johnson to permit or al-

low any person or persons and/or particularly said

Roberta Doheny and Marguerite Doheny to ride in

said Ford V8 Sedan automobile at said time and

place.

This answering defendant further alleges that if

the said Roberta Doheny and Marguerite Doheny

did actually ride in said Ford V8 Sedan automo-

bile belonging to the defendant E. O. Johnson at

said time and place, with the said defendant E. O.

Johnson and George S. Bardon, the said Mar-

guerite Doheny and Roberta Doheny did so with-

out the consent, permission, invitation or authority

of the defendant John M. Coverdale or the defend-

ant partnership Coverdale & Johnson, and if the

said Roberta Doheny and Marguerite Doheny did

actually ride with the defendant E. O. Johnson and

George S. Bardon in said Ford V8 Sedan automo-

bile [11] at said time and place, on the invitation

or with the permission or consent of the defendant

E. O. Johnson, the said defendant E. O. Johnson

was then and there acting on his ow-n behalf and

outside the scope of his authority given unto him
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by the defendant partnership Coverdale & Johnson

and not in the transaction of the business of the

defendant partnership Coverdale & Johnson and

the said defendant E. O. Johnson was not then and

there acting as a partner, servant or agent of the

defendant partnership Coverdale & Johnson or act-

ing in the course of his employment in inviting,

permitting or allowing the said Roberta Doheny

and Marguerite Doheny to ride with him in the said

automobile at the said time and place.

In this connection this answering defendant fur-

ther alleges that if the said Roberta Doheny and

Marguerite Doheny did actually ride in said Ford

V8 Sedan automobile at the said time and place,

with the defendant E. O. Johnson and said George

S. Bardon on the invitation or with the permission

or consent of George S. Bardon, the said George S.

Bardon was then and there acting in his own be-

half and outside the scope of any authority, con-

sent or j)ermission given unto him by this answer-

ing defendant or by the defendant partnership

Coverdale & Johnson and that the said George S.

Bardon w^as not then and there acting as a servant

or agent of the defendant John M. Coverdale or

the defendant partnership Coverdale & Johnson,

or acting in the course of his employment in invit-

ing, permitting or allowing the said Roberta

Doheny and Marguerite Doheny to ride w^ith him

in said Ford V8 Sedan automobile.

This answering defendant further alleges that

by reason of the aforesaid the said Roberta Doheny
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and Marguerite Doheny in [12] so riding in said

Ford V-8 Sedan automobile were not invitees or

guests of the defendant John M. Coverdale or the

defendant partnership Coverdale & Johnson and

further alleges that the death of the said Roberta

Doheny, if resulting from injuries received while

riding in said Ford V8 Sedan automobile was not

the result of any negligence or the result of any of

the acts or omissions of this answering defendant

or of the defendant Coverdale & Johnson.

VII.

Answering paragraph VIII of the complaint this

answering defendant alleges that he has not suf-

ficient information upon which to base a belief with

respect thereto and therefore denies each, every

and all of the allegations therein contained.

VIII.

Answering paragraph IX of the complaint this

answering defendant admits that Roberta Doheny

died on or about the 12th day of December 1934.

Further answering paragraph IX this answering

defendant alleges that he has not sufficient infor-

mation upon which to base a belief with respect

thereto and therefore denies each, every and all of

the other allegations therein contained.

IX.

Further answering said complaint this answering

defendant denies each, every and all of the allega-
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tions therein contained and not hereinbefore spe-

cifically admitted, qualified or denied.

Wherefore, having fully answered this answer-

ing defendant prays that the plaintiff take nothing

by her complaint and that [13] he recover his costs

herein expended.

HOWARD TOOLE
W. T. BOONE

Attorneys for defendant,

John M. Coverdale.

State of Montana

County of Missoula—ss.

W. T. Boone, being first duly sworn upon his

oath, deposes and says: That he is one of the at-

torneys for the defendant, John M. Coverdale, in

the above entitled action; that he makes this veri-

fication on behalf of said defendant John M. Cover-

dale, for the reason that said defendant is not now
within Missoula County, Montana, where affiant

resides. That he has read the foregoing answer and

knows the contents thereof and that the same is

true to the best of his knowledge, information and

belief.

W. T. BOONE.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 23rd day

of November, 1935.

[Seal] JOHN E. PATTERSON,
Notary Public for the State of Montana; residing

at Missoula, Montana.
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State of Montana

County of Missoula—ss:

Valborg Moe, being- first duly sworn upon her

oath deposes and says: that she is over the age of

twenty-one years and is not interested in the above

entitled action; that Hall & McCabe appear as at-

torneys of record for the plaintiff in said action,

and have and maintain their of&ce in the Strain

Building at Great Falls, Montana; that Howard

Toole and W. T. Boone appear as attorneys of

record for the defendant John M. Coverdale in said

action, and have and maintain their office in the

Montana Building at Missoula, Montana. That

there is a daily commmiication by mail between

Missoula, Montana, and Great Falls, Montana; that

on the 25th day of November, 1935, this affiant

served a copy of the foregoing separate answ^er of

defendant John M. Coverdale upon the attorneys

for the plaintiff by depositing in the United States

postoffice at Missoula, Montana, in a sealed enve-

lope with postage paid, addressed to Hall & Mc-

Cabe, Attorneys at Law, Strain Building, Great

Falls, Montana, a true copy of said separate answer

of John M. Coverdale.

VALBORG MOE.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 25th day

of November, 1935.

[Seal] W. T. BOONE,
Notary Public for the State of Montana; residing

at Missoula, Montana.

My commission expires August 2, 1938. [15]

[Endorsed]: Filed in state Court Nov. 27, 1935.

[14]



vs. Ethel M. Boheny 257

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT 3.

[Title of State Court and Cause.]

SEPARATE ANSWER OF DEFENDANT
COVERDALE & JOHNSON, A CO-PART-
NERSHIP.

Comes now the defendant Coverdale & Johnson,

a co-partnership, and in answer to plaintiff's com-

plaint on file herein admits, denies and alleges as

follows

:

'

I.

Answering paragraph I of the complaint this

answering defendant admits the allegations therein

contained.

II.

Answering paragraph II of the complaint this

answering defendant admits that the defendants

John M. Coverdale and E. O. Johnson were on the

11th day of December 1934, and for sometime prior

thereto, had been co-partners doing business under

the firm, name and style of Coverdale & Johnson.

This answering defendant denies each, every and

all of the other allegations contained in said para-

graph II.

III.

Answering paragraph III of the complaint this

answering defendant admits that the defendant

E. O. Johnson was on the 11th day of December

1934 the owner of a certain Ford V8 Sedan auto-

[16] mobile and that the same bore Montana Li-

cense plates Number 13-1865 for the year 1934.
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This answering- defendant denies each, every and

all of the other allegations contained in said para-

graph III.

IV.

Answering paragraph IV of the complaint this

answering defendant admits that for a period of

time prior to the 11th day of December 1934 one

George S. Bardon was in the employ of the de-

fendant partnership Coverdale & Johnson and di-

rectly comiected with the performance by the de-

fendant Coverdale & Johnson of that certain

w^ritten contract theretofore entered into between

said defendant and State of Montana through the

Highway Commission, which contract is more par-

ticularly referred to in said complaint; this an-

swering defendant denies that the said George S.

Bardon w^as in the employ of defendant Coverdale

& Johnson on the said 11th day of December 1934,

or any time thereafter. This answering defendant

denies each, every and all of the other allegations

in said paragraph IV.

V.

Answering paragraphs V and VI of the com-

plaint this answering defendant admits the allega-

tions therein contained.

VI.

Answering paragraph VII of the comi)laint this

answering defendant alleges that it has not suf-

ficient information upon which to base a belief with

respect thereto and therefore denies each, every

and all of the allegations therein contained.
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In this connection this answering defendant al-

leges that if the said Roberta Doheny and her sister

Marguerite Doheny did [17] accompany the said

defendant E. 0. Johnson and the said George S.

Bardon from Augusta to Great Falls, Montana and

return on the said 10th day of December 1934 in

said automobile owned by the said defendant E. O.

Johnson, the said defendant E. O. Johnson and the

said George S. Bardon had not been instructed or

directed, or granted permission or authority by the

defendant Coverdale & Johnson to invite, request,

permit or allow any person and/or particularly the

said Roberta Doheny and Marguerite Doheny to

ride in said Ford V8 Sedan automobile belonging

to the defendant E. O. Johnson on said trip from

Augusta, Montana to Great Falls, Montana, and re-

turn. This answering defendant further alleges that

the defendant E. 0. Johnson and/or George S.

Bardon did not have any right, authority, permis-

sion or allowance from the defendant, Coverdale &
Johnson to permit or allow any person or persons

and/or particularly said Roberta Doheny and Mar-

guerite Doheny to ride in said Ford V8 Sedan auto-

mobile at said time and place.

This answering defendant further alleges that if

the said Roberta Doheny and Marguerite Doheny

did actually ride in said Ford V8 Sedan automobile

belonging to the defendant E. O. Johnson at said

time and i)lace, with the said defendant E. O. John-

son and George S. Bardon, the said Roberta

Doheny and Marguerite Doheny did so without the
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consent, permission, invitation oi* authority of the

defendant Coverdale & Johnson, and if the said

Roberta Doheny and Marguerite Doheny did ac-

tually ride with the defendant E. O. Johnson and

George S. Bardon in said Ford V8 Sedan automo-

bile at said time and place, on the invitation or

with the permission or consent of the defendant

E. O. Johnson, the [18] said defendant E. 0. John-

son was then and there acting on his own behalf

and outside the scope of his authority given unto

him by the defendant partnership Coverdale &
Johnson and not in the transaction of the business

of the defendant partnership Coverdale & Johnson

and the said defendant E. O. Johnson was not then

and there acting as a partner, servant or agent of

the defendant Coverdale & Johnson or acting in

the course of his employment in inviting, per-

mitting or allowing the said Roberta Doheny and

Marguerite Doheny to ride with him in the said

automobile at said time and place.

In this connection this answering defendant fur-

ther alleges that if the said Roberta Doheny and

Marguerite Doheny did actually ride in said Ford

V8 Sedan at said time and place, with the defend-

ant E. O. Johnson and George S. Bardon, on the

invitation or with the permission or consent of

George S. Bardon the said George S. Bardon was

then and there acting in his own behalf and out-

side of the scope of any authority, consent or per-

mission given unto him by this answering defend-

ant, Coverdale & Johnson and the said George S.
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Bardon was not then and there acting as a servant

or agent of the defendant Coverdale & Jolmson, or

acting in the course of his employment in inviting,

permitting or allowing the said Roberta Doheny

and Marguerite Doheny to ride with him in said

Ford V8 Sedan automobile.

This answering defendant further alleges that by

reason of the aforesaid the said Roberta Doheny

and Marguerite Doheny in so riding in said Ford

V-8 Sedan were not invitees or guests of the de-

fendant Coverdale & Johnson, and further alleges

that [19] the death of the said Roberta Doheny, if

resulting from injuries received while riding in

said Ford V8 Sedan automobile was not the result

of any negligence or the result of any of the acts

or omissions of this answering defendant Coverdale

& Johnson.

VII.

Answering paragraph VIII of the complaint this

answering defendant alleges that it has not suf-

ficient information upon which to base a belief with

respect thereto and therefore denies each, every and

all of the allegations therein contained.

VIII.

Answering paragraph IX of the complaint this

answering defendant admits that Roberta Doheny
died on or about the 12th day of December 1934.

Further answering paragraph IX this answering

defendant alleges that it has not sufficient informa-

tion upon which to base a belief with respect
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thereto and therefore denies each, every and all of

the other allegations therein contained.

IX.

Further answering said complaint this answering

defendant denies each, every and all of the allega-

tions therein contained and not hereinbefore spe-

cifically admitted, qualified or denied.

Wherefore, having fully answered this answer-

ing defendant prays that the plaintiff take nothing

by her complaint and that it recover its costs herein

expended.

HOWARD TOOLE
W. T. BOONE

Attorneys for defendant,

Coverdale & Johnson. [20]

State of Montana

County of ^lissoula—ss.

W. T. Boone, being first duly sworn upon his

oath, deposes and says: That he is one of the at-

torneys for the defendant Coverdale & Johnson in

the above entitled action; that he makes this veri-

fication on behalf of said defendant, Coverdale &

Johnson, a co-partnership, for the reason that none

of the officers or agents of said co-pai-tnership are

within Missoula County, Montana, where affiant re-

sides. That he has read the foregoing answer and

knows the contents thereof and that the same is

true to the best of his knowledge, information and

belief.

W. T. BOONE.
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Subscribed and sworn to before me this 23rd day

of November, 1935.

[Seal] JOHN E. PATTERSON,
Notary Public for the State of Montana; residing

at Missoula, Montana.

My commission expires April 22, 1937.

State of Montana

County of Missoula—ss:

Valborg Moe, being first duly sworn upon her

oath deposes and says: that she is over the age of

twenty-one years and is not interested in the above

entitled action; that Hall & McCabe appear as at-

torneys of record for the plaintiff in said action,

and have and maintain their offices in the Strain

Building at Great Ealls, Montana; that Howard

Toole and W. T. Boone appear as attorneys of

record for the defendant Coverdale & Johnson in

said action, and have and maintain their office in

the Montana Building at Missoula, Montana. That

there is a daily commiuiication by mail between

Missoula, Montana, and Great Falls, Montana; that

on the 25th day of November, 1935, this affiant

served a copy of the foregoing separate answer of

defendant Coverdale & -Johnson upon the attorneys

for the plaintiff by depositing in the United States

Postoffice at Missoula, Montana, in a sealed enve-

lope with postage paid, addressed to Hall & Mc-

Cabe, Attorneys at Law, Strain Building, Great

Falls, Montana, a true copy of said separate an-

swer of Coverdale & Johnson.

VALBORG MOE.
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Subscribed and sworn to before me this 25th day

of November, 1935.

[Seal] W. T. BOONE,
Notary Public for the State of Montana; residing

at Missoula, Montana.

My commission expires August 2, 1938. [22]

[Endorsed]: Filed in state Court Nov. 27, 1935.

[21]

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT 4

[Title of State Court and Cause.]

REPLY TO SEPARATE ANSWER OF DE-

FENDANTS COVERDALE & JOHNSON,
A CO-PARTNERSHIP.

For reply to the separate answer of defendant,

Coverdale & Johnson, herein the plaintiff admits,

denies and alleges as follows:

I.

Denies that the said defendant E. O. Johnson and

George S. Bardon had not been instructed or di-

rected or granted permission or authority by the

defendant Coverdale & Johnson to invite, request,

permit or allow any person and particularly the

said Roberta Doheny and Marguerite Doheny to

ride in said Ford V8 Sedan automobile belonging

to the defendant E. O. Johnson on said trip from

Augusta to Great Falls, Montana, and return; and,
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denies that the defendant E. O. Johnson and George

S. Bardon did not have any right, authority, per-

mission or allowance from the defendant Coverdale

& Johnson to permit or allow any person or persons

and particularly said Roberta Doheny and Margue-

rite Doheny to ride in said Ford V8 Sedan automo-

bile at the time and place referred to in paragraph

VI of said answer.

Further replying to paragraph VI of said answer

plaintiff denies that at the time of riding in said

Ford V8 Sedan automo- [23] bile belonging to de-

fendant E. O. Johnson with the said defendant E. O.

Johnson and George S. Bardon the said Roberta

Doheny and Marguerite Doheny did so without the

consent, permission, invitation or authority of de-

fendant Coverdale &j Johnson; and, denies that at

the time and place said Roberta Doheny and Mar-

guerite Doheny rode in the said Ford V8 Sedan

automobile on the invitation and with the permis-

sion and consent of the defendant E. O. Johnson

that the said defendant E. O. Johnson was then and

there acting on his own behalf and outside the scope

of his authority given imto him by the defendant

partnership Coverdale & Johnson; and, denies that

such invitation, permission and consent was not in

the transaction of the business of the defendant

partnership Coverdale & Johnson; and, denies that

the said defendant E. O. Johnson was not at the

time then and there acting as a partner, servant or

agent of the defendant partnership Coverdale &
Johnson ; and, denies that he was not then and there
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acting in the scope of his emplo^Tnent in inviting,

permitting and allowing the said Roberta Doheny

and Marguerite Doheny to ride with him in the said

automobile at the time and place mentioned.

Further replying to said paragraph VI of de-

fendant's answer plaintiff denies that at the time

the said Roberta Doheny and Marguerite Doheny

were ridmg in said Ford VS Sedan at the time and

place mentioned with the defendant E. O. Johnson

and George S. Bardon on the invitation and with

the permission and consent of said George S. Bar-

don that the said George S. Bardon was then and

there acting in his own behalf and outside the scope

of any authority, consent and permission given

unto [24] him by said defendant Coverdale & John-

son; and, denies that the said George S. Bardon was

not then and there acting as a servant and agent of

the defendant Coverdale & Johnson ; and, denies that

the said George S. Bardon was not then and there

acting in the course of his employment in inviting,

permitting and allowing the said Roberta Doheny

and Marguerite Doheny to ride with him in said

Ford V8 Sedan automobile.

Further replying to said paragraph VI of de-

fendant's answer plaintiff denies that at the time

and place the said Roberta Doheny and Marguerite

Doheny were riding in said Ford V8 Sedan automo-

bile they were not invitees or guests of the defend-

ant Coverdale & Johnson; and, denies that the

death of said Roberta Doheny resulting in injuries

received while riding in said Ford V8 Sedan auto-

mobile was not the result of any negligence or the
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result of any of the acts or omissions of said answer-

ing defendant Coverdale & Johnson.

Wherefore, having fully replied to the answer of

said defendant Coverdale & Johnson plaintiff prays

judgment in accordance with her complaint herein.

HALL & McCABE
Attorneys for Plaintiff. [25]

State of Montana,

County of Cascade—ss.

E. J. McCabe being first duly sworn upon his oath

deposes and says:

That he is one of the members of the co-partner-

ship of Hall & McCabe, attorneys for the plaintiff

named in the within and foregoing reply and that

as one of the attorneys for said plaintiff he makes

this verification on behalf of said plaintiff for the

reason that plaintiff is not within Cascade Coimty

Montana w^here her attorneys reside and where this

verification is made.

That affiant has read the foregoing reply, knows

the contents thereof, and that same is true to the

best knowledge, information and belief of affiant.

E. J. McCABE
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 4th day

of March, 1936.

[Seal] EDW. C. ALEXANDER
Notary Public for the State

of Montana, Residing at

Grreat Falls, Montana.

My commission expires Sept. 11, 1938.

[Endorsed] : Filed in State Court March 5, 1936.
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT 5

[Title of State Court and Cause.]

REPLY TO SEPARATE ANSWER OF DE-
FENDANT JOHN M. COVERDALE

For reply to the separate answer of defendant,

John M. Coverdale, herein the plaintiff admits, de-

nies and alleges as follows:

I.

Denies that the said defendant E. O. Johnson and

George S. Bardon had not been instructed or di-

rected or granted permission or authority by the

defendant Coverdale & Johnson to invite, request,

permit or allow any person and particularly the said

Roberta Doheny and Marguerite Doheny to ride in

said Ford V8 Sedan automobile belonging to the de-

fendant E .0. Johnson on said trip from Augusta to

Great Falls, Montana, and return; and, denies that

the defendant E. O. Johnson and George S. Bardon

did not have any right, authority, permission or al-

lowance from the defendant Coverdale & Johnson

and defendant John M. Coverdale to permit or al-

low any person or persons and })articularly said

Roberta Doheny and Marguerite Doheny to ride

in said Ford V8 Sedan automobile at the time and

place referred to in paragraph [27] VI of said

answer.

Further replying to paragrai)h VI of said answer

plaintiff denies that at the time of riding in said

Ford V8 Sedan automobile belonging to defendant

E. O. Johnson with the said defendant E. O. John-
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son and George S. Bardon the said Marguerite

Doheny and Roberta Doheny did so without the

consent, permission, invitation or authority of de-

fendant Coverdale & Johnson and defendant John

M. Coverdale ; and, denies that at the time and place

said Roberta Doheny and Marguerite Doheny rode

in the said Ford V8 Sedan automobile on the invita-

tion and with the permission and consent of the

defendant E. O. Johnson that the said defendant E.

O. Johnson was then and there acting on his own

behalf and outside the scope of his authority given

imto him by the defendant partnership Coverdale

& Johnson and defendant John M. Coverdale; and,

denies that such invitation, permission and consent

was not in the transaction of the business of the

defendant partnership Coverdale & Johnson and de-

fendant John M. Coverdale; and, denies that the

said defendant E. O. Johnson was not at the time

then and there acting as a partner, servant or agent

of the defendant partnership Coverdale & John-

son; and, denies that he was not then and there

acting in the scope of his employment in inviting,

permitting and allowing the said Roberta Doheny

and Marguerite Doheny to ride with him in the

said automobile at the time and place mentioned.

Further replying to said paragraph VI of de-

fendant's answer plaintiff denies that at the time

the said Roberta Doheny and Marguerite Doheny

were riding in said Ford V8 Sedan at the time

and place mentioned with the defendant E. O. John-

son and George [28] S. Bardon on the invitation

and with the permission and consent of said George
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S. Bardon that the said George S. Bardon was then

and there acting in his own behalf and outside the

scope of any authority, consent and permission

given unto him by said defendant Coverdale &

Johnson and defendant John M. Coverdale; and,

denies that the said George S. Bardon was not then

and there acting as a servant and agent of the de-

fendant Coverdale & Johnson and defendant John

M. Coverdale; and, denies that the said George S.

Bardon was not then and there acting in the course

of his employment in inviting, permitting and al-

lowing the said Roberta Doheny and Marguerite

Doheny to ride with him in said Ford V8 Sedan

automobile.

Further replying to said paragraph VI of de-

fendant's answer plaintiff denies that at the time

and place the said Roberta Doheny and Marguerite

Doheny were riding in said Ford V8 Sedan automo-

bile they were not invitees or guests of the defend-

ant Coverdale & Johnson and defendant John M.

Coverdale; and, denies that the death of said Ro-

berta Doheny resulting in injuries received while

riding in said Ford V8 Sedan automobile was not

the result of any negligence or the result of any of

the acts or omissions of said answering defendant

Coverdale & Johnson and defendant John M. Cover-

dale.

Wherefore, having fully replied to the answer of

said defendant John M. Coverdale plaintiff prays

judgment in accordance with her complaint lierein.

HALL & McCABE
Attorneys for Plaintiff. [29]
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State of Montana,

County of Cascade—ss.

E. J. McCabe being first duly sworn upon his oath

deposes and says:

That he is one of the members of the co-partner-

ship of Hall & McCabe attorneys for the plaintiff

named in the within and foregoing reply and that

as one of the attorneys for said plaintiff he makes
this verification on behalf of said plaintiff for the

reason that plaintiff is not within Cascade County,

Montana, where her attorneys reside and where this

verification is made.

That affiant has read the foregoing reply, knows
the contents thereof, and that same is true to the

best knowledge, information and belief of affiant.

E. J. McCABE
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 4th day

of March, 1936.

[Seal] EDW. C. ALEXANDER
Notary Public for the State

of Montana. Residing at

Great Falls, Montana.

My commission expires Sept. 11, 1938.

[Endorsed]
: Filed March 5, 1936 in State Court.

[30]
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT 6

[Title of State (^oiirt and Cause.]

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE

State of Montana,

County of Cascade—ss.

Marie V. Dionne being first duly sworn upon her

oath deposes and says:

That she is over the age of twenty-one years and

is not interested in the above entitled action;

That Hall & McCabe appear as attorneys of rec-

ord for the j)laintiff in said action and have and

maintain their office at Great Falls, Montana; and,

that Messrs. Howard Toole and W. T. Boone ap-

pear as attorneys of record for the defendants Cov-

erdale & Johnson, a co-partnership, and John M.

Coverdale personally in said action and have and

maintain their office in the Montana Building at

Missoula, Montana;

That there is a regular and daily communication

by United States mail between Great Falls, Mon-

tana, and Missoula, Montana;

That on the 5th day of March, 1936, this affiant

at the request of the above named attorneys for the

plaintiff served copies of the replies of j)laintiff to

the separate answers of defendants Coverdale &

Johnson and defendant John M. Coverdale upon the

[31]

attorneys for said defendants by dej)ositing in the

United States post office at Great Falls, Montana,

true and correct copies of said replies and each

thereof in a sealed envelope with postage prepaid
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thereon addressed to Messrs. Howard Toole and W.
T. Boone, Attorneys at Law, Montana Building,

Missoula, Montana for transmission and delivery to

said attorneys for said defendants in regular course

of mail.

MARIE V. DIONNE

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 5th day

of March, 1936.

[Seal] E. McCABE
Notary Public for the State

of Montana. Residing at

Great Falls, Montana.

My commission expires July 15, 1936.

[Endorsed] : Filed March 5, 1936, in State Court.

George Harper, Court Clerk; Thomas T. Davies,

Deputy. [32]

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT 7

[Title of State Court and Cause.]

ORDER TAXING COSTS AND
DISBURSEMENTS

The motion filed herein by the defendants John

M. Coverdale and Coverdale & Johnson, a co-part-

nership, to have the court tax the costs and disburse-

ments in the above entitled action and to correct

and modify the memorandmn of costs and disburse-

ments filed herein by the plaintiff, having duly and

regularly come on for hearing, and the court being

fully advised in the premises,
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It Is Ordered, that the memorandum of costs

and disbursements in the above entitled action are

taxed, determined and allowed by the court as fol-

lows :

Clerk's Fees:

Piling complaint $ 5.00

Entry of judgment 2.50

Sheriff's fees:

Serving summons 1 .51

Witnesses' Fees:

Mrs. Hosier, 140 miles @ 7^ $9.80, 2 days $6...$15.80

Mrs. J. S. Bahler, 140 miles @ 7^ $9.80,

2 days $6 15.80

Clare Garrity, one day 3.00

E. Bernhardt, one day 3.00

[33]

Fred Chamberlain, 108 mi. @ 7^ $7.56

2 days $6 13.56

Mrs. L. L. Randal, 108 mi. @ 7^ $7.56

2 days $6 _ 13.56

H. W. Doheny, 108 mi. @ 7^ $7.56 2 days $6. 13.56

Eva May Allard, 2 days 6.00

Dr. L. L. Howard, 2 days 6.00

Robert Davidson, 64 miles @ 1( $4.48,

2 days $6 10.48

Joe Ugrin, 138 miles @ 7^ $9.66,

2 days $6 15.66

Herschel James, 64 miles @ 14 $4.48,

2 days $6 10.48

Rudolph Malmgren, 64 miles @ 7^ $4.48,

2 days $6 10.48

Frank Holland, 64 miles @ 7^, $4.48,

2 days $6 10.48

Wm. Bertsche, 2 days 6.00

Nellie Fuller, 2 days 6.00

H. I. Sherman, 2 days 6.00

Jack Thompson, 2 days 6.00

J. Woodward, 2 days 6.00

Total witness fees and mileage $177.86

y2 of witness fees and mileage 88.93
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Miscellaneous costs:

Jack Thompson, photographs 15.00

Jack Raftery, Notary Public fees taking

depositions of Clare Garrity and E. Bern-

hardt 22.90

Total miscellaneous costs 37.90

% thereof 18.95

Total Costs and Disbursements $116.89

Dated this 15 day of May, 1936.

W. H. MEIGS
Judge.

[Endorsed] : Filed May 15, 1936, in State Court.

[34]

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT 8

[Title of State Court and Cause.]

VERDICT

We, the jury in the above entitled action, find in

favor of the plaintiff, Ethel M. Doheny, as admin-

istratrix of the Estate of Roberta Doheny, deceased,

and against the defendants, John M. Coverdale and

E. O. Johnson co-partners doing business under

the firm name and style of Coverdale & Johnson,

in the sum of $5,000.00.

Dated this 2nd day of May, 1936.

CLARENCE W. WILSON,
Foreman.

[Endorsed]: Filed May 2, 1936 in State Court.

[35]
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT 10

[Title of State Court and Cause.]

NOTICE OF APPEAL
To: Ethel M. Doheny, Administratrix of the Es-

tate of Roberta Dohenv, deceased, the plaintiff in

the above entitled action, and to Messrs. Hall and

McCabe, the plaintiff's attorneys and to each of you:

You and Each of You are hereby notitied that

John M. Coverdale, and Coverdale and Johnson, a

co-partnership, defendants in the above entitled

action, hereby appeal to the Supreme Court of the

State of Montana, from that certain judgment made,

given, returned, entered and filed in the above en-

titled action, in the District Court of the Eighth

Judicial District of the State of Montana, in and

for the Coimty of Cascade, on the 4th day of May,

1936, as modified by that certain Order Taxing

Costs and Disbursements, made, entered and filed

in the above entitled action on the 15th day of May,

1936, which said judgment, as modified by said order

is in favor of the plaintiff, Ethel M. [36] Doheny,

administratrix of the estate of Roberta Doheny,

deceased, and against the said defendants, John M.

Coverdale and Coverdale and Johnson, co-partners,

and is in the sum of five thousand ($5,000.00) dol-

lars, principal, and interest from the date of said

judgment until paid, at the rate of six (6) per cent,

together with plaintiff's costs, taxed in the sum of

one hundred sixteen and 89/100 ($116.89) dollars.
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This appeal is from said judgment and from the

whole thereof.

Dated this the 31st day of August, 1936.

HOWARD TOOLE
W. T. BOONE

Attorneys for John M. Cov-

erdale and Coverdale and

Johnson.

State of Montana,

County of Missoula—ss.

Valborg Moe, being first duly sworn upon her

oath deposes and says: that she is over the age of

twenty-one years and is not interested in the above

entitled action; that Hall & McCabe appear as at-

torneys of record for the plaintiff in said action,

and have and maintain their office in the Strain

Building at Great Falls, Montana; that Howard

Toole and W. T. Boone appear as attorneys of rec-

ord for the defendant Coverdale & Johnson and

defendant John M. Coverdale in said action, and

have and maintain their office in the Montana Build-

ing at Missoula, Montana. That there is a daily

communication by mail between Missoula, Mon-

tana, and Great Falls,- Montana; that on the 31st

day of August, 1936, this affiant served a copy of the

foregoing Notice of Appeal, upon the attorneys

for the plaintiff by depositing in the United States

postoffice at Missoula, Montana, in a sealed enve-

lope with postage paid, addressed to Hall & Mc-
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Cabe, Attorneys at law, Strain Building, Great

Falls, Montana, a true copy of said Notice of Appeal.

VALBORG MOE.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 31st day

of August, 1936.

[Seal] W. T. BOONE
Notary Public for the State

of Montana; residing at

Missoula, Montana.

My commission expired August 2nd, 1938. [38]

[Endorsed]: Filed Sept. 2, 1936, in State Court.

[37]

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT 11

In the Supreme Court of the State of Montana

(Affirmed)

March Term A. D. 192 1937

7630.

The Chief Justice of the Supreme Court of tlie

State of Montana

:

To the Honorable Judge of tlie District Court of

the Eighth Judicial District, in and for the County

of Cascade, Greeting.

Whereas, in the said district couii: in a cause

between Ethel M. Doheny, Administratrix of the

Estate of Roberta Doheny, deceased, Plaintiff and

Respondent, and John M. (bverdale and E. O.

Johnson, Defendants and Appellants wherein the
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judgment of the said district court, entered in said

cause on the 4th day of May A. D. 192 1936 as

modified, May 15, 1936, was in favor of the said

plaintiff and respondent and against the said de-

fendants and appellants as by the inspection of the

transcript of record of said court in said cause

which was brought into the Supreme Court of said

state by virtue of an appeal, agreeably to the

statute of said state and the rules of said Supreme

Court in such case made and provided, fully and at

large appears.

And Whereas, in the March term of This Court in

the year of our Lord, one thousand nine himdred

and Thirty-seven said cause came on to be heard

before said Supreme Court and was argued by

counsel.

Whereupon, on consideration, it is now here ad-

judged by this Court [39] that the judgment of the

said Court below, entered in this cause on the 4th

day of May A. D. 192 1936 as modified. May 15,

1936; Judgment affirmed.

Costs in this Court:

Appellant Appearance $

Respondent Appearance $

Remittitur $1.80

Said judgment to be carried into execution ac-

cording to the terms thereof.

May 20, A. D. 192 , 1937.

You, Therefore, are hereby commanded that such

execution and further proceedings be had in said
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cause as, according to right and justice, and the

laws of the State of Montana ought to he had, said

appeal notwithstanding.

Witness: The Honorable W. B. Sands, Cliief Jus-

tice of the Supreme Court of the State of Montana,

this 4th day of June, A. D. 192 1937.

[Seal of the Su- A. T. PORTER
preme Court of the Clerk of the Supreme

State of Montana.] Court of the State of

Montana.

[Endorsed]: Filed June 5, 1937 in State Court.

[40]

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT 12

[Title of State Court and Cause.]

NOTICE OF FILING REMITTITUR

To the above named Defendants and to Messrs.

Howard Toole and W. T. Boone, their Attorneys

:

You, and Each of You, will please take notice

that on June 5, 1937 Remittitur from the Supreme

Court of the State of Montana affirming the judg-

ment in the above entitled court and cause was filed

in the above entitled Court.

Dated this 5th day of Jmie, 1937.

E. J. McCABE
H. C. HALL

Attorneys for Plaintiff.

[Endorsed] : Filed June 17, 1937 in State Court.

[41]
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT 13

[Title of State Court and Cause.]

EXECUTION WRIT

The State of Montana,

To the Sheriff of County of Deer Lodge, Greeting:

Whereas, on the 4th day of May, A. D. 1936 Ethel

M. Doheny, as Administratrix of the Estate of

Roberta Doheny, deceased, recovered a Judgment in

the said District Court of the Eighth Judicial Dis-

trict of the State of Montana, in and for the County

of Cascade, against John M. Coverdale and E. O.

Johnson co-partners doing business under the name

and style of Coverdale & Johnson, for the sum of

Five thousand and no/lOO ($5,000.00) Dollars dam-

ages, with interest- from May 4, 1936, at the rate of

six per cent per annum until paid; together with

her costs and disbursements at the date of said

judgment, and accruing costs amounting to the sum

of One Hundred Sixteen and 89/100 ($116.89) Dol-

lars as appears to us of Record.

And Whereas, the Judgment Roll, in the action

in which said Judgment was entered, is filed in

the Clerk's office of said Court, in the County of

Cascade, and the said Judgment was docketed in

said Clerk's office, in the said Coimty, on the day

and year first above written. And the sum of

$5,116.89 with interest from May 4, 1936, at the

rate of six per cent per annum is now (at the date

of this writ) actually due on said Judgment.
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Now, You the said Sheriff, are hereby required

to make the said sum due on the said Judgment for

damages, with interest as aforesaid, and costs and

accruing costs, to satisfy the said Judgment, out of

the personal property of the said debtors, or if

sufficient personal property of said debtors cannot

be found, then out of the real property in your

county belonging to said debtors, on the day where-

on said eludgment was docketed in the said County,

or at any time thereafter, and make return of this

Writ within sixty days after your receipt hereof,

with what you have done endorsed thereon.

Witness: The Hon. C. F. Holt, Judge of the said

Eighth Judicial District of the State of Montana,

at the Court House in the Coimty of Cascade, this

17th day of August A. D. 1937.

Attest: my hand and the seal of said Court, the

day and year last above written.

[Seal] GEORGE HARPER
Clerk

By H. J. SKINNER
Deputy Clerk

Sheriff's Office

County of Deer Lodge, Montana,

I hereby certify that I received the within Ex-

ecution on August 18th, 1937, and after checking

in the County Assessor's Office and inquiring about

town I cannot find any property belonging to John

M. Coverdale personally or belonging to the co-
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partnership of John M. Coverdale and E. O. John-

son.

Dated this 21st day of August, 1937.

BARNEY L. LARSEN,
Sheriff,

By JOE SCHULTZ,
Under Sheriff. [42]

Filed Sept. 8, 1937 in State Court.

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT 14

In the District Court of the Eighth Judicial District

of the State of Montana, in and for the

County of Cascade

ETHEL M. DOHENY, as administratrix of the

Estate of MARGUERITE DOHENY, deceased.

Plaintiff,

vs.

JOHN M. COVERDALE and E. O. JOHNSON
co-partners doing business imder the firm name

and style of COVERDALE & JOHNSON,
Defendants.

COMPLAINT

Comes Now the above named plaintiff and for a

cause of action against the defendants herein com-

plains and alleges:
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I.

That on or about the 12tli day of December, 1934,

one Marguerite Doheny died intestate and, there-

after, upon petition filed in the District Court of

the First Judicial District of the State of Mon-

tana in and for the County of Lewis and Clark by

Ethel M. Doheny, the saic[ District Court of Lewis

and Clark County by an order in writing duly

given, made and entered on the 8th day of April,

1935, appointed said Ethel M. Doheny Administra-

trix of the estate of said Marguerite Doheny, de-

ceased, and directed letters of administration on

the estate of said decedent to issue to said Ethel M.

Doheny upon her taking oath and filing bond in

said estate conditioned for the faithful performance

of her duties as administratrix; and, thereafter,

pursuant to said order letters of administration

upon the estate of Marguerite Doheny were duly

issued by the said court under the [43] seal of said

court and the hand of the clerk thereof unto Ethel

M. Doheny plaintiff herein.

II.

That at all times hereinafter mentioned the de-

fendants John M. Coverdale and E. O. Johnson

were, at all times since have been, and now are co-

partners doing business imder the firm name and

style of Coverdale & Johnson.
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III.

That at all times during- the month of December,

1934, the defendant E. O. Johnson, was the owner

of a certain Ford Sedan automobile, Montana li-

cense number 13-1865 for the year 1934, and that

said automobile w^as used in connection with the

business of said John M. Coverdale and E. O.

Johnson as co-partners.

IV.

That on the 11th day of December, 1934, and

for a period of time immediately prior thereto, one

Greorge S. Bardon was in the employ of the said

defendant and engaged in work directly connected

with the performance by the defendants of that

certain written contract theretofore entered into

between said defendants and the state of Montana

through the Highway Commission of said state,

which contract is hereinafter more particularly re-

ferred to.

y.

That on or about the 21st day of September A. D.

1934, the defendants made and entered into a cer-

tain written agreement with the state of Montana

by and through the State Highway Commission

of said state of Montana, whereby the said defend-

ants [44] in consideration of the payment or pay-

ments of money specified in said contract prom-

ised and agreed to pay for all the materials and

to furnish all tools, machinery and improvements

and to do and perform all the work and labor in
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tlie construction or improvement of certain bridges

in Lewis and Clark Coimty, State of Montana, in

connection with and as a part of a certain public

liighway in said county known as the Augusta-Sun

River Road said bridges being particularly de-

scribed in said written contract as "1 concrete

bridge and 5 ti'eated timber pile trestle bridges

and stock passes". That thereafter on or about the

25th day of September, 1934, the said defendants

commenced the construction and improvement work

in accordance with the terms and provisions of

aforesaid contract; and, thereafter, up to and in-

cluding the 1st day of February, 1935, w^ere en-

gaged in the performance of the construction and

improvement work specified in said contract.

VI.

That on or about the 20th day of October, 1934,

the said defendants rented certain equipment from

E. H. Blakeslee consisting of an Ersted two drum

hoist with tractor power to be used in connection

with the performance of the construction and im-

provement work specified in the above mentioned

contract and that on or about said 20th day of Oc-

tober, 1934, the said defendants and E. H. Blakes-

lee entered into a written agreement whereby the

use of said equipment was rented to the defendants

at an agreed rental rate of $84.00 per month and the

said defendants promised and agreed to return said

equipment and unload and [45] deliver same to the

said Blakeslee in the event the rental period of
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such equipment should exceed thirty days. That

thereafter on or about October 2()th, 1934, the de-

fendants took possession and used said equipment

for a period of approximately fifty-two days in the

performance of the construction and improvement

work specified in said agreement with the State of

Montana and, thereafter, to-wit, at a time known

to defendants but unknowTi to plaintiff and between

December 1, 1934, and December 11, 1934, the said

defendants shipped said equipment to Great Falls,

Montana, for the purpose of redelivering the same

to aforesaid E. H. Blakeslee.

VII.

That on or about the 10th day of December, 1934,

at approximately 10 o'clock P. M. the aforesaid

E. O. Johnson and George S. Bardon left Augusta,

Montana, traveling in the above mentioned auto-

mobile owned by E. O. Johnson with Great Falls,

Montana, as their destination for the purpose of

imloading and delivering to E. H. Blakeslee at

Great Falls, Montana, in accordance with the terms

of the aforesaid written agreement, the aforesaid

equipment theretofore rented by the defendants

from the said Blakeslee and at the request and invi-

tation of said E. O. Johnson and George S. Bardon

to accompany them to Great Falls, Montana, while

they unloaded and delivered aforesaid equipment

and thereafter return to Augusta, Montana, the said

Marguerite and her sister Roberta Doheny accom-

panied said E. O. Johnson and George S. Bardon
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to Great Falls, Montana, in said automobile, ar-

riving at Great Falls, [46] Montana, at approxi-

mately 11:55 P. M. on the day of December 10,

1934. That upon their aiTival at Great Falls, Mon-

tana, the aforesaid equipment was unloaded and de-

livered by said defendants to E. H. Blakeslee by and

through the assistance at the time of the said E. O.

Johnson and George S. Bardon. That after said

equipment was imloaded and delivered to the said

E. H. Blakeslee the said E. O. Johnson and George

S. Bardon, Roberta Doheny and Marguerite Doheny

left Great Falls, Montana, in the above mentioned

automobile with Augusta, Montana, as their return

destination and by way of that public highway

known as the Great Falls-Augusta road which is

the main highway for public travel between Great

Falls, Montana, and Augusta, Montana. That at

all times from and after the said persons left Great

Falls, Montana, up to and including the time the

automobile in which they were riding left the pub-

lic highway and collided with the tree as herein-

after set forth the said George S. Bardon drove,

operated and controlled the movements of said auto-

mobile under the direction of the said E. O. John-

son.

VIII.

That when said automobile with the occupants

aforesaid arrived at a point within Cascade County,

Montana, on said public highway where same has

and takes its direction and course through the town

of Simms, Montana, the said George S. Bardon,
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while in the employ of the defendants as aforesaid

and while under the direction of K O. Johnson,

drove and controlled said automobile in such a

grossly negligent and reckless manner that said

automobile while traveling at a speed of approxi-

mately between [47] fifty and sixt;v^ miles an hour

was permitted by him to turn directly from and

move off and from said public highway and crash

into and collide with a large tree growing approxi-

mately twelve feet away from and to the side of

said public highway in said Cascade County, Mon-

tana. That at the time and place on said highway

when and where said automobile was permitted by

the said George S. Bardon to leave said highway and

collide with the tree aforesaid the said highway was

approximately thirty feet wide in good and safe con-

dition for travel by automobile and other means

of conveyance and extended in an approximate

straight line with a clear and imobstructed view

for a distance of approximately one-half mile West

and approximately one mile East from the place

on said highway where the automobile driven at the

time by aforesaid George S. Bardon was permitted

by said George S. Bardon to leave the public high-

way and crash into.the tree as aforesaid.

IX.

That by reason of said automobile being permit-

ted by the said George S. Bardon and the said E. O.

Johnson to move off of and away from the public

highway and collide with and crash into the tree
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as aforesaid the said Marguerite Doheny was

throwTi and hurled against the front seat and inte-

rior of the said automobile with great force and

violence and her body was battered, bruised and

cut and as a result thereof she suifered and sus-

tained severe and serious bodily injuries and suf-

fered great bodily pain and mental anguish and

thereafter on or about the 12th day of December,

1934, as a result of the injuries sustained by her as

[48] aforesaid Marguerite Doheny died all to her

great damage in the sum of $50,000.00. That as a

result of the injuries sustained at the time and

place aforesaid Marguerite Doheny was compelled

to employ the services of a physician and obtain

special hospital care and attention and become obli-

gated for the payment of same to her further dam-

age in the sum of $50.00.

X.

That at the time of the grossly negligent and

reckless operation of the automobile hereinabove

referred to and the infliction of the injuries upon

the said Marguerite Doheny, causing her death,

said Marguerite Doheny was of the age of twenty

years, in good health and was capable of earning

and was earning the sTim of approximately $60.00

per month.

Wherefore, plaintiff prays judgment against the

defendants in the sum of $50,050.00 together with

the costs and disbursements necessarily incurred in
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and by reason of the within action and for such

other and further relief as may be proper.

HALL & McCABE
Attorneys for Plaintiff. [49]

State of Montana

County of Cascade—ss.

E. J. McCabe being- first duly sworn upon his

oath deposes and says:

That he is a member of the law firm of Hall &

McCabe, attorneys for the plaintiff named in the

within and foregoing complaint and that, as one of

said attorneys for plaintiff, affiant makes this affi-

davit of verification for and on behalf of plaintiff

for the reason that said plaintiff is absent from

Cascade County, .Montana, wherein her attorneys

reside and maintain their office and where this affi-

davit of verification is made;

That affiant has read the foregoing complaint,

knows the contents thereof and that same is true

to the best knowledge, information and belief of

affiant.

E. J. McCABE.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 11th day

of June, 1935.

[Notarial Seal] ETHEL M. ROBINSON,
Notary Public for the State of Montana, residing

at Great Falls, Montana.

My commission expires April 3, 1937.

[Endorsed] : Filed June 11, 1935 in state Court.

[50]
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT 15.

[Title of State Court and Cause.]

SEPARATE ANSWER OF DEFENDANT
COVERDALE & JOHNSON, A CO-PART-
NERSHIP.

Comes now the defendant Coverdale & Johnson,

a co-partnership, and in answer to plaintiff's com-

plaint on file herein admits, denies and alleges as

follows

:

I.

Answering paragraph I of the complaint this

answering defendant admits the allegations therein

contained.

II.

Answering paragraph II of the complaint this

answering defendant admits that the defendants

John M. Coverdale and E. O. Jolmson were, on the

11th day of December 1934, and for sometime prior

thereto, had been co-partners doing business under

the firm, name and style of Coverdale & Johnson.

This answering defendant denies each, every and

all of the other allegations contamed in said para-

graj^h II.

III.

Answering paragraph III of the complaint this

answering defendant admits that the defendant

E. O. Johnson was on the 11th day of December

1934 the owner of a certain Ford V8 Sedan auto-

[51] mobile and that the same bore Montana Li-

cense plates Number 13-1865 for the year 1934.
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This answering defendant denies each, every and

all of the other allegations contained in said para-

graph III.

IV.

Answering paragraph IV of the complaint this

answering defendant admits that for a period of

time prior to the 11th day of December 1934 one

George S. Bardon was in the employ of the de-

fendant partnership Coverdale & Johnson and di-

rectly connected with the performance by the de-

fendant Coverdale & Johnson of that certain

written contract theretofore entered into between

said defendant and State of Montana through the

Highway Commission, which contract is more par-

ticularly referred to in. said complaint ; this answ^er-

ing defendant denies that the said George S.

Bardon w^as in the employ of defendant Coverdale

& Johnson on the said 11th day of December 1934,

or any time thereafter. This answering defendant

denies each, every and all of the other allegations

in said paragraph IV.

V.

Answering paragraphs V and VI of the com-

plaint this answering defendant admits the allega-

tions therein contained.

VI.

Answering paragraph VII of the complaint this

answering defendant alleges that it has not suf-

ficient information upon which to base a belief with

respect thereto and therefore denies each, every

and all of the allegations therein contained.
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In this connection this answering defendant al-

leges that if the said Marguerite Doheny and her

sister Roberta Doheny [52] did accompany the said

defendant E. O. Johnson and the said George S.

Bardon from Augusta to Great Falls, Montana and

return on the said 10th day of December 1934 in.

said automobile owned by the said defendant E. O.

Johnson, the said defendant E. O. Johnson and the

said George S. Bardon had not been instructed or

directed, or granted permission or authority by the

defendant Coverdale & Johnson to invite, request,

permit or allow any person and/or particularly the

said Marguerite Doheny and Roberta Doheny to

ride in said Ford V8 Sedan automobile belonging to

the defendant E. O. Johnson on said trip from Au-

gusta to Great Falls, Montana and return. This

answering defendant further alleges that the de-

fendant E. O. Johnson and/or George S. Bardon

did not have any right, authority, permission or al-

lowance from the defendant Coverdale & Johnson

to permit or allow any person or persons and/or

particularly said Marguerite Doheny and Roberta

Doheny to ride in said Ford V8 Sedan automobile

at said time and place.

This answering defendant further alleges that if

the said Marguerite Doheny and Roberta Doheny

did actually ride in said Ford V8 Sedan automobile

belonging to the defendant E. O. Johnson at said

time and i^lace, with the said defendant E. O. John-

son and George S. Bardon, the said Marguerite

Doheny and Roberta Doheny did so without the
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consent, permission, invitation or authority of the

defendant Coverdale & Johnson, and if the said

Marguerite Doheny and Roberta Doheny did ac-

tually ride with the defendant E. O. Johnson and

George S. Bardon in said Ford V8 Sedan automo-

bile at said time and place, on the invitation or with

the permission or consent of the defendant E. O.

[53] Johnson, the said defendant E. O. Johnson

was then and there acting on his own behalf and

outside the scope of his authority given imto him

by the defendant partnership Coverdale & Johnson

and not in the transaction of the business of the

defendant partnership Coverdale & Johnson and

the said defendant E. O. Johnson w^as not then and

there acting as a partner, servant or agent of the

defendant partnership Coverdale & Johnson or act-

ing in the course of his employment in inviting,

permitting or allowing the said Marguerite Doheny

and said Roberta Doheny to ride with him in the

said automobile at the said time and place.

In this connection this answering defendant fur-

ther alleges that if the said Marguerite Doheny and

Roberta Doheny did actually ride in said Ford V8
Sedan at said time and place, with the defendant

E. O. Johnson and George S. Bardon, on the invi-

tation or with the permission or consent of George

S. Bardon the said George S. Bardon was then and

there acting in his own behalf and outside the scope

of any authority, consent or permission given unto

him by this answering defendant Coverdale & John-

son and the said George S. Bardon was not then
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and there acting as a servant or agent of the de-

fendant Coverdale & Johnson, or acting in the

course of his employment in inviting, permitting

or allowing the said Marguerite Doheny and

Roberta Doheny to ride wdth him in said Ford V8
Sedan automobile.

This answering defendant further alleges that by

reason of the aforesaid the said Marguerite Do-

heny and Roberta Doheny in so riding in said Ford

V8 Sedan automobile were not invitees or guests of

the defendant Coverdale & Johnson and further al-

leges that the death of the said Marguerite Doheny,

if result- [54] ing from injuries received while

riding in said Ford V8 Sedan automobile was not

the result of any negligence or the result of any of

the acts or omissions of this answering defendant

Coverdale & Johnson.

VII.

Answering paragraph VIII of the complaint this

answering defendant alleges that it has not suf-

ficient information upon which to base a belief with

respect thereto and therefore denies each, every

and all of the allegations therein contained.

VIII.

Answering paragraph IX of the complaint this

answering defendant admits that Marguerite Do-

heny died on or about the 12th day of December

1934. Further answering paragraph IX this an-

swering defendant alleges that it has not sufficient

information upon which to base a belief with re-
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spect thereto and therefore denies each, every and

all of the other allegations therein contained.

IX.

Further answering said complaint this answering

defendant denies each, every and all of the allega-

tions therein contained and not hereinbefore spe-

cifically admitted, qualified or denied.

Wherefore, having fully answ^ered this answer-

ing defendant prays that the plaintiff take nothing

by her complaint and that it recover its costs herein

expended.

HOWARD TOOLE
W. T. BOONE

Attorneys for defendant,

Coverdale & Johnson. [55]

State of Montana

County of Missoula—ss.

W. T. Boone, being first duly sworn upon his

oath, deposes and says: That he is one of the at-

torneys for the defendant Coverdale & Johnson in

the above entitled action; that he makes this veri-

fication on behalf of said defendant, Coverdale &

Johnson, a co-partnership, for the reason that none

of the officers or agents of said co-partnership are

within Missoula County, Montana, where affiant re-

sides. That he has read the foregoing answer and

knows the contents thereof and that the same is

true to the best of his knowledge, information and

belief.

W. T. BOONE.
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Subscribed and sworn to before me this 23rd day

of November, 1935.

[Seal] JOHN E. PATTERSON,
Notary Public for the State of Montana; residing

at Missoula, Montana.

My commission expires April 22, 1937.

State of Montana

Coimty of Missoula—ss:

Valborg Moe, being first duly sworn upon her

oath deposes and says: that she is over the age of

twenty-one years and is not interested in the above

entitled action; that Hall & McCabe appear as at-

torneys of record for the plaintiff in said action,

and have and maintain their office in the Strain

Building at Great Falls, Montana; that Howard

Toole and W. T. Boone appear as attorneys of

record for the defendant Coverdale & Johnson in

said action, and have and maintain their office in

the Montana Building at Missoula, Montana. That

there is a daily 'communication by mail between

Missoula, Montana, and Great Falls, Montana; that

on the 25th day of November, 1935, this affiant

served a copy of the foregoing separate answer of

defendant Coverdale & Johnson upon the attorneys

for the plaintiff by depositing in the United States

postoffice at Missoula, Montana, in a sealed enve-

lope with postage paid, addressed to Hall & Mc-

Cabe, Attorneys at Law, Strain Building, Great

Falls, Montana, a true copy of said separate answer

of Coverdale & Johnson.

VALBORG MOE.
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Subscribed and sworn to before me this 25th day

of November, 1935.

[Seal] W. T. BOONE,
Notary Public for the State of Montana; residing

at Missoula, Montana.

My commission expires August 2, 1938. [57]

[Endorsed]: Filed Nov. 27, 1935 in state Court.

[56]

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT 16.

[Title of State Court and Cause.]

SEPARATE ANSWER OF DEFENDANT
JOHN M. COYERDALE.

Comes now the defendant John M. Coverdale

and in answer to plaintiff's complaint on file herein

admits, denies and alleges as follows:

I.

Answering paragraph I of the complaint this an-

swering defendant admits the allegations therein

contained.

II.

Answering paragraph II of the complaint this

answering defendant admits that the defendants

John M. Coverdale and E. O. Johnson were, on the

11th day of December 1934, and for sometime prior

thereto, had been co-partners doing business under

the firm, name and style of Coverdale & Johnson.

This answering defendant denies each, every and
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all of the other allegations contained in said para-

graph II.

III.

Answering paragraph III of the complaint this

answering defendant admits that the defendant

E. O. elohnson was on the 11th day of December

1934 the owner of a certain Ford V8 Sedan auto-

mobile and that the same bore Montana License

plates Number [58] 13-1865 for the year 1934. This

answering defendant denies each, every and all of

the other allegations contained in said paragraph

III.

IV.

Answering paragraph IV of the complaint this

answering defendant admits that for a period of

time prior to the 11th day of December 1934 one

George S. Bardon was in the employ of the de-

fendant partnership Coverdale & Johnson and di-

rectly connected with the performance by the de-

fendant Coverdale & Johnson of that certain

written contract theretofore entered into between

said defendant and State of Montana through the

Highway Commission, which contract is more par-

ticularly referred to in said complaint; this an-

swering defendant denies that the said George S.

Bardon was in the employ of defendant Coverdale

& Johnson on the said 11th day of December 1934,

or any time thereafter. This answering defendant

denies each, every and all of the other allegations

in said paragraph IV.
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V.

Answering paragraphs V and VI of the com-

plaint this answering defendant admits the allega-

tions therein contained.

VI.

Answering paragraph VII of the complaint this

answering defendant alleges that he has not suf-

ficient information upon which to hase a belief with

respect thereto and therefore denies each, every

and all of the allegations therein contained.

In this connection this answering defendant al-

leges that if the said Marguerite Doheny and her

sister Roberta Doheny [59] did accompany the said

defendant E. O. Johnson and the said George S.

Bardon from Augusta to Great Falls, Montana and

return on the said 10th day of December 1934, in

said automobile owTied by the said defendant E. O.

Johnson, the said defendant E. O. Johnson and the

said George S. Bardon had not been instructed or

directed, or granted permission or authority by the

defendant John M. Coverdale or by the defendant

partnership Coverdale & Johnson to invite, request,

permit or allow any person and/or particularly the

said Marguerite Doheny and Roberta Doheny to

ride in said Ford V8 Sedan automobile belonging

to the defendant E. O. Johnson on said trip from

Augusta to Great Falls, Montana and return. This

answering defendant further alleges that the de-

fendant E. O. Johnson and/or George S. Bardon

did not have any right, authority, permission or

allowance from the defendant John M. Coverdale
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or the defendant partnership, Coverdale & Johnson

to permit or allow any person oi' persons and/or

particularly said Marguerite Doheny and Roberta

Doheny to ride in said Ford V8 Sedan automobile

at said time and place.

This answering defendant further alleges that if

the said Marguerite Doheny and Roberta Doheny

did actually ride in said Ford VS Sedan automobile

belonging to the defendant E. O. Johnson at said

time and place, with the said defendant E. O. John-

son and George S. Bardon, the said Marguerite

Doheny and Roberta Doheny did so without the

consent, permission, invitation or authority of the

defendant John M. Coverdale or the defendant

partnership Coverdale & Johnson, and if the said

Marguerite Doheny and Roberta Doheny did ac-

tually ride with the defendant [60] E. O. Johnson

and George S. Bardon in said Ford V8 Sedan

automobile at said time and place, on the invita-

tion or with the permission or consent of the de-

fendant E. O. Johnson, the said defendant E. O.

Johnson was then and there acting on his own be-

half and outside the scope of his authority given

unto him by the defendant partnership Coverdale

& Johnson and not in the transaction of the busi-

ness of the defendant partnership Coverdale &
Johnson and the said defendant E. O. Johnson was

not then and there acting as a partner, servant or

agent of the defendant partnership Coverdale &

Johnson or acting in the course of his employment

in inviting, permitting or allowing the said Mar-

querite Doheny and said Roberta Doheny to ride
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with him in the said automobile at the said time

and place.

In this connection this answering defendant fur-

ther alleges that if the said Marguerite Doheny

and Roberta Doheny did actually ride ui said Ford

V8 Sedan at said time and place, with the defend-

ant E. O. Johnson and George S. Bardon, on the

invitation or with the permission or consent of

George S. Bardon the said George S. Bardon was

then and there acting in his own behalf and out-

side the scope of any authority, consent or permis-

sion given unto him by this answering defendant

or by the defendant partnership Coverdale & John-

son and the said George S. Bardon was not then

and there acting as a servant or agent of the de-

fendant John M. Coverdale or the defendant pai*t-

nership Coverdale & Johnson, or acting in the

course of his employment in inviting, permitting or

allowing the said Marguerite Doheny and Roberta

Doheny to ride with him in said Ford V8 Sedan

automobile.

This answering defendant further alleges that by

reason [61] of the aforesaid the said Marguerite

Doheny and Roberta Doheny in so riding- in said

Ford V-8 Sedan were not invitees or guests of the

defendant John M. Coverdale or the defendant

partnership Coverdale & Johnson and further al-

leges that the death of the said Marguerite Doheny,

if resulting from injuries received while riding in

said Ford V8 Sedan automobile was not the result

of any negligence or the result of any of the acts
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or omissions of this answering defendant or of the

defendant Coverdale & Johnson.

VII.

Answering paragraph VIII of the complaint this

answering defendant alleges that he has not suf-

ficient information upon which to base a belief with

respect thereto and therefore denies each, every

and all of the allegations therein contained.

VIII.

Answering paragraph IX of the complaint this

answering defendant admits that Marguerite Do-

heny died on or about the 12th day of December

1934. Further answering paragraph IX this an-

swering defendant alleges that he has not sufficient

information upon which to base a belief with re-

spect thereto and therefore denies each, every and

all of the other allegations therein contained.

IX.

Further answering said complaint this answering

defendant denies each, every and all of the allega-

tions therein contained and not hereinbefore spe-

cifically admitted, qualified or denied.

Wherefore, having fully answered this answer-

ing defendant [623 prays that the plaintiff take

nothing by her complaint and that he recover his

costs herein expended.

HOWARD TOOLE
W. T. BOONE

Attorneys for defendant,

John M. Coverdale.
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State of Montana

County of Missoula—ss.

W. T. Boone, being first duly sworn upon his

oath, deposes and says: That he is one of the at-

torneys for the defendant, John M. Coverdale, in

the above entitled action; that he makes this veri-

fication on behalf of said defendant John M. Cover-

dale, for the reason that said defendant is not now

within Missoula County, Montana, where affiant re-

sides. That he has read the foregoing answer and

knows the contents thereof and that the same is

true to the best of his knowledge, information and

belief.

W. T. BOONE.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 23rd day

of November, 1935.

[Seal] JOHN E. PATTERSON,
Notary Public for the State of Montana; residing

at Missoula, Montana.

My commission expires April 22, 1937. [63]

State of Montana

County of Missoula—ss.

Valborg Moe, being first duly sworn upon her

oath deposes and says: that she is over the age of

twenty-one years and is not interested in the above

entitled action; that Hall & McCabe appear as at-

torneys of record for the plaintiff in said action,

and have and maintain their office in the Strain

Building at Great Falls, Montana; that Howard
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Toole and W. T. Boone appear as attorneys of

record for the defendant »Iohn M. Coverdale in

said action, and have and maintain their office in

the Montana Building at Missoula, Montana. That

there is a daily communication by mail between

Missoula, Montana, and Great Falls, Montana; that

on the 25th day of November, 1935, this affiant

served a copy of the foregoing- separate answer of

defendant John M. Coverdale upon the attorneys

for the plaintiff by depositing in the United States

postoffice at Missoula, Montana, in a sealed enve-

lope with postage paid, addressed to Hall & Mc-

Cabe, Attorneys at Law, Strain Building, Great

Falls, Montana, a true copy of said separate an-

swer of John M. Coverdale.

VALBORG MOE.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 25th day

of November, 1935.

[Seal] W. T. BOONE,
Notary Public for the State of Montana; residing

at Missoula, Montana.

My commission expires Aug. 2nd, 1938.

[Endorsed]: Filed Nov. 27, 1935 in state Court.

[64]
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT 17.

[Title of State Court and Cause.]

REPLY TO SEPARATE ANSWER OF
DEFENDANT JOHN M. COVERDALE.

For reply to the separate answer of defendant,

John M. Coverdale, herein the plaintiff admits,

denies and alleges as follows:

I.

Denies that the said defendant E. O. Johnson

and George S. Bardon had not been instructed or

directed or granted permission or authority by the

defendant Coverdale & Johnson to invite, request,

permit or allow any person and particularly the

said Marguerite Doheny and Roberta Doheny to

ride in said Ford -VS Sedan automobile belonging

to the defendant E, O. Johnson on said trip from

Augusta to G-reat Falls, Montana, and return; and,

denies that the defendant E. O. Johnson and

George S. Bardon did not have any right, author-

ity, permission or allowance from the defendant

Coverdale & Johnson and defendant John M.

Coverdale to permit or allow any person or per-

sons and particularly said Marguerite Doheny and

Roberta Doheny to 'ride in said Ford V8 Sedan

automobile at the time and place referred to in

paragraph VI of said answer.

Further replying to paragraph VI of said An-

swer plaintiff [65] denies that at the time of riding

in said Ford V8 Sedan automobile belonging to de-

fendant E. O. Johnson with the said defendant
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E. O. Jolinson and George S. Bardon the said Mar-

guerite Doheny and Roberta Doheny did so without

the consent, permission, invitation or authority of

defendant Coverdale & Johnson and defendant

John M. Coverdale; and, denies that at the time

and place said Marguerite Doheny and Rol^erta

Doheny rode in the said Ford V8 Sedan automobile

on the invitation and with the permission and con-

sent of the defendant E. O. Johnson that the said

defendant E. O. Johnson w^as then and there acting

on his own behalf and outside the scope of his au-

thority given unto him by the defendant partner-

ship Coverdale & Johnson and defendant John M.

Coverdale; and, denies that such invitation, permis-

sion and consent was not in the transaction of the

business of the defendant partnership Coverdale &
Johnson and defendant John M. Coverdale ; and,

denies that the said defendant E. O. Johnson was

not at the time then and there acting as a partner,

servant or agent of the defendant partnership

Coverdale & Johnson; and, denies that he was not

then and there acting in the scope of his employ-

ment in inviting, permitting and allowing the said

Marguerite Doheny and Roberta Doheny to ride

with him in the said automobile at the time and

place mentioned.

Further replying to said paragraph VI of de^

fendant's answ^er plaintiff denies that at the time

and place the said Marguerite Doheny and Roberta

Doheny were riding in said Ford V8 Sedan at the

time and place mentioned with the defendant E. O.
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Johnson and George S. Bardon on the invitation

and \Jo6'\ with the permission and consent of said

George S. Bardon that the said George S. Bardon

was then and there acting m his own behalf and

outside the scope of any authority, consent and per-

mission given unto him by said defendant Cover-

dale & Johnson and defendant John M. Coverdale;

and, denies that the said George S. Bardon was not

then and there acting in the course of his employ-

ment in inviting, permitting and allowing the said

Marguerite Doheny and Roberta Doheny to ride

with him in said Ford V8 Sedan automobile.

Further replying to said paragraph VI of de-

fendant's answer plaintiff denies that at the time

and place the said Marguerite Doheny and Roberta

Doheny were riding in said Ford V8 Sedan auto-

mobile they w^ere not invitees or guests of the de-

fendant Coverdale & Johnson and defendant John

M. Coverdale; and, denies that the death of said

Marguerite Doheny resulting in injuries received

while riding in said Ford V8 Sedan automobile was

not the result of any negligence or the result of any

of the acts or omissions of said answering defend-

ant Coverdale & Johnson and defendant John M.

Coverdale.

Wherefore, having fully replied to the answer of

said defendant John M. Coverdale plaintiff prays

judgment in accordance with her complaint herein.

HALL & McCABE
Attorneys for Plaintiff. [67]
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State of Montana

County of Cascade—ss.

E. J. McCabe being first duly sworn upon his

oath deposes and says:

That he is one of the members of the co-partner-

ship of Hall & McCabe attorneys for the plaintiff

named in the within and foregoing reply and that

as one of the attorneys for said plaintiff he makes

this verification on behalf of said plaintiff for the

reason that plaintiff is not within Cascade County,

Montana where her attorneys reside and where this

verification is made.

That affiant has read the foregoing reply, knows

the contents thereof, and that same is true to the

best knowledge, information and belief of affiant.

E. J. McCABE.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 4th day

of March, 1936.

[Seal] EDW. C. ALEXANDER,
Notary Public for the State of Montana. Residing

at Great Falls, Montana.

My commission expires Sept. 11, 1938.

[Endorsed] : Filed March 5, 1936 in state Court.

[68]
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT 18.

[Title of State Court and Cause.]

REPLY TO SEPARATE ANSWER OF DE-

FENDANTS COVERDALE & JOHNSON, A
CO-PARTNERSHIP.

For reply to the separate answer of defendant,

Coverdale & Johnson, herein the plaintiff admits,

denies and alleges as follows:

I.

Denies that the said defendant E. O. Johnson

and George S. Bardon had not been instructed or

directed or granted permission or authority by the

defendant Coverdale & Johnson to invite, request,

permit or allow any person and particularly the

said Marguerite Doheny and Roberta Doheny to

ride in said Ford V8 Sedan automobile belonging

to the defendant E. O, Johnson on said trip from

Augusta to Great Falls, Montana, and return; and,

denies that the defendant E. O. Johnson and

George S. Bardon did not have any right, author-

ity, permission or allowance from the defendant

Coverdale & Johnson to permit or allow any person

or persons and particularly said Marguerite Do-

heny and Roberta Ddlieny to ride in said Ford V8
Sedan automobile at the time and place referred to

in paragraph VI of said answer.

Further replying to paragraph VI of said an-

swer plaintiff denies that at the time of riding in

said Ford V8 Sedan automo- [69] bile belonging

to defendant E. O. Johnson with the said defend-
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ant E. O. Johnson and George S. Bardon the said

Marguerite Doheny and Roberta Doheny did so

without the consent, permission, invitation or au-

thority of defendant Coverdale & Johnson; and,

denies that at the time and place said Marguerite

Doheny and Roberta Doheny rode in the said Ford

V8 Sedan automobile on the invitation and with

the permission and consent of the defendant E. O.

Johnson that the said defendant E. O, Johnson was

then and there acting on his owtl behalf and out-

side the scope of his authority given imto him by

the defendant partnership Coverdale & Joluison;

and, denies that such invitation, permission and

consent was not in the transaction of the business

of the defendant partnership Coverdale & Johnson

;

and, denies that the said defendant E. O. Johnson

was not at the time then and there acting as a part-

ner, servant or agent of the defendant partnership

Coverdale & Johnson; and, denies that he was not

then and there acting in the scope of his employ-

ment in inviting, permitting and allowing the said

Marguerite Doheny and Roberta Doheny to ride

with him in the said automobile at the time and

place mentioned.

Further replying to said paragraph VI of de-

fendant's answer plaintiff denies that at the time

the said Marguerite Doheny and Roberta Doheny

were riding in said Ford V8 Sedan at the time and

place mentioned wdth the defendant E. O. Johnson

and George S. Bardon on the invitation and with

the permission and consent of said George S.
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Bardon that the said George S. Bardon was then

and there acting' in his own behalf and outside the

scope of any authority, consent and permission

given mito him by said defen- [70] dant Coverdale

& Johnson; and, denies that the said George S.

Bardon was not then and there acting as a servant

and agent of the defendant Coverdale & Johnson;

and, denies that the said George S. Bardon was not

then and there acting in the course of his employ-

ment in inviting, permitting and allowing the said

Marguerite Doheny and Roberta Doheny to ride

with him in said Ford V8 Sedan automobile.

Further replying to said paragraph VI of de-

fendant's answer plaintiff denies that at the time

and place the said Marguerite Doheny and Roberta

Doheny were ridiijg in said Ford V8 Sedan auto-

mobile they were not invitees or guests of the de-

fendant Coverdale & Johnson; and, denies that the

death of said Marguerite Doheny resulting in in-

juries received while riding in said Ford V8 Sedan

automobile was not the result of any negligence or

the result of any of the acts or omissions of said

answering defendant Coverdale & Johnson.

Wherefore, having fully replied to the answer of

said defendant Coverdale & Johnson plaintiff prays

judgment in accordance with her complaint herein.

HALL & McCABE
Attorneys for Plaintiff. [71]
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State of Montana

County of Cascade—ss.

E. J. McCabe being first duly sworn upon his

oath deposes and says:

That he is one of the members of the co-partner-

ship of Hall & McCabe, attorneys for the plaintiff

named in the within and foregoing reply and that

as one of the attorneys for said plaintiff he makes

til is verification on behalf of said plaintiff for the

reason that i^laintiff is not within Cascade County,

Montana where her attorneys reside and where this

verification is made.

That affiant has read the foregoing reply, knows

the contents thereof, and that same is true to the

best knowledge, information and belief of affiant.

E. J. McCABE.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 4th day

of February, 1936.

[Seal] EDW. C. ALEXANDER,
Notary Public for the State of Montana, Residing

at Great Falls, Montana.

My commission expires Sept. 11, 1938.

[Endorsed] : Filed March 5, 1936 in state Court.

[72]



vs, Ethel M. DoheJiy 315

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT 19.

[Title of State Court and Cause.]

State of Montana

Coimty of Cascade—ss.

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE

Marie V. Dionne being first duly sworn upon her

oath deposes and says:

That she is over the age of twenty-one years and

is not interested in the above entitled action;

That Hall & McCabe appear as attorneys of

record for the plaintiff in said action and have and

maintain their office at Great Falls, Montana; and,

that Messrs. How^ard Toole and W. T. Boone ap-

pear as attorneys of record for the defendants

Coverdale & Johnson, a co-partnership, and John

M. Coverdale personally in said action and have

and maintain their office in the Montana Building

at Missoula, Montana;

That there is a regular and daily communication

by United States mail between Great Falls, Mon-

tana, and Missoula, Montana;

That on the 5th day of March, 1936, this affiant

at the request of the above named attorneys for the

plaintiff served copies of the replies of plaintiff to

the separate answers of defendants Coverdale &
Johnson and defendant John M. Coverdale [73]

upon the attorneys for said defendants by deposit-

ing in the United States post office at Great Falls,

Montana, true and correct copies of said replies

and each thereof in a sealed envelope with postage
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prepaid thereon addressed to Messrs. Howard

Toole and W. T. Boone, Attorneys at Law, Mon-

tana Building, Missoula, Montana for transmission

and delivery to said attorneys for said defendants

in regular course of mail.

MARIE V. DIONNE.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 5th day

of March, 1936.

[Seal] E. McCABE,
Notary Public for the State of Montana. Residing

at Great Falls, Montana.

My commission expires July 15, 1936.

[Endorsed]: Filed Mar. 5, 1936 in state Court.

[74]

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT 20.

[Title of Court and Cause.]

VERDICT

We, the jury in the above entitled action, find in

favor of the plaintiff, Ethel M. Doheny, as admin-

istratrix of the Estate of Marguerite Doheny, de-

ceased, and against the defendants, John M. Cover-

dale and E. O. Johnson, co-partners doing business

under the firm name and style of Coverdale & John-

son, in the sum of $5,000.00.

Dated this 2nd day of May, 1936.

CLARENCE W. AYILSON,

Foreman.

[Endorsed]: Filed May 2, 1936 in state Court.

r75i
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT 22.

[Title of State Court and Cause.]

NOTICE OF APPEAL
To: Ethel M. Doheny, Administratrix of the Es-

tate of Marguerite Doheny, deceased, the plaintiff

in the above entitled action, and to Messrs. Hall

and McCabe, the plaintiff's attorneys and to each

of you:

You and Each of You are hereby notified that

John M. Coverdale, and Coverdale and Johnson, a

co-partnership, defendants in the above entitled

action, hereby appeal to the Supreme Court of the

State of Montana, from that certain judgment

made, given, returned, entered and filed in the

above entitled action, in the District Court of the

Eighth Judicial District of the State of Montana,

in and for the County of Cascade, on the 4th day

of May, 1936, as modified by that certain Order

Taxing Costs and Disbursements, made, entered

and filed in the above entitled action on the 15th

day of May, 1936, which said judgment, as modi-

fied by said order is in favor of the plaintiff, Ethel

M. Doheny, administratrix of the estate of Mar-

guerite Doheny, deceased, and against the said de-

fendants, John M. Coverdale and Coverdale and

Johnson, co-partners, and is in the sum of five thou-

sand ($5,000.00) dollars, principal, and interest

from the date of said judgment imtil paid, at the

rate of six (6) percent, together with plaintiff's

costs, taxed in the sum of one hundred sixteen and

[76] 89/100 ($116.89) dollars.
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This appeal is from said judgment and from the

whole thereof.

Dated this the 31st day of August, 1936.

HOWARD TOOLE
W. T. BOONE
Attorneys for John M. Cover-

dale and Coverdale and Johnson.

State of Montana

County of Missoula—^ss:

Valborg Moe, being first duly sworn upon her

oath deposes and says: that she is over the age of

twenty-one years and is not interested in the above

entitled actionj that Hall & McCabe appear as at-

torneys of record for the plaintiff in said action,

and have and maintain their office in the Strain

Building at Great Falls, Montana; that Howard

Toole and W. T. Boone appear as attorneys of

record for the defendant Coverdale & Jolmson in

said action, and have and maintain their office in

the Montana Building at Missoula, Montana. That

there is a daily communication by mail between

Missoula, Montana, and Great Falls, Montana; that

on the 31st day of August, 1936, this affiant served

a copy of the foregoing Notice of Appeal, upon the

attorneys for the plaintiff by depositing in the

United States postoffice at Missoula, Montana, in a

sealed envelope with postage paid, addressed to

Hall & McCabe, Attorneys at Law, Strain Build-

ing, Great Falls, Montana, a ti*ue copy of said

Notice of Appeal.

VALBOEG MOE.
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Subscribed and sworn to before me this 31st day

of August, 1936.

[Seal] W. T. BOONE,
Notary Public for the State of Montana; residing

at Missoula, Montana.

My commission expires August 2nd, 1938. [78]

[Endorsed]: Filed Sept. 2, 1936 in state Court.

[77]

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT 23

[Title of State Court and Cause.]

NOTICE OF FILINO REMITTITUR

To the above named Defendants and to Messrs.

Howard Tool^ and W. T. Boone, their At-

torneys :

You, and Each of You, will please take notice that

on Jime 5, 1937 Remittitur from the Supreme Court

of the State of Montana affirming the judgment in

the above entitled coui*t and cause was filed in the

above entitled Court.

Dated this 5th day of June, 1937.

E. J. McCABE
H.'C. HALL

Attorneys for Plaintiff.

[Endorsed] : Filed June 17, 1937, in State Court.

[79]
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PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT 24

[Title of State Court and Cause.]

EXECUTION WRIT
The State of Montana,

To the Sheriff of County of Deer Lodge, Greeting:

"\^niereas, on the 4th day of May, A. D. 1936

Ethel M. Doheny, as Administratrix of the Estate

of Marguerite Doheny, deceased, recovered a Judg-

ment in the said District Court of the Eighth Ju-

dicial District of the State of Montana, in and

for the County of Cascade, against John M. Cov-

erdale and E. O. Johnson co-pai*tners doing husi-

ness under the name and style of Coverdale &John-

son for the sum of Five Thousand and no/100

($5,000.00) Dollars damages with' interest from

May 4, 1936 at the rate of six per cent per annum

until paid; together with her costs and disburse-

ments at the date of said judgment, and accruing

costs amounting to the sum of One Hundred Six-

teen and 89/100 ($116.89) Dollars as ap])ears to iis

of Record.

And Whereas, the Judgment Roll, in the action

in which said Judgment was entered, is filed in the

Clerk's office of said Court, in the County of Cas-

cade, and the said Judgment was docketed in said

Clerk's office, in the said County, on the day and

year first above written. And the sum of $5,116.89

with interest from May 4, 1936, at the rate of six

per cent per annum is now (at the date of this writ)

actually due on said Judgment.
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Now, you the said Sheriff, are hereby required

to make the said sum due on the said Judgment for

damages, with interest as aforesaid, and costs and

accruing costs, to satisfy the said Judgment, out of

the personal property of the said debtors, or if suf-

ficient personal property of said debtors cannot be

found, then out of the real property in your county

belonging to said debtors, on the day whereon said

Judgment was docketed in the said County, or at

any time thereafter, and make return of this Writ

within sixty days after your receipt hereof, with

what you have done endorsed thereon.

Witness: The Hon. C. F. Holt, Judge of the said

Eighth Judicial District of the State of Montana, at

the Court House in the County of Cascade, this

17th day of August A. D. 1937.

Attest: my hand and the seal of said Court, the

day and year last above written.

[Seal] GEORGE HARPER
Clerk

By H. J. SKINNER
Deputy Clerk

Sheriff's Office

Coimty of 'Deer Lodge, Montana

I hereby certify that I received the within Exe-

cution on August , 1937, and after checking in

the county assessor's office and inquiring about town

I cannot find any property belonging to John M.
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Coverdale personallj?- or belonging to the copartner-

ship of John M. Coverdale and E. O. Johnson.

Dated this 31st day of Augnst, 1937.

BAPNEY L. T.ARSEN,

Sheriff,

By JOE SCHULTZ,
Under Sheriff.

[Endorsed]: Filed Sept. 8, 1937 in State Court.

[80]

PLAINTIFF'S EXHIBIT 25

In the District Couii of the Eighth Judicial District

of the State of Montana, in and for the County

of Cascade.—Department No. 1.

No. 26273

ETHEL M. DOHENY, x\dministratrix of the

Estate of Roberta Doheny,

Plaintiff,

vs.

JOHN M. COVERDALE and E. O. JOHNSON,
Co-partners doing business under the firm name

and style of COVERDALE & JOHNSON,
Defendants.
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No. 26279

ETHEL M. DOHENY, Administratrix of the

Estate of Marguerite Doheny,

Plaintiff,

vs.

JOHN M. COVERDALE and E. O. JOHNSON,
Co-partners doing business under the firai name

and style of COVERDALE & JOHNSON,
Defendants.

BILL OF EXCEPTIONS

Appearances

:

For Plaintiffs

:

Mr. E. J. McCabe (of Messrs. Hall & Mc-

Cabe),

.

Great Falls, Montana.

For Defendants:

Mr. Howard Toole and Mr. W. T. Boone,

Missoula, Montana.

Before Hon. W. H. Meigs, Judge. [82]

[Title of Court and Cause.]

The above-entitled actions came on for trial on

Wednesday, April 29, 1936, before the Hon. W. H.

Meigs, Judge, sitting with a jury, duly empaneled

and sworn, Mr. E. J. McCabe (of the firm of Messrs.

Hall & McCabe) appearing as counsel for the plain-

tiff in each of said causes, and Mr. Howard Toole

and Mr. W. T. Boone appearing as comisel for the

defendants in each of said causes. Whereupon the
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following testimony was introduced and proceed-

ings had.

Mr. McCabe: May the record show tliat it is

stipulated between the parties that the two cases

of Ethel M. Doheny as Administratrix of the Estate

of Roberta Doheny and Ethel M. Doheny as Admin-

istratrix of the Estate of Marguerite Doheny versus

John M. Coverdale and K O. Jolinson will be tried

together with the consent of both parties.

The Court: Let the record so show, and in the

empaneling of a jury that coimsel will have double

the number of challenges as they are two separate

cases; they are simply being tried together because

the same facts, same counsel, same parties, for con-

venience and saving of time.

Plaintiff's Case

JACK THOMPSON,

Sworn as a witness for and on behalf of the plain-

tiff, in answer to questions put to him testified as

follow^s

:

Direct Examination

By Mr. McCabe:

Witness: My name is Jack Thompson. I reside

in Great Falls and have resided here about twenty-

two years. I am a photographer, and have been en-

gaged in that occupation for about thirty years.

Q. On December 16, 1934, were you called upon

to proceed to Simms, Montana, in Cascade County?

[84]
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(Out of the hearing of the jury)

Mr. Toole: Now, if your Honor please, I will

state to the Court before dictating the objection that

the defendant Johnson has not been served in this

action, the only two defendants being- Coverdale

and Johnson, and John M. Coverdale.

Now come the defendants John M. Coverdale and

Coverdale & Johnson and object to the introduction

of any evidence in this case upon the groimd and for

the reason that the complaint does not state a cause

of action,

First, because it fails to allege that either of the

said defendants were imder any legal duty to pro-

tect the plaintiffs intestate, or that either of the

defendants owed a,ny legal duty to either of the

Doheny girls; that the complaint further fails to

allege that either of the defendants failed to per-

form any duty, any legal duty or other obligatiou,

with respect to the Doheny girls; and that the com-

plaint further fails to allege that the injury re-

ceived by either of the Doheny gii-ls was proxi-

mately caused by any breach of duty or any negli-

gence or any delinquency of these defendants or

either of them.

Second, the complaint fails to state a cause of ac-

tion because it appears affirmatively from the face

of the complaint that Marguerite Doheny and Ro-

berta Doheny w^ere riding in the automobile of E. O.

Johnson at the time of the accident alleged in the

complaint as the guests of E. O. Johnson and one

George Bardon, and it appears affirmatively upon
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the face of the complaint that George Bardon and

E. O. Johnson, in permitting the two girls to ride

as guests, were not then and there acting as agents

or servants of the partnership or the defendant

Coverdale, but were in fact acting solely upon a mis-

sion of their own and entirely outside of the scope

of their authority and outside of the scope [85] of

the business of the partnership.

Third, the complaint fails to state a cause of

action because it fails to allege any facts upon which

proof may rest of gross negligence and reckless

operation; it fails to allege any duty owed to the

Doheny girls with respect to the two defendants, or

by the two defendants, in so far as the two girls

were guests, under the Montana gross negligence act.

(Extended argument)

The Court : The motion will be denied.

A. I was.

(Witness continuing) : I went down to Simms,

Montana, that afternoon in company with you. In

my business as photographer I am able to correctly

portray by photograph, reproduce by photograph,

the appearance of objects which I am called upon

to take pictures of; and on that afternoon, or on

December 16th, I took pictures of certain objects

that were pointed out to me at that time. At that

time I went to a garage or a place of storage in

Simms, Montana, known as Malmgren's garage,

where I saw an automobile, a Ford Sedan. There

were no other automobiles in the garage at that
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time. I am able to identify Plaintiff's proposed

Exhibit No. 1, which you show me; it is a picture

which was taken at that time in the Malmgren

garage, and correctly or accurately sets forth the

objects in that picture as they appeared at that

time. Plaintiff's proposed Exhibits numbered 3, 4,

5, 6 and 7, I am able to identify; they are pictures

which were taken by me at that time, and each of

these exhibits correctly and accurately portrays and

shows the appearance of the automobile appearing

therein as it existed at that time. I am also able

to identify Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 8, which is a

picture I took on that afternoon. It is a ])icture

of the public highw^ay, looking east, [86] running

through the town of Simms, known as the Great

Falls-Augusta Highw^ay, generally; it correctly and

accurately portrays the condition of that highway

as it existed and appeared at that time at the point

where the picture was taken. The picture was

taken approximately within the town of Simms.

It shows the highway as extending east from the

point where I took the picture. At that time my
attention was called to a large poplar, or a large

tree, to the side of the road, and the picture cor-

rectly portrays the poplar tree shown at that time.

I have marked on that exhibit, at your request, by

the word ''Tree" the tree which was pointed out to

me at that time. I later took a picture of that tree,

which is Plaintiff's proposed Exhibit 11, which

correctly portrays and shows the tree, the object
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which it purports to represent, as it existed at that

time. The tree shown in Exhibit 11, which I have

indicated by the word ^'Tree" and ''X'^ appearing

on Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 8 is the same tree.

I am able to identify Exhibit No. 9 for Plaintiff

as a picture taken at the same time, which repre-

sents another part of the same public highway run-

ning through the town of Simms, and shows the

highway extending west. I have, at your request,

on Exhibit No. 9, indicated by the word ''Tree"

the tree, which I examined at that time and whicli

had some bark scarred on it at that time, and it is

the same tree as appears on plaintiff's proposed

Exhibit No. 11.

Exhibit No. 10 for Plaintiff is a picture that was

taken at the same time, shows the highway looking

west, and is a closer-up view of the tree involved in

this matter. I have now indicated on Exhibit 10

by the word "Tree" and the letter "X" the tree in

question, which is the same one as appearing in

Plaintiff's proposed Exhibit No. 11. [87]

On each of these proposed exhibits, and on the

back of them, appear the words 'M. K. Thompson,

12/16/34," which I put on them so I could identify

them.

(No cross examination)

(Witness excused)
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R. J. WOODWARD,
sworn as a witness on behalf of the plaintiff, in

answer to questions put to him testified as follows

:

Direct Examination

By Mr. McCabe

:

Witness: My name is R. J. Woodward. I reside

in Great Ealls. I am a Civil Engineer in the employ

of the State Highway Commission, and am at the

present time employed by the State Highway Com-

mission of the State of Montana. Have been so

employed eight years.

I am acquainted with the public highway within

the State of Montana known as the Great Falls-

Augusta Public Highway, the one extending from

Great Falls, Montana, to Augusta, Montana. That

part of that road which extends from Sun River

bridge at a point east of Simms, Montana^ to

Augusta, is also known and designated as the

Augusta-Sun River road. The width of that public

highway at the time it was first constructed was

twenty-four feet from shoulder to shoulder, and

by reason of use of that highway it has become con-

siderably wider, so that on or about December 11,

1934, its width varied from about 27 feet up to

about 32 feet, and where it goes through the town

of Simms it was approximately 30 feet,—29 to 31

feet.

(No cross examination)

(Witness excused) [88]
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Mr. McCabe: Now, if your Honor please, there

have been two depositions that were taken of the

witnesses Clair Garrity and E. Bernhardt, and we
ask the Clerk to open them at this time so that they

may be received in evidence.

May the record show that the stipulation appear-

ing on each of the depositions of witnesses Clair

Garrity and E. Bernhardt in the two cases on trial

were signed by the respective attorneys for plaintiff

and defendant.

The Couii: : The record may so show.

Mr. McCabe: The first deposition I am proceed-

ing to read from is in the case of the Administratrix

of the Roberta Doheny Estate.

The Deposition of Ed Bernhardt taken, pursuant

to stipulation, before Jack Raftery, a Notary Public

in and for the State of Montana, at his office in the

County of Lewis and Clark on the 24th day of

April, 1936, commencing at 10 o'clock A. M.

E. BERNHARDT

was called as a witness, pursuant to stipulation and,

being sworn, testified as follows

:

Direct Examination

By Mr. McCabe

:

Witness: My name is Ed Berahardt; they all

call me Ed, but I si.gn my name ''E". I reside at 500

Leslie Avenue, Helena, Montana. During the months

of November and December, 1934, I was residing
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at the Randall Hotel in Augusta. I am acquainted

with John M. Coverdale, and am acquainted with

Mr. E. C. Johnson, and was acquainted with those

men in November and December, 1934. In Novem-

ber and December, 1934, I was employed by the

firm of Coverdale and Johnson; I had a truck

rented to them; I was hauling gravel; you could

call it being hired by them to drive this truck; it

was by the hour, the truck I was renting to them:

they paid me by the hour for my own sei^vdces and

the use of my truck. I was employed by them only

two months. I commenced my work around the

10th of November. My work was not continuous for

two months [89] thereafter; what I mean by that:

I would get caught up with my work and go back

to Helena again; I did that two or three times, but

a majority of the time I was employed by Cover-

dale and Johnson.

I was emploj^ed by Coverdale and Johnson on the

10th day of December, 1934, and at that time was

employed by them in connection with transporting

an Ersted, 2-drum hoist, with tractor power, be-

tween Augusta, Montana, and Great Falls, Mon-

tana. Mr. Johnson on that 10th day of December,

1934, told me to haul it to Great Falls; it was to

be taken direct to Blakeslee's yard in Great Falls.

He told me as soon as I got ready to leave to start

with it for Great Falls. That was 4 o'clock in the

afternoon when I loaded it. At that time he said he

would meet me in Great Falls, and he told me he
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would help me unload it and show me where to take

it. I wasn't acquainted in Great Falls. After he

told me this, I loaded it; it took about an hour and

a half to load the hoist; then I had dinner in

Aug-usta after I had loaded it. Then I left with

the hoist for Great Falls. This hoist was not

mounted on an automobile truck, it was just a Ford-

son Tractor, and the only thing I had to do with it

was haul it to Great Falls. I drove the conveyance

that transported the hoist.

I saw Mr. Johnson that evening in Great Falls,

Montana, I imagine it was 10:30. At that time I

wasn't acquainted with Roberta Doheny; I knew

her by sight, knew w^ho she was. I was acquainted

with Marguerite Doheny at that time.

Q. Did you see either Marguerite Doheny or

Roberta Doheny with Mr. Johnson in Great Falls?

Mr. Toole: That is objected to as irrelevant

and immaterial.

The Court: Overruled.

A. Yes. [90]

Witness: With Mr. Johnson, when I saw him,

were George Bardon, Harry Ballard—not Harry,

but his last name was Ballard—and Herb Jenson.

Q. When you saw Mr. Johnson and Mr. Bardon,

the two girls and these other two men, where were

they with respect to Mr. Johnson's Ford automo-

bile?

Mr. Toole : May we have the same objection,

so far as the two Doheny girls are concerned,

with respect to the Coverdale partnership?
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The Court: If there is nothing new, yes; if

there is anything special I would like to have it

called to my attention.

Mr. Toole: Very well.

A. They were in the Mint at a table.

Witness: After I saw Mr. Johnson I did not

immediately leave, w^e sat there and drank one glass

of beer and then left. When I left I saw Mr. John-

son, both the Doheny girls, Mr. Bardon and Jenson

and Ballard in the automobile. After I left the

Mint I went down to Blakeslee's yard in Great

Falls; I followed Mr. Johnson and these other per-

sons down there, all of whom were in the car during

all of the period of time from the time I left the

Mint until I arrived at Blakeslee's yard. George

Bardon was driving the automobile at that time.

Q. Prior to this time, did you know whether Mr.

Bardon was in the employ of Coverdale and John-

son ^(

Mr. Toole: Objected to as immaterial.

The Court : He asks if he knows ; overruled.

A. Yes, sir, he was.

Witness: I saw him do work around the con-

tract work on the highway in which Coverdale and

Johnson were engaged. He was [91] timekeeper.

Mr. Coverdale or Mr. Johnson were present at

times when I was present, in which Mr. Bardon

was keeping time.



334 V. S. Fidelity etc. Co.

(Deposition of E. Bernhardt.)

When we arrived at the Bhikeslee yard we un-

loaded the hoist after looking about a half an hour

to find a place to put it. Mr. Johnson, Mr. Ballard

and Mr. Jenson hely)ed me to actually unload the

hoist. During this time Bardon and the two girls

were sitting in the car. Mr. Bardon turned the car

aroimd to shine the lights on us so we would have

light to see where we were imloading the hoist. He
did that at the direction of Mr. Johnson. It took us,

I would say, very close to an hour to unload the

hoist. I imagine that it was 10:30 that I first saw

Mr. Johnson on that evening at the Mint, after I

arrived in Great Falls.

I was acquainted with the location of the w^ork

being done under the highway contract by Cover-

dale and Johnson on the Augusta-Sun River road.

The work consisted of wooden piling overpasses

and one concrete bridge. As to the work being all

around one place on the highway or scattered dif-

ferent places, it was scattered all over, on the Great

Falls road for a distance of ten miles, and on the

Choteau road I imagine 5 miles. I did not remain in

the employ of Ooverdale and J(»hnson until they

com])leted the work imder this contract; they were

still working when I terminated my employment.

Prior to the 10th day of December, 1934, Mr. Cover-

dale had been present in connection with the work,

and Mr. Jolmson had been present in connection

with it.
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Q. Did you hear Mr. Johnson or Mr. Coverdale

instruct the men in their employ, men on the work,

working at the time, as to the performing of any

of the work?

Mr. Toole: Objected to as immaterial, not

tending [92] to prove any issue in the case.

The Court : I cannot determine yet ; it might.

Mr. McCabe: The only purpose is to show

that both men were present working on the job,

giving directions.

Mr. Toole: Objected to because it does not

fix the time; it is immaterial; too remote; does

not prove any issue in this case, and because

nothing stated by Coverdale at that time and

place to have any bearing on the issues in the

case.

The Court: Overruled, because the young

man says he was only working there about two

months and, if it is not germane, later you can

make motion to strike.

A. Yes.

Witness: Prior to the 10th day of December

Mr. Coverdale went away and left the work, and

Mr. Johnson remained in custody, present on the

work. I was acquainted with Mr. Coverdale 's Plv-

mouth Sedan automobile, and was acquainted with

Mr. Johnson ^s automobile, a 1934 V-8 Ford Sedan.

Q. Do you know whether those automobiles were

used for or by Mr. Coverdale and Johnson in con-

nection with the work under the highway contract?
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Mr. Toole: That is objected to because it is

immaterial, does not tend to prove or disprove

any of the issues in this case, it being imma-

terial as to what purposes Johnson's and Cover-

dale's automobiles were used for in connection

with the work, it being of course defendants'

contention that that does not entitle the Doheny

girls to ride in Johnson's automobile and does

not bind the defendants Coverdale and the part-

nership.

The Court: One of the instnmientalities

used by [93] the partnership in going to the

place where some equipment would be imload-

ed. It will be overruled.

A. Yes.

Q. And did you see Mr. Johnson and Mr. Cover-

dale drive those automobiles during the period of

time of this employment by Coverdale and Johnson ?

Mr. Toole: Same objection.

The Court: Overruled.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What did you see, during that time, Mr.

Coverdale and Mr. Johnson do, with reference to

driving those automobiles'?

Mr. Toole: We make the same objection to

that as made to the previous question, particu-

larly with reference to the automobile of

Coverdale; it is not involved at all.
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Tlie Court: The automobile of Mr. Coverdale

is not involved, no, and it ought to be limited

to Mr. Johnson's car, I think.

Mr. McCabe: I don't like to make this state-

ment in the presence of the jury, but I would

like to state the purpose.

The Court: No, if it is in the matter of evi-

dence, but it would seem now^ that if Mr. Cover-

dale had a car that he was using in his work

and didn't hurt anybody, that we wouldn't be

concerned with it. The only feature of it—well,

I think that that is far enough. Unless some-

thing is connected up now, I will sustain the

objection with reference to Coverdale 's car.

Mr. McCabe: Then the answer refers to that

in the plural. [94]

The Court: Can't you by agreement make it

singular ?

Mr. McCabe: I don't think we can.

The Court: Let me see it.

Mr. McCabe: I think I should be permitted

to state the purpose of it; it becomes very ma-

terial.

The Court : Sustain the objection.

Mr. McCabe: But with leave later on

The Court: Yes, naturally, but I think that

whole page will have to be sustained.

Mr. McCabe: Then I think we can shorten

this by stating the purpose of it in the absence

of the jury, because it absolutely ties me up

unless I can state my purpose to the Court.
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The Court: Let me look at it further on . . .

I will have to sustain the objection.

Mr. McCabe: May I ask leave of the Court

to later state the purpose'?

The Court: Yes.

Q. During that period of time, from the time

you first went to Augusta in the employ of Cover-

dale and Johnson until a time approximately two

months later when you left their employ, did you

ever see any other persons riding in Mr. Cover-

dale's car or automobile, being at the time driven

by Mr. Coverdale, on the road or highway which

extends from Augusta, Montana, to Great Falls,

Montana ^

The Court: I would think, Mr. McCabe, if

I may interrupt, that the objection is going to

be to all the balance of this clear down to cross-

examination. You might read the question; I

think the objection would [95] have to be sus-

tained. It might be that it would be better not

to read at this time, unless you wish.

Mr. McCabe: Then we get to the question

of Mr. Johnson's automobile:

Q. Did you ever, during that period of time, see

persons other than persons in the employ of Cover-

dale and Johnson being transpoi'ted in Mr. John-

son's automobile on the same highway at the time

Mr. Johnson was driving his automobile ?
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Mr. Toole: That is objected to as being im-

material, there being nothing about the evidence

which would tend to prove any of the issues

in this case, it being immaterial as to whether

or not Johnson hauled other people from time

to time.

The Court: It may be attempting to show

a habit on his part of hauling people.

Mr. Toole: May I have objection also that

the rides were given in the course of the part-

nership business,—^being incompetent to prove

that any rides were given in the course of part-

nership business.

The Court: That is what it says, in his op-

erating his business, immediately before. I

think you can answer with reference to Mr.

Johnson.

A. Yes.

Q. And how many times would you say you saw

such persons being driven in Mr. Johnson's auto-

mobile ?

Mr. Toole: Same objection.

The Court: Same ruling.

A. I would say, in Mr. Johnson's car, nearly

eveiy day.

Q. During that same period of time did you ever

see persons, other than persons in the employ of

Coverdale and Johnson, being [96] transported in
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an automobile in which Mr. Coverdale or Mr. John-

son were present?

Mr. Toole: Objected to on the gronnd it is

immaterial.

The Court : That brings the knowledge home

to the partnership. Overrule the objection.

A. Yes.

Q. In whose automobile was it that you saw such

persons being transported?

Mr. Toole: Same objection.

The Court: Same ruling.

A. Mr. Johnson's.

Cross Examination

By Mr. Boone.

Witness: I o^vned the tiiick, which I rented to

Coverdale and Johnson. In comiection with my
duties I was hauling gravel or piling and guard

rails. On December 10, 1934, I was not on the con-

struction work all that day; I arrived on the job

about 4 :30 in the afternoon. The hoist which I later

took to Great Falls was not then in operation, not

when I arrived. They had finished using that hoist

sometime that afternoon, but I couldn't say what

time it was; I know that it was sometime in the

afternoon, and I would say early in the afternoon,

but I don't know what time it was. I did not know

where Blakeslee's yard was in Great Falls. I had

been to Great Falls before.
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I assisted with the unloading' of the hoist. It

was necessary that others help me unload it.

I have related that Mr. Bardon was present in

Great Falls when the hoist was unloaded. In the

course of my employment with Coverdale and John-

son, I had occasion to observe the hours [97] worked

by Mr. Bardon as timekeeper. He didn't have any

regular hours; I lived in the same room with Mr.

Bardon and some evenings when he was behind

with his work he worked up imtil 1 or 2 o'clock

in the morning. The work that he was doing was

on the job as timekeeper. Once in a while he would

haul something to the depot or when we needed

something he would do it. On December 10, 1934,

he was timekeeper, I don't know on that particu-

lar day when he w^ent to work; I don't know wheth-

er he went out on day shift or whether it was in

the afternoon. In December the afternoon shift w^as

in force; there was a morning shift also. As to

whether Mr. Bardon was on the morning shift or

the afternoon shift, Mr. Bardon didn't have any

shift; I couldn't say; he worked all of the time;

there was no thirty hours connected with the time-

keeper. I obsei'ved him as timekeeper checking time

on the job of the other employees; that was his

duty.

When I arrived at the Blakeslee Yard in Great

Falls to unload the hoist, Mr. Bardon stayed in

the car, and Marguerite and Roberta Doheny also

stayed in the car at that time. Mr. Bardon didn't
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get out of the car at all at the Blakeslee yard, and

offered no assistance whatever in unloading the

hoist outside of turning the lights on, but he never

got out of the car nor handled any part of the hoist

itself.

I don't know of my own knowledge who invited

Marguerite Doheny and Roberta Doheny to ride

to Great Falls on that particular occasion, and do

not know when the invitation was extended or made

to the girls. Marguerite and Roberta Doheny did

not assist in imloading the hoist, nor take any

part in connection with the work, nor have any re-

lation to that work. When I came out of the Mint

I saw Mr. Johnson, Mr. Bardon and the two Do-

heny girls get into the Johnson car. I couldn't

say the positions [98] taken by the parties in the

car, or whether Marguerite was in the front seat or

back seat. The car in which Mr. Bardon, Mr. John-

son and the two Doheny girls were riding in Great

Falls was owaied by Mr. Johnson, that is, to my
knowledge.

Redirect Examination

By Mr. McCabe.

Witness : As to the other duties that Mr. Bardon

performed besides that of timekeeper, well, if any-

thing arrived at the depot, George would get it,

any parts to be ordered and on two or three dif-

ferent occasions he helped me load guard rail posts

when we were short of help. I have heard Mr.
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Johnson make requests to Mr. Bardon on other

occasions to do work other than that of timekeep-

er; he asked him to help me unload guard rails,

guard rail posts.

Q. During the times in which you saw Mr. Bar-

don employed by Coverdale and Johnson as time-

keeper on this job, did you ever see him drive Mr.

Coverdale 's car back and forth?

Mr. Toole: Objected to as immaterial; same

objection as made to the first question.

The Court: Overrule the objection. Appar-

ently in addition to being timekeeper you might

call him a general utility man.

A. Yes.

Q. At the time 'he was driving the car, do you

know what the purpose was, what kind of work

he was doing, if any, in connection with the driv-

ing of the car?

Mr. Toole: Objected to for the same rea-

son.

The Court: Overruled.

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was it?-

A. In the evenings on different occasions he took

one fireman [99] to the bridge to keep the fire un-

der the bridge; it was cold and they had just

poured the cement.

Q. In taking that man to the bridge, did you see

Mr. Bardon drive the automobile? A. Yes.
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Q. '\'\niose automobile was it?

Mr. Toole: That is objected to as immate-

rial.

The Court: Overrule the objection.

A. He used Mr. Coverdale's and Mr. Johnson's

car, both, at different tinies.

Q. Did you ever see Mr. Bardon driving their

automobiles in which persons were being trans-

ported between Augusta and the work?

Mr. Toole: Same objection.

The Court: Overruled.

A. Yes.

Q. Approximately how many times did you see

him driving an automobile in transporting such

persons ?

Mr. Toole: That is objected to as imma-

terial.

The Court: Overruled.

A. I would say three or four times a week.

Q. Did that extend over the period of time which

you worked there? And w^hen I say 'Svhen you

worked there," I mean when you were employed

by Coverdale and Johnson. A. Yes.

Recross Examination

By Mr. Boone.

Witness: I have stated that on occasions Mr.

Bardon, in addition to his duties as timekeeper,

transported certain boards to the job and also
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helped me unload boards and equipment. However,

those chores or duties never took him out of Au-

gusta other [100] than from Augusta to the job.

In other words, I would say that his work was

confined to the territory at Augusta, from Augusta

to the job.

Mr. McCabe: Then a motion was made by Mr.

Boone; I don't know whether they w^ant to renew

it at this time or not.

Mr. Toole: Yes, I want to make that mo-

tion. Now comes the defendant John M. Cov-

erdale, individually, and the defendants Cov-

erdale and Johnson, partnership, and move to

strike out that portion of the testimony given

by the witness. which relates to the transporta-

tion of people by the defendant Coverdale.

The Court: It has not been admitted yet.

Mr. Toole: All the last part with refer-

ence to Coverdale 's car, that was with refer-

ence.

The Court: That is all right then, to strike

that, if there is any reference to Mr. Cover-

dale.

Mr. Toole: Now I move to strike all that

portion of the evidence of this witness with

respect to transportation of people by George

F. Bardon in the automobile owned by Cover-

dale, on the ground it is irrelevant and im-

material, does not tend to prove any issues in

this case.
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The Court: Overruled; it shows employ-

ment—for the consideration of the jury—by the

partnership.

Mr. McCabe: May the record show that the sub-

stance of this deposition will also be deemed to have

been read in the Marguerite Doheny estate case

as to the defendants Coverdale and Johnson.

The Court : Yes. [101]

(Jury admonished and excused imtil 9:30

a. m., April 30, 1936.)

Mr. McCabe: Now, if your Honor please, the

purpose of the testimony set forth in the deposi-

tion, and the objections to which concerning ques-

tions were sustained, is to show that in addition

to the Johnson car being used for the purpose

of transporting not only laborers and persons em-

ployed on the work, that the Coverdale car like-

wise was employed while they were performing the

work in transpoi-ting also persons, that those per-

sons not only constituted men in the employ, but

persons living along the road and other persons

that had no connection with the employment, and

that this was a constant practice, both Mr. Cover-

dale and Mr. Johnson were doing this, and the

evidence further shows that on two different oc-

casions this transportation of passengers by Mr.

Coverdale and Mr. Johnson was done while Mr.

Coverdale, in one case, was in Mr. Johnson's car
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when he was transporting these passengers and

these strangers, as well as men who were on the job,

and another occasion when Mr. Johnson was in Mr.

Coverdale's car transporting, and that this prac-

tice extended over such a period of time that Mr.

Coverdale knew or, in the exercise of ordinary

care or ordinary enquiry, should have known, he

being on the job, the purpose for which both in-

strumentalities were being used, he laiew his o^vn

was being used for this purpose in connection with

the partnership work, and he knew on one occa-

sion Mr. Johnson was using his car for that pur-

pose, and this was extending over such a period

of time w^hich brings it within the rule which

stated that w^here it is shown by the evidence

that the cars were used for the purpose of trans-

porting passengers for a period of time that the

inference may be drawn, and both partners knew

of it and acquiesced and consented to it, and there-

by extended, impliedly at least, the [102] ostensible

powers of each party and authorities.

—

QQ Fed.

(2d) 678.

The Court: Objection is that the mere fact

Coverdale transported persons in his automobile

is no reason or excuse or authority for Johnson

doing the same thing,—that is the sum and sub-

stance %

Mr. Toole: Yes.

Mr. McCabe: Yes, your Honor. But the pur-

pose of this testimony is to show that both of

them had knowledge of each of the other's trans-



348 U. S. Fidelity etc. Co.

porting passengers with the cars of the business.

The Court: That is exactly what I wanted the

authority on, that question.

Mr. Toole: Section 7997, 7998, subdivision 7.

The Court: The Court will stand adjourned un-

til tomorrow morning at 9 :30.

Thursday, April 30, 1936, 9:30 A. M.

The Court: Have you gentlemen any other cases

or do you wish the jury to retire during the ruling

on this question?

Mr. Toole: No, not as far as I am concerned.

Mr. McCabe: No, I don't think it will be neces-

sary for them to retire during the ruling.

The Court: The question was the knowledge or

the acts of Mr. Coverdale with reference to haul-

ing people in his car. The objection to that will

be sustained as to what he did himself.

As to whether he did or not have knowledge of

Mr. Johnson can be shown. The principle is some-

what like "Bobby did this and I have a right to

do it too." It is not what Coverdale did but what

Johnson did; but if Coverdale knew what Mr.

Johnson [103] was doing, that can be shown, in

addition to whether he knew it or not, if it was

done within the scope of the partnership. Of course,

all these things are going to come up later again

and will likely be considered again.

Mr. McCabe: Now, if your Honor please, we
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desire at this time now to have entered into the

record the deposition of Clair Garrity.

The deposition of Clair Garrity taken, pursu-

ant to stipulation, before Jack Raftery, a Notary

Public in and for the State of Montana, at his

office in the County of Lewis and Clark, on the

24th day of April, 1936.

CLAIR GARRITY

called as a witness, pursuant to stipulation, and

being duly sworn testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. McCabe.

Witness : My name is Clair Garrity. I reside at

100 North Rodney Street, Helena, Montana. In

the early part of December, prior to the 11th of

December, I was residing at the Randall Hotel at

Augusta, and had resided there approximately be-

tween four and five months i)rior to that time. In

December, 1934, I was acquainted with John M.

Coverdale, and at that time I was acquainted

with Mr. E. O. Johnson. Mr. Coverdale and Mr.

Johnson, to whom I .refer, were oj^erating in con-

nection with a certain road or highway contract

up there under the name of Coverdale and John-

son. I was not employed by Coverdale and John-

son. I was not employed at any time during the

month of December, 1934, by John M. Coverdale,

nor by Mr. E. O. Johnson. On the 10th of De-
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cember, 1934, I had a conversation with Mr. John-

son, of the firm of Coverdale and Johnson, relative

to going to Great Falls, Montana. [104]

'Q. What was that conversation?

Mr. Toole: That is objected to now for the

reason that those statements of Mr. Johnson,

in so far as these two Doheny girls are con-

cerned, with respect to the trip to Great Falls,

would not be binding upon the partnership nor

upon Mr. Coverdale.

The Court: I presume it is connected up,

Mr. McCabe?

Mr. McCabe : I think the next question elimi-

nates the objection.

Q. Did you see Oscar Johnson at Augusta, Mon-

tana, on the 10th of December, 1934?

A. I am not exactly sure of the dates.

Q. Well, to refresh your recollection: In the

early part of December, did you learn of a col-

lision of a car which belonged to Mr. Johnson, on

the Augusta-Great Falls highway in which persons

were injured?

A. Yes, I heard about the accident.

Q. With respect to the time you heard this about

this accident, or with respect to the day you heard

it, what was the day on which you had a conversa-

tion with Mr. Johnson relative to going to Great

Falls?
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A. It was the night before I heard of this ac-

cident that I talked to Mr. Johnson.

Q. What did Mr, Johnson say to you at that

time?

Mr. Toole: Now, the objection I stated a

moment ago is made to this question.

Mr. McCabe: The answer was not given.

Q. Well, Mr. Garrity, at that time what did you

say to Mr. Johnson ?

Mr. Toole : That is objected to for the same

reason; [105] no statements by Mr. Garrity

would be binding under any circumstances

about the partnership.

The Court: No, but if it is about partnership

business

Mr. McCabe: I think it is all comiected up;

I couldn't cover it in one question.

The Court: No, you could not, and I will

have to take your statement in connection with

that, with motion to strike if not proper.

A. I asked Mr. Johnson if I could ride to Great

Falls with him.

Q. And what did he say to you at that time?

Mr. Toole : That is objected to for the same

reason; and I move to strike the answer pre-

viously made to the previous question on the

ground and for the reason that no statements

made by Mr. Garrity could in any respect bind

the partnership nor Mr. Coverdale, nor could
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any conduct on his part bind the partnershi]:)

or Mr. Coverdale.

The Court: Well, it all depends whether it

was on partnership business or not. It may
come up later, and you will make your nota-

tions to present a motion to strike, if you wish.

A. He told me that he was going to Great Falls

that night and that I could go with him in his car.

Q. What did he say was his purpose in going

to Great Falls?

Mr. Toole: That is objected to upon the

ground and for the reason that so far as these

plaintiffs are concerned and plaintiffs intestate,

no statement by Mr. Johnson could be binding

on Mr. Coverdale or on the [106] partnership.

The Court: Objection overruled.

A. Mr. Johnson told me that he had a driver

ahead of him on the road, hauling a hoist to Great

Falls; that the driver wasn't acquainted in Great

Falls and that he was going in to show him where

this hoist should be unloaded.

Witness: I had been acquainted with Mr. Cov-

erdale and Mr. Johnson, prior to the 10th day of

December, 1934, approximately the same length of

time I resided at the Randall Hotel; that is where

I first met them; I think it was between four and

five months. I was acquainted with the automo-

bile that was operated or owned by Mr. Johnson.

I am not acquainted with the time when Coverdale
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and Johnson began operations or work in connec-

tion with the highway contract which I said they

worked on, the Augusta-Sun River highway; they

started work before I got there, and prior to my
arrival they were working on this state highway

project.

Q. Now^, had Mr. Johnson, during that period

of time in which Coverdale and Johnson were em-

ployed on this highway contract, concerning which

you have testified, ever transported you in his car

or his automobile on that road, to points on that

road, which extends betw^een Augusta, Montana, and

Great Falls, Montana?

Mr. Toole: Objected to because it is imma-

terial as to whether Johnson hauled this man
Garrity or anyone else on that road, not being

shown that the Doheny girls were along at that

time; and it is further objected to for the rea-

son that the conduct of Mr. Johnson in haul-

ing Mr. Garrity outside of the presence of Mr.

Coverdale would not be binding upon Mr. Cov-

erdale, and could not be binding upon the part-

nership; and it is further objected to because it

is not shown that he was hauling [107] Mr.

Garrity in any matter in connection within the

partnership business or within the scope of his

own authority.

The Court: The objection will be overruled

because it has a bearing on the question as to

whether the transportation and the invitation
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to the Doheny girls was not an accident or a

mistake on the part of Johnson; similar acts

would be admissible for that purpose.

A. Yes, I have ridden with Mr. Johnson.

Q. How many times would you say Mr. Johnson

had ridden you or driven you in his automobile, as

you have testified to, during that period of time?

Mr. Toole: Same objection: I call to your

Honor's attention that it does not say between

Great Falls and Augusta.

The Court: The previous question did.

Mr. McCabe: Different points on that road

where they were working.

The Court: The first question, as I under-

stood, called attention to that fact, along w^here

they were working, and this is following uj)

right at the same time.

Mr. McCabe: This is following the same

thing.

The Court : He may answer.

A. I have ridden numerous times with Mr. John-

son, but I couldn't state how many; it has been con-

siderable.

Q. Could you say approximately the total num-

ber of times?

A. Oh, I would say probably 20 or more.

Q. Mr. Garrity, on any of these occasions on

which you rode with Mr. Coverdale, was Mr. John-

son present in the car?
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Mr. Toole: Objected to for the reasons

stated. [108]

The Court: Overruled.

A. Yes.

Q. And when you were riding with Mr. John-

son, as you have testified, in his automobile, was
Mr. Coverdale any time in the car?

Mr. Toole: Same objection.

The Court: Overruled.

A. Not to my recollection.

Q. Now, Mr. Garrity, during this same period

of time in which Coverdale and Johnson were op-

erating and handling the work of their highway con-

tract, concerning which you have testified^ did you

ever see other persons transported in the automo-

bile of either Mr. Coverdale or Mr. Johnson ?

Mr. Toole: That is objected to upon the

ground and for the reason that it is immaterial

as to whether or not Mr. Coverdale in his auto-

mobile ever transported any other person, be-

cause it is not shown as to who the other per-

sons may have been, it is not shown as to

whether or not they were employees of the part-

nership or men engaged in work on the job;

that it is immaterial because the hauling of

other persons would not serve in any manner

to demonstrate the authority of Johnson or

Bardon to pick up the two Doheny girls, that

is, as to Coverdale.
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The Court: Sustain that as to Mr. Cover-

dale.

Mr. Toole: Now, it is objected to as to Mr.

Johnson because it is immaterial, does not tend

to prove any issue in this case, because the

hauling of other persons by Mr. Johnson does

not tend to prove that he had authority or right

or permission from the partnership or from

Mr. Coverdale to haul the Doheny girls in his

car. It is [109] further objected to because the

persons indicated in the question are not

named; it is not shown whether they were em-

ployees of the partnership or of Johnson, and

the time is not named, remote, and does not

tend to show or indicate any grant of authority

by the partnership or by Coverdale to Johnson

or to Bardon to pick up the two Doheny girls.

The Court: The question is subject to an-

swer Yes or No, and again it shows as to

whether Johnson was acting under accident or

mistake; it is therefore overruled until it is.

Mr. McCabe: The next answer, he doesn't

say Yes ; it reads

:

A. I used to see passengers in their cars right

along; they transported help back and forth to the

project many times.

Mr. Toole: I move that the answer be

stricken, and counsel be asked to refrain from

reading
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The Court: Yes, that will be passed. Gen-

tlemen of the Jury, you will disregard having

heard that answer. The objection will be sus-

tained to that.

Mr. McCabe : These are all the same line and

we will just skip them.

The Court : Very well.

Witness: Johnson's car was a Ford V-8. On the

evening of December 10, 1934, shortly before 8

o'clock in the evening, I saw Mr. Johnson, Mar-

guerite Doheny, Roberta Doheny and George Bar-

don in the Johnson automobile; they were inside of

the car at the time. The car was standing still when

I seen it last; I went upstairs in the hotel and Mr.

Johnson was sitting -behind the wheel the last I seen

of it; he was sitting in the driver's seat. There

were [110] two other men but I don't know their

names; they were in Augusta a short time, having

been laid off that night.

Q. At that time did Mr. Johnson say anj^hing

to you about going to Great Falls ?

Mr. Toole: Objected to as calling for hear-

say, the defendant Johnson never having been

served in this action and not being a party to

the action, and any statements made by him

would not be binding upon the partnership in

so far as they bear upon the matter of picking

up the two Doheny girls to give them a ride

to Great Falls.
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The Court: That question may come up
later, one party who is responsible for the other,

and it will be overruled.

A. Mr. Johnson asked me if I was ready to go,

that he was leaving for Great Falls and that they

were ready to go at that particular time.

Witness: This conversation I had, the last con-

versation I had with Mr. Johnson, was in the lobby

of the hotel; the others were in the car ready to

leave. When Mr. Johnson was at the wheel of the

car, that w^as after he talked to me; he went out

and got into the car immediately after; I saw him

get into the car. I did not see him drive away. The

automobile in which I saw Mr. Johnson seated in

behind the driver ^s wheel that evening that I had

this conversation with him was a Ford Sedan, V-8

automobile. It was the car that Mr. Johnson claimed

as his car.

Cross Examination

By Mr. Boone:

Witness : I was not employed by either Mr. Cov-

erdale or Mr. Johnson nor by the partnership of

Coverdale and Johnson. I [111] worked on the

Tomlinson-Arkwright road project. The conversa-

tion which I had with Mr. Johnson on the day prior

to the accident started at the dinner table, I would

say approximately 6:30 or 7 o'clock, between 6 and

7. He didn't say when he had arranged the trip

for Great Falls but he told me he was intending to

leave immediately after dinner and that if I cared

to go with him I could; however, I didn't go with
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him, because I decided that the car was overloaded

as it was, without me ; there were already six people

in the car.

I have related that on numerous occasions I have

ridden with Mr. Johnson, and the car in which I had

ridden with him was, to the best of my knowledge,

owned by him; as far as I know, it w^as owned by

Mr. Johnson. It was the same V-8 Ford involved

in this case. I couldn't say the dates of those occa-

sions w^hen I rode with him. They had small bridge

structures right along this project I was working-

on and at different times in going out to them Mr.

Johnson would let me ride as far as I was going,

where I was working. The occasions when I rode

with Mr. Johnson were when he was taking me to

my work. I was not employed by Coverdale and

Johnson, nor by Mr. Johnson nor by Mr. Coverdale,

and the work which I was performing wasn't being

done by Coverdale and Johnson. Neither Mr. Cov-

erdale nor Mr. Johnson had anything to do with

the work that I was performing. I was employed

building concrete culverts and cattle passes and in

some parts of the work being performed by Cover-

dale and Johnson they were working within, I w^ould

say, 100 yards of w^here I was working; some days

they were working altogether on the other end of

the project.

Mr. Coverdale and Mr. Johnson stayed at the

same hotel where I resided, and on the occasions

when I rode with Mr. Johnson [112] he invited me

to do so, simply to take me to work, and the rides
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were in the car owned individually by Mr. John-

son, as far as I know.

Mr. Johnson and Mr. Coverdale on numerous oc-

casions transported their own men from the hotel

to the work; it is a considerable distance from the

hotel to the bridge projects. Those w^ere the men
actually working for Coverdale and Johnson. I

also stated I seen, numerous times, had seen men
in their cars that weren't employed by them; those

men were employees of the Tomlinson-Arkwright

Company, and were men in the same position I was

exactly.

Mr. Toole: I move that the entire testimony

of Mr. Clair Garrity be stricken from the rec-

ord upon the ground and for the reason that it

does not tend to show in any respect any con-

dition from which any inference may be drawn

that it was the custom of either the partnership

or Mr. Coverdale to haul guests; the evidence

discloses that all persons referred to in Mr.

Garrity 's evidence were employees of Coverdale

and Johnson or employees of Tomlinson and

Arkwright; further shows that the Tomlinson

and Arkwright contract, their work, was con-

current with the same place as Coverdale and

Johnson, and the hauling of employees back

and forth from the job does not tend to prove

either as to Coverdale and Johnson or as to

Coverdale that any permission or right or au-

thority was given to haul the two Doheny girls
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as guests on the night of December 10, and it

does not tend to prove that when Mr. Bardon

and Mr. Johnson picked up the two Doheny

girls that they were engaged in the scope of the

business of the partnership. [113]

The Court : The motion will be denied. You
don't offer to show in the examination of Gar-

rity if Tomlinson & Arkwright and Johnson &:

Coverdale were connected in any manner,

doesn't show, and therefore, as far as they are

concerned, they are in the same position as Gar-

rity. Motion will be denied.

Mr. McCabe: Mr. Blakeslee was subpoenaed as

a witness. He is engaged in certain highway work

and, with the consent of Mr. Toole, Mr. Toole has

agreed that it may be shown in the record that on

the night of December 10, 1934, after the hoist was

delivered in Great Falls, Montana, at the Blakeslee

yard, Mr. Johnson called Mr. Blakeslee on the

phone.

Mr. Toole: No, that is not quite, it is almost,

right.

Mr. McCabe: I see that there is a stipulation

that is prepared. We will read this into the record.

Mr. Toole : The record should show, your Honor,

that we are willing to stipulate that if Mr. Blakes-

lee were here that that is what he would testify to,
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but we make the same objection to the materiality

of the evidence that we have to all the other evi-

dence in this case.

The Court: I can't hear it until it is read, you
know.

Mr. McCabe: Your Honor, please, the stipula-

tion should go farther to the fact that Mr. Blakeslee

was present in court and so testified, subject to ob-

jection.

The Court: That is what Mr. Toole now said.

STIPULATION

It is hereby stipulated and agreed, by and be-

tween the above named plaintiff and the defendant

John M. Coverdale and the defendants Coverdale

and Johnson, a co-partnership^ acting [114] by and

through their respective counsel, that if E. H.

Blakeslee of Great Falls, Montana, were called as

a witness on behalf of the plaintiff in the above en-

titled action that his testimony would be as fol-

lows:

That on or about the 20th day of October, 1934,

the said E. H. Blakeslee rented to the defendant

Coverdale & Johnson certain equipment consisting

of an Ersted two-drum hoist with tractor power

to be used by the defendant Coverdale & Johnson

in connection with the performance of the construc-

tion and improvement work on Augusta-Sun River

road.

That pursuant to said agreement the defendant

Coverdale & Johnson took possession of said hoist
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on or about the 20th day of October, 1934, and used

the same for approximately fifty-two days in con-

nection with said construction and improvement
work.

That on the 10th day of December, 1934, at about

twelve o'clock midnight the said E. O. Johnson

called the said Blakeslee at the Blakeslee home in

Great Falls. That the said Blakeslee at said time

was in bed and said Johnson told the said Blakes-

lee that he was returning the hoist and equipment

that evening and wanted to know where to put the

same. It was a cold night and said Blakeslee told

said defendant Johnson that he w^ould not go down
to his warehouse and said Blakeslee further told

said Johnson to make delivery of said hoist to the

Blakeslee loading platform at the Blakeslee ware-

house. That the said Blakeslee warehouse is in

Great Falls.

That the said Johnson had not called the said

Blakeslee concerning said hoist and equipment on

the said 10th day of December, 1934, prior to the

conversation above related, nor had the said Cover-

dale & Johnson nor either of them, nor any of their

servants or employees notified said Blakeslee prior

to the above [115] conversation that said hoist and

equipment was to be delivered on the said evening

of December 10th, 1934.

That the said Blakeslee did not assist in the un-

loading of said hoist nor did any of his employees,

servants or agents, and that said Blakeslee did not

see Johnson or any persons with him on the night
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of December 10th, 1934. That on the mornmg of

December 11th, 1934, the said Blakeslee fomid said

hoist and equipment on the platform at the said

Blakeslee warehouse.

Mr. McCabe : Now, I think the stipulation should

^o farther and say that Blakeslee was subpoenaed

as a witness, and that this evidence is admitted with

the same eifect as if he had so testified personally

in court, subject to any objection you may have.

Mr. Toole: Well, that is all right; you may let

the record show that. And then let the record show

that the defendants object to all of the evidence of-

fered in the stipulation, upon the ground and for

the reason that it is immaterial and does not tend

to prove any of the issues in this case, it being im-

material so far as the Doheny girls are concerned,

or their successors in interest, or the plaintiff in this

case, as to what Johnson was doing on the night of

December 10th with respect to the hoist, and that

any act of Johnson, in so far as the Doheny girls

are concerned, would not be binding upon the part-

nership or upon Mr. Coverdale.

The Court: Overrule the objection.
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FRED M. CHAMBERLAIN,
sworn as a witness for and on behalf of the plain-

tiff, in answer to questions put to him testified as

follows

:

Direct Examination

By Mr. McCabe

:

Witness: My name is F. M. Chamberlain. I re-

side at Augusta. [116] During the month of De-

cember, 1934, I was employed by the firm of Cov-

erdale and Johnson. At that time I was acquainted

with E. O. Johnson and was acquainted with Mr.

J. M. Coverdale. During that period of time up

to the 10th day of December, 1934, Mr. Coverdale

was present most of the time with Mr. Johnson on

the work that they were performing on the highw^ay

known as the Augusta-Great Falls Public Highway.

I couldn't say as to any certain length of time that

Mr. Coverdale had been present on that work; he

had been there off and on, had been there most of

the time until that time, until the job was finished.

While I was employed by Coverdale and Johnson

I observed a Ford Sedan V-8 automobile driven by

Mr. E. O. Johnson, but I couldn't say whether it

was used in connection with the transportation of

any employee from Augusta to the work. As to my
duties in connection with the work in December,

1934, I done some painting for them, done a little

carpenter work, and I kept that bridge hot. I

worked on this bridge for Coverdale and Johnson.

I was present on the project work at different times.

Q. During that time did you ever see or observe
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or know of the automobile owned by Mr. Johnson

being used in connection with the work that was

being performed by the partnership %

Mr. Toole: That is objected to as immaterial

and not tending to prove any issue in this case,

it being immaterial as to whether or not the

car was used at any particular time on the job,

that it does not tend to prove the general use

of the car as indicated in the pleadings in this

case.

The Coui-t: That will have to be connected,

of course, but it was a circumstance, now it is

proper to go to the jury. Objection will be

overruled. [117]

A. No, I can't say that I did.

Mr. McCabe : You may cross examine.

Mr. Toole : No cross examination.

(Witness excused.)

DR. LAWRENCE L. HOWARD,

sworn as a witness on behalf of the plaintiff, in an-

swer to questions put to him, testified as follows

:

Direct Examination

By Mr. McCabe

:

Witness: My name is Lawrence L. Howard; I

live at Great Falls, Montana, at the Racine Apart-

ments. I am a surgeon, a graduate of a medical

college, and have been admitted to practice my ])ro-
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fession in the State of Montana, and licensed to

practice. I have been practicing tw^o years in Mon-
tana. Prior to Montana I had had experience in

surgical hospitalization work or interneship work

for six years.

On the morning of December 11, 1934, I received

a call to render medical services to some persons,

and pursuant to that call I went to Simms, Mon-
tana, with an ambulance to pick up some injured

parties. When I arrived at Simms I observed per-

sons there requiring medical attention or surgical

attention ; I was told their names were Mr. Johnson

and two Doheny girls—Marguerite and Roberta. I

observed the condition of the tw^o Doheny girls at

that time. They were in a nearby house about 100

yards from where the accident had occurred. I ob-

served the injuries they had sustained and am able

to state now what they consisted of. Take, for in-

stance, Roberta, her injuries were rather numerous.

At the time Roberta was seen she was unconscious,

in very poor condition and marked shock. Her ex-

tremities were cold. She was breathing in a ster-

torious manner, and bleeding from the mouth [118]

and right ear and from a scalp wound. She was

coughing up a considerable amount of blood. She

had a deep laceration of the scalp on the right side

back of the forehead ; this laceration extended down

to the underlying bone. Her right mandible, that is

the jawbone, was broken; she had marked swelling

of the right eye and a large bruise over the right
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side of the face ; there was a puncture woimd on the

upper lip from one of the teeth; she had a large

bruise over the sternum, that is the breast bone. Her

evidence, from the physical examination, was that

she was in considerable degree of heart failure, and

there was a large amount of fluid in the lungs. There

were lacerations and abrasions of both knees.

Q. Doctor, these lacerations and injuries which

you have detailed here, are they such as ordinarily

produce physical pain?

A. May I ask a question before I answer that?

Q. Yes, you may ask.

A. May I ask if the patent is unconscious,

whether they have pain or not ?

Mr. Toole : No, object to that.

Q. Just answer the question: Were these in-

juries which you have recited, were they such as at

the time were capable of producing suffering, phys-

ical suffering and pain?

A. I am sorry I can't answer that question Yes,

air.

Q. Was the laceration on the head of such a

type as capable of producing pain and suffering?

Mr. Toole: That is objected to. The Doc-

tor has stated that at the time he found Rob-

erta her condition was such that he doesn't

know whether she was suffering pain or not.

The record does not disclose that she had sim-

ply an injury on the head. I am perfectly [119]

frank with the Court and jury, and I think
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Roberta was unconscious immediately after the

accident and that she could not suffer pain.

The Court: That is the point right there,

Mr. Toole; he should ask whether the injur-

ies were such as to render her immediately

imconscious, and he can answer on that ques-

tion as to whether or no those injuries would

cause pain and suffering.

Mr. Toole: Comisel, of course, frames his

own question. I was objecting to the question

with respect to the injury on the head alone.

The Court: Well, of course, I don't know

which was caused first. The lacerations, as T

recall, he said that there was a cut down through

the jawbone. The lacerations were on the ex-

tremities, were they not? You better develop,

Mr. McCabe, whether at the time that had

elapsed between the time the doctor arrived

and any woimd that he noticed or laceration,

that would have the immediate effect of ren-

dering her unconscious. I think that would be

better to show\

Witness: Upon my arrival to observe the con-

dition of these two 'girls, Roberta was unconscious

at that time. She died, I can't tell you the exact

minute, but approximately 10:35 a. m. on 12/11/34.

I arrived at the scene where I was called upon to

go at approximately 6:30 a. m. She lived approxi-
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mately four hours from the time I arrived there.

I was not in constant attendance upon her during

the entire period from the time I first saw her up

to the time of her death. At the time that I was

in attendance upon her she was imconscious. The

times I was not there I can't say whether she was

conscious or not, only [120] in so far as reading

the record of the nurse who was in attendance. It

would have been possible during that time for

Roberta to have become conscious at any time.

Q. And in the event that during that period

she should become conscious, were these injuries,

such as you have related, sufficient to produce

physical pain and suffering?

Mr. Toole: I object to the question on the

ground and for the reason that it is vague

and uncertain, suggestive and leading, is not

based upon any fact in the record, that there

is no evidence in the record from which the

doctor can state an expert opinion, and there-

fore calls upon him for a conclusion which he

is not qualified to give.

The Court: Overrule the objection.

A. Yes, sir.

Witness : These injuries that I have related were

of such a character as to produce the death or

cause the death of Roberta Doheny, and from my
observation of the injuries and the death of Rob-

erta Doheny I believe that those injuries were the
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cause of Roberta Doheny's death. There was con-

siderable loss of blood by the girls.

With reference to Marguerite Doheny I observed

her and gave attention to her at that time. I was

given to understand the girl I saw was Marguerite

Doheny. At the time she was seen she was imcon-

scious, breathing fairly easily, in moderate de-

gree of shock. She had considerable loss of blood

from a scalp wound extending from ear to ear

along toward the forehead, with the scalp turned

back. She was also bleeding from the right ear

and from the mouth. She had a fracture of the

right femur in the middle third. There were bruises

and contusions of the left [121] upper extremity.

The femur is the thigh bone, and the fracture was

approximately half way between the hip and the

knee. At the time I observed Marguerite Doheny

she was unconscious.

Q. And these injuries which you have related

here, in the event that Marguerite Doheny should

have regained consciousness, were they of such a

character as would inflict or cause physical pain

and suffering?

Mr. Toole: Objected to as calling for a

conclusion of the witness, not based upon any

facts in evidence, speculative and uncertain,

and no proper foundation laid.

The Court: He may answer.

A. May I answer that and say from my experi-

ence and from observation of other patients who
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have had injuries perhaps similar, one would ex-

pect them to produce pain and suffering.

Mr. Toole : May I have the answer stricken,

because it is not responsive?

The Court : Overruled.

Witness: The approximate time of Marguer-

ite's death w^as 8:45 p. m. on the same day.

From my observation of the injuries from which

Marguerite Doheny was suffering at the time, it

is my opinion that the injuries w^ere responsible

for her death.

For my services in connection with attendance

upon these two young ladies prior to their death,

the charge I made was $25.00 on each one, $50.00

altogether, which was a very reasonable charge for

the services rendered.

Cross ExamiQation

By Mr. Toole.

Witness: As far as I know, I don't believe

either one of these girls ever regained conscious-

ness after I saw them.

(Witness excused.) [122]
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EVA MAY ALLAUD,

sworn as a witness on behalf of the plaintiff, in an-

swer to questions put to her testified as follows

:

Direct Examination

By Mr. McCabe.

Witness: My name is Eva May Allard. I re-

side in Great Falls. In the month of December,

1934, I resided in Simms, Montana. I am a regis-

tered nurse, registered under the laws of the State

of Montana.

On the morning of December 11, 1934, I was

called to render professional services in the town

of Simms. It was about five o'clock in the morning.

Pursuant to that call I went on the highway to in

front of the James home and Dawson home, the

public highway known as the Great Falls-Augus-

ta road. I saw there a girl by the side of the road,

and I saw an automobile in front of a tree close

to the highway. The front part of the automobile

was right up against the tree. I saw there Robei'ta

Doheny lying alongside of the road. I was met

by Mr. James and Mr. Dawson and they took me
over to the driver; I think his name was Bardon,

or something like that; and in the back seat of

this car, inside the car, I saw Marguerite Doheny

and Mr. Johnson, whose initials I don't know.

With respect to Roberta Doheny, it being dark, T

did not at that time observe any injuries, or cuts

or lacerations on her person; they carried her in

the home before I looked to see what was wrong.
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I rendered first aid to the two girls, Marguerite

and Roberta Doheny. In rendering fii^t aid the girls

were moved on cots from the place where I first

saw them. When these girls were moved one of

them gave manifestation or sign of pain ; I only

moved one, helped move one, and that was Rob-

erta ; I stayed with her ; when we moved her I heard

a slight groan. I did not help to remove Marguerite.

I saw these girls in Mr. James' home that morn-

ing; it was then that I examined them. They [123]

seemed unconscious and in shock, and they were

covered with blood, and Marguerite had a lacera-

tion across her forehead. I did not examine her

for fractures; I thought the doctor could do that.

I was present when the doctor examined them.

With reference to Roberta, he said she had a

broken jaw, and with reference to Marguerite I

noticed a broken femur, which is the upper bone

of the leg. I don't remember whether I observed

any bruises on the girls' bodies.

Mr. McCabe: You may cross examine.

Mr. Toole: No cross examination.

(Witness excused.)
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ROBERT DAWSON,

Sworn as a witness on behalf of the plaintiff, in an-

swer to questions put to him testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. McCabe.

Witness: My name is Robert E. Dawson. I re-

side at Simms, Montana, and was residing there in

December, 1934. On the morning of December 11,

1934, I was present at a point on the public high-

way as it passes through Simms, Great Falls-

Augusta highway, where there had been an auto-

mobile collision. I looked at the watch at the time

I heard the crash, and it was twenty minutes to

five. We were sleeping in an upstairs bedroom,

and when I heard the crash I got up and picked

up a flash-light and went to the window in the

front of the house and flashed the light down in

front of the house, and it looked like there was

something down there, something dark, and I heard

some murmur. I say I heard some sort of murmur-

ing, and I just rushed back then and slip])ed on

some clothes, my wife followed me, and went out

to the car, and I found the car piled up right against

this tree; the front [124] part of the car, the

bumper, was against the tree. The time that elapsed

from the time of the crash to the time I went out to

where the car was, was about as long as it would

take a fellow to get downstairs, a minute or two,

two or three minutes probably. When I got out

there the only persons I observed at that time
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was the driver—I didn't know his name at that

time—Mr. Bardon, and Mr. Johnson in the back

seat. At that time I had a conversation witli Mr.

Bardon ; I am not just exactly sure wliat I said

at that time, but I asked him how he felt, and all

he told me w^as, "Please get me out of here, get

me out of here." I do not remember asking the

question at that time how this happened.

You discussed this case with me last week in

Simms, and as to whether you asked me whether

I had asked Mr. Bardon at that time how this hap-

pened, I am not just sure what you did ask, if I

did answer that I asked Mr. Bardon that question;

I am not sure that I did. My recollection now is

that I did not.

When I saw Mr. Bardon there at that time, the

under part of the wheel was crushed, broken off,

the front seat was shoved ahead, I couldn't say

how far, but it was shoved right up so he was

right against the wheel, and the wheel was press-

ing, he was just as far ahead as he could get, and

the front seat was jammed up against him. At that

time I did not notice any other persons in the car

besides the man in the back seat ; afterw ards I did

;

the first inkling I had that there might be any-

one else there, Mr. Johnson said ''Never mind

about me," he says, "there's a couple of girls

here," he says "get them out." So I went around

to the other side of the car, rather, my wife did,

and foimd one girl hanging out of the car, her
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feet were caug-ht in the car and she was hanging

with her head down almost to the groimd, past the

running board. Her feet were inside the car, the

seat was [125] shoved ahead and her feet were

caught under the hood, the cowl. I noticed another

young lady in the car at that time, I guess it was

Marguerite, in the back seat, and she was slumped

ahead, lying right across the bottom of the car, in

the back seat, face down, in a position back of the

front seat, just on the floor of the car. At that

time I remember asking Mr. Johnson, the man in

the back seat, the question how this happened; he

said he did not know. There was blood upon the

girls at that time; the girl in the front seat was

bleeding, was bleeding from the mouth and from a

wound on the forehead when I got there, and of

course, it was quite a while, I went to get Mr.

James before we could move any one, and after

that we noticed of course that there was blood on

Marguerite.

We had just moved in some furniture in our

house and we were going to paper the next day,

and we had to move the girls to Mr. James' house,

and he got some cots.- First, I might say, my wife,

I am not sure just who, but we moved the girl in

the front seat out, we loosened her legs, and I

just took her out of the car and laid her down on

the ground, and we got a couple of blankets and

covered her, and then Mr. James was there by that

time—I had gone to call him—and he brought some
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cots, and then we put the girls on the cots and took

them to Mr. James' house. Thereafter I examined

the road, this highway, for the distance as it went

through Simms there and in proximity to the point

where the automobile was in contact with the tree.

I observed the automobile at that time. The width

of the road at that point I know exactly, because

just yesterday Joe Ugrin was out there and he

measured the road, and it was about thirty feet;

I was there when he measured it. The road then

might have been a little bit wider than it was at

the time of the collision, but it wouldn't be any

[126] appreciable amount, approximately a cou-

ple of inches wider now than then. I observed the

condition of the gravel on that road; it was evenly

distributed over the road; there were no collections

of gravel along there at the time. The road there

is straight for a mile west and three miles east.

The tree, to which reference has been made, from

the shoulder of the road I judge it would be about

eight feet, eight or nine feet; somewhere in there,

on the south side of the road. From my house, the

tree is four feet from the fence; I imagine it is

about 15 to 20 feet to the house.

At that time I observed the automobile that was

in collision there with the tree. Plaintiff's proposed

Exhibits Nos. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6 and 7, I identify as

pictures of that automobile, and fairly and accu-

rately represent and portray substantially the con-

dition of the automobile at that time.
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Mr. Toole : We have no objection.

Mr. McCabe: Proposed Exhibits for Plain-

tiff numbers 1 to 7 inclusive may be admitted

in evidence without objection. Plaintiff's

exhibits 1 to 7 both inclusive are photograi)hs

of various parts respectively of the Ford auto-

mobile involved herein reference to which ex-

hibits and each thereof is hereby made.

Witness: I was acquainted with the condition

of the highway on that day of December 11, 1934.

There was no snow or ice on the highway at that

time and it was dry. Plaintiff's proposed Exhibit

No. 8 I identify as being a picture of that high-

way, and the tree appearing on the exhibit, indi-

cated by the word ^'Tree" and the cross mark, is

the tree to which I have referred. It is a view of

the highway looking east. The condition of the high-

way as it appears in this picture is in the same con-

dition as it was on the morning when I examined

it at the time of the collision. The picture show^s

two persons standing there with a j^art of one auto-

mobile and parts of two other automobiles, but they

were not [127] there that morning; with that ex-

ception the picture substantially represents the con-

dition as it was that morning.

Plaintiff's proposed Exhibit No. 9 I am able to

identify as a picture of that highway looking west,

and shows the tree, or portrays the tree, to which

I have referred, indicated by the word "Tree" and

a cross mark. The automobiles and persons appear-
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ing therein were not there on tlie morning of De-

cember 11th; of course, Joe Ugrin's car was there,

but at the time of the accident there were no cai'^.

When I went to examine the automobile that w^as

in contact with the tree, I then looked on the high-

way to see if there were any other cars there in

close proximity to this car, and there were none.

Proposed Exhibit No. 9 substantially shows the

condition of the highway looking west from the

point where it appears to be taken as the high-

way goes through the town of Simms, shows the

condition the gravel of the road was at the time

when I examined it that morning.

Plaintiff's proposed Exhibit No. 10, with the

tree indicated thereon by a cross, is the tree and

the point in the highway concerning which I have

testified as to where the automobile was in contact

with the tree, except that the two automobiles shown

thereon were not there at the time of the accident.

It substantially represents or portrays the condition

that the road or highway was in at that time.

On Plaintiff's proposed Exhibit No. 11 I am
able to identify the tree that is shown there, and

at your request I mark by the letter "D" (for

Dawson) where my house is. The picture substantial-

1}' represents and portrays the condition that the

tree was in after the automobile was taken away

on that morning.

(Exhibits handed to opposing counsel.)

Witness (In response to Mr. Toole) : When I

stated that the [128] pictures—Exhibits 8, 9, 10
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and 11—substantially represent the condition of the

highway at Simms on that morning, I did not

mean that they represent the surface of the high-

way or the condition it was in that morning as to

tracks or anything of that kind; what I meant

by that is that there weren't any ridges or any-

thing like that; I testified as to the smoothness of

the road, the width of the highway and general

smoothness of it, and the tree and my house. As

to the surface condition of the highway with re-

spect to tracks, of course many cars had passed

over that highway between the date of the accident

and the date when the picture was taken. I believe

any tracks that appeared there on the morning of

December 11th would be obliterated at the time the

pictures were taken.

Mr. Toole: Then we have no objection to

the admission of the exhibits, with the under-

standing that they do not portray the condi-

tion of the surface of the highway on the date

of the accident.

Mr. McCabe: I now offer in evidence Plaintiff's

Exhibits Nos. 8, 9, 10 and 11. Plaintiff's ex-

hibits numbered 8, 9, 10 and 11 are jjhotographs of

portions of the highway at and adjoining the place

where the Ford automobile collided with the tree

standing at the side of the highway, reference to

which exhibits and each thereof is hereby expressly

made.
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The Court: You say they do not portray

the surface of the highway. He says that they

do with the exception of ridges, and if there

were any tracks there they might be obliter-

ated.

Mr. Toole: Yes, that is what I mean.

Witness: (In response to Mr. McCabe) : Aft-

er this collision and we had removed the young la-

dies to the James home, as soon as it was light we

examined the road for any tracks leading from

this automobile out on to the road, and observed

tracks extending from the wheels of the automo-

bile out on to the surface of the highway, which

extended in a sort of gradual curve across the

highway to [129] the edge of the road, and then

there were tracks running along a foot in from

the shoulder of the road for quite a distance east.

These tracks that turned, it was a gradual turn

over to the left-hand side of the road. I will indi-

cate by a diagram on this paper just how much of

a turn or degree of turn those car tracks took; I

will make the tree here; I judge that is about how

it was ; I will make the two tracks as they ran from

the automobile; this was on the left side of the

tree. I believe that is just about—might have been

a little more gradual in here. I now extend the

lines of those wheels (tracks?) where I followed

it down to the right-hand side of the road, and will

indicate by the words ''Automobile Tracks." I am
sure of and never measured the distance from the
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tree where the car tracks first turned to the left,

and I never heard of any measurement, the road

is 30 feet wide there, and I imagine it would be

back 40 or 50 feet, judging from the angle of that

curve and my recollection of what I saw at that

time. The car traveled approximately 50 feet, a

little better I believe, after it stai*ted to turn before

it came in contact with the tree, fifty or sixty

feet.

Q. Will you please indicate the directions on

that and just about where the sides of the road

extended, the shoulders of the road, extend it clear

beyond, just write the words on here "Shoulder

of road," and also here "Shoulder of road." Now,

will you please indicate the directions on there by

the word "West," the road going west, and the

"East" and "North" and "South." Now I under-

stand from your testimony that the car tracks came

from the east and going in a westerly direction to

the point where the automobile stopped ?

A. Yes.

Q. And after it started to turn, the car tracks,

I take it, took a southwesterly direction up to the

point of contact with the [130] tree. A. Yes.

Mr. McCabe; We now offer in evidence Plain-

tiff's Exhibit 12.

Mr. Toole: No objection.

The Court: Admitted without objection.

(Plaintiff's exhibit 12 is a diagram made by wit-

ness Robert Dawson illustrating his testimony as to
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the course and direction of the automobile tracks

appearing on the highway at the time he examined

said highway, reference to which exhibit 12 is here-

by made.)

Witness: Those were the only car tracks which

turned and went between these points and up to

where the automobile stopped. Other car tracks on

the road did not turn, they extended east and west.

Cross Examination

By Mr. Toole.

Witness: When I looked at the tracks they

showed that the car had been proceeding in a west-

erly direction on the right side of the road, and then

when the car reached a point some 50 or 60 feet

from the tree it made a turn to the left, and across

the road in a turn and right to the tree. I went out

and examined the tracks that morning after day-

light came. These tracks were just as wide as an

ordinary car track, that is one thing that we no-

ticed, that the car did not skid a trifle, according

to all the people that were there; the tracks just

looked like the same on the side of the road as they

did at any point on the curve. The angle that the

car turned, from the diagram there I imagine it

would be around a 45 degree angle, if you mark

the point; it wouldn't be quite a 45, it would be

a broader angle than that. There was no evidence

of skidding in the tracks at all, and no evidence

of any gravel being thrown up out of the tracks,
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and the tracks were just about the width of a tire.

Upon the road it was rather evenly loose surface

gravel, so that the tracks were quite distinct, we

could see them.

Q. And from an examination of those tracks,

could you indicate at about w^hat speed the car was

traveling ?

Mr. McCabe: To which we object as im-

proper cross [131] examination, no proper foun-

dation has been laid.

The Court : That is a new one, on the tracks

showing the speed. The speed w^as not gone

into, not proper cross-examination; sustained.

Mr. Toole: I would like to make an offer

of proof.

The Court : Not on cross examination. I held

—I don't recall the decision—some years ago,

offers of proof w^ere not proper on cross ex-

amination, and the Supreme Court sustained.

You have a right to ask any questions and the

Court will pass on them, but offers of proof on

cross examination are not proper.

Mr. Toole: Do I understand the Court does

not permit the offer of proof?

The Court: Yes, you can direct any ques-

tion you want to, to this witness.

Witness: It was about twenty minutes to five

in the morning that I went out there, and I imag-

ine it was around 6:30 or 7 o'clock, I think, or

later, when I went out to look at the tracks. When
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I looked at the tracks I found that the condition

of the tracks where the car was turning in making

the curve was the same as the condition of the

tracks when it was traveling straight on the high-

way; that there was no evidence of skidding, and

we didn't notice any gravel thrown up out of the

track.

Q. Now, based upon what you saw there, will

you tell me as to whether or not there was any

physical condition there indicating high speed?

Mr. McCabe: To w^hich we object on the

ground it calls for a conclusion of the wit-

ness, improper cross examination, no proper

foundation has been laid for the question.

The Court: Sustain the objection.

(Witness excused.) [132]

HERSCHEL JAMES,

sworn as a witness on behalf of the plaintiff, in

answer to questions put to him testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. McCabe.

Witness: My name is Herschel James. T re-

side at Simms, and Avas residing there on Decem-

ber 11, 1934. On December 11, 1934, I was called

from my home around between 4:30 and 5 o'clock

in the morning, and proceeded to this automobile
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wreck in front of Robert Dawson's home, where

a Ford automobile was crashed against a tree in

front of the Dawson house, just off of the public

highway known as the Augusta-Great Falls high-

way. There I saw Roberta Doheny lying in the

ditch outside of the car; I saw Bardon, I believe

is his name, in the front seat, and I saw Johnson

in the back seat, and I saw Marguerite Doheny in

the back seat. The right-hand side of the car, the

side toward Roberta Doheny, the door was open. She

had been taken out of there when I got there, she

was lying down on the ground. Mr. Bardon was

still in the automobile; I lifted him up, lifted his

body out of the car. The front seat of the auto-

mobile had been pushed forward considerably, and

the back of the front seat as it was pushed for-

ward rested against Mr. Bardon 's back; he was

just up against the steering wheel and his head kind

of slumped over it slightly; the bottom part of the

steering wheel was broken. They took Marguerite

out of the car, laid her on the ground, and in just

a very short time put her on a cot and took her

over to my house. After that I noticed the condi-

tion of the highway, at that time. There was no

snow or ice on the highway, and it was perfectly

dry.

Exhibits, marked for identification numbers 1

to 7 inclusive, fairly represent or portray the con-

ditions substantially the car was in at that time. On
Exhibit 6, the seat looks to me that it [133] isn't
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in its natural position, it should be across the other

way. In taking Mr. Bardon out I don't recall that

I moved the seat at all; I know I took hold of his

body under the arms, and Robert Dawson got on

the other side to get his legs free, but I don't recall

moving the seat ])ack. With the exception of the

front seat being changed around, that exhibit is

substantially a representation of the inside of the

car at that point at that time.

I am acquainted with the highway that extends

through Simms, Montana, known as the Great Falls-

Augusta highway. Exhibits 8, 9 and 10 fairly rep-

resent substantially the condition the highway was

in at the time I examined it on that morning, with

reference to the surface and the gravel, and the

points indicated on these pictures by the word

"Tree" and the mark "X" represent the tree

against which the automobile was crashed at the

time. I examined the gravel on the highway at that

time after the accident; there were no ridges in it

whatever; it was smooth or even.

I have had experience in driving automobiles,

and driving automobiles on that particular road

and other graveled roads, and from my observation

of the road at that time it was in perfect driving

condition for a gravel road. The road at that time

I judge was about thirty feet wide. Plaintiff's Ex-

hibit No. 11 is a fair representation of the condi-

tion of the tree that has been testified to in this

case, after the automobile was removed.
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After that, on this same morning, I examined

the highway for automobile car tracks leading from

this automobile up on to the highway. The point

where the automobile was at the time it was in con-

tact and crashed into the tree was off the highwaj^;

my recollection is that it was all off the highway.

The car tracks showed that the car apparently

was going straight west, swerved [134] slightly to

the right, right near that little ditch, and then took

a turn at approximately a 45-degree angle right

across the road to the tree. On Exhibit 12, the marks

indicated on there by the words "Automobile

Tracks" show approximately the angle at which

the car turned, but first, before the car turned

that way, it turned to the right slightly, and the

track was very distinct right next to this little ditch

to the side of the road, a ditch probably six inches

deep.

Q. Mr. James, will you please indicate by lines

on a sheet of paper the shoulder of the road, or the

approximate shoulders of the road as it extends

east and west. (Complies). Please indicate the di-

rections east, west, north and south, writing them

out. (Complies.) Please indicate on there the tree

which is shown in the exhibits, concerning which

you have testified, and then indicate on the map
the direction or the course of the automobile tracks,

as you remember them at that time. (Complies.)

Now, which is the shoulder?

A. This indicates the shoulder of the road, and

this is the little ditch to the side of the road, and
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right here is the canal; he apparently was going

along this direction, and the car swerved at such

an angle as that. The tracks indicate he was going

straight, and then he came out like that for a few

feet, probably 15 or 20 feet, something like that,

and then he turned something like that right

straight for the tree. The turn that he took would

not be quite as abrupt as that; I know I estimated

at the time that he made approximately an angle

of 45 degrees.

Q. Will you just draw those lines so that they

are more accurate, even if you have to come back

farther on the paper. (Complies.)

A. I think that is it.

Witness: That dotted line I have drawn repre-

sents the edge [135] of that little ditch by the side

of the road. The point between the solid line close

to the word '^ North" on that side of the diagram

is approximately the end of the gravel.

Q. And then between the ditch edge and the

end of the gravel, . . . You better put the word

''Gravel" on there to indicate it, and this, the "Edge

of the ditch," put that. So, I take it that the two

lines indicated by the words "Edge of Ditch" and

"Gravel," that the space in between indicates the

shoulder part of the road off the gravel'?

A. Yes; of course, there naturally gets some

gravel in there, a little gravel in there, but it is

more on the shoulder of the road.
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Q. That diagram, if you make two lines to in-

dicate the automobile tracks, and write "Automo-

bile tracks." (Complies.)

Mr. McCabe: I now offer in evidence plaintiff's

exhibit No. 13.

Mr. Toole: No objection.

The Court: Admitted without objection.

Plaintiff's exhibit numbered 13 is a diagram

illustrating the testimony of Herschel James with

reference to the condition of the highway at the

time he examined said highway, reference to which

exhibit numbered 13 is hereby made.

Witness: On the two young ladies, when I ar-

rived at the scene, .there were indications of bleed-

ing from the two girls; there was a considerable

amount of blood on both of them, particularly Mar-

guerite. At that time I recognized the make of

the automobile as being a Ford Sedan.

Cross Examination

By Mr. Toole.

Witness : When I went out to look at the tracks

I found that the car had been going west on the

traveled portion of the road, and before it got

abreast of the tree it made a slight turn to the right

toward the shoulder of the road, and then made

about a 45-degree turn across the road and struck

the tree. I would say the car was back east of the

tree probably 20 to 30 feet, 25 feet, [136] something

along there. The tracks were perfectly clear; there
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was just enough loose gravel there to make a very

clear imprint. They did not indicate any skidding,

nor was any gravel thrown out of the tracks that

I could see; in other words, the tracks where I saw

them crossing the road and where they made the

turn were physically about the same as the tracks

made while it was traveling along on the straight

road. The tires, as I remember them, seemed like

they were practically new tires; they were all up,

there were none of them flat; and the treads were

in good shape.

Q. Mr. James, would you be able, from what

you saw of the tracks, the condition in which you

saw them, to give an opinion, your best judgment,

as to the speed of the car ?

Mr. McCabe: To which we object on the

ground it is not proper cross examination, no

proper foundation has been laid for its admis-

sion; the witness has not shown himself quali-

fied to testify.

The Court: No, he said that from his ex-

perience the road was in perfect condition—dif-

ferent testimony from the prior witness—that

from his experience the road was in perfect

condition for travel, and I have written here

''for any or all speeds?" with a question mark

after it. Overrule the objection.

A. Not from the tracks, no.

Q. Did you observe any conditions, any other

conditions, uj)on which you could base a judgment?
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A. Condition the car was in.

Q. I had reference to the tracks more than to

the car. A. No, sir.

Q. Was there anythiag about the tracks to in-

dicate excessive [137] speed?

Mr. McCabe: To which we object on the

gromid improper cross examination, and calls

for a conclusion of the witness as to what is

excessive speed, and not sufficiently definite.

The Court : He said from his experience the

road was in perfect driving condition; now,

for slow, fast, medium or what? That is all

he said, just driving condition. Now he

has a right to develop on cross examination

what he means by perfect driving condition,

—

speed or what-not.

A. No, sir.

Redirect Examination

By Mr. McCabe.

Witness: From the point on the road where I

observed the car tracks first commenced to turn to

the point where the car struck the tree was a dis-

tance of probably fifty feet or such a matter, from

where the car started to turn toward the tree. As

I remember it, he pulled out to the right there and

followed along the edge of that little ditch for ap-

proximately twenty feet, and then he made that

rather abrupt turn to the tree, so that he traveled
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approximately 70 feet from the point of the first

turn.

(Witness excused.)

(Noon Recess)

Mr. McCabe: Your Honor, please, may we call

one witness out of order?

The Court: No objection, I presume.

Mr. Toole: No, that is fine. [138]

WILLIAM BKRTSCHE,

Sworn as a witness on behalf of the plaintiff, in

answer to questions put to him testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. McCabe.

Witness: My name is William Bertsche. I run

the Bertsche Food Market,—a grocery store, at

721 Central Avenue. I was engaged in that business

in December, 1934. At that time and prior there-

to I had been acquainted with a person by the name

of Roberta Doheny, and at that time had arranged

or promised to employ her in the month of Janu-

ary following. I observed that she appeared to be

the type of person that would make a success iu my
business. She appeared to be healthy, a strong, ro-

bust girl, and had very much of a pleasing person-

ality. To commence her employment, the Union

minimum at that time was fifty dollars a month
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salary, and as to the range of her salary in the

event she proved successful in. her work,—the girls

I have working for me their salaries riui from

seventy to ninety dollars a month ; those are clerks,

and if a girl lives up to the standard with us, in

less than six or nine months she would be making

seventy dollars a month; after that, it would de-

pend on the girl as to her salary increasing up to

ninety dollars a month. She appeared to possess the

qualifications that would make a success of her

work in my line of business ; she had a pleasing per-

sonality, which is very important, and she seemed

to be in good health and was quick in her motions,

and appeared to me that she would make a good

clerk.

Mr. McCabe: You may take the witness.

Mr. Toole: No cross examination.

(Witness excused.) [139]

JOE UGRIN,

sworn as a witness on behalf of the plaintiff, in an-

swer to questions put to him, testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. McCabe:

Witness: My name is Joe Ugrin. I reside in

Black Eagle, and was residing there in December,

1934, at which time I was a deputy sheriff of Cas-
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cade County, and had been acting as deputy sheriff

for four years.

On the morning of December 11, 1934, I was
called upon, by virtue of my office, to proceed to

Simms, Montana, to investigate an automobile ac-

cident, and I proceeded to Simms at that time.

When I arrived there I saw Roberta Doheny and
Marguerite Doheny in Herschel James' house in

Simms, and helped to remove the girls from the

house to a conveyance to bring them into Great

Falls. When I moved these girls into the con-

veyance, they were moaning, both of the girls were

moaning at that time. At that time I observed a

Ford automobile against a tree and off to the left

of the highway as it went through Simms. Plain-

tiff's exhibits 1 to 7 inclusive, which you show me,

substantially represent the condition of the auto-

mobile that I saw at that time crashed, in contact

with the tree.

I have had several years' experience in driving

automobiles, twenty or twenty five years, probably

twenty. During the time I was deputy sheriff I

was called upon at different times to investigate

accidents or collisions in which automobiles and

other objects were involved, and have had experi-

ence in determining and in learning the damage

that an automobile may sustain when it comes in

contact with different objects, cars or stationary

objects such as trees or posts, as to illustrate the

rate of speed a car was going. From my exami-
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nation of this car, it is hard to tell the approximate

speed this car was traveling at the time it came in

[140] contact with the tree, but I would judge, the

car completely demolished as that car was, must

have traveled at a great rate of speed, probably be-

tween forty and fifty miles an hour.

When I went out there I observed the condition

of the highway where this car was. I had driven

out there with my lights on. In approaching the

point where the automobile was, in the light of the

car I was able to see the road in front of me clearly.

The road was smooth ; of course it is a gravel road,

loose gravel on it; it was in a safe and good con-

dition for travel by automobile. In traveling at

that time with my automobile I did not proceed past

the point where the automobile was crashed against

the tree. I just left my car sitting on the highway,

I believe at a point west of where the automobile

was in contact with the tree ; no, I left the car just

as I got to the wreck, at a point on the south side

of the road where the car was in contact with the

tree. In driving my automobile I didn't have any

difficulty in traversing that road at that time, and

had no mishaps or accidents of any kind.

Cross Examination

By Mr. Toole

:

Witness: In getting out to Simms that morning

I drove at a rate of probably 60 or 70 miles an hour.

Right at Simms there the road is straight and about

thirty feet wide. I looked at the tracks of this auto-
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mobile, I examined the tracks after I got there.

When he got opposite that tree he made a sharp
turn, just about the sharpest turn a man could pos-

sibly make. I looked at the tracks to see whether
it was skidding or not; I couldn't see that there was;
I got there quite a while after; I saw no signs of

skidding. The car turned as sharp a turn as a car

could possibly make. It was a level, smooth road,

with [141] surface gravel, loose gravel on it. I

don't know how fast I could turn a Ford V-8 myself

on a road and make as sharp a turn as it could make
without skidding; make it pretty fast, some people

can, and some of them can't; I could go down here

and cut the comer at forty miles an hour, right in

the city, without skidding. I don't know if I could

do it on loose gravel, I never tried it. It is more

likely I could do it on loose gravel at 25. I couldn't

say from the tracks and the sharpness of the turn

whether his speed might have been as slow as 35 in-

stead of 40; I am not judging the tracks, I am judg-

ing the car, the condition of the car that was there.

I haven't judged the speed from the track; that is

hard to judge. I don't know from the tracks how

fast he was going.

Redirect Examination

By Mr. McCabe:

Mr. McCabe : Mr. Ugrin, I desire to ask a ques-

tion I overlooked on direct examination, and if coun-

sel has no objection and the Court has none, I would

like to open up that avenue of examination.
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Mr. Toole: No.

Witness: I have not had very much experience

in stopping Ford cars by the use of the brakes; I

have had a little. I have a '34 Ford car. I have

had occasion to stop my car when I was driving at

varying rates of speed, by the use or application

of the brakes.

'Q. Well, are you able to give us an estimate, in

your opinion, within what distance a Ford car of

a 1934 model can be stopped, at varying rates of

speed ?

Mr. Toole: Now, if your Honor please, that

is objected to because there is no allegation in

the [142] complaint with respect to the brakes

upon this car ; there is no allegation or no claim

that the driver of the car failed to use the

brakes ; there is no evidence in the record at all

with respect to the use of brakes; on the con-

trary, all of the evidence being that the tracks

went along straight without skidding^ and there-

fore this witness' opinion as an expert is in-

competent because it does not tend to prove any

issue in this case.

Mr. McCabe : The purpose of this is to show

that had the driver used his brakes, assuming

that he was going at these various speeds, he

could have stopped the car.

The Court: That is an inference the jury

may draw as well as this witness.

(Witness excused.)



400 V. S. Fidelity etc. Co,

FRANK HOLLAND,
sworn as a witness on behalf of the plaintiff, in an-

swer to questions put to him, testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. McCabe

:

Witness: My name is Frank Holland. I reside

at Simms, and resided there in December, 1934. I

was acquainted with the condition of the Great

Falls-Augusta public highway, graveled highway,

that passes through the town of Simms, in Decem-

ber, 1934. On December 11, 1934, there was no

snow or ice on that road, and it was dry. I had a

service station in Simms at that time, and my broth-

er-in-law^ did the repair work, the garage. We oc-

cupied the same building there, known as the Malm-

gren Garage. On the morning of December 11 I

was called upon to remove a smashed automobile

from the public highway at Simms, Montana, to our

[143] garage. My understanding was it belonged

to Mr. Johnson; I don't know if I heard his initial,

and as to his being the Mr. Johnson who was a

member of the fii*m of Coverdale & Johnson, I don't

know, I never met the man. At that time I exam-

ined the automobile. It was about eight o'clock in

the morning that I removed it from the place it

occupied on the side of the highway, and at that

time I examined and looked over the automobile and

saw the condition it was in. Plaintiff's exhibits Nos.

1 to 7 inclusive I identify as pictures of the auto-

mobile in question. After I removed it, it was
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taken to the garage that my brother-in-law and I

were occupying at the time. After it was removed

there on the 11th, I don't remember how long it

was there, I don't remember just the date that I

sold it ; I think it was the last part of February. I

did not make any repairs or any changes on the

automobile from the time I removed it from the

place on the highway to the garage where it was

placed. On Sunday, December 16, following the

day of the wreck of the automobile, it was in sub-

stantially the same condition in the Malmgren ga-

rage as it was when it was taken from the public

highway at the point where it had crashed into the

tree. My brother-in-law's name is Rudolph Malm-

gren. This automobile that was brought into the

garage, with respect to the various parts of it other

than appeared to be damaged, was practically a new

car, it looked. The damages that appeared on it

appeared to me to be made as the result of a col-

lision. I did not examine the brakes on that car

at that time.

Mr. McCabe : You may cross examine.

Mr. Toole: No cross examination.

(Witness excused.) [144]
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C. J. PETERSON,
sworn as a witness on behalf of the plaintiff, in an-

swer to questions put to him, testified as follows

:

Direct Examination

By Mr. McCabe:

Witness : My name is C. J. Peterson. I am Sales

Manager of the Kincaid Motor Company, and have

been for two years and three months. We sell the

Ford automobile. I have had experience during the

past three years in driving Ford automobiles, and

have had experience in driving a Ford V-8 De Ijuxe

Sedan, 1934 model. In driving that particular

model of automobile I have had experience in stop-

ping the car on graveled highway at varying rates

of speed.

Q. And are you able to state within what dis-

tance an automobile of that kind and character,

brakes being in working condition, in reasonable

working condition, that that automobile may be

brought to a stop, within what distance under vary-

ing rates of speed ?l

Mr. Toole: That is objected to upon the

ground and for the reason that there is no al-

legation in the complaint as to failure to stop,

as an element of negligence; for the further

reason that there is no evidence in this record

upon which this witness may base any conclu-

sion with respect to stopping the automobile;

further objected to because he is being asked

to pass upon a question which is not in evi-

dence.
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The Court : The statute specifies, under proper

allegations, such things may be brought into a

case, put in controversy,—^section 17 something,

I forget what it is, but there is no reference to

it whatsoever. I think the objection will have

to be sustained.

Mr. McCabe: The only purpose is, we feel

the general allegations as they appear in this,

that this goes to show failure to use the brakes

at any time by [145] the driver of this car, be-

cause it further shows that had he used the

brakes it could have been stopped within the

distance traveled.

The Court: There isn't any allegation as to

that.

Mr. McCabe: Remember, your Honor, the

words are ''so recklessly operated and con-

trolled," not only operated but controlled, and

we say the failure to apply the brakes is reck-

less control. The further allegation is that he

drove and controlled it in such a way as to per-

mit it to leave the highway.

The Court: That doesn't have anything to

do with the brakes that I can see. I think the

section 1742 is likely will probably be offered

and given in instiniction as to the duty of an

operator, but there is no allegation basing any

negligence on the failure to obsei've this. Your

allegation does not go that far, but it is like the

general duty that the Coui-t in instruction gives

as to what the operator of a motor vehicle
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should or should not do at the time. Sustain the

objection.

Mr. McCabe: May the record show at this

time that we will be permitted at the conclusion

of our case to make offer of proof on this.

The Court : Make it right now\

OFFER OF PROOF
(Out of hearing of jury.)

Mr. McCabe : The plaintiff offers to prove by the

witness on the witness stand, C. J. Peterson, that the

automobile involved in this action, prior to the time

of the collision between said automobile and the tree

standing to the south side of the public [146] high-

way, could have been stopped within a distance of

fifty feet going at the rate of fifty miles an hour,

had the driver George Bardon applied the brakes

on said automobile for the purpose of stopping the

same. We further offer to prove by the witness on

the witness stand, C. J. Peterson, that going at a

rate of speed of forty miles an hour the automobile

could have been stopped by the driver, George Bar-

don, within a distance of forty feet. We further

offer to prove by the witness on the stand, C. J.

Peterson, that at a rate of speed of 30 to 35 miles

an hour the automobile could have been brought to

a complete stop by the application of the brakes

within a distance of thirty feet.

Mr. Toole: Defendants object to the plain-

tiff's offer of proof on the groimd and for the

reason that it calls for a conclusion of the wit-
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ness, and there are no facts in the record upon

which to base any conchision in response to the

question. For the further reason there is no

allegation in the complaint charging failure

to stop within a reasonable distance, and no al-

legation in the complaint charging failure to

stop as negligence, and no allegation in the

complaint imder which the offer of proof is ad-

missible or proper or competent evidence.

The Court: I will sustain the objection.

Neither way around, however, as to equipment

would be proper.

(Witness excused.) [147]

RUDOLPH MALMGREN,

Sworn as a witness on behalf of the plaintiff, in

answer to questions put to him testified as follows

:

Direct Examination

By Mr. McCabe.

Witness: My name is Rudolph Malmgren. In

December, 1934, I was residing at Simms, and was

in the garage business at that time, operating the

Malmgren Garage with my brother-in-law Frank

Holland. I remember at that time a Ford automo-

bile, '34 Model De Luxe V-8 Sedan being brouglit

to the garage on December 11, 1934, and it remained

in the garage 'til about the last of February. From
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the time it arrived at the garage I did nothing

towards changing the car in any manner, and it

was in the same condition substantially on the Sun-

day following the time it was brought to the ga-

rage that it was when it was brought into the ga-

rage. At that time I examined the steering appara-

tus connected with that car. I foimd it was still

intact, but it had been cracked, not a worn crack,

but a sharp sudden crack. I have had experience

in operating cars and automobiles in which the

steering apparatus became out of order while I

was driving the car.

Q. And when a steering apparatus goes out of

order, what happens with respect to the car taking

quick sudden turns, or what is the fact?

Mr. Toole: That is objected to as being

entirely immaterial, not tending to prove any

issue in this case, and incompetent, inadmis-

sible under the pleadings. In the first place,

your Honor please, I should elaborate also be-

cause counsel is taking an inconsistent posi-

tion; a moment ago he stated the purpose was

to show the car was in good order (Note: Ob-

jection was made to the question concerning

the steering apparatus, and the [148] objection

withdrawn on the statement of plaintiff's coim-

sel that ''I am going to show the car was not

in a defective condition.") on the first ques-

tion, and this question is directed to the prop-

osition that if the car had been in bad order
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it would have acted in some way differently

than what it did.

The Court: You are familiar with some de-

cisions where a thing happens sudden, nobody

knows anything about it, to the fact of it. Do
you still hold to your objection?

Mr. Toole : Yes, your Honor.

The Court: Very well; have to be sustained

then.

Witness: Plaintiff's exhibits 1 to 7 show sub-

stantially the condition the car was when it was

brought into the garage on the morning of Decem-

ber 11, 1934. I examined the front part of the car

above the windshield after it came into the shop,

and noticed something that looked like white skin

on the top above the windshield.

Mr. McCabe: You may take the witness.

Mr. Toole: No cross examination.

(Witness excused.)

NELLIE B. FULLER,

Sworn as a witness on behalf of the plaintiff, in

answer to questions put to her testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. McCabe.

Witness: My name is N. B. Fuller. I reside at

718 Second Avenue North, Great Falls, and was

residing there in December, 1934, and particularly
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on the 12th day of December, 1934. I am a stenog-

rapher, and was such on December 12, 1934. I was

[149] present at a coroner's inquest conducted by

Dr. B. A. Place on the evening of December 12,

1934, to enquire into the death of Roberta Doheny

and Marguerite Doheny. At this inquest witnesses

were examined by Dr. Place after being ])laced

under oath, and I took down the testimony of the

witnesses in shorthand, and after that correctly

transcribed it into longhand on the typewriter, and

after that the original transcript of the testimony

was filed with the Clerk of the Court of Cascade

County, Montana. This typewritten transcript of

evidence is the transcript of the testimony taken

at the time of the coroner's inquest, correctly tran-

scribed from my shorthand notes into longhand

typewriting. At the time of the inquest I accompa-

nied Dr. Place, the Coroner, to the Deaconess' Hos-

pital for the purpose of taking the testimony of

Mr. Oscar Johnson, and at that time Dr. Place

placed Mr. Johnson imder oath to testify to the

truth, the whole truth and nothing but the truth

before he asked him any questions. About the first

of this year, I was cleaning out some papers and

destroyed the original shorthand notes that were

taken at the time of the inquest, so that they are

not available at this time.

Mr. McCabe: You may take this: Counsel

agrees if he can examine this testimony, we can

shorten up the time.
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Mr. Toole: We have no objection.

Mr. McCabe: Well, I presume it may be

stipulated that the testimony given by Mr.

Johnson at that time may be read into the

record in this case.

Mr. Toole: No, you read it. That is, I of

course make the same objections to it that I

have to all the evidence, that it is not compe-

tent under the pleadings. In order to shorten

the time, I have no objection to that deposi-

tion being read to the jury. What I meant

[150] to say was I did not want to stipulate

that, in view of the objections I have made to

the pleadings, fundamental objections, if it was

competent,—that was all. I made the objection

that the complaint does not state a cause of ac-

tion, and that is what I meant. I did not want

to find myself stipulating that any evidence in

the case is competent, in view of my objection.

DEPOSITION OF OSCAR JOHNSON,

given at Coroner's Inquest:

OSCAR JOHNSON,

Sworn as a witness by the Coroner, in answer to

questions put to him testified as follows

:

Examination by Dr. B. A. Place, Coroner

My name is Oscar Johnson. I live at Helena.

Tuesday morning about five o'clock I was out by
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Simms. I was in an automobile accident. I was

sitting on the back seat; another fellow was sitting

in front; I was half asleep; it was pretty cold and

I was covered up with a coat; I had it up over my
head and I don't know much what happened. We
were traveling about 35 miles an hour when the

accident happened. Some fellow at a farm house

came and helped us into the house. My aim was

broken and I had a sore leg. They got Bardon out

and left him on the groimd and the rest of us went

into the house. A man helped me to walk to the

house, then they laid me down on a bed and the

doctor fixed me up. Marguerite and Bobby and me
were in the car; Bardon was driving. Marguerite

and Bobby are the Doheny girls. The party had

not been drinking. Nobody had any intoxicating

liquor of any kind. None of us were intoxicated.

Q. The jury wants to know if you felt sleepy.

It was about five o'clock in the morning and none

of you had been to bed. How did you feel?

A. I guess I was sleepy; I can't tell much what

did happen. I guess I was about half asleep, then

it seemed to me something [151] happened some

way or other.

Witness: I have no theory myself what might

have happened to the driver; everything went

smooth all the way through. As far as I know, it

was a smooth, uneventful trip from Great Falls

to Simms. We came to Great Falls in the first

place around eleven thirty, I imagine, at night;
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I'm not sure; I think it was eleven thirty; I have

no watch. It was probably sooner than that. It was

quite a while after supper. We all dressed at the

hotel and then we waited for a while and after

that we left. We were at the Randall Hotel in Au-

gusta. As to whether the driver fell asleep, I couldn't

tell you what happened. That i3robably would be

the main theory, I don't know though. It was my
car this man was driving; it was in good order; it

was a V-8 Ford sedan, de luxe sedan. Marguerite

was in the back seat with me; Bobby was in front.

Any time previous to the accident the driver did not

say anything about feeling sleepy, that I know of.

He acted like everything was lovely. I couldn't see

anything wrong anywhere.

(Witness excused.)

MRS. AMELIA MOSIER,
Sworn as a witness on behalf of the plaintiff, in an-

swer to questions put to her testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. McCabe.

Witness: My name is Amelia Mosier. I reside

at Augusta, Montana. Prior to December 11, 1934,

I was acquainted with Roberta Doheny and with

Marguerite Doheny. They had been employed by

me at housework and cooking. The girls both got

salaries of $25 and $30 a month, at different times,
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that is, later $30 a month. In addition to that they

got their board and room, which I always [152]

consider about a dollar a day, so that I figured their

salary w^hen they finally left was equivalent to sixty

dollars a month. Marguerite was employed at the

same kind of work; I paid her the same salary,

and she likewise got board and room in addition to

her salary. The work they were doing was work

of a continuous and steady nature. Roberta was

a very healthy girl, very strong, robust, and was

very industrious, honest and a very pleasing per-

sonality, and very dependable. Marguerite was of

healthy appearance, strong and robust, industrious,

very pleasing personality, honest and could be de-

pended upon very much. This employment of these

girls was off and on in 1933 and 1934.

Cross Examination

By Mr. Toole.

Witness: When I say off and on, I mean may-

be a month or so at a time; I can't just remember

or recall it. I wouldn't say, unless I looked up my
records, how many months I had Roberta employed

;

I wouldn't say whether it was six months during

those two years. I don't recall with respect to Mar-

guerite either, I wouldn't say because I would have

to look up my records first.

(Witness excused.)
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MRS. J. S. (HELEN) BOHLER,

Sworn as a witness on behalf of the plaintiff, in

answer to questions put to her testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. McCabe.

Witness: My name is Helen Bohler. I reside

at Augusta. In the year 1934 and previous years I

was acquainted with Roberta Doheny and Mar-

guerite Doheny. During those years these girls were

employed by me at different times at housework

and cooking. I paid them twenty five and thirty

dollars, depending on the [153] season ; during hay-

ing season they got $30 a month, for a month or

six weeks, and the rest of the time $25 a month.

In addition to that they got their room and board,

and a fair estimate of that would be a dollar a day.

These girls were employed more during the sum-

mer months, spring and summer. I couldn't say of

my own knowledge whether they were employed

other places when they were not w^orking for me.

I never heard they were employed other places.

Roberta Doheny, when she was in my employ, ap-

peared to be very healthy and robust; in her habits

of industry she was very conscientious, a depend-

able girl, honest, and very pleasing personality.

Marguerite Doheny was in very good health, very

robust, honest, very dependable and with a very

pleasing personality.
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Cross Examination

By Mr. Toole.

Witness: As to whether either of the girls was

ever married I don't know, I am sure; I under-

stood they were single.

(Witness excused.)

MRS. MINA C. RANDALL,

Sworn as a witness on behalf of the plaintiff, in

answer to questions put to her testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. McCabe.

Witness: My name is Mina C. Randall. I re-

side at Augusta, Montana. I am in the hotel busi-

ness, and during the year 1934 was conducting a

hotel at Augusta ; during that time I was acquainted

with Marguerite Doheny. On the 12th day of De-

cember, 1934, Marguerite Doheny was in my employ,

and had been prior thereto, doing general house-

work. She had been in my employ six weeks. I

paid her a salary of $25 a month, and in addition

to that she [154] received her room and board as

part of her compensation, which I figured at $35 a

month, making a money equivalent of $60 a month.

The work she was doing was more or less of a con-

tinuous and steady character. There was a good de-

mand for services of that kind in the vicinity of
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Augusta. During the time she was in my employ

her health I would say was very good ; she appeared

to be a strong, robust girl; she was honest and de-

pendable, and very industrious. On the evening of

December 10, 1934, I did not see Marguerite Doheny

and Roberta Doheny and Mr. E. O. Johnson and

other persons leave my hotel to go to Great Falls,

Montana, but I seen them all going out of the ho-

tel in a group about eight o'clock in the evening.

Mr. E. O. Jolmson is also known and goes by the

name of Oscar Jolmson; they are one and the same

person.

Mr. McCabe: I believe that is all.

Mr. Toole: No cross examination.

(Witness excused.)

HUGH I. SHERMAN,
sworn as a witness on behalf of the plaintiff, in an-

swer to questions put to him, testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. McCabe

:

Witness: My name is Hugh I. Sherman. I re-

side at Great Falls, Montana. I am in the life in-

surance business, employed with the Northwesiem

Mutual principally. I have been in the insurance

business a little over twenty years. I am acquainted

with the standard tables known as The American

Mortality Tables. I have them with me. As a part
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of those tables there is also a set of tables known as

Annuity Tables. On December 11, 1934, a girl in

apparent good health and who at her last birthday

w^as [155] eighteen years of age w^ould have a life

expectancy of 43-5/10 years; that is the average

length of time she w^ould be expected to live. A girl

20 years of age would have an expectancy of life

of 42-2/10 years. The cost to purchase an annuity

that would bring to a girl of eighteen an income

of $60 a month, to pay down in a lump sum which

would guarantee her $60 a month for the rest of her

life, would be $19,373.04. For a girl of twenty years

of age to purchase an annuity which would pay her

at the rate of $60 a month for the balance of her

life would require a lump sum payment, immediate

payment, of $19,094.40.

As to what it would cost to purchase an annuity

for a girl of the age of eighteen years that would

bring her an income of $50 per month, I will have

to multiply that out ; the table gives it on the basis

of ten dollars ; it would cost $16,144.20.

To purchase an annuity to pay a girl at the age

of eighteen $55 a month for the rest of her life

would cost $17,758.62.

To purchase an annuity to pay a girl of the age

of twenty years $55.00 a month for the rest of her

life would cost $17,543.20.

These mortality tables are the tables that are used

by my insurance company, and are generally used

by all insurance companies; every State in the
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Union requires the life insurance companies of the

United States to use the American Mortality Tables.

Mr. McCabe : You may cross examine.

Mr. Toole: No cross examination.

(Witness excused.) [156]

HARRY DOHENY,

sworn as a witness on behalf of the plaintiff, in

answer to questions put to him, testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. McCabe

:

Witness : My name is Harry Doheny. I was the

father of Roberta -Doheny and Marguerite Doheny.

Roberta Doheny on December 11, 1934, was past 18

years of age, was 18 in April before, and Marguerite

was twenty years of age the August before. They

had gone to high school; Marguerite had completed

her high schooling, and Roberta I think had gone

up to her last year, she had gone three years. After

the girls left high school they worked around in

different places. Roberta during her lifetime en-

joyed absolutely good health all the time, and the

same condition in health as to Marguerite. The

girls were industrious, and very strong and robust.

On or subsequent to December 11, 1934, I received

information of the injuries which Roberta Doheny

and Marguerite Doheny received in an automobile

collision, and after that Roberta and Marguerite
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each passed away, died. After the death of Mar-
guerite and Roberta I did not receive any communi-

cation, written or oral of any kind, from Mr. E. O.

Johnson or Mr. John M. Coverdale relative to the

collision in which my two daughters had been in-

jured. I attempted to obtain information from Mr,

E. O. Johnson relative to those injuries, but he

would give me no information at all.

Cross Examination

By Mr. Toole:

Witness: I don't remember the exact dates I last

saw Mr. Johnson, but it was after he got out of the

hospital in Great Falls, and I think he was there

four or five days. He did not up and leave the

country, he came back up to Augusta, I think about

five or six, maybe seven, days after the accident,

and I [157] think he was there possibly for three

weeks after that, maybe a month, I don't recollect.

I didn't hear from him since then, and I didn't try

to find him ; I have enquired of his whereabouts but

I could find out nothing, couldn't locate him. I do

not know where he is now.

(Witness excused.)

MRS. ETHEL M. DOHENY,

sworn as a witness in her own behalf, as plaintiff,

in answer to questions put to her, testified as fol-

lows:
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Direct Examination

By Mr. McCabe:

Witness : My name is Ethel M. Doheny. I reside

in Augusta and was residing there in December,

1934. I was the mother of Roberta and Marguerite

Doheny. In the month of December, and particu-

larly on the 11th of December, 1934, I received in-

formation that Roberta Doheny and Marguerite

Doheny had been injured in an automobile acci-

dent, and thereafter Roberta and Marguerite Do-

heny each died. Roberta's age on the 11th day of

December, 1934, was eighteen, and Marguerite's age

on that date was twenty. Roberta's health during

her lifetime had been very good, and Marguerite

during her lifetim.e also had very good health. Mar-

guerite was employed steady when she left high

school; she graduated from high school. I know

the two girls were employed at different times and

received payment for the work they did prior to the

time of their death. Roberta had schooling up to

her junior year in high school; she left high school

in her junior year. Marguerite graduated from

high school in 1933. After the time of the injuries

and death of Roberta Doheny and Marguerite Do-

heny I received neither oral nor written communi-

cation [158] from Mr. E. O. Johnson or Mr. John

M. Coverdale with reference to the collision or the

circumstances or cause of it.

Mr. McCabe : You may take the witness.

Mr. Toole : No cross examination.

Mr. McCabe: The plaintiff rests, your Honor.

(Recess.)
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MOTION

(Out of hearing of jury.)

Mr. Toole: Come now the defendants, John M.

Coverdale and Coverdale and Johnson, a co-partner-

ship, each for himself and each separately, and each

in the respective cases of Ethel M. Doheny as Ad-

ministratrix of the Estate of Roberta Doheny

against John M. Coverdale and E. O. Johnson and

in the case of Ethel M. Doheny as Administratrix

of the Estate of Marguerite Doheny and against

Coverdale and Johnson and E. O. Johnson, and

move the Court for a judgment of nonsuit in favor

of the said defendants, and in favor of each of them,

and against the plaintiff in each of said cases, upon

the ground and for the reason

:

1.

That the complaint does not state facts sufficient

to constitute a cause of action against these defend-

ants or either of them, either jointly or separately.

2.

That the complaint does not state facts sufficient

to constitute a cause of action against these defend-

ants either jointly or separately in either of said

cases under the Montana Guest Law.

3.

That the plaintiff has failed to offer proof suf-

ficient to sustain the allegations in the complaint or

sufficient to sustain [159] a verdict against these
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defendants, or either of them, in either of the said

causes under the Montana Guest statute.

4.

That the plaintiff has failed to offer and intro-

duce proof sufficient to sustain a verdict against

these defendants, or either of them, in said causes

for the following reasons

:

(a) That there is no sufficient proof of negli-

gence to sustain a verdict.

(b) That there is no sufficient proof of gross

negligence and reckless operation of the automo-

bile of E. O. Johnson to sustain a verdict against

either of the defendants, either separately or jointly,

in either of said cases.

(c) That there is no sufficient proof to sustain

a verdict against ' either of the said defendants,

jointly or separately, in either of the said causes,

and no sufficient proof to show that either E. O.

Johnson or George Bardon were acting within the

scope of their employment, or acting as the servants

or agents or employees of either the defendant Cov-

erdale as an individual or the defendant Coverdale

and Johnson as partners, and there is no sufficient

proof to sustain a verdict by reason of the fact that

there is no proof to 'show, or proof, that either the

said Bardon or the said E. O. Johnson were acting

within the scope of the business of the partnerslii]:),

or acting within the scope of their employment, in

inviting or permitting the Doheny girls to ride with

them, or either of them, in the Johnson car at the

time of the accident.
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(d) That there is no sufficient proof of a duty

owed to either of the Doheny girls in either of said

cases by either of the defendants, John M. Cover-

dale or Coverdale and Johnson.

(e) That there is no sufficient proof to sustain

a verdict, [160] by reason of the fact that the proof

fails to show that either the defendant John M.

Coverdale or Coverdale and Johnson failed to per-

form any duty owing to either of the Doheny girls

in either of the cases.

(f) That there is no sufficient proof to sustain

a verdict, because the proof fails to show that the

injuries received by, and the death of, the two Do-

heny girls was proximately caused by the gross

negligence and operation of said automobile by

either the defendant John M. Coverdale or the de-

fendant Coverdale and Johnson.

Mr. Toole: We have fairly short evidence, and

the same motion will be made at the close of the

trial. Perhaps your Honor will prefer to hear

arguments at that time.

The Court : Yes, I think it will be better.

Mr. Toole: Perhaps I didn't express myself

properly. Of course it would be proper to move

for a directed verdict at the close of the case, and

the Court may of course reserve a ruling on motion

for nonsuit. There should be a ruling on that, how-

ever, before the case is closed.

The Court: Denied, subject to remaking it. [161]
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DEFENDANTS' CASE

FRANK HOLLAND,

having been previously sworn, called as a witness

on behalf of the defendants, in answer to ques-

tions put to him, testified as follows

:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Toole:

Witness: I took the witness stand this morning

and testified on behalf of the plaintiff in this case.

I am the same Mr. Holland who testified this morn-

ing. I said that I operate a service station and

garage at Simms, and that is the point at which

this accident occurred. I was operating the garage

and service station there on the 10th and 11th of

December, 1934. I said that on this morning I

went out to the scene of the accident at about eight

o'clock and that I then and there observed the con-

dition of the car and the position it was in. I wasn't

in the garage business myself, my brother-in-law

ran that part of it, mechanical part, and I only

took care of the service station part. I have not

been in the automobile repair business myself. I

have had occasion while in the business to observe

quite a few automobile accidents, and when I went

out there that morning I looked at the position of

the automobile with respect to the tree. Accord-

ing to the tracks, the automobile was going west on

the right-hand side of the road, and about 80 feet

from the tree it made a gradual turn into the tree

and struck the tree a little bit to the left of the
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center of the car, that is, the front end of the auto-

mobile, the radiator, struck the tree at a point a

little to the left of the center. When the car struck

the tree on the angle it was headed, a little bit south-

west, kind of on a southwest angle, the hind end of

the car, or the rear end, slid about eight or ten

inches west; in other words, the hind end of the

car moved about eight or ten inches after [162]

it struck the tree, it slid, you could see on the ground

where the tires had slid.

Q. State whether or not, from what you saw

there, you are able to express an opinion as to how
fast that car was going when it hit that tree.

Mr. McCabe: To which we object on the

ground and for the reason the witness has not

shown himself competent to testify, and there

is no proper foundation for his evidence.

The Court : He said he had observed several

automobile accidents. Better have him describe

what kind of accidents he had seen.

Witness: I have seen automobiles where they

have collided with one another, but I never saw

where one had run into a tree just exactly like this

one. I don't believe I ever saw two automobiles hit

each other, only after the accident happened; I

never happened to be an eye-witness to two of them

going together. I have seen their condition after

they hit.

Q. And taking the condition of the car and the

position it was in, the track, and the way it hit the
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tree, could you tell at about what speed it would

have been traveling, to have been in that position

after it hit?

Mr. McCabe: To which we object, on the

ground the witness has not shown himself quali-

fied to answer, no proper foundation has been

laid, and there is no fact upon which the wit-

ness can express an opinion in this case as to

the speed the car was traveling at the time.

The Court: You understood the question; can

you do that? A. I think I can, yes. [163]

The Court: It is said in Section 100 of

Schwartz on Automobile Accidents that "the

probable speed of the machine, in turn, indi-

cates the force' of the blow," or how the driver

was operating the same; and in section 292,

that the position after impact may be shown,

and that the whole is for the jury to decide,

draw its own conclusion therefrom after the

testimony. He may answer.

A. Well, the position the car w^as sitting in, the

angle it was on the tree, it had not been traveling

at a high rate of speed.

Mr. McCabe: To which we ask the wdtness

to confine himself to the question, please. The

question was whether or not he could do it.

The Court : He says, not a high rate of speed,

and you can give your reasons after you have

testified, as to the rate of speed.
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A. I beg pardon.

Q. I will ask you another question, then. Now
then, Mr. Holland, what in your opinion was the

rate of speed of that automobile when it hit the

tree?

Mr. McCabe: To which we make the same

objection.

The Court : He may answer.

A. Well, I would say not more than 25 miles an

hour at the most, and possibly less.

Q. Now, why do you say that ?

A. Well, for the simple reason that the car,

the angle it was sitting agin the tree, when it came

into it if it had been traveling at a high rate of

speed the rear end of the car would have probably

went clear around toward the west, and it only

skidded about eight or ten inches. [164]

Cross Examination

By Mr. McCabe

:

Witness: I don't believe the car could have been

going more than 25 miles an hour or the rear end

of the car would have slued around farther than it

did. I don't believe it could have been going at

that time as high as 35 miles an hour.

(Witness excused.)
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RUDOLPH MALMGREN,

having been previously sworn, called as a witness

on behalf of the defendants, in answer to questions

put to him testified as follows

:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Toole

:

Witness: I testified when I was on the stand

before that I live at Simms and engaged in the

automobile and garage business there. I have been

engaged in the garage business eleven years. Dur-

ing that time I really have never seen any wrecks

only after they was pulled in. I have seen auto-

mobiles after they were pulled in, and have re-

paired a few of the small wrecks in our garage.

I have not examined a good many bad wrecks in our

garage; I have, since I have been in the garage

business, observed cars in one state or another in

wreckage, and repaired them where the job wasn't

too big for our garage. I seen the car in which

Mr. Johnson and Mr. Bardon and the Doheny girls

were riding that hit the tree at Simms on Decem-

ber 11th, after it was pulled up to the garage, and

looked it over. I observed it so that I am in ])o-

sition now to express an opinion as to how fast that

car was going when 'it hit the tree, approximately.

Q. And what would you estimate as the approxi-

mate rate of speed when it hit that tree?

Mr. McCabe: To which we object on the

ground that [165] there is no proper foundation

laid, the witness has not shown himself quali-
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(Testimony of Rudolph Malmgren.)

fied to answer, there is no evidence in the record

to sustain any opinion as to this witness as to

the speed of the car.

The Court: Sustain the objection as to this

witness.

(No cross examination)

(Witness Excused)

JOHN M. COVERDALE,

Sw^om as a witness for and on behalf of the defend-

ants, in answer to questions put to him testified as

follows

:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Toole:

Witness: My name is John M. Coverdale. I live

at Anaconda, Montana. I am the Coverdale who is

one of the defendants in the two suits here involved.

I have been in Anaconda steady, my home has been

in Anaconda since 1921. I work at the zinc concen-

tractor there for the Anaconda Copper Mining-

Company; I am in their employ five days a week,

on day wages; I am classed as an operator. Last

December, 1934, I was a member of the firm of

Coverdale and Johnson; I do some bridge work at

times, small contracts. I had a contract for some

bridge work at Augusta during December, 1934;

Mr. E. O. Johnson was a partner at that time, we
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(Testimony of John M. Coverdale.)

had the work together. Mr. Johnson is not now my
partner; we dissolved partnership sometime last

May.

I am familiar with the V-8 automobile which Mr.

Johnson owned. It was never owned by the partner-

ship. It was Mr. Johnson's automobile. I had an

automobile of my own, and still have.

On the night of December 10, 1934, I was at my
home in Anaconda. I left Augusta, I think, about

the 8th of December, [166] 1934, and went direct^

to Anaconda, and left Anaconda the afternoon of

the 11th and started back for Augusta after I heard

of the wreck ; that was after this accident. I last saw

Mr. Johnson for a few minutes sometime, I believe,

last February, when I spoke to him about this case

and asked him to come here at the trial. He said

there had been no papers served on him. I haven't

seen him since and do not know where he is now.

It is a fact I have never been to see Mr. and Mrs.

Doheny, as they testified, since this accident. The

explanation is that I felt as if I wasn't responsible

for it and wasn't connected with it in no way, shape

or form, and it never occurred to me to go see them,

never thought of it.

Cross Examination

By Mr. McCabe

:

Witness: I left Augusta December 8, 1934, and

went to Anaconda. Prior to that, most of the time,

when this contract work commenced, I was in Au-
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gusta; I wouldn't say all the time. I couldn't tell

you the number of days I would be away from the

job up to the 8th of December, 1934; I made a trip

to Hamilton, and I went over to see my family sev-

eral times, but as an average I was on the job at

Augusta on this contract five to six days a week.

Mr. Jolmson was not likewise on the job with me
during that time ; Mr. Johnson was gone to Spokane

for a couple of weeks, ten days I think it was, yes,

and he was up to the Piskin Dam quite a bit. We
had a contract also at Piskin and Mr. Johnson

worked on the Piskin Dam job and also on the Au-

gusta job at times. During all that time he resided

in Augusta, that was his residence while the work

was going on. I couldn't say that Mr. Johnson was

left in charge of the work when I left December 8,

1934; I had two foremen there. He was my general

partner there. It was [167] up to him to stay there

if he wanted to; I had two foremen on the job. He
was at Augusta when I left, but we had two foremen

taking care of the job. As to whether he was the

head man on the job, it just depends whether the

foremen would call on him or not for any informa-

tion. Mr. Johnson was my partner, and when I went

to Anaconda he was at Augusta when I left ; he was

the only member of the partnership on the job after

I left there.

I am acquainted with the automobile of Mr. John-

son and also my own automobile, and they were

owned by us as individuals. He used his car and I
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used mine in connection with the work that we were

doing, the partnership business.

Mr. McCabe : That is all.

(Witness Excused)

Mr. Toole : Defendant rests, your Honor.

(No rebuttal)

The Court : Gentlemen of the jury, the case is now

closed, as far as the testimony is concerned, and you

will be excused until tomorrow morning at half past

ten. In the meantime you are under the admonition

of the Court heretofore given you, not to make up

your mind relative to the case, nor permit anyone

to talk to you about it; the case is not submitted to

you, as you know. So you will be excused and re-

turn here tomorrow morning at 10 :30.

Mr. Toole : Your Honor, please : Now come the de-

fendants John M. Coverdale and Coverdale and

Johnson, a partnership, and in each of the cases

heretofore referred to, separately in each case and

separately on behalf of each defendant moves the

Court to direct a verdict and direct the jury to re-

turn a verdict [168] against the plaintiff and in

favor of the defendant John M. Coverdale in each

of said causes, and against the plaintiff and in favor

of Coverdale and Johnson in each of said cases,

upon the ground and for the reason that the plain-

tiff in each of said cases has failed to prove by a
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preponderance of the evidence that the injuries to,

and death of, the Doheny girls was due to any gross

negligence and reckless operation of the said auto-

mobile by either of the said defendants; that the

plaintiff in each of the said cases has failed to prove

by a preponderance of the evidence that either of

the defendants, John M. Coverdale or Coverdale

and Johnson, were guilty of any gross negligence or

reckless operation of the said automobile; that the

plaintiff in each of said cases has failed to j)rove by

a preponderance of the evidence that the said E. O.

Johnson or George Bardon, in inviting the Doheny

girls to ride with them in the said V-8 Ford Auto-

mobile, were acting in any manner for and on behalf

of the partnership, or acting in any manner in the

furtherance of the business or the scope of the busi-

ness of the partnership. Plaintiff has failed to prove

by a preponderance of the evidence in each of said

cases that these defendants, or either of them in

either of the cases, owed any duty to the said

Doheny girls or either of them. Plaintiff has failed

to prove in said cases that either of these defend-

ants violated or breached any duty owed by either

of them to either of the Doheny girls; and the plain-

tiff has failed to prove by a preponderance of the

evidence that any breach of any duty owed by either

of these defendants to either of the Doheny girls

was the proximate cause of any damage or injury

or death of the Doheny girls.

My associate calls my attention to the fact that I

should add to that motion also that the plaintiffs
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have failed to prove [169] the allegations contained

in the complaint by a preponderance of the evidence.

(Adjourned to 9:30 a. m., May 1, 1936)

May 1, 1936

(Extended argument on Motion)

The Court : . . . motion for a directed verdict will

be denied.

Mr. McCabe: That ruling extends, your Honor, to

both cases?

The Court: Yes sir. [170]

SETTLEMENT OF INSTRUCTIONS

And thereupon, in the absence of the jury, and

present the judge who tried the said cause, the at-

torneys for the respective parties and the court

stenographer, the following proceedings were had

with reference to the settlement of instructions

:

Mr. Toole : Now come the defendants and offer on

behalf of each of the defendants in each of the said

cases, their offered Instruction lettered "A". Which

said instruction is as follows:

The jury is instructed that a general partner

has authority to do whatever is necessary to

carry on the business of the partnership in the

ordinary manner, and that a partner has no

authority to do any other act not within the

scope of the ordinary business of the partner-

ship.
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The Court: The Court refuses to give Defendants'

Offered Instruction lettered ''A" in each of said

cases.

Mr. Toole : To which refusal of the Court the de-

fendants, and each of them, except.

Mr. Toole: Come now the defendants and object

to Court's Instruction No. 3, upon the e^round and

for the reason that there is no allegation in the com-

plaint upon which to base that instruction, and no

proof in the record, and for the further reason that

it is not the law in this case.

The Court: Overruled.

Mr. Toole: To which ruling of the Court the de-

fendants and each of them then and there duly

except.

Mr. Toole: Come now the defendants and object

to Court's [171] Instruction No. 6, upon the gi'ound

and for the reason that none of the acts of George

S. Bardon or E. O. Johnson in connection with the

invitation or the presence of the Doheny girls to

ride in the automobile is binding upon or brouglit

home to the defendants John M. Coverdale and

Coverdale & Johnson.

The Court: Overruled.

Mr. Toole: to which ruling of the Court the de-

fendants and each of them duly except.

Mr. Toole: Come now the defendants and object

to Court's Instruction No. 7, on the ground and for

the reason that there is no evidence in the record to

sustain the jury in finding that George S. Bardon

operated said automobile in a grossly negligent and
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reckless maimer^ and that, even if he did, such

operation and conduct on his part would not, under

the pleadings and the proof in this case, bind either

of the defendants John M. Coverdale or Coverdale

& Johnson, and that his gross negligence could not

be that of the partnership or of John M. Coverdale.

The Court: Overruled.

Mr. Toole: To which ruling of the Court the de-

fendants and each of them duly except.

Mr. Toole: Come now the defendants and object

to the giving of the Instruction No. 16 A, by the

Court,, upon the ground and for the reason that it

does not correctly state the law in this case, and

there is no allegation in the pleading or any suf-

ficient evidence upon which to base the said in-

struction.

The Court: Overruled.

Mr. Toole: To which ruling of the Court the de-

fendants and each of them duly except. [172]

Mr. Toole: Now come the defendants in each of

the said cases and on behalf of each of the defend-

ants object to the modification of defendants' in-

struction, which is Court's Instruction No. 16, as

modified, the objection being to the Court's action

in striking out the words "and in furtherance" as

the same appears in the original instruction between

the words ''scope" and ''of " at the point where they

appear for the second time in said instruction.

The Court: Overruled.

Mr. Toole: to which ruling of the Court the de-

fendants and each of them duly except.
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And thereafter, the Court instructed the Jury as

follows

:

INSTRUCTIONS TO THE JURY
Gentlemen of the Jury

:

This action has been commenced by the plaintiff,

as administratrix of the Estate of Marguerite Do-

heny, deceased, (and another action by the same

plaintiff as administratrix of the Estate of Roberta

Doheny, deceased, and these instructions apply to

each of said cases), against the defendants, John M.

Coverdale and E. O. Johnson, co-partners doing

business mider the firm name and style of Cover-

dale & Johnson, to recover damages in alleged sum
of Fifty Thousand and Fifty Dollars ($50,050.00)

arising out of injuries and death of Marguerite

Doheny, and for a like sum of $50,050.00 arising out

of injuries and death of Marguerite Doheny, which

plaintiff alleges was the result of the grossly negli-

gent and reckless manner of operation of a certain

Ford V-8 Sedan automobile being driven by one

George S. Bardon as an alleged employee of the de-

fendants under the direction of defendant E. O.

Johnson, on the 11th day of December, [173] 1934.

The complaint alleges the following facts which

the defendants by answers have admitted and there-

fore plaintiff is not required to prove such facts,

to-wit: the death of Marguerite (and Roberta)

Doheny on December 12th, 1934, and the appoint-

ment and qualification of plaintiff as administratrix

of her estate, and that the defendants on December

11th, 1934, were co-partners doing business under
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the firm name and style of Coverdale & Johnson;

and that during the month of December, 1934^ de-

fendant, E. 0. Johnson, was the owner of a certain

Ford Y-8 Sedan automobile involved in this action,

Montana License No. 13-1865 for the year 1934

;

That prior to December 11th, 1934, one George S.

Bardon was an employee of the defendant partner-

ship and was engaged in work directly connected

with the business of the partnership in the perform-

ance of a certain Highway Contract theretofore

entered into by the defendants and the Highway
Commission of the State of Montana, and which

written contract was for the construction and im-

provement of certain bridges and stock passes ; and

that a period of time between on or about Septem-

ber 25, 1934, and February 1st, 1935, was consumed

in the performance of said contract;

That on or about October 20th, 1934, the defend-

ants rented from E. H. Blakeslee an Ersted two

drum hoist with tractor power to be used in connec-

tion with the performance of the aforesaid contract

with the State of Montana and agreed to return and

redeliver said hoist with tractor power to said E. H.

Blakeslee in the event same should be used for a

period exceeding thirty days; That defendants took

possession of said hoist on or about October 20th,

1934, used same in connection with the performance

of aforesaid contract with the State of Montana for

a period of approximate- [174] ly fifty-two (52)

days and that thereafter, at a time known to defend-

ants but unknown to plaintiff, and between Decem-
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ber 1st, 1934, and December 11th, 1934, the defend-

ants shipped said Ersted two dnim hoist with trac-

tor power to Great Falls, Montana, for the purpose

of redelivering same to the said E. H. Blakeslee.

The following allegations of fact in plaintiff's

complaint are denied by the answers of defendants

and therefore the plaintiff must by evidence prove

such allegations, to-wit:

That on or about the 10th day of December, 1934,

at approximately 10 o'clock P. M. the aforesaid

E. O. Johnson and George S. Bardon left Augusta,

Montana, traveling in the above mentioned automo-

bile owned by E. O. Johnson with Great Falls, Mon-

tana, as their destination for the purpose of unload-

ing and delivering to E. H. Blakeslee at Great

Falls, Montana, in accordance with the terms of the

aforesaid written agreement, the aforesaid equip-

ment theretofore rented by the defendants from the

said Blakeslee and at the request and invitation of

said E. O. Johnson and George S. Bardon to accom-

pany them to Great Falls, Montana, while they un-

loaded and delivered aforesaid equipment and there-

after return to Augusta, Montana, the said Mar-

guerite Doheny and sister Roberta Doheny accom-

panied said E. O. Johnson and George S. Bardon to

Great Falls, Montana, in said automobile arriving

at Great Falls, Montana, at approximately 11:35

P. M. on the day of December 10th, 1934. That upon

their arrival at Great Falls, Montana, the aforesaid

equipment was unloaded and delivered by said de-

fendants to E. H. Blakeslee by and through the as-
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sistance at the time of the said E. O. Johnson and

George S. Bardon. That after said equipment was

unloaded and delivered to the said E. H. Blakeslee

the said E. O. Johnson and George S. Bardon, Mar-

guerite Doheny and Roberta Doheny left Great

Falls, Montana, in the above mention- [175] ed

automobile with Augusta, Montana, as their return

destination and by way of that public highway

known as the Great Falls-Augusta road w^hich is

the main highway for public travel between Great

Falls, Montana, and Augusta, Montana. That at all

times from and after the said persons left Great

Falls, Montana, up to and including the time the

automobile in which they were riding left the public

highway and collided with the tree as hereinafter

set forth the said George S. Bardon drove, operated

and controlled the movements of said automobile

under the direction of the said E. O. Johnson.

That when said automobile with the occupants

aforesaid arrived at a point within Cascade County,

Montana, on said public highway w^here same has

and takes its direction and course through the town

of Simms, Montana, the said George S. Bardon,

while in the employ of the defendants as aforesaid

and while under the direction of E. O. Johnson,

drove and controlled said automobile in such a

grossly and reckless manner that said automobile

while traveling at a speed of approximately between

fifty and sixty miles an hour was permitted by him

to turn directly from and move off and from said

public highway and crash into and collide with a
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large tree growing approximately twelve feet away
from and to the side of said public highway in said

Cascade County, Montana. That at the time and

place on said highway when and where said automo-

bile was permitted by the said George S. Bardon to

leave said highway and collide with the tree afore-

said the said highway was approximately thirty feet

wide in good and safe condition for travel by auto-

mobile and other means of conveyance and extended

in an approximate straight line with a clear and

unobstructed view for a distance of approximately

one-half mile West and approximately one mile

East from the place on said highway where the

automobile [176] driven at the time by aforesaid

George S. Bardon was permitted by said George S.

Bardon to leave the public highway and crash into

the tree as aforesaid.

That by reason of said automobile being per-

mitted by the said George S. Bardon and the said

E. O. Johnson to move off of and away from the

public highway and collide with and crash into the

tree as aforesaid the said Marguerite Doheny (and

Roberta Doheny) was thrown and hurled against

the front seat and interior of the said automobile

with great force and violence and her body was

battered, bruised and cut and as a result thereof she

suffered and sustained severe and serious bodily in-

juries and suffered great bodily pain and mental

anguish and thereafter on or about the 12th day of

December, 1934, as a result of the injuries sustained

by her as aforesaid Marguerite Doheny (and
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Roberta Doheny) died all to her great damage in

the sum of $50,000.00. That as a result of the in-

juries sustained at the time and place aforesaid

Marguerite (and Roberta) Doheny was compelled to

employ the services of a physician and obtain special

hospital care and attention and become obligated for

the payment of same to her further damage in the

sirni of $50.00.

That at the time of the grossly negligent and

reckless operation of the automobile hereinabove re-

ferred to and the infliction of the injuries upon the

said Marguerite (and Roberta) Doheny, causing her

death, the said Marguerite Doheny was of the age of

twenty years, in good health and was capable of

earning and was earning the sum of approximately

$60.00 per month. X^^d said Roberta Doheny was

of the age of eighteen years, in good health and al-

though she had not been employed in a gainful occu-

pation for approximately three weeks she was

capable of earning approximately $60.00 per month

and at the time of her death had [177] arranged to

resume employment the following month at a rate

of compensation of $60.00 per month.)

By way of affirmative defenses to the allegations

of plaintiff's complahit the defendants allege that

if the said Marguerite (and Roberta) Doheny ac-

companied defendant Johnson and aforesaid Ear-

don in the automobile claimed by plaintiff that

said Johnson and Bardon had not been instructed,

directed or granted permission or authority by the
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partnership or by John M. Coverdale personally to

invite, request, permit or allow any person to ride

in said automobile on said trip and particularly

not to the said Mar^ierite (or Roberta) Doheny;

and, that said E. O. Johnson and said George S.

Bardon were without right, authority, permission

or allowance from the partnership or from John

M. Coverdale personally to permit or allow any per-

son and particularly not the said Marguerite (or

Roberta) Doheny to ride in said automobile at the

time and place. And if the said Marguerite (or

Roberta) Doheny did ride in said automobile as

alleged by plaintiff she did so without the consent,

permission, invitation or authority of the partner-

ship or Coverdale personally and that they were

invited or permitted to do so by defendant, John-

son, and said Bardon, each on his own behalf and

outside the scope of authority given by defendant

partnership and not in the transaction of the busi-

ness of the partnership and that at said time said

Johnson and said Bardon were not then acting as a

partner, servant or agent of the partnership and

were not acting in the course of employment; And
that in so riding in said automobile Marguerite

(nor Roberta) was not an invitee or guest and her

death was not the result of any negligence or the

result of any acts or omissions of the said partner-

ship or of John M. Coverdale personally. [178]

These allegations of defendants' answers are de-

nied by plaintiff.
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No. 2.

The burden of proof is upon the plaintiff to es-

tablish the allegations of his complaint by a pre-

ponderance of the evidence.

The term '^Preponderance of the evidence/' as

now and hereinafter used, means the greater weight

of the evidence.

No. 3.

You are instructed that it is the law of Mon-

tana that:

Every person operating or driving a vehicle of

any character on a public highway of this state

shall drive the same in a careful and prudent man-

ner, and at a rate of speed no greater than is rea-

sonable and proper imder the conditions existing at

the point of operation, taking into account amoimt

and character of traffic, condition of brakes, weight

of vehicle, grade and width of highway, condition of

surface, and freedom of obstruction to view ahead,

and so as not to imduly or unreasonably endanger

the life, limb, property, or other rights of any per-

son entitled to the use of the street or highway.

No. 4.

You are instructed that ordinary negligence is the

failure to do what a reasonable and prudent person

would ordinarily have done under the circumstances

of the situation, or doing what such a person under

the existing circumstances would not have done.
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No. 5.

The proximate cause of an injury is that cause

which in a natural and continuous sequence, un-

broken by any new and independent cause, produces

the injury, and without which it would not have

[179] occurred.

No. 6

The plaintiff has the burden of establishing by a

preponderance of the evidence that George S. Bar-

don, while co-partner E. O. Johnson was present in

the automobile, operated the Ford V-8 Sedan auto-

mobile owned by E. O. Johnson, in a grossly negli-

gent and reckless manner, while Marguerite (or

Roberta) Doheny was a passenger therein, inflicting

physical injuries upon the person of Marguerite

(or Roberta) Doheny which caused her death; and

that the grossly negligent and reckless operation of

such automobile under the then existing circum-

stances and conditions directly and proximately

caused the injuries and death of Marguerite (or

Roberta) Doheny.

No. 7.

If you believe from the evidence that the manner

in which George S. Bardon operated the Ford Y-S

Sedan automobile directly and proximately caused

the injuries to the person of and death of Margue-

rite (or Roberta) Doheny then in determining

whether the manner of operation of the automobile

by him constituted a grossly negligent and reckless

operation you are instructed that if you believe
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from the evidence that the conduct of George S.

Bardon in operating said automobile under the then

existing and surrounding circumstances and condi-

tions amounted to something more than ordinary

negligence, to-wit, the want of slight care, upon his

part, then your verdict should be in favor of the

plaintiff.

No. 8.

You are instructed that the law presumes that

Marguerite [180] (or Roberta) Doheny was at all

times exercising due care for her personal safety

and this presumption has the force of evidence in

the absence of countervailing evidence sufficient to

overcome the presumption.

No. 9.

If you find in favor of the plaintiff and believe

from the evidence that Marguerite (or Roberta)

Doheny 's earning capacity was destroyed as a result

of the grossly negligent and reckless operation of

the automobile by George Bardon then in determin-

ing the damages sustained by her as a result of loss

of earning capacity you may consider her age, oc-

cupation, state of health, her ability to earn money,

non-employment, increase or diminution in earning

capacity as age advances, the circumstances that

she may not have lived the period of time of her

expectancy of life as sho\vn by the mortality tables

and that she might have lived a period of time I be-

yond the period of her expectancy of life.

Annuity costs and mortality tables have been ^in-

troduced in evidence in this case. Such tables are
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not to be considered as absolute basis for your cal-

culations but must be used by you as a ^lide only

so far as the facts before you correspond to those

from which such tables were computed.

In determining the amount of damages by rea-

son of loss, if any, of earning capacity by Margue-

rite (or Roberta) Doheny, you may allow such sum

as damages as would be required to purchase an

amiuity equal to the amount that Marguerite (or

Roberta) Doheny would reasonably be expected to

earn yearly during the period of expectancy of her

life. [181]

No. 10.

If you find your verdict in favor of the plaintiff

and against the defendants then it will be necessary

for you to write into that verdict the amount of

damages directly and proximately caused Margue-

rite (or Roberta) Doheny by reason of the grossly

negligent and reckless operation of the automobile

by George S. Bardon. In determining this amount

you are limited to a sum of money which would

have reasonably compensated Marguerite (or Ro-

berta) Doheny for the pain and suffering of mind

and body which the injuries caused (if any such

pain and suffering were caused) between the time

she was injured and the time she died if she sur-

vived the injuries for any appreciable length of

time and to the further sum that would have com-

pensated her for the impairment, if any, which

was caused by the injuries, of her capacity to earn

money in the future if she had not been injured,
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together with such sum as is reasonable for medical

treatment and nursing required to be rendered to

said Marguerite (or Roberta) Doheny by reason of

any injuries which she may have sustained as afore-

said.

The amount sued for and claimed in the com-

plaint, to-wit, $50,050.00 must not be to you any

criterion in determining the amount of your ver-

dict, if you render any in favor of the plaintiff,

but I charge you that in no event shall your verdict

be in excess of the amoimt of $50,050.00.

No. 11.

You are instructed that it is the law of the State

of Montana that:

Any person riding in a motor vehicle as a guest

or by invitation and not for hire, assiunes as be-

tween owner and guest the [182] ordinary negli-

gence of the owner of operator of such motor

vehicle.

No. 12.

You are instructed that it is not sufficient for

the plaintiff to show that George S. Bardon was

guilty of ordinary negligence, but the plaintiff nuist

go further and show that said George S. Bardon

operated the Ford automobile in a grossly negli-

gent and reckless manner, and the mere fact itself

that a collision occurred and that Marguerite (or

Roberta) Doheny died, raises no presumption of

such gross negligence and reckless operation.
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No. 13.

You are instructed that in deciding whether your

verdict in this case shall be for the plaintiff or the

defendants, you shall be governed solely by the evi-

dence given upon the stand and the law given you

in the instructions and not by considerations of

sympathy.

No. 14.

The jury is instructed that gross negligence and

reckless operation is something more than ordinary

negligence; it is the want of slight care.

No. 15.

You are instructed that the o^vner or operator of

a motor vehicle is not liable for any damages or in-

juries to any passenger or person riding in said

motor vehicle as a guest or by invitation and not

for hire, unless damage or injury is caused directly

and proximately by the grossly negligent and reck-

less operation by him of such motor vehicle, and

you are further instructed in this [183] case that

neither the defendant John M. Coverdale and the

defendant Coverdale & Johnson, a co-partnership,

is liable for damages or injuries to Marguerite (or

Roberta) Doheny vmless plaintiff proves by a pre-

ponderance of the evidence that such damage or

injury was caused directly and proximately by the

grossly negligent and reckless operation of the auto-

mobile by George S. Bardon.

No. 16.

You are instructed that in this case the defend-

ants John M. Coverdale and Coverdale & Johnson,
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a co-partnership, deny that E. O. Johnson and

George S. Bardon were acting- within the scope of

the business of the partnership in inviting or per-

mitting Marguerite (or Roberta) Doheny to ride

in the automobile of E. O. Johnson on the night of

December 10th, 1934, and you are instructed that

imless you find from a preponderance of the evi-

dence that the said E. O. Johnson and George S.

Bardon were acting within the scope of the business

of the partnership in inviting or permitting the

said Marguerite (or Roberta) Doheny to ride in

said automobile, then your verdict must be for the

defendants John M. Coverdale and Coverdale &
Johnson, a co-partnership.

No. 16 A.

You are further instructed that if the automobile

involved in this action was, at the time of the in-

fliction of the injuries upon Marguerite (or Ro-

berta) Doheny being used for the business of the

partnership and that the said Marguerite (or Ro-

berta) Doheny was in said automobile either by in-

vitation or acquiescence of co-partner E. O. John-

son and that the injuries inflicted at the time were

the result of the grossly negligent and reckless [184]

operation of said aiitomobile as the proximate

cause of said injuries, then your verdict should be

for the plaintiff.

No. 17.

You are not at liberty to assume the existence of

any state of facts unless there is evidence in the
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case justifying the conclusion; nor can any member

of the jury act on any knowledge he may have of

the facts, or on any information he may have ac-

quired from any source other than from the evi-

dence adduced at the trial.

No. 18.

You are instructed that your power of judging of

the effect of the evidence is not arbitrary, but is to

be exercised with legal discretion and in subordina-

tion to the rules of evidence. You are not bound to

decide in conformity wdth the declarations of any

number of witnesses which do not produce convic-

tion in your minds against a less number or against

a i)resumption or other evidence satisfying your

minds.

No. 19.

A witness is presumed to speak the trutli. This

presumption, however, may be repelled by the man-

ner in w^hich he testifies, by the character of his

testimony, or by evidence affecting his character

for truth, honesty or integrity, or his motives, or

by contradictory evidence, and the jury are the

exclusive judges of his credibility.

No. 20.

You are instructed that a witness false in one

part of his testimony is to be distrusted in other

parts. [185]
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No. 21.

The direct evidence of one witness who is entitled

to full credit is sufficient for proof of any fact, ex-

cept perjury and treason.

No. 22.

As the Court has instructed you, gentlemen of

the jury, you are the exclusive judges of the credi-

bility of the witnesses and of the weight and value

to be given their testimony. In determining as to

the credit you will give to a witness, and the weight

and value you will attach to a witness' testimony,

you have a right and you should take into considera-

tion the conduct and appearance of the witness upon

the stand ; the interest of the witness, if any, in the

result of the trial ; the motives actuating the witness

in testifying, if any; the witness' relation to, or

feelings for or against, either party, if any; the

probability or improbability of the witness' state-

ments; the opportunity the witness had to observe

and to be informed as to matters respecting which

such witness gives testimony ; and the inclination of

the witness to speak truthfully or otherwise as to

matters within the knowledge of such witness. All

these matters being taken into account with all the

other facts and circumstances given in evidence, it

is your province to give to each witness such creel it,

and the testimony of each witness such vahie and

weight, as you deem proper.

No. 23.

In determining what are the facts in this case

and what verdict, if any, you should return, you
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will take into consideration only the testimony of

the witnesses upon the witness stand in this case

and such documentary evidence and exhibits as

have [186] been admitted.

You must not allow^ yourselves to consider or be

til any mamier influenced by anything which you

have seen, heard or read outside of the evidence and

exhibits in this case.

Your verdict, if you arrive at one, must be based

solely upon the evidence and instructions of the

Court presented and read to you in the course of

the trial.

By no remark made by the Court during the

trial, nor by these instructions or otherwise, does

the Court or did the Court express any opinion as

to the facts in the case. It is for you and not the

Court to determine what the facts are.

You should not give any weight to statements of

counsel heretofore or that may hereafter be made

to you which are not supported by the evidence

presented to you and by the instructions of the

Court. Counsel are, however, privileged to argue

and comment upon the law as given in these in-

structions, in their arguments to you.

No. 24.

You should consider these instructions as a

whole. You have no right to consider any part or

parts of them to the exclusion of other portions

thereof.



vs. Ethel M. Doheny 453

No. 25.

When you retire to consider of your verdict you

should select one of your number as Foreman whose

duty it will be to sign any verdict you may make.

No. 26.

Blank forms of verdicts will be furnished you

for your [187] convenience, one of which you will

find suitable for such verdict as you may make.

No-. 27.

It requires the concurrence of at least eight of

your niunber to make a verdict.

Dated this 2nd day of May, 1936.

W. H. MEIGS,
Judge.

OBJECTION INTERPOSED DURING
ARGUMENT OF COUNSEL

The Court: Let the record show, Mr. Reporter,

that while counsel for defendant was arguing the

case to the jury that he commented upon the fact

that the verdict, if found against the defendants,

would fall upon Mr. Coverdale, with the implica-

tion that it might break him or wreck him finan-

cially, with other similar comment. That there-

after, when counsel for plaintiff came to make reply

thereto, he said "Why didn't counsel for defend-

ants ask Mr. Coverdale as to his wealth, so that we

would have had opportunity to cross examine him

as to whether he was worth a million or more
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millions or any extent of his wealth, or as to

whether the firm of Coverdale & Johnson had lia-

bility insurance. Thereupon counsel for defendant

moved for a mistrial, and stated "I will say to Mr.

McCabe, we have no public liability insurance",

and that the Court thereupon directed that he would

let the case proceed, and that that matter could be

taken up later. Thereupon counsel for defendant

requested the Court to admonish the jury relative

thereto, and the Court had said, when he thought

to call in the Court Reporter, and now repeats:

''Gentlemen of the Jury: As forcefully as I can, as

earnestly as I can speak, as [188] clear as your

minds are now as intelligent gentlemen and men of

the community and experienced in life, I admonish

that you should erase that remark made by counsel

for plaintiff as completely from your mind as you

did when in school days you would take your fingers

or a piece of sponge and wipe some lettering on

your slate, and wipe it out entirely.

Mr. McCabe: I would likewise ask the Court to

admonish the jury as to statements made by counsel

for defendants and as to Mr. Coverdale 's financial

resi)onsibility, and his statements as to facts not in

evidence, and not to be influenced by them.

The Court: That also the jury will take into

consideration. There is an instruction. Gentlemen

of the Jury, given you jurors, that this case is not

to be determined on sympathy. That means sym-

pathy neither for money or lack of it, neither for

parental affection or lack of it.
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Mr. Toole: There is one other matter, your

Honor, just for a moment: Immediately after I

moved for a mistrial the Court suggested that that

could be taken up later, and it was after that that

I asked the Court to admonish the jury.

The Court : I think I designated that to the Re-

porter.

Mr. Toole: I didn't know if the record was ex-

actly clear on that.

Thereafter, the jury having retired to consider

on a verdict

:

Mr, Toole : I would like a ruling on that motion

for a mistrial.

The Court: Well, I admonished the jury, and

deny the motion. [189]

And thereafter, the jury having retired to con-

sider of their verdict, returned a verdict in favor

of the plaintiff and against the defendants in each

of said causes, and assessed plaintiff's damages in

the sum of $5,000.00 in each of said causes.

And thereupon counsel for defendants, in each of

said causes, requested of the Court and was granted

sixty days in addition to the statutory time allowed

by law in which to file Bill of Exceptions herein.

And thereafter and within ten days from the

receipt by defendants of notice of entiy of judg-

ment, the defendants filed their notice of intention

to move for a new trial in each of said causes,

which said notice is as follows

:
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[Title of Court and Cause.]

NOTICE OF INTENTION TO MOVE
FOR A NEW TRIAL

To Ethel M. Doheny, as administratrix of the estate

of Marguerite Doheny, deceased, (and of the

Estate of Roberta Doheny, deceased), as plain-

tiff in the above entitled action and to Cleve

Hall and E. J. McCabe, her Attorneys:

You and each of you will j^lease take notice that

John M. Coverdale and Coverdale and Johnson, a

co-partnership, defendants in the above entitled ac-

tion, do hereby give notice of their intention to

move for a new trial and a re-examination of the

issues in the above entitled action. You will please

further take notice that said defendants being the

parties aggrieved intend to move to have the verdict

vacated for the following causes materially effecting

the substantial rights of said defendants

:

I.

Irregularity in the proceedings of the adverse

party by which the said defendants were prevented

from having a fair trial. [190]

II.

Insufficiency of the evidence to justify the verdict

and that the verdict is against the law.

III.

Errors in law occurring at the trial and excepted

to by the defendants.
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You will please further take notice that the said

motion will be based upon the minutes of the Court

and upon the record of the trial of said action.

Dated this 3rd day of May, 1936, at Helena,

Montana.

HOWARD TOOLE,
W. T. BOONE,
Attorneys for defendants, John

M. Coverdale and Coverdale

and Johnson.

That thereafter said defendants' motion for a

new trial having duly come on for hearing on the

11th day of May, 1936, the court upon due consid-

eration, thereupon; on the said 11th day of May,

1936, denied each of said motions of said defend-

ants for a new trial.

And now, within the time allowed by law and

that granted by the Court, the defendants present

the foregoing as their Bill of Exceptions in each

of said causes, and pray that the same may be

signed, settled and allowed.

Dated this 29th day of June, 1936.

HOWARD TOOLE,
W. T. BOONE,

Attorneys for defendants, John

M. Coverdale and Coverdale

and Johnson.
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Due service of the foregoing proposed Bill of

Exceptions acknowledged and receipt of a copy

thereof admitted this 29th day of June, 1936.

HALL & McCABE
Attorneys for Plaintiff.

[Endorsed] : Filed June 29, 1936. George Harper,

Court Clerk. J. E. Hilgard, Deputy. Filed after

settlement July 11, 1936. George Harper, Clerk. By
J. E. Hilgard, Deputy Clerk. [191]

[Title of State Court and Cause.]

JUDGE'S CERTIFICATE

A stipulation having been filed herein between

the plaintiff Ethel M. Doheny and defendants John

M. Coverdale and Coverdale & Johnson, a co-part-

nership, amending the proposed bill of exceptions

filed herein by said defendants, and

It appearing that said proposed bill of exceptions

having been duly and regularly served and pre-

sented for settlement to the undersigned, the judge

who tried said causes, as amended by said stipula-

tion,

Now, Therefore, This is to certify that the said

foregoing proposed bill of exceptions as amended

by said stipulation is full, true and correct and is

hereby settled, allowed and assigned as a full, true

and correct bill of exceptions of the proceedings
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had and taken at the trial of said causes, and the

same is ordered filed this 11th day of July, 1936.

W. H. MEIGS,
Judge. [192]

In the District Court of the United States for the

District of Montana, Great Falls Division.

No. 69.

ETHEL M. DOHENY, as Administratrix of the

Estate of Roberta Doheny, Deceased,

Plaintiff and Appellee,

vs.

UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND GUAR-
ANTY COMPANY, a Corporation,

Defendant and Appellant,

and

No. 70.

ETHEL M. DOHENY, as Administratrix of the

Estate of Marguerite Doheny, Deceased,

Plaintiff and Appellee,

vs.

UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND GUAR-
ANTY COMPANY, a Corporation,

Defendant and Appellant.
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ORDER FOR SUPPLEMENTAL RECORD ON
APPEAL

It having: been made to appear to the Court that

in the consolidated record on appeal to the Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit in the above

entitled causes there has been omitted therefrom by

error and accident certain evidence material to the

above named plaintiff and appellee consisting of

certain written exhibits, hereinafter specified, and

which w^ere offered and received in evidence at the

trial of above entitled causes on behalf of said

plaintiff and appellee:

Now therefore on motion of said plaintiff and

appellee it is ordered that said plaintiff and appel-

lee may have certified and transmitted by the Clerk

of this District Court to the United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit a supple-

mental consolidated record on appeal in the above

entitled actions [193] containing copies of plain-

tiff's Exhibits numbered 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 10, 11,

12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 22, 23, 24 and 25,

and a copy of this order; and

It is further ordered that the Clerk of this Dis-

trict Court upon application of said plaintiff and

appellee therefor, shall certify and transmit to the

United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Ninth Circuit a supplemental consolidated record

on appeal in the above actions and containing true

copies of the said plaintiff's exhibits hereinabove

specified, and a copy of this order.
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Done this 15th day of March, 1941.

CHARLES N. PRAY
Judge.

[Endorsed] : Filed and Entered March 15, 1941.

C. R. Garlow, Clerk. [194]

CLERK'S CERTIFICATE TO SUPPLE-
MENTAL TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD ON
APPEAL.

United States of America,

District of Montana—ss.

I, C. R. Garlow, Clerk of the United States Dis-

trict Court for the District of Montana, do hereby

certify that the foregoing volume consisting of 195

pages, numbered consecutively from 1 to 195, in-

clusive, and consisting of true and correct copies

of Plaintiff's Exhibits numbered 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7,

8, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 22, 23, 24

and 25, and Order for Supplemental Record on

Appeal, filed in cases:

No. 69,

Ethel M. Doheny, as Administratrix of the Es-

tate of Roberta Doheny, Deceased,

vs.

United States Fidelity and Guaranty Com-
pany, a Corporation;

and
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No. 70,

Ethel M. Doheny, as Administratrix of the Es-

tate of Marguerite Doheny, Deceased,

vs.

United States Fidelity and Guaranty Com-

pany, a Corporation;

constitutes the Supplemental Record on Appeal in

said cases, ordered transmitted to the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit by

order of the United States District Court for the

District of (Montana, filed and entered March 15,

1941 at Great Falls, Montana.

I further certify that the cost of the within Sup-

plemental Record on Appeal, amounting to Thirty-

one and 50/lOOths Dollars, ($31.50), has been paid

by the Appellees.

Witness my hand and the seal of the United

States District Court for the District of Montana,

at Great Falls, Montana, this 21st day of March

A. D. 1941.

[Seal] C. R. GARLOW,
Clerk as aforesaid.

By C. G. KEGEL,
Deputy Clerk. [195]
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[Endorsed]: No. 9668. In the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit.

United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company, a

corporation, Appellant, vs. Ethel M. Doheny, as

Administratrix of the Estate of Roberta Doheny,

Deceased, Appellee, and United States Fidelity and

Guaranty Company, a corporation. Appellant, vs.

Ethel M. Doheny, as Administratrix of the Estate

of Marguerite Doheny, Deceased, Appellee. Sup-

plemental Transcript of Record on. Upon appeals

from the District Court of the United States for

the District of Montana.

Filed Mar. 24, 1941.

PAUL P. O'BRIEN.
Clerk.

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit.

No. 9668.

UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND GUAR-
ANTY COMPANY, a corporation.

Appellant,

vs.

ETHEL M. DOHENY, as administratrix of the

Estate of Roberta Doheny, deceased.

Appellee,

and
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UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND GUAR-
ANTY COMPANY, a corporation,

Appellant,

vs.

ETHEL M. DOHENY, as administratrix of the

Estate of Marguerite Doheny, deceased,

Appellee.

PRAECIPE

To: Paul P. O'Brien, Esq., Clerk of the above

Court

:

Please have printed, in its entirety, and file the

Supplemental Record on Appeal heretofore certi-

fied by the Clerk of the District Court of the United

States for the District of Montana and transmitted

to the above appellate court in the above entitled

consolidated causes on appeal.

Dated this 22nd day of March, 1941.

E. J. McCABE
Attorney for Appellee,

Great Falls, Montana.

[Endorsed]: Filed Mar. 24, 1941. Paul P.

O'Brien, Clerk.
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UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND GUARANTY
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Appellant,

vs.
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Appellee,
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JURISDICTION

This is a consolidated appeal from two judgments

entered in the District Court of the United States for

the District of Montana, Great Palls Division, in two

cases wherein the appellee, Ethel M. Doheny, as Ad-

ministratrix, and a resident and citizen of the State of

Montana, was plaintiff, and the appellant. United

State Fidelity and Guaranty Company, a corporation,

and a resident and citizen of the State Maryland, was

defendant (R. 16, 39).

In each of the two cases the appellee seeks to recover

from the appellant the sum of $5,116.89 which amount

represents the amount of each of two judgments made

and entered in her favor in the District Court of the

Eighth Judicial District of the State of Montana, in and

for Cascade County, in two actions entitled

''Ethel M. Doheny, as Administratrix of the

Estate of Roberta Doheny, deceased, plaintiff, vs.

John M. Coverdale and E. O. Johnson, co-partners
doing business under the firm, name and style of

Coverdale & Johnson, defendants, (R. 73) and
"Ethel M. Doheny, as Administratrix of the

Estate of Marguerite Doheny, deceased, plaintiff,

vs. John M. Coverdale and E. O. Johnson, co-

partners doing business under the firm, name and
style of Coverdale & Johnson, defendants, (R.
75)."

The two causes, involved in this appeal, were origin-

ally filed in the District Court of the Eighth Judicial

District of the State of Montana, in and for Cascade

County, (R. 3, 26) and on petition and order were re-

moved for trial to the United States District Court in
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and for the District of Montana, Great Falls Division

(R. 15, 24, 38, 47). The two cases were consolidated

by the United States District Court for trial and were

heard together as the pleadings were alike, the facts

identical and the law apjolicable thereto, the same (R.

64). For those reasons the causes are here presented

in a consolidated appeal.

The jurisdiction of the District Court of the United

States is found in Section 41, Title 28., United States

Codes Annotated, Section (1) (b)
;

(Judicial Code,

Section 24, as amended) wherein the United States

District Court is given jurisdiction over causes between

citizens of different states, where the amount in con-

troversy exceeds the sum of $3000.00, exclusive of in-

terest and costs.

The appellate jurisdiction of the United States Cir-

cuit Court of Appeals is found in Section 225, Title

28, United States Codes Annotated (first paragraph)

Judicial Code, Section 128, as amended) wherein the

Circuit Court of Appeals is given jurisdiction in all

cases save those in which there is a direct appeal to the

Supreme Court of the United States. No such direct

appeal to the Supreme Court is permissable in these

cases.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On December 12, 1934, Marguerite Doheny and Ro-

berta Doheny, daughters of the ai^pellee, while riding

as guests in an automobile owned by E. O. Johnson,

one of the members of the co-partnership of Coverdale
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& Johnson, received personal injuries which caused

their deaths as a result of an automobile accident which

occurred at Simms, in Cascade County, Montana.

Thereafter two actions were commenced by the appel-

lee as the Administratrix of the Estate of Marguerite

Doheny, Deceased, and Roberta Doheny, deceased, re-

spectively, in the state court against Coverdale & John-

son, a co-partnership, in which actions appellee sought

damages for personal injuries to and the death of Mar-

guerite and Roberta Doheny. The trial of these two

cases resulted in a verdict of $5000.00 in each case in

favor of appellee and against Coverdale & Johnson (R.

73, 75). Both cases were appealed by Coverdale &
J ohnson to the Supreme Court of the State of Montana

and both judgments were by the Supreme Court affirm-

ed (R. 69). Execution was taken out against Coverdale

& Johnson in each of the cases and was returned wholly

unsatisfied (R. 72).

The two cases involved in this appeal are actions

brought by appellee against the appellant, United

States Fidelity and Guaranty Company, to recover the

amount of each of the judgments, together with interest

and costs, obtained by her in the state court against

Coverdale & Johnson (R. 3 to 10 and 27 to 33). Appel-

lee seeks in these actions to impose liability upon the

appellant for the unsatisfied judgments against Cover-

dale & Johnson by reason of the fact that appellant had

written a surety bond for and issued a Contractor's

Public Liability Policy to the co-partnership in connec-



tion with the hitter's written contract with the Montana

State Highway Commission, which agreement was en-

tered into on September 21, 1934 (R. 4 to 7 and 28 to

30). The contract provided for the construction by the

contractor (Coverdale & Johnson) of certain improve-

ments, consisting of one concrete and five treated tim-

ber pile bridges and stock passes on the Augusta-Sun

River Road in Lewis and Clark County, Montana (R.

89).

As a condition precedent to the complete execution of

this contract, the contractor was required by the terms

of the contract to furnish a good and sufficient surety

bond to be conditioned upon the faithful performance

by it of the covenants and agreements contained in the

contract (R. 98). The "contract bond" was executed

on September 21, 1934, in favor of the State of Montana

by Coverdale & Johnson, as principal, and the appel-

lant, as surety (R. 100). The condition of the bond is

as follows :(R. 101):

"Now, Therefore, The Condition of this obliga-

tion is such that if the above bonded 'Principal' as

Contractor shall in all respects faithfully perform
all of the provisions of said contract, and his, their

or its obligations thereunder including the specifi-

cations therein referred to and made part thereof

and such alterations as may be made in said speci-

fications as therein provided for, and shall well

and truly, and in a marnier satisfactory to the State

Highway Commission, complete the work contract-

ed for, and shall save harmless the State of Mon-
tana, from any expense incurred through the fail-

ure of said Contractor to complete the work as
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specified, or from any damages growing out of the

carelessness of said Contractor or his, their, or its

servants, or from any liability for pajonent of

wages due or material furnished said Contractor,

and shall well and truly pay all laborers, mechanics,
subcontractors and material men who perform
work or furnish material under such contract, and
all persons who shall supply him or the subcon-
tractor with provisions, provender and supplies for

the carrying on of the work, and also shall save
and keep harmless the said State of Montana
against and from all losses to it from any cause
whatever including patent, trade-mark and copy-
right infringements, in the manner of constructing
said section of work, then this obligation to be void
or otherwise to be and remain in full force and
virtue.

'

'

Section 7.11 of the contract specifications (R. 86)

provided that "the contractor shall carry public liabil-

ity insurance to indemnify the public for injuries or

damages sustained by reason of the carrying on the

work" and "shall submit adequate evidence to the Com-

mission that he has taken out this insurance." At the

time the contract was sent to Coverdale & Johnson, a

letter was addressed by the Commission to the contrac-

tor (R. 110) which, among other things, directed the lat-

ter 's attention to the above provision of the contract

and as to the submission of "adequate evidence" stated

"preferably, this information should be conveyed in the

form of a letter to this Department from the insurance

agent who furnishes you the policy."

On October 1, 1934 (ten days after the execution

and delivery of the contract), a Contractor's Public
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Liability Policy of insurance was written by the appel-

lant through agent Bowman at Anaconda. Montana, to

the contractor (R. 133 to 163) and on the same date

the appellant by letter (R. 113) advised the Commis-

sion "we have issued Contractor's Public Liability

Policy PC-19715 for this assured, with Public Liability

limits Ten Thousand and ^i'wenty Thousand and Prop-

erty Damage One Thousand. This policy is written for

(me year from October 1st, 1934."

The Montana State Highway Commission, at least

since 1929, has never prepared a form of Public Liabil-

ity Insurance Policy for use by contractors and has

never prescribed the terms of a policy such as was re-

quired by Section 7.11 of tlie contract specifications,

and has never required contractors, including Cover-

dale & Johnson, to deliver the original or a copy of the

policy of insurance to it (R. 115, 116).

The Contractor's Public Liability Policy so issued

to the contractor by tlie a])])ellant contains the follow^-

ing pertinent provisions:

''The Insuring Agreement.

"I. To settle and/or defend in the manner here-

inafter set forth all cloims resulting from liability

imposed upon the Assured by law for damages on
aecoiint of bodily mjnries, including death at any
time resulting therefrom, accidentally suffered or
alleged to have been suffered within the policy per-

iod defined in Statement 2 hy any person or per-
sons other than emjtloyces of the Assured, hy rea-

son of and during the progress of the work de-

scribed in Statement 4 at the places named therein
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and elsewhere, if caused by employees of the Assur-
ed engaged as such in said operations at said pla-

ces ; but who are required in the discharge of their

duties to be from time to time at other places,

except driving or using any vehicle or automobile
or any draught animal or loading or unloading any
such vehicle/' (R. 133)

^^Exclusions.
:

''Condition A.

''This policy shall not cover loss from liability

for, or any suit based on, injuries or death:

*'(3) Caused by any draught or driving animal
or vehicle or automobile oivned or used by the As-
sured or any person efrtployed by the Assured ivhile

engaged in the maintenance or use of same else-

where than upon the insured premises." (R. 136)

Endorsement entitled "Contractor's Public Liability

Endorsement," attached to the policy extends the cov-

erage to claims arising in connection with

:

'*1. Self-propelled contractor's equipment and
appliances (except motorcycles, tractors, and auto-

mobiles, whether with or without mounted equip-

ment or machinery) with or without towed equip-

ment, while being moved under their own power
between places covered by the Policy where the

Assured is carrying on his operations

;

"2. Road graders and road scrapers while be-

ing drawn by draught animals between places cov-

ered by the Policy where the Assured is carrying
on his operations." (R. 154)

This endorsement also changes enxclusion (3) of

Condition A of the policy to read as follows (R. 154)

:

"This policy shall not cover loss from liability



for, or any suit based on, injuries or death:

"Caused directly or indirectly by any draught
or driving animal, any automboile, trailer, tractor,

motorcycle or other vehicle (including the loading

and unloading thereof) elsewhere than at the im-
mediate places covered by the Policy where the

Assured is carrying on his operations."

The policy, by endorsement No. 8, was extended to

cover operations described in the schedule of operations

attached to the policy as applicable to that certain work

designated as NRH-176 "E" Unit No. 2, being con-

crete and timber pile bridges on Augusta-Sun River

Road, Lewis and Clark County, Montana. In the

schedule referred to, the work is referred to as "being

construction of concrete and timber pile bridges,

Augusta-Sun River Road, Lewis and Clark County,

Montana, . . .
" (R 161)

The concrete and treated timber pile bridges, covered

by the Highway Commission contract, were located on

what is called the Augustr»-Sun River Road in Lewis

and Clark County, Montana. (R. 89) The automobile

accident, reference to which has been previously made,

occurred in the town of Simms in Cascade County,

Montana. Of the bridges covered by the contract, the

nearest one to the point of the accident was 12.3 miles.

The other bridges were scattered from that 12-mile

point to 22 miles distant from the point of the accident.

There were five bridges under the Highway Commis-

sion contract and only one of the five bridges was un-
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completed when the accident occurred, that being the

one 22 miles distant from Simms, where the automobile

accident took place. At the time of the accident the

contractor was not working on that bridge, but was in

fact working on bridges under another Highway Com-

mission contract on what is known as the Augusta-

Choteau Road at a point 28 miles from the location of

the accident. (R. 131, 132, 173)

QUESTIONS PRESENTED

The questions presented in this consolidated appeal

may be briefly stated as follows:

First. Do the unsatisfied state court judgments

arising out of the automobile accident, under the plead-

ings and proof, come within the terms, provisions, in-

suring agreement and coverage of the Contractor's

Public Liability Policy (Defendant's Exhibit 27)

issued by the appellant to the contractor, Coverdale &
Johnson ?

Second. Whether there is any liability upon appel-

lant under the contract performance bond (plaintiff's

exhibit No. 2 on deposition) executed by appellant as

surety, for the unsatisfied state court judgments

against Coverdale & Johnson?

Third. Whether, in the interpretation of the said

Contractor's Public Liability Policy, it was proper to

resort to extrinsic evidence, such as the contract be-

tween the contractor and the State Highway Commis-

sion, and the contract performance bond to the end of



—10—
liolding the exclusion provisions of the said Contrac-

tor's Public Liability Policy inoperative, when (a) the

Contractor's Public Liability Policy is admittedly a

clear, concise and unambiguous contract and (b) when

the contract between the contractor and the State High-

way Commission, and the contract performance bond,

and the Contractor's Public Liability Policy are not

contracts relating to the same matters, between the

same parties, and made as parts of substantially one

transaction ?

Fourth. When there is no pleading seeking a re-

formation of the policy and no pleading or evidence of

mistake, fraud or ambiguity in connection therewith,

was it proper for the trial court to reform the policy?

SPECIFICATIONS OF ERROR

1. Because there was no sufficient evidence in the

record, the trial court erred in making its finding of

fact No. V in each of the cases as follows (R. 188,

196):

"That on the 12th day of December, 1934, and
while carrying on the work mentioned and des-

cribed in the aforesaid written agreement between
the said co-partners and the State of Montana the

aforesaid co-partners operated a certain automo-
bile in such a grossly negligent and reckless man-
ner as to injure and kill one Roberta Doheny (Mar-
guerite Doheny) and tiiat at the time the said Ro-
berta Doheny (Marguerite Doheny) was a member
of the public and said automobile was then and
there being used in carrying on the work imder
aforesaid agreement ..."



—11—
2. Because the Contractor's Public Liability Policy

(Defendant's Exhibit 27) was a clear, concise and un-

ambiguous contract of insurance and because the in-

struments with which it was construed, namely, the

contract between Coverdale & Johnson and the Mon-

tana State Highway Commission, and the contract per-

formance bond (Plaintiff's Exhibits 1 and 2 on de-

position), were not contracts relating to the same mat-

ters, between the same parties, and made as parts of

substantially one transaction, the trial court erred in

making its finding of fact No. VIII in each of the

cases, as follows (R. 190, 398)

:

"The defendant United States Fidelity and
Guaranty Company executed and delivered to the

said co-partners a written public liability insur-

ance policy bearing date October 1, 1934, and which
was introduced in evidence by the defendant cor-

poration and received in evidence as defendant's
Exhibit 27 and which policy was written and issued

by defendant as a purported compliance with the

requirements of the written agreement with the

State Highway Commission of Montana. The
policy of insurance so written and delivered con-

tains exclusion provisions which are antagonistic

and contrary to the requirements of the aforesaid
agreement with the State Highway Commission
of the State of Montana, and such exclusion pro-

visions were and 'are inoperative to defeat recovery
in this action."

3. Because there is no pleading seeking a reforma-

tion of the Contractor's Public Liability Policy (De-

fendant's Exhibit 27), and because there is no plead-

ing or proof of mistake, fraud or ambiguity, the trial
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court erred in making a reformation of said policy and

in holding, in the opinion of the court, as follows (R.

184):

"Under the construction given the jDolicy read-

ing it as one with the contract and bond, together

with the evidence, reformation seems unnecessary,

since it w^ould mean tlie same in any event."

4. The trial court erred in admitting Plaintiff's

Exhibit No. 1 on deposition (R. 81-99) said exhibit No,

1 on deposition being the contract between the State

Highway Commission and Coverdale & Johnson for

the construction of certain highway bridges, over the

objection of the appellant, as follows:

"Mr. McCabe: Offer in evidence plaintiff's ex-

hibit 1 as a part of the testimony of this witness.

"Mr. Boone: To which the defendant objects on
the ground that tiie instrument has not been
properly identified; further as incompetent, irre-

levant and immaterial, having no bearing upon the

issues in this case. And further objection that

the offer of the exhibit is an attempt on the part

of the plaintiff to vary the terms of a certain

policy of insurance, wiiich is the subject of this

action.

"The Court: Are these standard specifications,

and do they relate jjarticularly to this contract?

"Mr. McCabe: Yes.

"The Court: Overrule the objection."

5. The trial court erred in admitting Plaintiff's Ex-

hibit No. 2 on deposition (R. 99-102), said exhibit being

the contract perfornumce bond furnished by appellant
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to Coverdale & Johnson to guarantee the faithful per-

formance of the contract for the construction of the

highway bridges, over the objection of the defendant,

as follows

:

"The Witness: The Contract Bond, marked as

plaintiff's exhibit 2, is the bond I have heretofore

testified to as being annexed to the document
marked plaintiff's exhibit 1.

"Mr. McCabe: We offer plaintiff's exhibits 1

and 2 as a part of the testimony of this witness.

"Mr. Boone: To which the defendant objects in

that the plaintiff's exhibit has not been properly
authenticated and on the further ground that the

exhibit is incompetent, irrelevant and immaterial,

and has no bearing on the issues in this case; on
the further ground it is an attempt on the part of

the plaintiff to vary the terms of a certain insur-

ance policy executed to John M. Coverdale and
E. O. Johnson, which insurance policy is the sub-

ject of this action.

"The Court: Overrule the objection."

6. The trial court err^d m admitting Plaintiff's Ex-

hibit No. 3 on deposition (R. 110, 111), said exhibit be-

ing a letter from the State Highway Commission to the

contractor wherein reference is made to the contract

(Plaintiff's Exhibit 1 on deposition), the performance

bond (Plaintiff's Exhibit 2 on deposition), and also

referring to the provision in the contract relative to

liability insurance, over the objection of the appellant,

as follows:

"Mr. McCabe: Plaintiff 's exhibit No. 3 is offer-

ed in evidence.



—14—
''Mr. Boone: To which the defendant objects on

the ground that it is incompetent, irrelevant and
immaterial; that the exhibit constitutes a self-

serving declaration and on the further ground that

no commTuiications, such as plaintiff's exhibit 3,

between State Highway Commission and Cover-
dale & Johnson are binding upon the defendant,
and ui)on the further ground no proper foundation
has been laid for the introduction of the exhibit.

"The Court: Overrule the objection."

7. The trial court erred in admitting Plaintiff's Ex-

hibit No. 4 on deposition (K. 113, 114), said exhibit

being a letter from appellant to the State Highway

Commission referring to the Contractor's Public Lia-

bility Policy (Defendant's Exhibit No. 27), over the ob-

jection of appellant, as follows:

"Mr. McCabe: Plaintiff's exhibit 4 is offered in

evidence.

"Mr. Boone: This is objected to on the ground
the instrument has not been properly authentica-

ted; on the further ground no proper foundation
has been laid for the admission of the exhibit in

evidence and on the further ground it is incompe-
tent, irrelevant and immaterial, not serving or hav-

ing any bearing on the issues in this case.

"The Court: Objection overruled."

8. The trial court erred in making its conclusion of

law No. 1 in each of the cases, as follow^s: (R. 192, 199)

"That the plaintiff Ethel M. Doheny, as admin-
istratrix of the estate of Roberta Doheny, (Mar-
guerite Doheny) deceased, is entitled to the judg-

ment of the above entitled Court in the above en-
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titled action in her favor and against the defend-
ant United States Fidelity and Guaranty Com-
pany in the sum of Five Thousand One Hundred
Sixteen Dollars and Eighty-nine Cents ($5,116.89),

together with interest on said sum from May 4,

1936 until paid at the rate of six per centum (6 % )

j)er annum, and plaintiff's costs incurred in said

action."

9. The trial court erred in denying the appellant's

motion to dismiss the complaint in each of the cases,

said motion being made upon the ground that the com-

plaint fails to state a claim upon which relief can be

granted. (R. 50, 51)

10. The trial court erred in denying, in each of the

cases, the appellant's motion to strike a certain part of

paragraph III of the complaint, relating to the con-

tract performance. bond, said motion being upon the

ground that said part of paragraph III was redundant,

immaterial, impertinent and surplusage. (R. 52, 53)

11. The trial court erred in entering judgment in

favor of the plaintiff and appellee and against the

defendant and appellant in each of the cases (R. 200,

202)

ARGUMENT

A. Summary.

Admittedly the Contractor's Public Liability Policy

involved in these cases is a clear and unambiguous con-

tract of insurance. That fact was recognized by the

trial court in its opinion and no issue to the contrary

was raised in the pleadings by appellee. The trial
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court also recognized, and we believe the appellee con-

cedes, that if the exclusion provisions of the policy are

operative, then the automobile accident and the result-

ing unsatisfied state court judgments against the in-

sured contractor fall within the exclusions and no re-

covery under the policy can be had. (R. 181, 182, 184.)

The policy exclusions very specifically provide that (R.

154, 155).

''This policy shall not cover loss from liability

for, or any suit based on, injuries or death : . . .

.

"Caused directly or indireetly by any
automobile elsewhere than at the imme-
diate places covered by the policy where the as-

sured is carrying on his operations."

The operations referred to in the policy were the five

concrete and treated timber pile bridges located from

12 to 22 miles away from where the automobile accident

resulting in the deaths of Marguerite and Roberta Do-

heny occurred. (R. 131).

The appellant contends that the appelle's ])roof in

these cases is insufficient to bring the unsatisfied state

court judgments within the terms and provisions of the

Contractor's Public Liability Policy.

It is impossible to ascertain from the opinion of the

trial court and from its findings of fact and conclusions

of law on what basis liability was imposed upon appel-

lant; that is, whether the liability decreed was upon the

basis of appellant having executed the surety bond to

the State of Montana on behalf of the contractor, or
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whether liability was predicated upon the Contractor's

Public Liability Policy, the exclusion provisions of

same being held inoperative, when the policy was con-

strued together with the Highway Commission contract

and the contract performance bond.

The appellant contends that there is no independent

liability upon it for the unsatisfied state court judg-

ments by having executed the contract performance

bond, inasmuch as the bond was a statutory bond which,

viewed in the light of its terms and conditions and the

terms and conditions of the highway contract, did not

require either the contractor or the surety to pay for

any damages suffered by members of the public through

the contractor's negligence.

If, on the other hand, liability was decreed upon the

policy after being construed together with the highway

contract and the contract performance bond, the appel-

lant contends that it was improper for the trial court

to construe the three instruments together because they

were not between the same parties, relating to the same

matters, and made as parts of substantially one trans-

action.

Furthermore the appellant contends that there being

no pleading of fraud, or mistake, or ambiguity and no

proof of such, the trial court nevertheless in effect re-

formed the Contractor's Public Liability Policy so as

to delete therefrom the exclusion provisions within

which the accident and the resulting unsatisfied state

court judgments properly fell.
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1. The Contract Performance Bond.

In this state, by Section 5668.41, Revised Codes of

Montana, 1935, any public body or commission in con-

tracting with any person or corporation to do any work

for the state shall require that joerson or corporation to

execute and deliver a good and sufficient surety bond

"conditioned that such corporation, person or j^ersons

shall faithfully perform all of tlie provisions of such

contract, and i)ay all laborers, mechanics, subcontrac-

tors and material men, and all persons who shall supply

such corporation, person or persons, or subcontractors

with provisions, provender, material or supplies for

the carrying on of such work. '

' Thus the contract per-

formance bond involved in these cases is clearly a statu-

tory bond.

The highway construction contract and the perform-

ance bond were both executed on September 21, 1934,

(R. 89, 100) and as is stated in the formal contract it-

self the contractor was required to furnish the surety

bond as "a condition precedent to the complete execu-

tion of this contract." (R. 98). There is no statute

in Montana requiring liability insurance on public

works nor does the statute requiring the performance

bond in such cases make any mention of liability insur-

ance. It is evident from the fact of the public liability

policy having been executed ten days after the contract

bond, and from the very terms of the contract itself,

that the requirement that public liability insurance be
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obtained by the contractor was not a condition prece-

dent to the execution of the contract.

It may be argued by the appellee that by reason of

the provision (R. 101) in the contract bond by Cover-

dale & Johnson and appellant to the State of Montana

*'that the principal would 'in all respects faithfully per-

form all of the provisions of said contract and his, their

or its obligations thereto, including the specifications

therein referred to and made a part thereof,' " the ap-

pellant, as surety, became obligated co-extensively with

the contractor to comply with the provisions of specifi-

cation 7.11 of the contract (R. 86) to the effect that

''the contractor shall carry public liability insurance

to indemnify the public for injuries or damages sus-

tained by reason of the carrying on of the work. '

'

The Montana Supreme Court expressly adopted, in

the case of Gary Hay <& Grain Company vs. Carlson,

79 Mont. Ill ,123 ; 255 Pac. 722, 725, the following gen-

eral rule of suretyship

:

"The obligation of the surety is co-ex-

tensive with and measured by the promises of the

principal (the contractor) to the obligee (the

State) appearing in the contract, provided proper
expressions are used in the bond, and the surety by
the bond binds itself only to the performance of

those acts which 'the principal promises to perform
as a part of his contract."

See also Federal Surety Company vs. Basin. Con-

struction Company, 91 Mont. 114, 126 ; 5 Pac. (2d) 775.

It must be born in mind that the construction con-



—20—

tract in this case does not bind the contractor Coverdalo

& Johnson to "pay" for any injuries sustained through

its negligence. Consequently, the appellant surety

cannot be held bound to pay for such injuries since un-

der the above cited cases the surety's obligation is co-

extensive with and measured by the promises of the

principal to the obligee appearing in the contract and

the surety by the performance bond binds itself only

to the performance of those acts which the principal

promises to perform as a part of his contract.

Marguerite and Roberta Doheny were not parties to

the construction agreement nor were the highway con-

tract and performance bond executed for their benefit.

They were strangers to both the highway agreement and

the performance bond and even though the contract

and bond contain some reference to the class to which

they belonged, they cannot recover from the appellant

as surety for the contractor's failure to discharge a

duty, here to provide liability insurance in the langu-

age of the highway agreement, because there is no spe-

(dfic promise on the part of the surety in the bond to

pay members of that class for personal injuries.

This principle was very clearly established by Na-

tional Surety Company of Neiv York vs. IJlmen, 68

Fed. (2d) 330, (ccrtiornri denied 78 L. Ed. 1479) which

was a decision from the Circuit Court of Appeals, Ninth

Circuit, upon review of a decision of the United States

District Court for the District of Montana. In tlint

case George Ulmen, the jdnintiff, had previously com-
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mencecl an action in the state court of Montana against

K. A. Schwieger, a contractor, to recover damages for

personal injuries sustained by reason of the contrac-

tor's negligence in failing to provide necessary barri-

cades, lights and warnings, during the construction of a

project under contract with the State Highway Com-

mission of the State of Montana. He recovered judg-

ment in the state court for $10,000.00 and then commen-

ced this action against the National Surety Company of

New York, who was the contractor's surety under the

construction contract, and the plaintiff contended that

by reason of the specifications in the contract which re-

quire the contractor to provide necessary barricades,

lights, warnings, danger signals, etc., and by reason of

the provision in the bond executed by the defendant

''the condition of this obligation is such that if the

bounden 'principal' as contractor shall in all respects

comply with the terms of the contract," the defendant

was obligated to pay the judgment recovered by Ulmen

in the state court. The bond in the Ulmen case is

identical with the bond involved in these cases.

The Circuit Court held that the defendant surety was

not liable to pay the unsatisfied judgment against the

contractor basing it^ decision on the ground that the

surety bond, and the contract, contained no provision

for payment, either by the contractor or his surety for

any damages suffered by members of the public through

the contractor's failure to erect and maintain proper

signs. The Montana decisions are reviewed at length
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in the court's decision, and the holding of the court is

as follows:

"In vieiv of the foregoing decision!^ of the Su-
preme Court of Montana, it is our view that, in

that state, a third person who is a stranger to a
contract or a bond thereunder, cannot recover from
the surety even when the contract and bond, as

here, contain some reference to him or to the class

to which he belongs, unless there is a specific prom-
ise to pay such third person or such class, contained

in the contract and bond. The mere statement of a
duty to be discharged by the contractor, ivhich may
incidentally benefit a third party or class to which
the latter belongs, ivithout more, does not make
the surety liable to such third person for the con-

tractor's failure to discharge that duty.''

The status of the Doheny girls as to the highway

agreement and the performance bond in these cases is

identical to the status of Ulmen to the highway contract

and bond in the National Surety Company case. Fur-

ther applying the Ulmen decision to the cases at bar it

is apparent that while the contract in the cases at bar,,

required the contractor to
'

' carry public liability insur-

ance to indemnify the j^ublic for injuries or damages

sustained by reason of carrying on the work" there is

no provision in the contract or the bond requiring

either the contractor or the appellant, as surety, to pay

damages suffered by the public through the contrac-

tor's negligence, and it is further apparent that while

the Doheny girls were of a class mentioned or referred

to in the contract, they were nevertheless strangers to

it and cannot maintain an action to recover against the
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appellant, as surety, if there was any failure on the part

of the contractor to provide such insurance as was re-

quired by the contract. This would even be true in the

event the contractor did not provide any form or type

of public liability insurance.

This principle is further illustrated in the case of

Schisel vs. Marvill, 197 N. W. 622 (Iowa). This was an

action on a contractor's bond by Schisel who was not

a party to either the contract or the bond, to recover

damages for personal injuries resulting from the neg-

ligent acts of the contractor's employees. The bond

in that case was similar to the bond in the cases at bar

and the contract required the contractor to "carry lia-

bility insurance to indemnify the public for injuries

sustained by reason of the carrying on of his work,

and to meet the requirements of the Iowa Workmen's

Compensation law." The contractor did not furnish

the liability insurance and the plaintiff asserted that

this constituted a breach of his contract and that his

surety therefore became liable. The court held that

J lability could not be predicated on the statutory bond

and that by the terms of the bond claims for damages

for personal injuries suffered by third persons were

not contemplated. The holding of the court is as fol-

lows:

"Section B-43 is broad in its scope. The con-

tractor purports thereby to ' assume all responsibil-

ity for damages,' and to 'indemnify and save harm-
less' the county and its officers and agents from all

claims of any character for damages in consequence
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of any neglect or misconduct of such contractor;

and to carry liability insurance to indemnify the

public for injuries sustained by reason of the carry-

ing on of his work, and to meet the requirements
of the Iowa Workmen's Compensation Law. There
is no other like provision to be found either in the

statute, in the contract, in the bond, or in the speci-

fications herein. The contractor agrees to 'in-

demnify the public for injuries.' The method of

indemnity is expressly specified as 'liability insur-

ance.' Without doubt, the liability insurance re-

ferred to herein has no reference whatever to the

bond in suit, which has been repeatedly designated

by all the parties as a performance bond only. The
argument for appellant at this point is that the

contractor did not furnish liability insurance, and
he thereby breached his contract^ and that because

of the breach of his contract the surety on the per-

formance bond became liable. It is argued also

that, if the contractor is liable under any provision

of the contract or specifications, then the question

as to whether there was one bond or two would be

immaterial and that the surety on either could be

held liable. The argument is not sound. The fail-

ure to take out liability insurance was not a breach

of the contract in any legal sense. It was a condi-

tion precedent to the acceptance of his bid by
the board of supervisors and to the approval
of the contract by the highway commission. The
bid was accepted and the contract was approved
without requiring liability insurance. The statute

did not require such an undertaking. If the board
of supervisors and the highway commission had
power nevertheless to require it as a condition to

the approval of the contract, they had equal power
to waive it. The undertaking of this section B-43
resolves itself into two parts: (1) to 'indemnify
and save harmless the state and county from all
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suits,' etc. (2) To 'carry liability insurance to in-

demnify the public for injuries,' etc.

"If the contractor had obtained liability insur-

ance pursuant to this provision, would the plain-

tiff still claim that he had a right to elect to pro-

ceed against the surety on the other bond ? Liabil-

ity insurance is not a suretyship. The liability cre-

ated by it is a primary one and not a secondary;
whereas the liability of a surety on a bond is sec-

ondary and not primary. The question at this

])oint is not whether the contractor is primarily li-

able to this plaintiff. We are assuming that he is.

The question is whether the surety on his bond
is liable beyond the terms of the bond, because the

contractor failed to carry liability insurance, and
because the public authorities permitted the con-

tract to go into effect without such liability insur-

ance. It is enough at this point to say that, inas-

much as the requirements of section B-43 are not

statutory, and inasmuch as the bond signed by the

surety was a statutory bond, liability thereunder
cannot be extended beyond the statutory require-

ments. This conclusion is inevitable from the plain
terms of all the provisions of the contract and bond
and specifications, save only section B-43. It is

also significant that the final section of the si^eci-

fications being B-71 repeats the former eniunera-

tion of the kind of liability chargeable to this bond,.

These repeated enumerations as contained in stat-

ute and bond and specifications would have to be
wholly ignored as defining the scope of the liability

of the bond in order to hold that the plaintiff's

claim was within its contemplation. Whether the
public officials could exact a valid common-law
bond to indemnify the public against such damages
as are herein involved is a question upon which we
do not pass."
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Thus it is respectfully submitted that under the Ul-

men and Schisel decisions the appellant is not liable for

the unsatisfied Doheny judgments by reason of having

executed the surety bond for the contractor, Coverdale

& Johnson.

2. Construction of Contractor's Public Liability Pol-

icy.

The Montana Supreme Court has repeatedly held

that contracts of insurance are to be construed as any

other contracts and with a view of carrying out the in-

tention of the parties.

McCauley vs. Casualty Company of America, 39

Mont. 185, 102 Pac. 586

Stevens vs. Steck, et al 101 Mont. 569. 55 Pac. (2d)

7.

The rules for the interpretation of contracts in this

jurisdiction are found in Chapter 108, Revised Codes of

Montana, 1935, of which the following have a bearing

upon the cases at bar

:

Section 7529, R.C.M., 1935 provides:

"The language of a contract is to govern its in-

terpretation, if the language is clear and explicit

and does not involve an absurdity."

Section 7530, R.C.M., 1935, provides:

"When a contract is reduced to writing, the

intention of the parties is to be ascertained from
the writing alone, if ])ossible; subject, however, to

the other provisions of this chapter."

Under the above statutes it has often been held that
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if a contract is i^lain and unambiguous it needs no con-

struction and it is then the duty of the court to enforce

it as made by the parties.

Bullard vs. Smith, 28 Mont. 387, 72 Pac. 761

Frank vs. Butte and Boulder Mining & Lumber
Company, 48 Mont. 83, 135 Pac. 904

Union Central Life Insurance Company vs. Jen-

sen, 74 Mont. 70, 237 Pac. 518

It has further been held that when the language em-

ployed by the parties is free from ambiguity and un-

certainty it is beyond the power of the court to enlarge

or restrict its application or meaning and that courts

must enforce contracts as made, not make new ones for

the parties, no matter how unreasonable the terms may

appear.

McDaniel vs. Hager-Stevenson Oil Co., 75 Mont.

356, 243 Pac. 582, 584

McConnell vs. Blackley, 66 Mont. 510, 214 Pac. 64

It next becomes important to determine whether the

law requires that the Contractor's Public Liability

Policy be construed together with the construction con-

tract and the performance bond. In this connection

the appellee, in the court below, insisted that the word-

ing of the contract, as well as the law, required such a

construction and the trial court's attention was directed

by appellee and much reliance placed upon the same by

the court in its opinion (R. 182) to the provision in the

contract "all things contained herein together with 'ad-

vertisement for proposals' or 'notice to contractors'
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and the 'contract bond' as well as any papers attached

to or bound with any of the above, also any and all

supplemental agreements made or to be made, are here-

by made a part of these specifications and contract

and are to be considered one instrument." (R. 82)

In the opinion of the trial court the above provision

was quoted and the trial court concluded that the lan-

guage "any and all supplemental agreements made or

to be made' 'would necessarily include the Contractor's

Public Liability Policy (R. 182) which, according to

the opinion and to the court's findings of fact, should

be and was construed with the highway contract and the

contract performance bond mth the result that the ex-

clusion provisions of the policy were held to be inopera-

tive. (R. 190, 198)

If a careful examination of the contract is made it

is clearly evident that the words "any and all supple-

mental agreements" refer not to the public liability

policy of insurance, but rather to supplemental agree-

ments between the Montana State Highway Commis-

sion and the contractor in regard to the completion of

the construction work in an acceptable fashion. It is a

matter of common knowledge that changes in plans are

often made during the course of construction which

necessitate increasing or decreasing quantities and thus

require supplemental agreements between the contrac-

tor and the owner relative thereto. This is evidenced

by specification 4.3 (R. 84) which provides for the mak-

ing of such supplemental agreements whenever "altera-
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tions involve (1) an increase or decrease of more than

25 per cent of the total cost of the work calculated from

the original proposal quantities and the contract unit

prices, or (2) an increase of 25 per cent in the quantity

of any one major contract item." This position is fur-

ther substantiated by paragraph 9.4 of the contract

specifications (R. 87) which provide that extra work

shall be paid for either at agreed unit prices under the

provisions of a ''supplemental agreement" or on a

"force account" basis. That paragraph likewise de-

fines a '

' supplemental agreement '

' and provides that

such an agreement is to be prepared whenever it has

been agreed to i^erform extra work not contemplated

in the original proposal and contract and "This sup-

plemental agreement" shall be executed by both of the

parties to the original contract, shall thereupon be con-

sidered a part of the contract, and payment for the

work included therein shall be for the actual quantity

])erformed at the agreed unit prices set forth therein.

Extra work provided for by a "supplemental agree-

ment" shall not be started until after the execution of

the said agreement. '

' (R. 88)

.

Therefore we submit that from the very language

of the contract documents there was no intention on

the part of the contractor or the State of Montana to

make the policy of insurance one of the contract docu-

ments.

Does the law permit that the Contractor's Public

Liability Policy issued by the appellant to the con-
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tractor be construed together with the contract and the

contract performance bond? The Montana statute on

this subject is Section 7533, Revised Codes of Montana,

1935, which provides

:

"Several contracts relating to the same mat-
ters, between the same parties, and made as parts

of substantially one transaction, are to be taken
together.

'

'

This statute definitely requires, before contracts can

be construed together, that they be between the same

parties, relate to the same matters and made as parts of

substantially one transaction. It should here be noted

that the construction contract (R. 89) between Cover-

dale & Johnson and the State of Montana was execut-

ed and delivered on September 21, 1934, and was a

contract to which the appellant was not a party. The

contract performance bond (R. 99) was executed by

the contractor, as principal, and appellant, as surety,

in favor of the State of Montana on September 21,

1934. The public liability ])olicy of insurance (R. 123-

163) involved in these cases was executed by appel-

lant to the contractor under date of October 1, 1934.

Thus the construction contract and the Contractor's

Public Liability Policy are between two different

parties and were not executed contemporaneously but

rather ten days apart and they very clearly do not con-

stitute one transaction.

The general rule on this subject in this jurisdiction

is stated in Union Bank <& Trust Company vs. Himmel-

hauer, 57 Mont. 438, 188 Pac. 940, which general rule is

:
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"Where two or more contracts relate to the

same subject matter and were executed at the same
time they could not be considered as one contract

unless they were executed by the same parties.
'

'

Applying the above rules to the facts in the cases

at bar it must be observed (1) that the construction

contract was between Coverdale & Johnson and the

State of Montana and relates to the construction of

bridges whereas the Public Liability Insurance Policy

was between the appellant and Coverdale & Johnson

and relates to indemnity promised the latter at certain

definite locations and under certain definite conditions

;

(2) that the contracts are not between the same parties

;

(3) that the contracts were not executed or delivered at

the same time.

An illustrative case on this question is State Bank

of Darby vs. Pew, et ah 59 Mont. 144, 195 Pac. 852,

wherein the contractor Pew, by written contract, obli-

gated himself to construct a v/ater tight basement un-

der a certain bank building to be constructed by him,

as contractor. The building specifications, forming a

part of the contract, described the mode of construction,

and in addition required that the contractor "shall,

upon receiving the final payment for this work, de-

liver to the owner a written and signed guaranty that

the foundation shall be water tight for a period of one

year from the date of final acceptance and furnish a
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surety bond for $1000.00 to accomplish the guaranty,

if required." A surety bond was furnished about a

month after the execution of the contract and about one

week later than the performance bond accompanying

the building contract. The surety bond was given as a

guarantee of a water tight basement. The basement

was not water tight and the action was brought by the

owner for damages. The contractor and the surety

claimed that they were relieved from responsibility

because the contractor had complied with the plans and

specifications and they urged that the bond must be

construed together with the contract, specifications

and the performance bond. The court held, hoivever,

that the bond tvas an independent and distinct contrac-

tual obligation and, irrespective of having been requir-

ed by the specifications, it was not to be construed tvith

the original contract. The following quotation is from

the court's decision (page 154)

:

''The bond herein involved was executed nearly

a month after the building contract had been en-

tered into, and one week later than the bond
furnished by the contractor for the complete per-

formance of the building contract. Futhermore,
after the basement had been entirely comjjleted, as

will be noted, the bond was extended for an addi-

tional term. There is no reference, in the bond
covering the water-tight construction of the base-

ment, to the specifications, and the only connection

with the building contract by way of recital there-

in is that it is executed pursuant to guaranty re-

quired in the building contract."
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Apply the reasoning of the Pew case to the cases at

bar, the policy of insurance was executed ten days after

the contract, there was no reference in the policy to

the contract specifications respecting insurance and

the only connection between the policy and the contract

Avas the recital in the contract that the contractor

should carry public liability insurance. Consequently

the policy is clearly an independent and distinct trans-

action.

A case closely analogous to the situation in the cases

at bar is Michigan Stamping Company vs. Michigan

Employees Casualty Company, 209 N. W. 104 (Mich.)

in which the owner of a building to which it contem-

plated repairs, hired the contractor to do the work.

The contract contained the following provisions:

"The general contractor shall, during the con-

tinuance of the work under this contract, also

extra work in connection therewith, maintain lia-

bility insurance in a sufficient amount to protect

himself and the owner from any liability or dam-
age for injury to any of his employees or other per-

sons, including any liability or damage which may
arise by virtue ot any statute or law now in force

or which may hereafter be enacted and shall se-

cure and protect the owner from any liability or

damage whatsoever for any jnjury to persons or

property."
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The contractor entered into negotiations for a policy

with an agent of the defendant insurance company

(jiving the agent a copy of the contract shotving the

insurance requirements. The policy when issued con-

tained the following exclusion:

"This policy shall not cover loss or expense on
account of accident caused or suffered by any em-
ployee or em])loyees of the assured engaged on
work covered by this bond or in connection with
the same ..."

There was an accident resulting in the death of an

employee of the subcontractor just before the policy

form was sent to the contractor and another accident

in which an employee of another subcontractor lost his

left hand a few weeks later. The plaintiff made settle-

ments on both accidents and brought this action to re-

cover the sums so expended. The defendant denied

any liability on the i)olicy and the court sustained its

position.

The court held that the language of the insurance

policy was not ambiguous and refused to read into the

policy any x^rovisions not contained therein and refused

a reformation. In part the court said

:

"There is no ambiguity in the language of the

instrument. It was the duty of the court to place

a legal interpretation upon it. As construed by
the trial court and by this court, plaintiff has no
right of action thereunder against the defendant
on the facts presented. The practical construction

which the parties put upon the contract may be
considered only in cases where the language of the

instrument may be said to be ambiguous or uncer-
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tain. Finnegan v. Worden-Allen Co., 201 Mich.

445, 167 N. W. 930; Zilwaukee Township v. Sagi-

naw-Bay City Ry. Co., 213 Mich. 61, 181 N. W. 37.

''By its claim of estoppel the plaintiff seeks to

have the court read into the policy provisions re-

lating to the liability of the defendant not contained

therein, or, in other word, to reform the contract

in accord with the agreement of the parties at the

time the application for insurance was made. The
defendant is not here asserting rights under its

contract. It simply denies liability thereunder.

The burden is on the plaintiff to establish such lia-

bility.

"There is a clear distinction between the effect

of an omission in a policy which the insurer relies

on to defeat the action and one which the insured
seeks to have incorporated therein as a basis for

recovery. As to the former this court has held that

the neglect of the insurer to insert a provision of

which its agent was informed at the time of appli-

I'ation for insurance was made is, in legal effect,

a waiver, and estops it from insisting that its omis-

sion constitutes a legal defense to an action on
the policy. Gristock v. Insurance Co., 87 Mich.

428, 49 N. W. 634; Simpson v. Insurance Co., 184

Mich. 547, 151 N. W. 610. As to the latter we are

of the opinion that the policy must be reformed
in order for the insured to obtain the benefit of

such an omission.

"The indemnity, promised by the insurer, as ex-

pressed in the written contract, may not be en-

larged by proof of intention."

In State vs. American Surety Company of New
York, 78 Mont. 504, 255 Pac. 1063, it was held that the

rule that more than one contract relating to the same
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subject matter, between the same parties, and made as

parts of substantially one transaction, must be con-

stued together, has no application in an action on a

surety bond conditioned to pay the amount found to

be due under the terms of a contract for the sale of

state timber if the buyer failed to pay, the parties not

being the same and the obligations thereunder being

entirely separate and distinct.

Accordingly we submit that the trial court was in

error in construing the Contractor's Public Liability

Policy with the highway contract and the contract per-

formance bond. The policy should have been construed

without reference whatsoever to those other instru-

ments.

At this point it is pertinent to note that the liability

of the contractor for injuries to or the death of mem-

bers of the public occasioned through its negligence was

neither greater nor less nor different because of its

contract with the State of Montana. Irrespective of

the provisions of the contract, it was incumbent upon

the appellee, to secure a judgment against the contrac-

tor, to prove the essential elements of her causes of

action, namely a legal duty, a breach of that duty and

damage proximately resulting from such breach.

The State of Montana was naturally interested in

Xjroviding protection and security to the members of

the public who were injured or killed through the neg-

ligence of the contractor in the construction of the

improvements contemplated by the contract. That in-
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tention was evidenced by specification 7.11 of the con-

tract (R. 86) which required the contractor to carry

public liability insurance. From the very terms of the

contract documents, it is clear that the Highway Com-

mission intended that the public be protected from ac-

cidents occurring as a result of defects in the highway

at the places and by reason of the improvements being

made ; or from any negligence created by the construc-

tion work; or from the negligent operation of equip-

ment at the places where the stock-passes and bridges

were being constructed. The State of Montana clearly

had no intention to provide protection to persons in-

jured or killed through the contractor's negligence in

the operation of automobiles on the public highways

L'O to 30 miles away from the construction work in a

traffic accident, any more than did the State of Mon-

tana intend that protection be secured for persons in-

jured or killed in the State of New York through the

negligent operation of the contractor 's private automo-

bile. In other words we believe the common under-

standing of the language of the entire contract can

only lead to the conclusion that the words "carrying

on of the work" mean the actual work and labor in

the construction of the improvements covered by the

contract and not the negligent operation of automobiles

many miles away from the job. And it must not be

forgotten that the State Highway Commission did nei-

ther prescribe the form of the policy nor the terms nor

conditions which it should contain. (R. 116) It did
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not even require that the original or a copy of the

policy be delivered to it (R. 115), but left the contrac-

tor and the insurance company from which it would

obtain the indemnity free to contract as to what the

terms and conditions of the policy should be. There

is no requirement in the Montana statutes that a pub-

lic contractor on public works should provide any liabil-

ity insurance.

And it should further be noted here that a standard

form of contractor's public liability insurance policy

was obtained by the contractor from the appellant

which, by its very terms, provided indemnity to the

contractor "for damages on account of bodily injuries,

including death by any person or persons

other than the employees of the assured, by reason of

and during the progress of the work described in state-

ment 4 at the places named therein." (R, 133). The

exclusion of the policy provides that the policy shall

not cover loss from liability "caused directly or in-

directly by automobiles elsewhere

than at the immediate x^l^^ices covered by the policy

where the assured is carrying on his operations." (R.

154). Those places were at various points from 12 to

22 miles distant from where the automobile accident

resulting in the deaths of Marguerite and Roberta Do-

heny occurred (R. 131).

This policy provides complete and absolute indemnity

for all liability imposed on the contractor by law for

injuries and death resulting by reason of and during



—39—

the progress of the construction work where the bridges

and stock-passes were being constructed, and in addi-

tion thereto for accidents occurring at other places

under limited conditions. We earnestly believe that

the insurance obtained by the contractor fully met

the intentions of the State Highway Commission.

By express statute in Montana it is valid for an ex-

clusion to be placed in a contract of insurance. This

is clearly stated in Section 8140, R.C.M,, 1935, which

provides

:

*'Where a peril is especially excepted in a con-

tract of insurance, a loss, which would not have
occurred but for such peril, is thereby excepted;

although the immediate cause of the loss was a

peril which was not excepted."

There was no proof in this case, and no contention

raised by the appellee, that the contractor did not ob-

tain the type of insurance which he requested from the

appellant; nor is there any proof of any mutual mis-

take.

3. Ambiguity.

There was no issue raised in the court below in these

cases that the Contractor's Public Liability Policy was

ambiguous in any respect. In fact the contrary was true

and the trial court recognized that the exclusion pro-

visions of the policy, if operative, would clearly defeat

recovery. We therefore do not propose to extend this

brief with any discussion or authorities dealing with

the so-called ''ambiguity" cases concerning insurance

policies.
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4. Sufficiency of the Evidence.

The appellee, being the plaintiff in the court below,

had the burden of proof and to bring the unsatisfied

state court judgments within the policy for her recov-

ery, it was essential that she prove by a preponderance

of the evidence that the automobile accident resulting

in the deaths of Marguerite Doheny and Roberta Do-

heny, came within the coverage of the public liability

policy, i.e., "by reason of and during the progress of the

work" where the bridges and stock-passes were being

constructed, (R. 133) and not "caused directly or indi-

rectly by any automobile elsewhere than at the

immediate places covered by the policy where the as-

sured is carrying on his operations." (R. 154).

This burden the appellee wholly failed to carry. She

introduced no oral evidence in these cases to prove that

the accident occurred by reason of and during the

progress of the work within the terms of the policy

and for her proof on this issue, she relied entirely upon

the pleadings, evidence, instructions and judgments in

the state court actions which were exhibits 1 to 25 in-

clusive which are not contained in this record on appeal,

except the two judgments. Exhibits 9 and 21.

(R. 73, 75). Those exhibits were only material or com-

petent in these cases to disclose the issues determined

in the state court actions as the state court judgments

are res adjudicata as to the appellant only as to the

issues there determined. 36 C. J., Sec. 121, p. 1121,

Those issues were: First, the Doheny girls were
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guests of the partnership, Coverdale & Johnson; sec-

ond, that the partner Johnson and the employee Bar-

don, at the time of the accident, were engaged in part-

nership business; third, that Bardon was grossly neg-

ligent in the operation of the automobile and that such

gross negligence proximately caused the deaths of the

Doheny girls. That these were the issues can be de-

termined from the reported decision of the state court

cases; Doheny vs. Coverdale 104 Mont. 534; 68 Pac.

(2d) 142.

Thus it will be observed that in the state court it was

not necessary that the appellee prove that Coverdale &
Johnson, the defendants therein, '*by reason of and

during the progress of the work" described in the

policy at certain designated places, committed grossly

negligent acts proximately causing the deaths of the

Doheny girls, but rather that the partner Johnson and

the employee Bardon were, at the time of the commis-

sion of such acts, engaged in partnership business.

The only evidence in these cases, bearing upon this

very important issue is that offered by the defendant,

which conclusively establishes that the automobile ac-

cident occurred 12 to 22 miles distant from the loca-

tion of the bridges and stock-passes contemplated by

the highway agreement, and in fact that the automo-

bile accident occurred in a different county. This evi-

dence further discloses that no work was being per-

formed on those bridges or stock-passes at or near the

day of the accident. Thus the appellant's evidence.



—42—

standing uncontradicted in the record, clearly estab-

lishes that the automobile accident was outside of the

coverage of the insuring agreement of the policy and

in fact within the exclusion provisions of the policy.

(R. 131, 171, 172, 173).

Thus we respectfully submit that the appellee has

failed to prove the essential elements of her complaint.

5. Reformation.

The trial court, in its written opinion, in effect re-

formed the policy, even though there were no plead-

ings nor prayer seeking a reformation. The pleadings

in these cases contain absolutely no suggestion of a

cause in reformation; there were no allegations in the

('omi:>laint setting forth facts sufficient to warrant a re-

formation. It has been almost universally held by

courts that a reformation of an instrument is never

made by a court imless a proper case is made by the

pleadings. This rule is stated in 53 Corpus Juris, Sec-

tion 166, page 1012, as follows:

"The general rules regulating the pleading of a
case in equity govern the pleading of a cause in

reformation of an instrument. The power to re-

form instruments, it is said, is exercised by courts

of equity with great (-aution, and never unless a
proper case is made by the pleadings. The material
facts constituting the cause of action should be
set forth in clear, concise, and distinct language,
and great particularity of averment is required;
tluis, great particularity of averment is required
to authorize the reformation of a mortgage, or
other written contract, or of a description of land
in an instrument, or of a deed for mistake. And
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at all times the allegations should be specific, and
not general."

A general statement as to the material allegations

required to plead a cause in reformation is in 53 Corpus

Juris, Section 166, page 1012, wherein the rule is stated

:

''In order to make out a good cause of action,

the pleading seeking reformation of an instru-

ment should allege or show every element necessary
to entitle complainant to equitable relief, including
the particular elements hereinafter separately dis-

cussed, in particular the instrument as actually

made, and as intended and the grounds for refor-

mation. It should be made to appear in the plead-
ing that the pleader has some title or interest to be
subserved or protected by the reformation; thus,

if the allegations of the pleading show that the

pleader has no right to maintain a suit either as

the instrument was executed or as he seeks to have
it reformed, it is subject to general demurrer. A
party whose name is not mentioned in an instru-

ment cannot maintain suit, if his complaint does

not connect him with the parties to it,
'

'

Furthermore there is not a scintilla of evidence to

support a claim of reformation even if such claim had

been properly pleaded. There is no suggestion of mu-

tual mistake, fraud or ambiguity. In cases for refor-

mation of instrimients, the law requires that courts

should exercise great caution and require even a higher

degree of proof of the grounds for reformation than

in the average civil suit. This rule is clearly stated in

53 Cor^Dus Juris, Section 199, page 1030, as follows

:

"While there are cases holding that, as in other

civil cases, a preponderance of the evidence may be
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sufficient to warrant reformation of an instru-

ment, it is generally held that a mere preponder-
ance of the evidence is insufficient, that the courts

should exercise great caution and require a high

degree of proof, and that, because of the strong

presumption that the terms of a written instru-

ment correctly express the intention of the par-

ies to it, mistake or fraud, when urged as a ground
for reformation of an instrument, must be estab-

lished by evidence that is clear, convincing, and
satisfactory.

'

'

The Montana court has expressed the same rule in

Evankovich vs. Howard Pierce, Inc., 91 Mont. 344, 8

Pac. (2d) 653, as follows

:

"It is true that, in order to .reform a contract,

the evidence of the mistake must be clear, convinc-

ing, and satisfactorv (Parchen v. Chessman, 53

Mont. 430, 164 Pac.^531; Humble v. St. John, 72

Mont. 519, 234 Pac. 475)
"

In each complaint, in paragraph VIII thereof (R. 9,

32), appellee alleged that the "co-partners had fully

complied with all of the requirements and conditions

precedent enumerated in said policy and that plaintiff

has complied with all the requirements and conditions

precedent and is entitled to maintain this action

against defendant. United States Fidelity and Guar-

anty Company to recover the sum of $5116.89 . .
."

No clearer language could have been used to evidence

appellee's theory—that she sought to recover under

the terms of the policy. At the time of filing these com-

plaints on June 2nd, 1939, appellee knew of the terms

and conditions and exclusion provisions of the policy
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as appellant had furnished her counsel on August 4,

1 937, with a photostatic copy of its daily report (R. 22,

123), which admittedly was a duplicate copy of the

terms, conditions and exclusion provisions of the

policy. (R. 123, 130, 170, 171)

The decision in the case of Conley vs. United States

Fidelity & Guaranty Co., 98 Mont. 31, 37 Pac. 2d 565.

is authority for appellant 's contention that the Doheny

girls were not parties to the contractor's public lia-

bility policy, and that that policy was not made ex-

pressly for their benefit, within the provisions of Sec-

tion 7472, Revised Codes of Montana, 1935, which de-

clares :

*'A contract made expressly for the benefit of a
third person may be enforced by him at any time
before the parties -rescind it."

There is no question but that the policy was made

expressly for the benefit of the class of persons to

which the Doheny girls belonged, and the appellee

here can obtain the benefit of this policy only if she

can bring the unsatisfied state court judgments within

the terms of it.

Adams vs. Maryland Casualty Co. 139 So. 453
(Miss.).

Conley vs. United States Fidelity & Guaranty Co.,

98 Mont. 31, 37 Pac. (2d) 565.

The appellant, as the insurer in these cases stands

squarely upon the policy issued by it. It denies that

there is any liability thereunder for the unsatisfied

judgments against Coverdale & Johnson. The appel-
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lee, as administratrix, from the very moment that a

cause of action arose in her favor against Coverdale &

Johnson stood in the same position as Coverdale &

Johnson as respects the policy and was entitled to

equal rights with Coverdale & Johnson thereunder,

but no greater rights. She cannot now recover under

this policy unless Coverdale & Johnson could have re-

covered had they paid the judgments.

Sun Indemnity Co. vs. Dulaney, 89 S.W.2d 307 (Ky.)

This rule is clearly stated in Neilson vs. American

Liability Insurance Co., 168 Atla. 436 (N. J.) as fol-

lows:

"One who is not a party to a contract but for

whose protection a policy provides, can stand only
upon the terms of the contract, and if he does not
bring himself within its terms there is no liability

in his favor,
'

' citing Adams vs. Maryland Casualty
Co., 139 So. 453, a 1932 Mississippi decision.

It cannot be questioned that if Coverdale & John-

son had paid the state court judgments, no recovery

from appellant as insurer could be had by them.

CONCLUSION

In conclusion, the appellant respectfully submits

that under the j^leadings, facts and evidence in the

cases at hand, and under the authority of the cases

above cited:

1. That there is no liability on the part of the appel-

lant by reason of having executed the contract per-

formance bond.
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2. That the highway contract, the contract perform-

ance bond, and the Contractor's Public Liability Policy

cannot be construed together and thus change the ap-

pellant's liability under the terms of the Contractor's

Public Liability Policy.

3. That the policy provisions, including the exclu-

sion provisions, are applicable, operative and controll-

ing and that the appellee failed to prove that the un-

satisfied state court judgments were covered by the

policy.

4. That there is no pleading, evidence or proof upon

which a reformation can be granted.

For these reasons we respectfully submit that the

judgment of the trial court in the cases at bar should be

reversed.

Attorneys for Appellant, United

States Fidelity and Guaranty

Company.
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INTRODUCTORY

The record, before this- Court, embrace^ two volumes,

viz., "Transcript of Record" and "Supplemental Tran-

script of Record." Throughout the within brief matters

appearing- in the "Transcript of Record" originally filed

will be indicated by the letter "R" cind matters appear-

ing in the "Supplemental Transcript of Record" by the

letters "S. R.'' followed by the pertinent page numbers

of the record.

L

STATEMENT OF TPIE CASE
Believing the appellant's statement of the case is un-

duly restrictive we submit the following facts supple-

mental tj those appearing in appellant's statement.

The contractors Coverdale and Johnson while engaged

in the performance of the work under the contract with

the State of Montana rented from one Blakeslee a two

drum hoist with tractor power and used same in per-

forming the work under the contract for a period of

approximately 52 days from and after October 24, \93A.

under the rental agreement this equipment or machinery

was to be redelivered to said Blakeslee at the end of

the rented i)criod and the drum hoist equipment had been

shipped to Great Falls for redelivery thereof to Blakes-

lee at a date between December 1, 1934 and December

11, 1934. These facts were alleged in paragraphs V and

y] in the two complaints filed by appellee as i)laintiff

in the actions in the state court wherein the judgments

involved were recovered (S. R. pp. 243, 244, 285, 286,

287). These alleged facts were expressly admitted as

true bv the verified answers to said complaints filed by
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the copartnership Coverdale and Johnson (S. R. pp. 258,

293) and by the separate answers of the copartner John

M. Coverdale to said complaints (S. R. pp. 251, 301).

In paragraph VII in each of the two complaints filed

in said actions it was further alleged that copartner E.

O. Johnson and an employee, George S. Bardon, left

Augusta, Montana, about ten o'clock P. M. on or about

December 10, 1934, in an automobile, with Great Falls,

Montana, as destination for the purpose of unloading and

delivering the drum hoist equipment, theretofore rented,

to E. H. Blakeslee, and that the two sisters, Roberta

and Marguerite Doheny, at the request and invitation

of said E. O. Johnson and George S. Bardon to accom-

pany them to Great Falls while they unloaded and de-

livered aforesaid drum hoist equipment and then return

to Augusta, did accompany said Johnson and Bardon in

the automobile, and upon their arrival in Great Falls

the drum hoist equipment was unloaded and delivered

to E. H. Blakeslee, the said Johnson and Bardon assist-

ing in the unloading and delivery of the equipment; that

after the equipment was unloaded copartner Johnson,

and George Bardon, and the Doheny girls, riding in the

same automobile, commenced the return trip to Augusta,

the automobile being driven by the employee Bardon

under the direction of the said Johnson (S. R. pp. 244-

246, 287, 288). Paragraphs VIII and IX of these com-

plaints alleged further, substantially, that on said retarn

trip the automobile was driven by Bardon, under the

direction of copartner Johnson, in such a grossly negli-

gent and reckless manner that it left the highway, col-

lided with a large tree and as a result the Doheny girls

were injured severely and thereafter died (S. R. pp.



246-248, 288-290). The foregoino- allegations of para-

graphs Vll, \'IU and IX of the complaints were denied

by the answers of the copartnership and by the sc})arate

answers of copartner Coverdale filed in the state court

actions (S. R. pp. 251-254, 258-262, 293-297, 301-304).

The actions were consolidated for trial and verdict (S.

R. pp. 275, 316) and judgments were given to the plain-

tiff, the appellee in the present actions, for $5,000.00

and costs in each case (R. pp. 73-77). Although the costs

appear as $243.26 in each of the judgments these amounts

were reduced in each case to $116.89 (S. R. pp. 273-275)

by the state court's order taxing the costs.

The evidence offered ])y plaintiff and defendants in

each of the state court actions appears in the bill of

exceptions settled by the state court and received in

evidence at the trial of the present actions in the lower

court as plaintiff's "exhibit 25" (S. R. pp. 322-459).

The appellant in the present causes was given notice b}-

Coverdale and Johnson, copartners, of the filing of the

cases in the state courts and made an agreement with

Coverdale and Johnson relative to investigation and de-

fense of the actions and paid part of the bill of the

attorneys who conducted the defense of the state court

actions and which attorneys had theretofore represented

the appellant in other actions and who are the attorneys

who represent the appellant in the causes now on appeal

in this court ( R. pp. 165-168).

Executions issued on the state court judgments having

been returned unsatisfied by the sheriff by reason of

no i)roperty found (S. R. pp. 281-283. 320-322). oral

and written demands for ])ayment were made upon the

appellant (R. pp. 34-38. 125).



— 7—
Tlie appellee, prior to the commencement of the pres-

ent actions, unsuccessfully endeavored, through her at-

torne3^ to obtain the public liability insurance policy, or

a true copy thereof, which was expressly required to be

carried by Coverdale and Johnson under their contract

with the State of Montana (R. pp. 121-125), although

a copy of the daily report was furnished (R. pp. 123,

124).

The state court judgments being unpaid the appellee,

plaintiff below, filed complaints in the present actions

to enforce payment thereof (R. pp. 3-15, 26-38). As

appears from the allegations of the complaints the ap-

pellee administratrix sought recovery for the deaths of

her daughters upon the following grounds: (a) That

the deceased were members of the public; (b) the con-

tract between the State of Montana and Coverdale and

Johnson expressly required, and Coverdale and Johnson

expressly agreed they would carry, public liability in-

surance to indemnify the public for injuries or damages

sustained by reason of "carrying on the work" under

said contract; (c) that the appellant executed the surety

bond conditioned for the performance of all of the terms

of the contract; (d) that the appellant surety under

said bond then undertook to write a public liability policy

pursuant to the express terms of the contract with the

State of Montana, and was paid a cash consideration for

doing so; (e) appellant wrote a policy of insurance, the

true terms of which appellee could not know, as her

request for the original policy or a copy had not been

complied with by either the assured or the appellant in-

surer, but which she assumed had a liability coverage to

the extent required by the highway improvement contract
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between the assured and the State of Montana; (f) that

the deceased girls sustained their injuries and deaths

b}- reason of the carrying on of the work under the

contract to their damage in the sum of $5,116.89 each,

for which judgments had been obtained against the as-

sured and which were and are unpaid notwithstanding

demands made for payment and executions issued and

returned unsatisfied; and (g) that said judgments had

been affirmed on appeal (R. pp. 3-15, 27-38). Not-

withstanding appellant had notice of the state court ac-

tions and the judgments and its attorneys in the present

cases conducted the defense of the state court suits and

were paid part of the fees for defending those suits, by

it, the appellant by answers disclaimed knowledge thereof

and by denial tendered issue on the allegations of the

complaints relative to same and further defended by al-

leging that the public liability insurance policy issued to

Coverdale and Johnson by appellant under the provisions

of the highway contract contained "an exclusion under

which drivin"- or usin''" any vehicle or automobile was

excepted from the coverage of the policy" ( R. i)p. 55-61).

At the trial of the present actions in addition to other

evidence the appellee, for the purpose of proving that

the deceased girls were members of the public and were

injured and killed by "reason of the carrying on of the

work" under the provision of the highway contract, in-

troduced in evidence the judgment rolls of the State Court

in the actions in which she obtained the judgments, and

which consisted of the pleadings (S. R. pp. 241-316),

bill of exceptions contairxing the evidence and instruc-

tion^ (S. R. pp. 323-459). the judgments ( R. pp. l^^-ll),

appeals to State Supreme Court ( S. R. pp. 276. 317).
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remittitur affirming judgments and notices of remittitur

(S. R. pp. 278, 280, 319).

The lower court rendered judgments in favor of ap-

pellee from which appellants have perfected the present

appeals (R. pp. 200, 202).

ARGUMENT
A. Summary.

Appellee's discussion of the ciuestions of law^ and fact

involved will be addressed to her main contention that

the injuries and deaths of Marguerite and Roberta Do-

heny were sustained by them "by reason of the carrying

on the work" under the agreement for highway improve-

ments between Coverdale and Johnson and the State of

Montana within the express provisions of the contract

for such work (R. pp. 81-102) and entitled to recover

from the appellant the amounts of the judgments re-

covered in the state court against Coverdale and John-

son based upon such injuries and deaths, and that re-

covery may not be defeated by appellant's claim of non-

liability under so called "exclusions" in the public lia-

bility insurance policy. In developing appellee's contention

we shall make appropriate reference to the points urged

in appellant's brief.

1. The injuries and deaths were sustained by reason

of the carrying on- the zvork under the contract.

It was established by the pleadings (S. R. pp. 243-248,

250, 251, 258), evidence (S. R. pp. 324-420), instruc-

tions (S. R. pp. 436-453) and judgments (R. pp. 73, 75)

in the cases in the state court, received in evidence as

exhibits, that a drum hoist had been used under a rental
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contract b}- the copartners in performing the work

under their agreement with the State of Montana and

by the terms of the rental contract the hoist was to be

redeHvered to the owner at Great Falls; the hoist had

been used on the work on December 10th, in the after-

noon, and on that evening copartner Johnson and em-

ployee Bardon accompanied by the deceased girls, pro-

ceeded by automobile to Great Falls where the hoist \\as

delivered to the owner. On the return trip to Am;usta,

Montana, and at a point (Town of Simms) on the same

public highw^ay which the copartners were improving

under the agreement, the girls were injured and killed

b}- the reckless and grossly negligent operation of the

automobile in which copartner Johnson, employee Bardon

and the deceased were then riding, and which automo-

bile was being driven by Bardon under the direction

and control of copartner Johnson (S. R. pp. 324-346,

349-364, 365-453).

The exhibits from and embraced in the judgment

rolls of the actions in the state courts were competent

evidence of the matters determined by the state court

judgments against Coverdale and Johnson. The rule

generally is that to determine the issues and matters

adjudged in anotln^r action the i)leadings and the record

in the prior action must be examined.

30 Am. Juris. Judgments, Sec. 284 p. 998.

Standard etc. Co. v. Standard Ace. & Ins. Co.,

(CCA. 8th Mo.) 104 Fed (2) @ p. 496,

United Shoe Machinerv Corp. v. United States.

258 U.S. 451, 66 L.' ed. (a: p. 718.

34 C J. Sec. 1518. p. 1074.
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And such is the rule of the Montana courts.

Callendar v. Sunburst Oil & Ref. Co.,

84 Mont. 178, 274 Pac. 834,

Wells-Dickey Co v. Embody,
82 Mont. 150, 266 Pac. 869.

Section 9409 Rev. Code of Montana, subd. 2, speci-

fies the judgment roll to consist of the pleadings, verdict

of the jury, all bills of exception, all orders, matters and

proceedings deemed excepted to without a bill of ex-

ceptions and a copy of any order made on demurrer

or relating to a change of parties and a copy of the

judgment.

The judgment roll being a judicial and public record

same is prima facie evidence of its contents by virtue

of express statutory provision in Montana.

Sees. 10540, 10544, 10554 Rev. Codes.

Clearly it appears that the injuries and deaths of the

deceased girls were sustained by reason of the carrying-

on the work by Coverdale and Johnson under their agree-

ment. However, appellant urges the evidence does not

establish such facts (Appellant's Brief p. 40).

The drum hoist was acquired by the copartners for

the purpose and used to carry on the work under the

agreement. One of the conditions of the rental agree-

ment was that the hoist would be redelivered to the owner

at Great Falls. In connection with the delivery of the

hoist an automobile was used with intent to convey the

copartner and the employee to Great Falls to effect de-

livery and bring them back to the scene of the work

under the contract. In attempting to accomplish this pur-

pose the copartnership used the automobile in a manner

prohibited by law (reckle':sly and grossly negligent) and
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thereby caused the injuries and deaths of the deceased

daughters of the administratrix. The carrying- on the

work under the agreement was the reason sine cjua non

tlie girls would not have been injured. In other words, if

the copartners did not have the work to perform under

the contract which necessitated their using the drum hoist

equipment the girls would not have been injured with

resultant death. In the lower court witness Coverdale

stated the partnership was not working on the projects

on the Augusta-Sun River road but were working on

the bridge on the Augusta-Choteau road at the time

of the accident. He admitted that bridge work on the

Sun River-Augusta road had not been completed { R. ]).

131). Jn the complaints filed in the County Court it was

alleged that between on or about September 25, 1934

and February 1, 1935 the copartnership was engaged

in construction work on brid,:-;es in connection with and

as improvement of a part of the Augusta-Sun River

highway under the agreement with the State of Mon-

tana, and that tlie drum hoist was used in performance

of said work ( S. R. pp. 243, 244, 285-287). Both the

separate answers of John M. Coverdale and the answers

of the copartnershi]) admitted these allegations of the

complaints (S. R. pp. 251, 258, 293, 301). Witness Bern-

hardt, employee of the partnership on tlie work, testified

at the County Court trial that the hoist had been used

(Ml the work on the Sun River-Augusta highway and

had finished using it that afternoon (S. R. pp. 330, 331,

334, 340), on the day preceding the injuries to the girls.

Mr. Coverdale testifying in the Count}' Court trial stated

that he was in Anaconda from December 8th to late

in the afternoon December 11th (S. R. pp. 428, 429).
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He made no statement at that time that the work was

not being done on the Sun River-Augusta highway, nor

did he deny that the hoist had been used up to and in-

cluding the afternoon of December 10th on the Sun

River-Augusta project, nor deny that the injuries and

deaths of the girls occurred as a result of the gross

negligence of the copartnership in connection with the

redelivery of the hoist (S. R. pp. 428-430), hence his

statement at the trial of present causes that at the time

the accident happened the copartners were working on

the Augusta-Choteau road, referred to on Page 41 of

appellant's brief, does not disprove the evidence that the

hoist equipment had been used on the Augusta-Sun River

unit on December 10th. As will appear from subsequent

discussion herein of the law as to the effect of the trial

and judgments in the County Court (Post pp. 40, 41),

any controversy on this point is foreclosed and the judg-

ments having established that the drum hoist was used

on the Sun River-Augusta Highway unit such judgment

is binding upon the defendant insurance company in this

action. In any event, Mr. Coverdale not being present on

the work from December 8th to late in the day of De-

cember 11th, cannot know of his own knowledge what

work was actually done on the Augusta-Sun River unit

during his absence. Strange indeed was the failure of

Mr. Coverdale and the appellant corporation to produce

in court the testimony of a foreman or workman who

was present on the work during that period to testify

that no work was done on this unit if it was his inten-

tion that the court believe such was the fact, especially

in view of the circumstance that he and his attorneys

knew of the admissions in the pleadings and the testi-
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mony of employee Bernhardt at the trial in the state

court. The rule by statute in Montana is that where

inferior evidence is produced when higher proof can be

introduced it is presumed the higher evidence would be

adverse to the contention of the party offering the evi-

dence inferior in character.

Sees. 10606, subd. 6, 10672, subd. 6, 7 and Sec.

10700, Rev. Code.

2. The "exclusion provisions" of the Public Liability

Insurance Policy do not prevent recovery by appellee.

(a) Ambiguity:

On page 39 of appellant's brief appears a statement to

the effect that there was no issue of ambiguit}' in the

terms of the insurance policy raised in the court below

and dismisses the question from consideration. Appellee

does not agree with appellant on that point. The question

(;f uncertainty of the extent of the coverage under the

terms of the policy read by itself and its ambiguity was

discussed in the briefs of the i)arties presented to the

lower court, imd we believe the discussion of matters

following will establish the uncertain and ambiguous

character of the policy. The accepted rule of construction

is that a liability policy must be construed liberally in

favor of the insured and strictly against the insurance

company.

Commercial Casualt\' Co. v. Stinson,

111 Fed. (2) 63.'

The C(Mitract expressly fixes the situs amonp; others

of the work or improvements as the Augusta-Sun River

Road, and elsewhere in the State of Montana ( R. ]). 148)

and the policy itself ( R. p. 133) expressly embraces in-

juries, including death, "by reason of and during the
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progress of the work described in Statement 4 at the

places named therein and elsewhere if caused by em-

ployees of the assured engaged as such in said operations

at said places; but ivho are required in the discharge of

their duties to be from time to time at other places''

(ItaHcs ours). If the paragraph stopped at that point

there could be no question that the deaths of plaintiff's

intestates were within the protection of the policy, the

evidence being that the injuries were sustained by reason

of and "during the progress" of the work and were

caused by employees of the assured whose duties re-

quired them to be at other places. The policy then pro-

tects against injuries and death caused by employees while

engaged in the use or maintenance of an automobile upon

the "insured premise" (R. pp. 135, 136), or caused by

an "automobile" * * * "at the immediate places where

the assured is carrying on his operations" (R. p. 155).

Analyzing the policy applicable to the places described

in Statement 4 several different meanings may be drawn.

It may be liberally construed as protecting against in-

juries caused by employees using automobiles at any place

on the Augusta-Sun River Road on which the improve-

ments were made but not elsewhere, or it may be con-

strued as embracing only injuries caused by automobiles

used by employees of the assured whose duties do not

require them to be elsewhere than on the Augusta-Sun

River Road, or again it may be construed as excluding

injuries caused by employees using automobile^ on the

Augusta-Sun River Road which employees are required

by their duties to be at other places from time to time,

or it may be interpreted to mean that it protects against

injuries caused by employees either at the places de-
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scribed in Statement 4 or elsewhere provided that such

injuries are not caused by automobiles, or it may be read

to mean that it covers only injuries other than by auto-

mobile caused by employees while and whose duties re-

quire them to be at the place or places of operation and

elsewhere and excludes injuries caused by employees whose

duties require their presence at all times at the place of

operations and never elsevv^here. Scrutiny of the language

of the paragraph will disclose that all of the above and

additional varying meanings may be reasonably inferred.

Further, the extent and place of coverage is described

as injuries and death sustained "by reason of and during

the progress of the work described in Statement 4 at the

places named therein and elsewhere." Reference to State-

ment 4 will show that the places named are described

in sufficiently broad language as to include the entire

road unit known as the x\ugusta-Sun River Road, that

is, the stretch of road between Augusta and Sun River,

and which includes the point on such road at Simms

where the deceased were injured.

If the strict interpretation of the policy without re-

sort to the surrounding circumstances urged by defend-

ant, as hereinafter discussed (Post pp. 20-37), be

adopted the only injuries covered by the policy would

be those sustained while an employee is using or main-

taining an automobile while physically standing or mov-

ing upon the uncompleted bridge or stockpass, an inter-

I)retation which leads to absurdity.

It Vv'ill l)e observed that there is a conflict l)ct\\een

the provisions of Paragraph 1 of the insuring agreement

which excepts injuries by employees using automobiles

or other vehicles ( R. pp. 133. 134) and the terms of
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exclusion No. 3 and endorsement (B) (Record pp. 154,

155) which inferentially protects from injuries by auto-

mobiles used or maintained upon the insured premises

(R. p. 136) or where assured is carrying on his op-

erations (R. p. 155). Manifestly the policy is uncertain

as to intention as to what injuries are covered or what

excepted, or what the places are within the protection

of the policy where the assured is carrying on its op-

erations. What can be designated with certainty as the

"immediate places" where the assured is carrying on

his operation as stated in the endorsement when con-

sidered with the provisions of paragraph I of the insur-

ing agreement which describes the injuries within its

protection as those sustained "by reason of and during

the progress of the work described in Statement 4 and

elsewhere"? The language can be reasonably interpreted

as including any .point on the Augusta-Sun River Road

unit where employees are engaged by reason of the work,

or it may be deemed to mean only the physical struc-

tures being built. Consequently, if defendant's contention

that the policy alone may be considered, is adopted, the

Court is confronted with such uncertainty as to risks

and places insured that it cannot be said just what is

covered by the policy. Thus by defendant's very argu-

ment the Court must then look to the surrounding cir-

cumstances and the purpose sought to be accomplished

in order to say with certainty what the policy means.

"A contract may be explained by reference to the

circumstances under which it is made and the matter

to which it relates."

Sec. 7538 Rev. Code Montana.

"For the proper construction of an instrument the
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circumstances under which it was made, including' the

situation of the subject of the instrument, and of the

parties to it, may also be shown so that the judge be

placed in the position of the parties whose language
he is to interpret."

Sec. 10521 Rev. Code Montana,
(See also authorities herein post pp. 20-27).

By virtue of the above statutes the policy is to be

construed with reference to the original contract and

bond, and in addition the language of the policy is to be

interpreted most strongly against the defendant com-

pany, who is responsible for the uncertainty.

Sec. 7545 Rev. Code Montana.

Appellant urges that neither fraud, mistake nor am-

biguity in the insurcince policy is pleaded (Brief p. 17).

The evidence in the lower court disclosed that until ap-

pellant introduced the insurance policy at the trial in the

lower court the appellee had never had access to same,

nor to a cop}- thereof, although she had endeavored to

obtain same l)()th from the appellant and from the co-

partners without success, and although a copy of the

daily report was furnished by appellant it stated in the

letter accompanying the daily report that "it is not pos-

sible for us to give you an exact copy of the policy that

was issued" (R. pp. 121-129).

By the introduction of the policy by appellant ( R. pp.

132-16v3) the uncertainty of the extent of its coverage

was first made to appear.

(b) Coiistnictioii of the Contract.

To determine tlie measure of appellant insurer's lia-

bilitv the appellee contends that the agreement with the

State ni' Montana ( R. pp. 81-99), the bond ( R. i)p.
^)9-

103) and the policy written (R. p. 133) must be con-
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strued together. The insurer at the trial indicated its

view to be that HabiHty of appellant company must be

determined by the express language of the policy alone

and the agreement and bond pursuant to which the policy

was required to be written may not be considered. In-

surer's view resolves itself into the following anomalous

contention:—The State of Montana as two of the condi-

tions of giving Coverdale and Johnson the highway im-

provement contract required that a bond with responsible

surety be executed conditioned that the partnership

would "in all respects faithfully perform all the pro-

visions of such contract and his, their or its obligations

thereunder, including the specifications therein referred

to and made a part thereof (R. p. 83), and further

required the partnership to carry "public liability insur-

ance to indemnify the public for injuries or damages

sustained by reaspn of carrying on the work," and that

the contractor "shall submit adequate evidence to the

Commission that he has taken out this insurance" (R.

p. 86 par. 7. 11); that the appellant executed the bond

as "Surety," was paid the premium, and thereby obli-

gated itself that the foregoing requirements of the con-

tract would in all respects, including the specifications

thereunder, be faithfully performed by the copartnership;

that the same corporation after being paid the premium

as evidence of the -carrying of public liability insurance

by tlie partnership as required by the contract notified

the Commission by letter, conformable to a letter from

the Commission to Coverdale and Johnson, it had issued

the public liability insurance to Coverdale & Johnson

in the amounts specified by the contracts (R. pp. 110-

114); that neither the policy issued nor a copy w^as sub-
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niitted to the Commission (R. pp. 114, 115); and not-

withstanding all of the foregoing instead of the policy

written containing" expressly the general liability obliga-

tion to indemnify the public for damages or injuries

sustained by reason of carrying on the work (R. p. 86)

it apparently attempted to limit, narrow and restrict

this liability by printed statements in the policy excluding

and excepting injuries and death imder certain circum-

stances caused by driving or using any vehicle, or auto-

mobile or draught animal, or in doing other specified

things (R. pp. 133-136, 154, 155), thereby making the

polic}' a limited liability policy instead of a general lia-

bility policy as demanded by the highway contract, and

thus by the simple expedient of failing to have the in-

surance policy conform to the promises of the "partner-

shi])" and the "surety" (appellant insurer) under the

agreement and bond the insurer relieves itself from

liability for injuries to the public. This contention and

obvious attempt to defeat liability might be viewed in-

dulgently if the obligation had been assumed as a matter

of favor and without consideration, but advanced by

the appellant who was paid to write the bond and was

j)aid to issue the policy and upon the promise of doing

which a contract had been made with the partnership

is a revolting one from the standpoint of the sanctity

of contractual obligations and ordinary fair dealing. To

permit such a contention to prevail would defeat one of

the most important provisions of the contract, the pro-

tection of innocent members of the public from the neg-

ligence of the contractor in carrying on the work. If

the issuance of a poHc\- of that character can be tolerated

or sustained under the highway agreement then the in-
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surer may so restrict and limit liability to such narrow

limitations that the contractual requirement will be wholly

meaningless. Neither law nor equity nor common "horse-

sense" will support such inconsistency. The appellant

insurer undertook the obligation of protecting the public

and was paid the premium it demanded therefor. It

urges now that it should be granted the financial benefit

of the transaction without being required to assume the

incidental burden contrary to Sec. 8750, Rev. Code Mon-

tana, which requires that he who takes the benefit shall

also take the burden.

To evidently forestall any attempt to defeat the pro-

visions of the agreement designed and intended for the

protection of the public by a contention of the insurer

or of a surety on the bond that each instrument should

be construed as a separate and distinct contract the

agreement expressly provides it should be understood

thoroughly by all concerned that "all things contained

herein together with 'Advertisement for proposals' or

'Notice to Contractors' and the 'Contract Bond' as well

as any papers attached to or bound with any of the

above, also any and all supplemental agreements made or

to be made, are hereby made a part of these Specifica-

tions and Contract and are to be considered one instru-

ment" (R. p. 82). Here we find language of an all

embracive and incjusive character making the policy of

insurance referred to in the contract and to be written

as a supplemental agreement thereto a part of the agree-

ment. In signing the bond and issuing the policy in con-

formity with the agreement the defendant agreed to such

provision and is bound thereby. It is estopped by its

agreement to now urge a contrary construction.
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"One must not change his purpose to the injury of

another.''

Sec. 8741 Rev. Code Montana,

Gihia V. Barker,

78 M. 357, 369, 254 Pac. 174.

Independent of the express contractual provision re-

quiring an interpretation of the various instruments as

one agreement, the rule of construction followed by the

courts of the State of Montana and of other jurisdictions

is stated as follows

:

"Where several instruments are made at the same
time in relation to the same subject matter tliey may
be read together as one instrument and the recitals in

the one may be limited by reference to the other. This

rule obtains even when the j^arties are not the same if

the several contracts were known to all parties and
were delivered at the same time to accomplish an

agreed purpose."

Peterson v. Miller Rubber Co.,

(CCA. 8th Cir.) 24 Fed. (2) 59,

Union Bank v. Hinmielbauer,

57 M. 438, 188 Pac. 940,

Dodd v. Vucovich,

38 M. 188, 99 Pac. 296,

Fidelity & Dep. Co. v. Hershey,
(Colo.) 25 Pac. (2) 178,

Busch V. Hart,

(Ark.) 35 S.W. 534.

"Where several instruments are made as a part of

one transaction they will be read together and each will

be construed with reference to the other.''

13 C J. Sec. 487 p. 528.

In Gary, etc Co. v. Carlson, et al., 79 Mont. Ill, 255

P^ac. 722. held, where a surety bond is given for per-

formance of a contract the bond is made with relation
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to the contract and as a part of it, the two must be

construed together and the surety binds itself to the

performance of those acts which the principal promises

to perform as a part of his contract and hence where

a contractor promised to pay laborers and materialmen

and fails to do so they may sue the surety directly on

the bond in their own names as a contract made for

their benefit as third parties under Section 7472 Rev.

Code Montana.

With reference to the construction of insurance policies

the following rules are applicable:

"The contract should be construed as a whole to-

gether with other papers or documents which consti-

tute a part of the contract; a statutory regulation

under the particular employment or acts in respect

to which insurance is effected enter into and form
a part of the policy and must be read in connection

therewith. The policy is construed liberally in favor

of the insured 'and against the insurance company. A
liability insurer cannot invoke the strict rules of con-

struction which apply for the protection of gratuitous

sureties and a narrow technical construction of the

policy or of the petition in the former action against

the insured for a liability covered by the policy is not

permissible to defeat the insurance."

36 C. J. p. 1061, Sec. 14,

Creem v. Fidelity etc. Co.,

126 N. Y. S. 555, modified on other grounds
206 N. Y. S. 7Z?>, 100 N. E. 454,

''Where not inconsistent with other parts of the

contract or incompatible with the surrounding facts

and circumstances or the subject matter every material

word should be given meaning and effect. However
the court is justified in ignoring part of the language
of the contract where in view of the subject-matter

it is meaningless, inapplicable or inoperative or where
to ofive effect it would lead to unreasonable results
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defeating the manifest intention of the parties and the

object and purpose they had in view in enter ino- into

the contract."

32 C. J. p. 1158, Sec. 268.

In determining whether a i)olicy covers a habiHty the

pohcy may be considered in view of the purpose for

which it is sought and the result to be accomphshed.

Biwabik Concrete Agg. Co. v. U.S.F. & G. Co.,

(Minn.) 288 N.W. 394.

Park Saddle Horse Co. v. Royal Indem. Co.,

81 Mont. 99, 261 Pac. 880.

Williams v. Pac. States Ins. Co.,

(Ore.) 251 Pac. 258.

in Biwabik etc., Co. v. U.S.F. & G. Co. 288 N.W.

394, a horse owned by the contractor was negligently

permitted to stra}' upon the highway and collided with

an automobile in which injured plaintiff was riding.

The defendant insurer contended plaintiff's injuries were

not within the coverage of the policy. The court held

the insurer being cognizable of the nature of the op-

erations of the assured contractor and wrote the policy

under knowledge of such circumstances, consideration of

such circumstances should be had in determining the pur-

pose of the policy and the intent thereof and affirmed

judgment against the insured.

In Park Saddle Horse Co. v. Royal Indemnity Com-

pany, 81 Mont. 99, 261 Pac. 880, the Court held the

agent of the insurer is presumed to know the character

of the insured's lousiness and knew or will be held to

know its practices in that business; that the contract is

construed liberally on behalf of the insured and against

the insurer; that evidence of conversations made pre-

limin:ir\- to the consummation of tlie written liability
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policy between the parties may be considered to arrive

at the intention of the parties.

In the cited foreg'oing case a guide in the employ of

the insured saddle horse company became lost in guiding

a saddle horse party. One of the party after dismount-

ing from her horse fell and injured herself while so dis-

mounted. The Court held the accident happened "on

account of or by reason of the use of horses" in the

business of the insured and sustained recovery by the

injured against the insurer under the above quoted lan-

guage, as the circumstances under which the policy was

written were to be considered in determining the extent

of its liability.

Where an insurance company at the time of procuring

the policy knows facts and circumstances which would

render the policy void under a printed clause in the

policy later written, it is held that by issuing the policy

and accepting the premium the insurer is estopped to

deny liability under the said clause in the policy.

Krpan v. Central, etc., Ins. Co.,

87 M. 345, 287 P. 217.

To same effect: Johnson v. Ins. Co.,

70 M. 411, 226 Pac. 515.

The facts and circumstances surrounding the making

of the policy and the purposes thereof may be summar-

ized as follows : An agreement for highway improve-

ments requiring a 1:)ond to be written to assure faithful

performance of all its terms, one of which was the carry-

ing of liability insurance with a coverage indemnifying

the public for injuries sustained by reason of the carry-

ing on of the work was entered into. The bond for faith-

ful performance of the said written contract w^as written



-^26—
by the defendant, who thereafter writes the insurance

poHcy and by printed exclusions attempts to change and

reduce the extent of HabiHty mandated by the agree-

ment and bond. The agreement by all embracive language

made the bond and the policy with the agreement to be

construed as one instrument. Construing the said writ-

ings together there is a conflict between the provisions

as to extent of insured's liability specified in the agree-

ment and the provisions concerning same printed in the

policy.

Applying the legal principles above set forth that all

instruments should be construed together liberally in

favor of the insured and strictly against the insurer and

that the provisions of the policy should be ignored and

recovery permitted where the provisions of the policy,

in view of the subject matter, if given effect would lead

to an unreasonable result defeating the manifest purpose

and object had in view, it is clear that the provisions

of the policy if in conflict with the requirement of the

agreement should be held for naught, since to give effect

to the policy provisions over the mandated liability of

the agreement would defeat the manifest intent and

purpose of i)r()tecting members of the public from dam-

ages for injuries resulting from the carrying on the

work, and would permit the insured to profit by its own

wrong and constructive fraud, to-wit, by limiting lia-

bility and escaping responsibility notwithstanding it had

been paid to assume the liability imposed by the highway

contract and its issuing its own policy containing an ex-

clusion contrary to the obligation it assumed under its

bond for the performance of the liability insurance pro-

visi(jn 1)\' the partnership and its further act in notifying
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the Highway Commission it had written the insurance

poHcy required, when such was not the fact. It is to be

born in mind that the attempted limitation was not men-

tioned nor called to the Commission's attention.

Applying the principle of estoppel ennunciated in

Krpan v. Central Ins. Co., 87 Mont. 345, 287 Pac. 217,

hereinabove cited, the appellant insurer was famiHar

with the requirements of the agreement for general lia-

bility insurance, executed its surety bond that such in-

surance would be written and was paid a premium for

assuming such liability under its bond. It then undertook

to itself write the policy required and placed clauses

therein which may be interpreted, if appellant's conten-

tion is correct, to reduce its liability notwithstanding it

charged and collected the premium for its promise to

write an adequate coverage policy. Having accepted the

premium and issued the policy as the Court held, in the

cited case, it is estopped to deny liability under the so

called exclusion clauses.

Another principle of law defeating the claim non lia-

bility under the policy is the doctrine invoked in cases

of compulsory insurance, as distinguished from volun-

tary insurance. The principle is illustrated where insur-

ance written is required by statute, that is, under com-

pulsion that the insurance shall comply with the liability

specified by statute.- In such cases the courts uniformly

hold that the statutory provision controls, where the

policy provisions are not in accord therewith.

Ocean Ace. etc., Corp. v. Torres,

91 Fed. (2) 464, 468 (CCA. 9th),

Malmgren v. Southwestern Auto Ins.,

(S.C Cal.) 255 Pac. 512.
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Ott V. Fidelitv, etc., Co.,

S.C. 159 S^ E. 635, 76 A.L.R. 4,

Corwin v. Salter,

(Wis.) 216 N.W. 653,

Krueger v. Calif. Highway Indem. Co.,

(Cal.) 258 Pac. 602 Certiorari denied

72 L. ed. 430.

Arizona Mut. Ins, Co. v. Bernal,

(Ariz.) 203 Pac. 338,

Stone V. Inter-State Exchange,
(Wis.) 229 N.W. 26,

Opinion of Justices,

(Mass.) 147 N.E. 681.

The principle is discussed in cases referred to

in annotation in 85 A.L.R. 28-30.

The policy written b)' appellant was written under

the compulsory requirement of the highway contract as

one of the conditions of giving the highway improve-

ment work to the partnership. The same reason and pur-

pose underlying statutory requirements, i. e. the pro-

tection and indemnification of the public enforceable

by members of the public in direct actions by such per-

sons against the insurer for injuries sustained, is the

basis of the i)rovision in the highway contract in evidence

in the instant case, and the same rule is applicable under

the statutory rule that where the reason is the same the

rule should be the same.

Sec. 8740 Rev. Code Montana.

Insurance provided is liability insurance as distin-

guished from indemnity insurance and plaintiff is en-

titled to sue and recover against insurer by direct action.

A i)()]icv which reserves to the insurer full and com-

plete control and adjustment of all claims that might
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arise under the policy and expressly obligates the in-

surer to defend any suit against the insured whether

groundless or not and insuring against loss and expense

is a contract to pay liability and it authorizes recovery

as soon as liability attaches to the assured and before

it is discharged, and suit may be maintained by injured

party.

Slavens v. Standard Ace. Ins. Co.,

27 Fed. (2) 859, (CCA. 9th)

(on appeal from D. C Mont.)

Michael v. American etc., Ins. Co.,

(CCA. 5th) 82 Fed. (2) 583.

The policy in case at bar contained a provision, as

noted above, for control and settlement of suit, and de-

fense whether groundless or not (R. p. 134).

In Slavens v. Standard Ace. Ins. Co., 27 Fed. (2)

859 (supra), a policy such as was required to be written

under the highway contract here, was held to be a lia-

bility policy, the person injured the real party in interest

and could sue on the policy upon establishment of lia-

bility of assured by a judgment.

The quotation from Gary Hay and Grain Co. v.

Carlson, 79 M. Ill, 255 Pac. 722, (page 19 appellant's

brief), is correct as an abstract statement of law, but a

reading of the case will disclose that the Court's decision

in the cited case expressly decided that the bond must

be construed with and "as a part" of the highway con-

tract as the bond "is made with relation to the contract

and as a part of it," and supports appellee's contention.

National Surety Company v. Ulmen, 68 Fed. (2)

330, (pages 20, 21, appellant's Brief) is clearly distin-

,r>'uishable on the facts from the instant cause. The Court
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in the cited case held that because the contract contained

no provision requirinL;" the contractor to pay members

of the pubHc for injuries sustained by reason of the

failure of the contractor to provide barricades, lights

and warnings, a member of the ])ublic injured was a

stranger to the contract. Obviously there is a marked

difference in the cited case where the members of the

])ul)lic were not mentioned and the present case where

the agreement expressly mentions members of the public

and obligates both the contractor and his surety to fur-

nish liability insurance to indemnify (in other words

to pay) members of such public for the injuries sus-

tained by reason of the carrying on of the contract work.

In brief, the very conditions not existing under tlie con-

tract and bond in the Ulmen case are present in the case

at bar, to- wit, the plaintiff's intestates being members

of the public protected b}- the contract and bond were

not strangers to the contract ( Slavens v. Ins. Co. 27

Fed. (2) 859) and there is an express provision in the

contract lor indemnification (or payment) of such per-

sons as members of the class. For defendant to urge that

intestates were strangers to the contract and neither the

contract nor tlie bond contains a provision for payment

of the injuries completely ignores the insurance provision

of the contract.

The case of Scliisel v. ]\Iarvill, 197 N. W. (Iowa) 662,

(appellant's brief pp. 23 25) at first glance would ap-

])ear to support the defendant's contention. A study of

the decision and the reasons given by the Court as under-

lying same establishes the inapplicability of the rule of

that decision to the present actions. Reviewing the vari-

ous facts of the cited case given by the court as the basis



— 31 —
for its decision and which are contrary to the facts be-

fore this court, the following appears:

(a) In the cited case the Court held the provision

for insurance was a condition precedent to the acceptance

of the bid by the board of supervisors and approval of

the contract by the Highway Commission, and the Com-

mission not having required the liability policy before it

approved and accepted the contract the requirement was

waived when no policy was written. In our case the

Highway Commission wrote Coverdale and Johnson ex-

pressly requiring a policy to be written with the obliga-

tion of protection as prescribed by the contract and the

appellant by letter notified it had issued the public lia-

bility policy in accordance with the requirements of the

contract, (R. pp. 110, 111, 113, 114) consequently the

waiver existing in the cited case is absent here. Nor is

appellant in a position to claim a waiver since it wrote

a policy and, without submitting either the original

policy or a copy to the Highway Commission, represented

by written letter the policy issued was as required by

the contract (R. pp. 113, 114). The evidence further

shows that the Highway Commission accepted such rep-

resentation as true and by reason thereof it permitted

Coverdale and Johnson to proceed with the contract.

It also appears that at no time did the Highway Com-

mission have any intimation that the policy written con-

tained provisions which might be interpreted strictly to

give only a slight and limited measure of the protection

expressly demanded by the contract. In fact, the manner

in which the insurance feature was handled and subse-

quent denial of liability very closely approaches, if it

does not constitute, a fraud upon the rights of those
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members of the public expressly protected by the contract.

(b) In the cited case of Schisel v. Marvill there

apparently is no statute of Iowa such as Section 8758

of the Montana Code which provides:

"That which ought to have been done is to be re-

garded as done in favor of him to whom and against

him from whom performance is due."

Clearly the defendant both as Surety and as the one

who undertook the performance of the contract obliga-

tion to furnish the insurance protection mandated by the

contract will be res^arded as having intended to perform

the obligation in full notwithstanding that the policy by

one of various constructions may be read as not con-

forming to the contract obligation.

The principle of the above statute is given practical

application in Whittaker v. United States Fidelity and

Guaranty Co. (Montana) 300 Fed. 129, and in Con-

tinental Insurance Co. v. Bair (Ind.) 114 N. E. 763.

In the first case the Court held (a) An indemnified and

hired surety on a stay bond on affirmance of a judg-

ment was liable for the amount of the judgment though

the bond, ])ecause of a mistake or fraud on the i)art of

the principal, did not so provide since such surety had

constructive if not actual knowledge of the conditions

intended by the Court and parties and such condition was

implied: (b) that the circumstances surrounding the exe-

cution of the bond showed that ihe plaintiff must be

])rotected by a bond conditioned for ])ayment of the jud;;-

ment if not reversed and although the bond given was

not sufficiently broad to o1)ligate pa}-ment if the appeal

taken was affirmed, such obligation would be implied

and the suret}' be compelled to pay, as the liability of
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the hired surety is co-extensive with the obUgation of

the principal and reformation if necessary is available

against both.

It will be noted that the same company was resisting

payment of its obligation in the cited case on a defense

of the same character as one of the defenses urged in

the case at bar, to-wit, that the language did not con-

tain words of sufficiently broad liability.

In Insurance Co. v. Bair (supra) held that where in-

sured notified the insurer of the existence of a mortgage

on the property and obtained a promise to properly en-

dorse the mortgagee's interest on the policy and the in-

surer failed to do so equity would treat the policy as

having the endorsement thereon with the loss payable

to the mortgagee as his interest might appear.

"CONSTRUCTION OF CONTRACTOR'S PUBLIC
LIABILITY POLICY ISSUED BY

DEFENDANT."
In citation of decisions and Montana statutes under

the above head appellant fails to include Sections 7538

and 7545 which are part of the same Chapter on inter-

pretation of contracts as Sees. 7529 and 7530, (quoted on

page 26 of appellant's brief), which permits the sur-

rounding circumstances under which the agreement was

made to explain same and provides for a strong inter-

pretation against the insurance company who wrote the

policy.

In construing Sec. 7533 R. C M. (brief p. 30) ap-

pellant argues that because the contract and bond and

insurance policy bear dates ten days apart and because

the State of Montana does not appear as one of the

parties insured the various documents are not within
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the statute. The statute does not require the signatures

of every interested party to each of several contracts.

If they are "substantially one transaction" they "are to

be taken together" (Sec. 7533, Montana Code). Fur-

ther the Insurance Company and the contractor both

had notice by the letter from the Highway Commission

that the issuance and delivery of insurance policy was

an essential and substantial part of the transaction by

virtue of the express requirements of the contract.

Appellant concludes (p. 31 of its brief) that because

the contract relates to construction of bridges whereas

the insurance relates to indemnity of Coverdale and

Johnson the}' are riot between the same parties and not

executed and delivered at the same time. The record

shows a contract and bond wherein the State of Mon-

tana, Coverdale and Johnson, and defendant are ])arties,

and in which the members of the public who may be

injured are expressly made beneficiaries, under the in-

surance requirement. The purpose of this contract is road

improvement and the protection of the public. The policy

refers to the work under the contract with the State of

Montana, makes the injured members of the public party

beneficiaries, names Coverdale and Johnson as the as-

sured and obligates the defendant. Further, the contract

became fully effective as to the initiation of the rights

therein of Coverdale and Johnson only ui)on execution

and delivery of the insurance policy. The statement of

the facts refute defendant's argument.

The contract, policy and bond are properly to be con-

strued together Ix^cause expressly ])ermitted by Section

7538 and Section 10521 Montana Code which ])rovide

that for the i)r()i)er construction of a written instrument,
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the circumstances under which it was made, including

the situation of the parties and of the subject of the

instrument, is to be considered to enable the Court to

interpret same.

State Bank v. Pew, 59 M. 144 (p. 31 appellant's brief),

refers to an independent bond liability which arose after

the contract was completed and the case does not deal

with highway contracts and bonds. Any language of

this decision which may appear to be in conflict with

the later case of Gary Hay and Grain Company v. Carl-

son, 79 Mont. Ill, 255 Pac. 722, which holds the bond

and highway contract are one agreement, and the ex-

press provisions of paragraph 1.18 of the highway con-

tract (R. p. 82) which makes the contract, bond and

supplemental agreements all one agreement, is inap-

plicable and beside the point.

We have carefully considered the case of Michigan

Stamping Works v. Michigan Employee's Casualty Com-

pany, 209 N. W. 104, referred to in pages 33 to 35 of

appellant's brief. This case involved an indemnity policy

in a suit by the assured. The Court in denying recovery

in the action which was one at law indicated that the

plaintiff in order to recover on the policy would have to

have the policy reformed. This would be an equitable

action. This Court, since the new rules, may grant

reformation and recovery in the one action and this is the

practice of the state courts.

Rule 2, Fed. Rules Civil Procedure,

Sec. 9008, Montana Code.

Under the Rules applicable to civil actions the Court

grants all relief, both legal and equitable, in the one action.

Michigan being known as a common law state as dis-
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tingiiished from states known as Code States, like Mon-

tana, apparently adheres to the old distinctions between

legal and equitable actions. Hence, the reason for the

Court not granting relief by way of reformation in the

cited case.

In view of the express provisions of the contract ex-

pressly requiring the contract, the bond and supplemental

agreements to be construed as the one contract, the rule

of State V. American Surety Co., 78 Mont. 504, 255 Pac.

1063. cited at page 35 of appellant's brief, is not author-

ity for appellant.

The appellant urges that the Highway Commission left

it to the contractor and the insurance company to contract

as to the terms and conditions (brief, pp. 37, 38). This

is true in part only since the highway contract specifically

rccjuires the insurance to indemnify members of the public

injured by reason of carrying on of the work, and by

letter to Coverdale and Johnson (R. p. 110) the Highway

Commission brought to the attention of the appellant the

contract requirement of such a measure of protection,

and the appellant notifed the Commission by letter { R.

p. 113) that such j)olicy had been issued. This correspond-

ence shows that as to the extent of the coverage the Com-

mission insisted the policy conform to the liability stated

in the contract.

Appellant boldly asserts (Brief p. 2>7) that the State

of Montana did not intend to include protection to persons

twent\- or thirty miles from the construction work. The

contract A\as an entire one, and the policy of insurance

expressly acknowledged liability for injuries caused by

emploxees not only at the places where the bridges and

stock passes were legated but at other places.
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Appellant claims (page 38 of Brief) the policy being a

standard form met the requirements of the contract. This

claim is contrary to the facts. In the first place, the evi-

dence does not establish the policy to be a standard liabil-

ity policy. (See testimony of defendant's witnesses, R.

pp. 130-174). There is no law of Montana prescribing a

standard contractor's liability policy. Defendant by merely

calling the policy a standard form cannot relieve itself

from the obligation required by the highway contract.

Section 8140, R. C. M. (p. 39, appellant's brief) has

no application, since by the contract and bond the con-

tractor and defendant were required to furnish a policy

with the measure of liability required by such contract and

they cannot assert a non performance as performance.

The argument involves a contradiction. Epitomizing de-

fendant's argument it resolves itself into the novel con-

tention that the obligation of the contract requiring a

general liability as stated in specification 7.11 (R. p. 86)

and admitting of no exclusions or exceptions other than

that the injuries must have been sustained by members

of the public "by reason of carrying on the work" has

been performed by the furnishing of a limited policy which

relieves the insurer from the measure of performance

required. In short, that a breach of a contract is a per-

formance of the contract.

"SUFFICIENCY OF THE EVIDENCE."

The entire argument of appellant (pp. 40-42 of brief)

under the above entitled heading ignores the evidence

consisting of the judgment rolls in the cases in which the

judgments were given against Coverdale and Johnson

(S. R. pp. 241-459). The appellant says that since there
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was no proof offered showing that the i^irls were injured

and killed by reason of the carryin;; on the wo: ic under

the contract recovery may not be had. Examining the

record we find it is contrary to the appellant's contention.

It is to be remembered that the appellant was obligated

to defend the actions against Coverdale and Johnson in

the state court by the express provisions of the policy

(R. p. 134), its attorneys conducted the defense in each

action and were paid in part for such services by the in-

surer (R. pj). 165-168). Such attorneys prepared the

answers filed. The original pleadings filed in these actions

were received in evidence in the cases at bar. The com-

plaints filed in the state court substantially allege that

betwen the 25 th of September, 1934, and the 1st day of

February, 1935, they were engaged in the performance

of the construction and improvement work under the con-

tract; that the drum hoist had been used for fifty-two

days in the performance of such work and that in rede-

livering said hoist under the contract for its use on the

work the girls were injured and killed by the grossly

negligent and reckless operation of the automobile driver

under the direction and control of a co-partner while being

used in transporting the co-partner and employees, for

tlie purpose of effecting redelivery, from Augusta to the

l)lace of delivery and return (S. R. pp. 243, 244, 285,

286, 287).

Paragraphs V and VI of each complaint allege the

foregoing facts as to the period of the work, the use of

the drum hoist on the work under the contract and the

necessity for its return to Great Falls.

Paragraphs V of the separate answers of John M.

Coverdale and of the se])arate answers of the co-partner-
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ship of Coverdale and Johnson filed in each action in the

state court admit the allegations of said paragraphs V
and VI of the complaints (S. R. pp. 251, 258, 293, 301).

The evidence showed that the girls were killed by the

reckless and grossly negligent driving of the automobile

then being used for the purpose of transporting the em-

ployees of Coverdale & Johnson in making redelivery of

the hoist used on this work, and the judgments were ac-

cordingly given (S. R. pp. 323-431). In the face of the

express admissions in the pleadings and the uncontradicted

evidence how can it be sincerely urged that the proof is

lacking.

It is not amiss to direct the attention of the Court to

the proposition that the allegations of the complaints

filed in the present actions alleging the injuries and

deaths of the deceased were caused by the negligent oper-

ation of the automobile by the co-partnership while being

used in carrying on the work (Pars. V Complaints) (R.

pp. 30, 31, 7, 8) and denied by the allegations of the in-

surer that it "has not sufficient knowledge or information

upon which to base a belief with respect" to such allega-

tions (R. pp. 56, 59). This denial was and is so obviously

sham and frivolous as, in our humble opinion, not to

raise issues in view of the record and appellant's intimate

knowledge gained by its conduct of the defenses to the

former actions.

Appellant (p. 41, brief) seeks to hmit the issues in the

former cases to the general issues stated. The complaints

and the evidence in those cases show that the particulars

of the use of the drum hoist and the particular circum-

stances of the negligent acts were pleaded and either

admitted bv defendant or proven by evidence in the state
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court. Hence appellant's statement in the last paia;.;raph

that the only evidence on the issue was that of appellant

is not conformable to the facts.

(c) Judgments against Coverdalc and Johnson recov-

ered in State Court conclusive against appellant as to

matters involved therein.

The record in the present causes, heretofore discussed

herein, discloses that the judgments in the state court

against Coverdale and Johnson were based upon the

negligence of the contractor in connection with the carry-

ing on the work under the contract. That the judgments

so obtained are conclusive against the appellant insurer

as to such issues appears from the following authorities:

Judgment against the insured determines his liability

and damages for death resulting from the use of an
automobile is conclusive against the liability insurer

company as to its liability on the policy \\ here there is

no fraud or collusion in obtaining the judgment and the

insurance company had timely notice of suit and elected

to make no defense, and issues of law and fact tried in

the suit may not be raised in the suit against Insurer.

Internat'l Indem. Co. v. Steil,

30 F. (2) 654. (CCA 8th, Iowa)

Howe V. Howe,
(N. H.) 179 Atl. 362, Annotated 106 A.L.R.

520.

Judgment in an action for wrongful death is con-

clusive against insurer com])any under a liability policy

insuring against death.

Park V. American Fid. & Cas. Co.,

92 Fed. (2) 746 (CCA Tex.)

Where insurer is notified of the pendency of an

action in reference to a liability covered by the policy

and is given an opportunity to defend such action as

recpu'red by the policy whether it does or does not

defend or take part in the action a judgment against
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the insured is conclusive upon the insurer as to all

questions determined which are material to a recovery

against it in an action on the policy.

36 C. J. Sec. 121, P. 1121.

B. Roth Tool Co. V. New Amsterdam Gas Co.,

161 Fed. 709, (CCA 8th Miss.).

In Slavens v. Standard Ace. Ins. Co., 27 Fed. (2) 859

(CCA 9th) the court held a complaint substantially the

same as the complaints at bar was sufficient to state a

cause of action, and that the injured person was the real

party in interest to sue as party plaintiff.

The policy written authorizes suit by the injured person

against the insurance company upon return of execution

returned unsatisfied by reason of insolvency of the insured

(R. p. 142). The complaints contain allegations to such

effect (R. pp. 8, 9, 32). Evidence of these allegations

was offered and received by way of the executions issued

on the judgments and the certificate of the sheriff (S. R.

pp. 281-283, 320-322).

Such evidence is prima facie evidence of insolvency.

Eagle Indemnity Co. v. Diehl,

27 Fed. (2) 76, (C. C. A. 9th)

85 A. L. R. 52-58 (annotations).

Conditions precedent are sufficiently alleged in the

complaints and it devolved upon the defendant to set up

by special defenses such failures as it proposes to claim

(R. pp. 9, 32).

Rule 9 (c) Federal Rules Civ. Proc. J

Harty v. Eagle Indem. Co.

(Conn.) 143 Atl. 847,

Riggs V. N. J. Fidelitv etc., Co.,

(Ore.) 270 Pac. 479,

72 A. L. R. 1452 (annotations).
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(d) Reformation.

The appellant urges that the lower court erred in mak-

ing a reformation of the policy (brief pp. 42-46).

The court certainly did not decree a reformation of the

policy. Relief may be granted a plaintiff without expressly

decreeing reformation. \\ hen the agreement, bond and

policy are read together the intent and obligation binding

on the appellant is manifest. The rule is stated as follows:

If the policy when properly construed in the light of

extrinsic facts has the same meaning it would have if

reformed and sufficiently shows the agreement no
reformation is necessary.

Williams v. Pac. States Ins. Co.,

(Ore.) 251 Pac. 258.

Lorenz v. Bull Dog Auto Ins. Assn.,

(Mo. App.) 277 S. W. 596.

In any event, the Court having jurisdiction of the

parties and the subject matter may grant an}- relief con-

sistent with the facts and pleadings, and may decree

reformation if the Court deems same proper.

Rule 2 Fed. Rules of Civ. Proc.

Sec. 9008, R. C. M.

McKinney v. Mires,

95 Mont. 191, 26 Pac. (2) 169.

Park Saddle Horse Co. v. Roval Indem. Co.,

81 M. 99. 261 Pac. 880.

Stevens v. Equitv Ins. Co.,

66 M. 461, 213 Pac. 110.

Krpan v. Central, etc., Ins. Co.,

87 M. 345, 287 P. 217.

The complaints at bar expressly pray generally for such

further relief as may be eciuitable and proper.

Appellant inferentially contends that because a photo-
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static copy of the daily report of appellant was furnished

appellee that the judgments of the lower court should be

reversed because appellee did not maintain an action for

reformation (brief pp. 44 and 45).

The record evidence shows how appellee attempted to

obtain access to the policy to no avail. Neither the con-

tractors nor the company furnished the policy or a copy.

It was only after threat of a court proceeding did the

appellant furnish a copy of its "daily report" and even

then it did not have sufficient confidence in its own

records to enable it to assure appellee that the copy of

the daily report was a copy of the policy wTitten ( R. pp.

121-130). Until the appellant introduced the original pol-

icy in evidence neither appellee nor her counsel knew with

certainty what the terms of the policy were. How could

she plead a cause of action for reformation when the

terms of the writing were unknown? She proceeded in the

only way open to her by pleading in the manner which

she did.

It was first made apparent to appellee and the court

that the policy written was uncertain as to the liability

coverage when the appellant, at the conclusion of the ap-

pellee's case in chief, introduced the policy in evidence

as a part of its case (R. pp. 130-132).

It is a rule recognized in the courts of Montana that

where evidence is received without objection the pleadings

are deemed amended to conform to the evidence and any

relief consistent with the pleadings and evidence may be

granted by the court.

Moss V. Goodhart,

47 Mont. 257, 131 Pac. 1071,
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Wallace v.. Goldberg,

72 Mont. @ p. 217, 231 Pac. 56.

See also authorities at page 42 ante.

The record clearly establishes that the deceased girls

were members of the class for the protection of which the

highway contract mandated liability insurance be carried

and having sustained injuries and death by reason of the

carrying on of the work under the contract the appellant

may not esca])e liability by asserting that it wrote a policy

and failed to meet the insurance obligation required ex-

pressly by the highway contract.

CONCLUSION.

The appellant havinj^' failed to show any meritorious

reason for reversal the judgments of the lower court

should be affirmed.

Respectfully submitted.

E. J. McCABE,
Attorney for Appellee.
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Since the filing of appellant's brief, the appellee

has filed with this court a supplemental transcript on

appeal and her brief. In order to comment upon the

materiality of the supplemental transcript and to ar-

gue certain issues raised by the appellee, which we

consider to be new issues, this reply brief seems neces-

sary.

(a) Supplemental Transcript on Appeal

In appellant's brief, pages 40 and 41, the court was

advised that appellee, in the trial court, introduced no

oral evidence to prove that the deaths of the Doheny

girls occurred "by reason of and during the progress

of the work" within the terms of the Contractor's Pub-

lic Liability Policy and that for her proof on this is-

sue, she relied entirely upon the pleadings, evidence, in-

structions and judgments in the state court actions

which, in the main, constitute the supplemental trans-

cript in the cases at bar.

The complaints in the state court actions alleged,

and the answers admitted, that Coverdale & Johnson

had a contract with the State of Montana for the con-

struction of certain bridges and stock passes; that a

drum hoist was rented for use by the contractor in the

construction of the improvements ; that under the rent-

al agreement the hoist was to be delivered to its owner

;

that the trip to Great Falls by the partner Johnson

and the employee Bardon, accompanied by the Do-

heny girls, was made for the purpose of showing the
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trucker where to unload the equipment. However,

none of those allegations establish that the contractor

was "carrying on the work" when the accident occur-

red. Those allegations were material in the state court

actions only to assist the appellee in establishing one

of the essential elements of her cause of action, namely,

that the parties were engaged in partnership business

when the accident occurred. The fact must be recog-

nized that Johnson and Bardon could well be engaged

in partnership business and still not be "carrying on

the work '

' as prescribed in the contract between Cover-

dale & Johnson and the State of Montana.

We cannot let go unchallenged ap})ellee's statement

(p. 12 of her brief) that the witness Bernhardt testified

"that the hoist had been used on the work on the Sun

River-Augusta highway and had finished using it that

afternoon. '

' The testimony of this witness affirmative-

ly shows that in addition to the bridges and stock pass-

es being built on the Augusta-Sun River road, the con-

tractor was performing work on the Augusta-Choteau

road and nowhere in his testimony nor in the entire

record of the state court cases does it appear what work

was being done or at what places by the contractor on

the day the equipment was re-delivered to Great Falls.

The issue of whether the contractor was carrying on

the work under the contract was not involved or re-

quisite to a recovery by the appellee in the state court

cases. The judgments in the state court cases are res

adjudicata as to appellant only as to the issues involved
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therein, which are enumerated on pages 40 and 41 of

appellant's brief and since the issue of "carrying on

the work" was not involved, the pleadings and evidence

of the state court cases are immaterial in the cases at

bar.

(b) Ambiguity.

There was no issue of ambiguity raised in the plead-

ings in the court below nor was there any finding rela-

tive thereto by the trial court. To the contrary the trial

court recognized that the policy was a clear and unam-

biguous contract of insurance. It would now appear

that appellee, having heretofore taken the position

that the policy exclusions were inoperative, now views

the policy as ambiguous. This view is based upon the

misconcejDtion of the situs and type of improvements

covered by the construction contract and described in

the policy. The appellee assumes the situs "to include

the entire road unit known as the Augusta-Sun River

road" (pp. 14, 15, 16 and 17 of appellee's brief) and

on this assumption proceeds to argue that there is an

ambiguity in the policy.

The situs of the improvements contemplated by the

contract is described jnany times in the contract docu-

ments and is also definitely fixed in the insurance pol-

icy. The notice to bidders (R. 88 and 89) prepared by

the Montana State Highway Department definitely de-



scribed the situs and type of the improvements as fol-

lows:

''The imjorovement contemplated consists of the
construction of the following described structures
on Section 'E' of the Augusta-Sun River Road in

Lewis & Clark County

:

"1. A 2-span 79 ft. concrete bridge across the

South Fork Sun River.

"2. A single panel 19 ft. treated timber pile

trestle.

"3. Two standard treated timber stock passes.

"4. A 5-paiiel 95 ft. treated timber i^ile trestle

,' bridge across Spring Coulee.

"5. A 4-i)anel 76 ft. treated timber pile trestle

bridge across Dry Creek."
In the contract (R. 89 and 90) the situs and tyi)e of

improvements are described as

:

"Construction or improvement of certain brid-

ges in Lewis & Clark County, State of Montana,
U. S. Public Works Highway Project No. NRH-
176 'E', Unit 2."

Likewise the same description is contained in the

contract i3erformance bond (R. 100).

In endorsement No. 8 to the Contractor's Public

Liability Policy (R. 161) the description is as follows:

"NRIl-176 'E', Unit No. 2, being concrete and
timber pile bridges on Augusta-Sun River Road,
Lewis and Clark County, Montana."

In other words all of the contract documents, as

well as the policy itself, clearly and concisely limit the

work and improvements to the construction of concrete

and timber ])ile bridges in section 2 of the Augusta-

Sun River Road in Lewis and Clark County, State of
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Montana. The contract did not call for any road con-

struction. There is nothing in any of the instruments

to support appellee's statement that the situs of the

work and improvements was "the entire road unit

known as the Augusta-Sun River Road." Further-

more in all of the contract documents and in the Con-

tractor's Public Liability Policy the work and improve-

ments were described as being in the County of Lewis

and Clark. No work or improvements were described

as being within Cascade County, the county in which

occurred the highway accident which forms the basis

of the two cases at bar.

The exclusion of coverage for injuries or death caus-

ed by any automobile appears no less than in four dif-

ferent places in the policy in question. In each place

the language used is clear and concise and there can

be no doubt as to the meaning of the exclusions. Ex-

clusion provisions in policies similar to those con-

tained in the policy in these cases have generally been

upheld by the courts. In Leaksville Light & Power

Co. vs. Georgia Casualty Co., 125 S. E. 123, the policy

contained the following exclusion

:

"Except drivers and secretary and treasurer,

and does not cover loss arising from injuries or

deathjcaused by any draught or any driving animal
or any vehicle, or by any person while in charge
thereof."

The insured there settled the claim of an employee

who was injured by the negligent operation of one of
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the insured's trucks. The court held that the defendant

insurer was not liable under the policy inasmuch as

the accident came within the above quoted exclusion.

In part the court said

:

'
' It will be born in mind that this is a ])olicy de-

signed and intended to indemnify plaintiff against

damages for injuries caused to third persons in the

operation of the work in which the company is

engaged, usually localized, and clearly is not in-

tended to afford indemnity for injuries caused by
operation of the comj)any's vehicles in moving
from place to place. So careful is defendant to

.stipulate against liability of the latter kind that it

appears in the two places excepting drivers from
the eimmerated schedule, thus bringing them un-
der the effect of subsection (1), and again except-

ing claims for injuries caused by any vehicle or

by 'any person while in charge thereof.'

"We are not inadvertent to the position urged
upon our attention by appellant, that a policy, in

case of ambiguity, should be construed more
strongly against the company, but the principle

does not extend to cases such as this, where a pol-

icy, explicit in terms and plain of meaning, with-

draws a claim from its stipulations."

In Commercial Standard Ins. Co. vs. McKinney,

114 S. W. (2d) 338 (Texas), the court had under con-

sideration a Contractors' Public Liability Policy which

contained the following exclusion

:

"The Company shall not be liable for or on ac-

count of any claim alleging such injuries and I
or

death 2. Caused by the ownership,

maintenance or use of a vehicle of any description

or of any draft or driving animal; "



In that case the employees of McKinney were pre-

paring to park a scarifier and tractor for the night

when they were run into by a passenger bus, injuring

seven persons traveling in the bus. The plaintiff set-

tled the seven claims and brought suit against the in-

surer. The court held that the tractor involved came

within the word "vehicle" in the exclusion above re-

ferred to and that there was therefore no coverage un-

der the policy, saying

:

"This language is broad enough without resort

to the statutory definitions to cover the tractor;

*a vehicle of any description' must certainly be

construed to include a tractor.

"Had section 2 of the exceptions to the coverage

of the policy been a covenant of coverage, and not

an exception to coverage, appellee would have had
a clear cause of action against appellant for re-

coupment. If, as a covenant of coverage, section

2 would have made appellant liable, then as an ex-

ception to coverage, this section relieved it of lia-

bility."

In Maryland Casualty Co. vs. Texas Fireproof Stor-

age Co., 69 S. W. (2d) 826 (Texas), the following ex-

clusion was under consideration

:

"This policy does not cover: ....

"(6) any accident caused directly or indirectly

by any automobile vehicle or by any draught or

driving animal or vehicle owned or used by the

assured or by any employee of the assured in

charge thereof, unless such accident shall occur

upon the premises specifically described in Item
IV (a) of the Schedule hereof or on the public

ways immediately adjacent thereto;"
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The court found that the automobile accident in ques-

tion occurred thirty-three city blocks from the prem-

ises described in the policy and further held that by

reason of the policy exclusions above quoted, the in-

surer was not liable for the injuries resulting from the

accident.

In John Alt Furniture Co. vs. Maryland Casualty

Co., 88 Fed. (2d) 36 (1937), the exclusion under con-

sideration was

:

"Any accident caused directly or indirectly by
any automobile vehicle or by any draught or driv-

ing animal, or vehicle owned or used by the as-

sured or by any employee of the assured in charge
thereof, unless such accident shall occur upon the

premises spjecifically described in Item IV (a) of

the Schedule hereof (the premises occupied by the

assured)."

The court held that the exclusion did not apply as

the injury was not caused by any vehicle, but in this

regard the court said

:

"The accident docs not fall within the excep-

tions of the policy which are relied upon by the

Maryland. It was caused by no vehicle or ani-

mal owned or used by citiier the assured or any of

its em])loyees. If it liad been caused by the deliv-

ery truck, the loss would have been covered by the

Mercury policy."

The Montana Su])reme Court recently passed on a

similar exclusion in the case of State ex rel Butte

'Brewing Company, et al, vs. District Court, 110 Mont.

250, 100 Pac. (2d) 932, which was a declaratory judg-

ment action to have determined whether the Standard
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Accident Insurance Company or the Occidental Indem-

nity Company, or either of them, was obligated to de-

fend an action brought against the Butte Brewing

Company for i^ersonal injuries by Richard McCulloh.

In the Indemnity Company policy the following ex-

clusion was contained

:

"That the company shall not be liable in respect

of bodily injuries or death 5. Caused by
any motor or other vehicle owned or

used by the Assured or by any person while en-

gaged in the maintenance or use of same, includ-

ing the loading or unloading thereof elsewhere
than within or upon the premises owned by or un-
der the control of the Assured, including the side-

walks or ways immediately adjacent thereto."

To use the language of the court in holding that the

policy of the Indemnity Company did not cover the par-

ticular accident involved because of the specific exclu-

sion contained in the policy

:

"Its policy, as above pointed out, covered liabil-

ity for injuries off the premises if caused by busi-

ness operations, but excluded injuries caused by
any motor vehicle owned or usecl by the assured,

including loading or unloading thereof. Having
held that the injuries to McCulloh arose during the

unloading process, the conclusion follows that un-
der the express language of the policy of the In-

demnity Company, it was exempt from liability.

The court properly sustained the demurrer of the

Indemnity Company."

It is now argued for the first time by appellee that

the claimed uncertainty of the extent of the coverage

was not known until the insurance policy was introduc-
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ed in evidence at the trial in the lower court. This is

asserted on the ground that appellee never had access

to the policy or a copy thereof, although she had en-

deavored to obtain the same from the appellant and

from the co-partners without success (p. 18 of Appel-

lee's Brief). The appellee does admit, however, that

the appellant furnished her with a copy of the daily

report, which is the company's record of the i3olicy

and its provisions. In this respect it is pertinent to

note that in the letter to counsel for api^ellee from the

appellant, accompanying the copy of the daily report

(R. 123), this statement is found: "The daily report

should contain all the information set forth on the pol-

icy." Furthermore counsel for appellee admitted at

the time of trial, and after examining the daily report

and comparing the same with the original policy, that

the daily report contained all of the policy provisions

and exclusions (R. 130). The appellant furnished

counsel for api^ellee with a copy of all of the informa-

tion in its file with respect to the policy. There is no

proof in the record that appellee ever sought by depo-

sition, or by a motion to produce, at any time before

the trial of the cases, to compel the production of the

insurance policy for examination. It now seems idle

for appellee to j^lead ignorance of the provisions of the

policy when in fact her counsel had all of the policy

information before these cases were instituted.

This same argument applies with reference to appel-
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lee's excuse for not pleading a cause for reformation

when the terms of the writing (insurance policy) were

unknown. The evidence conclusively establishes that

such was not the fact. -

We again respectfully submit that the judgment of

the trial court in the cases at bar should be reversed.

(^, ^. ^
Attorneys for Appellant, United

States Fidelity and Guaranty

'Company.
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UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND GUARANTY
COMPANY, a corporation,

Appellant,

vs.

ETHEL M. DOHENY, as Administratrix of the Estate
of Roberta Doheny, Deceased,

Appellee,

and

UNITED STATES FIDELITY AND GUARANTY
COMPANY, a corporation,

Appellant,
vs.

ETHEL M. DOHENY, as Administratrix of the Estate
of Marguerite Doheny, Deceased,

Appellee.

PETITION FOR REHEARING
Comes now the United States Fidelity and Guaranty

Company, appellant in the above entitled cause, and by

and through its attorneys undersigned, respectfully

moves the Court to vacate its decision in the above en-

titled case dated and filed November 17, 1941, and to

grant appellant a rehearing upon said cause upon the

following grounds and for the following reasons

:

I.

That the majority opinion predicates liability of the
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appellant under the contractor's public liability policy

upon the theory of equitable estoppel.

The complaint pleads and relies upon the contrac-

tor's public liability policy (Tr. p. 5, 6 and 29) and

expressly pleads the provisions of the policy (Tr. p. 6,

7 and 30) and pleads compliance with all the require-

ments and conditions precedent in the policy (Tr. p.

32).

The answer specifically and affirmatively pleads the

material exclusion in the policy (Tr. pp. 55, 56 and 59).

No reply was filed.

The decision of the appellate Court recognizes the

validity of the exclusion but holds it inoperative be-

cause of estoppel. The doctrine of estoppel appears

for the first time in the decision of the Court.

Rule 8(c) of the Rules of Civil Procedure for the

District Courts of the United States provides

:

^'AFFIRMATIVE DEFENSES. In pleading

to a preceding pleading, a party shall set forth

affirmatively . . . estoppel . . . and any other matter
constituting an avoidance or affirmative defense.

'

'

Rule 12(h) of the Rules of Civil Procedure for the

District Courts of the United States provides:

''WAIVER OF DEFENSES. A party waives
all defenses and objections which he does not

present either by motion as hereinbefore provided

or, if he has made no motion, in his answer or

reply, ..."
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Rule 15(b) of the Rules of Civil Procedure for the

District Courts of the United States provides

:

''AMENDMENTS TO CONFORM TO EVI-
DENCE. When issues not raised by the pleadings

are tried by express or implied consent of the

parties, they shall be treated in all respects as if

they had been raised in the pleadings. Such amend-
ment of the pleadings as may be necessary to cause
them to conform to the evidence and to raise

these issues may be made upon motion of any party
at any time, even after judgment; ..."

Appellant contends that the doctrine of equitable

estoppel is based upon these elements : (1) A case where

one, by his conduct has misled another, with (2) the

intention or expectation that the conduct will be acted

upon by the other party who (3) must in fact rely upon

the fact indicated. by such conduct, (4) to his disad-

vantage.

Rehearing should be granted because:

A. The plaintiffs in these actions did not plead or

rely on an estoppel and, having failed to do so, waived

the right to rely thereon, and that no proof of estoppel

was offered or made or any amendment made to the

pleadings, and defendant had no opportunity at any

time, at the trial or on appeal to defend against

estoppel.

B. In the majority opinion reference is made to the

fact that there was no showing that the policy written

by the appellant was a standard form in general use

or that policies written by concerns engaged in writing
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public liability insurance on behalf of contractors com-

monly contain exclusion clauses comparable with the

one in this case. Appellant respectfully contends that

such a showing could and would have been made if the

issue of estoppel had been raised by the pleadings or

proof, and because of the far-reaching effect of this

decision it is respectfully requested that a rehearing

be granted and that if appellee is entitled or permitted

to rely upon estoppel that the cause be remanded for

the taking of further evidence.

II.

That the decision of the Court abrogates freedom of

contract by holding that the appellant may not insert

exclusions in its contractor's public liability policy

issued by it to Coverdale & Johnson. That the Court's

holding in this respect further disregards the provi-

sions of section 8140 of the Revised Codes of Montana,

1935, which states:

"Where a peril is specially excepted in a con-

tract of insurance, a loss, which would not have
occurred but for such peril, is thereby excepted;

although the immediate cause of the loss was a
peril which was not excspted."

III.

That the decision in this case results in the modifica-

tion of a written contract by invocation of the doctrine

of estoppel in that the exclusions in the public liability

policy were held not to be applicable.

Appellant respectfully contends that while written



contracts may be held to be modified by existing

statutes, or by rules and regulations made by a public

board in pursuance of statutes authorizing such rules

and regulations, there is no such statute and there are

no such rules and regulations in Montana. Appellant

therefore respectfully contends that this decision has

the far-reaching effect of modifying written contract

by law without basic legislation requiring such modifi-

cation. A rehearing is respectfully requested so that this

matter may be presented to the Court.

IV.

The decision of the Court refers to the intent of the

State of Montana and particularly the intent of the

Highway Commission of the State of Montana in re-

quiring the contractors Coverdale & Johnson to carry

public liability insurance and the Court concludes and

assumes what form the State of Montana and the High-

way Commission of Montana intended the contractor's

public liability policy to follow.

That in assuming what was the intention of the State

of Montana and the Highway Commission of the State

of Montana as to the form of the policy and the terms

of the policy the decision disregards the evidence of

the witness Whipps, Secretary and Administrative

Engineer of the State Highway Commission of the

State of Montana, who stated, "The State Highway

Commission, since 1929, has never prepared or had

prepared a form of public liability insurance policy for
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use by contractors under such contracts and the Com-

mission has never prescribed the terms of the form of

such policies to be executed under such standard provi-

sion as paragraph 7.11 of the standard specifications."

(Tr. 115, 116)

V.

The decision in this case grants to any member of

the public the right to have a written contract judicial-

ly modified by invocation of the doctrine of estoppel,

and this, notwithstanding the fact that such individual

was not a party to the contract, and the decision further

grants such right, notwithstanding the fact that no plea

of estoppel was made in the pleadings and no oppor-

tunity given the appellant to defend against estoppel.

That the decision further grants such right notwith-

standing the fact that there is no statute and there are

no public rules or regulations upon which a member

of the general public might rely as a basis for modifica-

tion of the contract.

VI.

In view of the far-reaching effect of this decision

and in view of the fact that the decision in this case is

of the utmost importance to this appellant as well as

to the general public and to all companies or persons

engaged in the writing of surety bonds and contractor's

public liability jiolicies in the United States, and in

view of the fact that the decision in this case is without
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direct precedent in law, and because the decision itself

presents questions and issues which appear therein for

the first time in this case, and because of the grounds

and reasons hereinbefore set forth in the other para-

graphs in this motion, it is most respectfully requested

that a rehearing be granted herein.

Attorneys for the Appellant.



CERTIFICATE

We, Howard Toole and W. T. Boone, Attorneys regu-

larly admitted to practice in the United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, do hereby

certify that in our judgment the foreging Petition for

Rehearing in the consolidated cases of United States

Fidelity and Guaranty Company, a corporation, Ap-

pellant, vs. Ethel M. Doheny, as Administratrix of the

Estate of Roberta Doheny, Deceased, Appellee, and

United States Fidelity and Guaranty Company, a

corporation. Appellant, vs. Ethel M. Doheny, as Ad-

ministratrix of the Estate of Marguerite Doheny, De-

ceased, Appellee, No. 9668, is well founded in law and

in fact and that it is not interposed or presented for

the purpose of delay.

•

f

"

Dated this .(..... day

of December, 1941.



No. 9681

tHntteb States; 7

Circuit Court of Appeals

Jfor tfje iBtintft Circuit.

AMALGAMATED MEAT CUTTERS &
BUTCHER WORKMEN OF NORTH
AMERICA, LOCAL NO. 207,

Appellant,

vs.

WALTER P. SPRECKELS, individually, and as

Regional Director, 21st Region, of the National

Labor Relations Board,

Appellee.

tKransicript of l&ecortr

Upon Appeal from the District Court of the United

States for the Southern District of California,

Central Division ^'t^
m S miu: tij^:r^ UL^^-

1940

iPAUL P. O'BRrEN.

PARKER PRINTING COMPANY. S45 5ANSOME STREET. SAN FRANCISCO





^
No. 9681

^ntteti States;

Circuit Court of appeals

jfor tfje Minih Circuit.

AMALGAMATED MEAT CUTTERS &

BUTCHER WORKMEN OF NORTH
AMERICA, LOCAL NO. 207,

Appellant,

vs.

WALTER P. SPRECKELS, individually, and as

Regional Director, 21st Region, of the National

Labor Relations Board,

Appellee.

l^rauscript of Becorb

Upon Appeal from the District Court of the United

States for the Southern District of California,

Central Division

PARKER PRINTING COMPANY. 545 SANSOME STREET. SAN FRANCISCO





INDEX
[Clerk's INote: When deemed likely to be of an important nature,

errors or doiiblfiil matters appearing in the orijzinal certified record are
printed literally in italic: and. likewise, cancelled matter appearins in

the original certified record is printed and cancelled herein accordingly.
When possible, an omission from the text is indicated by printing ir;

italic tlie two words between which the omission seems to occur,]

Page

Appeal

:

Designation of Contents of Record on 66

Notice of 60

Statement of Points upon which Appellant

will rely on (Circuit Court of Appeals 65

Statement of Points upon which Appellant

will rely on (District Court) 61

Attorneys, Names and Addresses of 1

Bond on Appeal 46

Certificate of Clerk to Transcript of Record 64

Complaint _ 2

Exhibit A—^Agreement between Plaintiff

and employer 10

Decision 56

Decree (Judgment) 57

Designation of Contents of Record on Appeal 66

Motion to Dismiss Complaint , 21

Exhibit A—Decision of N.L.R.B 27

Exhibit B—Certification of Representa-

tives by N.L.R.B 46

Names and Addresses of Attorneys 1

Notice of Appeal 60



1] INDEX

Page

Notice of Motion to Dismiss Complaint 48

Order to Show Cause 18

Points & Authorities in Support of Motion to

Dismiss 49

Points & Authorities in Support of Order to

Show Cause 19

Statement of Points upon Avhich Appellant In-

tends to Rely on Appeal (Circuit Court of

Appeals) 65

Statement of Points upon which Appellant In-

tends to Rely on Appeal (District Court) 61



NAMES AND ADDRESSES OF ATTORNEYS

For Appellant:

W. I. GILBERT, Esq.,

939 Rowan Building,

Los Angeles, California

REDMOND S. BRENNAN, Esq.,

Dwight Building,

Kansas City, Missouri

For Appellee:

WILLIAM R. WALSH, Esq.,

Regional Attorney, 21st Region,

National Labor Relations Board,

808 U. S. Post Office & Court House,

Los Angeles, California. [1*]

*Page numbering appearing at foot of page of original certified

Transcript of Record.



2 AmalgamatedMeat Cutters, etc.

In the District Court of the United States, Southern

District of California, Central Division

No. I(y76-Y Civil

AMALGAMATED MEAT CUTTERS &
BUTCHER WORKMEN OF NORTH
AMERICA, LOCAL NO. 207,

Plaintiff,

vs.

WALTER P. SPRECKELS, individually, and as

Regional Director, 21st Region, of the National

Labor Relations Board,

Defendant.

COMPLAINT FOR INJUNCTION

Plaintiff, Amalgamated Meat Cutters & Butcher

Workmen of North America, Local 207, for cause

of action against the defendant, alleges

:

I.

That it is a duly organized and existing labor

organization affiliated with the American Federa-

tion of Labor.

11.

That the defendant, Walter P. Spreckels, is the

Regional Director for the 21st Region of the Na-

tional Labor Relations Board, and agent in charge

of its office in Los Angeles, California.

III.

That the matters complained of herein affect the

conduct and operation of Interstate Commerce.
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IV.

That on or about October 19, 1938, an election

was conducted under the direction and auspices of

the National Labor Relations Board, at which plain-

tiff was chosen as the exclusive bargaining agent

for the plant employees of Cudahy Packing Com-

pany plant at Los Angeles, California, most of

whom were then and now [2] are members of local

207. That plaintiff having been certified by said

Board did, on behalf of its members and of the

employees in said plant, negotiate a contract gov-

erning the hours, wages and working conditions of

said employees, which said contract is dated Novem-

ber 2, 1939, and by its terms made binding between

the parties mitil October 24, 1940. That a true copy

of said contract is annexed hereto, marked Exhibit

*'A" and hereby made a part hereof.

That ever since said November 2, 1939, said con-

tract has been and now is a valid and binding con-

tract.

V.

That immediately upon the signing and execution

of said contract between the parties thereto, the said

employer and the plaintiff and the employees of

said plant entered upon the performance of said

contract and said employer and said employees,

and the plaintiff did continue to operate mider and

perform in good faith the terms of said contract

until the operation thereof was wrongfully inter-

fered with by the defendant, Walter P. Spreckels,

purporting to act as agent of the National Labor
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Relations Board, more particularly as the Regional

Director of said Board for the 21st Region thereof.

YI.

That purporting to act as director of said Na-

tional Labor Relations Board for the 21st Region

thereof, but in truth and in fact acting by color

of office only, and beyond and in excess of his

authority as Regional Director of the said National

Labor Relations Board, the defendant himself, and

through his agents, did wrongfully intimidate and

cause said employer and numerous employees of

said plant vrho were and are members of plaintiff,

and embraced within said contract, from the per-

formance of said contract, and from complying with

the full obligations and enjoying the full benefits

thereof. That the said Walter P. Spreckels, and his

agents, notified the parties thereto in [3] substance

and effect that said contract was void, by publishing

notices of hearings to be held by agents purporting

to act as agent of the National Labor Relations

Board, and by giving of notices of an election

to be conducted by the said defendant for the al-

leged purpose of selecting a collective bargaining

agent for the employees under said contract, and

by authorizing and encouraging one Harry Bridges,

and others who claimed to be affiliated with the

labor organization known as the C I. 0., to declare

and proclaim to said employees that said contract

was void, and that the National T^abor Relations

Board and defendant Spreckels would select an ex-
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elusive bargaining agent to represent and bargain

for said employees.

YII.

That the acts of defendant complained of in the

foregoing paragraph were without justification or

excuse in law or in fact, and that such acts caused,

and were intended to defendant to cause, the plain-

tiff to suffer, as a direct result thereof, the loss

of a large number of its members and the loss of a

large sum of dues that accrued to plaintiff, and

caused plaintiff to expend large sums of money

in resisting said wrongful acts of the defendant;

and that said acts of defendant have further injured

the plaintiff by enabling benefits accruing under the

said contract to employees represented by the plain-

tiff.

VIII.

That subsequently, on March 14, 1940, at the be-

hest and upon the representation of the said defend-

ant, the National Labor Relations Board did con-

duct a hearing in said premises at Washington,

D. C, and that the defendant caused said board

to tal:e other steps in violation of the contract rights

of the plaintiff, by causing an order to be issued

that an election be held among the eligible plant

employees of said Cudahy Packing Company plant

at Los Angeles, California, who were then and there

legally [4] represented by the plaintiff, and that

the said Regional Director did, by various notices

and statements, notify said employees at said plant

in substance and effect that said plaintiff was not
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their legally constituted and acting exclusive collec-

tive bargaining agent, and that the said plaintiff

was not authorized to act as collective bargaining

agent for the said employees.

IX.

Plaintiff is informed and believes, and upon such

information and belief alleges, that subsequent to

the said purported election and certification that

the said C. I. O. is the exclusive bargaining agent,

the defendant and his agents advised and encour-

aged the said C. I. O. to negotiate a new and

different contract between the said Cudahy Packing

Company and itself for and on behalf of the em-

plo.yees of said plant. Plaintiff is informed and

believes, and upon such information and belief

alleges, that the defendant will continue by various

and similar acts to further interfere with the per-

formance of the contract now in force and effect

as above mentioned, and, that unless restrained by

this Honorable Court, will entirely vitiate all of

the contract rights accruing to said employees and

said plant operating under and by virtue of the

terms of the contract hereinabove mentioned, and

that the plaintiff, through said acts by the defend-

ant, has suffered loss of prestige and humiliation by

the said unwarranted and illegal acts of the defend-

ant, and will, unless defendant is restrained, con-

tinue to so suffer.

X.

That plaintiff has been put to the expense of

employing its agents and attorneys in resisting the
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said illegal acts and interference upon the part of

the defendant, and will, unless he be restrained, be

put to further and additional expense in the prem-

ises. [5]

XI.

That plaintiff has no plain, adequate and com-

plete remedy at law.

Wherefore, plaintiff prays that the defendant

be ordered to appear and show cause, if any he

has, why he shall not be enjoined and restrained,

pending the final determination of the above en-

titled action, from issuing, authorizing or |)ublish-

ing any statements interfering with, or tending to

interfere with, the full and complete performance

by the Cudahy Packing Company and Local 207,

Amalgamated Meat Cutters & Butcher Workmen
of North America, and the certain employees of

the CHidahy Packing plant at Los Angeles, Califor-

nia, covered and embraced within the contract of

employment dated November 2, 1939, between said

Cudahy Packing Company and said Local 207,

Amalgamated Meat Cutters & Butcher Workmen
of North America, and from holding any hearing or

election for the selection of collective bargaining

agent, or any certification or designation as collec-

tive bargaining agent for said employees, or from

taking any other or further steps, directly or in-

directly, or through their agents, servants or em-

ployees, tending to or having the effect of interfer-

ing with, obstructing, intimidating, coercing or in-

fluencing the said Cudahy Packing Company, or
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the said Local 207, Amalg-amated Meat Cutters &
Butcher Workmen of North America, or the said

employees of Cudahy Packing plant at Los Angeles,

California, embraced within the terms of said con-

tract dated November 2, 1939, from adhering to the

terms of said contract, or from the full perfor-

mance thereof ; and that pending the hearing on said

order to show cause the defendant be temporarily

enjoined and restrained from issuing, authorizing

or publishing any statements interfering with, or

tending to interfere with, the full and complete per-

formance by the Cudahy Packing Company and

Local 207, Amalgamated Meat Cutters & Butcher

workmen [6] of North America, and the certain

employees of the Cudahy Packing plant at Los An-

geles, California, covered and embraced wdthin the

contract of employment dated November 2, 1939,

between said Cudahy Packing Company and said

Local 207, Amalgamated Meat Cutters & Butcher

Workmen of North America, and from holding any

hearing or election for the selection of collective

bargaining agent, or any certification or designa-

tion as collective bargaining agent for said em-

ployees, or from taking any other or further steps,

direct or indirectly, or through their agents, ser-

vants or employees, tending to or having the effect

of interfering with, obstructing, intimidating, coerc-

ing or influencing the said Cudahy Packing Com-

pany, or the said Local 207, Amalgamated Meat Cut-

ters & Butcher Workmen of North America, or the

said employees of Cudahy Packing plant at Los
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Angeles, California, embraced within the terms of

the said contract dated November 2, 1939, from ad-

hering to the terms of said contract, or from the

full performance thereof; that plaintiff may have

such other and further relief as to the Court may
seem just, meet and equitable in the premises.

W. I. GILBERT,
939 Rowan Building,

Los Angeles, Calif.

REDMOND S. BRENNAN,
Dwight Building,

Kansas City, Mo.

By W. I. GILBERT,
Attorneys for Plaintiff.

State of California.

County of Los Angeles—ss.

William Wilson, being by me first duly sworn,

deposes and says:

That he is the secretary of Local 207, Amalga-

mated Meat Cutters & Butcher Workmen of North

America, the plaintiff in the above entitled action;

that he has read the foregoing complaint and knows

the contents thereof; and that the same is true of

his own knowledge, except as to the matters which

are therein stated upon his information or belief,

and as to those matters that he believes it to be

true.

WILLIAM WILSON.
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Subscribed and sworn to before me this 20th day

of July, 1940.

(Seal) LILLIAN RAY,
Notary Public in and for the County of Los Ange-

les, State of California. [7]

EXHIBIT "A"

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT BY AND
BETWEEN THE CUDAHY PACKING
COMPANY OF THE LOS ANGELES, CALI-

FORNIA PLANT, MEMBERS OF LOCAL
207 OF THE AMALGAMATED MEAT CUT-
TERS AND BUTCHER WORKMEN OF
NORTH AMERICA, AFFILIATED WITH
THE AMERICAN FEDERATION OF
LABOR.

Local 207 of the Amalgamated Meat Cutters and

Butcher Workmen of North America has the fol-

lowing officers: President, Vice-President, Record-

ing Secretary, Financial Secretary-Treasurer and a

Board of Trustees consisting of three Cudahy em-

ployees. The Grievance Committee consists of seven

Cudahy employees who are appointed by the Presi-

dent of the Local. Tliere are also Departmental

Stewards in each Department.

All officers and members of Local 207 must be

exclusively employees of the Cudahy Packing Com-

pany's Los Angeles Plant, with the exception of

the Financial Secretary-Treasurer, who is also the

Business Agent.

1. The Cudahy Packing Company, hereinafter

called the Company, does hereby recognize Local
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207 of the Amalgamated Meat Cutters and Butcher

Workmen of North America, affiliate of the Amer-

ican Federation of Labor, hereinafter called the

Union, as the Sole Collective Bargaining Agency

for the employees at the Los Angeles Plant, exclu-

sive of employees in a supervisory capacity, drivers,

time study men, watchmen, deputized officers and

employees on the office and salesmen's payrolls. This

exclusion shall apply to all employees referred or

covered by this agreement.

2. It is agreed eight consecutive hours shall be

the basic work day. All time worked over ten hours

in any one day or over forty-two hours in any

one week shall be paid at the rate of time and

one-half, but there shall be no duplication of over-

time. The matter of the use of Tolerance Weeks
may be finally opened for discussion and adjustment

in accordance with the final ruling of the Admin-

istrator of the Fair Labop Standards Act of 1938.

In any event. Tolerance Weeks shall not exceed

fifty-three (53) hours in any one week and ten (10)

hours in any one day.

3. In order to assure to the respective parties the

benefits intended to be derived by the Company and

the employees from this agreement, the Company
agrees to retain in its employ none other than mem-
bers of Local 207 of the Amalgamated Meat Cut-

ters and Butcher Workmen of North America. Said

members must be in good standing in said Local

at all times. New employees shall become members

of said Local 207, of the A.M.C. & B.W. of N.A.
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within fifteen days after employment by the Com-

pany and remain in good standing at all times.

4. Employees shall not be required to work more

than j&ve hours without time off for lunch, except

in cases of mechanical breakdo\\^is and continuous

operation of five and one-half (Si/o) hours on kill

out or cut outs. Chain operations and conveyors

shall not be required to work more than two and

one-half (2%) hours w^ithout a ten minute relief

period.

5. Two hour pay is the minimum pay any em-

ployee shall receive for responding to any call for

duty by the employer. All mechanics when called

to work shall receive not less than three (3) hours

pay.

6. All employees other than shift men and those

engaged in continuous operations working on New
Year's Bay, Decoration Day, Independence Day,

Labor Day, Thanksgiving Day, Christmas Day,

Armistice Day or Sunday, shall be compensated at

a double time rate, except employees v/ho work

nights and whose work week begins KSimday and

ends Saturday shall not <ne so compensated. [8]

7. Wages paid shall be at least comparable with

established rate<^ paid for similar work in compar-

able packing houses in Los Angeles County. In any

contemplated change in basic rates of pay, a ten day

written notice shall be given by the one party to

the other for the purpose of negotiating the change

or changes.

8. All regular employees shall receive a guaran-

teed time of thirty-two hours per week, provided
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lay-offs may take place up to and including the

third workday of the work week, in which case, said

guarantee shall not be effective for those employees

laid off. It is also agreed that, when there is work

to be performed after the third day in a depart-

ment, regular employees of that department must

be called for duty.

9. All employees who have completed two years

of continuous service shall be entitled to one week's

vacation with pay and those who have completed

five yenrs continuous service shall be entitled to two

weeks' vacation with pay. The amount to be paid

employees during vacaton periods shall be based

on their weekly average hours worked during the

four weeks immediately preceding their vacations

(such hours not to. exceed 40 nor be less than 32)

at their basic day work rate of pay. Where an em-

ployee works on more than one job during the

four weeks mentioned, for which different rates are

paid, the amount of payment will be figured accord-

ing to the method now used by the Company. Power

Department Shift men and empoyees engaged in

wholesale distribution, whose basic work-week is

42 hours, will be paid on the basis of the hours

w^orked during the four weeks' period prior to vaca-

tions, such hours not to exceed 42 nor be less

than 32.

10. After six months continuous service with the

Company, seniority shall prevail for all employees

below the grade of assistant foreman. In any re-

duction of the niunber of employees, and in rehir-

ing seniority rights shall govern. In any lay-offs
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tbo voTingest employees in point of service shall be

the first to be laid off, and in re-hiring, the one last

laid off shall be the first to be re-hired. In case

of all lay-offs and re-employment seniority as to

department shall prevail and em|)lo3r[nent shall be

given to all miemployed members of Local 207 in

preference to new help in any department. In all

Departmental changes involving jobs with a higher

rate of pay, consideration shall be given to em-

ployees of that department holding seniority.

Senority rights of employees shall not be ^^ffected

by temporary lay-offs not exceeding a period of

sixty (60) days. During such time, and employee

will be subject to re-call when required for service

and failing to report wdthin 24 hours after reason-

able notice has been given that the Company de-

sires his service after which he will be considered

as having terminated his service with the Company.

In case of absence from work duo to accident or

illness, seniority rights shall not bo lost if the ab-

sent employee member of the Union notifies the

Company within 48 hours and thereafter at inter-

vals of 10 days and after recovery from said acci-

dent or illness, shall furnish a doctor's certificate

to the effect that such absence was necessary pro-

vided, however, that if no doctor attended the ab-

sent employee member, such employee member of

the Union shall have the right to furnish other

suitable proof that such absence was necessary.

11. Employees attending Union Conventions or

other similar meetings u})on giving reasonable no-
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tice to the management, shall be permitted to ab-

sent themselves for a reasonable length of time and

without pay as long as such absence from the plant

does not unduly interfere with the operation of the

plant. [9]

12. In the event of any dispute arising relative

to any of the provisions of this agreement, the mat-

ter shall be arbitrated as follows: The Company,

or Employer, shall choose two persons, the Union

shall choose two persons, and these four shall choose

a fifth person and all five shall act as a Board of

Arbitration. The Board of Arbitration shall make

its decision within fifteen days. The decision of the

Board of Arbitration shall be final and shall be

accepted as such by both the Company and the

Union; however, if -either party feels that such de-

cision is not justified, they shall be allowed the

privilege of an appeal within fifteen days to any

authorized agency or court of competent jurisdic-

tion they desire.

13. It is agreed that either party will have the

right to serve the other party with a ten day writ-

ten notice that negotiations are desired to open the

question of conditions enumerated in this agree-

ment. When such changes are desired by either

party, conferences upon same will be held at the

office of the Company in Los Angeles, unless other-

wise mutually agreed.

14. Should differences arise between the Com]^ariY

and the Union or its members employed by the
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Company, as to the meaning or application of the

provisions of this agreement, or should trouble of

any kind arise in the plant, there shall be no cessa-

tion or suspension of work on account of such differ-

ences, but the same shall be settled as provided in

this agreement.

15. This agreement shall be in full force and

be binding upon both parties imtil October 24th,

1940. This agreement shall automatically renew

itself from year to year unless terminated by a 30

day notice in writing by either party,

Api^roved

:

THE AMALGAMATED MEAT CUTTERS
AND BUTCHER WORKMEN OF N. A.

AFFILIATE OF THE AMERICAN FED-
ERATION OF LABOR.

(Seal) Signed T. J. LLOYD,
Int. Vice President.

LOCAL UNION #207, OF THE AMALGA-
MATEDMEAT CUTTERSANDBUTCHER
WORKMEN OF N. A. AFFILIATE OF
THE AMERICAN FEDERATION OF
LABOR.

Signed JOHN CARROLL,
President.

DAVE STRATTON,
Secretary-Treasurer. [10]



vs. Walter P. Spreckels 17

The Ciidahy Packing Company
803-811 Macy Street

Box 280 Arcade Station

Los Angeles, California.

November 2, 1939.

Mr. John Carroll, President

Local 207, Amalgamated Meat Cutters

& Butcher Workmen of North America,

Affiliate of the American Federation

of Labor.

Dear Sir:

Receipt is acknowledged of your Memorandum of

Agreement dated October 24, 1939.

It shall be the policy of this Company to operate

in accordance with the provisions set forth in said

agreement, provided; however, that no conditions

in Paragraph 3 or elsewhere in the agreement, shall

require this Company to take any action which its

counsel may advise is contrary to the provisions of

the Wagner Act or any State or Federal law; and

the the further provision that the Company shall

not be required to compensate Grievance Commit-
tee Members or other Union Officials who are em-

ployees, for more than three hours in any one week,

for time spent on grievances or other Union mat-

ters, during regular working hours.

Yours very truly,

THE CUDAHY PACKING
COMPANY

C. A. ROBERTS
CAR:SM General Manager.

[Endorsed]: Complaint. Filed Jul. 22, 1940.

[11]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE AND TEMPORARY
RESTRAINING ORDER

Upon reading and tiling' the verified complaint

herein, and good cause appearing therefor,

It is ordered, that the defendant be and appear

before the above entitled court in the Court Room
of the Honorable Leon R. Yankwich, in the United

States Post Office Building, in the City of Los

Angeles, County of Los Angeles, State of Califor-

nia, on the 30th day of July, 1940, at the hour of

30 o'clock A. M., or as soon thereafter as coun-

sel may be heard, to show cause, if any he has, why
he should not be enjoined and restrained, pending

the final determination of the above entitled action,

from issuing, authorizing or publishing any state-

ments interfering with, or tending to interfere with,

the full and complete performance by the Cudahy

Packing Company and Local 207, Amalgamated

Meat Cutters & Butcher Workmen of North Amer-

ica, and the certain employees of the (hidahy Pack-

ing plant at Los Angeles, California, covered and

embraced within the contract of employment dated

November 2, 1939, between said Cudahy Packing

Company and said Local 207, Amalgamated Meat

Cutters & Butcher Workmen of North America,

and from holding any hearing or election for the

selection of collective bargaining agent, or any cer-

tification or designation as collective bargaining

[12] agent for said employees, or from taking

any other or further steps, direct or indirectly.
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or through his agents, servants or employees, tend-

ing to or having the effect of interfering with, ob-

structing, intimidating, coercing or influencing the

said Cudahy Packing Company, or the said Local

207, Amalgamated Meat Cutters & Butcher Work-

men of North America, or the said employees of

Cudahy Packing plant at Los Angeles, California,

embraced within the terms of the said contract

dated November 2, 1939, from adhering to the

terms of said contract, or from the full perform-

ance thereof.

It is further ordered, that a copy of the forego-

ing [13] order to show cause shall be served upon

the defendant at least 5 days prior to the said hear-

ing.

Dated at Los Angeles, California, this 22nd day

of July, 1940.

LEON R. YANKWICH,
Judge of the District Court of the United States,

Southern District of California, Central Di-

vision.

POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

Courts will interfere for the purpose of protect-

ing property rights of members of imincorporated

associations, in all proper cases, and when they

take jurisdiction, will follow and enforce, so far as

applicable, the rules applying to incorporated

bodies of the same character.

Otto V. Journeymen Tailors' Protective and

Benevolent Union, 75 Cal. 308.
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The holder of a personal right of membership is

protected against any unauthorized act or proceed-

ing on the part of his fellow members, either as in-

dividuals, or in their official or collective capacity,

by vrhich his enjo}Tiient of such right will be im-

paired or destroyed. Wlienever it is sought to de-

prive him of his membership, he has the right to

insist upon a strict observance of the proceedings

therefor prescribed in its constitution or articles of

association, and such by-laws or rules of conduct

as have been adopted mider its provisions.

Dingwall v. Amalgamated Association of

Street Railway Employees, 4 C. A. 565;

Lawson v. Hewell, 118 Cal. 613. [14]

When the fact of membership has once been es-

tablished, the court wdll, where proper rights are

involved, restrain the violation of the rules cover-

ing voluntary associations at the behest of anyone

who has suffered injury by such violations.

Greenwood v. Building Trades Council, 71 C.

A. 159.

An unincorporated labor union may sue and be

sued without naming its members in the Federal

Court.

United Mine Workers of America v. Coro-

nado Coal Co., 250 U. S. 344.

[Endorsed] : Filed Jul. 22, 1940. [15]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

MOTION TO DISMISS COMPLAINT

Now comes the defendant Walter P. Spreckels,

individually and as ''Regional Director, 21st

Region" and moves the court to dismiss the Bill

of Complaint herein, and, as reasons therefor, as-

signs the following:

1. It appears on the face of the complaint that

this is an action to enjoin defendant Walter P.

Spreckels, a subordinate local agent of the National

Labor Relations Board, to-wit, Regional Director

of the 21st Region, from the performance of any

acts in connection with a proceeding arising under

an Act of Congress, the National Labor Relations

Act (49 Stat. 449; 29 U. S. C. A., Sec. 151 et seq.),

said proceeding being entitled before the Board,

"In the matter of Cudahy Packing Company and

Packing Llouse Workres Organizing Committee,

C. I. O.", being the Board's Case No. 1718. Said

proceeding, in which plaintiff herein appeared and

was represented by counsel, was one for the inves-

tigation and certification of representatives pursu-

ant to Section 9 (c) of said Act, in the course of

which proceeding, a Decision and Direction of Elec-

tion was issued by said Board from Washington,

D. C, for the purpose of determining whether the

employees of Cudahy Packing [16] Company in

the imit therein involved, desired to be represented

for the purposes of collective bargaining by Amal-

gamated Meat Cutters and Butcher Workmen of
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North America, A. F. L. Local No. 207, plaintiff

herein, or by another labor orj^anization called

United Packing House Workers of America, Local

No. 107, C. I. O. A copy of said Decision and

Direction of Election is hereto annexed and marked

"Appendix A". Pursuant to said Direction of

Election, an election was duly held and a coimt of

the ballots showing that a majority of the votes cast

being in favor of the United Packing House Work-

ers of America, Local No. 107, C. I. O., the Board,

pursuant to the powers vested in it under Section

9(c) of said Act, did on June 6th, 1940, issue from

Washington, D. C, its formal Certification of Rep-

resentatives, copy of which is hereto annexed,

marked ''Appendix B", certifying the said United

Packing House Workers of America, Local ]07,

as the representative for purposes of collective bar-

gaining of the employees in the imit in question.

With the issuance of said formal Certification of

Representatives, the proceeding before the Board

was and is at an end, the investigation completed

and there is nothing further which is to be done or

can be done by the Board or Walter P. Spreckels,

as Regional Director, or individually in said pro-

ceeding.

2. Said proceeding is one arising imder the Na-

tional Labor Relations Act, the procedure therein

provided for is exclusive, and the United States

District Court has no jurisdiction over the subject

matter thereof and is without jurisdiction to en-

join the Board or its agents in the performance of
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the functions vested in the Board under the Na-

tional Labor Relations Act.

3. The complaint on its face shows that plain-

tiff is not threatened with or in danger of suffering

any great irreparable or immediate injury entitling

it to injunctive relief.

4. The remedies for any of the matters set forth

in the complaint can only be sought under the pro-

cedure provided [17] for in the National Labor

Relations Act, which provides for a full, adequate

and complete remedy for the matters complained

of. That plaintiff has failed to exhaust said ad-

ministrative remedies under the Act.

5. This defendant Walter P. Spreckels is but

a subordinate of the National Labor Relations

Board, to-wit, the Regional Director of the 21st

Region with limited powers. With the holding of

the election and the rendition to the Board on May

17, 1940, of his report of the results of the election,

as recited in the Board's certification hereto an-

nexed as Appendix B, this defendant Walter P.

Spreckels completely discharged all of his official

duties in said proceeding, and this defendant

Spreckels has no further duties, powers, or func-

tions in comiection with said proceeding. There is,

therefore, nothing which this defendant Spreckels

can possibly do in connection with said proceeding

and there is nothing to enjoin with respect to him.

6. The Board having issued its certification, the

proceeding is completed and there is nothing to en-

join with respect to the Board or this defendant.
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If the Board had any further functions to perform,

only the Board and not this defendant, as a subor-

dinate agent could perform them. It therefore ap-

pears on the face of the bill that the matters here

sought to be enjoined are those which only the

Board and not this defendant can perform. This

Court has no jurisdiction over the National Labor

Relations Board, because the Board is an admin-

istrative agency constituting a part of the execu-

tive branch of the United States Government, which

cannot be sued except by special act of the Con-

gress of the United States. No such act has been

passed. The bill must therefore be dismissed for

lack of jurisdiction over an indispensable party.

7. The certification of the Board does not entail

any compulsory process which the Board can in-

A'Oke. It is [18] not a command or an order but a

mere certification of fact. Should it be disregarded

by the Cudahy Packing Company, the Borad could

take no steps whatever until a charge should first

be filed with it under Section 10 (b) of the Act

against Cudahy Packing Company. Even there-

after the Board woidd have no compulsory powers.

All it could do would be to issue a complaint under

Section 10 (b) of the Act charging the Cudahy

Packing Company with the commission of imfair

labor practices and notice the same for hearing.

At such hearing, the plaintiff would have the right

to intervene and raise the various matters which

it seeks to raise here. Thereafter the Board may
issue its decision pursuant to Section 10 (c) of the
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Act, and, if it finds Cudahy Packing Company
guilty of unfair labor practices, may order it to

cease and desist from such practices, and, if one

of the imfair labor practices is refusal to bargain

with the labor organization certified, may direct it

to bargain with such labor organization, the Board

would have no power to compel obedience to its

order, if issued. To compel obedience to its order,

the Board would be obliged to petition to the United

States Circuit Court of Appeals pursuant to Sec-

tion 10 (e) of the Act for the enforcement of its

order. The plaintiff would have the right either to

intervene in said proceeding or to file under Sec-

tion 10 (f) of the Act a petition to the said Cir-

cuit Court of Appeals under Section 10 (f) of the

Act to review and set aside the order of the Board.

On the Board's petition to enforce or the plaintiff's

petition to review, the validity of the certification of

representatives would be put in issue under Section

9 (d) of the Act, which provides as follows:

Whenever an order of the Board made pur-

suant to Section 10 (c) is based in whole or

in part upon facts certified following an in-

vestigation pursuant to subsection (c) of this

section, and there- is a petition for the enforce-

ment or review of such order, such certifica-

tion and the record of such investigation shall

be included in the transcript of the entire rec-

ord required to be filed imder subsections 10 (e)

or 10 (f), and thereupon the decree of the

court enforcing, modifying, or setting aside in
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whole or [19] in part the order of the Board

shall be made and entered upon the pleadings,

testimony, and proceedings set forth in such

transcript.

The plaintiff under the procedure of the National

Labor Relations Act therefore has a full, adequate

and complete remedy for any of the matters com-

plained of in the complaint.

2. Defendant KSpreckels further moves that this

Bill of Complaint })e dismissed for the reason that

the cause herein is res adjudicata. On July 1, 1940,

plaintiff herein filed a Bill of Complaint in this

Court entitled "Amalgamated Meat Cutters &

Butcher Workmen of North America, Local No.

207, V. National Labor Relations Board and Walter

P. Spreckels, Regional Director, 21st Region", No.

1052-H Civil. Upon consideration of the verified

Bill of Complaint, motions to dismiss on behalf of

defendant Spreckels and motion to quash summons

on behalf of the National Labor Relations Board,

Honorable Ben Harrison, Judge, United States Dis-

trict Court, Southern District of California, entered

a decree on July 15, 1940, dismissing the bill, quash-

ing the summons and dissolving the temporary re-

straining order theretofore issued. Save and ex-

cept for the inclusion of the National Labor Rela-

tions Board as a party and the bringing of the bill

against Walter P. Spreckels both in his official

and individual capacities, the two bills are identical,

the entire subject matter of the litigation is the
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same, the object to be accomplished by the bill in

that case is the same as the object sought to be ac-

complished by the bill in the present case.

Wherefore defendant Walter P. Spreckels, indi-

vidually and as ''Regional Director, 21st Region"

respectfully prays for an order dismissing the com-

plaint herein.

WM. R. WALSH,
Regional Attorney 21st Region, appearing for de-

fendant Walter P. Spreckels, Regional Direc-

tor, 21st Region, 808 U. S. Post Oface & Court

House, Los Angeles, California.

[Endorsed] : Filed Jul. 29, 1940. [20]

EXHIBIT "A"

United States of America

Before the National Labor Relations Board

In the Matter of

CUDAHY PACKING COMPANY and PACK-
ING HOUSE WORKERS ORGANIZING
COMMITTEE, C. I. O.

Case No. R-1718.

Decided April 17, 1940

Meat Packing Industry—Investigation of Repre-

sentatives: controversy concerning representation

of employees: rival unions; second closed-shop con-

tract entered into between rival union victorious in
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a consent election held the year hefore and the

Company, where petition filed prior to making of

second contract, petitioner notified Company of

majority claim, and at hearing made showing suf-

ficient to rebut showing of majority by contracting

union at time of execution of second contract, no

bar to—Labor Organization : on an issue raised, pe-

titioner is found to be a labor organization on the

basis of the testimony—Unit Appropriate for Col-

lective Bargaining: all employees of the Company
on the plant payroll at its Los Angeles plant in-

cluding receiving clerks, departmental clerks, route

clerks, shipping clerks, scalers, and checkers, but

excluding supervisory employees, subforemen, de-

partment superintendents, timekeepers, time-study

men, deputized officers, all other watchmen wherever

located, drivers, the hide take-up gang, Kern County

employees, and all employees on the office pay roll

—Election Ordered.

Mr. Alba M. Martin and Mr. M. A. Prowell, for

the Board.

Howlett and Maclaren, by Mr. Elmer H. How-
lett and Mr. Towson Maclaren, of Los Angeles,

Calif., for the Company.

Gallagher, Wirin, and Johnson, by Mr. Grover

Johnson, of Los Angeles, Calif., and Mr. A. J.

Shippey, of Los Angeles, Calif., for the P. W.
O. C.

Mr. Joseph Padway and Mr, Herbert Thatcher,

of Washington, B. C; Mr. T. J. Lloyd, of Salt

Lake City, Utah; Mr. J. F. Voorhees and Mr. John
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Carroll, of Los Angeles, Calif., for the Amalga-

mated.

Mrs. Augusta Spaulding, of counsel to the Board.

DECISION
and

DIRECTION OF ELECTION

Statement of the Case

On October 17, 1939, Packing House Workers

Organizing Committee, C. I. O., herein called the

P. W. O. C, filed with the Regional Director for

the Twenty-first Region (Los Angeles, California)

a petition alleging that a question affecting com-

merce had arisen concerning representation of em-

ployees of Cudahy Packing Company, [21] Los

Angeles, California, 'herein called the Company, and

requesting an investigation and certification of rep-

resentatives pursuant to Section 9 (c) of the Na-

tional Labor Relations Act, 49 Stat. 449, herein

called the Act.

On December 22, 1939, the National Labor Rela-

tions Board, herein called the Board, actmg pur-

suant to Section 9 (c) of the Act and Article III,

Section 3, of National Labor Relations Board Rules

and Regulations—Series 2, ordered an investigation

and authorized the Regional Director to conduct it

and to provide for an appropriate hearing on due

notice.

On January 10, 1940, the Regional Director issued

a notice of hearing, copies of which were duly served

upon the Company, the P. W. O. C, and upon

Amalgamated Meat Cutters and Butcher Workmen
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of North x\merica, A. F. of L., Local No. 207, herein

called the Amalgamated, a labor organization claim-

ing to represent employees directly affected by the

investigation.^ On motion of the Company for a

continuance the Regional Director issued an

amended notice of hearing on January 16, 1940,

copies of which were duly served on the same ])ar-

ties. Pursuant to the notice, a hearing was held

on January 25, 26, 29, 30, and 31, 1940, and Feb-

ruary 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, and 12, 1940, at Los Angeles,

California, before Earl S. Bellman, the Trial Ex-

aminer duly designated by the Board. The Board

and the Company were represented by counsel, the

P. W. O. C, and the Amalgamated by counsel and

union officials, and all participated in the hearing.

Full opportunity to be heard, to examine and cross-

examine witnesses, and to introduce evidence bear-

ing on the issues was afforded all parties.

At the commencement of the hearing the Com-

pany moved to dismiss the proceedings on the

groimd that a contract entered into on November

2, 1939, between the Amalgamated and the (Com-

pany was a bar to the present proceeding. The

Trial Examiner did not rule on this motion. For

the reasons set forth in Section III below, the

motion is hereby denied. The P. W. O. C. moved

that the Board take judicial notice that the P. W.

^Service of notice of hearing was also made upon

Central Labor Council and Los Angeles Industrial

Union Council. Neither of the organizations ap-

peared at the hearing.
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O. C. is a labor organization. Since the record

establishes this fact, it is unnecessary to rule on

this motion. During the course of the hearing the

Trial Examiner made several rulings on other mo-

tions, objections to the admission of evidence, and

the form of questions. The Board has reviewed the

rulings of the Trial Examiner and finds that no

prejudicial errors were committed. The rulings are

hereby affirmed.

On March 14, 1940, pursuant to notice duly served

on all parties, a hearing was held before the Board

at Washington, D. C, for the [22] purposes of oral

argument. The Amalgamated appeared and pre-

sented its argument. The Company and the P. W.
0. C. did not appear. The Amalgamated and the

P. W. O. C. filed briefs which the Board has con-

sidered.

Upon the entire record in the case, the Board

makes the following:

Findings of Fact

1. The Business of the Company
Cudahy Packing Company was incorporated in

Maine in 1915. It is chiefly engaged in the pur-

chase and slaughter of livestock and the processing

and marketing of the products therefrom. Through

its own operations and the operations of a number

of subsidiaries whose stock it owtis in whole or in

part, it is engaged in the business of refining vege-

table oils, manufacturing soap and other cleansing

materials, pulling, scouring, combing wool, and
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mining, producing, and distributing salt. It owns,

maintains, and operates approximately 1500 refrig-

erator and 44 tank cars for the transportation of

its products.

The respondent maintains slaughtering and meat-

packing plants in Omaha, Nebraska; Kansas City,

Kansas; Sioux City, Iowa; Los Angeles, Califor-

nia; Wichita, Kansas; North Salt Lake, LTtah;

Jersey City, New Jersey; Newport, Minnesota; San

Diego, California; Denver, Colorado, and Albany,

Georgia. It owns and operates soap and Old Dutch

Cleanser factories at East Chicago, Indiana, and

Toronto, Ontario, Canada; maintains shops for the

construction and repair of refrigerator cars at East

Chicago, Illinois; maintains a shop for refining

vegetable oils near Memphis, Tennessee; operates

a wool scouring, combing, and storage plant at

Providence, Rhode Island; and owns and operates

a salt mine and refinery at Lyons, Kansas. The re-

spondent maintains 80 branch produce collecting

and processing plants scattered throughout the

United States.

The Company's meat packing plant at Los An-

geles, California, is the only plant involved in this

proceeding. For this plant more than 146 million

pounds of livestock were purchased in 1939, about

40 per cent of which came from States other than

California. From this livestock over 126 million

pounds of meat products and other products were

processed or manufactured, about 10 per cent of

which was shipped to destinations outside Califor-
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nia by rail, steamship, or other common carrier.

About 8 million pounds of Old Dutch Cleanser were

manufactured at this plant during 1939, about 20

per cent of which was shipped to other States, Ha-

waiian Islands, Philippine Islands, and the Orient.

[23]

II. The Organizations Involved

Packing House Workers Organizing Committee

is a national labor organization affiliated with the

Congress of Industrial Organizations. It organizes

packing-house workers and charters local unions

whose membership is comprised of such workers.

It acts as bargaining agent for packing-house em-

ployees and such local unions.

United Packing House Workers of America,

Local No. 107, is a- labor organization chartered by

Packing House Workers Organizing Committee,

and through it affiliated with the Congress of Indus-

trial Organizations. It admits to membership all

employees of the Company's plant at Los Angeles,

California, excluding persons with the power to

hire and discharge, recommend hiring and discharg-

ing, and those coming imder the jurisdiction of

other C. I. O. unions.

Amalgamated Meat Cutters and Butcher Work-
men of North America, A. F. of L., Local No. 207,

is a labor organization affiliated with the American

Federation of Labor. It admits to membership em-

ployees of the Company's plant at Los Angeles,

California, excluding clerical and supervisory em-

ployees, watchmen, and deputized watchmen.
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III. The Question Concerning Representation

On October 19, 1938, a consent election was con-

ducted under the auspices of the Board's Regional

Office among the Company's employees to deter-

mine whether they desired to be represented by the

Amalgamated or by a then existing local of the P.

W. O. C. for the purposes of collective bargaining

or by neither. The Amalgamated received a ma-

jority of the votes cast.^

On November 18, 1938, the Company and the

Amalgamated exchanged certain documents which

are alleged to have constituted a contract.^ We
assume, without deciding, that these documents con-

stituted a contract and shall refer to them as such

hereinaftei'. By its terms this contract was to ex-

pire on October 24, 1939. It also contains a closed-

ship provision. The Company consistently refused

to enforce this provision, although often urged to

do so by officers of the Amalgamated, allegedly be-

cause it doubted the validity of such a provision

under California law.^ While the Company's po-

^Out of 685 ballots counted in the election the

Amalgamated received 367 votes and the P. W. O.

C. local received 291.

^These documents are similar in form and gen-

eral content to documents exchanged on November
2, 1939, which are discussed below.

^There was testimony that cases are pending in

California courts testing the validity of a closed-

shop contract under Section 821 and 823 of the

Labor Code of California.
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sition that it would not enforce the closed-shop

provision was clear to the officers of the Amalga-

mated, the generality of employees believed that

membership in the Amalgamated was a condition of

employment. In [24] January 1939 the P. W. 0.

C. revoked the charter of its local, under the belief

that the Company was enforcing the closed-shop

provision of the contract between the Company and

the Amalgamated.

In August 1939 the P. W. O. C. began a new

drive to organize the employees of the Company.

In October the Amalgamated started negotiations

with the Company looking toward a new contract,

in view of the approaching expiration of the exist-

ing contract on October 24, 1939. On October 16,

1939, the District Director of the P. W. O. C, ac-

companied by a national officer of that union, had

an interview with the Company's plant manager

and superintendent. At that meeting the P. W. O.

C. representatives asked whether the P. W. O. C.

would receive any consideration from the Company
before any new contract with the Amalgamated was

signed. They stated that the P. W. O. C. did not

then claim to represent a majority of the employees

but that it had a substantial membership and ex-

pected to have a majority in the near future and

hoped to get in touch with the Company again be-

fore any new contract was signed. The plant man-

ager replied that "formal proceedings" were not

necessary to secure an audience with representatives

of the Company and that the Company was *' merely

trying to run the plant in best way we knew pos-
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sible and likewise keep within the law of the land

so far as possible." The next day, October 17, the

P. W. O. C. tiled with the Regional Director its pe-

tition in the present proceeding.

On October 20, 1939, there was a conference be-

tween a Field Examiner of the Board and two na-

tional representatives of the Amalgamated, at which

the Field Examiner notified them that the P. W.

O. C. had filed a petition on October 17. On the

same day, October 20, the Field Examiner wrote T.

J. Lloyd, one of the Amalgamated representatives,

that from their conference he understood that the

Amalgamated w^ould not consent ''to any type of

informal procedure; i. e.. Consent election or Cross-

check" in order to adjust the matter. On the same

day the Field Examiner also had a conference with

representatives of the Company, informing them of

the petition filed by the P. W. O. C. on October 17.

On or about October 24, 1939, the final draft of

an unsigned memorandum approved by the mem-

bers of the Amalgamated was presented to repre-

sentatives of the Company. The bargaining com-

mittee of the Amalgamated was accompanied by

counsel and by T^loyd, International vice president.

Some of the provisions of the contract were dis-

cussed. The Company asked no questions concern-

ing the majority of the Amalgamated, but a state-

ment was made by one member of the bargaining

committee of the Amalgamated, and verified by the

other members and Lloyd, that the Amalgamated

members composed a majority of the employees con-

cerned. No proof of this statement was offered or



vs. Walter P. Spreckels 37

requested. No final action was taken at this meet-

ing. [25]

On October 30, 1939, the Director of the P. W.
O. C. sent a registered special delivery letter to the

Company, stating that its membership now included

a majority of maintenance and production em-

ployees at the Company's plant and that these mem-
bers were concerned over rumors of a reported re-

newal of the contract between the Amalgamated

and the Company. The letter closed with a request

for a conference within 5 days. This letter was

duly received by the Company. No reply of any

kind was received by the P. W. O. C.

On November 2, 1939, the Company and the

Amalgamated signed papers w^hich they allege con-

stitute a legally binding contract and a bar to this

proceeding. The P. W. O. C. contends it is not a

legally binding contract. The alleged contract con-

sists of two vrritings. The first writing, signed by

the Amalgamated, is an undated three-page memo-
randum which was previously discussed with the

Company. It sets forth specific provisions appro-

priate to a bargaining contract, and contains a pro-

vision requiring membership in the Amalgamated
as a condition of employment. By its terms it is

to be in effect until October 24, 1940,^ subject to

^The expiration date—originally November 2,

1940—was changed to October 24, 1940, because of

anticipated pertinent changes in Wage and Hour
regulations. For the same reason the contract of

November 18, 1938, was drawn to terminate October

24, 1939.
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automatic renewal from year to year miless termi-

nated by a 30-day written notice by either party.

The second writing dated November 2, 1939, is a

letter to the Amalgamated signed by the Company.

It acknowledges receipt of a memorandum dated

October 24, 1939, and states '4t shall be the policy

of the Company" to operate under its provisions

unless coimsel advises otherwise, with specific refer-

ence to the closed-shop provision—Section 3 of the

memorandum. There was added a stipulation not

found in the memorandum. There is nothing in the

minutes of the Amalgamated to indicate that the

letter was ever read to the members.

On November 20, 1939, the Director and an of-

ficial of the P. W. O. C. called on the Company to

learn whether a contract had been signed with the

Amalgamated. They were told that whatever steps

the Compan}' had taken had been with the advice

of counsel. On December 20, 1939, the P. W. O.

C. formally grouped the employees organized by

it into a local called Local No. 107, United Packing

House Workers of America, which it chartered.

Assuming, without deciding, that the documents

exchanged between the Company and the Amalga-

mated on November 2, 1939, constitute a contract,

we find that it is not a bar to a determination of

representatives at the present time. This contract,

which purports to require membership in the Amal-

gamated as a condition of emplojrment, was entered

into after the P. W. O. C. had filed its petition,

after both the Company and the Amalgamated had
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been informed of the filing of the petition and that

the P. W. O. C. claimed to represent a majority [26]

of the Company's employees, and at a time when the

P. W. O. C, as we find below in Section VI, had

obtained over 300 authorization cards purportedly

signed by employees of the Company, a niunber

sufficient to rebut, as we find in Section VI below,

the Amalgamated 's showing of majority representa-

tion at the time the contract was executed and any

presumption of continuing majority representation

arising by virtue of the Amalgamated 's victory in

the consent election of October 1938.®

IV. The Effect of the Question Concerning Rep-

resentation Upon Commerce.

We find that tha question concerning represen-

tation which has arisen, occurring in connection

with the operations of the Company, Section I

above, has a close, intimate, and substantial rela-

®See Matter of Southern Chemical Cotton Com-
pany and Textile Workers Organizing Committee,

3 N. L. R. B. 869. In this case we said:

If, as in this case, an employer enters into

an agreement with one of two labor organiza-

tions at a time when both are claiming the right

of exclusive representation, we must hold that

the agreement cannot bar our conducting an
election, unless we are convinced that at the

time of its execution the labor organization

with which it was made represented a majority

of the employees.
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tion to trade, traffic, and commerce among the sev-

eral States, and tends to lead to labor disputes bur-

dening and obstructing commerce and the free flow

of commerce.

V. The Appropriate Unit

The Company and the unions agree that there

should be included in the bargaining imit all em-

ployees of the Company on the plant pay roll at

its Los Angeles plant, excluding supervisory em-

ploj^ees, subforemen, deputized officers, all other

watchmen wherever located, drivers, and Kern

County employees; that v»hether on plant or office

pay roll, all department superintendents, timekeep-

ers, time-study men, and the hide take-up gang, are

to be excluded; and that no persons on the office

pay roll are to be included in the unit.

The only difference between the imions concerns

receiving clerks, departmental clerks, route clerks,

checkers, scalers, and shipping clerks. The P. W.
O. C. contends that they should be excluded from

the imit, and the Amalgamated contends that they

should be included. These six classes of employees

were eligible to vote in the consent election held

in October 1938, to which agreement the Amalga-

mated and a local of the P. W. O. C. were parties.

Since that election these employees have been in-

cluded in the unit of employees concerning whom
the Company and the Amalgamated have had bar-
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[27] gaining relations/ Under these circumstances

we see no reason for excluding them from the bar-

gaining unit.

We find that all employees of the Company on

the plant pay roll at its Los Angeles plant, includ-

ing receiving" clerks, departmental clerks, route

clerks, checkers, scalers, and shipping clerks, but

excluding supervisory employees, subforemen, de-

partment superintendents, timekeepers, time-study

men, deputized officers, all other v/atchmen wherever

located, drivers, Kern County employees, the hide

take-up gang, and all employees whose names ap-

pear on the office pay roll, constitute a unit api)ro-

priate for the purposes of collective bargaining,

and that said unit will insure to employees of the

Company the full benefit of their right to self-or-

ganization and to collective bargaining and other-

wise effectuate the policies of the Act.

VI. The Determination of Representatives

The secretary-treasurer of the Amalgamated tes-

tified that on November 1, 1939, it represented 587

employees in the appropriate unit, of whom 530

were Amalgamated members in good standing. The

P. W. O. C. introduced in evidence 369 member-

^These employees were covered by the documents

exchanged between the Company and the Amalga-
mated in November of 1938 and 1939, which we
have assumed, without deciding, constituted con-

tracts.
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ship cards.^ Of these cards, 18 were signed after

November 1, 1939, and 15 were signed by persons

not employed during the pay-roll period of October

31, 1939. There thus remain 336 cards signed by

employees in the appropriate miit on or before No-

vember 2, 1939.'' About 300 signers of P. W. O. C.

membership cards are also claimed as members by

the Amalgamated. Disregarding the approximately

300 employees who are claimed as members by both

the P. W. O. C. and the Amalgamated, there remain

of the 587 employees whom the Amalgamated claims

to represent about 287 who are not also claimed as

members by the P. W. O. C.

According to the testimony of the plant super-

intendent there were about 675 employees in the

appropriate unit on November 1, 1939. The plant

pay roll of October 21, 1939, however, shows a total

of 857 names. We are unable to determine how

many of these were in the appropriate unit, since

we are unable to decipher many of the marks desig-

nating the work classifications of the employees on

^Twenty-seven additional cards were marked for

identification, but they were not introduced in evi-

dence because the P. W. O. C. had agreed with the

signers not to divulge their names.

^Some undated cards were, according to his tes-

timony, dated by the P. W. O. C. Director the day

they came into his hands and, therefore, do not

necessarily bear the date when they were signed.

'Phere is testimony to the effect that a few cards

were signed in 1938 before the consent election.
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this list. We can determine that at least 34 em-

ployees were not in the unit, leaving 823. It is en-

tirely possible that a substantial number of [28]

these 823 employees were not in the miit. In any

event, whether there were 675 or 823 employees in

the appropriate unit on November 1, 1939, it is

plain that the Amalgamated has not shown that it

represented a majority of the employees on No-

vember 1, 1939, in view of the overlapping mem-

bership claim and showing of the P. W. O. C.

On the other hand, the P. W. O. C. has made a suf-

ficient showing to rebut both the showing of ma-

jority representation by the Amalgamated and any

presumption, arising by virtue of its victory in the

consent election of October 1938, of continuing ma-

jority representation by the Amalgamated on No-

vember 2, 1939.

We find that an election by secret ballot is neces-

sary to resolve the question concerning representa-

tion among the employees of the Company at its

Los Angeles, California, plant and we shall direct

the holding of such an election. We will direct

that those eligible to vote in the election shall be

those employees in the appropriate unit who were

employed during the -pay-roll period immediately

preceding the date of this Direction of Election, in-

cluding employees who did not work during that

pay-roll period because they were ill or on vaca-

tion or were then or have since been temporarily laid

off, and excluding those who have since quit or been

discharged for cause. The P. W. O. C. requested
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that the name of its local union should appear on

the ballot. This request is hereby granted.

Upon the basis of the above findings of fact and

upon the entire record in the case, the Board makes

the following:

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
1. A question affecting commerce has arisen con-

cerning the representation of employees of Cudahy

Packing Company, Los Angeles, California, within

the meaning of Section 9 (c) and Section 2 (6)

and (7) of the National Labor Relations Act.

2. All employees of the Company on the plant

pay roll of its Los Angeles, California, plant, in-

cluding receiving clerks, departmental clerks, route

clerks, scalers, checkers, and shipping clerks, but

excluding supervisory employees, subforemen, de-

partment superintendents, timekeepers, time-study

men, deputized officers, all other w^atchmen wherever

located, drivers, Kern County employees, hide take-

up gang, and all employees whose names appear

on the office pay roll, constitute a unit appropriate

for the purposes of collective bargaining within the

meaning of Section 9 (b) of the National Labor Re-

lations Act.

DIRECTION OF ELECTION

By virtue of and pursuant to the power vested

in the National Labor Relations Board by Section

9 (c) of the National Labor Relations Act, [29]

and pursuant to Article III, Section 8, of National
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Labor Relations Board Rules and Regulations

—

Series 2, as amended, it is hereby

Directed that, as part of the investigation author-

ized by the Board to ascertain representatives for

the purposes of collective bargaining with Cudahy

Packing Company, Los Angeles, California, an elec-

tion by secret ballot shall be conducted as early as

possible, but not later than thirty (30) days from

the date of this Direction of Election, under the

direction and supervision of the Regional Direc-

tor for the Twenty-first Region, acting in this mat-

ter as agent for the National Labor Relations Board,

and pursuant to Article III, Section 9, of said

Rules and Regulations, among all employees of

the Company on the plant pay roll at its Los An-

geles plant, who were employed during the pay-roll

period immediately preceding the date of this Di-

rection of Election, including receiving clerks, de-

partmental clerks, route clerks, scalers, checkers,

and shipping clerks, and including employees who
did not work during that pay-roll period because

they were ill or on vacation or were then or have

since been temporarily laid off, but excluding super-

visory employees, subforemen, department superin-

tendents, timekeeper^, time-study men, deputized

watchmen, all other watchmen wherever located,

drivers, Kern County employees, the hide take-up

gang, and all employees whose names appear on the

office pay roll, and those who have since quit or

been discharged for cause, to determine whether

said employees desire to be represented by United
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Packing House Workers of America, Local No.

107, C. I. O., or Amalgamated Meat Cutters and

Butcher Workmen of North America, A. F. of L.,

Local No. 207, for the purposes of collective bar-

gaining, or by neither.

[Endorsed]: Filed Jul. 29, 1940. [30]

EXHIBIT ^'B"

United States of America

Before the National Labor Relations Board

Case No. R-1718

In the Matter of

CUDAHY PACKING COMPANY

and

PACKING HOUSE WORKERS ORGANIZING
COMMITTEE, C. I. O.

CERTIFICATION OF REPRESENTATIVES
June 6, 1940

On April 16, 1940, the National Labor Relations

Board, herein called the Board, issued a Decision

and Direction of Election in this proceeding.^

Pursuant to the Direction of Election, an election

by secret ballot was conducted on May 16, 1940,

under the direction and supervision of the Regional

^22 N. L. R. B. No. 83.

24 N. L. R. B., No. 32.
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Director for the Twenty-first Region (Los Angeles,

California). On May 17, 194Q, the Regional Direc-

tor, acting pursuant to Article III, Section 9, of

National Labor Relations Board Rules and Regu-

lations—Series 2, as amended, issued and duly

served on the parties an Election Report. No ob-

jections to the conduct of the ballot or the Election

Report have been filed by any of the parties.

As to the balloting and its results, the Regional

Director reported as follows:

1. Total number eligible 847

2. Total number of ballots cast 721

3. Total number of challenged ballots 2

4. Total number of blank ballots 2

5. Total number of void ballots

6. Total number of valid ballots cast 717

7. Total number of votes for Amalga-

mated Meat Cutters and Butcher

Workmen of North America, Local 207,

affiliated with A. F. L 285

8. Total number of votes for United

Packing House Workers of America,

Local 107, affiliated with the C. I. 410

9. Total number of votes for neither 22

By virtue of and pursuant to the power vested in

the National Labor Relations Board by Section 9 (c)

of National Labor Relations Act, 49 Stat. 449, and

pursuant to Article III, Sections 8 and 9, of Na-

tional Labor Relations Board Rules and Regula-

tions—Series 2, as amended,
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It is hereby certified that United Packing House

Workers of America, Local No. 107, C. I. O., has

been designated and selected by a majority of all

employees of Cudahy Packing Company, Los An-

geles, California, on the plant pay roll of its Los

Angeles, California, plant, including receiving

clerks, departmental clerks, route clerks, scalers,

checkers, and shipping clerks, but excluding super-

visory employees, [31] subforemen, department

superintendents, timekeepers, time-study men, depu-

tized officers, all other watchmen, wherever located,

drivers, Kern County employees, hide take-up gang,

and all employees whose names appear upon the

office pay roll, as their representative for the pur-

poses of collective bargaining and that, pursuant to

Section 9 (a) of the National Labor Relations Act,

United Packing House Workers of America, Local

No. 107, C. I. O., is the exclusive representative of

all such employees for the purposes of collective

bargaining in respect to rates of pay, wages, hours

of employment, and other conditions of employment.

[Endorsed] : Filed Jul. 29, 1940. [32]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

NOTICE OF MOTION TO DISMISS
COMPLAINT

Please take notice that the annexed motion to

dismiss the complaint will be brought on before
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this Court on July 30, 1940, at 10 o'clock A. M. or

as soon thereafter as can be heard, in the Court

Room of the Honorable Leon R. Yankwich, in the

United States Post Office Building, in the City and

County of Los Angeles, State of California.

WM. R. WALSH,
Regional Attorney 21st Region, appearing for De-

fendant Walter P. Spreckels, individually, and

as Regional Director, 21st Region of the National

Labor Relations Board, 808 U. S. Post Office

& Court House, Los Angeles, California.

To: Messrs. W. I. Gilbert

and

Redmond S. Brennan

Attorneys for Plaintiff,

939 Rowan- Building

Fifth and Spring Streets,

Los Angeles, California.

[Endorsed]: Filed Jul. 29, 1940. [33]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORI-
TIES IN SUPPORT OF MOTION TO DIS-

MISS

I. The complaint must be dismissed for lack of

jurisdiction of an indispensable party.

A. The matters sought to be enjoined are those

which only the National Labor Relations Board
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can perform and not this defendant Spreckels, as

a subordinate agent.

National Labor Relations Board Section 9(c)

Rules and Regulations of the National Labor

Relations Board—Series 2, as amended, Ar-

ticles II and IV.

B. The District Court has no jurisdiction over

the National Labor Relations Board, as no suit can

be brought against any branch of the United States

Government without special Act of Congress.

National Labor Relations Act, Sections 3 and 5

Jamestown Veneer & Plywood Corp. v. Na-

tional Labor Relations Board, 13 F. Supp.

405 (N.D.N.Y.);

New England Transportation Co. v. Myers,

15 Supp. 807. (D. Mass).

And ^vere such suit even capable of being brought

it would only be in the District of Columbia, where

the Board is officially located.

National Labor Relations Act, Sections 3

and 5 [34]

Jamestown Veneer & Plywood Corp. v. Na-

tional Labor Relations Board, 13 F. Supp.

405 (N.D.N.Y.);

New England Transportation Co. v. Myers,

15 Supp. 807 (D. Mass.).
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C. The complaint must therefore be dismissed

for want of jurisdiction over an indispensable party.

Moore v. Anderson, 68 F. (2d) 191, 193

(CCA 9, 1933) ;

Raichie v. Federal Reserve Bank, (CCA. 2)

34 F. (2d), 910, 916;

Generich v. Ritter, 265 U. S. 388, 391-2;

Webster v. Fall, 266 U. S. 507;

Alcohol Warehouse Corp. v. Canfield (C
C A. 2) 11 Fed. (2d) 214, 215;

National Conference on Legalizing Lotteries

V. Goldman, 85 F. (2d) 66, 67 (C C A. 2,

1936) ;

Association for Legalizing American Lot-

teries V. Goldman, 85 F. (2d) 67 (C C A.

2, 1936)
; .

Golden States Advertising Co. v. Goldman,

85 F. (2d) 68 (C C A. 2, 1936)

;

Warner Valley Stock Co. v. Smith, 165 U. S.

28.

II. All the powers, duties and functions of the

defendant Spreckels in the proceeding complained

of have been fully discharged and performed, and

there is nothing else which he can do or perform.

The bill must therefo're be dismissed on the ground

of mootness.

National Labor Relations Act, Section 9

Rules and Regulations of the National Labor

Relations Board, Articles II, Article IV.
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III. The United States District Court is with-

out jurisdiction of the subject matter of the bill

of complaint herein.

A. Under the terms and provisions of the Na-

tional Labor Relations Act, the matters set forth

in the bill of complaint are within the exclusive

jurisdiction of the National Labor Relations Board

in the first instance, subject to review, after the

rendition of a final order of the Board, by the

United States Circuit Court of Appeals.

National Labor Relations Act, Section 9 (c)

and (d) ; Section 10 (a), (b), (c), (d),

(e), and (f), 29 U. S. C. A., §159 (c) and

(d), §160 (a), (b), (c), (d), (e) and (f)

;

Myers v. Bethlehem Shipbuilding- Cor]).,

Ltd., 303 U. S. 41; [35]

Newport News Shipbuilding & Drydock Co.

V. Bennet P. Schauffler, et al., 303 U. S. 54;

Carlisle Lumber Co. v. Hope (CCA. 9) 83

F. (2d) 92;

Bradley Lumber Co. of Ark. et al. v. Na-

tional Labor Relations Board, 84 F. (2d)

97 (CCA. 5), cert. den. 299 U. S. 559;

E. I. DuPont de Nemours & Co. and Dupont

Rayon Co. v. Boland, 85 F. (2d) 12 (C C
A. 2);

B. This Court has passed on this question in

the following cases:

Bethlehem Shipbuilding Corp. v. Nylander,

14 F. Supp. 201 (Stephens, J.)
;
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Aircraft Workers Union, Inc. v. Nylander

(S. D. Calif. Yankwich, J.) Decided August

18, 1937, No. 1230-M;

Northrup Corporation v. Nylander, (S. D.

Calif. Yankwich, J.) Decided August 18,

1937, No. 1235-H

;

Amalgamated Meat Cutters & Butcher Work-

men of North America, Local No. 207 v.

National Labor Relations Board and Wal-

ter P. Spreckels, Regional Director, 21st

Region, (S. D. Calif. Harrison, J.) De-

cided July 12, 1940, No. 1052-H;

The last of these cases was sought to be main-

tained on a bill of complaint identical with the

present bill except that the Board was made a

party defendant and Spreckels was sued as direc-

tor only.

IV. The United States District Court has no

jurisdiction in equity to enjoin proceedings of the

National Labor Relations Board under the Na-

tional Labor Relations Act.

A. The bill of complaint fails to set forth facts

showing that the plaintiff is threatened with irre-

parable damage cognizable in equity as a result of

the proceedings sought to be enjoined.

Howard Myers, et al. v. Bethlehem Ship-

building Corp., Ltd., 303 U. S. 41;

Newport News Shipbuilding & Dry Dock

Co. V. Bennet F. Schauffler, et al., 303

U. S. 54;
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Carlisle Lumber Co. v. Hope (C. C. A. 9)

83 F. (2d) 92; [36]

Bradley Lumber Co. of Ark., et al. v. Na-

tional Labor Relations Board, 84 F. (2d)

97 (C. C. A. 5), cert. den. 299 U. S. 559;

E. I. DuPont de Nemours & Co. and Du-

pont Rayon Co. v. Boland, 85 F. (2d) 12

(C. C. A. 2);

Heller Bros. Co. v. Lind, et al., 86 F. (2d)

862 (Ct. App. D. C), cert. den. 300 U. S.

672.

B. The procedure of the National Labor Rela-

tions Act, by its terms, affords a full, adequate,

and complete administrative remedy for any of the

matters complained of in the bill, which plaintiff

has failed to exhaust.

Howard Myers, et al. v. Bethlehem Ship-

building Corp., Ltd., supra;

Newport News Shipbuilding & Drydock Co.

V. Bennet F. Schauffler, et al., 91 F. (2d)

730 (C. C. A. 4), affirmed by Supreme

Court, 303 U. S. 54;

Carlisle Lumber Co. v. Hope, supra;

Heller Bros. Co. v. Lind, et al., supra;

Bradley Lumber Co. of Ark., et al. v. Na-

tional Labor Relations Board, supra.

C. The certification is not a command or order

of any kind, and is not properly the subject of an

injunction. Los Angeles R. R. Co. v. United States,

273 U. S. 299. Should it later become the basis of
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an order against the Cudahy Packing Company un-

der Section 10 of the Act, the plaintiff would have

full opportunity to intervene and contest the valid-

ity of the certification before the Board under Sec-

tion 10 (b) and (c) of the Act, and thereafter be-

fore the United States Circuit Court of Appeals,

on review under Section (10) (e) or (f) of the

Act. The plaintiff therefore has a full, adequate

and complete remedy under the Act for all of the

matter complained of.

National Labor Relations Act, Section 9 (c),

9 (d), Section 10 (b), (c), (e) and (f ) ;

Howard Myers, et al., v. Bethlehem Ship-

building Corp., Ltd., supra; [37]

National Labor Relations Board v. Jones &

Laughlin Steel Corp., 301 U. S. 1;

Carlisle Lumber Co. v. Hope, supra;

E. I. DuPont de Nemours & Co. and Dupont

Rayon Co. v. Boland, supra.

Respectfully submitted,

WM. R. WALSH,
Regional Attorney 21st Region, appearing for de-

fendant Walter P. Spreckels, Regional Direc-

tor, 21st Region, 808 U. S. Post Oface & Court

House, Los Angeles, California.

[Endorsed]: Filed Jul. 29, 1940. [38]
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In the District Court of the United States, South-

ern District of California, Central Division

No. 1076 Y Civil

AMALGAMATED MEAT CUTTERS &
BUTCHER WORKMEN OF NORTH
AMERICA, LOCAL NO. 207,

Plaintiff,

vs.

WALTER P. SPRECKELS, individually and as

Regional Director, 21st Region, of the National

Labor Relations Board,

Defendant.

DECISION

Yankwich, Leon R., Judge.

The court is of the view that the complaint does

not state a claim for relief within the jurisdiction

of this court.

No action has been taken by the Regional Direc-

tor of the National Labor Relations Board w^hich

threatens the contractual rights of the plaintiff, or

justifies our interference through injunctive

process.

More the National Labor Relations Act provides

an exclusive method for review of the actions of

the Board.

So that even if the action of this court could

reach the board through a subaltern, we would be

without jurisdiction.

The motion to dismiss will therefore be granted,

[39] without leave to amend.
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Dated this Srd day of August, 1940.

LEON R. YANKWICH,
Judge, District Court of the United States, South-

ern District of California.

Counsel notified.

[Endorsed]: Filed Aug. 3, 1940. [40]

In the District Court of the United States, South-

ern District of California, Central Division

No. 1706 Y Civil

AJMALGAMATED MEAT CUTTERS &
BUTCHER WORKMEN OF NORTH
AMERICA, LOCAL NO. 207,

Plaintiff,

vs.

WALTER P. SPRECKELS, individually and as

Regional Director, 21st Region, of the National

Labor Relations Board,

Defendant.

DECREE
GRANTING THE MOTION OF WALTER P.

SPRECKELS, INDIVIDUALLY AND AS
REGIONAL DIRECTOR OF THE 21ST

REGION OF THE NATIONAL LABOR RE-
LATIONS BOARD, TO DISMISS AND DIS-

MISSING THE BILL OF COMPLAINT.

This cause came on to be heard on the applica-

tion of the plaintiff for a temporary injunction,
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and on the motion of the defendant, Walter P.

Spreckels, individually, and as Regional Director

of the Twenty-first Region of the National Labor

Relations Board, to dismiss the bill of complaint on

the ground, first, that this is a suit to enjoin the

Board and this defendant Spreckels from conduct-

ing a proceedmg for the investigation and certifica-

tion of representatives pursuant to Section 9(c) of

the National Labor Relations Act, in which pro-

ceeding the said Board has already, after investi-

gation, issued its certification of representatives

and there is nothing further to be done by the

Board or said defendant Spreckels in said proceed-

ing; secondly, that if there were something further

to be done this Court has no jurisdiction to enjoin

the Board or its agents from the performance of

their duties imder the National Labor Relations

Act; thirdly, the plaintiff has a full, adequate, and

complete remedy imder the procedure of the Na-

tional Labor Relations Act for any of the matters

complained of in the bill of complaint ; and fourthly,

that this suit is to enjoin acts of the Board or such

acts of defendant Spreckels as he can only [41]

perform imder the orders and directions of the

Board, and therefore the absence of jurisdiction

of this Court over said Board requires the dismissal

of the bill of complaint for want of an indispen-

sable party, and

It appearing to this Court that this is a suit to

enjoin said defendant Spreckels, individually and

as Regional Director of the 21st Region of the Na-
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tional Labor Relations Board, from conducting- a

certain proceeding for the investigation and cer-

tification of representatives pursuant to Section

9(c) of the Act, and that this Court is of the view

that the complaint does not state a claim for relief

within the jurisdiction of the Court, and that no

action has been taken by the Regional Director of

the National Labor Relations Board which threat-

ens the contractual rights of the plaintiff or justifies

the Court's interference through injunctive process,

and that the National Labor Relations Act provides

an exclusive method for review of actions of the

Board, and further that this being in reality a

suit to enjoin the acts of the Board or such acts

of defendant Spreckels as he can only perform

imder the orders and directions of the Board, the

Board is an indispensable party, absence of juris-

diction over whom requires a dismissal of the bill

of complaint, now therefore,

On reading and filing said bill of complaint, mo-

tion to dismiss, and after hearing argument of coun-

sel, and due deliberation having been had, it is

Ordered, adjudged, and decreed:

(1) That the motion of Walter P. Spreckels,

individually, and as Regional Director of the 21st

Region of the National Labor Relations Board, to

dismiss the bill of complaint, be and the same is

hereby granted, and the said bill of complaint is

hereby dismissed without leave to amend, with

costs

;
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(2) That api)lication of the j^laintiff for tem-

porary injunction be and the same is hereby de-

nied.

Dated this 13th day of August, 1940.

LEON R. YANKWICH,
United States District Judge.

No objection as to form

Attorneys for Plaintiff.

Judgment entered Aug. 15, 1940.

Docketed Aug. 15, 1940. Book C. O. #3, page

495.

R. S. ZIMMERMAN,
Clerk.

By MURRAY E. WIRE,
Deputy.

[Endorsed] : Filed Aug. 15, 1940. [42]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

NOTICE OF APPEAL

Notice is hereby given, that Amalgamated Meat

Cutters & Butcher AVorkmen of North America,

Local No. 207, plaintiff above named, hereby ap-

peals to the Circuit Court of Appeals, for the

Ninth Circuit, from the decision of the court ren-

dered herein on August 3, 1940, and from the de-

cree granting the motion of Walter P. Spreckels,
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individually, and as Regional Director, 21st Region,

of the National Labor Relations Board, to dismiss,

and dismissing, the bill of complaint, rendered on

the 13th day of August, 1940.

Dated: October 22, 1940.

W. I. GILBERT,
939 Rowan Building,

Los Angeles, California.

REDMOND S. BRENNAN,
Dwight Building,

Kansas City, Mo.

By W. I. GILBERT,
Attorneys for Plaintiff

and Appellant.

Received copy of the within Notice this 22 day

of October, 1940.

WM. R. WALSH,
Attorney for Walter P. Spreckels, Ind. and as

Regional Director, 21st Region, N. L. R. B.

[Endorsed]: Filed Oct. 22, 1940. [43]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

STATEMENT OF POINTS TO BE RELIED
UPON ON APPEAL

Comes now the above plaintiff and states to the

court that the following points will be relied upon

on appeal of this case

:
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I.

That an officer of the Federal Government, or a

Board thereof, acting outside of the scope of au-

thority conferred upon them by the statute creating

the office, or Board, can be enjoined in a j)roper

case.

II

The acts of an officer of the National Labor Re-

lations Board, acting in a field and in a manner not

covered by the National Labor Relations Act, do

not fall within the review provisions of the Na-

tional Labor Relations Act.

III.

That acts done by an officer of the National La-

bor Relations Board by color of office only, but in

fact in contemplation of law in his private capacity,

and not contemplated or authorized by the National

Labor Relations Act, can be enjoined by an original

action in the United States District Courts, and that

[44] as to such acts the National Labor Relations

Act provides no review procedure whatever.

IV.

In the case of an abuse of the power of the Na-

tional Labor Relations Board, where it or its officers

act by color of office only, the District Courts of the

United States have original jurisdiction to give re-

lief.

V.

Where a labor organization has been designated

by the National Labor Relations Board as the duly

constituted bargaining agent, and, pursuant to such
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designation, makes a contract with the employer,

the National Labor Relations Board is thereafter

powerless, while such contract is in force and effect,

to designate a new and different bargaining agent

to deal on behalf of the employees with the em-

ployer, and that such an attempt is in excess of the

authority conferred by statute upon the National

Labor Relations Board, and constitutes the denial

of due process of law under the 14th Amendment
of the United States Constitution, and also an im-

pairment of the obligation of a contract in violation

of the 5th amendment to the United States Consti-

tution.

VL
That the interference by a third party with con-

tractual rights existing between a labor organiza-

tion and its members on the one hand, and an em-

ployer on the other, can be prevented by injunctive

process where a plain, speedy and adequate rem-

edy at law^ is not available.

Dated: October 22, 1940.

W. I. GILBERT
REDMOND S. BRENNAN

By W. I. GILBERT
Attorneys for Plaintiff and

Appellant.

Received copy of the within Designation cf

Points this 22 day of October, 1940.

WM. R. WALSH
Attorney for Walter P.

Spreckels, Ind. & as Reg. Di-

rector 21st Region N. L. R. B.

[Endorsed] : Filed Oct. 22, 1940. [45]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

CERTIFICATE OP CLERK
I, R. S. Zimmerman, Clerk of the United States

District Court for the Southern District of Califor-

nia, do hereby certify that the foregoina^ pages,

numbered 1 to 48, inclusive, contain full, true and

correct copies of the Complaint; Order to Show

Cause; Points and Authorities in Support of Or-

der to Show Cause; Motion to Dismiss Complaint;

Notice of Motion to Dismiss Complaint ; Points and

Authorities in Support of Motion to Dismiss; De-

cision; Decree; Notice of Appeal; Statement of

Points upon Which Appellant Will Rely on Ap-

peal; Bond on Appeal; Designation of Contents of

Record on Appeal, which constitute the record on

appeal to the United States Circuit Court of Ap-

peals for the Ninth Circuit.

I do further certify that the Clerk's fee for com-

paring, correcting and certifying the foregoing rec-

ord amounts to $8.65, and that same has been paid

me by the Appellant.

Witness my hand and the seal of said District

Court, this 5th day of November, A. D. 1940.

[Seal] R. S. ZIMMERMAN,
Clerk

By EDMUND D. SMITH
Deputy Clerk [49]
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[Endorsed]: No. 9681. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. Amalga-

mated Meat Cutters & Butcher Workmen of North

America, Local No. 207, Appellant, vs. Walter P.

Spreckels, individually, and as Regional Director,

21st Region, of the National Labor Relations Board,

Appellee. Transcript of Record upon Appeal from

the District Court of the United States for the

Southern District of California, Central Division.

Filed November 12, 1940.

PAUL P. O'BRIEN,
Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit.

In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Circuit

No. 9681

AMALGAMATED MEAT CUTTERS &
BUTCHER WORKMEN OF NORTH AMER-
ICA, LOCAL NO. 207,

Plaintiff, and Appellant

V.

WALTER P. SPRECKELS, individually, and as

Regional Director, 21st Region, of the National

Labor Relations Board,

Defendant, and Respondent

STATEMENT OF POINTS TO BE RELIED
UPON ON APPEAL

Comes now the above named appellant and states

to this Honorable Court that on appeal it will rely
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upon the same points which have heretofore been

filed in the District Court of the United States,

Southern District of California, Central Division,

and which are a part of this record on appeal.

Dated : November 7, 1940.

W. I. GILBERT
REDMOND S. BRENNAN
By [Illegible]

Attorneys for Appellant

Received copy of the within this 8th day of No-

vember, 1940.

WM. R. WALSH
Attorney for N. L. R. B.

[Endorsed]: Filed Nov. 12, 1940. Paul P.

O'Brien, Clerk.

[Title of Circuit Court of Appeals and Cause.]

DESIGNATION OF PARTS OF RECORD TO
BE PRINTED

To the Clerk of the LTnited States Circuit Court

of Appeals, for the Ninth Circuit

:

Appellant hereby designates, for the printing of

the record, the following parts of the certified tran-

script of the record on appeal

:

(1) Complaint, together with exhibit attached

thereto

;

(2) Order to show cause;

(3) Notice of motion to dismiss complaint;
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(4) Motion to dismiss complaint, together with

all exhibits attached thereto;

(5) Decision;

(6) Decree (Judgment)

(7) Notice of appeal;

(8) Appellant's points to be relied upon on ap-

peal (District Court)
;

(9) Statement of points to be relied upon on

appeal (Circuit Court)
;

(10) This designation of parts of record to be

printed.

Dated : November 7, 1940.

W. I. GILBERT
REDMOND S. BRENNAN
By [Illegible]

' Attorneys for Appellant

Received copy of the within this 8th day of No-

vember, 1940.

WM. R. WALSH
Attorney for N. L. R. B.

[Endorsed]: Filed Nov. 12, 1940. Paul P.

O'Brien, Clerk.
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No. 9681

IN THE

United States Circuit Court of Appeals
FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

Amalgamated Meat Cutters & Butcher Workmen
OF North America, Local No. 207,

Appellant,

vs.

Walter P. Spreckels, individually, and as Regional

Director, 21st Region, of the National Labor Relations

Board,

Appellee.

APPELLANT'S OPENING BRIEF.

Statement of the Case.

This is an appeal fr-oni a decree of the United States

District Court, Southern District of California, Central

Division, dismissing plaintiff's complaint for an injunc-

tion. The reasons of the court for its action are recited

in its decision [R. 56] and decree [R. 57]. All of these

reasons center around the proposition that the trial court

had no jurisdiction over the cause.
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Statement of Facts and Pleadings Disclosing Basis

of Jurisdiction.

The pleadings show plaintiff to be a labor organization

affiliated with the American Federation of Labor. The

defendant is sued both individually and in his official

capacity as Regional Director of the 21st Region of the

National Labor Relations Board (hereinafter referred to

as the Board)
|
R. 3 J.

The allegations are in substance

as follows:

In October, 1938, plaintiff was certified as the exclu-

sive bargaining" agent for the employees of the Cudahy

Packing Company (hereinafter referred to as the Em-

ployer). This certification was in consequence of a con-

sent election held under the auspices of the National Labor

Relations Board. Pursuant to this election and certifica-

tion, plaintiff made a contract with the employer. A re-

newal of it was in effect at the time the acts alleged in the

complaint were committed. It was in effect also when

the complaint was filed, and
|
containing an automatic re-

newal provision, R. 16 1 it is in effect now.

This existing contract, it is alleged, was wTongfully

interfered with by the defendant Spreckels [R. 3]. It is

stated that the defendant Spreckels purported to act as

regional director of the National Labor Relations Board,

but in fact acted in excess of his authority as regional

director. The acts committed by him, according to the

complaint, fall into several classes.

First : He wrongfully intimidated the employer and

the employees from living up to the contract, which the

complaint alleges was in force;
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Second : He wrongfully notified the employees and the

employer in effect that the contract between the plaintiff

and the employer was void, bringing about this effect:

(a) By publishing notices of purported hearings be-

fore the regional office of the Labor Board;

(b) By publishing notices of a purported election;

(c) By authorizing and encouraging Harry Bridges

and the C. I. O. to declare to the employees of the

plant that the existing contract was void, and that

the National Labor Relations Board and the de-

fendant Spreckels would select an exclusive bar-

gaining agent for the employees;

Third : He made representations to the National Labor

Relations Board, pursuant to which that Board took steps

in violation of plaintiff's contract rights, and ordered an

election, and made statements notifying the employees

that the plaintiff was not the legally constituted bar-

gaining agent [R. 5]

;

Fourth: He encouraged and urged the rival union,

after March 14, 1940, while plaintiff's contract with the

employer was still in force and effect, to negotiate a

new contract.

All of these acts, it js alleged, were done with the in-

tent of causing plaintiff to lose members, dues and pres-

tige, and compelling the plaintiff to resort to legal action,

and to expend sums of money. It is further stated that

these acts did cause loss of members, dues and prestige

and the expense of attorney's fees, and will continue to

cause such detriments, for all of which there is no plain,

speedy or adequate remedy at law [R. 7].



A. Basis of Jurisdiction of the District Court.

The questions raised by this state of facts can be re-

solved only by an interpretation of the scope of the Na-

tional Labor Relations Act, and the authority vested by

virtue of that act in a subordinate officer of the National

Labor Relations Board. Therefore, the controversy—ir-

respective of the amount involved—falls within the pro-

vision of United States Code Annotated, Title 28, Sec-

tion 41, Subdivision 8, which reads:

"The District Court shall have original jurisdiction

as follows:

(8) Of all suits and proceedings arising under any

law regulating commerce."

A possible alternative ground for jurisdiction that

would have been available to plaintiff if the complaint

had not been dismissed is that a Federal question is in-

volved. U. S. C. A., Title 28, Sec. 41, Subsec. (1). The

complaint in question does not state a jurisdictional

amount, but it is i)lain from the allegations of the com-

plaint, and from the number of members involved and

affected, that the requisite jurisdictional amount could

have been made to appear.

B. Jurisdiction of the Circuit Couri- of Appeals

TO Review the Dixision in Question.

This Honcjrable Circuit Court has jurisdiction to re-

view the judgment under United .States Code Annotated,

Title 28, Paragraph 225(a), Subdivision (1), for the

reason that the decision of the District Court is a final

decision of the District Court, not subject to a direct

review in the Supreme Court of the United States, un-

der Section 345 of Title 28.
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Questions Involved.

The basic question is : Does either an officer, purport-

ing to act for and on behalf of, or under the direction

of the National Labor Relations Board, or an individual

by color of such office, have the authority under the

National Labor Relations Act to do any acts tending to

abrogate an existing and valid contract between a labor

union and an employer, if that labor union has been pre-

viously certified by the National Labor Relations Board

to be the properly constituted bargaining agent for the

employees, and if the contract made pursuant to such

certification is in force and effect, and where there is no

claim that either the contract or the election itself are the

result of unfair labor practices?

The subsidiary questions arising out of the main prob-

lem are:

1. May an officer of the Board be enjoined from

committing iiltra vires acts, or is he, if he acts under

the immediate direction or supervision of the Board, free

from injunctive process, even though both he and the

Board have no authority under the statute to do the acts

complained of?

2. Can the court enjoin an agent of the Board from

doing acts outside of the scope of his office or authority?

3. Where an agent of the Board lacks statutory power

and jurisdiction to do the acts complained of, and where

there is not involved an erroneous decision of the agent

within his existing or conceded jurisdiction, must the

plaintiff pursue the administrative remedies provided by

the Act, and if there are none covering his case can

he find relief in a court of equity upon a showing of

irreparable injury?



Outline of the Argument.

In the ensuinj^- argument we shall discuss the follow-

ing points in the order stated

:

(1) PlaintilT, altlioui^h an unincorporated labor as-

sociation, has the right to maintain suits in the Federal

Courts

;

(2) An officer uf the United States government, who

acts outside and beyond the scc)i)e of his authority, can

be enjoined;

(3) A suit against an officer, under the conditions

stated in point (2) is not a suit against the United

States or a governmental agency;

(4) An officer of the Board has no power, under the

National Labor Relations Act, to do acts interfering with

validly existing contracts, either by acts colore officio,

or by acts entirely outside any power of his office;

(5) Defendant's acts being ontside the scope of the

authority conferred upon him by statute, the review pro-

visions of the statute are inapplicable;

(6) The District Courts of the United States have

general jurisdiction to enjoin the Board, or its officers,

from committing acts unauthorized by the National Labor

Relations Act;

(7) A suit against a subordinate officer of the Board

to enjoin him from doing acts not authorized by statute

is not in effect a suit against the Board. Such Board is

not an indispensible party defendant, because the doc-

trine of respondeat superior does not apply to subordi-

nate agents of the government.



—7—
I.

Plaintiff, Although an Unincorporated Labor Associa-

tion, Has the Right to Maintain Suits in the

Federal Courts.

(1) The plaintiff, a labor union, though an unincor-

porated association, may be sued and sue in its own

name.

Rule 17(b), Federal Rules of Civil Proeedtire;

United Mine Workers of America v. Coronado

Coal Co., 259 U. S. 344; 42 S. C. 570; 66 L. Ed.

975; 27 A. L. R. 762;

Alston V. School Board City of Norfolk (C. C. A.

4, 1940), 112 Fed. (2d) 992.

(2) The failure on the part of defendant to raise an

objection to plaintiff's capacity to sue in the trial court

constitutes a waiver of any objection of plaintiff's ca-

pacity, and the objection may not be raised for the first

time on appeal.

4 Amer. Jur., Associations, par. 50;

27 ^. L. R. 790; -

Franklin Union v. People, 220 111. 355; 77 N. E.

176; 4 L. R. A. (n. s.) 1001.



II.

An Officer of the United States Government, Who
Acts Outside and Beyond the Scope of His Author-

ity, Can Be Enjoined.

There is unimpeachable authority to the effect that if

the statute authorizes an officer of the government or a

governmental board, to do certain acts, the authority and

power of such officer or board is measured by the lan-

guage of the Act, and any attempt to do acts not au-

thorized by the Act in question constitutes a violation of

official duty, and places the officer in a i)osition where the

law considers his unauthorized acts as those of an indi-

vidual rather than those of an officer of the government.

In such cases, and under such conditions, the unauthor-

ized act of the officer, if it interferes with the rights and

property of citizens will be enjoined by courts of equity.

Waite V. Macy,. 246 U. S. 606; 38 S. C. 395; 62 L. Ed.

892, 895 :

"The Secretary and the board must keei) within

the statute (Merritt v. Welsh, 104 U. S. 694, 26 L.

ed. 896), which goes to their jurisdiction (see In-

terstate Commerce Commission v. Northern P. R.

Co., 216 U. S. 538, 544, 54 L. ed. 608, 609, 30 Sup.

Ct. Rep. 417), and we see no reason why the restric-

tion, should not be enforced by injunction, as it was,

for instance, in Bacon v. Rutland R. Co., 232 U. S.

134, 58 L. ed. 538, 34 Sup. Ct. Rep. 283; Philadel-

phia Co. V. Stimson, 223 U. S. 605, 620, 56 L. ed.

570, 576, 32 Sup. Ct. Rep. 340; Santa Fe P. R. Co.



V. Lane, 244 U. S. 492, 61 L. ed. 1275, Z7 Sup. Ct.

Rep. 714. We are satisfied that no other remedy, if

there is any other, will secure the plaintiff's rights."

Philadelphia Co. v. Stimson, Secretary of War, 223

U. S. 605 ; 32 S. C. 340; 56 L. Ed. 570.

Colorado v. Toll, Superintendent of Rocky Mountain

Park, 268 U. S. 228; 45 S. C. 505; 69 L. Ed. 927, 929:

"The object of the bill is to restrain an individual

from doing acts that it is alleged that he has no au-

thority to do, and that derogate from the quasi

sovereign authority of the state. There is no ques-

tion that a bill in equity is a proper remedy, and

that it may be pursued against the defendant with-

out joining either his superior officers or the United

States. Missouri v. Holland, 252 U. S. 416, 431, 64

L. ed. 641, 646, 11 A. L. R. 984, 40 Sup. Ct. Rep.

382; Philadelphia Co v. Stimson, 223 U. S. 605, 619,

620; 56 L. ed. 570, 576, 577; 32 Sup. Ct. Rep. 340."

Noble, Secretary of the Interior v. Union River Log-

ging Co., 147 U. S. 165, 13 S. C. 271, 37 L. Ed. 123, 127.

This case arose under a bill of eciuity by the Union River

Logging Company to enjoin the Secretary of the Interior

and the Commissioner -of the General Land Office from

executing a certain order revoking the approval of the

plaintiff's map for a right of way over public lands, and

from molesting plaintiff in the enjoyment of such right

of way secured to it under an Act of Congress.

The court, after considering the matter, ordered a de-

cree for the plaintiff. An injunction as prayed for in the
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bill was issued against the officer. Upon appeal it was

held that since the Secretary of the Interior had no power

to revoke the act of his predecessor, the injunction was

properly issued. The court said at pag^e 127:

"The lands over which the rig-ht of way was

granted were public lands subject to the operation of

the statute, and the ([uestion '.vhether the ])laintiff was

entitled to the benefit of the grant was one which it

was competent for the Secretary of the Interior to de-

cide, and when decided, and his approval was noted

upon the plats, the first section of the Act vested the

right of way in the railroad company. The language

of that section is *that the right of way through the

l)ublic lands of the United States is hereby granted

to any railroad company duly organized under the

laws of any State or territory,' etc. The uniform

rule of this court has been that such an Act was a

grant in pracscnti of lands to be thereafter identified.

Denver Sz R. G. R. Co. v. Ailing, 99 U. S. 463. {2S:

438). The railroad company became at once vested

with a right of property in these lands, of which they

can only be deprived by a proceeding taken directly

for that purpose. Tf it were made to appear that

the right of way had been obtained by fraud, a bill

would doubtless lie by the L'nited States for the can-

cellation and annulment of an api)roval thus obtained.

Moffat V. United States, 112 U. S. 24 (28; 623);

United States v. Minor, 114 U. S. 233 (29: 110).

A revocation of the ai)proval of the Secretary of the

Interior, however, by his successor in office was an at-

tempt to deprive the plaintiff of its property without



—11—

due process of law, and was, therefore, void. As was

said by Mr. Justice drier, in United States v. Stone,

69 U. S. 2 Wall. 525, 535 (17: 765, 767) ; 'One offi-

cer of the land ofiice is not competent to cancel or an-

nul the act of his predecessor. That is a judicial act

and requires the judgment of the court.' Moore v.

Robbins, 96 U. S. 530 (24: 848). The case of United

States V. Schurz, 102 U. S. 378 (26: 167) is full au-

thority for the position assumed by the plaintiff in the

case at bar. In this case the relator had been ad-

judged to be entitled to 160 acres of public lands;

that patent had been regularly signed, sealed, coun-

tersigned and recorded; and it was held that a man-

damus to the Secretary of the Interior to deliver the

patent to the relator should be granted. It was said

in this case by Mr. Justice Miller : 'Whenever this

takes place' (that is, when a patent is duly executed)

'the land has ceased to be the land of the govern-

ment, or, to speak in technical language, title has

passed from the government, and the power of these

officers to deal with it has also passed away.'

"It was not competent for the Secretary of the

Interior thus to revoke the action or his predecessor,

and the decree of the court below must, therefore,

be affirmed".

These authorities show that an invalid and unauthorized

act of a government officer can be enjoined.
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III.

A Suit Against an Officer, Under the Conditions Stated

in Point II, Is Not a Suit Against the United

States or a Governmental Agency.

The cases ah'eady cited, and others of similar import,

hold that a suit to enjoin an officer of the United States

from doing acts unauthorized by the statutes pertaining

to his office is not a suit against the United States, and

therefore its consent to the suit is not rec^uired.

This was expressly so stated by Mr. Justice Hughes in

Philadelphia Company v. Stimsov, Secretary of War, 223

U. S. 603, 32 S. C. 340, 56 L. Ed. 570, 576:

"First: If the conduct of the defendant consti-

tutes an un\varrantal:)le interference with property of

the complainant, its resort to equity for protection

is not to h^ defeated upon the ground that the suit is

one against the United States. The exemption of the

United States from suit does not protect its officers

from i)ersonal liability to persons whose rights of

property have been wrongfully invaded. Little v.

Barreme, 2 Crancli, 170; United States v. Lee,

106 U. S. 196, 220, 221, 27 L. ed. 171, 181, 182,

1 Sup. Ct. Rep. 240; Balknap v. Schild, 161 U.

S. 10, 18, 40 L. ed. 599, 601, 16 Sup. Ct. Rep. 443;

Tindal v. Wesley, 167 U. S. 204, 42 L. ed. 137, 17

Sup. Ct. Rep. 770; Scranto:i v. Wheeler, 179 U. S.

141, 152, 45 L. ed. 126, 133, 21 Sup. Ct. Rep. 48.

And in case of an injury threatened by his illegal

action, the officer cannot claim immunity from injunc-

tion process. The principle has frequently been ap-
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plied with respect to state oificers seeking to enforce

unconstitutional enactments. Osborn v. Bank of

United States, 9 Wheat. 738, 843, 868, 6 L. ed. 204,

229, 235; Davis v. Gray, 16 Wall. 203, 21 L. ed.

447; Pennover v. McCannaughty, 140 U. S. 1, 10, 35

L. ed. 363, 365, 11 Sup. Ct. Rep. 499; Scott v. Don-

ald, 165 U. S. 107, 112, 41 L. ed. 648, 653, 17 Sup.

Ct. Rep. 262; Smyth v. Ames, 169 U. S. 466, 42 L.

ed. 819, 18 Sup. Ct. Rep. 418; Ex parte Young, 209

U. S. 123, 159 160, 52 L. Ed. 714, 728, 729, 13 L. R.

A. (N. S.) 932, 28 Sup. Ct. Rep. 441, 14 A & E
Ann. Cas. 764; Ludwig v. Western U. Teleg. Co.,

216 U. S. 146, 54 h. ed. 423, 30 Sup. Ct. Rep. 280;

Herndon v. Chicago R. I. & P. R .Co., 218 U. S. 135.

155, 54 L. Ed. 970, 976, 30 Sup. Ct. Rep. 633; Hop-

kins V. Clemson -Agri. College, 221 U. S. 636, 643-

645, 55 L. ed. 890, 894, 895, 35 L. R. A. (N. S.)

243, 31 Sup. Ct. Rep. 654. And it is equally ap-

plicable to a Federal Officer acting in excess of his

authority or under an authority not validly conferred.

Noble V. Union River Logging R. Co., 147 U. S.

165, 171. 172, Z7 L. Ed. 123, 125, 126, 13 Sup. Ct.

Rep. 271 ; American School v. McAnnulty, 187 U.

S. 94, 47 L. ed. 90, 22> Sup. Ct. Rep. ?>Z.

"The complainant did not ask the court to interfere

with the official discretion of the Secretary of War,

but challenged his authority to do the things of whicli

complaint was made. The suit rests upon the charge

of abuse of power, and its merits must be determined

accordingly; it is not a suit against the United

States."
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The same holding is louiid in U'ork, Secretary of In-

terior c-. Louisiana, 269 U. S. 250, 46 S. C. 92, 70 L. Ed.

259, 263

:

"It is clear that if this order exceeds the authority

conferred upon the Secretary by law and is an illegal

act done under color of his office, he may l)e enjoined

from carrying it into effect. Noble v. Union River

Logging R. Co., 147 U. S. 165, 171, 172, 37 L. ed.

123, 125, 126, 13 Sup. Q. Rep. 271; (Airfield v.

United States, 211 U. S. 249, 261, 262, 53 L. ed. 168,

174, 175, 29 Sup. Ct. Rep. 62; Lane v. Watts, 234 U.

S. 525, 540, 58 L. ed. 1440, 1456, 34 Sup. Ct. Rep.

965; Payne v. Central P. R. Co., 255 U. S. 228, 238.

65 L. ed. 598, 603, 41 Sup. Ct. Rep. 314; Santa Fe

P. R Co.. V. Fall, 259 U. S. 197, 199, 66 L. ed. 896,

897, 42 Sup. Ct. Rep. 466; Colorado v. Toll, 268 U.

S. 228, 230, 69 L. ed. 927, 929, 45 Sup. Ct. Rep. 505.

A suit for such purposes is not one against the

United States, even though it still retains the legal

title to the lands, and it is not indispensable party.

Garfield v. United States, 211 U. S. 260, 262, 53 L.

ed. 174, 29 Sup. Ct. Rep. 62; Lane v. Watts,

234 U. S. 540, 58 L. ed. 1456, 34 Sup. Ct. Rep. 965."
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IV.

An Officer of the Board Has No Power, Under the

National Labor Relations Act, to Do Acts Inter-

fering With Validly Existing Contracts, Either

by Acts Colore Officio, or by Acts Entirely Out-

side Any Power of His Office.

The defendant Spreckels has do power, either by color

of his office as a subordinate of the Board, or as an indi-

vidual, to interfere with or to seek to abrogate the existing

contract between the plaintiff and the employer.

The complaint alleges two types of acts of interference

on the j)art of the defendant.

The first type of acts embraces the extra-jurisdictional

statements, encouragements and proddings by the defend-

ant Spreckels and his agents and employees suggesting to

the C. I. O. and to Ilarry Bridges, to treat the existing

contract as void, and to negotiate a new one.

The other type of acts consist of the wrongful use of

the machinery set up by the National Labor Relations Act,

to interfere with or defeat the existing contract of the

plaintiff.

(1) As to the first type of acts, it is plain that the Na-

tional Labor Relations Act nowhere authorizes either the

Board, or an officer thereof, to encourage or favor one

labor organization over the other, to express an opinion on

the validity of existing contracts, or to invite or suggest

action in conformance with the defendant's individual

preference of organizations. Nor may he, while the pur-

ported decision of the Board presumes, without deciding,

that the agreement of October 24, 1939, constitutes a con-

tract [R. 38] state that it is void in his opinion, and should
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be replaced by a new one which the C. I. O. should nego-

tiate at once.

If, by way of example, a judicial officer assumed in a

judicial proceeding, without deciding, that a certain docu-

ment was valid, and if he then got in touch with an inter-

ested party and suggested that in his opinion the document

was void and a new one should be negotiated, we would

find such conduct highly reprehensible. In fact, it is

almost inconceivable that this should occur at all. While

there may be some question as to a litigant's right to en-

join the judge in that event, similar reasons of policy do

not prevent a suit against an administrative officer who,

as we have seen, can clearly be enjoined, if he acts outside

of the scope of his authority.

(2) With respect to the second type of acts plaintiff

does not urge that the mere existence of a contract pre-

sents, abstractly, a bar to an election or to certification

proceedings It appears that the courts have not yet

stated whether an election can be held while an honest

contract is in effect.

If that ]30wer exists at all, there must be a bona fide

election. The proceedings cannot be made to serve the

purpose of undermining the existing honest contract. Pro-

ceedings under Section 9c* cannot be resorted to for the

purpose of emasculating the force of the contract or of

causing the collapse of the previously certified bargaining

unit that made it.

That the motive of the defendant in causing the ma-

chinery of the act to be set in motion was exactly that of

choking off the life of the contract is, in substance, but

^Pertinent provisions of the Act are set out in the Appendix hereto.
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nevertheless plainly, alleged. Tiiat these allegations are

not idle fancy appears from a comparison of the policy of

the Board in general on such matters with the result of

these purported proceedings.

While the Board has held that the existence of a contract

cannot prevent the exercise of its power to conduct certi-

lication proceedings,

American West-African Line, Inc., 4 N. T.. R. B.

1086;

Malone AUiminwyn Corp. Inc., 19 N. L. R. B. No.

52,

it has also plainly stated that in spite of certification pro-

ceedings an existing contract continues unabated. In Nezv

England Transportation Co., 1 N. L. R. B. 130, it is said:

"The whole process of collective bargaining and un-

restricted choice of representatives assumes the free-

dom of the employees to change their representatives,

while at the same time continuing the existing agree-

ments under ivhich the representatives must function.

The National Mediation Board has clearly stated this

principle in the following words:

"(2) Change of representatives under existing

agreements.—Where there is an agreement in efifect

between carrier and its employees signed by one set

of representatives and the employees choose new rep-

resentatives who are certified by the Board, the Board
has taken the position that a change in representation

does not alter or cancel any existing agreement made
in behalf of the employees by these previous repre-

sentatives. The only effect of a certification by the

Board is that the employees have chosen other agents

to represent them in dealing with the management
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under the existing" agreement. If a change in the

agreement is desired, the new representati\es are re-

(juired to give due notice of such desired change as

provided by the agreement or by the Railway Labor

Act. Conferences must then be held to agree in the

changes exactly as if the original representatives had

been continued." (Italics supplied.)

While this right of holding elections irrespective of

existing contracts is claimed by the Board to be unlim-

ited as long as there is a dispute concerning representa-

tion, it has been exercised only under a restricted set of

conditions. They are summarized as follows by Joseph

Rosenfarb, attorney for the Roard, in his book "The

National Labor Policy," pages 267-268:

''The general rule then, as modified by the factor of

time, may be stated as follows: Where the unex-

pired duration of the agreement is short the board

will not disturb the contractual relationship, but

where the existing exclusive contract has a long time

to run, it will not be a bar to a choice of representa-

tives. What duration of the contract is or is not a

bar to determination is a matter which may vary

under the circumstances of each case.

"The Board has apparently come to adopt the rule

that it zmll not proceed zvith an investigation of rep-

resentatives during the existence of a contract of a

year's duration until the time zvhcn the contract is

about to expire. 'The duration of the contract,' said

the Board in National Sugar Refining Co. of N. [.,

'is not for such a long period as to be contrary to

the purposes and policies of the i\ct.' The dissent of

lidwin S. Smith is predicated upon the argument that

the employees shall not be denied the right to change
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their representatives where the last determination, in

this case by a consent election, occurred more than

a year before.

"One of the A. F. of L. proposals for amendment

provides that:

"Change of membership in or of affiliation with

or withdrawal from a labor organization should not

impair the rights conferred by this Act on such ex-

clusive bargaining agent until either ( 1 ) the term

of any written contract made by it with an employer

has expired or (2) one year from the date of execu-

tion of such contract (where the contract extends

beyond one year) has elapsed, whichever is first

reached. Such labor organization shall have an in-

terest in its own right in said contract for said period.

"This Provision apparently seeks to enact into lazv'

the present position of the Board on the issue." (Ital-

ics supplied.)

These observations are not offered for the purpose of

suggesting that under its declared policy the Board should

not have acted the way it did. They are made in order

to show that plaintiff has a substantial basis for its alle-

gation that the mainsprings of this controversy were the

extra- jurisdictional motives of the defendant.

This shows, then, that proceedings under Section 9c

of the Act must stop -short of any inference with valid

and existing contracts.

Nor may the power of the Board under Section 9c

be exercised in such a fashion as to nullify or abrogate

such contract rights, since such conduct on the part of

the administrative officer would violate the requirement

of due process, not only for aiming at the cancellation of

a contract under the guise of an election proceeding with-
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out giving the parties affected any notice of tlie true

purpose of the alleged official action, but also because

unfairness of administrative officers in the performance

of their administrative functions inolates the due process

clause.

See Annotation in 98 A. L. R. 411.

This is not a case where a contract between the em-

ployer and the bargaining unit has come about by unfair

labor practices. In such an event interference by the

Board with the purported contract falls under the head

of prevention of unfair labor practices. Proceedings of

such a nature are authorized under Section 10 of the

Act. By reason of the fact that Section 10 refers back

to Section 8, such proceedings are directed exclusively

against employers. Incident to Board proceecHngs a con-

tract obtained by unfair labor practices can be ordered

to be cancelled. This was recently determined in Inter-

Association of Machinists v. National Labor Relations

Board, 85 L. Ed. 5.

We have been unable to find any case in which the

Board has interferred with or nullified a collective bargain-

ing agreement except where the contract itself zvas the

residt of unfair labor practices.

Since the acts of the administrative officer in our case

were in excess of his statutory jurisdiction they are void.

Kansas Home Ins. Co. v. Wilder, 43 Kan. 731

;

23 Pac. 1061

;

Gonzales v. Williams, 192 U. S. 1, 24 S. Ct. 177;

48 L. Ed. 317;

Ng Fung Ho v. White, 249 U. S. 276, 42 S. Ct.

492; 66 L. Ed. 938;

United States v. Tod, 263 U. S. 149; 44 S. Ct.

54;68L. Ed. 221.
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V.

Defendant's Acts Being Outside the Scope of the

Authority Conferred Upon Him by Statute, the

Review Provisions of the Statute Are Inapplicable.

The discussion so far has shown that the acts of the

defendant are not within the powers conferred upon him

or the Board by the National Labor Relations Act, and

that they must therefore be considered as the acts of the

defendant as an individual.

Now, the Act contains no provision for the review or

prevention of acts by the Board or its officers outside

the scope of their powers as conferred by the Act. The

review procedure of Section 10 contemplates and requires

an order of the Board. Only an order can be reviewed

by appropriate proceedings, to wit, a petition for en-

forcement or review, as the case may be, to a United

States Circuit Court of Appeals. It has been expressly

held that the certification of an employee group as the

legally constituted bargaining agent is not an order, and

that, therefore, the certification cannot be reviewed.

American Federation of Labor v. National Labor

Relations Boctrd, 308 U. S. 400; 84 L. Ed. 347.

Incidentally, this case suggests (84 L. Ed., at p. 354)

that the court is not deciding whether the action of the

Board in certifying an employee unit as the properly

constituted bargaining representative can be reviewed by

independent suit. This question is expressly left open.
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It can be readily seen that for a very grave injustice

or injury resulting from the unwarranted interference

with its contract under the guise of an election proceeding

an employee unit such as the plaintiff, is entirely without

administrative or other legal remedy. As already pointed

out, a certification proceeding does not in and of itself

result in an order. It is only after the employer refuses

to bargain with the unit certitied to it that the Board can

issue an order of compliance. Not until then is there a

subject for review by the Circuit Court of Appeals. It

is conceivable, and in the instant case evident, that if

the employer does not refuse to act pursuant tu the certi-

fication in question, an order directing the employer to

comply can never result. Therefore, there will never be

an order with respect to which the review provisions of

the National Labor Relations Act can be called into

operation. The improperly ousted unit is simply helpless

under the Act. That is why the remedy provided by the

statute is inadequate. For that reason equity must step

in and fill the gap, especially when the complaint is not

directed against the certification proceeding as such but

against defendant's unauthorized and unwarranted inter-

ference with plaintiff's contract which, according to the

allegations of the complaint, is continuous.

There can be no question that the loss of prestige,

loss of membership and inability to administer its trust

to its members constitute an actual and irreparable injury

to the plaintiff which cannot be properly measured in

damages. In fact, the only element which can be approxi-
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mated by figures is the amount of dues lost by the plain-

tiff because of the wrongful acts of the defendant, and

the amount of expenses to which the plaintiff has been

put by reason of the unlawful acts.

No other remedy except injunctive relief is effective or

even available in this case. As the situation now stands,

the employer will not do anything on which an order

against it, under Section 10 of the Act, may be forth-

coming.

If the employer refuses to continue to bargain with

the plaintiff—which it in fact is doing—the plaintiff has

no remedy under the Act which is effective, or which it

can invoke, because the purported proceedings find that

plaintiff is not a regularly constituted bargaining unit.

If the employer should refuse also to bargain with the

C. I. O., which defendant says is the regularly constituted

bargaining unit, an order might be issued under Section

10 against the employer. In that event this employer

cannot say it is refusing to bargain with the C. I. O.

because it still considers plaintiff the employee representa-

tive, since in fact it is also refusing to bargain with plain-

tiff. No review which may be had at the behest of the

C. I. O. can possibly enure to the benefit of this plaintiff.

Therefore, plaintiff at this point is without any remedy

whatsoever, unless equity intervenes.
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VI.

The District Courts of the United States Have General

Jurisdiction to Enjoin the Board, or Its Officers,

From Committing Acts Unauthorized by the

National Labor Relations Act.

There is no decision that appellant has been able to

hnd which states that an officer of the National Labor

Relations Board can be broiig-ht before the Circuit Court

of Appeals under the review provisions of the National

Labor Relations Act for exceeding the jurisdictional

limitations of the Act.

As far as the defendant, as an individual, is concerned,

and as far as his acts are those of an individual, the

National Labor Relations Act, and its review provisions

are utterly inapplicable.

The question whether official acts of the Buard and its

officers other than orders can be dealt with only by way

of review in the Circuit Court of Appeals is still an open

one. No decision can be found that an independent suit

against the National Labor Relations Board, or its officers,

is never possible or proper.

There have been on the contrary repeated pronounce-

ments, dicta, it is true, on the part of the Federal Courts

stating that a situation might be conceived where tlie

ordinary equity powers of the Federal Courts cjuld be

invoked against the Board.

We call attention to the following opinions:

American Fed. of Labor 7'. National Labor Rela-

tions Board, 84 L. Ed. 253, 259:

"The Board argues that the provisions of the

Wagner Act, particularly par. 9(d), have foreclosed

review of its challenged action by independent suit
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in the district court, such as was allowed under other

acts providing- for a limited court review in Chiekls

V. Utah Idaho C. R. Co., 305 US 177, 83 L. ed. Ill,

59 S. Ct. 160, and in Utah Fuel Co. v. National

Bituminous Coal Commission, 306 US 56, 83 L. ed.

483, 59 S. Ct. 409 ; cf. Myers v. Bethlehem Shipbuild-

ing Corp., 303 US 41, 82 L. ed. 638, 58 S. Ct. 459.

But that question is not presented for decision by

the record before us. Its answer involves a de-

termination whether the Wagner Act, in so far as

it has given legally enforceable rights, has deprived

the district courts some portion of their original

jurisdiction conferred by para. 24 of the Judicial

Code, 28 USCA para. 41. It can be appropriately

answered only upon a showing in such a suit that

unlawful action of the Board has inflicted an injury

on the petitioners for which the law, apart from the

review provisions of the Wagner Act, affords a

remedy. This question can be properly and ade-

quately considered only when it is brought to us for

review upon a suitable record."

Bethlehem Shipbuilding Corp. v. Nylandcr, 14 Fed.

Supp. 201, 204:

*'•
. . and there can be no presumption that

these men of standing are going to embarrass com-

plainant by attempting to pry into complainant's

trade secrets (they would be irrelevant to any issue)

or do other and harmful and unnecessary acts. If

they do actually attempt such, this court is open for

prompt preventive action/' (Italics ours.)
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Again, on page 208:

'*I am not prepared to say, however, that circum-

stances might not arise in this case, or in any other

case, under the subject-matter of the act, that would

justify an application to the District Court for

relief."

Also, on page 208, it is said:

"T therefore think that the District Court is open

at all times with jurisdiction to try a case wherein

imminent, irreparable injury is properly alleged as to

subject-matter and as to parties defendant."

Northrop Corp. i<. Madden, et al—also

Aircraft Workers' Union v. Nylandcr, ct al. (U. S.

Dist. Ct. S. D. California), 30 Fed. Supp. 993,

995:

"The fact that plaintiffs may fear that the ultimate

action of the Board may result in harm to them

does not warrant action before the harm becomes

real.

"It is not the province of courts of equity to use

the extraordinary remedy of injunction to allay a

litigant's fears. They will interfere only in proper

cases to prevent threatened infraction of rights.

Neither complaint discloses grounds for such inter-

ference. Hence the conclusion already announced."
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VII.

A Suit Against a Subordinate Officer of the Board to

Enjoin Him From Doing Acts Not Authorized by

Statute Is Not in Effect a Suit Against the Board.

Such Board Is Not an Indispensible Party De-

fendant, Because the Doctrine of Respondeat

Superior Does Not Apply to Subordinate Agents

of the Government.

It was suggested in the District Court that the Board is

an indispensible party to the action because the acts of

Spreckels, as an officer of the Board, are in fact the acts

of the Board.

Where wrongful and illegal acts are in question, that

is, acts outside of the jurisdiction of the Board, it is not

an indispensible, or even necessary, party. No principle

is better settled in public law than that the doctrine of

respondeat superior does not apply to the acts of subordi-

nate public officers. If a subordinate officer commits a

wrongful act for which he is amenable to the court, his

superior is not responsible or liable. Therefore, clearly,

he should not be joined in the action.

Colorado v. Toll, 268 U. S. 228 (the pertinent

portion has been ([uoted already under Point II).

Cases which hold that a principal is not liable for

acts of his deputy out of the line of his official duty or

beyond the power conferred upon him by virtue of his

appointment are very numerous. We cite only the follow-

ing cases from this jurisdiction:

Fresno National Bank v. Hazvkins, 93 Cal. 551:

29 Pac. 233;

Michel V. Smith, 188 Cal. 199: 205 Pac. 113;

Baisley v. Henry, 55 Cal. App. 760: 204 Pac. 399;

Hilton V, Oliver, 204 Cal. 535; 269 Pac. 425;
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Noack V. Zellcrbach, 11 Cal. App. (2d) 186; 53

Pac. (2d) 986.

The suit against the defendant Spreckels is therefore

maintainable without joining the Board.

Conclusion.

This case presents a controversy of first impression.

The action of the defendant, whether considered as pur-

ported official acts, or acts of an individual, are un-

authorized under the National Labor Relations Act and

void. All purported orders and utterances by the defend-

ant are imjjroper and void. Since they are not authorized

by the National Labor Relations Act, the review provisions

of the Act are not applicable. Therefore, this suit against

the defendant is a suit for a wrong inflicted upon the

plaintiff by the defendant in excess of his authority, and

since plaintiff is without remedy under the Nati(Mial Labor

Relations Act, its only recourse under the facts stated

in the complaint is to a court of equity.

We respectfully submit that the District Court, as a

court of equity, should have entertained this complaint,

ascertained its merits, and entered judgment accordingly,

rather than to dismiss the complaint on the erroneous

assumption that it was without jurisdiction, and that the

]:)laintiff was relegated to whatever review machinery the

National Labor Relations Act provided.

Therefore, we respectfully urge that the judgment of

the District Court should be reversed.

Respectfully submitted,

Redmond S. Brennan,

W. L Gilbert, Jr.,

Jean Wunderlich,

Attorneys for Plaintiff and Appellant.

i



APPENDIX.

Excerpts From National Labor Relations Act.

(49 Statutes 449.)

Sec. 8. it shall he an unfair labor practice for an em-

ployer

—

(1) To interfere with, restrain, or coerce employees in

the exercise of the rights guaranteed in section 7,

(2) To dominate or interfere with the formation or

administration of any labor organization or contribute

financial or other support to it: Provided, That subject

to rules and regulations made and published by the Board

pursuant to section 6 (a), an employer shall not be pro-

hibited from permitting employees to confer with him

during working hours' without loss of time or pay.

(3) By discrimination in regard to hire or tenure of

employment or anv term or condition of employment to

encourage or discourage membership in any labor organ-

ization: Provided, That nothing in this Act, or in the

National Industrial Recovery Act (U. S. C, Supp. \TI,

title 15, sees. 701-712), as amended from time to time,

or in any code or agreement approved or prescribed there-

under, or in any other statute of the United States, shall

preclude an employer from making an agreement with a

labor organization (not established, maintained, or as-

sisted by any action defined in this Act as an unfair labor

practice) to require as a condition of employment mem-
bership therein, if such labor organization is the repre-

sentative of the employees as provided in section 9 (a),

in the appropriate collective bargaining unit covered by

such agreement when made.
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(4) To discharge or otherwise discriminate against an

employee because he has filed charges or given testimony

under this Act.

(5) To refuse to bargain collectively with the repre-

sentatives of his employees, subject to the provisions of

section 9 (a).

REPRESENTATIVES AND ELECTIONS

Sec. 9. (a) Representatives designated or selected for

the purposes of collective bargaining by the majority of

the employees in a unit appropriate for such purposes,

shall be the exclusive representatives of all the employees

in such unit for the purposes of collective bargaining in

respect to rates of pay, wages, hours of employment, or

other conditions of employment : Proindcd, That any in-

dividual employee or a group of employees shall have

the right at any time to present grievances to their em-

ployer.

(b) The Board shall decide in each case whether, in

order to insure to employees the full benefit of their right

to self-organization and to collective bargaining, and

otherwise to effectuate the policies of this Act. the unit

appropriate for the puri)oses of collective bargaining shall

be the employer unit, craft unit, ])lant unit, or subdivision

thereof.

(c) Whenever a (juestion affecting commerce arises

concerning the representation of employees, the Roard may

investigate such controversy and certify to the parties, in

writing, the name or names of the representatives that

have been designated or selected. Tn any such investiga-

tion, the Board shall provide for an a])pro])riate hearing

upon due notice, either in c(jnjunction with a proceeding
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under section 10 or otherwise, and may take a secret

ballot of employees, or utilize any other suitable method

to ascertain such representatives.

(d) Whenever an order of the Board made pursuant to

section 10 (c) is based in whole or in part upon facts cer-

tified following an investigation pursuant to subsection

(c) of this section, and there is a petition for the enforce-

ment or review of such order, such certification and the

record of such investigation shall be included in the tran-

script of the entire record required to be filed under sub-

sections 10 (e) or 10 (f), and thereupon the decree of the

court enforcing, modifying, or setting aside in whole or

in part the order of the Board shall be made and entered

upon the pleadings, testimony, and proceedings set forth

in such transcript.

PREVENTION OF UNFAIR LABOR PRACTICES

Sec. 10. (a) The Board is empowered, as hereinafter

provided, to prevent any person from engaging in any un-

fair labor practice (listed in section 8) afTecting com-

merce. This power shall be exclusive, and shall not be

affected by any other means of adjustment or prevention

that has been or may be established by agreement, code,

law, or otherwise.

(b) Whenever it is charged that any person has en-

gaged in or is engaging in any such unfair labor practice.

the Board, or any agent or agency designated by the

Board for such purposes, shall have power to issue and

cause to be served upon such person a complaint stating

the charges in that respect, and containing a notice of

hearing before the Board or a member thereof, or before

a designated agent or agency, at a place therein fixed, not



less than five days after the serving of said complaint.

Any such complaint may be amended l^y the member,

agent, or agency conducting the hearing or the Board in

its discretion at any time prior to the issuance of an order

based thereon. The person so complained of shall have

the right to file an answer to the original or amended

complaint and to appear in perscjn or otherwise and give

testimony at the place and time fixed in the complaint.

In the discretion of the member, agent or agency conduct-

ing the hearing or the Board, any other person may be

allowed to intervene in the said ])roceeding and to present

testimony. Tn any such proceeding the rules of evidence

prevailing in courts of law or equity shall not be con-

trolling.

(c) The testimony taken by such member, agent or

agency or the Board sliall be reduced to writing and

filed with tlie Board. Thereafter, in its discretion,

the Board upon notice may take further testimony

or hear argument. If upon all the testimony taken

the Board sliall be of the opinion that any person

named in the complaint has engaged in or is engag-

ing in any such unfair labor practice, then the Board

shall state its findings of fact and shall issue and cause to

be served on such person an order requiring such person

to cease and desist from such unfair labor i)ractice, and

to take such affirmative action, including reinstatement of

employees with or without back pay, as will efifectuate

the policies of this Act. Such order may further require

such person to make reports from time to time showing

the extent to which it has complied with the order. Tf

upon all the testimony taken the Board shall be of the

opinion that no person named in the complaint has en-

gaged in ov is engaging in any such unfair labor practice,
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then the Board shall state its iindings of fact and shall

issue an order dismissing the said complaint.

(d) Until a transcript of the record in a case shall

have been filed in a court, as hereinafter provided, the

Board may at any time, upon reasonable notice and in

such manner as it shall deem proper, modify or set aside,

in whole or in part, any finding or order made or issued

by it.

(e) The Board shall have power to petition any circuit

court of appeals of the United States (including the Court

of Appeals of the District of Columbia), or if all the cir-

cuit courts of appeals to which application may be made

are in vacation, any district court of the United States

(including the Supreme Court of the District of Colum-

bia), within any circuit or district, respectively, wherein

the unfair labor practice in question occurred or wherein

such person resides or transacts business, for the enforce-

ment of such order and for appropriate temporary relief

or restraining order, and shall certify and file in the

court a transcript of the entire record in the proceeding,

including the pleadings and testimony upon which such

order was entered and the findings and order of the

Board. Upon such filing, the court shall cause notice

thereof to be served upon such person, and thereupon

shall have jurisdiction of the proceeding and of the ques-

tion determined therein, and shall have power to grant

such temporary relief or restraining order as it deems

just and proper, and to make and enter upon the plead-

ings, testimony, and proceedings set forth in such tran-



script a decree enforcing, modifying, and enforcing as so

modified, or setting aside in whole or in part the order

of the Board. No objection thac has not been urged be-

fore the Board, its member, agent or agency, shall be con-

sidered by the court, unless the failure or neglect to urge

such objection shall be excused because of extraordinary

circumstances. The findings of the Board as to the facts,

if supported by evidence, shall be conclusive. If either

party shall apply to the court for leave to adduce addi-

tional evidence and shall show to the satisfaction of the

court that such additional evidence is material and that

there were reasonable grounds for the failure to adduce

such evidence in the hearing before the Board, its mem-

ber, agent, or agency, the court may order such additional

evidence to be taken before the Board, its member, agent,

or agency, and to be made a part of the transcript. The

Board may modify its findings as to the facts, or make

new findings, by reason of additional evidence so taken

and filed, and it shall file such modified or new findings,

which, if supported by evidence shall be conclusive, and

shall file its recommendations, if any, for the modification

or setting aside of its original order. The jurisdiction of

the court shall be exclusive and its judgment and decree

shall be final, except that the sanie shall be subject to re-

view by the appropriate circuit court of appeals if appli-

cation was made to the district court as hereinabove pro-

vided, and by the Supreme Court of the United States

upon writ of certiorari or certification as provided in

sections 2?)^) and 240 of the Judicial Code, as amended

(U. S. C, title 28, sees. 346 and 347).
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(f) Any person aggrieved by a final order of the

Board granting or denying in whole or in part the relief

sought may obtain a review of such order in any circuit

court of appeals of the United States in the circuit

wherein the unfair labor practice in question was

alleged to have been engaged in or wherein such

person resides or transacts business, or in the Court of

Appeals of the District of Columbia, by filing in such

court a written petition praying that the order of the

Board be modified or set aside. A copy of such petition

shall be forthwith served upon the Board, and thereupon

the aggrieved party shall file in the court a transcript of

the entire record in the proceeding, certified by the Board,

including the pleading and testimony upon which the order

complained of was entered and the findings and order of

the Board. Upon such filing, the court shall proceed in

the same manner as in the case of an application by the

Board under subsection (e), and shall have the same ex-

clusive jurisdiction to grant to the Board such temporary

relief or restraining order as it deems just and proper,

and in like m.anner to make and enter a decree enforcing,

modifying, and enforcing as so modified, or setting aside

in whole or in part the order of the Board; and the find-

ings of the Board as to facts, if supported by evidence,

shall in like manner be conclusive.

(g) The commencement of proceedings under subsec-

tion (e) or (f) of this section shall not, unless specifically

ordered by the court, operate as a stay of the Board's

order.



(h) When granting appropriate temporary relief or a

restraining order, or making and entering a decree en-

forcing, modifying, and enforcing as so modified or set-

ting aside in whole or in part an order of the Board, as

provided in this section, the jurisdiction of courts sitting

in equity shall not be limited by the Act entitled "An Act

to amend the Judicial Code and to define and limit the

jurisdiction of courts sitting in equity, and for other

purposes," approved March 23, 1932 (U. S. C, Supp.

VII, title 29, sees. 101-115).

(i) Petitions filed under this Act shall be heard expedi-

tiously, and if possible within ten days after they have

been docketed.
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In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals
for the Ninth Circuit

No. 9681

Amalgamated Meat Cuttebs & Butcher Workmen of

North America, Local No. 207, appellant

V.

Walter P. Speeckels, Individually and as Regional
Director, 21st Region, of the National Labor Re-
lations Board, appellee

BRIEF FOR THE APPELLEE

JITBISDICTION

This case is before the Court on an appeal from a de^

cree of the United States District Court, Southern Dis-

trict of California, Central Division, dismissing the

complaint in an action for an injunction.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

Proceedings before the Board

The action arises out of a proceeding before the Na-

tional Labor Relations Board, under Section 9 (c) of

the National Labor Relations Act, for the investigation

and certification of representatives.' The steps in that

^ Matter of Cudahy Packing Corrvpany and Packing House
Workers Organizing CoTnmittee^ C. I. O., Case No. E-1718, 22

N. L. K. B., No. 83 ; 24 N. L. R. B., No. 32.

288697—41 1 (1)



proceeding are detailed in the Board's Direction of

Election and Certification of Representatives which ap-

pear in the record (R. 29-48). Briefly snmmarized,

they are as follows

:

On October 17, 1939, Packing House Workers Organ-

izing Committee, C. I. O., herein called P. W. O. C,
filed with the Regional Director for the Twenty-first

Region of the National Labor Relations Board a peti-

tion, pursuant to Section 9 (c) of the Act and Article

III of the Board's Rules and Regulations, Series 2,

alleging that a question of representation affecting

commerce had arisen among the employees of Cudahy

Packing Company at Los Angeles, and that a majority

of the employees in the unit involved had designated

P. W. O. C. as their collective bargaining representa-

tive, and requesting the Board to conduct an investiga-

tion and certify the representative designated by a ma-

jority of the employees in the unit in question (R. 29).

On October 20, 1939, notice was given to the appellant

and the Company of the filing of the petition by P. W.
O. C. and of its claim to designation as collective bar-

gaining representative by a majority of the employees

in the unit (R. 36). On December 22, 1939, the Board

ordered an investigation and authorized the Regional

Director to conduct it and provide for appropriate

hearing on due notice (R. 29). The Regional Director,

appellee herein, pursuant to such order and authoriza-

tion of the Board, served notices of hearing on the ap-

pellant, the employer, and P. W. O. C. (R. 29). Pur-

suant thereto, a hearing was held before a Trial Exam-
iner from January 25 to February 12, 1940, in which

appellant, given full opportunity to be heard, to exam-



ine and cross-examine witnesses, and to introduce evi-

dence, appeared and was represented by counsel (R,

29-30). On March 14, 1940, pursuant to notice, oral

argument was had before the Board, in which counsel

for appellant participated (R. 31). On April 17, 1940,

the Board issued its Decision and Direction of Election

(R. 29^6), in which the Board directed the Regional

Director, appellee herein, to conduct an election by

secret ballot in order to ascertain the employees' choice

of representative as between appellant and P. W. O. C
(R. 29-46).^

Pursuant to the Board's Direction of Election, ap-

pellee on May 16, 1940, conducted an election by secret

ballot, and on May 17, pursuant to the Board's Rules,

issued and served his Election Report on all parties

(R. 47). Neither appellant nor any other party filed

any objection to the conduct of the election or the Re-

port (R. 47). The *Report showing that a majority of

the votes were cast in favor of P. W. O. C, the Board,

on June 6, 1940, issued its formal Certification of Rep-

resentatives, certifying P. W. O. C. as the collective

bargaining representative of the employees in the unit

in question (R. 46-48).

Proceedings before the District Court

After the conclusion of the proceeding before the

Board, the appellant,'on July 1, 1940, instituted an ac-

^ In its Decision the Board held that a closed-shop contract,

purported to have been entered into between appellant and the

employer on November 2, 1939, after notice to them of the fihng

of the petition and of the claim of the petitioning union to its

designation as collective bargaining representative by a majority

of the employees, was not a bar to the election (R. 34—39).



tion for an injunction against the appellee and the

Board in the District Court (R. 26-27).' On motions

of the appellee and the Board, respectively, the com-

plaint in that action was dismissed as to appellee for

lack of jurisdiction of the subject matter, and the sum-

mons quashed as to the Board for lack of personal

jurisdiction over it (R. 26-27).

Thereupon, on July 22, 1940, appellant instituted

this present action against appellee '^individually and

as Regional Director, 21st Region," the complaint in

which (R. 2-16) alleged that appellant was a labor

organization, that in October 1938 it was chosen as

collective bargaining representative by a majority of

the employees in a consent election held mider Board

auspices, and that on November 2, 1939, it entered into

a contract with the Cudahy Packing Company (R.

2-3),* and, in substance, that the various steps taken

by appellee in the representation proceeding above

described constituted an interference with its contract

(R. 4-6). The relief sought by appellant is that ap-

pellee' be enjoined from thus interfering with its con-

^ ATnaXgamated Meat Cutters & Butcher Workmen of N. A.

Local :f^207 V. National Labor Relations Board and Walter P.

Spreckels^ Regional Director^ 2l8t Region (S. D. Cal. C. D., Civil

No. 1052H). But for the inclusion of the Board in that case as

a party, the complaint there was identical in subject matter and

relief sought to the comiDJaint in the instant case (R. 26).

^ The date of the entry into the contract, as appears from the

record (R. 36-37), was 16 days after the filing of the petition by

P. W. O. C. and 13 days after appellant and the employer were

notified of the filing of the petition and the petitioning union's

claim to a majority.



tract or conducting further hearings or elections in

the matter (R. 7-8).

Appellee thereafter filed a motion to dismiss the com-

plaint (R. 21-49), which was heard by the court below?

on July 30, 1940 (R. 49). On August 3, 1940, Honor-

able Leon R. Yankwich, Judge of the court below, ren-

dered his decision (R. 56-57), and on August 13, 1940,

entered his decree (R. 57-60) dismissing the complaint

on the various grounds there stated. After institut-

ing unsuccessful mandamus proceedings against Judge

Yankwich,^ appellant filed its present appeal (R. 60).

QUESTION PRESENTED

Appellant in its brief (p. 5) poses a number of ques-

tions which are in no way presented by its complaint.

The basic question is whether, notwithstanding the ex-

clusive procedure provided in the National Labor Re-

lations Act for the m^atters complained of, the District

Court possesses jurisdiction to enjoin an agent of the

Board from the performance of his official functions.

The subsidiary questions are whether the complaint

alleges a cause of action entitling appellant to injunc-

tive relief, and whether the matters sought to be

enjoined are moot and whether the Board is an indis-

pensable party to the action.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

I. The United States District Court is without juris-

diction of the subject matter of the complaint.

^ AmalgaTnated Meat Cutters v. Honorable Leon R. Yankwich^
Judge, C. C. A. 9, No. 9592, decision rendered October 21, 1940,

denying petition for mandamus.
288697—41 2
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The matters set forth in the complaint are governed

by the procedure set forth in the Act and the jurisdic-

tion conferred upon the Board and the reviewing Cir-

cuit Courts of Appeals is exclusive.

II. The complaint fails to state a cause of action war-

ranting injunctive relief within the jurisdiction of the

District Court.

A. The complaint fails to set forth facts showing

that any right of appellant is invaded by appellee or

that appellant is threatened with irreparable damage

cognizable in equity as a result of any matters com-

plained of.

B. The procedure of the Act, by its terms, affords a

full, adequate, and complete administrative remedy for

any of the matters complained of in the complaint

which appellant has failed to exhaust.

III. The matters sought to be enjoined, in ajjdition

to being moot, are those which only the Board can per-

form and not the appellee Spreckels as a subordinate

agent. The complaint must therefore be dismissed for

lack of jurisdiction over the Board, an indispensable

party.

ARGUMENT

The United States District Court is without jurisdiction of

the subject matter of the complaint

A. Under the terms and provisions of the Act, the matters set forth in the

complaint are within the exclusive jurisdiction of the Board in the first

instance, subject to ultimate review, as provided thereunder, by the Cir-

cuit Court of Appeals

Appellant, at this late date, raises an issue which has

been conclusively determined by the highest judicial



authority. It is plain that the allegations of the com-

plaint (R. 2-9), stripped of conclusions and factually

unsupported inferences which permeate it, are based

upon the routine performance by the appellee of his

functions as Regional Director in a proceeding mider

Section 9 (c) within the exclusive jurisdiction of the

Board, such as '^ publishing notices of hearing" and

** giving notices of an election" (R. 4), and upon the

performance by the Board of acts within its exclusive

jurisdiction, such as conducting a hearing in Washing-

ton, and issuing the Direction of Election and Certifica-

tion of Representatives in question (R. 5; 29-48).

The complaint, "so uncertain in aim and so meagre in

particulars" as to "fall short of the standard of candor

and precision" required of a complainant in an in-

junction action,** is not clear as to the basis for appel-

ant 's grievance, but it appears to be that the rights

which it claims under the contract of November 2,

1939, are alleged to have been invaded by the repre-

sentation proceeding. Plainly, the matter in question

is one within the exclusive jurisdiction of the Board,

for whether or not the purported contract was a bar

to the proceeding of the Board and to the action taken

by appellee, as agent of the Board within such proceed-

ing, is a question which the Board is required to deal

with and determine in a representation proceeding.

Nothing is now more firmly established than that these

matters, involving the application of the provisions of

the Act in a given situation, have been vested by Con-

Cf. Hegemom Farms Co. v. Baldwin, 293 U. S. 163, 170.
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gress exclusively in the Board for decision/ and that a

District Court is without jurisdiction to interfere with

the Board or its agents in exercising such jurisdiction.

To hold otherwise ''would, ... in effect, substitute the

District Court for the Board as the tribunal to hear and

determine what Congress declared the Board exclu-

sively should hear and determine in the first instance. '-'

Myers v. Bethlehem Shiphuilding Corp., 303 U. S. 41,

48, 50. A complaint which seeks to have the District

Court pass upon matters so vested in the Board for

determination presents "an insuperable objection to the

maintenance of the suit in point of jurisdiction," idem,

p. 52; Netvport Netvs Shiphuilding Co. v. Schaufjler,

303 U. S. 54. This Court has held to the same effect

in Carlisle Lumber Company v. Hope, 83 F. (2d) 92

(C. C. A. 9, 1936). In accord also are the various Dis-

trict Courts of this Circuit, in addition to the court

below in the instant case, which had passed on this

question. Bethlehefn Shiphuilding Corp. v. Nylander,

14 F. Supp. 201 (Stephens, J.) ; Aircraft Workers

Union, Inc. v. Nylander (S. D. Calif. Yankwich, J.),

decided August 18, 1937, No. 1230-M; Northrup Cor-

poration V. Nylander (S. D. Calif., Yankwich, J.), de-

cided August 18, 1937, No. 1235-H ; 'Amalgamated Meat

Cutters & Butcher Workmen of North America, Local

No. 207 V. National Labor Relations Board awl Walter

P. Spreckels, Regional Director, 21st Region (S. D.

Calif., Harrison, J.) , decided July 12, 1940, No. 1052-H

;

' Subject, of course, to ultimate review by the Circuit Court of

Appeals under Section 9 (d), 10 (e), and 10 (f) of the Act (see

'post^ p. 15).



and this rule applies to representation proceedings under

Section 9 (c) with the same force and effect as un-

fair labor practice proceedings under Section 10. Hel-

ler Bros, V. Lind (6 cases), 86 F. (2d) 862 (C. A. D.

C), cert. den. 300 U. S. 672; Clark v. Lindemann &
Hover8071 Co. (7 cases), 88 F. (2d) 59 (C. C. A. 7);

Bradley Lumher Co. v. Labor Board, et al., 84 F. (2d)

97 (C. C. A. 5), cert. den. 299 U. S. 559.

So imbedded is the doctrine of the Board's exclusive

jurisdiction with respect to matters arising under the

Act that the courts have refused to take jurisdiction

even of suits inter partes which present for determina-

tion questions arising peculiarly under the Act. Thus,

in International BrotherJiood of Teamsters v. Interna-

tional Union of United Brewery Workers, 106 F. (2d)

871, 876, this Court held that an action does not lie in

a federal court for a.declaratory judgment determining

a collective bargaining agent ; since the unions ''have an

administrative tribunal established by Congress for the

specific purpose of determining the controversy con-

cerning the bargaining agent, the decision of that tri-

bunal, and not the federal court, first should have been

sought" (p. 876). To the same effect are United Elec-

trical, Radio (& Machine Workers of America v. Inter-

national Brotherhood of Electrical Workers, 115 F.

(2d) 488 (C. C. A. -2), and Blankenship et al. v.

Kurfman et al, 96 F. (2d) 450 (C. C. A. 7).

Appellant seeks to establish a basis for the District

Court's jurisdiction by alleging that the acts of appel-

lee have been performed and the proceedings of the

Board had been undertaken without justification or ex-
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cuse in law or in fact. This blanket assertion cannot

deprive the Board of its exclusive jurisdiction and vest

it in the District Court. As the Supreme Court de-

clared in Myers v. Bethlehem Shipbuilding Corp., Ltd.,

supra, at pages 51-52

:

Obviously, the rule requiring exhaustion of the

administrative remedy cannot be circumvented

by asserting that the charge on which the com-

plaint rests is groundless and that the mere hold-

ing of the prescribed administrative hearing

would result in irreparable damage. Lawsuits

also often prove to have been groundless ; but no

way has been discovered of relieving a defendant

from the necessity of a trial to establish the fact.

Plainly, the matters complained of by appellant fall

within the purview of the Board's exclusive jurisdic-

tion as vested in it by Congress, and the two District

Judges below, following a long line of unbroken author-

ity, correctly recognized that the subject matter of

appellant's complaint lay beyond the jurisdiction of the

District Court.

II

The complaint fails to state a cause of action warranting
injunctive relief within the jurisdiction of the district

court

A. The complaint fails to set forth facts showing that any right of appel-

lant is invaded by appellee, or that it has sustained irreparable damage
cognizable in equity as a result of the acts complained of

As heretofore stated, the complaint is permeated

with statements of unsupported conclusions and in-

ferences. Stripped of these matters, it is clear that
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the sole basis of the complaint is the routine perform-

ance by the Board and appellee of their functions and

duties under the Act. This is made plain from the

natvire of the only specific conduct which appellant

attributes to appellee as the basis for its grievance,

such as appellee's publishing notices of hearing and

giving notices of an election to be held in the repre-

sentation proceeding (R. 4), and ''causing" the Board

to hold a hearing in Washington and to issue the Di-

rection of Election and Certification in question (R. 5) .*

That the performance of these official functions is the

sole basis of the injunctive relief sought is further

shown in the prayer for relief in which the only spe-

cific conduct sought to be restrained is the ''holding

[of] any hearing or election for the selection of col-

lective bargaining agent, or any certification or desig-

nation of collective bargaining agent for said em-

ployees" (R. 7).

In addition to the fact that all of the acts sought to

be restrained have already been performed (see post

p. 16), the complaint is barren of a showing that

any right of appellant is being invaded or that it is

* Appellant includes other allegations which are plainly not

allegations of fact but mere inferences and conclusions which it

draws from appellee's conducting the hearing and election in

question, such as "intimidation" of the employer and employees

from performing the terms of the contract, "authorizing and en-

couraging" Harry Bridges to make assertions with reference to

the validity of the contract and the future designation of a

bargaining agent by the Board (R. 4) and, after the Board's

certification, "advising and encouraging" the C. I. O. to negotiate

a new contract with the employer (R. 5).
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being threatened with irreparable damage cognizable

in equity in consequence of the matters complained of.

Appellant admits that ''the mere existence of a con-

tract" constitutes no "bar to election or to certification

proceedings" (App. br. p. 16). The Board, faced with

that question held, pursuant to its long-established

policy, and with obvious correctness, that this contract,

entered into after notice to the parties of filing of the

petition under Section 9 (c) and of the petitioning

union's claim to a majority (R. 36-37), was not a bar

to the election to determine the employees' choice of

representatives (see Third Annual Report of the

Board, pp. 134-138 and cases cited). ^ Thereafter an

election was held, and, on the basis of the results, which

appellant has never questioned, the Board issued

its Certification. Obviously, no right of appellant was

or could have been invaded by the proceeding.

^ Appellant, in support of its assertion that the Board did not

follow its established practice in the instant case, has quoted from

the book "The National Labor Policy and Ho^Y it Works," written

by Mr. Joseph Rosenfarb, one of the attorneys on this brief.

(App. Br. p. 18.) The author desires to point out that the

portion quoted is inapplicable, and that the applicable portion is

the paragraph on page 2C7 immediately preceding appellant's

quotation and reading (with the footnotes omitted) :

"The factor of the duration of the contract is particularly

significant with reference to the time when the proceedings for

investigation and certification are undertaken. A contract is no

har to an election or certification when entered into or renewed

after hoard proceedings for an investigation and certification ha/ve

been started; when the petition has been filed or notice of claim

of majority has been given to the em,ployer before the date of the

renewal of the contract or the date when notice of abrogation is

to be given under the terms of the contracts [Italics supplied.]
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The proceeding did not adjudicate the validity of the

contract, but merely ascertained the employees' choice

of representative. The impairment to appellant's

** prestige" or the failure of the employer in view of

the results of the election, thereafter to perform its

purpo]^ed closed-shop contract with the appellant, are

not required by the certification of the Board or

any action of the appellee, and, in any event, are

mere incidents of carrying out the law of the land, which

imposes on the Board the power and the duty, in the

interest of allaying industrial strife and protecting

commerce, to resolve disputes over representation by

ascertaining and certifying the employees' free choice

of representatives. Nor does appellant strengthen its

position by urging that somewhere in its complaint may
be found matter which ^'in substance" alleges *'that the

motive of the defendant in causing the machinery of the

Act to be set in motion was exactly that of choking off

the life of the contract" (App. br. p. 16). The answer

is first that the "machinery of the Act" is under the

control of the Board and not this defendant (see post

pp. 16-19) and, secondly, equity jurisdiction cannot be

predicated upon imputations of bad faith to a public

official in the performance of his duties. Continental

Baking Co. v. Woodring, 286 U. S. 352; Lehma^i v.

Board of Accounting, 263 U. S. 394; E. I. Dupont de

Nemours d; Co. v. Boland, 85 F. (2d) 12, 14 (C. C. A. 2).

Not only is no showing made of any invasion of

appellant's rights, but there is no showing of damage

warranting injunctive relief. The injuries which ap-

pellant alleges, such as impairment of its "prestige"

and loss of members in consequence of its being out-

voted in the election, are not matters of which equity
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can take cognizance without stopping the very process

of Government itself. The Courts have described them

as **part of the social burden of living under govern-

ment," and as '*not the irreparable damage as to which

equity will interfere to prevent." Heller v. Lind, 86

F. (2d) 862 (App. D. C), cert. den. 300 U. S. 672;

Myers v. Bethlehem Shipbuilding Corp., supra., at p.

53; Newport Netvs Shipbuilding Co. v. Schauffler, su-

pra; Bradley Lumber Co. v. Labor Board, supra, at

p. 100.

B. The procedure of the National Labor Relations Act, by its terms, affords

a full, adequate, and complete administrative remedy for any of the

matters complained of in the complaint, which appellant has failed to

exhaust

There being nothing alleged which requires *' rem-

edy," we need not labor the obvious point that appel-

lant has been derelict in failing to exliaust its adminis-

trative remedies under the Act.

The proper forum for considering the appellant's

objections, if any, was not the District Court but the

Board itself. The Board was entitled to and had the

exclusive jurisdiction, under the Act, in the first in-

stance, to pass upon appellant's objections in connection

with the general question of whether the proceeding had

been conducted with due regard to the rights of the

parties and in such a manner as to reflect the free choice

of the employees. Matter of Tennessee Copper Co.,

8 N. L. R. B. 575 ; Matter of Cudahy Packing Co. (Kan-

sas City, Kans.), 26 N. L. R. B., No. 81; Matter of

Walker Vehicle Co., 7 N. L. R. B. 827 ; Matter of Penn-

sylvania Greyhound Lines, 4 N. L. R. B 271.
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The complaint is barren of any showing that the

matters which it here complains of were raised before

the Board."

Appellant, having failed to exhaust its remedies be-

fore the Board itself, is not in a position to raise the

question as to whether its remedy thereafter would have

been in the District Court or in the Circuit Court of

Appeals (App. Br. p. 24). We submit, however, that,

assuming, contrary to the record, that appellant had

raised all its objections before the Board, its remedy

even thereafter would be governed exclusively by the

procedure of the Act. Section 9 (d) of the Act pro-

vides that if the Board should in another proceeding,

pursuant to Section 10, issue an order based, in whole

or in part, on its certification, then a proceeding under

Section 10 (e) or (f) to enforce or review such order

brings up for review the record of the certification as

well. As repeatedly stated by the Courts, and as recog-

nized by the Court below, the remedies provided in the

Act are *' exclusive" and the exclusive jurisdiction con-

ferred thereunder may not be interfered with by the

District Courts. Myers v. Bethlehem Shipbuilding

Corp., supra; Newport Neivs ShiphuiJding Co. v.

Schauffler, supra; see also National Labor Relations

Board v. Jones d Laughlin Steel Corp., 301 U. S. 1,

46-47; American Federation of Labor v. National La-

bor Relations Board, 308 U. S. 401, 411.

" On the contrary, it will be recalled that appellant, although
fully participating in the Board proceeding, raised no objection

to the conduct of the election or to the Election Report which
appellee filed with the Board and served on all the parties (R.

47, supra, p. 3).
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III

The matters sought to be enjoined, in addition to being moot,

are those which only the Board can perform and not the

appellee Spreckels as a subordinate agent. The complaint

must therefore be dismissed for lack of jurisdiction over

the Board, an indispensable party

The only specific conduct which appellant seeks to

enjoin is the "holdin<;- of any hearing or election for

the selection of collective bargaining agent, or any cer-

tification or designation as collective bargaining agent

for said employees" (R. 7). The hearing and election

sought to be enjoined were held and the certification

issued prior to the commencement of the action (R. 29-

49; ante pp. 2-3). The case before the Board was

thus concluded and there is no showing that any further

hearing, election, or certification involving the em-

ployees in question is threatened or impending. The

action as to these matters is therefore moot. Richard-

son V. McChesney, 218 U. S. 487 ; Wingert v. First Na-

tional Bank, 223 U. S. 670. As stated by the Supreme

Court in Newport News Co. v. Schauffler, supra, p. 58

:

To the extent that relief was sought to pre-

vent the injury resulting from a hearing, the

cause appears to be moot.

The question of mootness aside, the acts sought to be

enjoined are those which only the Board can perfomi or

the appellee can undertake only at the direction of the

Board. The certification of representatives can only be

issued by the Board. A hearing or an election can only

be supervised by the appellee, and only under the direc-

tion of the Board. Therefore, if appellant should be
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granted the injunction it seeks, the real party enjoined

would be the Board and not the appellee. The Board

is thus an indispensable party, the absence of whom is

fatal to the maintenance of the action. Gnerich v.

Butter, 265 U. S. 388, 391-392 ; Wehster v. Fall, 266

U. S. 507, 510; Moore v. Anderson, 6S F. (2d) 191

(C. C. A. 9); Moodjj v. Johnston, 66 F. (2d) 999

(C. C. A. 9) ; Raichle v. Federal Reserve Bank, 34 F.

(2d) 910, 916 (C. C. A. 2) ; Alcohol Warehoiise Corp.

V. Canfield, 11 F. (2d) 214, 215 (C. C. A. 2) ; Natl. Con-

ference on Legalizing Lotteries v. Goldman and com-

panion cases, 85 F. (2d) 66, 67, 68 (C. C. A. 2). In the

Gnerich case, the Supreme Court dismissed a bill

against a local prohibition commissioner for failure to

join his superior, the Commissioner of Internal Rev-

enue, imder whose direction the acts sought to be en-

joined were performed. The Court stated (p. 391) :

* * * The prohibition conamissioner and the

prohibition director are mere agents and sub-

ordinates of the Commissioner of Internal Rev-

enue. They act under his direction and perform

such acts only as he commits to them by the

regulations. They are responsible to him and

must abide by his direction. What they do is

as if done by him. He is the public's real rep-

resentative in the matter, and, if the injunction

were granted, his are the hands which wotdd he

tied. All this being so, he should have been

made a party defendant—the principal one

—

and given opportunity to defend his direction

and regulations. Litchfield v. Register and Re-
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ceiver, 9 Wall. 575, 578; Plested v. Ahhey, 228

U. S. 42, 50-51. [Italics supplied.]

The Supi'eme Court also cited Warner Valley Stock

Co. V. Smith, 165 U. S. 28, with the following discussion

of the case which is a])posite here (p. 392) :

There an injunction was sought against the

Secretary of the Interior and the Commissioner

of the General Land Office to prevent them from
giving effect to prior orders of the Secretary

alleged to he outside his powers and hurtful to

the plaintiff. While the suit was pending the

Secretary resigned his office and there was at

that time no way of bringing his successor into

the suit. So, the question arose whether it could

be continued against the Commissioner alone.

The answer was in the negative, the Coui*t say-

ing, p. 34:

''The purpose of the bill was to control the action

of the Secretary of tlie Interior; the principal

relief sought was against him; and the relief

asked against the Commissioner of the General

Land Office was only incidental, and by way of

restraining him from executing the orders of his

official head. To maintain such a bill against

the subordinate officer alone, without joining his

superior, whose acts are alleged to have been un-

lawful, would be contrary to settled rules of

equity pleading." Calvert on Parties (2d ed.),

bk. 3, c. 13.

This Court, on the authority of the cases of Gnerich

V. Butter and Wel)ster v. Fall, supra, has held that

the complaint in a suit to enjoin local federal officers

from refusing to deliver a quantity of water to which
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plaintiffs claimed to be entitled under a contract with

the United States was defective in the absence of the

Secretary of the Interior as a party. Moore v. Ander-

son, 68 F. (2d) 191 (C. C. A. 9). See also Moody v.

Johnston, 66 F. (2d) 999 (C. C. A. 9).

The Board is a necessary party which has not and,

because of the official residence of the Board and its

members in the District of Columbia, cannot be brought

within the jurisdiction of the court below (Judicial

Code, Sec. 51, 28 U. S. C. A. §112; Internatioyial

Molders Union v. National Labor Relations Board, 26

F. Supp, 423 (E. D. Pa.) ; Amalgamated Meat Cutters

V. National Labor Relations Board et al. (S. D. Cal.

C. D. No. 1052H). That alone, independently of the

utter want of equity on the face of the complaint, was

sufficient to require dismissal of the bill.

' CONCLUSION

It is clear that the complaint is completely lacking

in a showing of jurisdiction in the lower court over the

subject matter; that the matter alleged is, under the

Act, and, as repeatedly held by the Circuit Courts

and the United States Supreme Court, within the ex-

clusive jurisdiction of the Board ; that no showing has

otherwise been made warranting equity intervention;

that the complaint is defective because of absence of

jurisdiction over the Board, an indispensable party;

and that the action, with respect to the matter sought

to be enjoined, is moot.
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It is respectfully submitted that the decision and de-

cree of the court below, dismissing the complaint, were

proper and should be affirmed.

Respectfully submitted.

Robert B. Watts,
General Counsel,

Malcolm F. Halliday,

Assistant General Counsel,

A. Norman Somers,

Joseph Rosenfarb,

Attorneys.

William R. Walsh,
Regio7ial Attorney, 21st Region,

National Labor Relations Board,

Appearing for Walter P. Spreckels, individually

and as Regional ^Director, 21st Region, of the Na-
tional Labor Relations Board.

February 1941.
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No. 9681.

IN THE

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

Amalgamated Meat Cutters & Butcher Workmen of

North America, Local No. 207,

Appellant,

vs.

Walter P. Spreckels, individually, and as Regional

Director, 21st Region, of the National Labor Relations

Board,

Appellee.

APPELLANT'S REPLY BRIEF.

Preliminary Statement.

Defendant's brief is an ingenious attempt to sidestep

the real issues in the case. It recognizes in an oblique

way that the complaint charges him with the commission

of acts which art not in the remotest sense a portion of

his duties as an agent of the Board. But, "stripped of

these matters", we are told the complaint involves only

a "routine performance by the Board and appellee of their

functions and duties under the act".

The matters which are to be ''stripped" ofif plaintiff's

complaint, however, are the ones that give this controversy

its particular status and color. Defendant gives no reason
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why the complaint should thus be "stripped". These are

precisely the matters which give rise to the important ques-

tions whether extra-legal utterances and activities under

the cloak of official status can be interfered with by injunc-

tive process, or, whether such extra-legal utterances and

activities, since they cannot be properly and effectively

reviewed by the review machinery of the statute, must go

unremedied to the irreparable injury of the plaintiff.

The Question Involved.

The question, therefore, is not whether the District

Court has jurisdiction to enjoin an agent of the Board

from the performance of his official function, but the

question is:

Does an agent perform an official function when he

"wrongfully" intimidates and causes "said employer and

numerous employees of said plant who were members, and

are members, of plaintiff, and embraced within said con-

tract, from the performance of said contract and from

complying with the full obligations . . . thereof"

[R. p. 4], and where he authorizes and encourages "one

Harry Bridges and others who claimed to be affiliated with

the labor organization known as the C.I.O., to declare and

proclaim to said employees that said contract was void?"

[R. p. 4].

That these charges are serious, and that they are the

type of charges which the Labor Board, for its own pres-

tige, would want to have investigated by a tribunal other

than itself would seem obvious.

On the contrary, however, its agent seeks refuge behind

the untenable claim of administrative immunity, by sug-
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gesting that an inquiry of the nature stated in the com-

plaint should be brought before its own trial examiners,

whose findings as to the facts—if supported by evidence,

no matter how conflicting—would then be binding upon

the reviewing Circuit Court of Appeals.

The plain fact is that plaintiff's particular grievance

touching the extra-official activities of defendant, per-

formed under color of office, can not under any provisions

of the National Labor Relations Act be brought to a

hearing before that Board. Nor does defendant point out

what review can be had of the activities of which he sug-

gests the complaint should be "stripped".

Reply to Point I.

The "conclusions and factually unsupported inferences

which permeate" (Appellee's Br. p. 7) the complaint,

according to the Board's conception are not within the

realm of "conclusions and unsupported inferences". Not

by way of innuendo, nor by way of bringing before this

court matters which are absent from the complaint, but

solely to show that plaintiff's charges are not utterly capri-

cious and fantastic, but comport with the findings of an

inquiry of a coordinate branch of the government, we

refer to the final report of the Special Committee of the

House of Representatives, 76th Congress, appointed pur-

suant to H. Res. 258 to Investigate the National Labor

Relations Board, printed in Volume 7, #18, Special Sup-

plement of the Labor Relations Reporter issued in Wash-

ington, D. C, on December 30, 1940. In it there are dis-

cussed and documented not only extra-legal activities of

various subordinates of the Board (pp. 12-22), but a

fairly general bias of individual members of the Board in



favor of the C.I.O. and against the A.F. of L. is intimated

(see p. v37). The conchisions of the inquiry on the basis

of the evidence are stated on page 52 of this report, which

we refrain from quoting only in order not to be accused

of introducing extrajudicial considerations into this pro-

ceeding. The foregoing references to the Report have

been made only, as already stated, for the purpose of

showing that the plaintiff did not have hallucinations, or

purely imaginary grievances, and that on the basis of the

allegations of the complaint, there is cause for invoking

the protection of equity.

The allegations in the complaint concerning defendant's

extra-legal activities are not like the allegations in Hege-

man Farms Co. v. Baldwin^ 293 U. S. 163, 170. Why
this particular case should be cited in this connection is

difficult to see. It merely holds that a complaint for an

injunction which states, in effect, that a milk rate set by

a regularly appointed body is confiscatory and repugnant

to the 14th Amendment of the Constitution is insufficient.

It has never occurred to this plaintiff to even suggest

that the United States District Courts could interfere with

a routine performance of the Board or its agents. But,

on the other hand, it would not occur to the average indi-

vidual that the matters heretofore quoted from the com-

plaint such as encouraging a rival union or declaring that

a contract which its official utterance assumes to be valid,

is void, are "routine performances by the Board or its

agents".

Defendant's cases, in so far as they hold a statutory

proceeding by the Board cannot be interfered with by an

injunction (Appellee's Br. pp. 8-9) do not require a reply.

Manifestly, except in so far as they are the fruit of unfair
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labor practices—which are, of course, not involved in this

proceeding—the Board has no power to interfere directly

or indirectly with existing contracts. To give the

Board such a right, either by legislative action or by

statutory construction, would be a violation of the 5th

Amendment of the United States Constitution, and would

be repugnant and contrary to our accepted concepts of due

process and private rights. We are therefore not con-

cerned with the propriety of holding an election, but

we are concerned with the question whether and to what

extent either by routine performances or by extra-legal

activity valid and subsisting contracts can be interfered

with.

Reply to Point II.

What we have just 'said is admitted frankly on page 13

of the Board's brief, as follows : ''The proceeding did not

adjudicate the validity of the contract, but merely ascer-

tained the employee's choice of representative".

If that is the case, it is difficult to see why the defendant

intimidated the employer and numerous employees in the

performance of the contract, and why it suggested to

Harry Bridges, and others affiliated with the C.I.O., that

the contract was void, and that they should proceed on

that assumption to negotiate a new and different contract

between the C.I.O. and the Cudahy Packing Company,

which could, of course, not be suggested in good faith, as

long as the contract between the plaintiff and the Cudahy

Packing Company was valid.

It is further said in this connection, that the impairment

of appellant's prestige and the other losses, such as loss



of dues, and expenses which the Board chooses to overlook

"are not required by the certification of the Board or any

act of the appellee". If anything that the appellee did,

resulted in such loss, we are assured, it was merely one

of the "incidents of carrying out the law of the land, which

imposes on the Board the power and the duty, in the

interest of allaying industrial strikes and protecting com-

merce, to resolve disputes over representation".

It is obvious that what the appellee did here, leaving

aside his "routine performances" could not, under any

stretch of the imagination be blamed on an endeavor to

carry out the law of the land. Under common notions of

constitutional law and fairness in official conduct, what he

did extra-legally is diametrically opposed to the law of

the land.

It is further asserted that equity relief cannot be based

upon imputations of bad faith to public officials in the

performance of their duties. There are at least three

answers to this statement:

First: The extra-legal activities of the defendant were

not a part of his duties. Nothing in the National Labor

Relations Act, nor about the Board's duty of "allaying

industrial strife and protecting commerce, to resolve dis-

putes over representation" could possibly require the de-

fendant to emanate the information that plaintiff's contract

is void, and that the C.I.O. should negotiate a new one,

and that the old contract should no longer be performed.

If anything, such conduct had exactly the opposite effect.

Second: The cases which are cited on page 13 in sup-

])ort of the statement that equity jurisdiction cannot be

based upon imputations of bad faith to a public official do
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not support that statement. The latest one of the E. I.

duPont, etc. & Co. v. Bolmid, 85 Fed. (2d) 12, 14, makes

the assertion (not required by the facts as reflected in the

opinion) that equity jurisdiction "cannot be supported by

imputing to the Board an intention to exercise its powers

in an arbitrary or improper manner." (Emphasis ours.)

A future intention is entirely different from a course

of action already embarked upon, or immediately threat-

ened. These cases, therefore, are not in point. Quite

aside from that, the complaint does not contain imputations

of bad faith, but alleges specific conduct under the guise

of official action which cannot, by any stretch of the imag-

ination, be considered as such.

Third: The suggestion that courts of equity cannot

remedy conduct actuated by bad faith on the part of a

public official when such conduct causes loss and injury

is an assertion which should find the unanimous condemna-

tion of the judiciary determined to preserve the indepen-

dence of its function, and to carry out its trust to protect

the people against unwarranted encroachments upon their

established rights on the part of an over-zealous adminis-

trative body.

The Board, finally, makes the suggestion that what has

befallen this plaintiff is nothing but "part of the social

burden of living under government". In support of that

assertion we are referred to Heller v. Lind, 86 Fed. (2d)

862, and cognate cases (Appellee's Br. p. 14). In the

case referred to the plaintiff alleges that the threatened

hearings and the exercise of the "routine powers" of the

Board will cause inconvenience, and will be productive of

disharmony within the plaintiff's organization. It is utterly

strange that officers of a free government will suggest that
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org-anization, not by reason of "routine performances" of

the Board, but by reason of extra-legal activities of its

subordinate is "part of the social burden of living under

government."

The defendant admits in a footnote (Appellee's Br. p.

11) that other allegations besides those which he chooses

to discuss are contained in the complaint, but they are

disposed of by saying that they are not allegations of fact,

but mere inferences and conclusions. However, the motion

of the defendant to dismiss was made on the ground of

lack of jurisdiction. It was not made on the ground that

appellant's complaint was defective in this particular.

Therefore, the point just referred to, even if the conduct

of the defendant would permit of more specific allegations,

is not seasonably made.

Concerning the assertion that the terms of the National

Labor Relations Act afford a full and adequate adminis-

trative remedy, we will say this

:

At the close of the certification proceedings, as we

pointed out in the opening brief, no recourse was open to

the plaintiff because the result of certification proceedings

is not directly reviewable. It should not be overlooked

that the real grievances of plaintiff occurred outside of

and apart from those proceedings. The National Labor

Relations Act has no provisions for initiating a formal

complaint with the Board in Washington, by which the

extra-legal conduct of its agent can be reviewed and cor-

rected. This plaintiff has as an ultimate, and only, resort,

only a court of equity. Where else, if not to a court of

equity could it turn for relief from the consequences of

extra-legal interference under the cloak of official action,



if not to a court of equity? Never more than now, and

in this particular case, is there occasion for this Honorable

Court to guard the established rights of this plaintiff, and

in a wider sense to reaffirm the respective spheres of

legitimate action of the three coordinate branches of the

government. Now, of all times, should the courts be zeal-

ous to see that the administrative branch shall not gain the

ascendancy over the other two branches to such an extent

that official position may be used as a pretext and a screen

to destroy rights legimately acquired and to favor one

group of citizens in preference to another.

Reply to Point III.

It is not correct to state that the only specific conduct

sought to be enjoined is the holding of further hearings

and elections, and that since no further hearing and elec-

tions are threatened, the subject matter of the complaint

has become moot.

The prayer is lengthy, and it requests, among other

things, that the defendant be restrained "from issuing,

authorizing or publishing any statements interfering with,

or tending to interfere with" plaintiff's contract. It also

requests that the defendant be enjoined from taking any

other or further steps X outside of holding elections) di-

rectly or indirectly . . . tending to or having the effect

of interfering with, obstructing, intimidating, coercing or

influencing (the employer or the plaintiff) . . . from

adhering to the terms of the valid contract". The prayer

is directed, as can be readily seen, against the extra-legal

activities of the defendant, as much as against the holding

of any threatened further election.
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Since the acts of the defendant are said in the com-

plaint to be continuous, and that similar acts to further

interfere with the contract are continuously being- threat-

ened, the question cannot be said to have become moot. It

would not be moot even if the complaint were directed

exclusively against the certification proceedings, because

their validity would there be involved.

In Point III we are referred to the proposition that the

Board in Washington is an indispensable party to this

litigation. We have stated in the opening brief why this

cannot be so. We now state, upon an analysis of the

authorities on which defendant relies (Appellee's Br. p.

17) that those cases neither suggest nor require the con-

clusion that the Board is indispensable here. In each of

those cases an act authorized by law or by a superior was

under consideration. Extra-legal and extra-official acts,

such as are being attacked here, were not being discussed.

The latest of these cases, National Conference on Legaliz-

ing Lotteries v. Goldman, 85 Fed. (2d) 66, recognizes the

lack of harmony in the cases, but attempts to reach a basis

upon which it may be determined when the administrative

superior must be made a party to the action, and when this

procedure is not necessary.

One test suggested is that where the superior's concur-

rence in the acts complained of is not required, he need

not be joined in the action.

We suspect that in this case the extra-legal activities of

the director of the 21st Region not only do not require

the concurrence of the members of the Board in Washing-

ton, but on the contrary, that they would not have found

the concurrence of that body, if its advise had been asked

in that respect.
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Conclusion.

We respectfully urge, therefore, that this Honorable

Court reverse the judgment of dismissal in this case and

remand the cause to the United States District Court for

the Southern District of California for further proceedings

and disposition.

Respectfully submitted,

Redmond S. Brennan,

W. I. Gilbert, Jr.,

Jean Wunderlich,

Attorneys for Appellant.
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DOCKET ENTRIES
1938

Sep. 26—Petition received and filed. Taxpayer

notified. (Fee paid)
'^ 26—Copy of petition served on General

Counsel

Nov. 3—Answer filed by General Counsel.

'^ 3—Request for Circuit hearing in San Fran-

cisco filed by General Counsel.

'' 9—Notice issued placing proceeding on San

Francisco calendar. Copy of answer and

request served.

1939

Mar. 25—Hearing set May 29, 1939 in San Fran-

cisco, California.

Jun. 8—Hearing had before Mr. Disney on merits.

Submitted. Petitioner moves to amend

petition—granted. Motion to consolidate

with 94621 granted. Respondent allowed

usual time to file amended answer. Ap-

plication to file an amended petition filed

and served on the parties. Briefs due

7/25/39—reply 8/15/39. Called 5/25/39.

*' 15—Answer to amended petition filed by Gen-

eral Counsel.

'' 27—Transcript of hearing of June 8, 1939 filed.

Jul. 22—Brief filed by General Counsel.

" 24—Brief filed by taxpayer. 7/24/39 copy

served.

Aug. 10—Reply brief filed by General Counsel.
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1939

Aug. 17—Notice to send all future notices to Walter

Slack filed by Herbert W. Clark.

" 25—Motion for leave to file reply brief, reply

brief lodged, filed by taxpayer. 8/28/39

granted.

^^ 29—Copy of motion and reply brief served on

General Counsel.

1940

May 21—Findings of fact and opinion rendered,

R. L. Disney, Div. 4. Decision will be

entered under Rule 50.

Jun. 19—Computation of deficiency filed by Gen-

eral Counsel.

'' 24—Hearing set July 24, 1940 on settlement.

Jul. 3—Computation of deficiency filed by tax-

payer. 7/5/40 copy served.

^' 24—^Hearing had before Mr. Smith on settle-

ment under Rule 50. Respondent con-

cedes petitioner's recomputation correct.

Referred to Mr. Disney for decision.

^' 31—Transcript of hearing of July 24, 1940

filed.

Aug. 5—Decision entered, R. L. Disney, Div. 4.

Oct. 19—Petition for review by U. S. Circuit Court

of Appeals, 9th Circuit, with assignments

of error filed by taxpayer.

'^ 25—Notice of filing petition for review (affi-

davit attached) filed by taxpayer. [1*]

*Page numbering appearing at foot of page of original certified

Transcript of Kecord.
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1940

Oct. 25—Statement of points filed by taxpayer with

affidavit of service.

*' 25—Designation of portions of the record filed

by taxpayer. Affidavit of service attached.

[2]

United States Board of Tax Appeals

Docket No. 95639

ADOLPH B. SPRECKELS,
Petitioner,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

PETITION

The above named petitioner hereby petitions for

a redetermination of the deficiency set forth by the

Commissioner of Internal Revenue in his notice of

deficiency (IT:E:1-JHU:90D), dated July 20, 1938,

and as a basis of his proceedings alleges as follows

:

1. Petitioner is an individual, with his principal

office at 2 Pine Street, San Francisco, California.

The return for the period here involved was filed

with the Collector for the First District of Cali-

fornia.

2. The notice of deficiency (a copy of which is

attached and marked Exhibit '^A") was mailed to

the petitioner on July 20, 1938. [3]
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3. The taxes in controversy are income taxes

for the calendar year 1934, and in the amount of

$4,904.47.

4. The determination of tax set forth in the said

notice of deficiency is based upon the following

error

:

(a) The Commissioner erred in increasing the

petitioner's distributive share of the income received

by the Trustees imder the will of Adolph B. Spreck-

els, deceased, by the amount of $9,431.67. Said error

is occasioned by erroneously adjusting the income

of said Trustees by the following items

:

A. The amount of $39,622.99, erroneously al-

leged to be taxable dividends received by said Trus-

tees from Monarch Investment Company.

B. The amount of $16,967.02, erroneously dis-

allowed as a deduction for interest paid by said

Trustees on an income tax deficiency of the estate

of Adolph B. Spreckels, deceased.

5. The facts upon which the petitioner relies as

the basis of this proceeding are as follows

:

(a) During the year 1934 the petitioner was a

beneficiary of said trust under the will of Adolph

B. Spreckels, deceased.

(b) During the calendar year 1934 said Trus-

tees received from Monarch Investment Company,

a corporation, distributions in the amount of $153,-

000, all of which [4] distributions were made by

said corporation from capital, and no part of said

distributions was made by said corporation out of

its earnings or profits accumulated after February
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28, 1913. The Commissioner has erroneously deter-

mined that said distributions were made out of

capital only to the extent of $113,377.01, and that

the balance thereof, or $39,622.99, was made out of

earnings accumulated after February 28, 1913.

(c) During the calendar year 1934 said Trus-

tees paid interest in the amount of $16,967.02 on in-

come tax deficiencies of the estate of Adolph B.

Spreckels, deceased, for the years 1926 and 1931,

for which said Trustees were liable as transferees

of said estate. The Commissioner has erroneously

disallowed the deduction of said interest on the

ground that it represents an expense of said estate

and not of said trust.

(d) Petitioner in making his income tax return

for the calendar year 1934 showed a net income

subject to Federal income tax in the sum of $121,-

593.86; that said amount was incorrect and exces-

sive by reason of the failure of petitioner to take

a deduction for taxes paid under the following

circumstances

:

During the calendar year 1934 petitioner sold

stocks and bonds owned by him and as required by

[5] Title VIII of the Revenue Act of 1926 as

amended, and by the laws of the several states,

petitioner during said calendar year paid stamp

taxes on said sales amounting to $5,693.67. During

said calendar year 1934 petitioner made sales of

produce for future delivery, and, as required by

said Title VIII of the Revenue Act of 1926 as

amended, petitioner during said calendar year paid

stamp taxes on said last mentioned sales amounting
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to $1,525.62; that petitioner filed his income tax

return for the calendar year 1934 on the 15th day

of March, 1935, showing an income tax due thereon

in the sum of $37,897.60. Petitioner paid the in-

come tax shown due upon said return in install-

ments as follows : $9,000 on March 15, 1935, $474.40

on May 18, 1935, $9,474.40 on June 12, 1935,

$9,474.40 on September 11, 1935, and $9,474.40 on

December 10, 1935 ; that thereafter and on the 23rd

day of December, 1937, petitioner duly filed with

the Collector of Internal Revenue at San Francisco,

California, a claim for the refund of $4,087.61 in-

come tax overpaid for the calendar year 1934 by

reason of petitioner's failure to deduct the above

mentioned stamp taxes in computing and paying his

Federal income tax for said calendar year; that

thereafter and on the 20th day of July, 1938, and

in the ninety day letter hereunto attached marked

Exhibit ''A," the respondent conceded that [6]

petitioner was entitled to the deduction of $7,219.29

for stamp taxes paid as hereinbefore stated; that

by reason of petitioner's right to take an additional

deduction for said sum of $7,219.29 in stamp taxes

paid petitioner is entitled to a refund on account

of his income tax for said year in the sum of

$3,650.36.

Wherefore, petitioner prays that this Board may

hear the proceeding and determine that there is no

deficiency in income tax due from petitioner for

the calendar year 1934, and that petitioner has

overpaid his income tax for said year in the sum
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of $3,650.36, and that the amount of said overpay-

ment was paid within three years before the filing

of a claim for refmid of said overpayment on

December 23, 1937, and within three years before

the filing of this petition, and that petitioner is

entitled to a refund of said smn of $3,650.36.

HEEBERT W. CLARK
LEON de FREMERY

1110 Crocker Building

San Francisco, California

WALTER SLACK
1908 Russ Building

San Francisco, California

Counsel for Petitioner [7]

State of California,

County of Los Angeles—ss.

Adolph B. Spreckels, being first duly sworn, says

:

That he is the Petitioner above named; that he

has read the foregoing Petition and is familiar

with the statements contained therein, and that the

statements contained therein are true, except those

stated to be upon information or belief, and that

those he believes to be true.

ADOLPH B. SPRECKELS

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 21 day of

September, 1938.

[Seal] CHARLES G. GOODMAN
Notary Public in and for the County of Los An-

geles, State of California.

My Commission Expires April 13, 1942. [8]
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EXHIBIT ^'A"

Treasury Department

Washington

Office of

Commissioner of Internal Revenue

Address Reply To

Commissioner of Internal Revenue

And Refer To

Jul 20 1938

Mr. Adolph B. Spreckels,

2 Pine Street,

San Francisco, California.

Sir:

You are advised that the determination of your

income tax liability ^for the taxable year(s) ended

December 31, 1934 discloses a deficiency of $1,254.11

as shown in the statement attached.

In accordance with section 272 (a) of the Revenue

Act of 1934, notice is hereby given of the deficiency

mentioned. Within ninety days (not counting Sun-

day or a legal holiday in the District of Columbia

as the ninetieth day) from the date of the mailing

of this letter, you may file a petition with the

United States Board ,of Tax Appeals for a rede-

termination of the deficiency.

Should you not desire to file a petition, you are

requested to execute the enclosed form and forward

it to the Commissioner of Internal Revenue, Wash-

ington, D. C, for the attention of IT:Cl:P-7. The

signing and filing of this form will expedite the
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closing of your return (s) by permitting an early

assessment of the deficiency and will prevent the

accumulation of interest, since the interest period

terminates thirty days after filing the form, or on

the date assessment is made, whichever is earlier.

Respectfully,

GUY T. HELVERING,
Commissioner.

By JOHN R. KIRK
Deputy Commissioner.

Enclosures

:

Statement

Form 870 [9]

STATEMENT
IT:E:1

JHU:90D

Mr. Adolph B. Spreckels,

2 Pine Street,

San Francisco, California.

Tax Liability for Taxable Year Ended

December 31, 1934

Income tax

Liability—$39,151.71

Assessed—$37,897.60

Deficiency—$1,254.11

In making this determination of your income tax

liability, careful consideration has been given to

the internal revenue agent's report dated March 4,

1936; to your protest dated June 4, 1936; to the
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statements made at the conference held July 15,

1936; and to your claim for refund of individual

income tax in the amount of $4,087.61.

If a petition to the United States Board of Tax

Appeals is filed against the deficiency proposed

herein, the issue set forth in your claim for refund

should be made a part of the petition to be con-

sidered by the Board in any redetermination of

your tax liability. If a petition is not filed, the

claim for refimd will be disallowed and official

notice will be issued by registered mail in accord-

ance with section 1103(a) of the Revenue Act of

1932.

Adjustments to Net Income

Net income as disclosed by return $121,593.86

Unallowable deductions 'and additional income

:

( a ) Dividends 9,431.67

Total $131,025.53

Nontaxable income and additional deductions

:

(b) Taxes paid 6,518.49

Net income adjusted $124,507 .04

[10]

Explanation of Adjustments

(a) Your share of adjusted income from Walter

D. K. Gibson, et al. Trustees under will. Estate of

Adolph B. Spreckels, deceased (Trust), has been

determined to be $37,664.21, taxable as dividends.

As you included $28,232.54 as dividends from the

trust in your return, the amoimt reported has been

increased by $9,431.67.
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In determining the correct net income of the

trust the amount reported on the fiduciary return

was adjusted as follows

:

Net income reported on fiduciary return, form

1041 $194,626.17

Add:
1. Dividends 39,622.99

2. Interest deduction disallowed 16,967.02

Net income adjusted $251,216.18

Distribution of income

:

Mrs. Alma Spreckels $134,454.88

Adolph B. Spreckels 37,664.21

Mrs. Alma Spreckels Rosekrans 37,664.21

Mrs. Dorothy S. Dupuy 38,432.88

Estate of Adolph B. Spreckels, Deceased

(Trust) 3,000.00

Total $251,216.18

1. Dividends from the Monarch Investment

Company have been allocated as shown below:

Taxable

(From Corporate

Earnings Since Percent

Date Paid Amoniit Paid February 28, 1913) From Capital Taxable

March 3,

1934 $130,000.00 $16,622.99 $113,377.01

November 13,

1934 23,000.00 23,000.00 —

$153,000.00 $39,622.99 $113,377.01 25.8974

[11]
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As no dividends from the Monarch Investment

Company were reported in the fiduciary return as

income, the adjustment of this item increases divi-

dends by $39,622.99.

2. The deduction of $16,967.02 for interest paid

by the trustees of the trust on income tax defic-

iencies of the Estate of Adolph B. Spreckels, de-

ceased, has been disallowed, for the reason that the

amount represents expense of the estate and not

of the trust. See the decision of the United States

Board of Tax Appeals in Helen B. Sulzberger et

al, 33 B. T. A. 1093.

In determining the fiduciary income taxable to

the beneficiaries the examining officer included in

distributable income $3,000.00, representing an an-

nuity payment to Anna Be Bretteville. As this

amount is held to be taxable to the trust, your dis-

tributive fiduciary income as adjusted by the report

has been reduced by one sixth of $3,000.00 or

$500.00.

(b) The deduction of $700.80 for taxes paid on

whiskey withdrawn from bonded warehouses has

been disallowed in accordance with Income Tax

Ruling 2768, Cumulative Bulletin XIII-1, 54 (1934).

An additional deduction of $7,219.29 for taxes

paid on the sales of securities and commodities has

been allowed in connection with your claim.

You contended that total stamp taxes paid

amounted to $7,299.29. The information submitted

by the examining officer indicates that the above-

stated amount includes securities exchange regis-
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tration fee, not in excess of $80.00, This is not

deductible as a tax. See Income Tax Ruling 3161,

Internal Revenue Bulletin, February 14, 1938, No.

7. The remainder of the taxes claimed, $7,219.29,

is held to be deductible in accordance with section

23(c) 2 of the Revenue Act of 1934 and General

Comisel'S Memorandum 18245, Ciunulative Bulle-

tin, 1937-1, 70.

Computation of Tax

Net income adjusted $124,507.04

Less:

Personal exemption $ 2,500.00

Credit for dependents 933.33 3,433.33

Balance (surtax net income) $121,073.71

[12]

Brought forward $121,073.71

Less:

Interest on Liberty Bonds $ 13,554.94

Dividends 101,786.71

Earned income credit 300.00 115,641.65

Net income subject to normal tax $ 5,432.06

Normal tax at 4% on $5,432.06 217.28

Surtax on $121,073.71 38,958.33

Total tax $ 39,175.61

Less:

Income tax paid at source 23.90

Correct income tax liability ™ $ 39,151.71

Income tax assessed:

Original, account #201806,

May 1935 37,897.60

Deficiency of income tax $ 1,254.11

[Endorsed]: U. S. B. T. A. Filed Sept. 26, 1938.

[13]
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[Title of Board and Cause.]

ANSWER
Comes now the Commissioner of Internal Reve-

nue, respondent above-named, by his attorney, J.

P. Wenchel, Chief Counsel, Bureau of Internal

Revenue, and for answer to the petition filed by

the above-named petitioner, admits and denies as

follows

:

1. Admits the allegations contained in para-

graph 1 of the petition.

2. Admits the allegations contained in para-

graph 2 of the petition.

3. Admits that the taxes in controversy are in-

come taxes for the calendar year 1934, as alleged

in paragraph 3 of the petition. For lack of infor-

mation denies that the amoimt of tax in controversy

is $4,904.47, as alleged in paragraph 3 of the

petition.

4. (a), A and B. Denies that the Commissioner

erred in the determination of tax, set forth the the

said notice of deficiency, as alleged in subparagraph

(a) of paragraph 4 of the petition, and [14] in

subparagraphs A and B of subparagraph (a) of

paragraph 4 of the petition.

5. (a) Admits the allegations contained in sub-

paragraph (a) of paragraph 5 of the petition.

(b) Admits that during the calendar year 1934,

the trustees of the trust under the will of Adolph

B. Spreckels, deceased, received from Monarch In-

vestment Company, a corporation, distributions in
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the amoimt of $153,000.00, and that the Commis-

sioner has determined that of said distributions the

amomit of $39,622.99 was made out of earninsrs ac-

cumulated after February 28, 1913, as alleged in

subparagraph (b) of paragraph 5 of the petition.

Denies that said determination by the Commissioner

was in error and denies all other allegations con-

tained in subparagraph (b) of paragraph 5 of the

petition.

(c) Admits that the Commissioner has disal-

lowed as a 1934 deduction, claimed by the trustees

of the trust mider the will of Adolph B. Spreckels,

deceased, the amount of $16,967.02, for interest on

income tax deficiencies of the estate of Adolph B.

Spreckels, deceased, on the groimd that such a pay-

ment represented an expense of the estate and not

of the trust, as alleged in subparagraph (c) of

paragraph 5 of the petition. Denies that the Com-

missioner erred in disallowing said deduction and,

for lack of information, denies all other allegations

contained in subparagraph (c) of paragraph 5 of

the petition. [15]

(d) Admits that the petitioner, in making his

completed income tax return for the calendar year

1934, showed a net income subject to Federal in-

come tax in the sum of $121,593.86, and showed an

income tax due thereon in the amount of $37,897.60,

as alleged in subparagraph (d) of paragraph 5 of

the petition. Admits that the Commissioner, in his

ninety-day letter, conceded that the petitioner was

entitled to a 1934 deduction of $7,219.29 for stamp

taxes paid, as alleged in subparagraph (d) of para-
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graph 5 of the petition. For lack of information,

and for other reasons, denies all other allegations

contained in subparagraph (d) of paragraph 5 of

the petition.

6. Denies generally and specifically each and

every allegation in the petition not heretofore ad-

mitted, qualified or denied.

Wherefore, it is prayed that the Commissioner's

determination be approved and the petitioner's

appeal be denied.

Signed J. P. WENCHEL,
TMM

Chief Coimsel,

Bureau of Internal Revenue.

Of Counsel

:

ALVA C. BAIRD,
ARTHUR L. MURRAY,

Special Attorneys,

Bureau of Internal Revenue.

ALM/F 10-28-38

[Endorsed] : U. S. B. T. A. Filed Nov. 3, 1938.

[16]

[Title of Board and Cause.]

APPLICATION FOR LEAVE TO FILE
AMENDMENT TO PETITION

To the United States Board of Tax Appeals

:

Now comes the petitioner above named and asks

leave to file an amendment to his petition in the

above entitled proceeding on the ground that the
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same is necessary for a proper presentation of peti-

tioner's appeal.

Dated : San Francisco, June 7th, 1939.

HERBERT W. CLARK
WS

LEON de FREMERY
WS

1110 Crocker Building

San Francisco, California

WALTER SLACK
1908 Russ Building

San Francisco, California

Counsel for Petitioner

Granted June 8, 1939.

(Signed) R. L. DISNEY
Member U. S. Board of Tax

Appeals.

[Endorsed]: U. S. B. T. A. Filed at hearing

June 8, 1939. [17]

[Title of Board and Cause.]

AMENDMENT TO PETITION

Now comes the petitioner above named and leave

having first been obtained, files this amendment to

his petition in the above-entitled proceeding and

alleges as follows:

I

That the determination of tax set forth in the

notice of deficiency, a copy of which is attached to

the original petition, is erroneous in the following
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particular in addition to the errors specified in the

original petition, viz

:

(b) That the Commissioner erred in not allow-

ing as a deduction in determining petitioner's in-

come subject to income tax for the calendar year

1934 the sum of $23,909.29 representing selling com-

missions paid in connection with the sales of stocks,

bonds and commodities. [18]

II

The facts upon which petitioner relies in support

of this amendment to his petition and the supple-

mental assignment of error hereinabove set forth

are as follows:

(e) Petitioner in making his income tax return

for the calendar year 1934 showed a net income

subject to Federal income tax in the smn of $121,-

593.86; that said amount was incorrect and exces-

sive by reason of the failure of petitioner to take

a deduction for selling commissions paid in con-

nection with the sales of stocks, bonds and commo-

dities under the following circumstances: during

the calendar year 1934 petitioner was engaged in

the business of purchasing and selling stocks, bonds

and commodities for profit and during said calendar

year paid selling commissions in connection with

such sales amounting to $23,909.29; that said sell-

ing commissions so paid as aforesaid were not taken

as a deduction in computing petitioner's income tax

for said year. Under Section 23(a) of the Revenue

Act of 1934 and Articles 23 (a) -1 and 24-2 of Regu-

lations 86, said commissions are deductible in com-
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puting petitioner's net income and petitioner claims

the right to deduct the same.

Wherefore, petitioner prays that this Board may
hear the proceeding and determine that there is

no deficiency in income tax due from petitioner for

the calendar year 1934, [19] and that petitioner

has overpaid his income tax for said year in the

sum of $4,087.61, and that the amomit of said over-

payment was paid within three years before the

filing of a claim for refmid of said overpayment

on December 23, 1937, and within three years be-

fore the filing of the original petition herein and

that this petitioner is entitled to a refund of

$4,087.61.

HERBERT W. CLARK
LEON de FREMERY

1110 Crocker Building

San Francisco, California

WALTER SLACK
1908 Russ Building

San Francisco, California

Counsel for Petitioner [20]

State of California,

City and County of San Francisco—ss.

Adolph B. Spreckels, being duly sworn, says:

That he is the petitioner above named; that he

has read the foregoing Amendment to Petition and

is familiar with the statements contained therein,

and that the facts stated are true, except as to those

facts stated to be upon information and belief, and

those he believes to be true.

ADOLPH B. SPRECKELS



Commissioner of Internal Revenue 21

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 23rd day

of May, 1939.

[Seal] LOUIS WIENER
Notary Public in and for the City and County of

San Francisco, State of California.

My commission expires : July 30, 1939.

Granted June 8, 1939.

(Signed) R.L.DISNEY
Member U. S. Board of Tax

Appeals

[Endorsed]: IT. S. B. T. A. Filed at hearing

June 8, 1939. [21]

[Title of Board and Cause.]

ANSWER TO AMENDMENT TO PETITION

Comes now the Commissioner of Internal Reve-

nue, respondent above named, by his attorney, J.

P. Wenchel, Chief Counsel, Bureau of Internal

Revenue, and for answer to the amendment to peti-

tion filed by the above-named petitioner, admits

and denies as follows

:

I. (b) Denies the allegations contained in sub-

paragraph (b) of paragraph I of the amendment

to petition.

II. (e) Admits that petitioner in making his

income tax return for the calendar year 1934

showed a net income subject to Federal income tax

in the smn of $121,593.86, but denies the remaining

allegations contained in subparagraph (e) of para-

graph II of the amendment to petition.
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III. Denies generally and specifically each and

every allegation in the amendment to petition not

hereinbefore admitted, qualified, or denied. [22]

Wherefore, it is prayed that the Commissioner's

determination be approved and that the petitioner's

appeal be denied.

Signed J. P. WENCHEL
T M M

Chief Comisel,

Bureau of Internal Revenue.

Of Counsel:

ALVA C. BAIRD,
T. M. MATHER,

Special Attorneys,

Bureau of Internal Revenue.

TMM :emb 6-9-39

[Endorsed] : U. S. B. T. A. Filed June 15, 1939.

[23]

[Title of Board and Cause.]

Docket Nos. 94621, 95639.

Promulgated May 21, 1940.

FINDINGS OF FACT AND OPINION

1. Petitioner was engaged in the business of pur-

chasing and selling stocks, bonds, and commodities

for profit. Held, selling commissions paid to brok-

ers were properly deducted as business expense.

Neuberger v. Commissioner, 104 Fed. (2d) 649.

2. Prior to determination of deficiency, peti-

tioner filed a claim for refund of taxes paid, on the
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ground that lie had not taken deduction for stamp

taxes paid. In determining the deficiency, the stamp

taxes were allowed as deductions, but other items

resulted in determination of a deficiency. Stipula-

tions show an overpayment of tax. At the hearing,

more than three years after the last payment of

tax, an amendment was filed, the effect of which

was to claim, on new grounds, refund of overpay-

ment. Held, the claim of overpayment is barred

by limitations. Sec. 322(d), Revenue Act of 1934;

Commissioner v. Rieck, 104 Fed. (2d) 294, and

Commissioner v. Estate of George M. Dallas, —
Fed. (2d) — (Mar. 25, 1940), followed.

Walter Slack, Esq., for the petitioner.

T. M. Mather, Esq., for the respondent.

These proceedings,' consolidated for hearing, in-

volved originally deficiencies in income tax in the

amount of $1,254.11 for the year 1934 and in the

amount of $4,675.17 for the year 1935.

All of the errors raised in the original petition

were disposed of by stipulation at the trial, will be

reflected in computation under Rule 50, and need

not further be considered herein. The issues to be

examined were raised by amended petition filed in

each proceeding at the hearing on June 8, 1939.

Two questions are presented—first, whether a trade^"

in securities may deduct as ordinary and necessary

expense of business selling commissions i)aid by

him, and, second, whether claim for overpayment

set forth in an amended petition filed more than

three years after payment of the last installment

of tax is timely. The first proposition involves both
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taxable years; the second only 1934, in proceeding

No. 95639, in which the amended petition asks for

refund of overpayment of $4,087.61. [24] In pro-

ceeding No. 94621, for 1935, the amended iDetition

asks for refund of overpayment of $1,323.70.

A part of the facts were stipulated at trial, but

since the stipulation is brief it w^ill be incorporated

in the findings of fact, which we make as follows:

FINDINGS OF FACT.

The petitioner, an individual who resides in San

Francisco, California, filed his income tax returns

for the years in question with the collector for the

first district of California. During the taxable years

he maintained an office, with employees keeping a

complete set of books, which were kept and the

income tax returns were made upon the basis of

cash receipts and disbursements. Petitioner was

engaged in the business of purchasing and selling

stocks, bonds, and commodities for profit. He paid

to brokers selling commissions in connection with

such sales as follows: In 1934, $23,692; in 1935,

$2,246.25. Petitioner did not deduct the selling

commissions in computing income in making his

income tax returns for the taxable years. Upon
petitioner's books the selling commissions were de-

ducted from the selling price, before net profit or

loss was determined.

Petitioner's income tax return for 1934, filed on

May 9, 1935, showed a net taxable income of $121,-

593.86 and a tax of $37,897.60, which was paid in

installments, the last pajrment being made Decem-
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ber 16, 1935 in the amount of $9,474.40-. On Decem-

ber 23, 1937, petitioner filed a claim for refmid of

income tax in the amount of $4,087.61, on the ground

that certain stamp taxes were paid that had not

been claimed as deductions in the return. With the

exception of $80, this claim was allowed in the

determination of the Commissioner in the defic-

iency letter, which was dated July 20, 1938. Peti-

tion to the Board was filed September 26, 1938, in

proceeding No. 95639. It was stipulated that

$7,828.51 may be excluded from income for 1934

as determined by the Commissioner, and that the

amount of dividend credit should be reduced by

$7,828.51.

Petitioner's income tax return for 1935, filed

April 15, 1936, showed a net taxable income of

$141,146.57 and a tax of $48,554.03, which was paid,

the last installment, $12,138.50, being made Decem-

ber 11, 1936. Deficiency letter was dated April 7,

1938. After the filing of the petition for 1935 in

proceeding No. 94621 on July 6, 1938, petitioner on

March 9, 1939, filed with the collector of internal

revenue at San Francisco, California, a claim for

refund of income tax of $1,323.70 by reason of pe-

titioner's failure to deduct commissions on sales of

bonds, commodities, and stocks. [25]

It was stipulated that income as determined by

the Commissioner for 1935 may be reduced by $9,-

437.24, with a reduction in the same amount in divi-

dend credit.

Petitioner reported on his income tax return for

1934 losses of $114,249.38 from sale of stocks and
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commodities, and took as a deduction $2,000; also,

for 1935 the losses on commodity and stock trans-

actions were reported as $8,009.69, and loss de-

ducted was $2,000.

OPINION.

Disney: 1. Are selling commissions jjaid by a

trader in securities deductible as business expense?

After the decision of the Circuit Court in Win-

mill V. Commissioner, 93 Fed. (2d) 494, we allowed

selling commissions as well as purchasing commis-

sions, in Harry H. Neuberger, 37 B. T. A. 223. On
appeal to the Circuit Court our decision as to sell-

ing commissions was affirmed. Neuberger v. Com-

missioner, 104 Fed. (2d) 649. Certiorari was not

applied for by the Commissioner. We think the

dicta in Ilelvering v. Wimnill, 305 U. S. 79, and in

Helvering v. Union Pacific R. R. Co., 293 U. S.

282, referred to by respondent, are not decisive of

the point here presented. We hold therefore that

the respondent upon the j)oint is in error, and that

the selling commissions are allowable deductions.

The result, as to the year 1935 and in proceeding

No. 94621, is that we find there is no deficiency and

that there is an overpayment of tax by the peti-

tioner in the amount of $1,323.70 paid on Decem-

ber 11, 1936, both within three years before the fil-

ing of claim therefor by amendment to the petition

filed on June 8, 1939, and within three years before

the filing of the claim for refund on March 9, 1939.

As to the year 1934, in proceeding No. 95639, a

different situation is presented. The result of a
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stipulation entered into at the hearing is that there

was an overpayment for the year 1934, but the re-

spondent objected to the filing of the amendment

to the petition, on the ground that the claim of

overpayment thereby advanced was not timely, be-

ing presented for the first time on June 8, 1939,

more than three years after the payment of the last

installment of tax. Respondent relies on Commis-

sioner V. Rieck, 104 Fed. (2d) 294; certiorari de-

nied, 308 U. S. 602, and the cases therein cited,

and says that case bars consideration of the selling

commissions as new grounds for claim of overpay-

ment, because set up by amendment after the stat-

ute had run. Petitioner refers us to Georgie W.
Rathborne, 39 B. T. A. 56. In the latter we fol-

lowed our decision in Edward E. Rieck, 35 B. T.

A. 1178, which was reversed by Commissioner v.

Rieck, supra. In both cases we had entertained

and allowed [26] claims for overpayment on new

grounds set up in amended petitions, on the theory

that such amendments related back to the filing of

the original petition, and were therefore not within

the bar of the statute. This theory is untenable

since the decision of the Circuit Court in the Rieck

case. Petitioner, however, seeks to avoid the effect

of that decision by a contention that "The new

error assigned in the amended petition does not

give rise to this overpayment, but serves to prevent

its reduction on account of other adjustments." He

also argues:

* * * petitioner is not asking for a refund

of any taxes paid by reason of his failure to
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deduct selling commissions in preparing his

1934 income tax return, but is asking for the

full allowance of a timely refund claim result-

ing from a failure to claim a deduction for

stamp taxes paid during that year, the amount

of which the respondent seeks to reduce by as-

serting other errors in the return. Petitioner

claims the right to offset these other errors by

the amount of selling commissions paid and

thereby secure the full amount of his timely

refund for the stamp taxes.

In other words, petitioner in effect contends that

he is utilizing the claim as to deductible selling

commissions, not as new^ ground for claim of over-

payment, but merely to offset the offset which the

Commissioner, by other items, set up against the

original claim of overpayment on grounds of stamp

taxes paid but not deducted. Thus, petitioner

seems to argue, the original claim for refund,

timely filed, is left alive and undiminished, and he

now claims theremider. Thus petitioner seeks by

indirection to accomplish what can not be done di-

rectly. We think there is no essential difference

between the situation here and in the Rieck case,

for we think that petitioner is in fact relying upon

new grounds for the overpayment. The amended

petition, after reciting the facts as to payment of

selling commissions of $23,909.29 and alleging thus

deductibility concludes

:

Wherefore, petitioner prays that this Board

may hear the proceeding and determine that
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there is no deficiency in income tax due from

petitioner for the calendar year 1934, and that

petitioner has overpaid his income tax for said

year in the sum of $4,087.61, and that the

amount of said overpayment was paid within

three years before the filing of a claim for re-

fund of said overpayment on December 23,

1937, and within three years before the filing

of the original petition herein and that this

petitioner is entitled to a refund of $4,087.61.

It thus appears that claim of overpayment is in

fact set up anew in the amended petition, and that

the only reason therefor lies in the new facts re-

cited—the selling commissions. We think it ap-

parent that the selling commissions are the ground

of claim of overpayment. That there is new claim

of overpayment is demonstrated by the fact that

the claim is for $4,087.61 instead of $3,650.36, the

[27] amount of overpajnnent claimed in the orig-

inal petition. Also, it is noteworthy that the $4,-

087.61 overpayment claimed in the amendment is

the amount of the original refund claim, filed with

the Commissioner prior to determination of defi-

ciency. Thus it appears that petitioner is now re-

lying, not upon his original claim of overpayment

of $3,650.36, but instead upon the refund claim.

But that refund claim was in effect allowed by the

Commissioner, for in determining the deficiency he

agreed (except as to $80) that the payment of

stamp taxes, pressed as ground of the refund claim,

was a deductible item, and therefore gave credit.
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in effect, against the deficiency otherwise appear-

ing, of the amount of tlie refund claim, with the

small exception of $80. In Suhr v. United States,

18 Fed. (2d) 81, a very similar situation appears.

There a claim for refund was, as here, filed prior

to determination of deficiency because of claim that

nontaxable stock dividends had been reported as

income. After examination of the taxpayer's books

the Commissioner gave the taxpayer credit for the

dividends, but found a deficiency because of other

matters. The taxpayer appealed to the Board, al-

leging that there was no deficiency, but an over-

payment. He also filed an action in the Federal

Court. The question was as to jurisdiction of the

court. On appeal the Circuit Court said, as to the

overpayment: "He was simply entitled to have the

overpayment credited against his other tax liabil-

ity." This seems exactly what the Commissioner

did herein. We think it disposed of the original

refund claim, that the petitioner here should not

now be heard to rely upon that claim, and that he

is in fact relying upon the new grounds as to sell-

ing commissions, barred by the statute. We find

no material distinction between the situation here

and that in Commissioner v. Rieck, supra. More-

over, that case has lately been approved and fol-

lowed in Commissioner v. Estate of George M. Dal-

las, Fed. (2d) (C. C. A., 2d Cir., Mar.

25, 1940), wherein the facts w^ere similar to those

in the Rieck case. The court held that a refund

of the overpayment was barred, under section
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322 (cl) of the Revenue Act of 1932, by the lapse of

more than two years before the filing of the

amended petition which first set up the grounds of

overpayment.

On April 30, 1940 (41 B. T. A. ), we recon-

sidered the decision entered in Denholm & McKay
Co., 39 B. T. A. 767, and, following Commissioner

V. Rieck, supra, and Commissioner v. Estate of

George M. Dallas, supra, held that an amended pe-

tition filed more than three years after payment of

tax does not relate back to the time of filing of

original petition so as to authorize the crediting or

refunding of an overpayment in tax attributable

to a new issue raised in the [28] amended petition,

under section 322 (d) of the Revenue Act of 1934,

as amended.

It appearing, from evidence adduced since the

filing of the amendment to the petition, that the

last payment of tax had been made more than three

years before the amendment, we conclude and hold

that the petitioner's claim for refund of overpay-

ment is barred by the statute of limitations. Sec.

322 (d), Revenue Act of 1934.

Decision will be entered imder Rule 50. [29]

[Title of Board and Cause.]

PETITIONER'S COMPUTATION FOR
ENTRY OF DECISION

The attached computation is submitted on behalf

of petition to the United States Board of Tax Ap-
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peals in compliance with its opinion determining

the issues in this proceeding. This computation is

submitted without prejudice to the petitioner's

right to contest the correctness of the decision en-

tered herein by the Board pursuant to the statutes

in such cases made and provided.

WALTER SLACK,
825 Balfour Building, San

Francisco, California,

Comisel for Petitioner.

[30]

ADOLPH B. SPRECKELS

Docket No. 95639

Income tax Liability for Year ended

December 31, 1934

RE-COMPUTATION OF TAX LIABILITY PREPARED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE OPINION OF THE UNITED
STATES BOARD OF TAX APPEALS. PROMULGATED

MAY 21, 1940, 41 B. T. A. No. 160

Income per 90 day letter $124,507.04

Less exclusion as stipulated 7,828.51

Net income adjusted $116,678.53

Less: Personal exemption $ 2,500.00

Credit for dependents 933.33 3,433.33

Surtax net income $113,245.20

Less: Interest on Liberty Bonds $13,554.94

Dividends

:

90 day letter $101,786.71

Reduction as stipulated 7,828.51 93,958.20

Earned income credit 300.00 $107,813.14

Normal tax income 5,432.06

[31]
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Normal tax $ 217.28

Surtax 34,887.50

Total tax 35,104.78

Less : income tax paid at source 23.90

Correct tax liability $35,080.88

Income assessed on original return 37,897.60

Overpayment 2,816.72

Petitioner requests that the Board determine as

a part of its decision that said overpayment was

paid within three years before the filing of a claim

for refund, viz., that petitioner paid $9,474.40' on

account of his income tax liability for 1934 on De-

cember 16, 1935, and filed a claim for refund of

$4,087.61 of said taxes on December 23, 1937.

Petitioner has not in the foregoing computation

given effect to a deduction for selling commissions

amounting to $23,692.00 paid brokers on sales of

stocks, bonds and commodities for profit during

the year 1934, as the Board in its opinion held any

claim for refund of the overpayment of income

taxes resulting from the failure to claim such de-

duction is barred by Section 322 (d) Revenue Act

of 1934. Petitioner reserves the right to claim by

and in proceedings for review of the Board's deci-

sion that such overpayment is refundable to the

extent of $1,190.89, the difference between the

amount of the timely refund claimed on December

23, 1937, and the amount of the overpayment above

shown.

[Endorsed] : U. S. B. T. A. Filed July 3, 1940.

[32]
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United States Board of Tax Appeals

Washington

Docket No. 95639.

ADOLPH B. SPRECKELS,

Petitioner,

V.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,

Respondent.

DECISION.

Pursuant to hearing on July 24, 1940, on alter-

native computations submitted by the parties un-

der Rule 50, at which time the respondent conceded

that the recomputation filed by the petitioner is

correct, it is

Ordered and decided: That there is an overpay-

ment in income tax for the year 1934 in the amount

of $2,816.72, which amoimt was paid within three

years before the filing of a claim for refmid. (Sec-

tion 809 (a), Revenue Act of 1938.)

Enter:

Entered Aug. 5, 1940.

[Seal] (Signed) R. L. DISNEY,
Member [33]
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[Title of Board and Cause.]

PETITION FOE REVIEW OF DECISION BY
THE UNITED STATES CIRCUIT COURT
OF APPEALS FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

Adolpli B. Spreckels, the petitioner above named,

by Walter Slack, his attorney of record, hereby

files this his petition for a review by the United

States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Cir-

cuit of the decision of the United States Board of

Tax Appeals rendered in the above entitled ap-

peal on August 5, 1940 in so far as said decision

failed to find that petitioner had overpaid his in-

come tax for the year 1934 in the sum of $4,087.61

(rather than in the sum of $2,816.72, as decided by

the Board), within three years before the filing of

a claim for refund, and respectfully shows

:

I. Venue

The petitioner, Adolph B. Spreckels, is an indi-

vidual who resides in San Francisco, California.

Petitioner filed [34] his federal income tax return

for the calendar year 1934 with the collector for

the first district of California, whose office is within

the jurisdiction of said United States Circuit Court

of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit, which is the court

within which this review is sought.

II. Nature of the Controversy

The nature of the controversy is as follows:

Petitioner filed his federal income tax return for

1934 on May 9, 1935, showing a net taxable income
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of $121,593.86 and a tax liability of $37,897.60,

which was paid in installments, the last payment

being made on December 16, 1935, in the amomit

of $9,474.40. On December 23, 1937, petitioner

filed a timely claim for refund of income tax in

the amount of $4,087.61 on the ground that certain

stamp taxes had been paid that had not been

claimed as deductions in the return. Respondent

in a deficiency letter dated July 20, 1938 conceded

this claim with respect to the stamp taxes, with the

exception of $80, but, by reason of other adjust-

ments, asserted a deficiency of $1,254.11 for the

year. A petition for redetermination was filed

with the Board on September 26, 1938 wherein er-

ror was assigned as to the other adjustments made

by the respondent, and petitioner asserted that he

had overpaid his income tax for the year by rea-

son of his failure to claim a [35] deduction for the

stamp taxes referred to in the refund claim of De-'

cember 23, 1937.

At the hearing before the Board on June 8, 1939,

petitioner w^as granted leave to file an amendment

to his petition setting forth an additional error on

the part of the respondent in failing to allow peti-

tioner a deduction for selling commissions paid in

connection with sales of stocks, bonds and commo-

dities in the sum of $23,909.29. The amendment

closed with a prayer for the refund of the $4,087.61

claimed in the refund claim filed on December 23,

1937.
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The Board held that the selling commissions

were legally deductible in determining petitioner's

income tax liability, with the result that petitioner

had in fact overpaid his income tax by more than

$15,000, an amount in excess of the refund claimed

on December 23, 1937. However, on the ground

that the amendment assigning error in respect to

the deduction for selling commissions had not been

filed within three years after the payment of the

last installment of tax, the Board ruled that the

omitted deduction could not be given effect in de-

termining petitioner's income tax liability for the

year in question, and limited the refund on account

of stamp taxes to $2,816.72, the amount of over-

payment resulting from a partial disallowance of

respondent's other adjustments. [36]

Petitioner asserted before the Board, and will

urge on this petition for review, that the Board has

jurisdiction to allow amendments at any time be-

fore trial to bring in additional specifications of

error in the determination of tax liability, without

regard to the elapse of the period for filing claims

for refund, and that if the Board's redetermina-

tion shows an overpayment, the taxpayer is en-

titled to a refund of so' much of the overpayment

as is included in a timely and valid claim therefor.

Wherefore, petitioner prays that the United

States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Cir-

cuit review the decision of the United States Board

of Tax Appeals entered in the above entitled appeal

on August 5, 1940, and determine that petitioner is
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entitled to a refund of $4,087.61, the full amount
claimed in his refund claim filed on December 23,

1937.

WALTER SLACK,
825 Balfour Building?, San

Francisco, California, At-

torney for Petitioner.

[Endorsed]: U. S. B. T. A. Filed Oct. 19, 1940.

[37]

[Title of Board and Cause.]

NOTICE OF FILING PETITION
FOR REVIEW

To : J. P. Wenchel, Esq.

Chief Counsel Bureau of Internal Revenue

Washington, D. C.

Please take notice that on October 19, 1940, the

above named petitioner filed with the Clerk of the

United States Board of Tax Appeals at Washing-

ton, D. C, a petition for review by the United

States Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Cir-

cuit of the decision of the Board heretofore ren-

dered in the above entitled appeal and entered on

August 5, 1940 in so far as said decision failed to

find that petitioner had overpaid his income tax

for the year 1934 in the sum of $4,087.61 (rather

than in the siun of $2,816.72, as decided by the

Board) within three years before the filing of a
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claim for refund. A copy of the petition for re-

view [38] as filed is served on you herewith.

Dated: October 21, 1940.

WALTEE SLACK,
825 Balfour Building, San

Francisco, California, At-

torney for Petitioner.

[39]

[Title of Board and Cause.]

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE OF NOTICE OF
FILING OF PETITION FOR REVIEW
AND COPY OF PETITION FOR REVIEW

State of California

City and County of San Francisco—ss.

J. A. Poma, being first duly sworn, deposes and

says:

That she is, and was at the time of the service

hereinafter referred to, a resident of the City and

County of San Francisco, State of California, and

a citizen of the United States, over the age of

twenty-one years, and not a party to nor interested

in the above mentioned appeal; that the address of

affiant is 2265 Larkin Street, San Francisco, Cali-

fornia.

That on the 21st day of October, 1940, affiant

deposited in the registered mail at the United

States post office at [40] San Francisco, California,

a duplicate original of the attached Notice of Fil-

ing Petition for Review and a copy of the Peti-

tion for Review therein referred to in a sealed en-
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velope addressed to J. P. Wenchel, Esq., Chief

Counsel, Bureau of Internal Revenue, Internal

Revenue Building, Washington, D. C. ; that at the

time of such deposit affiant fully prepaid the first

class postage thereon and the registry fee therefor;

that at the time of such deposit there was regular

communication by mail between the said City and

County of San Francisco and the city of Wash-

ington, D. C.

J. A. POMA
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 21st day

of October, 1940.

[Seal] CATHERINE E. KEITH
Notary Public in and for the City and County of

San Francisco, State of California.

My commission expires Oct. 20, 1942.

[Endorsed] : U. S. B. T. A. Filed Oct. 25, 1940.

[41]

[Title of Board and Cause]

STATEMENT OF POINTS TO BE RELIED
UPON BY PETITIONER ON REVIEW BY
THE UNITED STATES CIRCUIT COURT
OF APPEALS FOR THE NINTH CIR-

CUIT OF THE DECISION OF THE
UNITED STATES BOARD OF TAX AP-

PEALS ENTERED ON AUGUST 5, 1940

Now comes Adolph B. Spreckels, the petitioner

in the above entitled appeal, by his attorney, Wal-

ter Slack, and states the points upon which he in-
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tends to rely on his petition for a review of the

above decision, viz

:

1. The Board of Tax Appeals having deter-

mined that selling commissions in the amount of

$23,692.00', paid by petitioner on sales of stocks,

bonds and commodities, were allowable deductions

in determining petitioner's liability for federal in-

come tax for the year 1934, with the result that pe-

titioner had overpaid his federal income tax for

that [42] year in an amount in excess of $15,000.00,

and it appearing that petitioner had filed a timely

claim for a refund of income tax for that year in

the amount of $4,087.61, grounded upon an omitted

deduction which entered into the determination of

petitioner's taxable income, the Board erred in not

allowing the full amount claimed.

2. The Board erred in holding, in effect, that

it could not consider, in redetermining petitioner's

income tax liability for the year 1934, error in that

determination first asserted in an amended petition

filed more than three years after the last pajinent

of tax had been made.

3. The Board erred in deciding that the amount

of the overpayment of petitioner's income tax for

the year 1934 did not exceed the sum of $2,816.72.

4. The Board erred in failing to decide that pe-

titioner had overpaid his income tax for the year

1934 in an amount not less than $4,087.61.

5. The Board erred in failing to decide that pe-

titioner had overpaid his income tax for the year

1934 in an amount not less than $4,087.61 within
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three years before the filing of a valid claim for

refund.

6. The Board erred in failing to decide that pe-

titioner had overpaid his income tax for the year

1934, in an amomit not less than $4,087.61, within

three years before the filing [43] of the petition for

redetermination.

WALTER SLACK,
825 Balfour Building, San

Francisco, California, At-

torney for Petitioner.

[Endorsed] : U. S. B. T. A. Filed Oct. 25, 1940.

[44]

[Title of Board and Cause.]

DESIGNATION OF PORTIONS OF THE REC-
ORD, PROCEEDINGS AND EVIDENCE TO
BE CONTAINED IN THE RECORD ON.

REVIEW
To the Clerk of the United States Board of Tax

Appeals

:

You are hereby requested to prepare, certify

and transmit to the Clerk of the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit,

for use in connection with the petition for review

by the Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Cir-

cuit heretofore filed by the petitioner in the above

appeal, a transcript of the record in the above ap-

peal, prepared as required by law and by the rules

of said court, and to include in said transcript of

record the following documents or certified copies

thereof, to wit:
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1. The docket entries of all proceedings before

the Board of Tax Appeals. [45]

2. Pleadings before the Board of Tax Appeals

as follows

:

(a) Petition for redetermination, including

attached copy of deficiency notice

;

(b) Answer of respondent;

(c) Application for leave to file amend-

ment to petition and order granting same;

(d) Amendment to petition;

(e) Answer of respondent to amendment to

petition, if any.

3. The findings of fact and opinion of the

Board of Tax Appeals.

4. Petitioner's computation for entry of deci-

sion.

5. The decision of the Board.

6. The Petition for Review filed by petitioner

in the above appeal, together with Notice of filing

the same, and Proof of the service thereof.

7. Statement of Points upon which petitioner

intends to rely on the review.

8. Designation of Portions of record, proceed-

ings and evidence to be contained in the record

on Review, together with proof of service of same.

Dated: October 21, 1940.

WALTER SLACK,
825 Balfour Building, San

Francisco, California, At-

torney for Petitioner.

[46]
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[Title of Board and Cause.]

AFFIDAVIT OF SERVICE OF DESIGNATION
OF PORTIONS OF THE RECORD, PRO-
CEEDINGS AND EVIDENCE TO BE CON-
TAINED IN THE RECORD ON REVIEW
AND OF STATEMENT OF POINTS UPON
WHICH PETITIONER INTENDS TO
RELY ON THE REVIEW

State of California

City and County of San Francisco—ss.

J. A. Poma, being first duly sworn, deposes and

says:

That she is, and was at the time of the service

hereinafter referred to, a resident of the City and

County of San Francisco, State of California, and

a citizen of the United States over the age of

twenty-one years and not a party to nor interested

in the above entitled appeal; that the address of

affiant is 2265 Larkin Street, San Francisco, Cali-

fornia.

That on the 21st day of October, 1940, affiant de-

posited [47] in the registered mail at the United

States post office at San Francisco, California, dup-

licate originals of the attached Designation of por-

tions of the Record, proceedings and evidence to be

contained in the record on Review and of the State-

ment of Points upon which Petitioner intends to

Rely on the Review in a sealed envelope addressed

to J. P. Wenchel, Esq., Chief Counsel, Bureau of

Internal Revenue, Internal Revenue Building,
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Washington, D. C. ; that at the time of such de-

posit affiant fully prepaid the first class postage

thereon and the registry fee therefor; that at the

time of such deposit there was regular communica-

tion by mail between the said City and County of

San Francisco and the city of Washington, D. C.

J. A. POMA
Subscribed and sworn to before me this 21st day

of October, 1940.

[Seal] CATHERINE E. KEITH
Notary Public in and for the City and County of

San Francisco, State of California.

My commission expires Oct. 20, 1942.

[Endorsed]: U. S. B. T. A. Filed Oct. 25, 1940.

[48]

[Title of Board and Cause.]

CERTIFICATE

I, B. D. Gamble, clerk of the U. S. Board of Tax
Appeals, do hereby certify that the foregoing pages,

1 to 48, inclusive, contain and are a true copy of

the transcript of record, papers, and proceedings

on file and of record in my office as called for by

the Praecipe in the appeal (or appeals) as above

numbered and entitled.

In testimony whereof, I hereunto set my hand

and affix the seal of the United States Board of
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Tax Appeals, at Washington, in the District of

Columbia, this 5th da}^ of November, 1940.

[Seal] B. D. GAMBLE,
Clerk, United States Board

of Tax Appeals. [49]

[Endorsed]: No. 9682. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. Adolph

B. Spreckels, Petitioner, vs. Commissioner of In-

ternal Revenue, Respondent. Transcript of the Rec-

ord. Upon Petition to Review a Decision of the

United States Board of Tax Appeals.

Filed November 18, 1940.

PAUL P. O'BRIEN,
Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit.

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit

No. 9682

ADOLPH B. SPRECKELS,
Petitioner,

vs.

COMMISSIONER OF INTERNAL REVENUE,
Respondent.

DESIGNATION OF THE PARTS OF THE
RECORD TO BE PRINTED

Now comes Adolph B. Spreckels, the petitioner

above named, and pursuant to Rule 19 of the above
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court designates the entire record contained in the

transcript heretofore certified by the Clerk of the

United States Board of Tax Appeals and filed in

the above entitled cause on November 18, 1940', as

the part of the record which petitioner thinks nec-

essary for the consideration of petitioner's petition

for review in said cause.

WALTER SLACK,
825 Balfour Building, San

Francisco, California, At-

torney for Petitioner.

Consented to

:

J. P. WENCHEL,
Chief Coimsel, Bureau of In-

ternal Revenue, Attorney

for Respondent.

[Endorsed]: Piled Nov. 25, 1940. Paul P.

O'Brien, Clerk. [50]

[Title of Circuit Court of Appeals and Cause.]

STATEMENT OF THE POINTS ON WHICH
PETITIONER INTENDS TO RELY

Petitioner, Adolph B. Spreckels, above named
hereby adopts as a statement of the points on which

he intends to rely on the above review the state-

ment of points to be relied upon by petitioner on

review by the United States Circuit Court of Ap-

peals for the Ninth Circuit of the decision of the

United States Board of Tax Appeals entered on
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August 5, 1940, filed in the United States Board of

Tax Appeals in the above proceeding and contained

in the certified transcript of the record filed in the

above cause on Nevember 18, 1940.

WALTER SLACK,
825 Balfour Building, San

Francisco, California, At-

torney for Petitioner.

Service of a copy of the above Statement of

Points is hereby acknowledged this 22nd day of

November, 1940.

J. P. WENCHEL,
Chief Coimsel, Bureau of In-

ternal Revenue, Attorney

for Respondent.

[Endorsed]: Filed Nov. 25, 1940. Paul P.

O'Brien, Clerk. [51]
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No. 9682

IN THE

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

Adolph B. Spreckels,
Petitioner,

vs.

Commissioner of Internal RE^^NUE,

Respondent.

PETITIONER'S OPENING BRIEF.

OPINION BELOW.

This is a petition for review of a decision of the

Board of Tax Appeals entered pursuant to findings of

fact and an opinion of the Board reported in 41

B. T. A. p. 1204.

STATEMENT OF PLEADINGS AND FACTS SHOWING
JURISDICTION.

Petitioner is an individual, resident in San Fran-

cisco, California. He filed his income tax return for

the year 1934 with the Collector at San Francisco.

(R. 24) On July 20, 1938, the respondent sent peti-

tioner a ninety day letter proposing to assess addi-

tional income taxes for that year. (R. 9-14) On Sep-

tember 26, 1938, and within the time allowed by law,



petitioner appealed from said proposed assessment to

the Board of Tax Appeals. (R. 2, 14) After a hear-

ing the Board filed its findings of fact and opinion and

on August 5, 1940, a decision was entered determining

that there had been an overpayment of petitioner's

income tax for the calendar year 1934 in the sum of

$2,816.72. (R. 34) Petitioner, deeming himself en-

titled to a refund in the sum of $4,087.61, on October

19, 1940, filed with the Board his petition for review

of the decision by this Court. (R. 3, 38)

The Board had jurisdiction of the appeal under

section 272 (a) of the Revenue Act of 1938 and sec-

tion 272 (a) of the Internal Revenue Code. This

Court has jurisdiction of the petition for review un-

der sections 1141 and 1142 of the Internal Revenue

Code.

ABSTEACT OF CASE.

Petitioner filed his federal income tax return for

1934 on May 9, 1935, showing a net taxable income

of $121,593.86 and a tax liability of $37,897.60, which

was paid in installments, the last payment being made

on December 16, 1935, in the amount of $9,474.40.

(R. 24-25) On December 23, 1937, petitioner filed a

timely claim for refund of income tax in the amount

of $4,087.61 on the ground that certain stamp taxes

had been paid that had not been claimed as deductions

in the return. (R. 25) Thereafter respondent audited

petitioner's return in conjunction with the refund

claim and in a deficiency letter dated July 20, 1938,

conceded the correctness of the claim with respect to



the stamp taxes with the exception of $80 thereof.

However, respondent claimed that petitioner's divi-

dend income had been understated by an amomit con-

siderably in excess of the stamp taxes paid and as-

serted a deficiency of $1,254.11 for the year. (R.

9-14) In due time, on September 26, 1938, a petition

for redetermination was filed with the Board wherein

error was assigned as to the proposed increase in peti-

tioner's dividend income and petitioner asserted his

right to a deduction for the stamp taxes covered by

the refund claim of December 23, 1937. (R. 4-8) At

the hearing before the Board on June 8, 1939, peti-

tioner asked and was granted leave to file an amend-

ment to his petition setting forth an additional error

on the part of the respondent in failing to allow peti-

tioner a deduction for selling commissions paid in

connection with sales of stocks, bonds and commodities

in the sum of $23,909.29. The amendment closed with

a prayer for the refund of the $4,087.61 claimed in

the refund claim filed on December 23, 1937, although

the allowance of the additional deduction for selling-

commissions would have authorized a refund in ex-

cess of $15,000. (R. 18-20)

The Board after receiving testimony held that the

selling commissions were legally deductible in deter-

mining petitioner's income tax liability with the re-

sult that petitioner had in fact overpaid his income

tax for the year 1934 by $15,122.56. However, on the

ground that the amendment assigning error in respect

to thq deduction for selling commissions had not been

filed within three years after the payment of the

last installment of tax, the Board ruled that peti-



tioner could not receive the full amount of $4,087.61

covered by the valid refund claim filed on December

23, 1937, but that the refund should be limited to

$2,816.72, the amount by which petitioner had over-

paid his income tax for the year if the error with

reference to the allowance of selling commissions were

disregarded.

The sole question involved on this petition for re-

view is whether the Board of Tax Appeals, having

determined that a taxpayer ,lias overpaid his income

tax, may limit the amount of such overpayment to be

refunded, to an amount less than that covered by a

valid and timely refund claim, on the ground that

one of the adjustments contributing to the determina-

tion that there was an overpayment was not specified

as error within three years after the payment of the

last installment of tax.

SPECIFICATIONS OF ERROR.

Petitioner specifies the following errors on this peti-

tion for review:

(1) The failure of the Board to determine the

amount by which petitioner overpaid his income

tax for the year 1934, on the basis of the evidence

before the Board;

(2) The failure of the Board to determine

the portion of the overpayment of petitioner's

income tax for 1934 paid within three years of the

filing on December 23, 1937, of his claim for re-

fund of income tax for that year.



SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT.

It is petitioner's position that the statute requires

the Board, when it finds that a taxpayer has made an

overpayment of tax for a year under consideration, to

determine the amount of such overpayment without

reference to any limitations on the right to refund,

and, having so determined, then to determine the

portion of the overpayment paid within three years

before the filing of a valid claim for refund or of the

petition. The matter of refund then becomes the func-

tion of the Bureau of Internal Revenue.

Petitioner also contends that the Board in per-

forming its first function, that of determining the

amount of the overpayment, is required to consider all

errors specified in the petition and in any amendments

thereto which the Board has permitted to be filed, re-

gardless of the date of the filing of such amendments.

ARGUMENT.

L STATEMENT OF FACTS AND POINTS OF LAW TO BE
DISCUSSED.

The Board of Tax Appeals has found facts from

which it appears that petitioner has overpaid his in-

come tax for the year 1934 by $15,122.56. It has de-

termined that petitioner is entitled to a refund of but

$2,816.72 of this overpayment. Petitioner does not

assert the right to recover the full amount of the

overpayment hut only so much thereof as is covered

hy a vcblid mid timely refund claim for $4,087.61.



The statute provides that the Board, if it *' finds

that the taxpayer has made an overpayrrient of tax,

* * * shall have jurisdiction to determine the amount

of such overpayment", and that when the decision

of the Board has become final the amount of overpay-

ment shall ''be credited or refunded to the taxpayer".

The only limitation on this jurisdiction is that the

Board must determine the portion of the tax ''paid

within three years before the filing of the claim [for

refund] or the filing of the petition, whichever is

earlier". Revenue Act of 1934, section 322(d); In-

ternal Revenue Code, section 322(d).

Petitioner contends that under these statutory pro-

visions the Board has two duties to perform in a

case where it finds that a taxpayer has overpaid his

income tax, viz.: (1) to determine the amount of such

overpayment, (2) to determine how much of such

overpayment was paid within three years before the

filing of a valid claim for refund or before filing the

petition with the Board.

The Board in the present case performed neither

of these duties. It not only failed to find the entire

amount by which petitioner had overpaid his income

tax for the year, a matter that can, however, be com-

puted from the record before this Court, but it also

erroneously determined that but $2,816.72 of tax had

been "paid within three years before the filing of a

claim for refund", whereas the undisputed fact is that

$9,474.40 in tax had been paid within three years prior

to the filing of the refund claim for $4,087.61 on De-

cember 23, 1937.



Petitioner contends that under these statutory pro-

visions the practice adopted by the 3u.reau of Internal

Revenue in determining the amount of an overpay-

ment of income tax properly refundable should apply,

and that as required by General Counsel's Memo-

randum 9800, Cumulative Bulletin X-2, p. 271, ''the

correct tax should be calculated * * * taking into con-

sideration all items increasing and decreasing net in-

come regardless of the statute of limitations"; and

that after this is done, the tax paid should be re-

funded "to the extent of the overpayment represented

by the allowable items covered by timely claims when

claims are necessary". (From the syllabus)

Thus considered, the petition for review does not

present the question discussed in the Board's opinion

as to the right to a tefund by reason of an error in

the determination of his tax first assigned in an

amendment to the petition filed more than three years

after the overpayment of tax, since petitioner through-

out the case has not asserted any right to a refund

in excess of the amount covered by the timely refund

claim. Hence, the sole question for consideration is

whether or not, in the case of an overpayment of in-

come tax, the Board is authorized to reduce the al-

low^able refund to an amount less than that covered

by the timely claim.

II. THE PLEADINGS BEFORE THE BOARD.

For a proper imderstanding of the situation the

pleadings before the Board will be reviewed.
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(a) THE 90-DAY LETTER.

Petitioner's return for the year 1934 reported a

taxable income of $121,593.86. In his notice of de-

termination of deficiency (the 90-day Letter, so-

called) respondent increased petitioner's share of

certain dividends received from trustees by $9,431.67,

disallowed a deduction of $700.80 for taxes paid on

whiskey withdrawn from bonded warehouse, and al-

lowed as a deduction not claimed on the return but

claimed in the refund claim filed December 23, 1937,

an amount representing stamp taxes paid on sales of

securities and commodities. The result was an in-

crease in taxable income to $124,507.04 and a proposal

to assess a deficiency of $1,254.11. (R. 9-14)

(b) THE PETITION TO THE BOARD.

In his petition for a redetermination of this de-

ficiency, petitioner assigned as error the action of re-

spondent in increasing his dividend income by $9,-

431.67 (R. 5), and then pleaded in detail the facts

concerning the payment of the stamp taxes on sales of

securities and commodities, set out the dates of the

payment of income tax for the year 1934, alleged the

payment of an installment of $9,474.40 on December

10, 1935, and the filing on December 23, 1937, of the

refund claim for the overpayment of income tax aris-

ing from the failure to deduct the stamp taxes on the

original return. (R. 6-7) The respondent's answer

raised issues as to the errors specified, but admitted

that petitioner was entitled to a deduction of $7,219.29

for stamp taxes. (R. 15-17)



(c) AMENDMENT TO PETITION.

At the hearing before the Board in San Francisco

on June 8, 1939, the errors raised in the original peti-

tion were disposed of by stipulation to the effect that

$7,828.51 should be excluded from taxable income as

redetermined by the respondent and the dividend

credit reduced by the same amount. (R. 23-25) This

resulted in an overpayment of tax, since the deficiency

letter proposed a net increase in taxable income of but

$2,913.18. Petitioner then moved for and was granted

leave to file an amendment to his petition. (R. 2, 17-

18, 21) The amendment to petition assigned an ad-

ditional error in respondent's determination of in-

come tax through his failure to allow as a deduction

the sum of $23,909.29 representing selling commissions

paid in connection with the sales of stocks, bonds

and commodities and alleged facts siipporting the as-

signment. (R. 18-20) The respondent filed an answer

to amendment to petition consisting of a general de-

nial of the material allegations but containing no af-

firmative pleading setting up any bar of the refund

by reason of the limitations of the statute. (R. 21-22)

(d) THE HEARING.

The hearing was confimed to the issue raised by the

amendment to petition and resulted in a finding by the

Board that during the year 1934 petitioner was en-

gaged in the business of purchasing and selling stocks,

bonds and commodities for profit and that in that year

he paid to brokers $23,692, representing selling com-

missions in connection with such sales; that peti-

tioner did not deduct the selling commissions in com-
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puting the income shown in his income tax return for

the taxable year, and that on petitioner's books the

selling commissions were deducted from the selling

price before net profit or loss was determined. (R. 24)

The Board also found that the last installment of

petitioner's income tax for the year 1934 was paid on

December 16, 1935, in the amount of $9,474.40 and

that on December 23, 1937, petitioner filed a claim for

refund of income tax in the amount of $4,087.61 on

the ground that certain stamp taxes were paid that

had not been claimed as deductions in the return.

(R. 24-25)

III. THE BOARD ALTHOUGH FINDING PETITIONER HAD
OVERPAID HIS INCOME TAX, FAILED TO DETERMINE
THE AMOUNT OF OVERPAYMENT, OR THE AMOUNT PAID
WITHIN THREE YEARS OF THE FILING OF A VALID
REFUND CLAIM.

(a) THE DECISION.

Notwithstanding the pleadings and findings the

Board entered its decision,

"That there is an overpayment in income tax for

the year 1934 in the amount of $2,816.72, which

amount was paid within three years before the

filing of a claim for refund. (Section 809(a)

Revenue Act of 1938.) " (R. 34)

(b) OPINION OF THE BOARD.

(i) Board in effect considered itself limited to a consideration

of errors assig^ned within statutory period for refunds.

The opinion of the Board (R. 26-31) shows that it

reached its decision on the theory that it could not
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allow a refund of any amount in excess of that result-

ing from the stipulation at the hearing, since the

error in relation to the deduction of selling commis-

sions was not assigned until more than three years

after the payment of the last installment of the income

tax. The Board felt constrained to this conclusion by

the decisions of the Circuit Court of Appeals for the

Third Circuit in Commissioner v. Rieck, 104 Fed. (2d)

294, and of the Circuit Court of Appeals for the Sec-

ond Circuit in Commissioner v. Dallas, 110 Fed. (2d)

743, stating that it found no material distinction be-

tween the situations in those cases and in the present

case.

Before analyzing and showing the inapplicability

of the two decisions to the present facts, it will lend

to a clearer appreciation of the problem if the statu-

tory provisions relating to the jurisdiction and pro-

cedure of the Board are considered.

IV. THE STATUTE REQUIRES THE BOARD TO DETERMINE
SEPARATELY THE FULL AMOUNT OF OVERPAYMENT
AND THE PORTION PAID WITHIN THREE YEARS OF THE
REFUND CLAIM.

(a) STATUTORY PROVISIONS.

The statutory provisions authorizing appeals to the

Board and regulating procedure therein have not

changed substantially imder the various Revenue Acts

and are now found in the Internal Revenue Code. So

far as is necessary for a consideration of the present

question, they read as follows

:

Section 272. Procedure in General,
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"(a) (1) Petition to Board of Tax Appeals.—If

in the case of any taxpayer, the Commissioner
determines that there is a deficiency in respect of

the tax imposed by this chapter, the Commis-
sioner is authorized to send notice of such defi-

ciency to the taxpayer by registered mail. Within
ninety days after such notice is mailed, * * *

the taxpayer may file a petition with the Board
of Tax Appeals for a redetermination of the

deficiency. No assessment of a deficiency in re-

spect of the tax imposed by this chapter and no

distraint or proceeding in court for its collection

shall be made, begun, or prosecuted until such

notice has been mailed to the taxpayer, nor until

the expiration of such ninety-day period, nor, if

a petition has been filed with the Board, until the

decision of the Board has become final.*******
''(b) Collection of Deficiency found hy Board.—
If the taxpayer files a petition with the Board,

the entire amount redetermined as the deficiency

by the decision of the Board which has become
final shall be assessed and shall be paid upon
notice and demand from the collector. No part

of the amount determined as a deficiency by the

Commissioner but disallowed as such by the deci-

sion of the Board which has become final shall be

assessed or be collected by distraint or by pro-

ceeding in court with or without assessment.*******
** (e) Increase of Deficiency after notice mailed.—
The Board shall have jurisdiction to redetermine

the correct amount of the deficiency even if the

amount so redetermined is greater than the

amount of the deficiency, notice of which has been

mailed to the taxpayer, and to determine whether
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any penalty, additional amount or addition to the

tax should be assessed—if claim therefor is as-

serted by the Commissioner at or before the

hearing' or a rehearing."

Section 322. Refunds and Credits.

"(a) Authorization.—^Where there has been an

overpayment of any tax imposed by this chapter,

the amount of such overpayment shall be credited

against any income, war-profits, or excess-profits

tax or installment thereof then due from the tax-

payer, and any balance shall be refunded immedi-

ately to the taxpayer.

''(b) Limitation on Allowance.

(1) Period of Limitation.—Unless a claim for

credit or refund is filed by the taxpayer within

three years from the time the return was filed by

the taxpayer or' within two years from the time

the tax was paid, no credit or refund shall be

allowed or made after the expiration of which-

ever of such periods expires the later. If no re-

turn is filed by the taxpayer, then no credit or

refund shall be allowed or made after two years

from the time the tax was paid, unless before the

expiration of such period a claim therefor is filed

by the taxpayer.

(2) Limit on amount of Credit or Refmid.—
The amount of the credit or refund shall not ex-

ceed the portion of the tax paid during the three

years immediately preceding the filing of the

claim, or, if no claim was filed, then during the

three years immediately preceding the allowance

of the credit or refund.

"(c) Effect of Petition to Board.—If the Com-

missioner has mailed to the taxpaj^er a notice of
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deficiency under section 272 (a) and if the tax-

payer files a petition with the Board of Tax Ap-

peals within the time prescribed in such subsec-

tion, no credit or refund in respect of the tax for

the taxable year in respect of which the Commis-

sioner has determined the deficiency shall be

allowed or made and no suit by the taxpayer for

the recovery of any part of such tax shall be in-

stituted in any court except:

(1) As to overpayments determined by a deci-

sion of the Board which has become final ; and

(2) As to any amount collected in excess of

an amount computed in accordance with the deci-

sion of the Board which has become final ; and

(3) As to any amount collected after the

period of limitation upon the beginning of dis-

traint or a proceeding in court for collection has

expired; but in any such claim for credit or re-

fund or in any such suit for refund the decision

of the Board which has become final, as to whether

such period has expired before the notice of defi-

ciency was mailed, shall be conclusive.

''(d) Overpayment Found hy Board.—If the

Board finds that there is no deficiency and further

finds that the taxpayer has made an overpayment

of tax in respect of the taxable year in respect of

which the Commissioner determined the defi-

ciency, the Board shall have jurisdiction to deter-

mine the amount of such overpayment, and such

amount shall, when the decision of the Board has

become final, be credited or refunded to the tax-

payer. No such credit or refund shall be made of

any portion of the tax unless the Board deter-

mines as part of its decision that such portion
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was paid (1) within three years before the filing

of the claim or the filing of the petition, which-

ever is earlier, or (2) after the mailing of the

notice of deficiency."

Section 1111. Rules of Practice, Procedure, and

Evidence.

''The proceedings of the Board and its divisions

shall be conducted in accordance with such rules

of practice and procedure (other than rules of

evidence) as the Board may prescribe and in

accordance with the rules of evidence applicable

in the courts of the District of Columbia in the

type of proceedings which prior to September 16,

1938, were within the jurisdiction of the courts

of equity of said District."

(b) NO JURISDICTIONAL LIMITATIONS ON MATTERS TO BE
CONSIDERED BY BOARD IN REDETERMINING A DEFICIENCY.

It is evident from the foregoing statutory provi-

sions that there is no jurisdictional limit on the mat-

ters to be considered by the Board in redetermining a

deficiency, provided only the petition is filed within

the ninety-day period. The Commissioner is not even

restricted to the errors raised by his deficiency letter.

The only requirement for the assignment of errors by

the petitioner is found in Rule 6 of the Board, specify-

ing the contents of the petition and which, so far as

that requirement is concerned, reads

:

'' (d) Clear and concise assignments of each and

every error which the petitioner alleges to have

been committed by the Commissioner in the deter-

mination of the deficiency. Issues in respect of

which the burden of proof is by statute placed
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upon the Commissioner will not be deemed to be

raised by the petitioner in the absence of assign-

ments of error in respect thereof. Each assign-

ment of error shall be nmnbered."

(c) RULES PERMIT AMENDED PLEADINGS.

Rule 17, provides

:

"Amended and supplemental pleadings.—The
petitioner may, as of course, amend his petition

at any time before answer is filed. After answer

is filed, a petition may be amended only by con-

sent of the Commissioner or on leave of the

Board.

"All motions to amend, made prior to the hear-

ing, must be accompanied by the proposed amend-
ments or amended pleading.

"Upon motion made, the Board may, in its

discretion, at any time before the conclusion of

the hearing, permit a party to a proceeding to

amend the pleadings to conform to the proof.

"When motions to amend are granted at the

hearing, the amendment or amended pleading

shall be filed at the hearing or with the Board
within such time as the Division may fix."

It foUows logically from the policy announced in

Rule 17, in view of the fact that the object of the

creation of the Board was to afford an opportunity

for a determination of the correct tax liability, that

the Board may consider any error assigned by either

party in the pleadings upon which the appeal is tried.
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(d) ERRORS RAISED BY AMENDMENT AT HEARING MTJST BE
CONSIDERED IN DETERMINING TAX LIABILITY.

Prior to the present decision, it has been the regular

practice of the Board to allow amendments for the

purpose of assigning additional errors in the Commis-

sioner's deteiTnination and to consider those additional

errors in determining taxpayer's income.

Appeal of Bear Manufacturing Co., 2 B. T. A.

422;

Appeal of Chicago Railway Equipment Co., 13

B. T. A. 471, 480.

While neither of these appeals involved overpay-

ments of tax, there is no reason why any exception

should be made where a consideration of the error

raised by the amendment will result in an overpay-

ment rather than a reduction in the asserted deficiency

as will be discussed in more detail later in this brief.

(i) Procedure in Bureau of Internal Revenue under G. C. M.
9800 gives full effect to timely refund claims.

As has been noted, prior to the present decision, the

practice in the Bureau of Internal Revenue in audit-

ing returns had been in accord with the rule petitioner

contends is required of the Board by the statutory

provisions relating to overpayments found by that

body, viz.: determine the correct tax liability on the

basis of all facts affecting the same, then determine

the amount of refund, which cannot be more than the

amount of overpayment actually made, nor more than

the amount covered by a timely refund claim. Gen-

eral Counsel's Memorandum 9800, supra, discusses the

problem in the terms of the 1926 Act, which are for
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all purposes of the present consideration substan-

tially identical with those of the 1938 Act here in-

volved, as follows:

"Some doubt has arisen as to the legality of off-

setting additional deductions (which are entirely

proper and allowable except for the fact that they

are not covered by a claim for refund or credit

and for that reason could not be allowed if con-

sidered separately) against additions to income

to the extent that such additions will permit an

offset. * * *

"The matter appears to be controlled by the

express language of the statute. Section 284 (a)

of the Revenue Act of 1926, so far as material,

directs that 'Where there has been an overpay-

ment of any income * * * tax * * * the amount
of such overpayment shall * * * be credited

against any income * * * tax or installment

thereof then due from the taxpayer, and any bal-

ance of such excess shall be refunded immediately

to the taxpayer.' Subdivision (b) 1 and 2 of sec-

tion 284 provides

:

"(1) No such credit or refund shall be al-

lowed or made after three years from the time the

tax was paid in the case of a tax imposed by this

Act, nor after four years from the time the tax

was paid in the case of a tax imposed by any

prior Act, unless before the expiration of such

period a claim therefor is filed by the taxpayer;

and

" (2) The amount of the credit or refund shall

not exceed the portion of the tax paid during the

three or four years, respectively, immediately

preceding the filing of the claim, or if no claim
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was filed, then during the three or four years,

respectively, immediately preceding the allowance

of the credit or refund.

'

' These provisions require no complicated calcu-

lations. Plainly the purpose is to permit the re-

fund or credit of overpaid tax where a claim is

required, to the extent of the allowable items

covered by the claim. The statute does not make
the adjustment of overpaid tax a matter of set-

ting off one income-adjusting item or class of

items against another. The statute looks simply

to (1) the correct tax ascertained by inclusion of

all proper items, regardless of time limitations,

and (2) the tax actually paid no matter how calcu-

lated, and contemplates that the excess of (2) over

(1) shall be refunded or credited to the extent of

the tax overpaid represented by the allowable

items covered by timely claims when claims are

necessary." (C. B. X-2, pp. 272-3)

The opinion concludes:

''Lewis et al. v. Reynolds (48 Fed. (2d) 515,

Ct. D. 347, C. B. X-1, 180), decided by the United

States Circuit Court of Appeals, Tenth Circuit, is

not contrary to this conclusion. The court, after

quoting section 284(a) of the Revenue Act of

1926, supra, and section 322 (a) and (b) of the

Revenue Act of 1928, stated

:

''The above-quoted provisions clearly limit re-

funds to overpayments. It follows that the ulti-

mate question presented for decision, upon a claim

for refund, is whether the taxpayer has overpaid

his tax. This involves a redetermination of the

entire tax liability. While no new assessment can

be made, after the bar of the statute has fallen,
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the taxpayer, nevertheless, is not entitled to a

refund unless he has overpaid his tax.

"The inference of the court's statement that the

taxpayer is not entitled to a refund unless he has

overpaid his tax seems plainly to be that if he has

overpaid his tax he is entitled to a refund. The

court recognized that in order to ascertain whether

there has in fact been an overpayment of tax,

items of income which increase the tax must be

considered as well as items of deductions which

decrease the tax. The coui*t's ojjinion affords no

basis for assuming that the tax and overpayment

may be computed to the detriment of the tax-

payer by including one class of items and exclud-

ing the other class.

"It is therefore, concluded that in determining

whether there has been an overpayment which

may be refunded or credited, the correct tax

should be calculated on the basis upon which the

taxpayer filed his return, taking into considera-

tion all items increasing and decreasing net in-

come, regardless of the statute of limitations. The
tax actually paid may be refunded or credited to

the extent of the overpayment represented by the

allowable items covered by timely claims when
claims are necessary." (C. B. X-2, p. 274)

(ii) Commissioner v. Rieck and Commissioner v. Dallas not

inconsistent.

When the facts involved in Commissioner v. Rieck

and Co7nmissioner v. Dallas^ supra, are considered,

the decisions are in nowise inconsistent with G. C. M.

9800 or with the construction of section 322 of the

Internal Revenue Code, urged by petitioner. In truth.
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if the procedure announced in G-. C. M. 9800 is applied

to the situations presented in the two cited cases, the

result is the same as that reached by the Circuit Courts

of Appeals, since while in each case there was an

actual overpayment of tax, in neither was there a

valid, timely claim for refund.

In the Rieck case, the taxpayer had made a timely

petition to the Board wherein he claimed a refund of

income tax on account of the improper inclusion in

taxable income of income from an insurance trust.

In the course of his appeal to the Board he ^^ became

convinced that his claim * * * was baseless and

would not be, as it was not, allowed by the Board. He
accordingly asked and was granted by the Board leave

to amend his claim by substituting for the Insurance

Ti-ust income deduction a deduction for the Bank

stock loss. This amendment was allowed September

28th, 1936. The significance of this is that the original

claim was filed April 19th, 1935, within two years of

the payment of the tax. The amended claim was not

made until September 28th, 1936, more than two years

after the payment." (104 Fed. (2d) 294)

The Circuit Court of Appeals held the refund could

not be allowed, applying to a petition to the Board,

the rule that a refund claim camiot be amended after

the statutory period to set up a new and distinct

ground for recovery, citing United States v. Andrews,

302 U. S. 517, 82 L. Ed. 398, and United States v.

Garbutt Oil Co., 302 U. S. 528, 82 L. Ed. 405. It will

be noted on examination of these two authorities, that
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each, as did the Rieck case, involved amendments

bringing in new and entirely unrelated claims, in sup-

port of invalid claims previously asserted.

In the case of Commissio^ier v. Dallas, supra, the

original petition had made no claim of overpayment,

only opposing a proposed increase in income, the first

claim of overpayment being asserted in an amended

petition filed more than two years after the payment

of the tax, asserting the improper inclusion of an

item of income in the original return. There was a

well-reasoned dissent to the decision that the amend-

ment could not relate back to the date of the filing

of the original petiton.

(e) PRESENT CASE INVOLVES THE AMOUNT REFUNDABLE
ON A VALID AND TIMELY REFUND CLAIM.

It is accordingly not necessary to consider the

validity of the reasoning in the Rieck and Dallas

cases, since petitioner here is not seeking a refund by

reason of error first assigned more than three years

after the payment of the tax, but a refund of the

amount covered by a timely and valid claim for re-

fund asserted prior to the filing of the original peti-

tion, and reasserted in that petition which was like-

wise filed within the statutory period.

(i) Board has confused the requirements of Section 322 (d) of

the Internal Revenue Code.

Section 322 of the Internal Revenue Code has here-

tofore been referred to and quoted. Its provisions

are simple, and if followed literally result in the al-
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lowance in full of the refund claimed by petitioner.

A repetition of these provisions is sufficient to indi-

cate this result.

''If the Board finds that there is no deficiency

and further finds that the taxpayer has made an

overpayment of tax in respect of the taxable year

in respect of which the Commissioner determined

the deficiency,

the Board shall have jurisdiction to determine

the amount of such overpayment,

and such amount sha^ll, when the decision of the

Board has become final, be credited or refunded

to the taxpayer."

Having done this, the amount to be refunded is then

determined under the following provision of the sub-

section :

"No such credit or refund shall be made of any
portion of the tax unless the Board determines

as part of its decision that such portion was paid

(1) within three years before the filing of the

claim or the filing of the petition, whichever is

earlier, or (2) after the mailing of the notice

of deficiency."

The statute contemplates that in a given instance

the amount of overpayment may exceed the amount

refundable by its reference m the second sentence to

a ''portion of the tax".

Had the Board here first determined the overpay-

ment on the basis of its findings, it would have found
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that petitioner had overpaid his mcome tax for the

year 1934 by $15,122.56. Having so determined, it

would then have perforaied its duty as required by

the closing provision of the subsection and determined

that $4,087.61 of that overpayment was paid within

three years before the filing of the claim therefor

on December 23, 1937. So determining, the refund

of that amount is automatically made after the deci-

sion becomes final.

(ii) Petitioner to Board may introduce at the hearing proof in

support of any error alleged in his pleadings to reduce |Or

offset the deficiency asserted by respondent.

It has been the uniform practice of the Board to

receive at a hearing proof in support of any error

alleged in the petition or amended petition in order

to determine whether or not there is a deficiency in

petitioner's income tax for the period. The Board

is expressly given "jurisdiction to redetermine the

correct amount of the deficiency". (Internal Revenue

Code Sec. 272(e) supra.)

In Appeal of Giitterman Straitss Co., 1 B. T. A.

243, the Commissioner contended that the Board could

consider only errors in the proposed deficiency urged

before the Bureau. The Board said (p. 244) :

''But admitting that this claim was not made
before the Commissioner, the Board is clearly of

the opinion that it has jurisdiction to determine

the point in issue. The Commissioner has found

a deficiency in tax for the year 1919. It is the

duty of this Board to determine whether the
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amount found as a deficiency is the correct

amount of the deficiency, if any.
* ^ * * * * *

''This Board was not created for the purpose of

reviewing rulings made hy the Commissioner but

was created for the purpose of determiniyig the

correctness of deficiencies in tax found by the

Commissioner. If the deficiency in tax found by
him is greater than the true deficiency the Board
has authority to decrease it; if it is less than

the true deficiency, the Board has authority to

increase it. {Appeal of the Hotel DeFrance Co.,

1 B. T. A. 28.) If a taxpayer can prove to this

Board that he is entitled to a deduction from

gross income, the deduction will be allowed even

though it has never been claimed by the taxpayer

at any hearing had before the Commissioner;

otherwise it wouM be impossible for this Board
to determine the correct amount of the defi-

ciency.''

In the Appeal of Robert P. Hyams Coal Co., Ltd.,

1 B. T. A. 217, the Board says (p. 220) :

''Inasmuch as the deficiencies in tax for each

year are before the Board for its review, the Board
takes jurisdiction of the case to consider all

points raised for the purpose of reaching the

correct amount of 'the deficiency in tax, if any,

for each of the years under review." (Italics

supplied.)

In fact the refusal of the Board to permit an amend-

ment to the petition raising new issues may be revers-
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ible error. The Circuit Court of Appeals for the Sec-

ond Circuit so held in Intetmational Bandmg Ma-

chine Co. V. Commissioner, 37 Fed. (2d) 660, where

the evidence on the new issue had been received with-

out objection but the Board had denied a motion to

amend to conform to proof and refused to consider

the error so raised. See also the decision of the Cir-

cuit Court of Appeals for the Third Circuit in

Enameled Metals Co. v. Commissioner, 42 Fed. (2d)

213, where the Board refused leave to file an amend-

ment raising the bar of the statute of limitations and

was reversed.

Instances where the Board permitted amendment to

the petition to assign additional error will be found in

Appeal of Bear Manufacturing Co., 2 B. T. A. 422;

Appeal of Chicago Railway Equipment Co., 13 B. T.

A. 471, 480, heretofore cited.

Since it is the duty of the Board to determine the

amount of overpayment, where there is no deficiency

(Internal Revenue Code, Sec. 322(d)), there is no

reason why a different rule should apply as to amend-

ments in such a case than applies where the only ques-

tion is the amount of the deficiency. As has been

pointed out, the portion of the overpayment to be re-

funded is determined by other factors, but the Board

must in all cases determine the taxable income upon

all the facts presented to it whether by the original

petition or by an amended petition properly filed.

Having performed this fimction, it then proceeds to

determine the portion of the overpayment refundable

under the final sentence of the subdivision.
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V. PLEADINGS DO NOT RAISE ISSUE OF BAR OF STATUTE^

It will be noted that the answer to amendment to

petition does not raise the bar of the statute, con-

taining only denials. While this was held immaterial

in the Rieck case, it will be noted that the bar was

pleaded in the answer filed in the Dallas case.

VI. SECURITY EXCHANG-E REGISTRATION FEE NOT CLAIMED
AS AN ALLOWABLE DEDUCTION BY PETITIONER.

In order to avoid confusion, there has been ignored

throughout the discussion of the point involved, the

effect on the amount of tax refundable resulting from

the fact that there was included in the refund claim

filed December 23, 1937, a claim for a deduction of

$80 representing ''securities exchange registration

fee", which was not conceded to be a proper deduc-

tion by the Commissioner. It is not contended by

petitioner that the amount should be allowed as a

deduction and the recomputation necessary in the

event of reversal can give effect thereto.

CONCLUSION.

It is submitted, in conclusion, that the Board has

erred in not following the specific directions of Sec-

tion 322(d) of the Internal Revenue Code; and the

Board having found that there was no deficiency in

petitioner's income tax for the year 1934, it should

have determined the amount of overpayment, viz..
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$15,122.56, and then it should have determined that

$9,474.40 thereof was paid on December 16, 1935,

within three years of the filing of the refimd claim

for $4,087.61 on December 23, 1937.

The failure of the Board to follow this simple pro-

cedure requires a reversal.

Dated, San Francisco,

January 3, 1941.

Respectfully submitted,

Walter Slack,

Attorney for Petitioner.
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STATES BOARD OF TAN APPEALS

BRIEF FOR THE RESPONDENT

OPINION BELOW

The opinion of the Board of Tax Appeals (R. 22) is

reported in 41 B. T. A. 1204.

JURISDICTION

This appeal involves a claim for the refund of an

overpayment in income tax for the calendar year 1934

in the amomit of $4,087.61, of which $2,816.72 has been

allowed by the Board of Tax Appeals. (R. 34-38.)

The appeal is from a decision of the Board entered

August 5, 1940 (R. 34), and is brought to this Court by

a petition for review filed October 19, 1940 (R. 35-38),

pursuant to the provisions of Sections 1141 and 1142 of

the Internal Revenue Code.

(1)



QUESTION PRESENTED

Whether the taxpayer may secure the refund of that

portion of an overpayment of tax which depends upon

an item of deduction claimed by the taxpayer for the

first time in an amended i^etition filed with the Board

of Tax Appeals more than three years after the pay-

ment of the tax, where he had filed a timely claim for

refund based upon a different and unrelated item which

was conceded in his favor and is reflected in the deci-

sion entered by the Board.

STATUTES AND REGULATIONS INVOLVED

The x^ertinent statutes and regulations are set forth

in the Appendix, infra, pp. 18-21.

STATEMENT

The facts found by the Board of Tax Ajjpeals (R.

24-26) and admitted by the ]3leadings (R. 15-17, 21-22)

pertinent to this appeal may be summarized as fol-

lows:

The taxpayer, an individual who resides in San^

Francisco, California, filed his income tax return for

the year 1934 with the Collector for the First District

of California. (R. 24.)

The taxpayer was engaged in the business of pur-

chasing and selling stocks, bonds and commodities for

profit. He kept his books upon the basis of cash

receipts and disbursements. In the year 1934, he paid

to brokers selling commissions in the amount of

$23,692 ill connection with sales of stocks, bonds and

commodities. Upon the taxpayer's books, the selling

commissions were deducted from the selling price



before net profit or loss was determined. In making

his income tax return for the year 1934, the taxpayer

did not deduct the selling commissions in computing

income. (R., 24.)

The taxpayer's income tax return for 1934, filed on

May 9, 1935, showed a net taxable income of $121,-

593.86 and a tax of $37,897.60, which was paid in

instalments, the last payment being made December

16, 1935, in the amount of $9,474.40. (R. 24-25.) The

taxpayer reported on this return losses of $114,249.38

from the sale of stocks and commodities, and took as

a deduction $2,000. (R. 25-26.)

On December 23, 1937, the taxpayer filed a claim

for refund of income tax in the amount of $4,087.61,

on the ground that certain stamp taxes were paid that

had not been claimed as deductions in the return.

With the exception of $80, this claim was allowed in

the determination of the Commissioner in a deficiency

letter dated July 20, 1938. (R. 13-14, 24-25.)

In the statement attached to the deficiency letter

of July 20, 1938, it was shown that the adjustments

which resulted in the deficiency were (1) an increase

in the amount of dividends reported by the tax})ayer

as the beneficiary of a certain trust; (2) the disallow-

ance of a deduction of $16,967.02 for interest paid by

the trustees of the trust on income tax deficiencies of

the estate of the decedent, who had created the trust;

(3) the disallowance of a deduction of $700.80 for

taxes paid on whisky withdrawn from bonded ware-

houses. (R. 11-13.)

On Se])tember 26, 1938, the taxpayer filed a petition

to the Board of Tax Appeals. (R. 25.) This petition



alleged as the sole error on the part of the Commis-

sioner the increasing of the taxpayer's distributive

share of the income from the trust created under the

will of Adolph B. Spreckels, deceased. (R. 5.) The

petition further recited that the taxpayer during the

calendar year 1934 had sold stocks, bonds and com-

modities, and had paid stamp taxes on these sales, in

the amount of $7,219.29, which the taxpayer had failed

to deduct in conii)uting his taxes for the calendar year

1934. The petition recited that the taxpayer had filed

a claim for refund of $4,087.61, income tax overpaid,

for the calendar year 1934 by reason of his failure to

deduct these stamp taxes; that the Commissioner had

conceded in the deficiency letter transmitted to the tax-

payer that the taxpayer was entitled to the deduction

for these stamj) taxes, and that by reason of the tax-

payer's right to take this deduction, he was entitled to

a refund on account of his income tax for the year 1934

in the sum of $3,650.36. (R. 6-7.)

The Commissioner, in his answer to the petition,

admitted the allegation that the taxpayer was entitled

to a deduction of $7,219.29 in 1934 for stamp taxes

paid. (R. 16-17.)

On June 8, 1939, the taxpayer was granted leave

by the Board to amend his petition to allege that during

the year 1934 taxpayer paid selling commissions in the

amount of $23,909.29 in connection with sales of stocks,

bonds and commodities; that these commissions paid

by the taxpayer were not taken as a deduction in com-

l)uting the taxpayer's income for that year, and that the

Commissioner erred in not allowing as a deduction in

his determination of the taxpayer's income the amount



of commissions so paid by the taxpayer. (R. 17-21.)

The prayer of the amended petition was that the

Board should determine that the taxpayer had overpaid

his income tax for the year 1934 in the sum of $4,087.61.

(R. 20.)

The error alleged in the original petition was dis-

posed of by stipulation at the trial before the Board.

(R. 23.) The Board stated that two questions were pre-

sented by the amended petition filed on June 8, 1939;

first, whether a trader in securities may deduct, as an or-

dinary and necessary business expense, selling commis-

sions paid by him; and second, whether a claim for

overpayment set forth in an amended petition filed

more than three years after payment of the last in-

stalment of tax is timely. (R. 23.) The Board held

that the taxpayer was entitled to a deduction for the

selling commissions, .and found that the taxpayer had

overpaid his tax for the year 1934. The Board further

held, however, that only $2,816.72 of this overpayment

might be refunded, and that the balance of the over-

payment, which resulted from the allowance of the de-

duction claimed for the first time in the amended pe-

tition, was barred by the statute of limitations because

of the failure of the taxpayer to assert a proper claim

therefor within three years of the last payment of

tax. (R. 26-31, 34.) ,

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

I

This case is an appeal by the taxpayer from a deter-

mination by the Board of Tax Appeals that the tax-

payer had overpaid his tax for the year 1934, but
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that part of this overpayment was barred by statute

from being refunded to the taxpayer. The amount of

the overpayment which the Board held was barred de-

pends solely upon the allowance by the Board of a

deduction for brokerage commissions. In case No.

9687, which involves the year 1935 and which comes

to this Court on the Commissioner's petition for review,

the Government contends that the taxpayer is not

entitled to deduct brokerage commissions as an ordi-

nary and necessary business expense. The Govern-

ment takes a similar position in the present case as

a ground for upholding the Board's decision for the

year 1934, and respectfully refers to its brief in case

No. 9687 for a discussion of the taxpayer's right to the

claimed deduction. If the Government is upheld in

this contention, it will be uimecessary to consider

whether the Board was correct in holding that the over-

payment was barred from refund.

II

In any case which goes to the Board of Tax Appeals

on a petition for the redetermination of a deficiency

asserted by the Commissioner, the Board is given

jurisdiction to determine that there has been an over-

payment rather than an underpayment of tax. The

statute, however, provides that no credit or refund shall

be made of any portion of the tax determined to have

been overpaid miless the Board determines as part of

its decision that it was paid within three years before

the filing of the claim or the filing of the petition,

whichever is earlier.



In the present case the taxpayer asserted a right to

the deduction for brokerage commissions, which gives

rise to the portion of the overpayment in question on

this appeal, for the first time in an amended petition

filed with the Board more than three years after the

payment of his tax for 1934. The taxpayer does not

rely upon the amended petition as a timely assertion

of his right to a refund of the overpayment, but places

sole reliance upon a claim for refund filed by him. This

claim was timely filed, but it was specific in stating only

one ground for refund ; namely, that the taxpayer was

entitled to a deduction for stamp taxes. The deduction

claimed in the refund claim has been allowed the tax-

payer and is reflected in that part of the overpayment

determined by the Board to be refundable. The refund

claim does not constitute a timely and proper claim for

the refund of the portion of the overpayment of tax

which depends upon the new and unrelated ground

asserted for the first time in the amended petition.

The Board was accordingly correct in holding that the

poi-tion of the overpayment dependent upon the new
issue was barred from refund.

ARGUMENT

I

Introduction

The petition which the taxpayer filed with the Board

of Tax Appeals related to asserted deficiencies in taxes

for two years, 1934 and 1935. In an amendment to the

petition, the taxpayer raised for the first time the ques-

tion whether he was entitled to deduct from gross in-
290715—41 2



come as an ordinary and necessary business expense

amounts paid as brokerage commissions on sales of

securities. This question is applicable to both years

and was decided by the Board in favor of the taxpayer.

The other questions bearing upon the tax liability of

taxpayer were settled by stipulation.

For the taxable year 193e5, the Conmiissioner has filed

a petition for review, docketed in this Court as case

No. 9687, in which he urges that the Board's decision

with respect to the brokerage commissions is erroneous.

The present appeal is by the taxpayer from the de-

cision of the Board for the year 1934 determining that

the taxpayer had overpaid his tax for that year, but

that part of the overpayment was barred by statute

from bemg refunded. The portion of the overpayment

which the Board held was barred from refund depends

solely upon the allowance which was made by the Board

of the deduction for brokerage commissions on sales of

securities, and the portion which it held was refund-

able results from the other issues settled by stipulation.

As a ground for sustaining the final decision of the

Board in the present case, the Commissioner submits

that the brokerage commissions on sales of securities

are not deductible as an ordinary and necessary busi-

ness expense, and respectfully refers to his brief in case

No. 9687 for a discussion of that question. If the Com-

missioner's position on that question should be upheld

by this Court, it will mean that the portion of the over-

payment involved in the present api^eal will be wiped

out, and therefore it will be unnecessary for this Court

to pass upon the further question presented by the tax-
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payer in this case, which we discuss below, as to the

correctness of the Board's holding that the portion of

the overpayment dependent upon the issue of brokerage

commissions is barred from refund.

II

No proper and timely claim or petition for overpayment of

tax in excess of $2,816.72 was filed by the taxpayer, and
hence the Board properly limited the refundible portion of

the overpayment to that amount

Section 272 of the Revenue Act of 1934, infra, p. 18,

provides for the filino^ with the Board of Tax Appeals

of a petition for a redetermination of any deficiency

asserted by the Commissioner.' Section 322 (d) of that

Act provides that if the Board finds that there is no

deficiency, and further finds that the taxpayer has made

an overpayment of tax in respect of the taxable year

for which the Commissioner has determined the de-

ficiency, the Board shall have jurisdiction to determine

the amount of such overpayment, and such amount

shall be credited or refunded to the taxpayer. That

subdivision further provides

:

No such credit or refund shall be made of any
portion of the tax unless the Board determines

as part of its decision that it was paid within

three years before the filing of the claim or the

filing of the petition, whichever is earlier.

The Commissioner concedes that the taxpayer over-

paid his tax for 1934 in the amount of $2,816.72 and

that this amomit is refundible, as found bv the Board.

^ Substantially the same statutory provisions referred to herein

are contained in the Internal Revenue Code under the same
section numbers.
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Whether there is any overpayment in excess of that

amount depends upon whether the taxpayer is entitled

to a deduction as an ordinary and necessary business

expense of amomits paid by him for brokerage com-

missions on sales of securities. The Board decided that

the taxpayer was entitled to this deduction for the

brokerage commissions. Since it further held, how-

ever, that no part of the overpayment resulting from

this deduction could be refunded, it did not make a

computation of the total amount by which the taxpayer

had overpaid his tax. For the purposes of the question

on this appeal, we may assume that the taxpayer has

correctly computed (Br. 5) the amount to be $15,122.56.

The taxpayer did not take the deduction for broker-

age commissions in his return for 1934, but first as-

serted a right to that deduction by an amended peti-

tion filed with the Board on June 8, 1939, which was

more than three years after the payment of the last

instalment of his tax for 1934. '^Jlie taxpayer implicitly

concedes (Br. 5, 7, 22) that the amended petition does

not relate back to the filing of the original i)etition with

the Board, and accordingly he does not seek a refund

of the entire amount by which he says he has overpaid

his tax. This concession by the taxpayer is in recog-

nition of the uniform holding of the courts and the

Board that an amended petition filed more than three

years after payment of tax asserting for the first time

a ground which results in the determination of an

overpayment will not support the refunding of that

overpayment. Commissioner v. Rieck, 104 F. (2d) 294

(C. C. A. 3rd), certiorari denied, 308 U. S. 602; Com-
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missioner v. Dallas' Estate, 110 F. (2d) 743 (C. C. A.

2nd) ; Denliolm and McKay Co. v. Commissioner, 41

B. T. A. 986.

The taxpayer places sole reliance upon the claim for

refund which he filed on December 23, 1937, and limits

the amount which he seeks to recover to the $4,087.61

sought i]i that claim. The claim itself was timely, but

it stated as the specific ground for refund that certain

stamp taxes had been paid by the taxpayer which he

had failed to take as deductions in his income tax re-

turn. The Commissioner conceded in the determina-

tion of the deficiency from w^hich the taxpayer appealed

to the Board, as well as in his answer filed with the

Board, that the taxpayer was entitled to the deduction

for stamp taxes, which formed the basis of the refund

claim. In the computation of the overx)ayment of

$2,816.72 which the Board has found to be refundible,

tlie taxpayer has been allowed a deduction for the full

amount of the stamp taxes. The fact that the Board

found a refundible overpayment of $2,816.72 rather

than an overpayment of $4,087.61 as claimed by the tax-

payer, or a deficiency as originally asserted by the

Commissioner, was due to adjustment pursuant to

stipulation of gross income to an amomit greater than

originally reported by the taxpayer but less than de-

termined by the Commissioner in his deficiency notice.

Since the overpayment of $2,816.72 determined by

the Board to be refundible reflects an allowance to the

taxpayer of all adjustments which he sought in his

claim for refund, we submit that the Board was cor-

rect in the present case in holding (R. 29, 30) that the
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original refund claim was disposed of and that the tax-

payer should not be heard to rely upon that claim to

support the refunding to him of the portion of the over-

payment of tax dependent upon a new and entirely

unrelatc^d matter not referred to in the claim.

Ai'ticle 322-3 of Treasury Regulations 86, promul-

gated under the Revenue Act of 1934, infra, p. 20,

provides that a claim for refmid nmst set forth in

detail each ground upon which a refund is claimed,

and facts sufficient to apprise the Commissioner of the

exact basis of the claim. That article further

provides

:

No refund or credit will be allowed after the

exj)iration of the statutoiy period of limitation

applicable to the filing of a claim therefor ex-

cept upon one or more of the grounds set forth

in a claim filed prior to the expiration of such

l^eriod. A claim which does not comply with

this paragraph will not be considered for any

puri^ose as a claim for refund.

Earlier and later regulations are to the same effect.

Art. 1253, Treasury R(^gulations 77, promulgated

under Revenue Act of 1932; Art. 322-3, Treasury

Regulations 94, promulgated under Revenue Act of

1936; Art. 322-3, Treasuiy Regulations 101, promul-

gated under Revenue Act of 1938 ; Sec. 19.322-3, Treas-

ury Regulations 103, promulgated under Internal

Revenue Code. These regulations must be deemed to

have received the ai>proval of Congress. See Helver-

ing V. Reynolds Co., 306 U. S. 110; Morrissey v. Com-
mission e7% 296 U. S. 344.
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It is well settled that in a suit in the District Court

or in the Court of Claims by a taxpayer for the

recovery of an alleged overpayment of tax, no recovery

may be had upon a claim for a refund which sets

forth a specific ground different from that asserted

in the suit. United States v. Andrews, 302 U. S. 517

;

United States v. Garhutt Oil Co., 302 U. S. 528; Pel-

ham Bell Co. V. Carney, 111 F. (2d) 944 (C. C. A.

1st) ; Marks v. United States, 98 F. (2d) 564 (C. C.

A. 2d) ; Livermore v. Miller, 94 F. (2d) 111 (C. C. A.

5th) ; Dynart v. United States, 95 F. (2d) 652 (C. C.

A. 8th). It is also settled that a timely claim for

refund setting forth a specific ground may not be

amended to assert a new and different ground after

the statutory period for the filing of claims has run.

United States v. Andrews, supra; United States v.

Garhutt Oil Co., supra.

The fact that in a suit for the recovery of an over-

payment of tax the amount sought to be recovered is

limited to the amount stated in a timely claim for re-

fund does not entitle the taxpayer to recover where

the ground of suit is different from the ground of the

refund elami. Thus, in the Garhutt Oil Co. case, supra,

the taxpayer had filed a timely claim for refund for

$3,105.65 based upon a specific ground. He brought

suit for this amount, and at the trial the grounds of the

refund claim originally filed were abandoned and re-

covery was sought upon the basis of a statement filed

with the Commissioner after the expiration of the stat-

utory period of limitation. The Supreme Court held

that both the Conunissioner and the courts were with-

out authority to grant the refund.
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It is clear therefore that the claim for refund upon

whicli the taxpayer relies in the present case would

not have supported the recovery of the amount sought

if the suit had been one in the District Court or in the

Court of Claims. The claim was specific in stating as

the ground the right of the taxpayer to a deduction

for stamp taxes paid by him. That deduction was al-

lowed to the taxjjayer. The amount here sought is

based upon an asserted right to a deduction for broker-

age commissions paid by the taxpayer, which deduction

was claimed by the taxpayer for the first time more

than three years after he had paid his tax for the year

1934. There is no reason to believe that a claim for

refund which will not support a recovery in a suit in

the District Court or the Court of Claims will support

the refunding of an overpayment of tax where the pro-

ceeding is in the Board of Tax Appeals. Indeed, the

reasoning of the courts in Commissioner v. Rieck,

supra, and Commissioner v. Dallas' Estate, supra, hold-

ing that an amended petition filed with the Board after

the expii-ation of the period for filing claims, asserting

for the first time a ground which results in the deter-

mination of an overpayment, will not support the re-

funding of the overpayment, was based ui)on the anal-

ogy to the amendment of claims for refund; and the

courts held that the decisions of the Supreme Court

in the Andrews and Garhutt Oil cases, supra, were

decisive of the question before them. The principles

announced by the Supreme Court in the Andrews case

and the Garhutt Oil case are of even clearer application

in the instant case than they were in the Rieck and

Dallas cases. As stated in the Regulations, a claim for
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refund is considered a proper claim only as to the

grounds set forth in the claim. We submit, accord-

ingly, that the Board of Tax Appeals was correct in

holding that the taxpayer might not rely upon the claim

for refmid as a basis for the refunding to him of the

alleged overpayment.

The taxpayer argues (Br. 17) that, prior to the pres-

ent decision, the practice in the Bureau of Internal

Revenue had been in accord with the rule which he

contends should be followed by the Board ; namely, that

the correct tax liability should first be determined on

the basis of all the facts affecting that liability, and

that the amount of the refund should then be deter-

mined, which cannot be more than the amount of over-

payment actually made nor more than the amount

covered by a timely refund claim. The taxpayer states

that the rule followed in the Bureau is set forth in

G. C. M. 9800, X-2 Cum. Bull. 271 (1931). We may
assume in the present case that the correct tax liability

of the taxpayer is to be determined by the inclusion

of all proper items both of income and of deduction,

regardless of time limitations, and that the difference

between the result of this computation and the tax

actually paid by the taxpayer constitutes an overpay-

ment. The question here, however, is what portion,

if any, of that overpayment may be refunded to the

taxpayer. As we have pointed out above, the decisions

uniformly hold that only the part of the tax overpaid

which is represented by items set forth in timely claims

for refmid may be refunded. This rule is stated sev-

eral times in G. M. C. 9800, to which the taxpayer re-

fers, and an analysis of the computations made in the
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ruling will show that only the portion of the overpay-

ment depending upon items contained in timely claims

for refund were held to be refundible. The ruling

ends with the statement

—

The tax actually paid may be refunded or

credited to the extent of the overpayment rep-

resented by the allowable items covered by
timely claims when claims are necessary.

Moreover, the Bureau practice as to the granting of

refunds is clearly set forth in the Treasury Regula-

tions to which we have referred above.

At pp. 22-26 of the taxpayer's brief, there is a dis-

cussion of the duty of the Board to determine the

amount of overpayment, and it is stated (Br. 23-24)

that had the Board here first determined the overpay-

ment on the basis of its findings, it would have found

that the taxpayer had overpaid his income tax for the

year 1934 by $15,122.56. As we have heretofore

stated, it may be assumed upon this appeal that if the

Board had made the actual computation pursuant to

its findings, it would have determined that the tax-

payer had overpaid his tax m the sum stated by the

taxpayer. The actual amount of the overpayment,

however, becomes immaterial in view of the Board's

holding that it could not in any event be refunded to

the taxpayer. The holding of the Board in this latter

respect was correct and should be affirmed.

The taxpayer suggests (Br. 27) that the answer to

the amendment to the petition does not raise the bar

of the statute. Whether the answer did or did not raise

the point is immaterial. Before the taxpayer is entitled

to a refund of any portion of an overpayment of tax, he
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must show that he has complied with the statutory re-

quirement as to the filing of a proper claim or petition

for such overpayment. The statute is mandatory and

may not be waived by the Commissioner. United

States V. Garbutt Oil Co., supra; Commissioner v.

Rieck, supra.

CONCLUSION

The decision entered by the Board of Tax Appeals

is correct and should be affirmed.

Respectfully submitted.

Samuel O. Clark, Jr.,

Assistant Attorney General,

SewALL Key,

Lee a. Jackson,

Special Assistants to the Attorney General.

FteBRFARY, 1941.



APPENDIX

Revonue Act of 1934, c. 277, 48 Stat. 680:

,
Sec. 272. Procedure in general.
(a) Petition to Board of Tax Appeals.—If in

the case of any taxpayer, tlie Conniiissioner de-
termines that there is a deficiency in respect of
the tax imposed by tliis title, the Commissioner
is authorized to send notice of such deficiency
to the taxpayer by registered mail. Within 90
days after such notice is mailed (not counting
Sunday or a legal lioliday in the District of Co-
lumbia as the ninetieth day), the taxpayer may
file a ])etition with tlie Board of Tax Appeals for
a red(4ernnnatio]i of tlie deficiency. * * *

* * * * *

(e) Inereane of Defieiency After Notice
Mailed.—The Board shall have jurisdiction to
redetermine the correct amount of the deficiency
even if the amount so redetermined is greater
than the amount of the deficiency, notice of which
has been mailed to the taxpayer, and to deter-

mine whether any penalty, additional amount or
addition to the tax sliould be assessed—if claim
therefor is asserted by the Commissioner at or
before the hearing or a rehearing.

* * * (U. S. C, Title 26, Sec. 272.)

Sec. 322. Refunds and credits.

(a) Authorizat ion.—Where there has been an
overpayment of any tax imposed by tliis title,

the amount of such overpayment shall be cred-

ited against any income, war-profits, or excess-

profits tax or installment thereof then due from
the taxpayer-, and iu\y ])alance shall be refunded
immediately to the taxpayer.

(b) 'Limitation on Allowance.—
(1) Period of Limitation.—Unless a claim for

credit or refund is filed by the taxpayer within

(18)
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three years from the time the return was filed

by the taxpayer or within two years from the

time the tax was paid, no credit or refmid shall

be allowed or made after the expiration of which-
ever of such periods expires the later. If no re-

turn is filed by the taxpayer, then no credit or

refund shall be allowed or made after two years

from the time the tax was paid, unless before the

expiration of such period a claim therefor is filed

by the taxpayer.

(2) Limit on Amount of Credit or Refund.—
The amount of the credit or refund shall not
exceed the portion of the tax paid during the

three years immediately preceding the filing of

the claim, or, if no claim was filed, then during
the three years immediately preceding the allow-

ance of the credit or refund.

(c) Effect of Petition to Board.—If the Com-
missioner has mailed to the taxpayer a notice of

deficiency under section 272 (a) and if the tax-

payer files a petition with the Board of Tax
Appeals within the time prescribed in such
subsection, no credit or refund in respect of the

tax for the taxable year in respect of which the
Commissioner has determined the deficiency

shall be allowed or made and no suit by the
taxpayer for the recovery of any part of such
tax shall be instituted in any court except

—

(1) As to overpayments determined by a de-

cision of the Board which has become final ; and
(2) As to any amount collected in excess of

an amount computed in accordance with the
decision of the Board which has become final;

and
(3) As to any amount collected after the

period of limitation upon the begimiing of dis-

traint or a proceeding in court for collection has
expired; but in any such claim for credit or
refund or in any such suit for refund the deci-
sion of the Board which has become final, as to
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whether such period has expired before the

notice of deficiency was mailed, shall be con-

clusive.

(d) Overpayment Found hy Board.—If the

Board finds that thei*e is no deficiency and fur-

ther finds that the taxpayer has made an over-

payment of tax in respect of the taxable year
in respect of which the Coimnissioner deter-

mined the deficiency, the Board shall have juris-

diction to determine the amount of such over-

payment, and such amount shall, when the de-

cision of the Board has become final, be credited

or refunded to the taxpayer. No such credit

or refund shall be made of any portion of the

tax unless the Board determines as part of its

decision that it was paid within three years
befoi'e the filing of the claim or the filing of the
petition, whichever is earlier.

* * * (U.S.O., Title 26, Sec. 322.)

Treasury Regulations 86 (promulgated under Rev-

enue Act of 1934) :

Art. 322-3. Claims for refund hy taxpay-
ers.—Claims by the taxpayer for the refunding
of taxes, interest, penalties, and additions to

tax erroneously or illegally collected shall be
made on Form 843, and should be filed with the

collector of internal revenue. A separate claim
on such form shall be made for each taxable
year or period. The claim must set forth in

detail and under oath each ground upon which
a refund is claimed, and facts sufficient to aj)-

prise the Commissioner of the exact basis there-

of. No refund or credit will be allowed after
the expiration of the statutory period of limita-

tion applicable to the filing of a claim therefor
except upon one or more of the grounds set

forth in a claim filed prior to the expiration of
such period. A claim which does not compl}^
with this i)aragraph will not be considered for
any purpose as a claim for refund. With re-
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spect to limitations upon the refunding or

crediting of taxes, see article 322-6.*****
Art, 322-7. Limitations upon the crediting

and refunding of taxes paid.— * * *

(b) In any case where a person having a
right to file a petition with the Board of Tax
Appeals with respect to a deficiency in income
tax imposed by the Act files such petition within
the prescribed time, no credit or refund of

the tax for the year to which the deficiency re-

lates shall be allowed or made, and no suit for
the recovery of any part of such tax shall be
instituted by the taxpayer, except that

—

(1) If the Board finds that there is no defi-

ciency but that the person has overpaid his tax
for the year to which the notice of deficiency

relates, and the decision of the Board as to the
amount overpaid has become final (see section
1005 of the Revenue Act of 1926), the overpay-
ment shall be credited or refunded, but no such
credit or refund shall be made of any portion of
the tax unless the Board determines as part of
its decision that it was paid not earlier than
three years before the filing of the refund claim
therefor or the filing of the petition, whichever
event occurs first in point of time, or if no
claim is filed, not earlier than three years be-
fore the filing of the petition.
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No. 9682

IN THE

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circnit

Adolph B. Spreckels,

Petitioner,

vs.

Commissioner of Internal Revenue,

Respondent.

PETITIONER'S REPLY BRIEF.

Respondent first contends that the decision of the

Board should be upheld, not upon the grounds as-

signed in the Board's opinion, but for the reason that

petitioner is not entitled to a deduction for broker's

selling commissions as a business expense in any

event, referring to his brief in Commissioner v.

Spreckels, No. 9687 in this Court. Petitioner's an-

swer to that contention will likewise be found in his

brief in that proceeding.

As to the question presented in petitioner's open-

ing brief, viz. : the proper determination of the refund

allowable on a thnely refund claim, it is evident, from

a reading of the brief for respondent, that the parties

are in accord as to the law and facts and that the



only problem before the Court is the application of

the former to the latter.

We start with the premise that, on the record,

petitioner has overpaid his income tax for the year

1934 in the sum of $15,122.56 and that he made a

timely and valid refmid claim for $4,087.61. Peti-

tioner claims he should recover the amount covered

by the claim. Respondent contends the recovery is

limited to $2,816.72 as determined by the Board.

APPLICATION OF G. C. M. 9800 REQUIRES REFUND OF FULL
AMOUNT COVERED BY PETITIONER'S REFUND CLAIM.

Let us consider the ])roblems presented in Gr. C. M.

9800, X-2 Cumulative Bulletin 271 and then substi-

tute the facts of the present case and note the result.

Two years were involved in the memorandum, 1923

and 1925.

'

' The items in question are as follows

:

^'1923. xdollars

Net income as previously adjusted 83.60

Add: (1) Decrease in allowance of deduction

for British taxes 27.01

110.61

Deduct

:

xdollars

(2) Head office expenses allowed. . . 72.48

(3) Additional depreciation allowed .92

(4) Increase in reserve for unearned

premiums 42.50 115.90

Revised net income (loss) 5.29



''Item (2) is covered by a claim for refund, but

items (3) and (4) are not covered by a claim and

the statutory period for filing further claims has

expired.

''1925 xdollars

Net income as previously adjusted 128.30

Add:

(1) Decrease in reserve for unearned

premiums 27.47

(2) Furniture and fixtures disallowed as an

expense 9.26

(3) Decrease in allowance of deduction for

British taxes 4.17

169.20

Deduct

:

'

xdollars

(4) Head office expenses allowed . . . 74.73

(5) Additional depreciation allowed .69 75.42

Revised net income 93.78

"Item (4) is covered by a claim for refund, but item

(5) is not covered by a claim and the statutory period

for filing further claims has expired.

"The question involved is stated as follows:

"May the deductions referred to above which are

not covered by a claim be allowed legally as deduc-

tions from income (even though the statute of limita-

tions for filing further claims has run) to the extent

of the additions made to income, thus being allowed

as offsets against the additions, although the statute



of limitations for levying additional assessments has

run?
It ***** *

*'It is accordingly consistent and appropriate in the

instant case to determine the correct income regard-

less of the statute of limitations. As the tax was paid

upon the 'net income as previously adjusted', there

should be subtracted therefroiri the 'revised net in-

come' to obtain the excess amount on which the tax was

paid. Credit or refund may be made of the tax paid

on so much of such excess amount as is covered by a

timely claim. Therefore, on the basis of the figures

for 1923, the credit or refund may be calculated as

follows

:

X dollars

Net income as previouslj' adjusted 83.60

Revised net income 0.00

Income on which excess tax was paid 83.60

Income, the tax on wliich is covered by a claim 72.48

Income, the tax on wliicli is not covered by

a claim 11.12

''Since the amoimt of income on which excess tax

was paid, 83.60x dollars, exceeds the amount of in-

come the tax on which is covc^red by the claim, 72.48x

dollars, the tax ])aid on tlie latter amount may be

credited or refunded. The tax paid on 11.12x dollars,

not covered by a timely claim, may not be refunded

or credited.



'^The calculation on the basis of the figures shown

for 1925 is as follows:

X dollars

Net income as previously adjusted 128.30

Revised net income 93.78

Income on which excess tax was paid 34.52

Income, the tax on which is covered by a claim 74.73

*' Since the amount covered by a claim, 74.73 x dol-

lars, exceeds the amount on which excess tax was paid,

34.52x dollars, the tax on the latter amount may be

credited or refmided." (C. B. X-2, pp. 272-3.)

Illustrating the present case in the same form, we

have the following result:

Net income as disclosed by return (R. 11) .$121,593.8G

Add:

(1) Unallowable deductions and addi-

tional income—$9,431.67 shown in

90 day letter (R. 11) less $7,828.51

as stipulated (R. 25) 1,603.16

$123,197.02

Deduct

:

(2) Stamp taxes paid (R.

13) $ 7,219.29

(3) Broker's selling commis-

sions (R. 24) 23,692.00 30,911.29

Revised net income $ 92,285.73



item (2) is covered by a claim for refund, but

item (3) is not covered by a claim, and the statutory

period for filing further claims has expired.

The tax was paid on the income disclosed by the

return, so, in accordance with G. C. M. 9800, "there

should be subtracted therefrom the 'revised net in-

come' to obtain the excess amount on which the tax

was paid".

Net income as disclosed by return $121,593.86

Revised net income 92,285.73

Income on which excess tax was paid $ 29,308.13

Income, the tax on which is covered by a

claim 7,219.29

Income, the tax on wliich is not covered

by a claim $ 22,088.84

Paraphrasin.i;- G. C. M. 9800, since the amount of

income on which excess tax was paid, $29,308.13, ex-

ceeds the amount of income the tax on which is cov-

ered by the claim, $7,219.29, the tax paid on the latter

amount may be credited or refunded. The tax paid

on $22,088.84, not covered by a timely claim, may
not be refunded oi* credited.

It is submitted the application of G. C. M. 9800

demonstrates that petitioner is entitled to a refund

of the full amount of income tax paid by reason of

the failure to claim a deduction for the stamp taxes

covered by the valid and timely claim for refund.



SAME RESULT ATTAINS FROM APPLICATION OF SECTION
322 (d) INTERNAL REVENUE CODE.

As was pointed out in petitioner's opening brief,

section 322 (d) of the Internal Revenue Code requires

the Board, if it "finds that there is no deficiency and

further finds that the taxpayer has made an over-

payment of tax, * * * to determine the amoimt of

such overpayment", viz., in the present case $15,-

122.56. The section then requires the credit or refund

of such portion of the tax as was paid within three

years before the filing of the claim, which literally

would be $9,474.40 in this case. Petitioner, however,

concedes, for the purpose of this review, that there

is an additional limitation on the credit or refmid

to the amount covered by the claim when it is less

than the portion of the tax paid within the three

years, viz., $4,087.61.

It is submitted the decision of the Board should be

reversed with directions to allow petitioner a refmid

of the full amount covered by his claim.

Dated, San Francisco,

February 19, 1941.

Respectfully submitted,

Walter Slack,

Attorney for Petitioner.
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IN THE

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

Adolph B. Spreckels,

vs.

Petitioner,

^No. 9682

Commissioner of Internal Revenue,

Respondent.

Commissioner of Internal Revenue,

Petitioner,

vs.

Adolph B. Spreckels,

Respondent.

No. 9687

RESPONDENT'S PETITION FOR A REHEARING.

To the Honorable Curtis D. Wilbur, Presiding Judge,

a/yid^o the Associate Judges of the United States

Circuit Court of -Appeals for the Ninth Circuit:

On May 15, 1941, a decision of your Court was en-

tered in the above proceedings for review of decisions

of the United States Board of Tax Appeals, affirming

the decision in number 9682 and reversing the de-

cision in number 9687. The petitioner in number 9682

and respondent in number 9687, hereinafter referred

to as the ''taxpayer", feeling that the decision ren-



dered does not give full consideration and effect to

the law applicable to the points discussed, respectfully

petitions the Court for a rehearing and reconsidera-

tion of the Court's decision.

DEDUCTIBILITY OF SELLING COMMISSIONS.

The Court has reversed the holding of the Board of

Tax Appeals that selling commissions are deductible

by one engaged in the business of purchasing and

selling stocks, bonds and commodities for profit, an-

nounced not only in the present cases but also in its

decisions in the Appeal of Alice dii Pont Oritz, 42 B.

T. A. 173, Appeal of George W. Covington, 42 B. T.

A. 601, Appeal of Bemon S. Prentice, decided Decem-

ber 6, 1940, and not officially reported, and Appeal of

Roland L. Taylor, Trustee, 44 B. T. A. No. 61, de-

cided May 1, 1941. The reversal is placed primarily

on the proposition that the Coui't finds no compelling

reason for treating selling commissions differently

from purchasing commissions which, on the authority

of Helvering v. Winmill, 305 U. S. 79, 83 L. Ed.

52, 59 Sup. Ct. 45, are concededly non-deductible, so

far as sales of securities are concerned. Petitioner

believes there is such compelling reason and that the

decisions of the Second Circuit in Winmill v. Com-

missioner, 93 Fed. (2d) 494 and Neiiberger v. Com-

missioner, 104 Fed. (2d) 649, distinguishing between

purchasing and selling commissions and holding the

latter deductible, sliould be followed.



I. REGULATIONS PROVIDED FOR DIFFERENT TREATMENT
OF PURCHASING AND SELLING COMMISSIONS AND AU-

THORIZE DEDUCTION OF LATTER.

The provisions of the revenue acts and of the regu-

lations will not be repeated here since it is conceded

that during the period involved on these appeals, the

regulations provided that commissions on the sales

of securities were deductible when they were ^'an

ordinary and necessary business expense". (Reg. 86,

Art. 24-2.) The Board found that taxpayer ''was en-

gaged in the business of purchasing and selling stocks,

bonds and commodities for profit". (R. p. 21.) It

would seem prima facie that the Board properly

reached the conclusion that the selling commissions

paid by taxpayer were deductible.

The Commissioner, however, ignoring the fact that

sales of "commodities" were also involved and that

his authorities dealt only with sales of ''securities",

urged and this Court has ruled, that such commis-

sions were an ordinary and necessary business ex-

pense only in the case of "dealers", that the record

did not find taxpayer to be a dealer and hence the

deduction w^as not allowable. This is the fundamental

basis for the Court's decision and it is believed that

it is untenable for several reasons.

1. Undue weight has been given G. CM. 15430.

The regulations do not attempt to declare when

commissions on sales of securities are an ordinary

and necessary business expense and when they are

not. Logically, it would seem that where a taxpayer

is in the business of buying and selling securities for

profit and it is necessary to the ordinary conduct of



that business that he pay selling commissions, he

comes within the regulation. Furthermore, if the

Commissioner intended otherwise, it was clearly

within his power to say so in his regulations and it

is difficult, if not impossible, to understand why he

should require an opinion of the General Counsel to

tell him that his regulations did not mean what they

said, but had some hidden limitation.

The Court in its opinion, however, states with ref-

erence to G. C. M. 15430, XIV-2 Cum. Bull. 59, the

only authority for limiting the deduction to ''deal-

ers".

"We are moved to comment that the interpre-

tation of the regulations by the Assistant General

Counsel of the Bureau of Internal Revenue ap-

pears intelligent, logical, and reasonable. More-

over, it is but the statement of a long-continued

construction of the law and regulation by the

administrative officers charged with the enforce-

ment thereof."

That memoranda of the General Counsel and other

informal rulings of the Bureau do not have the effect

of Treasury Decisions or Regulations, has been re-

peatedly noted by the Courts. This Court in Santa

Monica Mountain Park Co. v. United States, 99 Fed.

(2d) 450, 457 says:

"The fact that the General Counsel for the

Bureau of Internal Revenue in his memorandum
gave his opinion that the decision in the liberty

Bank Case, supra, was correct and that a charge

off, 'being a technical requirement, may be made
after the taxable year', is not persuasive. Such

memoranda and other informal inilings 'have



none of the force or effect of Treasury Decisions

and do not commit the Depai"tment to any inter-

pretation of the law.' See Helvering v. New
York Trust Co., supra [292 U. S. 455, 468, 78

L. ed. 1361, 1368, 54 S. Ct. 806] ; Cole v. Commis-

sioner, 9 Cir., 1935, 81 F. 2d 485, 104 A. L. R. 420;

Pictorial Revietv Co. v. Helvering, 1934, 63 App.

D. C. 21, 68 F. 2d 766."

Also, as suggested by this Court in Cole v. Com-

missiofwr, cited in the above quotation, the only evi-

dence of a ''long-continued construction of the law

and regulation by the administrative officers", is this

very memorandum itself.

It is submitted that G. C. M. 15430 is entitled to

no more weight in the determination of the question

before the Court than had its proposition been ad-

vanced for the first time in the Commissioner's briefs

on these appeals.

2. Record contains no material to which Court can apply

G. C. M. 15430.

The submission just made leads logically to the

proposition that there is no basis in the record for

arguing that taxpayer's method of doing business is

such that selling commissions are not a necessary and

ordinary expense of that business, or that there is a

distinction in that regard as between so-called ''deal-

ers" and "traders". The Board found that selling

commissions paid by taxpayer were deductible as

an ordinary and necessary expense of taxpayer's busi-

ness of buying and selling securities and commodities.

The record of the trial was not preserved or pre-

sented to this Court. The Court, however, has



assumed, over taxpayer's protest, that taxpayer was

not a dealer and further it is assumed, without any

support from the record, that ''dealers" have a pecu-

liar problem as to selling commissions because they

may inventory their securities and therefore have

burdensome accounting problems making impossible

the charge of selling commissions to particular trans-

actions. A ''dealer" is defined as a "merchant of

securities" engaged in the purchase of securities and

their "resale to customers". (Reg. 86, Art. 22 (c)-

5.) Since anyone in the business of buying and sell-

ing for profit must of necessity find customers either

through brokers or otherwise, evidently the distinc-

tion intended is that a "dealer" sells directly to his

customers. If that be the case, he should have no

difficulty in handling his accoimting of "selling com-

missions" as it is impossible to see where there would

be any occasion for paying them. It is submitted the

record before the Court is insufficient to warrant an

application of the argument in G. C. M. 15430 even

if it be valid, and that the Board's decision should be

affinned if it can be sustained on any conceivable set

of facts consistent with the findings.

II. WINMILL AND NEUBERGER CASES.

1. Decisions of the Circuit Court of Appeals for the Second

Circuit.

The Court has declined to follow the decisions of

the Circuit Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit

(Winmill v. Commissioner and Neuherger v. Com-

missioner, supra) holding selling commissions de-



ductible, remarking the absence of discussion of that

point since the decision of the Supreme Court in the

Winmill case holding purchasing commissions not

deductible. As the Circuit Court had held deductible

both purchasing and selling commissions in the Win-

mill case and the government had seen fit to limit its

petition for certiorari to purchasing commissions and

had, further, on the coming down of the remititur from

the Supreme Court, consented to the amendment of

the remititur to the Board to allow the deduction of

selling commissions (see Appendix), the Circuit Court

doubtless regarded the point adequately supported

by the distinction found in the regulations and felt

that it required no further discussion.

2. Supreme Court's reliance upon Helvering v. Union Pacific

Co. does not require holding selling commissions not de-

ductible.

In its decision in the Winmill case the Supreme

Court quoted with approval from its decision in

Helvering v. Union Pacific Railroad Co., 293 U. S.

282, 286, 79 L. ed. 363, 366, 55 S. Ct. 165, a statement

to the effect that the consistent treatment by the regu-

lations of commissions paid for marketing bonds not

as items of current expense but as deductions from

the proceeds of sale, coupled with the re-enactment of

the statutory provisions without change, had the ef-

fect of establishing that treatment as law, and so

held that the regulation required the disallowance of

purchasing commissions on securities as an item of

expense. In so holding the Court said, in response to

the suggestion of inconsistency between that result

and the provision in Regulation 77, Article 121, in-
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eluding ' ^ commissions " among items of business ex-

penses :

''Special provisions limit the application of

those of a broad and general nature relating to

the same subject. The special designation of

security purchase commissions as a 'part of the

cost price of such securities' contained in Article

282 evinces the clear intent to withdraw that spe-

cial type of commission from the general classi-

fication of Article 121." [305 U. S. 83, 83 L. ed.

55, 59 S. Ct. 45.]

Had the Court been considering selling commissions,

it would have been compelled by its own argument to

give effect to the special treatment accorded such com-

missions by the same article of the regulations and to

have held them deductible where they were found to

be an ordinary and necessary expense of doing busi-

ness, as the Board found in this case.

3. General provision of Article 23 (a)-l, Regulation 86, allow-

ing selling commissions applies, since both securities and

commodities involved.

It has already been noted that Article 24-2, Regu-

lations 86 (similar to Article 282, Regulations 77) and

G. C. M. 15,430 apply only to securities. It has also

been noted that the selling commissions foimd by the

Board to be deductible as business expense included

both coimnissions on sales of securities and commis-

sions on the sales of commodities. (R. p. 21.) The

Board's findings make no segregation as between com-

missions paid on the respective categories, and the

Commissioner has not brought up a record from which

such segregation can be made. It is obvious there-



fore that the Board's decision must be sustained if

commissions on the sales of either securities or com-

modities are deductible as a business expense.

As the special, limiting provisions of Article 24-2

apply only to sales of securities, the general classifica-

tion of Article 23 (a)-l of Regulations 86 (similar to

Article 121 of Regulations 77) applies and commis-

sions on the sales of commodities must be allowed as

a business expense and the Board affirmed as to that

point for the absence of a record showing error.

4. Covington case before Fifth Circuit. Oritz and Prentice

cases before Third Circuit.

Three decisions of the Board of Tax Appeals hold-

ing selling commissions deductible, decided since the

present case, are pending before the Circuit Courts

of Appeal in other circuits on the Commissioner's peti-

tions for review. The Oritz and Prentice Appeals,

supra, are pending in the Third Circuit, the Covington

Appeal, supra, is pending before the Fifth Circuit.

The Covington case was argued on May 19, 1941, and

should be decided shortly. In the interest of uni-

formity of decision and for the benefit of the reason-

ing of the Courts in these cases, it is respectfully re-

quested that the present decision be not allowed to

become final before these three appeals are disposed of.
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CONCLUSION.

In conclusion it is submitted that without the factual

background sui3plied only by G. C. M. 15,430 and

without embodying it with an authority it does not

possess, there is no warrant in the record for reversing

the Board of Tax Appeals determination that selling

commissions were an ordinary and necessary expense

of taxpayer's business. Further, in view of the specific

elimination of such selling commissions from the spe-

cial rule found in the regulations to the effect that

security commissions are not items of expense, the

decisions of the Supreme Court in the Union Pacific

and Winmill cases furnish authority for upholding

the Board's determination rather than justifying

a reversal. Finally, since the restrictions on the

deduction of selling commissions apply only to ** se-

curities" and not to "commodities", the Board, in

the absence of any showing in the record as to the

respective amounts of commissions paid on the several

classifications, must be upheld in its determination

that such commissions are deductible.

A rehearing should be ordered and the Board af-

firmed in, number 9687, and reversed in number 9682

upon the points urged by taxpayer in his briefs in

the latter.

Dated, San Francisco,

June 13, 1941.

Respectfully submitted,

Walter Slack,

Attorney for Respondent.
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Certificate of Counsel.

The undersigned, attorney for respondent, hereby

certifies that he prepared the foregoing petition for

a rehearing and that in his judgment it is well

founded and that it is not interposed for delay.

Dated, San Francisco,

June 13, 1941.

Walter Slack,

Attorney for Respondent.

(Appendix Follows.)
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Appendix

COPY OF MOTION FOR MODIFICATION OF MANDATE IN

WINMILL V. COMMISSIONER.

(Reproduced from the 1939 Income Tax Service of the

Alexander Publishing Co. Inc., Para. 2114.)

Now comes R. C. Winmill, petitioner, in the above

entitled proceeding by his attorney, Thomas M.

Wilkins, Union Trust Building, Washington, D. C,

and moves that the mandate of this honorable court,

date of December 9, 1938, affirming the decision of the

United States Board of Tax Appeals rendered in this

proceeding on May 3, 1937, be recalled and amended

so as to modify the former opinion and mandate of

this court to affirm the decision of the Board of Tax

Appeals in all respects, except with respect to the dis-

allowance of selling commissions and to direct the

Board to allow as deduction from income for the

year 1932, the said selling commissions in the amount

of $9,754.

The Government's petition for certiorari only

sought review with respect to the deductibility of pur-

chase commissions and did not seek review with re-

spect to selling commissions.

The decision of the Supreme Court of the United

States did not reverse the decision of this honorable

court, with respect to selling commissions and hence it

is apparent that the mandate of this honorable court

should affirm the said Board, in all respects, except

with respect to the disallowance of selling commis-

sions in the amount of $9,754.
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Wherefore, it is prayed that this honorable court

consider this motion and recall and amend its man-

date of December 9, 1938, to reverse the decision of

the Board of Tax Appeals with respect to the said

selling commissions in the amomit of $9,754.

No objection

J. W. Morris, Assistant Attorney General

Mandate Amended February 6, 1939

T. M. Wilkins,

Attorney for Petitioner.

So Ordered

Manton.
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In the District Court of the United States in and

for the Southern District of California, Central

Division.

No. 14303-C

In the Matter of the

Application of WONG CHOON OCK
for Writ of Habeas Corpus

PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS

To the United States District Court of the Southern

District of California, Central Division

:

The petition of Wong Quong respectfully shows:

That your petitioner herein is an American citi-

*Pagc numbering appearing at foot of page of original certified

Transcript of Eecord.



2 William A. Carmichael

zen, liis citizensliij) having been conceded by the

Immigration Department.

1. No previous application for Writ of Habeas

Corpus has been made in this matter to this or any

other court.

2. This petition is made by petitioner on behalf

of Wong Choon Ock for the reason that Wong
Choon Ock is a minor child, nine years of age, now

being held in custody and restrained of his liberty

by William A. Carmichael, District Director of the

United States Immigration Service at Los Angeles,

California, and that petitioner knows the facts

herein set forth and verifies the same on behalf of

said Wong Choon Ock, who is his younger brother.

3. Notice of the presentation of this petition to

the Judge of this Court has not been served upon

the person who has the custody of said Wong Choon

Ock for the reason that there is not sufficient time

to do so. The said Wong Choon Ock is now held

under order of deportation from the Secretary of

Labor at Washington, D. C, directed to said Wil-

liam A. Carmichael, District Director of the United

States Immigration Service, and as petitioner in-

formed and believes, intends to cause said Wong
Choon Ock to be removed and deported from this

country to the Republic of China [2] on a boat

leaving San Pedro, California on or about Wednes-

day, March 20, 1940.

That said Wong Choon Ock is imprisoned, de-

tained, confined and restrained of his liberty by

William A. Carmichael, District Director of the
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United States Immigration Service; that said im-

prisoimient, detention and confinement are illegal

and that the illegality thereof consists of this : That

said Wong Choon Ock is a citizen of the United

States; that said Wong Choon Ock was born on

or about November 20, 1930, in Ing Kai Vil-

lage, Hoi Ping District, China; that he is the son

of Wong Quan, whose United States citizenship is

conceded by the Immigration Department; that

Wong Quan returned to China from the United

States during July, 1929 and was accompanied by

his wife, Chin King Nue, who is the mother of

Wong Choon Ock. It is conceded by the Immigra-

tion Department that Chin King Nue is the wife

of Wong Quan.

Wong Choon Ock applied for admission to the

United States at San Pedro, California on or about

June 25, 1939, but was denied admission by the Im-

migration Department at that time despite the fact

that competent witnesses testified to the fact of his

birth and relationship to his father and mother as

herein above alleged, and despite the fact that there

was no showing at that time of any untruth in his

testimony respecting his relationship and nativity

and other matters bearing directly on his claim of

American citizenship. It was, however, ruled by

the Board of Special Inquiry of the Immigration

Department based solely ujion the opinion evidence

of certain doctors that the appearance and bone

structure of Wong Choon Ock indicating that he

was from one to three years older than he and his
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parents testified and that accordin^s^ly he could not

be the natural son of the said parents. The said

opinion evidence of these doctors upon which the

decision of the Immigration Department was based

was and is uncertain and indefinite and w^hoUy in-

sufficient to raise any conflict or to cause discrepancy

in the [3] testimony as against the positive and

direct testimony of eye witnesses to the nativity of

Wong Choon Ock.

That during November, 1939 the said case was

reopened for further evidence as to the age of Wong
Choon Ock. That on November 17, 1939 and prior

to the said further hearing, request was made to

the Immigration Inspector in charge of said hear-

ing that Wong Quong, Wong Jeow and Wong Jowe

each of whom is a native bom citizen of the United

States and each of whom is an older brother of

Wong Choon Ock and each of whom was personally

present when Wong Choon Ock was born be per-

mitted to testify at said hearing. That the Immi-

gration Department denied said request and refused

to allow said eye witnesses to testify regarding the

nativity of Wong Choon Ock.

That the aforesaid actions on the part of the Im-

migration Department prevented aj^plicant from

receiving a fair and impartial hearing of his appli-

cation for admission to the United States.

That an appeal was taken from the ruling of the

Special Board of Inquiry excluding applicant, and

the Secretary of the Department of Labor has sus-



vs. Wong Choon Ock 5

tained the decision of said Board of Special In-

quiry and ordered the deportation of applicant.

Wherefore your petitioner prays that a Writ of

Habeas Corpus may be directed to William A. Car-

michael, District Director of the United States

Immigration Service, or any officer or officers pur-

porting to act mider his authority, commanding

him to have the body of Wong Choon Ock before

this Court at a time and place therein to be speci-

fied, to do and receive what shall then and there be

considered by said Court concerning said Wong
Choon Ock together with the time and cause of his

deportation; and that said Wong Choon Ock may

be restored to his liberty.

Dated : March 19, 1940.

GEO. W. FENIMORE
Attorney for Petitioner [4]

State of California

County of Los Angeles—ss.

Wong Quong being by me first duly sworn, de-

poses and says: that he is the petitioner in the

above entitled action; that he has read the fore-

going petition and knows the contents thereof, and

that the same is true of his own knowledge, except

as to the matters which are therein stated upon

his information and belief, and as to those matters

he believes it to be true.

WONG QUONG
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Subscribed and sworn to before me this 19th day

of March, 1940.

(Seal) EICHARD H. TAYLOR
Notary Public in and for said County and State.

[Endorsed] : Piled Mar. 19, 1940. [5]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

WRIT OP HABEAS (^ORPUS

The United States of America to William A. Car-

michael, District Director of the United States

Immigration Service, on any officer or officers

purporting to act under his authority, greeting :

We command that you have the body of Wong
Choon Ock by you imprisoned and detained as it

is said together with the time and cause of such

imprisonment and detention, by w^hatsoever name

said Wong Choon Ock shall be called or charged,

before the Honorable Geo. Cosgrave, Judge of the

United States District Court in and for the South-

ern District of California, Central Division, at his

Court room in the Pederal Building, Los Angeles,

California, on the 8th day of April, 1940, at 10 A.

M. o'clock of that date, to do and receiA^e what

shall then and there be considered concerning said

Wong (^hoon Ock; and that you have then and

there this writ.

Witness the Honorable Geo. Cosgrave, Judge of

the United States District Court this 19th day of

March, 1940.
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Attest my hand and seal of said Court the day

and year last above written.

R. S. ZIMMERMAN
Clerk of the United States District Court, Southern

District of California

By GEO. E. RUPERICH
Deputy

Let the Writ issue Returnable Apr. 8, 1940 at

10 A. M.

GEO. COSGRAVE
District Judge

[Endorsed] : Filed and served Mar. 19, 1940. [6]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

RETURN TO WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS

I, William A. Carmichael, District Director of

U. S. Immigration and Naturalization Service, Los

Angeles, California District No. 20, Respondent

herein, for my Return to Writ of Habeas Corpus

issued herein and in compliance with the said Writ

of Habeas Corpus, now produce the body of Wong
Choon Ock on this 8th day of April, 1940 before

this Honorable Court and for my Return to said

Writ deny that I am unlawfully imprisoning and

detaining and confining and restraining the liberty

of the aforesaid Wong Choon Ock.

For further Return to said Writ, Respondent

admits that the said Wong ('boon Ock arrived from

China at the Port of San Pedro, California the 25th

day of June, 1939 on the SS "President Coolidge"
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and made application for admission into the United

States, and certifies that the true cause of said

Wong Choon Ock's detention is the finding and or-

der of a duly and regularly constituted Board of

Special Inquiry denying him admission into the

United States made November 28, 1939, and the

order of the Department of Labor, Washington,

D, C, made on or about March 15, 1940 confirming

the decision of the said Board of Special Inquiry

and ordering the return of said Wong Choon Ock

to the country whence he came; that Respondent

was preparing to return the said Wong Choon Ock

to the coimtry whence he came when this Writ of

Habeas Corpus was issued.

For further Return, Respondent makes a part

hereof the Department of Labor certified record

containing transcript of the testimony and sum-

mary and findings of the Board of Special Inquiry,

San Pedro, California, and summary and findings

of the Board of Review, Washington, D. C, and

also certain IT. S. Immigration and Naturalization

Service records, identi- [7] tied by files numbers

10351/5290, 10351/5311, 12851/11-13, 13794/9-2,

21285/1-2, and 31562/7-17 (San Francisco, Cali-

fornia), and 7402/379, 14036/232-A, 14036/333-B,

14036/968-A, 14036/1103-A, 14036/1425-A and

14036/1702-A (San Pedro, California.)

Respectfully submitted,

WILLIAM A. CARMICHAEL
District Director of U. S. Immigration and Natu-

ralization Service, Los Angeles, California,

District No. 20, Respondent.
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[Endorsed] : Filed Apr. 8, 1940 Received copy

of the within Return to Writ of Habeas Corpus

this 8th day April, 1940, Geo. W. Fenimore, At-

torney for Petitioner. [8]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

MEMORANDUM OF DECISION

Cosgrave, District Judge.

In this matter the Board of Review on Appeal

of the Immigration Department in Washington,

being dissatisfied with the sufficiency of the evi-

dence supporting the findings of the Special Board

of Inquiry, sent the case back with instructions to

take further expert testimony. Pursuant to such

order Dr. Earl C. Kading was called. No notice

whatever was given to the applicant of the pro-

duction of Dr. Kading as a witness and no o])por-

timity afforded for cross-examination of this ex})ert

on behalf of the applicant, nor was applicant given

any opportunity to produce witnesses to controvert

the testimony of Dr. Kading.

Such proceeding is manifestly unfair, particu-

larly since in reaching its decision the Immigration

Department has disregarded the competent and

uncontradicted testimony of eye-witnesses as to the

date of nativity and parentage of applicant.

The petition for writ of habeas corpus is granted,
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and the petitioner is discharged from the custody

of tlie Immigration authorities.

July 1, 1940.

[Endorsed] : Filed Jul. 1, 1940. [9]

In the District Court of the United States in and

for the Southern Division of California, Central

Division

No. 14,303-C

In the Matter of

WONG CHOON OCK
on Habeas Corpus

ORDER GRANTING PETITION FOR WRIT
OF HABEAS CORPUS AND DISCHARG-
ING APPLICANT FROM CUSTODY

This cause having come on regularly for hearing

in the above entitled court before the Hon. Geo.

Cosgrave, Judge presiding, upon the Petition of

Wong Quong for a Writ of Habeas Corpus on be-

half of Wong Choon Ock and upon the return to

said Writ of Habeas Corpus made by William A.

Carmichael, District Director of the United States

Immigration and Naturalization Service, Los An-

geles, California, District No. 20, respondent herein,

Geo. W. Fenimore, Esq. appearing on behalf of the

petitioner and Maurice Norcop, Assistant U. S.

Attorney appearing on behalf of said respondent,

and said matter having been submitted to the court
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for decision, and the court having found that the

allegations of the said petition are true and that

the said Wong Choon Ock is illegally restrained

of his liberty and prevented from entry into the

United States by the respondent herein.

Now, therefore, it is ordered, adjudged and de-

creed that said petition for Writ of Habeas Cor-

pus be and the same is hereby granted and the

applicant, Wong Choon Ock, who applied for ad-

mission into the United States at San Pedro, Cali-

fornia, on June 25, 1939, as an American citizen,

being the son of a native born American citizen,

Wong Quan, is ordered, discharged and released

from custody forthwith.

Done in open court this 2nd day of July, 1940.

GEO COSGRAVE
District Judge

[Endorsed] : Filed Jul. 2, 1940. [11]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

NOTICE OF APPEAL
To R. S. Zimmerman, Clerk of the above entitled

court, and George W. Fenimore, Attorney for

Wong Choon Ock:

Please take notice that William A. Carmichael,

District Director of Immigration and Naturaliza-

tion for Los Angeles District No. 20, Department

of Justice, Respondent in the above entitled mat-

ter, hereby appeals and gives notice of appeal to
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the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Circuit, from the decision and judgment

of the above entitled Court, made and entered

herein on the second day of July, 1940, discharg-

ing and releasing from custody of the immigration

authorities, the petitioner, Wong Choon Ock.

Dated: July 3, 1940.

WM. FLEET PALMER
United States Attorney

By RUSSELL K. LAMBEAU
Assistant United States

Attorney

[Endorsed] : Copy mailed July 6, 1940 to George

W. Fenimore, Esq., Atty. for petitioner. R. S. Zim-

merman, Clerk, By E. L. S. Deputy Clerk. Filed

Jul. 3, 1940. [12]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

STIPULATION AND ORDER
EXTENDING TIME

It is hereby stipulated by and between counsel

for the applicant and for the United States in the

above entitled matter that the appellant may have

ninety (90) days from the date of the first notice

of appeal within which to file the record on ap-

peal, as provided by Rule 73(g) of the Rules of

Civil Procedure; It is further stipulated that this

extension may be granted by any Judge of the

United States District Court for the Southern Dis-

trict of California.
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George W. Fenimore

Attorney for Appellee

WM. FLEET PALMER
United States Attorney

By RALPH E. LAZARUS
RALPH E. LAZARUS

Assistant United States

Attorney

Attorneys for the United States

Good cause appearing,

It is hereby ordered that the time to file the rec-

ord on appeal in the above entitled matter b^ ex-

tended to ninety (90) days from the date of the

first notice of appeal.
,

Aug. 12, 1940

PAUL J. McCORMICK
United States District Judge.

[Endorsed] : Filed Aug. 12, 1940. [13]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

STIPULATION

It is hereby stipulated that all of the original

files of the Immigration and Naturalization Service

shall be transmitted to the Circuit Court of Ap-

peals, Ninth Circuit, in connection with the appeal

herein, and that said files shall constitute a part

of the record on api)eal and will not however be

printed.
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It is further stipulated that included in said rec-

ords shall be the follo^^ ing files of the Immigration

and Naturalization Service: nmnbers 10351/5290,

10351/5311, 12851/11-13, 13794/9-2, 21285/1-2, and

31562/7-17 (San Francisco, California), and 7402/

379, 14036/232-A, 14036/333-B, 14036/968-A, 14036/

1103-A, 140'36/1425-A and 14036/1702-A (San Pe-

dro, California) together with certified record of

the Department of Labor, numbered 56007/819.

It is further stipulated that all exhibits contained

in said files shall also constitute a part of the rec-

ord and shall be forwarded therewith.

Dated: This 4th day of Nov., 1940.

WM. FLEET PALMER
United States Attorney

RUSSELL K. LAMBEAU
Assistant United States

Attorney

Attorneys for Plaintiff

GEO. W. FENIMORE
Attorney for Defendant

It is so ordered:

PAUL J. McCORMICK
United States District Judge.

[Endorsed] : Filed Nov. 4, 1940. [14]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

STATEMENT OF POINTS RELIED ON

Comes now William A. Carmichael, District Di-

rector of the United States Immigration and Natu-
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ralization Service, Appellant in the above-entitled

matter and respectfully presents the following state-

ment of points relied on in the decision of the Dis-

trict Court for the Southern District of California

:

1. The Court erred in discharging said Wong
Choon Ock from custody of Appellant.

2. The Court erred in finding and holding that

the proceeding resulting in Appellee's exclusion

was unfair.

3. The Court erred in finding and holding that

no notice was given to Appellee of the production

of Dr. Kading as a witness.

4. The Court erred in finding and holding that

Appellee w^as not given an opportunity to produce

witnesses to controvert the testimony of said Dr.

Kading.

5. The Court erred in finding and deciding that

the Immigration Department disregarded the com-

petent and imcontradicted testimony of eye wit-

nesses as to the date and nativity and parentage of

Appellee.

Dated this 30th day of September, 1940.

WM. FLEET PALMER,
United States Attorney,

By RUSSELL K. LAMBEAU
Assistant United States

Attorney.

[Endorsed]: Received copy of the within Points

Relied on, Statement of, this 2nd day of Oct. 1940,

Geo. W. Fenimore, Attorney for Appellee. Filed

Oct. 2, 1940. [15]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

PRAECIPE FOR TRANSCRIPT OF RECORD
ON APPEAL

To the Clerk of Said Court

:

Please prepare and duly authenticate the tran-

script of the following portions of the record in the

above-entitled case for ai)peal to the United States

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit:

1. Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus and Or-

der to Show Cause why Writ should not be granted.

2. Writ of Habeas Corpus.

3. Return to Writ of Habeas Corpus.

4. Memorandum of Decision.

5. Notice of Appeal.

6. Stipulation and Order extending time within

which to file record on appeal.

7. Stipulation that original files and records of

the Department of Labor be sent to Clerk of Cir-

cuit Court of Appeals as part of the appeal record.

8. Points relied on, statement of.

9. Praecipe for transcript of record on appeal.

September 30, 1940.

WM. FLEET PALMER,
United States Attorney,

By RUSSELL K. LAMBEAU,
Assistant United States

Attorney.

[Endorsed] : Received copy of the within Prae-

cipe for Transcript of Record on Appeal this 2nd
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day of October, 1940, Geo. W. Fenimore, Attorney

for Appellee. Filed Oct. 2, 1940. [16]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

CERTIFICATE OF CLERK

I, R. S. Zimmerman, Clerk of the District Court

of the United States for the Southern District of

California, do hereby certify the foregoing pages,

numbered from 1 to 16, inclusive, contain full, true

and correct copies of Petition for Writ of Habeas

Corpus; Order Granting Writ of Habeas Corpus;

Writ of Habeas Corpus; Return to Writ of Ha-

beas Corpus; Memorandum of Decision; Minute

Order July 1, 1940; Order Granting Petition and

Discharging Petitioner; Notice of Appeal; Stipula-

tion and Order Extending Time to Docket Appeal

;

Stipulation re original files and records of the De-

partment of Labor; Statement of Points to be re-

lied on, and Designation for Transcript of Record

on Appeal, which together with the original Immi-

gration records sent herewith constitute the record

on appeal to the United States Circuit Court of

Appeals for the Ninth Circuit.

Witness my hand and the Seal of the District

Court of the United States for the Southern Dis-

trict of California, this 19th day of November, A.

D. 1940.

(Seal) R. S. ZIMMERMAN,
Clerk.

By EDMUND L. SMITH
Deputy Clerk.
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[Endorsed]: No. 9685. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. William

A. Carmichael, District Director of the United

States Immigration and Naturalization Service,

Los Angeles, California, District No. 20., Appel-

lant, vs. Wong Choon Ock, Appellee. Transcript

of Record upon Appeal from the District Court of

the United States for the Southern District of Cali-

fornia, Central Division.

Filed November 20, 1940.

PAUL P. O'BRIEN,

Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit.

In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit

9685

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA,
Appellant,

V.

WONG CHOON OCK,
Appellee.

DESIGNATION OF RECORD AND
STATEMENT OF POINTS RELIED ON

The United States of America, appellant herein,

hereby refers to its points relied on as filed in the

District Court and incorporates the same herein by

reference as though herein set forth in full as the

points upon which it relies on this Appeal.
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The following portions of the record are hereby

designated by Appellant for its record on appeal:

1. Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus and Or-

der granting Writ.

2. Writ of Habeas Corpus.

3. Return to Writ of Habeas Corpus.

4. Memorandum of Decision.

5. Order of July 2, 1940', signed by Judge Cos-

grave.

6. Notice of Appeal.

7. All stipulations and orders extending time

within which to file and perfect record on appeal.

8. Stipulation that original files and records of

the Department of Labor be sent to Clerk of Cir-

cuit Court of Appeals as part of the appeal record.

9. Points relied on, statement of.

10. Praecipe for transcript of record on appeal.

Dated : November 19, 1940.

WM. FLEET PALMER
United States Attorney

By RUSSELL K. LAMBEAU
Assistant United States

Attorney

Received copy of the within Designation of Rec-

ord and Statement of Points Relied On, this 19th

day of November, 1940.

GEO. W. FENIMORE
Attorney for Appellee

[Endorsed]: Filed Nov. 20, 1940. Paul P.

O'Brien, Clerk.
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No. 9685

IN THE

United States Circuit Court of Appeals

FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

William A. Carmichael, District Director of the United

States Immigration and Naturalization Service, Los

Angeles, California, District No. 20,

Appellant,

vs,

Wong Choon Ock,

Appellee.

APPELLANT'S OPENING BRIEF.

Opening Statement.

This is an appeal from an order discharging Wong

Choon Ock from the custody of the United States Immi-

gration and Naturalization Service fR. 9-11]. The ap-

pellee Wong Choon Ock, having been denied admission

into the United States, petitioned the lower court for

a writ of habeus corpus to test the legality of his deten-

tion by appellant. The jurisdiction of the court below

to entertain and consider such a writ is found in provisions

of 28 U. S. C, section 45 (R. S., sec. 751). The juris-
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diction of this Court on the appeal is based on the pro-

visions of 28 U. S. C. 225-A (Jud. Code 128 as amended).

By stipulation and order [R. 13] certain original files

of the United States Immigration and Naturalization

Service which comprise the entire record upon which the

excluding order was made have been filed with the clerk

of this court as part of the appellate record. The certi-

fied file of the Department of Labor, No. 56007/819, will

be hereinafter called the "Immigration Record." It con-

tains the original transcript of the hearing at San Pedro,

California, the various exhibits introduced, the summary,

and the recommendation of the Board of Review in Wash-

ington, D. C, and the action of the Secretary of Labor

on appeal.
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Facts of the Case.

Wong- Choon Ock, hereinafter called "applicant," ad-

mittedly was born in China and is a person of the Chinese

race. He came to the port of San Pedro, California, from

China, June 25, 1939, accompanied by his alleged mother,

Chin King Nue (Chin Shee), an alleged younger brother,

Wong Choon Loy, and his alleged father, Wong Quan;

and applied for admission to the United States, claiming

to be the foreign-born son of Wong Quan, a native-born

citizen of the United States. The United States citizen-

ship of the said Wong Quan is conceded and is therefore

not at issue.

The admissibility of the applicant, his alleged younger

brother, Wong Choon Loy and his alleged mother. Chin

King Nue, was considered by a Board of Special Inquiry

duly appointed under section 17 of the Immigration Act

of 1917 (8 U. S. C. A., 153). After a hearing the

Board voted to admit to the United States the said alleged

mother and younger brother, but denied admission to the

applicant, Wong Choon Ock, for the reason that it had

not been established to the satisfaction of said Board that

he was the son of Wong Quan. An appeal from the ex-

cluding decision was taken to the Secretary of Labor. On
the appeal the applicant was represented by a lawyer

residing in Washington, D. C. The decision of the San

Pedro Board was affirmed. The Secretary directed that

the applicant be returned to China at the expense of the

steamship company which brought him here. Appellant

was about to return the applicant to China when a writ

of habeas corpus was issued. After a hearing on the

matter, the District Court entered an order discharging

the alien from custody of the appellant fR. 10]. From

that order this appeal is taken.



Question at Issue.

In his memorandum decision of July 1, 1940 [R. 9],

the District Court said:

"No notice whatever was given to the appHcant of

the production of Dr. Kading as a witness and no

opportunity afforded for cross-examination of this

expert on behalf of the applicant, nor was applicant

given any opportunity to produce witnesses to con-

travert the testimony of Dr. Kading.

"Such proceeding is manifestly unfair, particularly

since in reaching its decision the Immigration De-

partment has disregarded the competent and uncon-

tradicted testimony of eye-witnesses as to the date

of nativity and parentage of applicant."

It appears from the District Court's opinion, granting

the petition for a writ of habeas corpus and discharging

Wong Choon Ock from the custody of the Immigration

authorities that, succinctly stated, the court regarded the

hearing in this case to be unfair solely because the ap-

plicant was not permitted to be represented by counsel

before the Board of Special Inquiry, Therefore, while

there are five assignments of error relied upon by appel-

lant [R. 14], there is but one issue before this Honorable

Court :

Was the applicant accorded a fair hearing?

Or specifically:

Did denial of representation by counsel at the

immigration hearing render the hearing unfair?
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Argument.

The immigration authorities decided the citizenship

status of the applicant. This was primarily a question of

fact and was decided adversely to the applicant by a regu-

larly constituted administrative board authorized by law

to consider and decide such a question of fact. It is well

established that if the immigration authorities considered

the applicant's claim for admission at a fair hearing and

gave him a reasonable opportunity to establish his citizen-

ship and, in so doing, did not abuse the discretion lodged

with them, their finding of fact upon the question of

citizenship is conclusive:

Qiion Ouon Poy v. Johnson (1927), 273 U. S. 352;

Weedin v. Yee Wing Soon (C. C. A. 9, 1931), 48

Fed. (2d) 36.

Appellant submits that the hearing resulting in the ap-

plicant's exclusion was fair and that it conformed to the

requirements of "due process." The applicant was born

in China and is of the Chinese race. He arrived in the

United States for the first time without documentary proof

of his claimed United States citizenship. The matter

rested upon a question of fact, i. e., whether applicant was

the foreign-born son of Wong Quan, who concededly is

a United States citizen^ On this question the burden of

proof was upon the applicant:

Mui Sam Hun v. United States (C. C. A. 9, 1935),

78 Fed. (2d) 612, 613:

United States v. Day (C. C. A. 3, 1932), 54 Fed.

(2d) 990, 991;

Lnm Sha You v. United States (C. C. A. 9, 1936),

82 Fed. (2d) 83, 84;



Wooji Sun Seitng v. Proctor (C. C A. 9, 1938),

99 Fed. (2d) 285;

Jung Yen Loy v. CahUl (C. C. A. 9, 1936), 81

Fed. (2d) 809.

At the time of his arrival at San Pedro on June 25,

1939, the applicant claimed to be approximately 8 years

and 7 months old. He appeared to the Board members to

be much older [see p. 16, Q. 151, Immigration Record].

This opinion of these Board members based upon his

physical appearance, should not be considered remarkable

after examining- the photographs of applicant and his

alleged brother, Wong Choon Loy, which were introduced

in evidence at the Board hearing, marked Exhibits "E"

and "F." Wong Choon Loy, applicant's alleged brother,

is seven years and three months old and applicant claims

to be 8 years, 7 months old, a difference of one year and

four months. Nevertheless, the photographs show the ap-

plicant to be practically twice as tall as his alleged brother.

In view of this discrepancy the Board called in medical

officers of the United States Public Health Service for a

medical opinion as to his age. Dr. Harold M. Craning,

assistant surgeon, made an exhaustive physical examina-

tion of the applicant and Dr. Albert Allen, roentgenologi-

calist, took several x-ray photographs of him. Dr. Cran-

ing submitted a detailed report and analysis of his ex-

amination, which report included the findings of Dr.

Allen. Dr. Craning's conclusion was that the applicant's

true age ranged between 11 and 13 years. Basing his

opinion on x-rays of the bony structure. Dr. Allen re-

ported that the applicant was 13 years of age.

On July 31, 1931, at the request of applicant's repre-

sentative, the hearing before the Board of Special In-



quiry was reopened by order of the Los Angeles District

Director to permit the introduction of the testimony of a

physician, Dr. F. McLean Campbell, privately employed

by the applicant. It is interesting to note the following

testimony given by the applicant's medical witness [Immi-

gration Record, p. 32] :

"263. Q. After giving him [applicant] the ex-

amination you thought necessary, what conclusion did

you arrive at?

A. That he was at least the age of ten years."

(Emphasis ours.)

If this is taken as the correct age it would place the ap-

plicant's birth at about July of 1929. But we have the

alleged father's testimony that the date he and his wife

left the United States was July 17, 1929. Consequently,

they would not arrive in China until some time in August.

This same witness, testifying in behalf of the applicant,

also gave the following testimony [Immigration Record,

p. 32] :

"270. Q. Doctor, the applicant, Wong Choon

Ock, claims birth on November 20, 1930, which would

make him 8 years and 7 months on June 20, 1939,

do you think it at all likely that he could be that age?

A. No, that is rediculous on account of the perma-

nent teeth which he has noiv and the epiphyseal marks

in the x-rays as shozvn." (Emphasis ours.)

Dr. Campbell's letter to Mr. Richard H. Taylor, local

representative of applicant, is a part of the Board record,

marked Exhibit "G." It will be noted he wrote to Mr.

Taylor in part as follows:

"* He * j'j-j-, yei-y sorry but the boy is at least 10

years old * * *."



Thus, the Board's opinion of the boy's age based on the

opinion of the Board members as to his external physical

appearance in size, is supported by the evidence of Drs.

Craning and Allen that he was from 11 to 13 years of

age and that of the applicant's witness, Dr. Campbell, that

he was "at least ten years old." The applicant appealed

to the Secretary of Labor from the Board's decision and

the record was forwarded to Washington where the Board

of Review recommended that the case be reopened "in

order to afford opportunity for the consideration of such

further evidence as may be presented by the United States

Public Health Service as to the applicant's age."

The reconmiendation of the Board of Review was fol-

lowed and on November 22, 1939, the hearing was again

reopened and testimony of Dr. Earl C. Kading was heard

by the Board of Special Inquiry at San Pedro, California.

Dr. Kading, a physician of 20 years' experience, testified

he had examined Chinese aliens since May of 1927 at the

immigration hospital at Angel Island. California, and dur-

ing that time the number of Chinese examined would run

into the thousands; that he had examined at least 500

Chinese for the purpose of estimating their age. Dr.

Kading's report was made a part of the record and marked

Exhibit 'T"
|
Immigration Record]. He was of the

opinion the applicant was between 13 and 15 years of age.

The Board again decided that the applicant was not the

son of Wong Quan and therefore not a citizen of the

United States, and voted unanimously to deny him admis-

sion to this country. From this decision applicant again

appealed but his appeal was dismissed by the Secretary.

Both locally and at Washington, the applicant was repre-

sented by counsel and briefs were filed in his behalf on

both appeals.
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So we have the opinion of four physicians that the ap-

pHcant is older than eight years and seven months, which

he claimed was his correct age on June 25, 1939. The

lowest estimate of his correct age is given by his own

witness. Dr. Campbell, that he is at least 10 years of age.

It should be borne in mind that Dr. Campbell's testimony

to this effect was given July 31, 1939, and if the appli-

cant's tenth birthday occurred on that date he could not

very well be the child of his alleged parents as they did not

arrive in China until the middle of August, 1929.

The age discrepancy has been definitely established. The

issue is one of fact and hence one for the determination of

the immigration authorities. There is no better established

rule than that where the issue rests upon a question of

fact the administrative decision is not subject to attack,

unless it affirmatively appears that it could not have been

reasonably reached by a fair-minded man. See:

Weedin v. Chin Share Jung (C. C. A. 9, 1933),

62 Fed. (2d) 569, 570;

Tisiv. Tod, 264 U. S. 131;

Vajtauer v. Commissioner (1924), 273 U. S. 103,

106;

fun Yen Loy v. Cahill (C. C. A. 9, 1936), 81 Fed.

(2d) 809; ,

Chin Chung v. Nagle (C. C. A. 9, 1931), 51 Fed.

(2d) 64;

Haff V. Der Yam Min (C. C. A. 9, 1934), 68

Fed. (2d) 626.

The recent case of:

Horn Ark v. United States (C. C. A. 9), 105 Fed.
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(2d) 607, decided July 11, 1939, determines and controls

all the issues involved in the case at bar. That case, like-

wise, involved a foreign-born Chinese applying for ad-

mission as a citizen. The age of the applicant was at

issue. He claimed to have been born February 22, 1921,

thus making him 17 years, 2 months and 20 days old when

examined for admission. In this he was supported by the

oral testimony of his alleged father. The medical officers

of the United States Public Health issued a certificate

stating that the applicant was at least twenty years of

age. They based their opinion on x-rays of the humerous

showing the union of the lateral and medial epicondyles;

the union of the trochlea and capitellum, and the fusion

of the upper and lower epiphyses with the body. The ap-

plicant was then examined by his own privately employed

physician who testified from his examination that the ap-

plicant was no more than 17 years of age. There was

therefore a sharp conflict of medical opinion. No further

evidence was taken and the Board of Special Inquiry con-

cluded the applicant was born prior to February 8, 1921,

and that, therefore, he was not a citizen of the United

States. Our District and Circuit Courts both sustained

the findings of the immigration authorities. In writing

the unanimous opinion for the Circuit Court of Appeals,

Ninth Circuit, in the Hoiu Ark case. Judge Matthews

says in part:

"X-ray pictures are not, of course, an infallible

means of determining age. No one claims that they

are. Nevertheless, to a medical expert, such pictures

may be a valuable aid in arriving at an opinion of

that subject. Such was the use which Drs. Smith

and Evans (U. S. Public Health Service Surgeons)

made of the pictures taken by Dr. Allen.
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"The qualifications of Drs. Smith and Evans were

not challenged, nor was their testimony objected to.

Their testimony was, to he sure, opinion testimony,

but is not incompetent or othcnmse improper. What
weight it should be given zuas for the board to de-

termine. We cannot review that determination nor

substitute our judgment for that of the board. Wong
Fook Ngoey v. Nagle (9 CCA) 300 F. 323; Fong

Lim V. Nagle, 9 Cir., 2 F. (2d) 971; Young Fat v.

Nagle, 9 Cir. 3 F. (2d) 439; Tom Him v. Nagle, 9

Cir., 27 F. (2d) 885; Low Git Cheung v. Nagle, 9

Cir., 36 F. (2d) 452." (Emphasis ours.)

No two cases could be more similar on the facts or to

the law. In our opinion, it determines all the issues pre-

sented here. It is clear that when the age of a person

becomes an issue and the person is present before the

triers of the fact, it can hardly be doubted that they are

at liberty to use their senses and to draw conclusions as

to the person's age from his physical appearance
( Wigmore

Evid. (2d Ed.) 222; Wong Fook Ngoey v. Nagle (C. C.

A. 9), 300 Fed. 323). It is true that such inference can-

not always be drawn with accuracy, but when such infer-

ence is supported by the testimony of expert medical wit-

nesses, it cannot be said, as a matter of law, that the

record does not present some evidence in contradiction

of the testimony of the applicant and his witnesses. Our

Circuit Court has repeatedly accepted proof by physicians

certificate in similar cases:

Wong Fook Ngoey v. Nagle, supra:

Fong Lim v. Nagle (C. C. A. 9, 1925), 2 Fed.

(2d) 971;
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Young Fat v. Nagle (C. C. A. 9, 1925), 3 Fed.

(2d) 439;

Tom Hing v. Nagle (C. C. A. 9, 1928), 27 Fed.

(2d) 885;

Lezv Git Cheung v. Nagle (C. C. A. 9, 1929), 36

Fed. (2d) 452.

In none of the above cited cases was the appHcant repre-

sented by counsel before the Board of Special Inquiry.

This was in accord with Rule 12 of the Immigration and

Naturalization Service, which prohibits the presence of

participation of counsel in exclusion hearings before a

Board of Special Inquiry. We submit that to nullify

this rule would have a most detrimental effect on enforce-

ment of the immigration laws. It would seriously hamper

administration of such laws by permitting thousands of

immigrants to demand judicial hearings on their right to

enter the United States when called for a hearing before

the administrative boards.

It will be observed that this case involves an exclusion

proceeding and not a deportation proceeding. Not only

the administrative rules of the Immigration and Natural-

ization Service, which were promulgated pursuant to the

immigration laws, are different in exclusion cases and de-

portation cases, but the rules and principles of law in-

volved also differ. The j^ertinent question in the case at

bar is whether there is authority under the immigration

laws to promulgate Rule 12 of the Immigration Rules and

whether Rule 12 and Rule 19 of the Immigration Rules,

when they are construed together, show an unfair dis-

crimination against an applicant for entry into the United

States in favor of an alien who is to be deported from the

United States.
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The following provisions of Rule 12 pertain to the ques-

tion involved in the case at bar

:

"Rule 12

—

Examination of Applicants by

Boards of Special Inquiry.

Subdivision B.—Hearings.

"Paragraph 1.—Boards of special inquiry shall de-

termine all cases as promptly as circumstances per-

mit, in the estimation of the immigration official in

charge, due regard being had to the necessity of giv-

ing the alien a fair hearing. Hearings before the

boards 'shall be separate and apart from the public'

;

but the alien may have one friend or relative present

after the preliminary part of the hearing has been

completed; provided, first, that such friend or rela-

tive is not and will not be employed by him as counsel

or attorney; second, that if a witness, he has already

completed the giving of his testimony; third, that he

is not the agent or a representative at an immigra-

tion station of an immigration aid or other similar

society or organization; and, fourth, that he is either

actually related to or an acquaintance of the alien.

Subdivision E.—Excluded Alien Informed of

Rights.

"Paragraph 1.—An excluded alien shall be informed

that the return voyage is at the expense of the trans-

portation company which brought him; that such

transportation company must return him in the same

class in which he came. The fact that he has been

so informed shall be entered in the minutes.
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"Paragraph 2.—Where an alien is exchided by a

board of special inquiry he shall be advised of the

decision of said board and the reason therefor, and

when entitled to appeal to the Secretary of Labor, he

shall be so advised, provided that the exact language

employed in advising alien of his right to appeal, to-

gether with a full and accurate transcript of alien's

reply, shall be inserted in the record and made a part

thereof."

Rule 12 of the Immigration Rules was promulgated pur-

suant to section 17 of the Act of February 5, 1917, which

prescribes the function of boards of special inquiry in the

following language:

"That boards of special inquiry shall be appointed

by the commissioner of immigration and naturaliza-

tion or inspector in charge at the various ix)rts of ar-

rival as may be necessary for the prompt determina-

tion of all cases of immigrants detained at such ports

under the provisions of the law. Each board shall

consist of three members, who shall be selected from

such of the immigrant and naturalization officials in

the service as the Commissioner of Immigration and

Naturalization, with the approval of the Secretary of

Labor, shall from time to time designated as qualified

to serve on such boards. * * * Such boards shall

have authority to determine whether an alien who
has been duly held shall be allowed to land or shall

be deported. All hearings before such boards shall

be separate and apart from the public, but the immi-

grant may have one friend or relative present under

such regulations as may be prescribed by the Secretary

of Labor; such boards shall keep a complete perma-

nent record of their proceedings, and of all such testi-

mony as may be produced before them; and the de-
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cisions of any two members of the board shall pre-

vail, but either the alien or any dissenting member
of said board may appeal through the Commissioner

of Immigration and Naturalization at the port of ar-

rival, and the Commissioner of Immigration and

Naturalization to the Secretary of Labor, and the

taking of such appeal shall operate to stay any action

in regard to the final disposal of any alien whose case

is so appealed until the receipt by the Commissioner

of Immigration and Naturalization at the ix)rt of

arrival of such decision which shall be rendered solely

upon the evidence adduced before the board of special

inquiry. In every case where an alien is excluded

from admission into the United States, under any

law or treaty now existing or hereafter made, the de-

cision of a board of special inquiry adverse to the

admission of suoh alien shall be final, unless reversed

on appeal to the Secretary of Labor * * *." (39

Stat. 887; 8 U. S. Code, sec. 153.)

It should be observed that Rule 12, supra, is applicable

to all persons seeking admission to the United States. It

governs exclusion hearings and does not purport to deal

with the rights of alleged aliens found in this country and

who have been apprehended under warrant of arrest.

Rights of persons subject to deportation proceedings are

determined under the provisions of Rule 19 of the Immi-

gration Rules, which provides

:

"Subdivision D.—Execution of Warrants of

Arrest and Hearings Thereon.

"Paragraph 2.—At the hearing under the warrant

of arrest the alien shall be allowed to inspect the war-

rant of arrest and shall be advised that he may be
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represented by counsel. The alien shall be required

then and there to state whether he desires counsel

or waives the same, and his reply shall be entered on

the record. If counsel be selected, he shall be per-

mitted to be present during" the conduct of the hear-

ing and to offer evidence to meet any evidence pre-

sented or adduced by the Government. Objections of

counsel shall be entered on the record, but the reasons

for such objections shall be presented in accompany-

ing briefs. If, during the hearing, it shall appear to

the examining inspector that there exists a reason

additional to those stated in the warrant of arrest

why the alien is in the country in violation of law,

the alien shall be notified that such additional charge

will be placed against him and shall be given an op-

portunity to show cause why he should not be de-

ported therefor."

Rule 19, supra, applies only to proceedings to deport a

resident alien and was made within the purview of section

19 of the Act of February 5, 1917 (39 Stat. 889; 8 U. S.

Code, sec. 155). It has no application whatever to the

examination of persons before boards of special inquiry

in exclusion proceedings.

Rule 12 and Rule 19 of the Immigration Rules and

Regulations are not lacking in uniformity. They apply

impartially and without exception to the respective classes

of i>ersons to which they are addressed and meet the test

of uniform application of statutes.

Head Money Cases (1884), 112 U. S. 580, 594;

Florida v. Mellon, Secy, of the Treasury^ et al.

(1926), 273 U. S. 12, 17.
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No higher test should be applied to rules promulgated un-

der the provisions of the statute than would be applied

to the statute itself. It may be granted that these rules

discriminate in favor of the resident alien. The resident

alien who is the subject of deportation proceedings is taken

into custody on a warrant of arrest and is allowed counsel

in a quasi-iudicml hearing, whereas the immigrant who,

in contemplation of law, is without the United States and

seeking admission, has his rights determined in a summary

proceeding without benefit of counsel before the admini-

strative board. Rule 19, supra, was made pursuant to

section 19 of the Act of February 5, 1917, which outlines

no particular procedure to be allowed except that, after

enumerating the classes which are subject to deportation,

it states that they shall, on warrant of the Secretary of

Labor, be taken into custody and deported. On the con-

trary, in section 17 of the Act of February 5, 1917 (8

U. S. C. A. 153), which concerns the proceedings to be

had by boards of special inquiry where persons are with-

out the country and applying for admission, the Congress

has provided very carefully for the constitution of examin-

ing boards and their procedure. It follows that any dis-

tinction between resident aliens and persons seeking ad-

mission to the United States is made by act of the Con-

gress. Since the Immigration Rules and Regulations are

not contrary to the provisions of the statute under which

they were framed, the attack is not on the rules but really

is addressed to the statute.

At this point, it is well to consider the reason for the

distinction made by the statute and the pertinent rules.

The District Court's decision that the denial of counsel

before the Board of Special Inquiry constituted an unfair

hearing is tantamount to saying that Wong Choon Ock
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was denied due process of law. The due process clauses

of the Constitution apply to aliens resident within the

country as well as resident citizens.

The Japanese Immigrant Case (1903), 189 U. S.

86;

Yick Wo V. Hopkins (1885), 118 U. S. 356, 369;

Fang Yue Ting v. United States (1893), 149 U. S.

698, 724;

Ng Fong Ho v. White (1922), 259 U. S. 278,

282-285;

United States ex rel. Bilokumsky v. Tod (1923),

263 U. S. 149, 152-155.

However, this guarantee does not extend to those persons

who are not resident in the United States or within its

jurisdiction, even though they are citizens of the United

States.

Balsacc v. People of Porto Rico (1922), 259 U. S.

298;

Neely v. Henkel (1901), 180 U. S. 109, 122-123;

Ng Fong Ho v. White, supra.

Applicants for admission to the United States are, in

contemplation of law, without a country and seeking to

enter this country. The Congress has plenary power to

exclude any or all aliens with or without any reason and

to apply such conditions to their admission to the United

States as it sees fit. The applicant for admission to this

country can invoke only such rights as the Congress has

seen fit by statute to confer upon him.

Nishimura Ekiu v. United States (1892), 142

U. S. 651.
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Due process of law in respect to a resident alien is that

which is required not only by the statute but by the Con-

stitution, for if the statute fails to provide for such hear-

ing as fairly may be considered to be within the meaning

of due process of law as used by the Constitution, he may

appeal over the statute to his constitutional rights. How-

ever, due process of law is satisfied in respect to applicants

for admission into the country, who obviously are not

within the country, when there has been a fair compliance

with the statute alone.

Low Wall Suey v. Backus (1912), 225 U. S. 460;

United States v. Sing Tuck (1904), 194 U. S. 161

;

Chin Yow v. United States (1908), 208 U. S.

8, 12;

United States v. Ju Toy (1905), 198 U. S. 253,

262-263;

United States ex rel Dong Yick Yuen v. Dunton

(C. C. A. 2, 1924), 297 Fed. 447, 449.

Although the applicant for admission asserts citizenship in

the United States, the primary investigation by the ad-

ministrative officer is to determine whether applicant's

claim is well-founded.

United States v. Sing Tuck, supra;

Quon Quon Poy v. Johnson (1927), 273 U. S.

352, 358.

The decisions uniformly hold that due process of law has

been accorded to an applicant for admission to the United

States where a hearing has been conducted in compliance

with the statute. Chin Yow v. United States, supra. It

is an attribute of sovereignty that a nation has the arbi-
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trary right to exclude all aliens. The right to regulate

the admission of aliens is a corrolary of the right to ex-

clude absolutely. Both the power of exclusion and the

power of regulation are plenary. The immigration powers

are vested in the Congress, which may designate the

agencies to effectuate its adopted policies. The only check

on the designated agency is that it must not transcend its

designated authority or abuse its discretion. As long as

such designated agency operates within the limits of its

authority and does not abuse its discretion, the courts may

not interfere.

The Japanese Immigrant Case, supra:

United States ex rel. Barlin v. Rodgers (C. C. A.

3, 1911), 191 Fed. 970;

Choy Gum v. Backus (C. C. A. 9, 1915), 233 Fed.

487;

White V. Kzvock Sue Lum (C. C. A. 9, 1923),

291 Fed. 732;

United States ex rel. Ciccerelli v. Curran ( C. C. A.

2, 1926), 12 Fed. (2d) 394.

In The Japanese Immigrant Case, supra, Justice Harlan,

speaking for the Supreme Court, said (pp. 97-99)

:

"The constitutionality of the legislation in question,

in its general aspect, is no longer open to discussion

in this court. That Congress may exclude aliens of a

particular race from the United States; prescribe the

terms and conditions upon which certain classes of

aliens may come to this country; establish regula-

tions for sending out of the country such aliens as

come here in violation of law; and commit the en-
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forcement of such provisions, conditions, and regu-

lations exclusively to executive officers, without judi-

cial intervention, are principles firmly established by

the decisions of this court. Nishimura Ekiii v.

United States, 142 U. S. 651; Fong Yue Ting v.

United States, 149 U. S. 698; Lent Moon Sing v.

United States, 158 U. S. 358; Wong Wing v. United

States, 163 U. S. 228; Fok Yung Yo v. United States,

185 U. S. 296, 305.

"* * * It is not within the province of the

judiciary to order that foreigners who have never been

naturalized, nor acquired any domicil or residence

within the United States, nor even been admitted into

the country pursuant to law, shall be permitted to

enter, in opposition to the constitutional and lawful

measures of the legislative and executive branches of

the National Government. As to such persons, the

decisions of executive or administrative officers, act-

ing within the powers expressly conferred by Con-

gress, are due process of law. Murray v. Hohoken

Co., 18 How. 272; Hilton v. Merritt, 110 U. S. 97.

"In Lent Moon Sing's case it was said: 'The

power of Congress to exclude aliens altogether from

the United States, or to prescribe the terms and con-

ditions upon which they may come into this country,

and to have its declared policy in that regard en-

forced exclusively through executive officers, without

judicial intervention, is settled by our previous ad-

judications.' And, in Fok Yung Yo's case, the latest

one in this court, it was said: 'Congressional action

has placed the final determination of the right of ad-

mission in executive officers, without judicial inter-

vention, and this has been for many years the recogn-

ized and declared policy of the country."
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The Congress has seen fit to place the burden of en-

forcement of its immigration policy upon the executive

branch of the Government. It could have clothed the

judiciary with the duty of enforcing the immigration laws.

However, the Congress did not see fit to confer such

jurisdiction on the courts. It is the sole function of the

courts, when they are appealed to, to determine whether

a fair summary hearing has been accorded to an alleged

alien when he is taken before an administrative board to

determine his right to enter the United States. If an

alien is found within the confines of this country and claims

to be a citizen of the United States, the hearing afforded

to him under the immigration laws and regulations is of

a more formal nature.

A distinction between the rights of an alien found in

the country and who is subject to deportation proceedings

and the rights of an alien seeking admission to the country

and who is the subject of exclusion proceedings was

recognized in United States et al. v. Woo Jan (1918),

245 U. S. 552. The Supreme Court held that the rights

of a person in the United States and the rights of one

seeking to enter are identical in that in the first instance

there should be a judicial determination of the rights of

the alleged alien, and in the second instance the matter is

subject to executive action.

White V. Chin Fong (1920), 253 U. S. 90;

United States v. .hi Toy, supra;

Pearson v. Williams (1906), 202 U. S. 281;

United States ex rel. Ciccerelli v. Curran, supra;

Ex parte Wong Yee Toon (D. C. Maryland, 1915),

227 Fed. 247, 251.
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The executive branch of the Government, charged with en-

forcement of the immigration laws and authorized by act

of the Congress to promulgate rules to assist in such

enforcement, also has distinguished between the rights of

an alleged alien who seeks to enter the country and the

rights of an alleged alien who is found within its confines.

When one seeks to enter the United States, he is given

a preliminary examination by an immigration inspector.

If his right to enter the country is not clear, he then is

accorded a hearing before a Board of Special Inquiry.

The hearings before such boards are governed by Rule

12 of the Immigration Rules and Regulations of January

1, 1930, as amended. Section 17 of the Act of February

5, 1917, supra, provides that "all hearings before such

boards shall be separate and apart from the public, but

the immigrant may, have one friend or relative present

under such regulations as may be prescribed by the Secre-

tary of Labor." When one is found within the borders

of this country and is sought to be deported as an alien

without right to remain, a warrant of arrest is issued by

the Secretary of Labor and the alleged alien is given a

hearing pursuant to Rule 19 of the Immigration Rules

and Regulations of January 1, 1930, as amended. Under

Rule 19, it is mandatory that, at the hearing held before

the authority named in the warrant of arrest, the warrant

shall be submitted to the alien for his inspection and he

shall be informed of his right to be represented by counsel.

If the alleged alien desires the assistance of counsel, such

counsel then is permitted to be present during the hearing

and to safeguard the legal rights of his client. In promul-

gating the two rules under which the procedure is so

diverse, the executive officers charged with enforcement

of the immigration laws have defined a fixed policy. They
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have buttressed the provisions of Rule 12 that the alleged

alien may have a friend or relative present by stipulating

that such friend or relative is not and will not be env

ployed by the alien as his attorney. Under Rule 19, the

alleged alien found in the United States and subject to

deportation proceedings is permitted the privilege of

counsel on the hearing. Under Rule 12, counsel is pro-

hibited. The reason for the difference in procedure is

clear.

If an alleged alien has been domiciled in the United

States or a resident therein for many years, having an

established business, home and family, and an immigra-

tion official seeks his deportation on any ground prescribed

by law, safeguards should be provided to protect the

rights of such alien, especially if he claims citizenship. In

such instances, no immediate hearing is necessary, and

such hearing should be g7/a,y/-judicial in nature. How-

ever, when an alleged alien seeks admission to this coun-

try, the hearing concerning his right to admission, of

necessity, must be summary in character. Under normal

circumstances, a great number of applicants present them-

selves daily for admission to the United States. If they

are not entitled to admission, the law requires the trans-

portation company which brought them here to carry them

back to the point of embarkation. They have no inalien-

able right to enter the United States. Permission to

enter this country is a matter of grace. No complaint

should be entertained if such applicants are afforded a

reasonable opportunity before an unbiased board of dis-

interested officials to establish a right to admission within

the purview of the law. Pursuant to the authority found

in the Act of February 5, 1917 (8 U. S. C. A. 153), to

prescribe rules and conditions under which a friend or
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relative may be present at a hearing before a board of

special inquiry in an exclusion proceeding, the Depart-

ment of Labor has seen fit, on account of the exigencies

and necessities of expeditiously handling the usual influx

of immigrants, to provide that the action of immigration

officials in these exclusion proceedings should be un-

hampered by rules of court procedure and technical and

casuistic contentions of lawyers. Referring to the func-

tion of a board of special inquiry in an immigration case,

Justice McKenna, speaking for the Supreme Court in

Tulsidas v. Insular Collector of Customs (1923), 262

U. S. 258, said (p. 263) :

"It would seem, therefore, as if something more is

necessary to justify review than the basis of a dis-

pute. The law is in administration of a policy which,

while it confers a privilege, is concerned to preserve

it from abuse and, therefore, has appointed officers

to determine the conditions of it, and speedily de-

termine them, and on practical considerations, not to

subject them to litigations controversies, and disput-

able, if not finical, distinctions."

However, if the alleged alien is dissatisfied with a ruling

of a board of special inquiry in an exclusion proceeding,

or if any member of the board itself concludes that justice

has not been meted out, there is provision for an appeal.

If the case is plain and the facts are indisputable, the

board of special inquiry is capable of deciding whether

the alien is entitled to enter this country. Where the

matter is complicated, an appeal may be taken and then the

alleged alien may procure the assistance of counsel who

has the right to examine the record and to prepare and

conduct such appeal.
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There is no doubt that the Department, acting under the

provisions of the immigration laws, has authority to estab-

Hsh rules of procedure. The question is whether the

established rule is reasonable or unreasonable. It must

be reiterated that the alleged alien has no inalienable

rights in the premises and that all that is accorded him

is by way of grace. Even if he were a citizen of the

United States, it would not be his constitutional right to

be heard by counsel before an administrative tribunal.

The Sixth Amendment to the Constitution guarantees the

right of assistance of counsel only in criminal prosecu-

tions. No act of the Congress conferring a legal right

to representation by counsel is to be found in the statute

books. In Anderson v. Treat (1898), 172 U. S. 24, the

right to personal counsel, even in a criminal case, was

restricted. Anderson, who was under sentence of death,

sought relief in habeas corpus proceedings on the ground

that he had been assigned counsel by the court on his trial

and that later he had employed other counsel who was

denied permission to see the petitioner for consultation.

Relief was denied by the Supreme Court. It has been

pointed out that on a hearing before a board of special

inquiry in an exclusion proceeding, the rules of the Immi-

gration and Naturalization Service specifically prohibit

the appearance of counsel. The question then arises:

Where does the right to counsel claimed by the petitioner

in this case, Wong Choon Ock, spring from?

The law reports contain many cases bearing upon the

construction and operation of Rule 19, supra, which is ap-

plicable only to deportation proceedings. Such authori-

ties hold that Rule 19 must be liberally construed and

strictly adhered to. Any deportation proceedings will

be rendered unfair if the warrant of arrest is not sub-
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mitted to the Hen for inspection and he is not accorded the

right of counsel during the entire hearing before the

Board of Special Inquiry. There are a number of cases

dealing with Rule 12, supra, which is applicable only to

exclusion proceedings. The immigration authorities and

the courts have taken it as a premise that, because of the

necessity for a speedy hearing before an administrative

board, the departmental regulation prohibiting counsel at

the hearing before a board of special inquiry in an ex-

clusion proceeding is reasonable. The cases in direct

point justify Rule 12 (formerly Rule 11), supra, and hold

it to be reasonable. While the admission and deportation

of Chinese persons is governed by a separate legislative

enactment, the same distinction is made in the handling of

Chinese immigrants' who seek admission and Chinese

aliens who are the subjects of deportation proceedings after

a stay in this country as that which is found in the general

immigration Act. Under the provision of the Chinese

Exclusion Act (Act of May 5, 1892; 27 Stat. 25 ; 8 U. S.

Code, section 284), the burden is on the Chinese person

to establish citizenship. Clearly, this rule regarding the

burden of establishing citizenship is one of evidence relat-

ing to the sufficiency thereof and does not bear on the

fairness of the hearing or the reasonableness of the rule

prohibiting counsel at the hearing before a board of special

inquiry in an exclusion proceedings. When a Chinese

person applies for admission to the United States, his

right to enter this country is weighed at a summary hear-

ing. If he is already within this country, he can be ex-

cluded only after a judicial hearing.
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In the case of In re Can Pan et al. (C. C. A. 9, 1909),

168 Fed. 479, Justice Gilbert, speaking to this point, said

(p. 483)

:

"In approaching- the question whether upon the

record in this case the appHcant for admission to the

United States was denied such a hearing as the statute

contemplates, we must find our guiding principles in

the construction which the Supreme Court has placed

upon the law in the Ju Toy case and the Chin Yow
case. * * * jj^ brief, it is the doctrine of these

two decisions that an applicant for admission to the

United States, detained upon the border thereof by

the officials of the Department of Commerce and

Labor, is not deprived of his liberty without due pro-

cess of law if his rights are determined without a

judicial trial, and that the decision of the officers is

due process of law, with this limitation, that such

officers must grant a hearing in good faith, something

more than the semblance of a hearing, and must take

the testimony pertinent to the questions involved of

such witnesses as may be suggested by the applicant.

This does not mean, and the decisions cannot be con-

strued as holding, that the applicant is entitled of

right to be present in person or by counsel at the

taking of the testimony, or to be informed of the

nature thereof, zvhile it is being taken. In this re-

spect we do not find that the investigation and pro-

ceedings before the officers at Sumas and at Seattle

in the present case were conducted in such a manner

as to deprive the applicant of due process of law.

A^or, in the light of the record, are we able to assent

to the conclusion reached by the trial court that the

officers who conducted the examinations acted in a

partial or arbitrary manner, or abused the discretion

reposed in them, or acted ufon improper testimony, or
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failed to conduct the investigation according to law

and the rides of the department, or that the applicant

was denied a fair opportunity to produce his testi-

mony/' (Emphasis ours.)

United States ex rel. Buccino et al. v. Williams, Com'r.

of Immigration (C. C, S. D. N. Y., 1911), 190 Fed. 897,

is directly in point. A writ of habeas corpus was sued out

by the relators, who were Italian aliens seeking to enter

the United States and who were held by the immigration

authorities for return to the country from whence they

came. The board of special inquiry, with three inspectors

sitting, held that they were liable to become public charges

and ordered their deportation. An appeal was taken to

the Secretary of Commerce and Labor, who affirmed the

decision of the board of special inquiry. Subsequently,

for some reason not' apparent, a rehearing was ordered

before three inspectors other than those who had com-

posed the first board of special inquiry. They called the

aliens before them, heard testimony, and reached the same

decision as the first board had reached. This latter find-

ing was transmitted to the Secretary of Commerce and

Labor who approved it. It was urged that the hearing

before the board of special inquiry was unfair because the

aliens had been denied the privilege and right to appear

by counsel. Bearing upon this contention. Circuit Judge

Lacombe said (p. 899) :

"No authority is cited which sustains the proposi-

tion that upon the examination of an alien arriving in

this country by the board of inspectors he is entitled

to be presented by counsel. In Ex parte Loung June

(D. C), 160 Fed. 251, and in Re Tang Tung (D. C),

161 Fed. 618, the relators were contending that they

were native born citizens. In Glaves v. Williams,
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190 Fed. 686 (C. C. S. D. of N. Y., Feb. 3, 1911),

the question was not passed upon. In Boxny v.

Williams, 185 Fed. 598, an attempt was being made

to deport aliens who had been permitted to enter

and had lived here for years. There is nothing in

the statute which calls for the presence of counsel at

the examination of aliens preliminary to admission;

nothing to indicate that it was the intent of Congress

that these investigations in hundreds of thousands of

cases touching the qualifications of an alien seeking

to enter were to be conducted as trials in court, with

counsel present to represent the alien, witnesses called

to testify, and elaborate examination and cross-

examination of them. On the contrary, Congress

relegated this question to administrative boards who

might act summarily and expeditiously, and, to pro-

vide against an abuse of their discretion, accorded to

the alien a right to appeal to the Secretary of Com-

merce and Labor. Nor do the rules provide for the

presence of counsel at such examinations."

The court appears to distinguish Ex parte Loung June,

supra, and Re. Tang Tung, supra, from the case before it

on the ground that, in those cases, United States citizen-

ship was asserted by the relators. However, reference to

Ex parte Loung June, supra, shows that the question be-

fore the court was whether an order of a United States

Commissioner was res judicata. The statements in the

court's opinion regarding the presence of counsel referred

to the prior hearing before the United States Commis-

sioner and not to a hearing before a board of special in-

quiry. Moreover, the decision was reversed on appeal.

Cf. 171 Fed. 413. The case of Re. Tang Tung, supra,

may be disposed of by referring to the decision of the
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Supreme Court in 223 U. S. 673. Neither of those cases

held that an appHcant for admission who asserted citizen-

ship was more entitled to counsel at a hearing before a

board of special inquiry than any other applicant seeking

admission to this country or that either class of applicant

to this country was entitled to counsel at a hearing before

such board.

In United States ex rel. Falco v. Williams, Immigration

Com'r. (C. C, S. D. N. Y., 1911), 191 Fed. 1001, a

writ of habeas corpus was sued out by an alien immigrant,

who was an Italian subject seeking admission to the United

States. The board of special inquiry had excluded him as

a person likely to become a public charge. A later

hearing was held before another board of special inquiry,

composed of different inspectors, which unanimously

reached the same conclusion as the first board of special

inquiry. An appeal was taken to the Secretary of Com-

merce and Labor, who affirmed the decision of the board

of special inquiry and ordered the deportation of the

alien. Among other things, the relator contended that he

was not represented by counsel at the hearing before

the Board of Special Inquiry. The court, speaking through

Circuit Judge Lacombe, rejected this contention and stated

(p. 1002):

"A similar objection was disposed of in re Buc-

cino, 190 Fed. 897 (October, 1911)."

In the case of United States ex rel. Iz^anow, et al. v.

Greenawalt, U. S. Immigration Com'r. (D. C, E. D. Pa.,

1914), 213 Fed. 901, the court, after holding that the

Congress may define and regulate the admission of aliens

into the United States and prescribe the conditions upon

which the privilege of admission may be enjoyed and that
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the Congress may commit to any official, department or

tribunal, executive or judicial, the determination of any

questions of fact or otherwise upon which the admission

of aliens may depend and may prescribe within what time,

in what manner, and by whom any decisions made may be

reviewed, stated (p. 905)

:

"A further point is made of the partial exclusion

of counsel from the hearings held by the immigration

authorities. It is due both to the government officials

and to counsel to have the fact appear of record that

this exclusion, so far as it was enforced, was not

personal to counsel nor peculiar to this case. There

was no exclusion except to the extent that the gen-

eral regulations of the department require. It is suf-

ficient to say that in this there was no deprivation of

any legal right. There is no act of Congress con-

ferring the legal right of representation, and the con-

stitutional right is given only in criminal prosecu-

tions. Anyone familiar with the history of our race

knows what a struggle was made to secure this right

even in criminal cases, and, whatever views he may
entertain as to the abstract justice of its denial in

other proceedings, he would scarcely claim that by

this a judicial question was fairly raised."

In United States ex rel. Albro v. Karmith, Dist. Di-

rector of Immigration (D. C, W. D. N. Y., 1927), 31

Fed. (2d) 785, affirmed 279 U. S. 231, Rule 11 of the

Immigration Rules of March 1, 1927, denying the right

of counsel before a Board of Special Inquiry to an alien

applying for admission, was held not invalid as denying

due process of law to such alien. The court held that,

while such rule was not expressly authorized by statute, it

is within the general powers conferred on the administra-
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live department. Addressing itself to the right of aliens

to be represented by counsel at hearings before a board

of special inquiry in an exclusion proceeding, the court

said (pp. 787-788)

:

"Since many aliens, not of Canadian birth or citi-

zenship, arrive daily from Canada, who labor in this

country, especially in the border cities, and who like-

wise have been refused counsel at hearings, under

rule 11, the question of the right to exclude counsel

will be considered. Rule 1 1 of the Immigration Rules

of March 1, 1927, reads as follows:

" 'Hearings before the boards shall be separate and

apart from the public ; but the aliens may have one

friend or relative present after the preliminary part

of the hearing has been completed, provided

—

"'1. That such friend or relative is not and will

not be employed by him as counsel or attorney.'

''This rule, or a similar rule, has several times been

before the courts for construction in this circuit.

In U. S. V. Williams (C. C), 190 F. 897, for ex-

ample, the aliens, on their examination preliminary to

admission, were refused counsel, and Judge Lacombe

ruled that the statute did not authorize the presence

of counsel at exclusion hearings; that, where aliens

had entered and had resided here, they occupied a

different status, but that Congress evidently did not

intend that the qualifications of aliens intending to

enter the United States should be tested by trials

calling for the presence of counsel to represent

them. * * *

"See, also, U. S. ex rel. Falco v. Williams (C. C),

191 F. 1001, U. S. ex rel. Chin Fook Wah v. Dunton

(D. C), 288 F. 959, and U. S. v. Greenewalt

(D. C), 213 F. 901. The relators did not ask to have
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a friend or relative present as permitted by the regu-

lation under which the hearing was conducted and,

as the order or regulation expressly forbids the aid

of counsel, there has been, in my opinion, no depriva-

tion of any legal or constitutional right. The hear-

ing was purely inquisitorial, without its having any

relation to a criminal examination or investigation.

The entry or admission of aliens into the United

States, as said in the Greenawalt case, is a high

privilege bestowed, and not a legal right, and Con-

gress has unquestionably the power to delegate officials

or nonjudicial tribunals to exercise functions of a

judicial or administrative character for the purpose

of insuring effective compliance with the immigra-

tion laws including the deportation of aliens who
have unlawfully entered or their exclusion at the

boundary. It is not within the province of this

court to attempt to control or interfere with the de-

termination of such officials or tribunals save only to

protect aliens from the abuse of the discretion of ad-

ministrative boards by way of habeas corpus.

"But it is strongly urged that the enforcement of

rule 1 1 is nothing less than a denial of due process of

law and that it is in conflict with rule 18 which per-

mits the presence of counsel in deportation proceed-

ings. I discover no conflict or inconsistency since a

distinction with relation to proceedings against aliens

domiciled in the United States and aliens stopped at

the border for summary examination as to their right

to enter is believed to be a proper exercise of pro-

cedure (U. S. V. Williams, supra), and the power to

make such an order or regulation was not beyond the

power delegated by Congress to the Bureau of Immi-

gration.
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''Beyond this, however, the department, which is

charged with the enforcement of the Immigration Act,

has the right, and, indeed, it is its duty, to prescribe

orders, regulations, and rules, not only with relation

to the details of procedure, but any fair and reason-

able rule or method which will enable effective en-

forcement of the statute. If the prescribed regula-

tion is not in conflict with the Immigration Act, it

certainly falls within the scope of official duty to

establish it, even though it is not specifically indicated

as to the details. U. S. v. Grimaud, 220 U. S. 506,

31 S. Ct. 480, 55 L. Ed. 563; U. S. v. Birdsall, 233

U. S. 231, 34 S. Ct. 512, 58 L. Ed. 930. It seems to

me plain that a rule or order to expedite inquiries of

aliens, or hearings before a Special Board of In-

quiry, at the border, to summarily ascertain the quali-

fications of aliens desiring to enter the United States,

should not match judicial trials, or be conducted with

similar procedural rules, and therefore the suggestion

of deprivation of due process of law is not believed

applicable, although due process of law, if a fair

hearing is not accorded, may be tested on writ of

habeas corpus."

Brotmilow, U. S. Immigrant Inspector v. Micrs (C. C.

A. 5, 1928), 28 Fed. (2d) 653, involved precisely the same

issue as the instant case is concerned with and decided

such issue, at least for the United States Courts in the

Fifth Circuit, in favor of the Government. Miers, an

alleged infant alien, entered the United States as a stowa-

way on January 23, 1927. He was without credentials

and was taken into custody by the immigration authorities.

On May 19, 1927, a board of special inquiry accorded the

alleged alien a hearing to determine his right to enter
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the United States and ordered his exclusion. Miers ap-

pealed to the Secretary of Labor, who affirmed such de-

cision. Subsequently, the alien filed a petition praying

for a writ of habeas corpus, predicating his right to relief

upon two propositions:

( 1 ) That his hearing before the board of special

inquiry was unfair because he was denied the presence

of a friend or relative as prescribed by the immigra-

tion law, because his written application to be heard

by counsel before the board of special inquiry was

denied, and because the board of special inquiry did

not summon a witness whose testimony might have

shed some light on the case ; and

(2) That the Government did not establish his

alienage and did not show that he was not entitled

to remain within the borders of this country.

After it had overruled a motion to strike the petition for

writ of habeas corpus, the District Court adjudged that

the hearing before the board of special inquiry had been

unfair because Miers had not been permitted to have his

attorney present at such hearing. The court declared the

order of the board of special inquiry null and void and

directed that Miers be held in the custody of the immi-

gration authorities pending a hearing by a board of spe-

cial inquiry in accordance with the immigration laws. The

respondent immigration inspector, Brownlow, perfected

an appeal in due course to the Circuit Court of Ap^xals,

Fifth Circuit. The two questions presented on such ap-

peal were:

(1) Was Miers denied due process of law because

he was not allowed the privilege of counsel when his

right to enter the United States was heard before an

administrative board?



—37—

(2) Was there an abuse of discretion by the ad-

ministrative board in arriving at the decision that

Miers was an aHen and not authorized to enter this

country in that there was no evidence adduced before

such board that he was an aHen?

The Circuit Court of Appeals, Fifth Circuit, reversing

the judgment of the District Court in Bromnlow v. Miers,

held that the denial, under Rule 11 of the Immigration

Rules of March 1, 1927, of the right of counsel before a

board of special inquiry to an alien applying for admission

did not render such hearing unfair or violate the due

process of law requirements of the Constitution. In dis-

cussing this point, the court said (pp. 656-658)

:

"Congress, of course, has full and plenary power

in dealing with the admission of aliens into this coun-

try, and might, if it saw fit, exclude them entirely. In

the Act of February 5, 1917 (39 Stat. 874), it dealt

at length with the matter and we think, recognizing

the difficulties with which the immigation officers

would be confronted, provided and intended to

authorize different methods and procedure for

handling cases, where the applicants were attempting

to enter, from those of persons who had already en-

tered and were sought to be deported, regardless of

the manner of their getting into the country. In the

first place, the law deals with two classes of aliens in

separate sections. As to those seeking admission, it

provides for expeditious and summary hearings, to

the end that the thousands of immigrants coming be-
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fore the department each year may be specially dis-

posed of, with the idea, not only of permitting the

machinery to function, but in the interest of the per-

sons themselves, who must be held or put under heavy

bail until their cases are decided, as well as the ves-

sels, who have to bear the expense of returning aliens

to their ports of departure, if excluded.

"In the concluding portions of section 16 of the

Act of 1917 (8 U. S. C. A., Sec. 152) it is provided:

" 'Every alien who may not appear to the examining

immigrant inspector at the port of arrival to be

clearly and beyond a doubt entitled to land shall be

detained for examination in relation thereto by a

board of special inquiry. In the event of rejection

by the board of special inquiry, in all cases where an

appeal to the Secretary of Labor is permitted by this

act, the alien shall be so informed and shall have the

right to be represented by counsel or other adviser on

such appeal. * * *'

''The procedure for handling cases of persons ar-

riving and seeking admission is found in section 17

(8 USCA, Sec. 153), as follows:

" 'That boards of special inquiry shall be appointed

by the commissioner of immigration or inspector in

charge at the various ports of arrival as may be neces-

sary for the prompt determination of all cases of im-

migrants detained at such ports under the provisions

of the law. * * * Such boards shall have authority

to determine whether an alien who has been duly

held shall be allowed to land or shall be deported.

All hearings before such boards shall be separate and

apart from the public, but the immigrant may have
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one friend or relative present under such regulations

as may be prescribed by the Secretary of Labor.

* * * the decisions of any two members of the

board shall prevail, but either the alien or any dis-

senting member of the said board may appeal through

the commissioner of immigration at the port of ar-

rival and the Commissioner General of Immigration

to the Secretary of Labor, and the taking of such

appeal shall operate to stay any action in regard to

the final disposal of any alien whose case is so ap-

pealed until the receipt by the commissioner of immi-

gration at the port of arrival of such decision which

shall be rendered solely upon the evidence adduced

before the board of special inquiry. In every case

where an alien is excluded from admission into the

United States, under any law or treaty now existing

or hereafter made, the decision of a board of special

inquiry adverse to the admission of such alien shall

be final, unless reversed on appeal to the Secretary of

Labor. * * *'

"Section 23 (8 USCA, Sees. 102, 108) defines the

power of the Commissioner General of Immigration

as follows:

" 'That the Commissioner General of Immigration

shall perform all his duties under the direction of the

Secretary of Labor. Under such direction he shall

have charge of the administration of all laws relating

to the immigration of aliens into the United States,

* ^ * shall establish such rules and regulations

* * * and shall issue from time to time such

instructions not inconsistent with law, as he shall deem

best calculated for carrying out the provisions of

this Act and for protecting the United States and

aliens migrating thereto from fraud and loss. * * *'



—40—
''Section 19 (8 USCA, Sec. 155) applies to those

who have already entered, but are sought to be de-

ported. It reads:

" 'That at any time within five years after entry,

any aHen who at the time of entry was a member

of one or more of the classes excluded by law; any

alien who shall have entered or who shall be found in

the United States in violation of this Act, or in viola-

tion of any other law of the United States; * * *

shall, upon the warrant of the Secretary of Labor, be

taken into custody and deported. * * * jj^ every

case where any person is ordered deported from the

United States under the provisions of this Act, or

of any law or treaty, the decision of the Secretary of

Labor shall be final.'

"It will be noted that there is no attempt to pro-

vide in detail for the method of hearing the class of

cases arising under the last quoted section of the

Act. On the other hand, in those above quoted with

respect to persons seeking admission, as before stated.

Congress goes into very great detail and provides for

prompt action. In doing this, it has itself indicated

the instance in which the applicant shall have the right

to counsel ; i. e., before the Secretary of Labor. See

section 16 above cited. However, notwithstanding

the minute detail of section 17 for a summary hear-

ing, it not only does not give the right to counsel,

but we think, in the light of the specific provision in

section 16, coupled with the permission to 'have one

friend or relative present,' reasonably excludes the

idea that counsel should be permitted. The depart-

ment has so construed it for years and accordingly

has prescribed rules to govern at such hearings dis-
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tinct from those on appeal to the Secretary of Labor,

and in ordinary deportation cases. * * *

"In view of the specific provision for counsel on ap-

peal in section 16 of the Act, we think the issue

might be disposed of under the maxim 'Expressio

unius est exchisio alteriiu.' However, we pitch our

conclusion upon the proposition that the hearing was

not unfair because of the denial of counsel. One

'knocking at the door' does not enjoy the protection

of the provision of the Fourteenth Amendment with

regard to counsel, which in the first place applies only

to a criminal case. The courts in such cases merely

have jurisdiction to inquire and determine whether

the proceedings before the administrative depart-

ment of the government have been fair and not

denied to the applicant any of the rights and privileges

dictated by common justice. U. S. ex rel. Buccino

et al. V. Williams, Commissioner of Immigration

(C. C), 190 F. 897; Quon Quon Poy v. Johnson,

Commissioner, 273 U. S. 352, 47 S. Ct. 346, 71 L.

Ed. 680." (Emphasis ours.)

In United States ex rel. Chezv Deck v. Commissioner of

Immigration and Naturalisation, Port of Nczv York,

(D. C, S. D. N. Y., 1936), 17 Fed. Supp. 78, affirmed

without opinion 86 Fed. (2d) 1020, certiorari denied 300

U. S. 666, a writ of habeas corpus was sued out by the

relator who, alleging that he was the son of an American-

born Chinese, claimed the right to enter the United States

as the son of a native-born American citizen. In dis-

missing" the writ, the court held that a person claiming

the right to enter the United States as the son of a native-

born American citizen is not entitled to a trial de novo

by the court; that the immigration authorities, in passing
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on the claimed right to enter the United States as a son

of an American-born Chinese, are not bound by ordinary

rules of evidence prevailing- in court trials of common law

actions; that the immigration authorities' use of dis-

crepancies as a method of testing the value of testimony,

where a Chinese person claims the right to enter the

United States as the son of an American-born Chinese, is

proper; and that the Labor Department is vested with

power to make the rule, assailed by the petitioner, regard-

ing the presence of counsel at a hearing before immigra-

tion authorities or the taking of testimony in the absence

of such counsel.

The case of United States v. Sing Tuck (1894), 194

U. S. 161, 168, touches upon the pertinent principle of

law. The Supreme Court, dealing with a Chinese person,

used the following expression (pp. 168-169)

:

"Considerations similar to those which we have

suggested lead to a further conclusion. Whatever

may be the ultimate rights of a person seeking to

enter the country and alleging that he is a citizen, it

is within the power of Congress to provide at least

for a preliminary investigation by an inspector, and

for a detention of the person until he has established

his citizenship in some reasonable way. Tf the person

satisfies the inspector, he is allowed to enter the

country without further trial."

Under the Chinese Exclusion Act, a preliminary examina-

tion was made by an inspector whose actions were subject

to approval of a board of review, with ultimate right of

appeal to the Department. In the case at bar, a prelimi-

nary inspection is made by an inspector who. if he is not

convinced of the applicant's right to enter the United
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States, must refer the case to a board of special inquiry

for further consideration.

In United States v. Sing Tuck, supra, the majority

opinion of the Supreme Court found Rule 6 of the Immi-

gration Rules to be reasonable. That rule provided:

"Immediately upon the arrival of Chinese persons

at any port mentioned in Rule 4 it shall be the duty

of the officer in charge of the administration of the

Chinese exclusion laws to adopt suitable means to

prevent communication with them by any persons

other than officials under his control, to have said

Chinese persons examined promptly, as by law pro-

vided, touching their right to admission and to per-

mit those proving such right to land."

Under the provisions of Rule 6, it will be seen that the

applicant for admission is held incommunicado. The Su-

preme Court also held Rule 7 of the Immigration Rules

to be a reasonable regulation. Under the terms of that

rule, if a Chinese applicant was adjudged to be inadmissi-

ble after a hearing separate and apart from the public and

in the present of Government officials and only designated

witnesses, he shall be advised of his right to appeal and

then his counsel shall be permitted to examine but not to

make copies of the evidence. The Supreme Court, in ap-

proving these rules, .said (p. 170) :

"The whole scheme is intended to give as fair a

chance to prove a right to enter the country as the

necessarily summary character of the proceedings

will permit."



The case of Quon Quon Poy v. Johnson, Commissioner

(1927), 273 U. S. 352, held that an applicant for ad-

mission to the United States has no constitutional right

to a judicial hearing of his claim that he was born in and

is a citizen of the United States. In that case, a Chinese

boy, about 15 years of age, applied for admission to the

United States and based his right to such admission on

the claim that he was a foreign-born son of a native-born

American citizen. Following the preliminary investiga-

tion by an immigration official, his claim was heard by a

board of special inquiry, acting under the provisions of

the Immigration Act of 1917. The board of special

inquiry ordered the applicant's exclusion. This order was

affirmed on appeal to the Secretary of Labor, after the

finding of the board of special inquiry had been approved

by the board of review. Habeas corpus proceedings were

instituted and, on hearing, the writ was discharged and

the petitioner was remanded to the custody of the Com-

missioner of Immigration. Under the provisions of sec-

tion 238 of the Judicial Code, a direct appeal was taken

to the Supreme Court of the United States. It was main-

tained that the Chinese boy had been denied a fair hearing

and that the proceedings were irregular because no friend

or relative of the applicant was present at the hearing, in

accordance with the provisions of section 17 of the Act

of February 5, 1917. However, the record showed that

the petitioner, after being informed of his right to have

a relative or friend present at such hearing, waived the

privilege.
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In Quon Quon Poy v. Johnson, supra, no contention was

made that the hearing- before the board of special inquiry

was unfair or irregular because of the absence of counsel

on behalf of the applicant. It appears from the opinion in

the case that counsel for the petitioner was not present at

such hearing. The following statement is found in the

opinion of the Supreme Court (pp. 355-356)

:

"At the commencement of the hearing before the

Board the petitioner was informed of his right to

have a relative or friend present, and stated that he

did not desire to avail himself of this right and was

willing to proceed with the hearing. He was also

informed that the previous testimony given by himself

and his alleged father and brother would be made a

part of the proceedings before the Board; to which

he made no objection. The petitioner was then fur-

ther examined by the Board. After a postponement

for the purpose of obtaining a report as to the physi-

cal condition of the petitioner, the Board resumed its

hearing, the petitioner being again present; and after

consideration of the entire testimony, being of the

opinion that his relationship to Quon Mee Sing had

not been reasonably established, voted to accord him

five days in which to submit additional evidence.

Notice of this was sent to the attorney representing

the petitioner—who had not been present at any of

the proceedings—and he replied that the petitioner

had no further testimony to offer." (Emphasis ours.)



It may be concluded that Quon Qiion Poy's counsel

recognized that the rule preventing his appearance before

the board of special inquiry was a reasonable regulation,

since he did not contend in the habeas corpus proceeding

that the hearing was unfair because he had not been per-

mitted to be present. The Supreme Court seemingly sanc-

tioned such procedure since it held, after it noted the ab-

sence of counsel from the hearing before the board of

special inquiry, that the proceedings conformed to due

process of law. See:

Ex parte Chin Qiiock IVah (D. C, W. D., Wash.,

1915), 224 Fed. 138;

Ex parte Chin Hing (D. C, W. D., Wash., 1915),

224 Fed. 261.

It may be pointed out that in Nishimura Ekiu z\ United

States (1892), 142 U. S. 651, the Supreme Court upheld

the constitutionality of one of the older immigration acts

and sanctioned rules and regulations which, if they are

compared with the rule under attack in the instant case,

would seem harsh and unjust. The court said (p. 660)

:

"It is not within the province of the judiciary to

order that foreigners who have never been natural-

ized, nor acquired any domicile or residence within

the United States, nor even been admitted into the

country pursuant to law, shall be permitted to enter,

in opposition to the constitutional and lawful measures

of the legislative and executive branches of the na-

tional government. As to such persons, the decisions

of executive or administrative officers, acting within

powers expressly conferred by Congress, are due

process of law."



Professor Thomas Reed Powell, in an article on the

"Concliisivencss of Administrative Determinations in the

Federal Goz'ernment." clearly stated the necessity for

sumptuary rules and regulations and the reasons of public

poHcy underlying them. He said:

"The decisions of questions seriously affecting

private rights must be committed to some fallible

tribunal. Due process of law can rightfully demand

no more than that the procedure devised for reaching

the decision give to the individual every opportunity

to establish his rights, consistent with maintaining

the orderly and efficient administration of govern-

ment. The public welfare is entitled to as much con-

sideration as the private right; and the exigencies of

national well-being have been rightfully deemed an

important factor in determining whether the final

decision of an administrative board is due process of

law. The courts have regarded the cases, not as

isolated examples of governmental activity, but as

instances of many similar ones, and have in all cases

been influenced by the effect a contrary rule would

have on the work of the judiciary and the attainment

of the end which the legislature and the court deemed

essential to the public welfare.

"But starting with the presence of a horde of im-

migrants on the frontier, whom the proper authority

in the government has determined we must exclude,

if our national ideals are to be preserved * * *,

the demands of public necessity collide with the pos-

sible infringement of private right, and, rightly or

wrongly, has been determined to be law in the United

States that the exigencies of the national welfare are

to have the right of way." (Political Science Review,

August, 1907.)
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Finally, it must be reiterated that the only cases bearing

upon the right of an alien seeking admission to the United

States to have counsel present at the time of hearing

before a board of special inquiry hold that the denial of

counsel at such time does not render the hearing unfair.

This administrative practice has long been followed and

has never been successfully challenged. This long-estab-

lished practice of the Department should not be lightly

overthrown

:

United States v. Barucli (1912), 223 U. S. 191;

United States v. Healey (1895), 160 U. S. 136,

141, 145;

20 Op. Atty. Gen. 358, 362;

21 Op. Atty. Gen. 349, 352.

The regulations governing hearings before a board of

special inquiry were promulgated by an executive depart-

ment of the Government, to which the Congress has en-

trusted enforcement of the immigration laws. The judi-

ciary should not interfere in the practical workings of

these executive agencies unless it should appear, beyond a

peradventure of a doubt, that these regulations constitute

a denial of due process of law to the immigrants. This

long-standing practice should bear great weight with the

courts. Any doubt in this case should be resolved in favor

of the administrative agencies:

Robertson v. Downing (1888). 127 U. S. 607;

U. S. V. Cerecedo Hermanos y Compania (1908),

209 U. S. ZZ7,
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The rights of thousands of appHcants for admission to

the United States have been determined under these regu-

lations. The ruHng of the District Court in the case at

bar would seem to be in error, and its enforcement would

seriously impair the administrative machinery for the

enforcement of the immigration laws.

Conclusion.

It having been determined affirmatively that the execu-

tive officers have acted in a lawful and proper way in ar-

riving at their decision: that they did not abuse the dis-

cretion lodged with them; that there was no erroneous

application of the law, and the order of exclusion was not

arbitrarily issued, the appellant respectfully contends that

the court below erred, in granting the Writ of Habeas

Corpus and ordering the appellee discharged from the

custody of the Immigration and Naturalization Service.

It is therefore respectfully requested that the order of

the court below in discharging the appellee be reversed

with direction to remand the appellee to the custody of

the Immigration authorities.

Respectfully submitted,

Wm. Fleet Palmer,

United States Attorney,

By Russell K. Lambeau,

Assistant United States Attorney,

Attorneys for Appellant.
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Opening Statement.

The "Opening Statement" appearing on pages 1 and 2

of appellant's opening brief is substantially correct. The

"Facts of the Case" on page 3 of the same brief is a cor-

rect statement so far as it goes. However, there are a

great many additional facts which appear in the record

and which will hereafter be called to the attention of the

court in order that the grounds for the decision of the

District Court may be thoroughly understood and ap-

preciated.
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Question at Issue.

Appellant states at page 4 of his opening brief that while

there are five assignments of error, there is but one issue

before this Honorable Court, to-wit:

"Was the applicant accorded a fair hearing? Or

specifically: Did denial of the representation by

counsel at the Immigration hearing render the hearing

unfair?"

The determination of appellant to limit the scope of this

review to that single question is further borne out by the

fact that commencing at page 12 of appellant's opening

brief and continuing through to the conclusion, the brief

is devoted entirely to the single proposition that a Chinese

alien seeking admission to the United States is not entitled

to be represented by counsel at his hearing before the

Immigration Department. We do not concede the correct-

ness of this proposition, but we will not devote space in this

brief to lengthy reply for the reason that we deem the

issue so presented to be in no sense determinative of this

appeal.

The Memorandum Decision of the District Court [R. 9]

partially quoted in appellant's brief at page 4, is set out

at length herein (with numbers added in italics for the

sake of clarity) :
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"(Title of District Court and Cause.)

Memorandum of Decision.

Cosgrave, District Judge.

*'In this matter the Board of Review on Appeal

of the Immigration Department in Washington, (1)

being dissatisfied with the sufficiency of the evidence

supporting the findings of the Special Board of In-

quiry, sent the case back with instructions to take

further expert testimony. (2) Pursuant to such or-

der Dr. Earl C. Kading was called. (3) No notice

whatever was given to the applicant of the production

of Dr. Kading as a witness and (4) no opportunity

afiforded for cross-examination of this expert on be-

half of the applicant, (5) nor was applicant given any

opportunity to -produce witnesses to controvert the

testimony of Dr. Kading.

''(6) Such proceeding is manifestly unfair, particu-

larly since (7) in reaching its decision the Immigra-

tion Department has disregarded the competent and

uncontradicted testimony of eye-witnesses as to the

date of nativity and parentage of applicant.

"The petition for writ of habeas corpus is granted,

and the petitioner is discharged from the custody of

the Immigration authorities.

"July 1, 1940.'

"(Endorsed): Filed Jul. 1, 1940."

From the foregoing it appears that there are no less

than seven reasons why the District Court reached the

decision it did, notwithstanding the statement on page 4

of appellant's opening brief that "the court regarded the

hearing in this case to be unfair solely because the appli-

cant was not permitted to be represented by counsel be-

fore the Board of Special Inquiry." (Italics ours.)
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It is apparent that nowhere in the decision of the Dis-

trict Court is any emphasis placed on the fact that appel-

lee was not permitted to be represented by counsel. The

only part of the decision which even suggests this idea

is number 4 which states: ''No opportunity (was) af-

forded for cross-examination of this expert on behalf

of applicant." This is a very different thing from say-

ing that applicant was not permitted to be represented by

counsel. It will also be noted that denial of counsel to

applicant is not alleged as a ground of unfairness in the

Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus. [R. 1.]

Rule 12 of the Immigration Rules quoted at page 13 of

appellant's opening brief permits the applicant to have

one friend or relative present after the preliminary part

of the hearing has been completed. If we concede that

the applicant (a nine year old boy) might not have been

qualified to cross-examine an expert witness like Dr.

Kading, it is nevertheless quite possible that his friend or

relative could have conducted such an examination. For

example, it appears in the record [Tr. pp. 17 and 18] that

applicant's father, Wong Quan, is not only an American

citizen (this fact is expressly conceded by appellant at

page 5 of his opening brief) but also that Wong Quan

was born in San Francisco, and has lived his entire life

in the state of California, speaks English fluently and

served for twenty years as cook in the United States

Navy. It thus appears that appellee's own father might

very well have cross-examined the expert had an oppor-

tunity been afforded and that the District Court's refer-

ence to a denial of the right of cross-examination is by

no means the same thing as saying that he was denied

the right to counsel.
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ARGUMENT.

A Correct Decision Will Not Be Disturbed on Appeal
Because the Court Below Gave a Wrong or Insuf-

ficient Reason Therefor.

Even if one or more of the seven reasons set out in the

opinion of the District Court were in the judgment of this

Honorable Court wrong or insufficient, that fact alone

would not justify the reversal of this judgment.

The Supreme Court of the United States has recently

stated this rule in Hclvering v. Gowran, 302 U. S. 238,

245, 82 L. Ed. 224:

"In the review of judicial proceedings the rule is

settled that if the decision below is correct, it must
be affirmed, although the lower court relied upon a
wrong ground or gave a wrong reason. Frey & Son
V. Cudahy Packing Co., 256 U. S. 208, 65 L. ed.

892, 41 S. Ct. 451; United States v. American R.

Exp. Co., 265 U. S. 425, 68 L. ed. 1087, 44 S. Ct.

560; United States v. Holt State Bank, 270 U. S. 49,

56, 70 L. ed. 465, 469, 46 S. Ct. 197; Langnes v.

Green, 282 U. S. 531, 75 L. ed. 520, 51 S. Ct. 243;

Stelos Co. V. Hosiery Motor-Mend Corp., 295 U. S.

237, 239, 79 L. ed. 1414, 1416, 55 S. Ct. 746; cf.

United States v. Williams, 278 U. S. 255, 73 L. ed.

314, 49 S. Ct. 97."

This case was followed and cited in a recent decision

of the Circuit Court of Appeals for the Tenth Circuit,

North American Ace. Ins. Co. v. Tehhs, 107 Fed. (2d)

853, 856. The same rule was applied by the United

States Supreme Court in a habeas corpus case where the

court says: "The judgment will not be reversed because

an insufficient reason may have been assigned for the dis-

missal of the petition." Ex parte Royall, 117 U. S. 241,

29 L. ed. 868. A similar rule was stated by this Honor-

able Court in Commissioner v. Bryson, 79 Fed. (2d) 397,

402,



The District Court Has Made Findings of Fact Which
Are Amply Supported by the Evidence and Are

Therefore Determinative of This Appeal.

The entire immigration record which has been filed in

this court was Hkewise before the District Court at the

time its proceedings were conducted. After considering

all this evidence and being fully advised in the premises,

the District Court made its order granting the petition

for writ of habeas corpus and discharging applicant from

custody [R. 10]. This is the order from which the

present appeal is taken. In this order the District Court

found that the allegations of the petition are true and

that appellee was illegally restrained of his liberty and

prevented from entering into the United States by the

appellant herein. By reference to the Petition for Writ of

Habeas Corpus [R. 1] it is seen that the District Court

has found as a fact that Wong Choon Ock (appellee) is a

citizen of the United States ; that he was born in China and

that he is the son of Wong Quan, whose United States

citizenship is conceded by the Immigration Department.

It is further found as a fact that when appellee applied for

admission to the United States at San Pedro, California,

on or about June 25, 1939; that competent witnesses testi-

fied to the fact of his birth and relationship to his father

and mother and that there was no showing of any untruth

in his testimony respecting his relationship and nativity,

and other matters bearing directly on his claim of Amer-

ican citizenship. It is further found as a fact that the

adverse ruling of the Immigration Department was based

solely on the opinion evidence of certain doctors to the

efifect that the appearance and bone structure of appellee

indicated that he was from one to three years older than
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he and his parents testified, and that accordingly he could

not be the natural son of the said parents. It is further

found as a fact that the opinion evidence of these doctors

upon which the decision of the Immigration Department

was based was and is uncertain, indefinite and wholly in-

sufficient to raise any conflict or to cause any discrepancy

in the testimony as against the positive and direct testi-

mony of eye-witnesses to the nativity of the appellee. It

is further found as a fact that appellee was denied the

right, by the Immigration Department, to present the

testimony of three additional eye-witnesses as to his nativ-

ity and relationship to his father ; said witnesses each being

native born American citizens and older brothers of appli-

cant and who were personally present at the time of his

birth. It is further found that all of the foregoing acts

on the part of the Immigration Department prevented

applicant (appellee), from receiving a fair and impartial

hearing of his application for admission to the United

States.

Appellant has utterly failed to point out any respect in

which the evidence fatls to support these findings of the

lower court.

With respect to the evidence offered in support of

appellee at the immigration hearing, it appears from the

record to have been of the very highest and most convinc-

ing character. Appellee, together with his father, mother

and younger brother, all arrived on the same steamer,

traveling as a family unit. They were bound for the



parent's home in Los Angeles, in which city the older

brothers of appellee are established in business.

We can do no better with respect to this testimony than

to quote from the official conclusions of the Board of

Review of the Immigration Department sitting in Wash-

ington, and dated November 2, 1939 (Immigration Record

56007/819)

:

''Wong Quan, the alleged father of the applicant,

Chin Shee, his alleged mother, and Wong Choon

Loy, an alleged brother of the applicant, all three of

whom accompanied the applicant on his journey to

the United States, have testified as witnesses in sup-

port of his claim.

''The testimony is completely harmonious, no dis-

crepancy of any sort being alleged. Moreover, while

the Board of Special Inquiry at San Pedro appears

not to have observed a resemblance between the ap-

plicant and his alleged parents, a comparison of the

photographs indicates a marked similarity between the

applicant and his parents in the matter of a rather

peculiar ear formation which might be regarded as a

family characteristic or pecidiarity." (Italics ours.)

Seldom indeed is it, that the Board of Review of the

Immigration Department uses such language as quoted

above: "The testimony is completely harmonious, no dis-

crepancy of any sort being alleged."

The convincing character of this testimony impressed

not only the Board of Review, but also the District Court

as will be noted from its Memorandum Opinion, supra.



~9—

When it was learned for the rirst time that appellee's

age had been challenged, application was promptly made

for leave to reopen the case and submit additional evi-

dence to the Immigration Department specifically on the

question of appellee's age. The letter of Warner H.

Parker, attorney for applicant, dated December 1, 1939,

addressed to the Commissioner of Immigration is part

of record No. 56007/819. The proferred testimony was

competent and bore specifically on the question at issue;

however, the application was denied by the Immigration

Department as shown by the letter dated December 12,

1939, from Edw. J. Shaughnessy, Deputy Commissioner

to Warner H. Parker, in the same record. At about

this same time the case was reopened by the Immigra-

tion Department on its own motion to receive the testi-

mony of its own medical expert, Dr. Kading. This is

the expert who is referred to in the Memorandum Opin-

ion of the District Court and the unfairness of this ''star-

chamber'' proceeding was one of the things that im-

pressed the lower court unfavorably [R. 9].

In Chin Quong Mew ?'. Tillinghast , 30 Fed. (2d) 684,

the Circuit Court of Appeals for the 1st Circuit says:

"The applicant was not informed by the Board

that such evidence would be received and considered

and was given no opportunity to refute or explain it.

It was undoubtedly used and given weight by the

Board in reaching its conclusion. Such conduct was

highly prejudicial and rendered its decision unfair/'

(Italics ours.)
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The Lower Court's Finding That the Medical Testi-

mony Was Uncertain and Inconclusive Is Amply
Supported by the Evidence.

It has already been pointed out that the lower court

found as a fact that the opinion evidence of the doctors

as to appellee's age was and is uncertain, indefinite and

wholly insufficient to raise any conflict or to cause any

discrepancy in the testimony as against the positive and

direct testimony of eye-witnesses to the nativity of

appellee.

Appellant in an attempt to discredit the age claim of

applicant calls attention to a photograph in the record

and at page 6 of his opening brief makes the statement:

<<;)c * * ^YiQ photographs show the applicant to be

practically twice as tall as his alleged brother." (Italics

ours.)

This same assertion was made by appellant in his

argument to the District Court. The manifest error of

the statement was pointed out to the court below and we

in turn request this Honorable Court to examine the

photographs in the record. By actual measurement of

the photograph, Exhibit "E", the younger boy, Wong
Choon Loy is eighty per cent (80%) as tall as applicant.

(Not fifty per cent (50%) as appellant's brief indicates.)

In fact, the difference in height, as indicated in the pic-

tures is what would be expected remembering that appli-

cant is a tall thin child while his younger brother is of a

short robust build. It is this very circumstance (that

appellee is tall for his age), which no doubt led the doc-

tors to their erroneous conclusions.
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The doctors were all at variance respecting their opin-

ions as to appellee's age. Dr. Campbell's testimony at

page 32 of the transcript is in part as follows:

"269 Q. Have you any opinion you care to ex-

press regarding Dr. Graning's report? A. Dr.

Craning expressed the opinion that the boy is be-

tween the age of eleven and thirteen and I disagree

with him and say that the true age is as the boy stated

it thru the interpreter, ten years." (Italics ours.)

Applicant's mother, Chin King Nue, also testified [Tr.

p. 5] that applicant was "age ten". It is obvious, of

course, that both applicant and his mother were using the

Chinese mode of reckoning, by which a baby is one year

old at the moment of birth, and not the American method

by which a child is said to be of a given age throughout

the year following the completion of the number of years

stated as his age. The testimony therefore indicates an

age of nine years for the applicant.

Inasmuch as applicant's father and mother left San

Francisco for China on July 17, 1929 [Immig. Rec. p. 17],

and arrived in that country early in August of that year,

appellee might have been as old as nine years and ten

months at the time of bis first examination by the doctors.

The flimsy character of this opinion evidence to over-

come the positive and direct testimony of eye-witnesses

was recognized by the Board of Review of the Immigra-

tion Department in its Memorandum Decision dated

February 17, 1940, which reads in part as follows:

"The private physician employed by those inter-

ested in the applicant's cause to furnish additional

evidence appeared before the Board of Special In-

quiry and stated that in his opinion the applicant was
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approximately ten years old at the time of his ex-

amination. According to his asserted birth date, the

applicant was at that time two or three months un-

der nine years of age. In the circumstances of the

case the alleged father's paternity would be possible

if the applicant were a few months over nine years

of age. It was, therefore, felt that the discrepancy

between the age which would accord with the appli-

cant's asserted birth date and the age of the appli-

cant as estimated by the medical examiners should

not be regarded as sufficient to warrant the dismissal

of the appeal without consultation with the appropri-

ate official of the Public Health Service in the central

office of that Service in Washington."

Dr. E. C. Kading's report (Immigration Record) of his

examination made November 22, 1939 (five months after

applicant's arrival), gives his height as 59% inches and

weight 76}4 pounds.

"Pediatric Dietetics" by N. Thomas Saxl, published in

1937, the leading authority on the development of chil-

dren, contains a height and weight table on page 436 in

which the minimum weight shown for a height of 59

inches is 87 pounds. The average weight for this height

would be 89 pounds. This applicant's weight is therefore

13 pounds less than the average for a 59 inch height and

11 pounds less than the lowest weight given for this

height in Saxl's table. Dr. Kading described applicant

as "a. boy of light bony frame". The photographs of

applicant which are in evidence show him to be thin and

flat chested and extremely tall in relation to his weight.

The table above quoted shows applicant's weight to be

about the average for nine year old boys, although his

height is well above the average. Like many other little
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boys he has the misfortune of being too tall for his age

and weight.

In addition to the external appearance of the applicant

the doctors have considered X-ray pictures of some of his

joints, this involves the science of Roentgenology and is

based on the assumption that X-ray pictures will disclose

the "bone age" or "skeletal age" of an individual and that

his true chronological age can be deduced therefrom. So

far as we have been able to find this type of evidence was

most recently considered by a Court of Record in the fol-

lowing case. District Judge Brewster, sitting in the Dis-

trict Court for the District of Massachusetts, had for con-

sideration a petition' for a writ of habeas corpus where

a Chinese applicant who was a foreign born son of a citi-

zen had been denied admission by the Immigration De-

partment. In this case. Chin Ten Teung v. Ward, 30 Fed.

Supp. 670, the court says:

"This son of a citizen is denied admission because a

medical examiner, who examined him and X-ray pic-

tures, testified that he was 20 to 21 years of age. The
medical examiner was obliged to admit that he was
not qualified to say whether his theories respecting

skeletal development would hold in the case o^^ one

of the Chinese race. There was medical evidence be-

fore the Board to the efifect that age could not be ac-

curately determined by the degree of ossification. A
doctor testified that The reason why I have this

conclusion is due to the fact that every author that

has done research work on the epiphyses will not state

definitely that the epiphyses united at the definite time

due to the fact that these epiphyses are affected by

sunlight, fresh air, muscular exercise, diet, and
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glandular disturbance; * * * They are not defi-

nite in their opinion and I think I can't truthfully

say the exact age and there is no one who can say

the exact age of any individual within three years.

''The Board of Review had before it abundant evi-

dence to the same effect from reputable sources, and

also further evidence that the Chinese are of a very

different type from the Caucasian, and that among
the Chinese there is great variation in the time of

junction of the epiphyses with the main part of the

various bones to which they belong.

"Over against the unsupported hypothesis of the

medical examiner can be set the testimony of rela-

tives who had entered the country in 1923, all of

whom agreed that the father Chin Yoke Sing had,

at that time, only one son. * =«' *

"At the risk of coming perilously close to the

limits which define the jurisdiction of the Court to

overrule administrative action, I feel that this is a

case where the action of the administrative authori-

ties, both here and in Washington, in wholly disre-

garding important and reliable evidence, amounted to

an unfair hearing; moreover, I think it may very

well be held that the conclusion that the claimant

was born prior to August, 1923, was without sub-

stantial evidence to support it.

'T cannot escape the conviction that, if a son of a

citizen is to be denied admission to the United

States, his exclusion should rest upon more substan-

tial grounds than are shown in the records of this

case.

"For these reasons, I order the writ of habeas

corpus to issue and that the petitioner be discharged

thereon."
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Judge Brewster's decision finds ample foundations in

the decisions of the U. S. Circuit Courts of Appeal for

various circuits including this one.

In Ward v. Flynn, ex rel., Yee Gim Lung, 74 Fed. (2d)

145 (1st Cir.) Circuit Judge Morton states very clearly

the powers of courts in habeas corpus with regard to the

decisions of Immigration Officials. The court says

:

The law on this subject is familiar, and it is un-

necessary to cite authorities. Tribunals which un-

dertake to ascertain facts must proceed on evidence

or on the personal knowledge of their members.

They have no other way of getting at the truth.

Of course, they are not obliged to accept every state-

ment which is sworn to or to disregard inherent im-

probability; tribunals of administrative character may
get at the facts in any way they see fit within the

bounds of reason and fairness. Where the proceed-

ings are of a sort in which deception and fabrica-

tion are often attempted, a suspicious attitude towards

them is not unreasonable. But, to reject sworn,

consistent, unimpeached, and uncontradicted testi-

mony, there must be a real reason which would he

regarded as adequate by fair-minded persons. (Ital-

ics ours.)

Applying this rule, Judge Brewster concluded in the

Chin Ten Teung case, supra, that the conclusion of the

doctors as to the applicant's age based on their examina-

tion of the applicant and upon X-ray pictures was not

such a reason as "would be regarded as adequate by fair-

minded persons" to cause the rejection of "sworn, con-

sistent, unimpeached, and uncontradicted testimony". Simi-

larly in the present case we believe that the opinions of



—16—

witnesses who have not the sHghtest knowledge of the

fact of birth should not cause the rejection of the testi-

mony of credible eye-witnesses to that fact.

The principal reliance in appellant's brief is placed upon

the recent case of Horn Ark v. United States, 105 Fed.

(2d) 607 (C. C. A. 9th). Respondent is mistaken when

he states that this decision ''determines and controls all the

issues involved in the instant case" as will appear from the

following analysis of the Hoin Ark case

:

1. In the Horn Ark case the question of age be-

came an issue for a materially different reason from

that in the instant case. Under Section 1993 of the

Revised Statutes, applicant there was required to show

that he was born after the date on which his

father took residence in the United States; to-wit:

February 8, 1921. This for the reason that Horn

Ark's father was not a native born citizen of the

United States and it was necessary to go back to

Horn Ark's grandfather to find such a native born

citizen. In the instant case not only is applicant's

father, Wong Quan, admittedly an American citizen

but he is also a native born citizen and thus the pro-

vision of law which barred Hom Ark would not ap-

ply to him. It is merely necessary in the instant case

to establish that applicant is the son of Wong Quan.

Inasmuch as Wong Quan's wife was with him in

the United States and accompanied him to China on

the 1929 trip, it is entirely possible that conception

occurred well before they arrived or even before they

departed from the United States. The foregoing

distinction between the instant case and the Hom Ark
case is important as showing that much greater lati-

tude may be allowed with respect to the date of ap-

plicant's birth than was possible in the Hom Ark
case.
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2. An essential distinction between the two cases

arises through the lack of competent testimony in

the Hom Ark case as to the date of birth. At page

608 of the opinion, the court says:

"On this subject, appellant offered no testimony

except that of himself and his alleged father, Hom
Chuie. They both testified that appellant was born

on February 22, 1921. What their testimony was
based on, is not apparent. It obviously was not

based on personal knowledge. Appellant, of course,

could not actually know the exact date of his own
birth. On the claimed date, February 22, 1921,

Hom Chuie was in the United States. Therefore,

he could not know that appellant—admittedly born

in China—was born on that date." (Italics ours.)

By way of contrast with this total lack of compe-

tent testimony as to appellant's age in the Hom Ark
case, we have in the instant case such competent

and convincing testimony by eye-witnesses that the

Board of Review in their memo dated November 2,

1939, is constrained to say: "The testimony is com-

pletely harmonious, no discrepancy of any sort being

alleged." It is easy to understand why, in the Hom
Ark case with no evidence fixing the date of birth

except the rankest hearsay, that this Honorable
Court could say at page 610,

"X-ray pictures are not, of course, infallible ineans

of determining age. No one claims that they are."

and yet conclude that opinion evidence of this type

should prevail in a case where there is no direct

evidence to offset it. However, when, as in the in-

stant case there is positive and uncontradicted eye-

witnesses' testimony as to the date of birth, opinion

testimony of the doctors respecting age does not fur-

nish a real reason to reject consistent and unim-
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peached testimony which would be regarded as ade-

quate by fair minded persons.

3. The age issue in the Hom Ark case was be-

tween 17 and 20 years, and the instant case involves

a much younger child. Quoting from the Hom Ark
case on page 609 it is said:

"Q. Dr. King has stated in his letter * * *

that he * * * examined an individual whose

wrist bones were ossified although the child was

but five years of age. Would that same be true at

the advanced age of between 17 and 20? A. I

don't think that would be a parallel at all. That is

an entirely different age period/' (Italics ours.)

Much of the testimony quoted in the Hom Ark case

serves to emphasize and support appellee's contention

made at some length earlier in this brief, that conclusions

based on X-ray pictures are a most unreliable method of

determining age. Quoting from the Hom Ark case on

page 609 it is said:

"* ^ *, the following letter addressed to appel-

lant's attorney and signed by Dr. C. V. King,

roentgenologist of Los Angeles, California was put

in evidence:

"I have today examined some X-ray films of the

right wrist and right elbow, at your request, which

were taken of (appellant) on May 11th, 1938, by

Dr. Albert Allen of San Pedro, California. * * *

"These films both show a stage of development

which should be expected in a person about 20 or

21 years of age. However, it must be borne in mind

that the bones of some individuals develop more than

usual and epiphyseal lines may be obliterated at an

age several years sooner than expected. Such devel-



—19—

opment is not very unusual and, indeed, I have ex-

amined today another individual in whom there was
no question of the age chronologically and yet the

bones of the wrist were well ossified to the point com-

monly seen in a child at least 7 or 8 years of age,

although this child was only five years of age.

"Accordingly, I feel that the evidence of the true

age of the indii)idual is not always conclusive and a

variance of 5 to 6 years might be allowed in a person

past the age of adolescence." (Italics ours.)

The variability and uncertainty of the testimony of the

kind found in the present case to establish age is further

seen in the conclusions reached by the doctors themselves.

Dr. F. McLain Campbell concluded that applicant "is

around the age of 10 years".

Dr. Harold M. Craning gives as his opinion (Exhibit

"D") that applicant "is between 11 and 13 years." Dr.

E. C. Kading states "in my opinion he is between 13 and

15 years of age." We thus find an amazing variation in

the opinions rendered by the doctors themselves. Only

Dr. Campbell suggests a definite age and the other two

allow themselves a three year leeway. The estimates of all

three medical men combined involves the amazing dis-

crepancy of five years or approximately 50% of the sub-

ject's age. When there is such a great inconsistency in the

affirmative testimony of these doctors, their opinions of

the negative subject (namely that applicant is not of the

age he testified to) is equally incredible.

The science of Roentgenology, so far as it applies to

the determination of the skeletal age of an individual is

simply a matter of averages, and is recognized by medical

authorities as subject to great variations. Dr. Isidore
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Cohn in his work ''Normal Bones and Joints" has this to

say:

"It is interesting to note that up to the present time

there is a marked variation noted regarding the time

of ossification of certain of the epiphyses. The

period of complete ossification probably is different

under different climatic conditions; this also will give

an opportunity for a study of this subject in the

colder climates. The literature on the subject is mis-

leading, there is no agreement among authorities as

to the period at which union occurs, or the exact

number of epiphyses."

To arrive at the averages upon which the doctors in this

case have based their conclusion statistics were gathered

covering a great number of cases. After tabulating these

findings the averages are said to be the normal skeletal

ages. In "Osseous Index of Skeletal Development" by

Flory it is pointed out that the skeletal age varies greatly

from the true or chronological age especially in children

of the ninth and tenth years. In commenting on this

variation the author says:

"Individual variations appear in skeletal develop-

ment with the same sort of characteristics as have

been observed for other types of physical growth.

The majority of children progress toward maturity

in a rather regular fashion with few fluctuations,

little deviation from the mean, and no atypical symp-

toms. This large group of average or near average

children need very little adjustment of social prac-
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tices to meet their needs. Extreme deviates and

widely fluctuating individuals present a more serious

problem. Some children mature early, others mature

late, and still others move from the accelerated group

to the retarded group or from the retarded group to

the accelerated group. Most individuals reach skele-

tal maturity at some age. Each individual has his

own growth rate." (Italics ours.)

Even the height and weight tables relied on by the doc-

tors are subject to great uncertainties. In "Pediatric

Dietetics", supra, at page 435, it is said:

"With so many factors creating disparity and mili-

tating against agreement in absolute weights, it be-

comes evident that there can be no definite rule as

to what a child should weigh at any period of life.

Nevertheless, measurements of hundreds of thousands

of juveniles have established the average child to be

within certain height and weight limits at dififerent

ages. This has led to the construction of a table

which designates approximate heights and weights at

given ages."

We have already seen that the applicant is extremely

tall for his weight, it follows that he is also tall for his

age. Skeletal age and height are more closely correlated

than any other two factors; that correlation in the case of

boys being .88 (page 20 of Osseous Development, etc.,

supra). This shows that if boy is extraordinarily tall for

his chronological age, he will have a skeletal development

that will be correspondently advanced for his age. This is

the factor which has led the doctors to an erroneous con-
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elusion of the applicant's age as based on the X-ray

pictures.

Reference is made to the Radiographic Report, which is

Exhibit "E" in the files. It states that the pisiform (a

small bone in the wrist) is present and that the average

age for its appearance is 10 years. However, the appear-

ance of this bone has been noted in children of seven

years or younger and ten years is merely the average.

The conclusions of these doctors, therefore, are entirely

discredited when it is observed their opinions are based on

the normal or average development in boys. Everything

in this record indicates that the applicant is not a normal

or average case.

The fallacy will be made more apparent by a homely

illustration. Suppose a father took his son into a store

and asked for a "nine year old" suit. The clerk after

trying vainly to fit the lad into the requested size, finally

found that a "twelve year old" suit gave a fairly good fit.

The clerk thereupon turned to the father and declared:

"You lied to me! This boy is not nine years old, he is

really twelve years old, I can prove it because his body

fits into a 'twelve year old' size suit."

This Honorable Court expressed its strong disapproval

of medical testimony to establish age in the case of Woo

Hoo V. White, 243 Fed. 541. Opinion by Circuit Judge

Gilbert. The court says

:

"The doubt expressed by the Commissioner Gen-

eral as to the alleged age of the applicant was based
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upon a certificate of two surgeons that, after a care-

ful consideration of the physical characteristics, they

were of the opinion that 'his age is within one year

either way of 23 years'. It is not represented that

the certificate was based upon any scientific data, or

otherwise than upon the general appearance of the

applicant. Upon such a question the opinion of a

surgeon is believed to be of no greater value than

that of a layman, and in either case it has hut little

probative value to show a difference of age of only

two years.'' (Italics ours.)

The above case was cited with approval and followed

by the District Court for the Northern District of CaH-

fornia in Ex Parte Gin Mun On, 286 Fed. 752. In re-

ferring to the IVoo Hoo case, supra, District Judge Dool-

ing says:

"When the court lays down as a fact that such

opinion has but little probative value to show a dif-

ference of age of only two years, it seems to me that

is the first thing that should be submitted to a board

of inquiry, who have to pass upon the weight of such

testimony in the first instance."

The decision goes on to hold the action of the Immigra-

lion Board in that case to be unfair.

In Fong On v. Day, 39 Fed. (2d) 202, the court re-

jected a medical certificate offered as evidence of the fact

that applicant was not less than sixteen years old, whereas,

he claimed to be only twelve years of age.
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It Constitutes Unfairness for the Immigration Depart-

ment to Reject Sworn, Consistent and Uncontra-

dicted Testimony Without a Real Reason Which
Would Be Regarded as Adequate by Fair-Minded

Persons.

Almost all of the Circuit Court of Appeals decisions we

have examined involve an appeal by the appHcant after

his petition for writ of habeas corpus was denied by the

District Court. An exception is the case of Ex parte

Chung Thet Poy, 13 Fed. (2d) 262; in this case the Dis-

trict Court granted the writ and discharged applicant from

custody. The case is similar to the one at bar in that the

relationship of applicant to his father was the sole point

in question. The court says:

"It is difficult to perceive how any tribunal could

fairly consider the evidence adduced in support of

the applicant's claim, without being satisfied as to the

claimed relationship to the father, unless the board

was arbitrarily seeking to discover some grounds,

however immaterial or unsubstantial, upon which it

could base an excluding decision.

"I think this is a case which warrants the court

in assuming jurisdiction on the ground that the ap-

plicant was denied that fair hearing to which he may
justly lay claim. While the court is without power

to weigh the evidence, for the purpose of revising

decisions of the administrative officials, it is not, I

take it, powerless to act if the court is of the opin-

ion that the decision of the administrators was wholly

without warrant. Chin Hoy v. U. S. (C. C. A.)

293 F. 750; Lew Shee v. Nagle (C. C. A.) 7 F.

(2d) 367; Christy v. Leong Don (C. C. A.) 5 F.
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(2d) 135. See, also Kwock Jan Fat v. White, 253

U. S. 454, 40 S. Ct. 566, 64 L. Ed. 1010; Ng Fung

Ho V. White, 259 U. S. 276, 42 S. Ct. 492, 66 L.

Ed. 938."

This decision was appealed by the Government and was

later affirmed by the Circuit Court of Appeals for the

First Circuit; Johnson v. Chung Thet Poy, 16 Fed. (2d)

1018. The Appellate Court says:

'Tn the District Court it was found that the ap-

plicant was denied a fair hearing by the board; that

it acted in an arbitrary manner in arriving at its

excluding decision. We think the conclusion reached

by the District .Court was right and that the decree

discharging the applicant should be affirmed."

In the instant case the Administrative Officers of the

Immigration Department have rejected sworn, unim-

peached and uncontradicted testimony without any reason

which would be regarded as adequate by fair-minded per-

sons. The courts have always held that when this con-

dition exists the hearing accorded the applicant was un-

fair and he should be released on habeas corpus.

The general rule regarding finality of the decisions of

the Immigration Department is subject to the exception

that the hearing granted by the Department must be fair

and that it constitutes unfairness for Administrative Offi-

cers to reject sworn, unimpeached and uncontradicted

testimony without a reason which would be regarded as

adequate by fair-minded persons.
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In Ward v. Flynn, ex rel., Yee Gim Lung, 74 Fed. (2d)

145 (1st Cir.), Circuit Judge Morton states very clearly

the powers of courts in habeas corpus with regard to the

decisions of Immigration Officials. The court says:

"The law on this subject is familiar, and it is un-

necessary to cite authorities. Tribunals which un-

dertake to ascertain facts must proceed on evidence

or on the personal knowledge of their members. They

have no other way of getting at the truth. Of course,

they are not obliged to accept every statement which

is sworn to or to disregard inherent improbability;

tribunals of administrative character may get at the

facts in any way they see fit within the bonds of

reason and fairness. Where the proceedings are of

a sort in which deception and fabrication are often

attempted, a suspicious attitude towards them is not

unreasonable. But, to reject sworn, consistent, unim-

peached, and uncontradicted testimony, there must he

a real reason which woidd be regarded as adequate

by fdir-minded persons." (Italics ours.)

A similar conclusion is reached by the court In re

Cheung Tung, 292 Fed. 997, where a writ of habeas

corpus was granted and it is held that a hearing is un-

fair where the Immigration Officers totally reject the

direct and positive testimony of the petitioner and other

witnesses because of a minor variance in the testimony.

The court says:

"For the officers to require more conclusive evi-

dence than the petitioner has furnished is to demand

proof beyond all doubt and to a moral certainty, and

such a requirement would constitute a fundamental

error in the application of the law. In re Wong Toy

(D. C), 278 Fed. 562."
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In Jew Yiit Chew v. Tillmghast, 2S Fed. (2d) 886, it

is held that minor discrepancies in testimony of Chinese

appHcant's alleged father and brother were not grounds

to cause his exclusion.

The Circuit Court of Appeals, First Circuit, has said

in Flynn ex rel. Yce Suey v. Ward, 104 Fed. (2d) 900,

that

"The exclusion of Chinese cannot be justified merely

because there are trivial and slight discrepancies in

his proof nor an unjustifiable and arbitrary deduc-

tion from the evidence be made the basis for an or-

der for exclusion. That sort of procedure would

demonstrate that the hearing was unfair." (Italics

ours.)

The recent and well considered decision of this Honor-

able Court, Chun Kock Quon v. Proctor, 92 Fed. (2d)

326, is important. In this case the Appellate Court re-

versed the decision of the District Court for the Western

District of Washington which had denied the petitioner a

writ of habeas corpus. After pointing out that the bur-

den of proving citizenship is on the applicant, the court

says

:

"A finding of the immigration authorities to the

effect that an applicant is not a citizen must have

some factual support in the record. Kwock Jan Fat

V. White, 253 U. S. 454, 458, 40 S. Ct. 566, 567,

64 L. Ed. 1010. (Italics ours.)
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'The fundamental principles controlling the de-

liberations and determination of the immigration of-

ficials and the Secretary in an exclusion case are held,

in an opinion of Mr. Justice Hughes, to be 'the

fundamental principles of justice embraced within the

conception of due process of law.' Tang Tun v. Ed-

sell, 223 U. S. 673, 682, 32 S. Ct. 359, 363, 56 L.

Ed. 606.

"In a subsequent exclusion case, in an opinion by

Mr. Justice Clarke, the Supreme Court said: 'The

acts of Congress give great power to the Secretary

of Labor over Chinese immigrants and persons of

Chinese descent. It is a power to be administered,

not arbitrarily and secretly, but fairly and openly,

under the restraints of the tradition and principles of

free government applicable where the fundamental

rights of men are involved, regardless of their origin

or race. It is the province of the courts, in proceed-

ings for review, within the limits amply defined in the

cases cited, to prevent abuse of this extraordinary

power. * * * /^ jj better that inany Chinese im-

migrants should he improperly admitted than that

one natural horn citisen of the United States should

be permanently excluded from his country.' (Italics

supplied by the Court.) Kwock Jan Fat v. White,

253 U. S. 454, 464, 40 S. Ct. 566, 569, 570, 64 L.

Ed. 1010.

"This court has recently stated of the immigration

officials in deportation cases: 'Their obligation as

enforcers of the immigration laws is as mandatory
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to establish citizenship, if it exist, as it is to deport

the alien.' Lau Hu Yuen v. U. S. (C. C. A. 9) 85

R (2d) Zll, 331. * * *"

Conclusion.

Since the eye-witness testimony in favor of this appli-

cant is of unimpeachable character and since there is

ample support in the record for the finding of the District

Court that the adverse medical testimony is uncertain

and inconclusive, it follows that the decision of the lower

court was correct and should be affirmed.

Respectfully submitted,

Geo. W. Fenimore,

Attorney for Appellee.
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